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(10) Appointed May 31. 1907.
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ERRATA.

Page 29.— For “Higgins v. Pitt" read "Higgons 
v. Pitt."

Page 29.— For "Mara v. Sanford" read “Mare 
v. Sand ford."

Page 73, Foot-note.— For “2 Y. & C. C R. 30" 
read "2 Y. & C. C. R. 31."

Page 73. Foot-note For 1 Han. N. B. R. 168" 
read "1 Han. N. B. R. 167."

Page 73. Foot-note.—For "1 Eq. N. B. R. 588" 
read "1 Eq. N. B. R. 568."

Page 74, Foot-note.— For "4 Hare 128" read "4 
Hare 129."

Page 83. Foot-note — For "3 Y. A C. Chan. R. 
508" read "2 Y. & C. Chan. R. 598."

Page 85.— For "Roberts v. Jefferys" read 
" Robarts v. Jefferys."

Page 94. Foot-note.— For "48 L. R. 510" read 
"48 L. T. 510."

Page 105, Foot-note.— For "7 C. B. 905" read 
"7 C. B. 906."

Page 116.— For "13 Ve*. Jr. 438" read "13 Ve*. 
Jr. 4»."

Page 193. Foot-note.—For "(1) L. R. 7 H. L. 
243" read "(1) L. R. 5 H. L. 418."

Page 193. Foot-note.—Foi "(2) L. R. 5 H. L. 
418" read "(2) L. R. 7 H. L. 243."

Page 199. Foot-note.— For "3 Atk. 484” read 
"3 Atk. 517."

Page 213. Foot-note.— For "10 Hare 78" read 
"10 Hare 81."

Page 218. Foot-note.— For "7 Hare 472" read 
"7 Hare 473."

Page 230, Foot-note.— For "Burr. 1080" read 
"3 Burr. 1684."

Page 235. Foot-note.— For "3 D. & War. 8” read 
"3 D. & War. 1."

Page 239, Foot-note.— For "7 Taunton, 234” 
read "7 Taunton 224."

Page 282.— For "Prouty v. Mears" read "Prouty 
v. Rucgles."

Page 283.— For "Prouty v. Mears" read “Prouty 
v. Ruggles."

Page 319.— For "Power v. Attorney-General” 
read "Attorney-General v. Power.

Page 330.— For "Raneskill v. Edwards" read 
" Ramskill v. Edwards."

Page 3.36.— For "Ex Parte Kelley"- read "Ex 
Parte Pelly."

Page 330.— For "Patrick v. Stanley" read 
"Padwiek v. Stanley.”

Page 336. Foot-note.— For "16 Ont. A. C. 307" 
read 16 Ont. A. C. 367.

Page 337.— For "Gordon v. City of Toronto’* 
read Godson v: City of Toronto.

Page 366. Foot-note For "(l) (1891) A. C. 
228" read "(2) (1891) A. C. 228."
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Supreme Court in Equity
OK

NEW BRUNSWICK.

KDGECOMltK v. McLKLLAN. 1907.

Specific Performance—Conduct of Partie*—Conte. October 24.

Plaintiff purchased leasehold property from defendant for $340.00, 
and has paid $300 on account.

Plaintiff alleged that property was sold fiee of all unpaid rent and 
taxes, and refused to nay balance of purchase money unless 
defendant contributed towards unpaid rent which was due 
at the time of the sale.

Defendant alleged that no such agreement as to unpaid rent and 
taxes was made, and was willing to execute conveyance on 
payvpent »*t the true balance, but refused t<> entertain any 
proposition for settlement unless certain other dealings 
lietween the parties were adjusted at the same time.

Held, that the plaintiff was entitled to a decree for specific per­
formance.

Held, also, that as the evidence failed to establish the plaintiff’s 
contention as to the agreement for sale and the unpaid 
Ini lance ; and that as the defendant had acted wrongfully in 
attempting to make the settlement of this matter contingent 
upon the settlement of other dealings between the parties 
which are distinctly foreign, there should lie no order as to

Hill for specific j ht fori nance.

The facts fully up|>enr in the jmlgiiivnt of the Court. 

J. //. Barryf K. C., for the plaintiff.

Albert ,/. Gregory, for the defendant.

VOI. 4. N.H.K.H. — 1.
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1007. Oetolwr ‘24. ll.utKKlt, J. :—

This ease in form is a suit * or till' sjieoitio performance 
of a contract ; in sulistaiicc it is a dispute over a few dollars 
and ought never to have come here at all. The defendant’s 
mother held a mortgage from one McCaffrey on a leasehold 
property in Fredericton, to secure the sum of $:>00 and interest. 
The lease to McCaffrey is from the University of New 
Brunswick. It is dated February (Itli, l.S'.Mi, and the annual 
rent reserved is $2S.2S, |«1 vaille in two npiul instalments of 
$14.14 each, on the 27th days of March and September. 
McCaffrey being in default the mortgagee sold tile premises 
under a power for that purpose on the Oth March, IttOO. 
The premises were Imuglit in by llugbes, who is a law clerk 
in the defendant's ollice, for tile sum of $.HI, admittedly for 
the mortgagee, for the defendant was acting. The
bill a I liges that on the I itli March—that is the day the sale 
under the mortgage took place—the defendant sold and the 
plaintiff purchased these leasehold premises for the Slim of 
#:i4(l..'i0, and that the terms of the sale arc cmliodied in a 
receipt given by the defendant for $100, the first |iayinent on 
nmmnt of the purchase money. That receipt is as follows:

“ Fredericton, X. II.; March 7th, 1000.
«$100.

“ Received of Sophia I*. Kdgecomlie a cheek for one 
hundred dollars, I wing |mrt of the purchase money of the 
Francis Met affrey pro|wrty situate on King street in the < Sty 
of Fredericton, and I hereby agree to sell to the said Sophia 
I*. Kdgeeomlie tlie said projierty for the sum of $1140..70.

K. XV. Mi Lki.lax.”

On the 4th duly, 1000, the plaintiff made another |wy- 
iiicnt of $100 on aeeuunt of the purchase money, and on the 
ôth January, 1001,a third payment of $100, leaving a Imluniv 
of $40.00 due at that time, exclusive of interest. So far 
there is practiinllv no dispute Iwtween the parties. The 
plaintiff, however, alleges in her bill that at the time of the 
sale it was distinctly understood and agreed that she was to

7
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have un uneneuinluired title to the prcmisc-s, subject only to 
the grouiul rent, hut freed anil disehargi-d from all past due 
rent and taxes. She further alleges that at the date of the sale 
there were eighteen months ground rent accrued due, amount­
ing to $42.42, and that a further sunt of $14.14 became due 
in Keptemlier, 11M1II; that she insisted that the defendant was 
Iwnmil to jwiv these sums, and that he at first refused, hut 
finally agreed to pay one-half of these sums, that is, one-half 
of $011.011, and that for this sum the defendant, on the 2Sth 
May, 11101, became party to a note for $41 in settlement of 
this one-half, and a further sum of $0.50, which the plaintiff 
says the defendant owed her. It is over this that this suit 
has arisen. The defendant denies this liability altogether, 
and on |wyinent of the true balance is willing to make the 
conveyance. The plaintiff, on the other hand, refuses to [en­
tile balance without 1 icing credited with the amount, or 
allowed for it in other accounts between them. limnediatelv 
after the sale, which the defendant savs took place on the 
7th March instead of the litli, the plainlilf was put in 
[sissession and has since lieen in [losaession. She has also 
expended some hundreds of dollars in improvements. There 
seems to lie no doubt that the premises at the time of the 
sale were worth more than double what the plaintiff was to 
|»y for them. They were valued by the assessors at $700, 
and that seems a low valuation. 1 shall treat this ease just 
as the Counsel treated it, as involving the ipiestion I have 
mentioned, and no other. After hearing the evidence given, 
and after perusing it and coni]iaring it since, I have come to 
the conclusion that it altogether fails in establishing the 
plaintiff’s contention, Iwith us to the original agreement and 
as to the giving of the note for $41. The amount due on 
the mortgage was $400 for prinei|ml, $10.50 for interest and 
$40 for the cost* of advertising and selling, in all amounting 
to $440.50, which the plaintiff was to pay. The defendant 
says that on the 6th March, just after the sale under the
.... rtgage had taken place, and Hughes had come into the
office and re|xirtcd to him the result of it, the plaintiff’s

11107.
Kdokoommc

McLki.i.an.
MAItKK.lt. .1
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1007. husband, William Edgecombe, came into the office on another 
kwiwomhk matter altogether, and after that was dis|iosed of, that lie 
Mi.i.k'i.i as. spoke to Edgecombe and said : “Mr. Edgecoiulie, we have just 
iiahkkk. j. sold tlmt Mid ’nffrey |iro|K-rty directly across from von there” 

(that is opposite from where Edgecoiulie then lived and had 
lived for some time), “would you like to liny it?”

He made inquiries as to the price, and I simply told him 
that I would sell the property to him for the sum of #340.50, 
and he asked me if that was the liest I could do. I said, 
“Yes, it certainly is;” because I told him that the #340.50 
would simply let me out of the transaction clean and clear. 
1 wasn’t taking anything on it except the actual amount of 
mortgage and interest and charges against it (that is, the 
charges for the sale under the notice). He also says that he 
showed him how the amount was made up, and that they did 
not want to hold the property, only to get their own money 
out of it. The defendant positively denies that he made any 
agreement either as to taxes or ground rents, and that he had 
no knowledge whether these were all paid or not. He says 
that Edgecombe said he would take the matter into consider- 
ation and let him know ; that he came hack in the afternoon 
and agreed to take the property at the 8340.50 ; that he then 
said he must have some i-.isli payment ; and he came in the 
next morning and paid the 8100, as 1 have already mention­
ed. Edgei-omlx' was asked to state what took place lietween 
him and the defendant when the sale was made. He talked 
ulsiut several other matters which lei" _ i, and he said:
“ I was speaking of the pro|ierty that is here. He told me 
alnnit it. So we talked considerable about it. Parties 
came into Ilia office and we didn’t have much of a conversa­
tion alwmt it, lmt lie gave me to understand that be had 
foreclosed a mortgage the day before, and that he would get 
it for us at the same price as what it cost him anil this 
he said he understood to la- the #340.50, which he agreed to 
give. He also, on his cross-examination, said that at the time 
the transaction was made there was nothing said specifically 
ulsnit ground rents. It is true that he said that the defend-

6^51
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ant was to sell to him free of rent and taxes, but that is 1907. 
positively denied and is inconsistent I think with tile admit- Kduecombk 

ted facts and otiier eireuiNstam.es. The defendant as mortga- MoLbluw. 
gee would not necessarily know anything about either the ba»kih.j. 
taxes or ground rent, they were liabilities of the lessor, and 
Kdgeeombe had the same means of ascertaining whether there 
were any arrears as the defendant had. As I interpret the 
defendant’s offer, and as I think Edgecombe understood it, 
it was simply this—we have had to buy in this property at 
the mortgagee's side—we do not want to keep it so as to lie 
troubled with tenants—it is worth twice the sum we have 
against it, our claim is 8:140.00 made up of principal, interest 
and costs—if you will pay that for it you can have it. All 
we want is to get our money out of it. It seems to me no 
one would take that to he an offer to sell subject to arrears 
of ground rent, neither do I think Edgecombe did, it was 
altogether an afterthought. He knew perfectly well that he 
was simply taking Mrs. Mcladlan’s place, not as mortgagee, 
hut as pure-baser under her for just the amount of her claim 
against the property. l#t us sec what tesik place later as to 
the note. This note is dated May ‘28th, 1901, made by 
Will. Edgecombe in favour of his wife, endorsed by her and 
the defendant, for 831.00, " at the Koval Hank in two
months. Prima facie this is Edgecumbe’s own liability, and 
the onus is ii|kiii him to show that it was the liability of some 
one else-. He says it was made for the accommodation of the 
defendant, who was then so short of money that he could not 
pay this $31.00. Ix't us see how he says the amount was 
arrived at. Eelgecomlic says the first intimation lie laid that 
there was any rent in nrrear was from a letter written by the 
defendant to him dated llecemlier 12th, 1900. This letter 
is in evidence, and in it the defendant states that Mr. Bliss, 
who was then Registrar of the University, had telephoned 
him that there was $">0.50 ground rent clue on this McCaff­
rey property, and that it must lie arranged at once. This 
was over nine months after he bail purchased the pro|iertv and 
lieen in the occupation of it. He adds to this $00.00 a sum of

55
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11107. $.*>.r>0, which I shall explain later on, making $fi*2.0fi, tin*
Kihikiombk half of which lie calls $01.00 and the note is made accord- 
Mri.Kn.AN. inglv, with the specific agreement, so the plaintiff says, that 
Makkkk, J. the defendant was to pay it at maturity. The plaintiff says 

this was a compromise or settlement arrived at between them 
—that the sale was to In* clear of all arrearages of ground rent, 
but as they disagreed over that, the defendant finally consent­
ed to pay one-half of it, and in this way the amount of the 
note was arrived at. On the 1 Ôth May, 1001, only thirteen 
days before this note transaction titok place, Kdgeeonilie had 
a letter from Mr. I Hiss calling upon him for payment of tin* 
arrears of rent before the 22nd inst., amounting to $70.70, 
and threatening proceedings if the amount was not paid. 
The amount is divided thus,—arrearages $00.00, half year’s 
rent due 24th March, $14.1 1,—that is March 24th, 1001. 
Kdgeeomhe knew perfectly well not only by this letter hut 
by the letter of the previous December, that on the 7th 
March when this sale took place there was only one year’s 
rent overdue, $28.28. There was of course a half year’s rent 
coming due in a fortnight later, hut if you add that it only 
makes $42.42, the half of which is certainly not $01.00 If 
Kdgemme did not discover this he ought not to expect that 
the defendant was equally dense. I le i-ertainly could scarcely 
expect to lie in receipt of the rents of the property, and make 
the defendant pay the ground rent. There is another extra­
ordinary thing about this note. The $0.00 included in it is 
a sum which Kdgeeomhe says the defendant received from 
a Mrs. Johnson for Ô7 days’ interest on $000 which lie took 
out of the I tank to loan Mrs. Johnson on mortgage, hut which 
was not completed. According to the defendant, and 1 have 
no reason to think he is not correct, no such transaction took 
place; he never charged the amount and never received it. 
Apart, however, from that, according to Kdgeeonilie himself, 
there never was any dispute as to that—there was nothing to 
mi11promise or to settle as to that, and vet he divides that in 
half as well as the $."ifi.."i(>. Besides this, even if the defend­
ant had agreed to pay this $31, there was, as Mr. Gregory
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suggested, a very simple way of settling it. Kdgeeombe lta< 1 
only paid $;$()() on account of the purchase money. There 
was a balance of #40 and interest coining to the defendant, 
and all he had to do was to credit the #)>1, for Kdgemmlie to 
pay the lialance, about which there could lie no question 
whatever, and dose the transaction up. This is certainly the 
only reasonable solution of the whole matter if Kdgemmlie’s 
story is correct. In addition to all the other extraordinary 
features in this transaction, the note in question was imme­
diately used in the bank; Kdgeeombe himself |mid it at matur­
ity without asking the defendant to do it or sjieaking to him 
nlioiit it at all until long afterwards. I asked him why he 
did not go to the defendant to |kiv it as he agreed, and his 
answer was that he did and he was away. It was 
clearly proved by reference to the defendant’s Ixtok that 
he was not away but at his oHi<r as usual on the 
day Indore and after. Now what is the defandant’s 
version of the transaction? lie says when this demand 
was made ii|nui Kdgemml>e for the rent he came to 
him for assistance. Kdgemmlie paid Bliss $40 on account of 
the rent on the 20th May, 1901, leaving $110.70 due. This 
sum he wished to raise in order to avoid the promedings 
which Miss was threatening, and he wanted the defendant to 
assist him. The defendant then drew out this note on which 
he would have the liability of Kdgeeombe and the plaintiff, 
it was signed, given to Kdgemmlie who took it to the lunik, 
and out of the proceeds he |iaid the Imlniire of the rent, 
#•10.70. 1 think the plaintiff's claim as to this rent is not
sustained by the evidence, Kdgemmlie’s account of this note 
a most improliahle one. If this ease ended here it would lie 
easily dis|iosed of. It seems that the defendant has a claim 
against the plaintiff, and another against Kdgemmlie, her 
husband, the two altogether amounting to between #)>00 and 
#400 for professional services, which I think unwisely he has 
attempted to tack on to this purchase, and make the settle­
ment of the one dependent ii|miii the settlement of the other. 
The two have in reality nothing whatever to do with one

7
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1907. another. Tlie sale of the property was a matter of Mrs. 
Edoktoukk Kdgecomlie, a client of the defendant, ami his claims against 
McI.km.an. Kdgecomlie and his wife are altogether separate and distinct, 
Barker. J. im,| |,js own |triviite matters. There have lieen negotiations 

with a view to the settlement of this matter so as to avoid the 
expense of litigation. The defendant offered to rescind the 
whole contract and return the plaintiff this money and the 
rost of his repairs with interest, but that was refused. 
Offers to pay the l»dancc have lieen made, but they were 
l»ised on the defendant contributing to the arrears of rent, 
which he refused to do. Mr. Harry made up an account on 
this liasis, showing a balance of $20.28 up to the end of 
January, 190(1, but this was refused. In a letter written to 
Mr. Harry by the defendant dated April 20th, 1900, he says, 
“ I would of course be willing to wait a reasonable time so 
that you could have time to communicate with him, but I 
have detinatclv made up my mind not to close up the trans­
action in connection with the King street property until other 
matters are settled and adjusted. Taking all our accounts 
together I am willing to lie more than generous with these 
|Hsiple rather than Is- put to any inconvenience ill the matter, 
but I certainly intend to insist that not only one but all 
matters iietween ns shall be closed up.” On the 14th June, 
19911, Mr. Harry again called upon the defendant, and then 
offerts 1 to puy him $04.00 and all accrued interest from 
January fitli, 1900, out of which $39.!!0 was to be credited 
on the defendant's private account against the plaintiff, in 
with what Mr. Harry understood the defendant had mnsented 
to at a previous meeting. The defendant, on the 20th June, 
1900, replied to this offer, refusing it on the terms promised. 
He savs that in order to get the whole matter cleared up he 
would only be tisi glad to cut down his account against the 
Kdgecomlies considerably. He adds, “ In «use, however, that 
they are not willing to have all matters adjusted at the same 
time, 1 may jajsitively state that I cannot consent to dosing 
up one end of the transaction and leaving the other o|icn.” 
The $04.00 is admittedly the correct Imlance due, irres|ieotive
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of the #31 note. I think both jiarties lmve lieen wrong. 
The plaintiff was wrong in his position to the arrears of rent, 
and the defendant’s attitude as to making the settlement of 
this suit dependent n|Min a settlement of the accounts was 
wrong, course closed the door to further negotiations.

I shall follow Imwc* v. Gibmn (1), where in a somewhat 
similar ease Stuart, V. C., made a decree for specific per­
formance without costs to either party.

(1) 11 Jur. N. S„ 873.

9
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Hakkku, J.
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1907.
Demnber l,

CAUTEH v LOWERISON a*d other*.

Beneent—Partition of Iteal Eat ate—Ne jet of Kin— Statute of 
Dintr Haitian 8, Con. Stat. (1U03), Chap. Wl.

L. ilivd ill testate, leaving him surviving heirs, consisting of an 
unde and the representatives of two deceased uncles and 
three deceased aunts on his father's side; and of the repre­
sentatives of a deceased uncle and aunt on his mother's side.

Il et it. that the heirs on the maternal side rank equally with the 
heirs on the paternal side, when they stand in the same 
degree of relationship, and that the partition of the real 
estate must he made on this basis.

The case of I)oe Deni. Wood v. De Foe vent (1) followed as to dis­
tribution of real estate.

This suit was brought for the partition of the real estate.

Albert IT. Bennett for the plaintiff.

William />. Chandler, K.( \, and Daniel Jordan, K.C., 
for the defendants.

11)07. Deeemlier 17. lUltKKR, J.»—

This suit is brought for the partition of the real estate 
of one Holier! A. Lowerison, who died intestate at Saekville 
on January 1 1th, 1007. He did not leave him surviving 
any brothers or sisters or representatives of a brother or 
sister. His | in rents and grandparents predeceased him. 
His heirs consist of one surviving uncle and the representa­
tives of two deceased uncles and three deceased aunts oil his 
father’s side, and the representatives of a deceased uncle and 
aunt on his mother’s side. The only question involved is 
whether the estate is to lie divided among lx>th the |internal 
and maternal heirs, or confined to those of the paternal side. 
In the one ease the land would In; partitioned on the liasis of 
six shares, in the other on the Imsis of eight.

(1) 23. N. B. K. 200.
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I think that tin* rule of construction governing the dis­
tribution of real estate in a case such as this, is really settled 
|)V Doe dan. Woods v. De For nut (1), though the point th**rc 
involved was not the same as the one arising here. I under­
stand that rule to lie, that the “ next of kindred” to whom 
real estate in eases of intestacy descends under our Statute of 
Distributions (Chap. 101, See. 1, C. S. of 1900), are to In* 
ascertained by the method of computation which is adopted 
in reference to the English Statute of Distributions—that is, 
hv counting up from the one party to the common ancestor 
and down to the other, reckoning a degree for each person. 
Uncles and nephews would therefore stand in the third de- 
gree, whether the common ancestor was male or female. 
William*, in speaking of this method of computation, says : 
“ Relations by the father’s side and the mother’s side are in 
equal degree of kindred ; and therefore, equally entitled to 
administration : for, in this res|>eet, dignity of blood gives no 
preference. Hence it may hnp|>eii that relations are distant 
from the intestate by an equal nunilier of degrees and equally 
entitled to administration of his effects, who are no relations 
at all to each other.” William* on Executor* (2). The 
author is here discus? administration, but that
right depends upon the right of pro|H*rty. At |iage ->*»•> of 
the same work lie says :—“ It may Ik* observed that it is an 
established principle of the Ecclesiastical Court, that the 
right to the administration of the effects of an intestate fol­
lows the right to the pnqierty in them.”

1 think therefore that tin- heirs on the maternal side are 
entitled equally with those ou the |internal side, and the par­
tition must Ik* made on that liasis.

As the pnqierty cannot lie liencHeially partitioned there 
will lie an order for its sale, and the proceeds, after |myment 
of costs, will be distributed among the jiarties to this suit in 
the proportions set out in the bill.

1907.

Lowkiuson. 

Hahkkr. J.

(!) 23 N. B. R. 20». (2) Utli Kil., p. 2Ô8; 8th Kd., p. 428.

2^6600
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1908. McGaffhian kt al v. FERGUSON et al.
February K.

Mortgage—Deed—Confidential Relationship— Umine /nfluenre— 

Pressure—Misrepresentation—Improvident Contract — Vol­
untary (Sift—Insanity of Grantor.

William Davidson died in 1800, leaving real estate consisting of 
his Homestead and lot “ A," all of which he left absolutely 
to his wife Helen Davidson, and appointed her and the De­
fendant William Ferguson executors.

In 1808 James Davidson, son of William and Helen Davidson, 
being indebted to the Defendants William Ferguson and 
Philip Arsenault, became insolvent and assigned to Philip 
Arsenault. Nearly all the creditors, including William 
Ferguson and Philip Arsenault, agreed to compromise at ten 
cents on the dollar, hut James Davidson made a secret agree­
ment with William Ferguson and Philip Arsenault that they 
should he paid in full.

By arrangement between James Davidson, William Ferguson 
and Philip Arsenault, William Ferguson for James Davidson 
purchased the assets from Philip Arsenault as assignee for 
$1000.00, and for the securing William Ferguson the balance 
advanced and balance of his old debt against James David­
son, Helen Davidson in 181)9, being then about seventy six 
years of age, without any independent advice, executed to 
William Ferguson a mortgage of lot “A” for .$822.1)0. 
William Ferguson gave James Davidson a Power of Attor­
ney to deal with these assets, who in the name of William 
Ferguson sold and converted them into money to an amount 
greater than the mortgage.

In December, 1899, James Davidson arranged that his mother 
should sell to Philip Arsenault the said lot “A" for $000, 
$200 of it to go on Philip Arsenault’s old account against 
James Davidson, and $100 by notes made by Philip Arse­
nault in favour of William Ferguson, and which the latter 
took on his account against Janies Davidson. Both the 
mortgage and deed wore written by James Davidson, and 
Helen Davidson had no independent advice and had become 
of feeble intellect.

In March, 1900, Helen Davidson made a will leaving all her prop­
erty to her son James and his family. William Ferguson 
drew this will, is named in it an executor, and had full know­
ledge of its contents.

In December, 1902. James Davidson being indebted to William 
Ferguson to the amount of $1,250.07. Helen Davidson, at the 
request of William Ferguson and James Davidson, gave a 
mortgage of the homestead to William Ferguson for 
$1.250.97 to secure that amount, which was shown by the 
evidence to be the total sum due from James Davidson to 
William Ferguson at that time.
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Helen Davidson lived practically all the time with James David- 1908.
eon, and he had great Influence over her, which fact wm well----------- -—
known to both William Ferguson and Philip Arsenault. McGakkioan 

Held, that the first mortgage to Ferguson, made in March, 181M), r\ 
was discharged and must he set aside, as the amount which KROU ’
it had been given to secure had been paid in full.

Held, that the conveyance to Arsenault, made in December, 1809, 
must beset aside, ms obtaind through undue influence and 
pressure oil the part of James Davidson, and solely for his 
benefit; and on the ground of the mental weakness of the 
grantor, and that she had no independent advice; that Ar­
senault, as he knew the relation wliich James Davidson oc­
cupied with regard to the grantor, and all the circumstances 
in connection with the transaction, stood in no letter posi­
tion than James Davidson would stand, and was bound by, 
and responsible for, any acts committed by Davidson, or 
omitted to he done by him.

Held, that the second mortgage to Ferguson, made in December,
11MI2, must be set aside, as obtained through undue influence 
and pressure on the part of James Davidson and William 
Ferguson, and solely for their own benefit; that Ferguson 
had the same knowledge of all the facts as Arsenault, and 
was hound in the same way by tin* acts and omissions of 
James Davidson; that the grantor had no Independent advice, 
and was so deranged mentally as to lie Incapable of transact­
ing business.

Hill to set aside two mortgages from Helen Davidson to 
William Ferguson, and n deed from Helen Davidson to Philip 
Arsenault, and for an accounting.

The faets fully tt|>|war in the judgment of the Court.

31. (i. Teed, K.C., for the plaintiffs.

X. A Landry, K.C., and L. A. Cnrrcy, K.C., for the 
defendants.

1908. February 25. Barker, C. J.;—

This suit was commenced in the name of Helen David­
son, a person of unsound mind, not so found, bv William (i.
Bowie as her next friend. Helen Davidson was the willow 
of William Davidson. She died April 7th, 1900, at the age 
of eightv-two years, leaving a will dated Mareh 0th, 1900, 
by which she ap|M»inted the Rev. Joseph A. Bahincau anil 
the defendant William Ferguson executors. They Ixitli 
renounced, and the present plaintiff, FJizalieth M< ( iatligan, 
who is a «laughter of Helen Davidson, applied for anil
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1908. obtained letters testamentary cum tectamento nnncxo, and 
McGakkiuan the suit is now I icing prosecuted in her name coupled with 

Fbruvson. others in like interest. It appears from the evidence that 
Ha UK hr, c. J. Wm. Davidson, for many years previous to his death, carried 

on a considerable business at Tracudic. lie died in 1800, 
leaving him surviving his widow and two children, the pre­
sent plaintiff Klizabcth MeUaffigan, and a son dames, one of 
the defendants, lie left a will dated Decemlier 20th, 1889, 
by which he ajijioitited his wife executrix, and the de­
fendant Wm. Ferguson executor, to whom letters t<*sta- 
mentarv were gr Bv this will all the testator’s
property, with the exet * of a legacy of #00 given for 
religious purposes, and another of #000 given to his daughter, 
was given absolutely to his wife. The estate consisted of 
two lots of land at Traeadie—one known as the homestead lot 
on which Davidson lived and which contained some twenty-five 
acres, the other known as the Arsenault lot which contained 
two or three acres. The appraisers valued these lots, with 
the buildings on them, at #2,200. There was also personal 
projierty, consisting of farm stock and house furniture valued 
at #040, cash in the Savings Bank #1,000, and #0,000 in Pro­
vincial debentures deposited at the agency of the Bank of 
Montreal at Chatham. So that the whole estate at a moder­
ate valuation was worth #7,000, for there were substantially' 
no debts. Win. Ferguson himself estimated that the income 
derivable from the estate was sufficient for the supjHirt and 
maintenance of the widow, Helen Davidson, in view of her 
habits and condition in life. By her will she disposed of 
her projierty as fed lows,—she gave #70 for masses, and the 
residue to her son Janies for his life, then to Janies’ wife for 
life or until her marriage, and then to James’ children living 
at the time of his death for their lives, and on their death to 
the Superioress of the ( ’orjioration of the Hotel Dieu St. 
Josejih, of Traeadie, forever. This will, which is dated March 
0th, 1900, and of which Win. Ferguson is named an 
executor, is witnessed by him and it was drawn by him, so 
that he had jiersonal knowledge of its contents. James

^
05
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Ihividson was a mail <if exceedingly intemperate luihitx, an«l 11>0S. 
though not without business capacity, he was reckless in the McOakkioaw 
management of his affairs, and squandered what he had with- Kkkocho*. 

out thought for the future. In 1898 he lieeame insolvent,,,ARKKR* <?-J* 
and made an assignment for the benefit of his erc-ditors. His 
liabilities amounted to about $8,000, in which was included 
an amount of $477.80 said to be due Win. Ferguson.

On the 22nd March, 1800, Helen Davidson executed a 
mortgage to the defendant W in. Ferguson, to secure the sum 
of $8*22.00 with interest at the rate of 7'/ , payable in four 
yeaiv, on the Arsenault lot. This mortgage was not regsi- 
tered until March lôth, 1001.

On the *28th December, 1800, Helen Davidson for an 
expressed consideration of $000 conveyed the Arsenault lot 
to Philip Arsenault, under which he went into possession, 
and remained in possession until his death, which took place 
after this suit was commenced. Philip Arsenault avus a son- 
in-law of Win. Ferguson, and when Janies Davidson made 
his assignment in 1808, Arsenault claimed as a creditor for 
some $355. 11. This conveyance was registered January 0th,
1900, about fourteen months before the registry of Fergu­
son’s mortgage on the same projiertv. Aceording to Fer­
guson’s evidence $000 was the full value of the lot and 
other witnesses confirm this opinion.

On the 20th December, 1002, James Davidson and Helen 
Davidson executed a mortgage to the defendant Will. Fergu­
son to secure the sum of $1,-200.07, payable in five years, 
with interest at 5% on the homestead lot. This mortgage 
shows on its face that the consideration was money due by 
James Davidson and in no way by his motliei, who was sole- 
owner of the property. It was registeied January 0th,
1903. Default having l>een made under this last mortgage, 
the defendant Win. Ferguson, as mortgagee proceeded to 
realize the amount, and for that purpose he gave a notice of 
sale in October, 1004, to take place at Tracadie on the 17th 
January, 1005. This bill was then filed, the sale was re­
strained and the object of this suit is to set aside these three
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1908. conveyances, on the ground tlmt they were all procured from 
McGakpioan Helen Davidson by undue influence, when she was enfeebled 

Kkbovsos. by old age, without independent advice and unable from 
Barker, c. J. mental weakness to understand their nature or effect, and in 

disregard of a duty which both James Davidson and Wm. 
Ferguson, for whose lienefit they were made, owed to Helen 
Davidson, arising out of a fiduciary relation in which, it is 
said, Inith of them stood to her. When the notice of sale was 
given in October, 1904, Helen Davidson was eighty-two years 
of age and weakened in Imdy and mind. She was without 
any means of support of her own. Her money and (lersonal 
property had all disappeared. A part of her real property 
had Ifeen sold Ars< ilimit, and the remainder of it had Urn 
mortgage!I to its full value to Win. Ferguson. James 
Davidson and his family were without means of support. 
Of all the money lielongiug to Helen Davidson which had 
pissed through Wm. Ferguson’s hands, there only remained 
$‘20 which he had kept to piy her funeral expenses. In 
this condition of things the present plaintiff, Mrs. Met hifligan, 
come to the rescue. She arranged with the Convent author­
ities to take her mother to lward, for which she was to piy 
$20 a month besides cost of clothing. The old lady, with a 
voting girl as attendant, was accordingly transferred to the 
Hotel Dieu in October, 1904, where she remained until she 
died in the following April. Mrs. Mctiafligan paid some 
$100 under her arrangement, ami Win. Ferguson appro­
priated the $20 in defraying the cost of the funeral.

There are distinctions U-tween these three transactions 
which make it necessary to discuss them sepirately. As to 
the first mortgage, Wm. Ferguson in his answer claims that 
there is due him the full amount of prineipd and interest 
secured by Uitli mortgage. The evidence, however, clearly 
shows, and his own liooks show that tin* $1,200.97 secured by 
the last mortgage was the total sum due by Janies Davidson 
at that time on all accounts. It is unnecessary to go through 
the liooks to prove this, Urause Ferguson’s counsel very 
pn>|>erly admitted that from the evidence this was a fact.



IV.] NEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY REPORTS. 17

They, however, allege that whereas the lant liiortgagi' was 1908. 
given for an existing debt from James Davidson, the tiret MiCUksioas 

was given to secure an advance made to Helen Davidson, Kaaeoao* 
and though it was made for James Davidson’s lienefit, theBAKKBR' c-J' 
debt was Helen Davidson’s. And the agreement was, that if 
any Iailanee remained nii|«iid on the first mortgage which 
formeil a part of the $1,*200,97, to that extent at all events 
the second mortgage secured a loan to Helen Davidson her­
self. I do not think the evidence sustains the defendants’ 
contention on this |«iint. What took place was this—w hen 
James Davidson failed in 1898 lie owed some #8,(11111. Of 
this sum something over #*2,09(1 was due his mother—#:l:iô.l 1 
was due to I'hilip Arsenault and #177.8(1 to Win.
Ferguson. 11 is assignment w as made on 10th Nov., 1898, 
hut More it was made a consultation took place between 
James Davidson and William Ferguson, at which it was ar­
ranged that a cash compromise of Ilf/ was to lie offered the 
creditors, that in the event of its acceptance, Ferguson was to 
supply the money on being secured by Helen Davidson, and 
Ferguson and Arsenault, his son-in-law—one of whom he- 
nunc the assignee and the other an inspector of the estate— 
were to lie |iaid their claims in full. The meeting of credit­
ors was held, the offer of compromise was accepted bv marly 
all the creditors, and the arrangement made with Ferguson 
and Arsenault was not made known to the other creditors.
In order to carry out this compromise, Ferguson sent in a 
tender for the purchase of the insolvent’s estate for #1000.
I hat was the sum which Ferguson estimated would lie re­
quired to pay the 10% and other charges. His tender wiis 
accepted, he took |xisecseioii of the estate, property and assets, 
and the business went on ns More, not in James Davidson’s 
name, for some of the dissenting creditors had obtained 
judgments, but for his lienetit. In the following March 
•lames Davidson and Will. Ferguson settled upon the amount 

the mortgage was to lie given at #82*2.90. This 
sum included not only the compromise actually paid, but 
Ferguson’s claim in full, as it was then settled at #241.7(1, his

VOL 4. N.H.K.II. -2
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1908. fees as inspector of the estate and other account**, for which, 
Men aki'Kian according to his own version of the transaction, Mrs. Davidson 

kkiwchok never agreed to become security in any way. In addition to 
Bakkkr. e. J. this, on the 14th day of March, eight days hefore the mort­

gage was executed, Ferguson gave a power of attorney to 
James Davidsi , * izing him, in the name of Ferguson
and for his sole Inaiefit to eontinue, oj urate, manage and 
transact the general mercantile ami fish business, lately 
operated and transacted by the said James Davidson, at 
Tracadie, with power to Davidson, in Ferguson’s name and 
as his agent and attorney, to sell on credit or otherwise what­
ever gihkIs, chattels, wares ami merchandise then there, or 
that might at any ami all times lie put there by Ferguson 
or by Davidson for him. Included in this pro|K*rty were 
fishing I Hints, tackle and fishing gear valued at hundreds of 
dollars, with which James Davidson continued the business, 
and of which he alone received the lienefit. Besides this, 
the $8*2*2.!HI Ferguson did not charge to Mrs. Davidson, but 
to James or his estate ; and in Ferguson’s own Inioks it, with 
the subsequent dealings which took place between the two, 
down to the time when the second mortgage was given, are 
carried along as one account, and they finally ended in the 
lialanee of $1,200.07 for which that security was taken. And 
we have in this semnd mortgage a specific declaration by 
Initli James Davidson and his mother, who is a |*arty to it, 
as follows,—“ Witnesseth that in consideration of the sum of 
$1,200.07 of lawful money of Canada by the said Win. 
Ferguson to the said James Davidson in hand well and truly 
|iaid, iVre.” It is therefore ehur that not only was the total 
indebtedness of James Davidson to Ferguson included in the 
amount secured by the last mortgage, but that the debt was 
the debt of James and not that of his * r. It is clear 
from Ferguson’s own evidence that the arrangement, such as 
it was, Iictween him and Mrs. Davidson, was that the ad­
vance was not to exceed $1,000, and it was for the money 
ndvanml as necessary to pay the compromise, that the
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mortgage was to he given. His evidence on that |Miint is as 
follows :—

“(J. You were to have a mortgage from her to secure 
your cash you might advance to settle with James’ credi­
tors? A. For a thousand dollars.

“Q. It was for cash you were to advance—you were 
to get a mortgage for vor you were to advance, not to 
exceed #1000. A. Yes.”

lie also says expressly that it was not the agreement 
that the mortgage was to include the old délit.

The evidence is equally clear, that if the first mortgage 
had only lieen for the money advanced by Ferguson as he 
had agreed, the amount would have been paid off.
Ferguson’s own luniks show this, and he himself admitted 
that it was so. His evidence on this |ioint is as follows:

“(J. However you are satisfied now, are you not, that 
8222.00 is the balance that np|iears due on the first mort­
gage? A. Yes, that would Ik* it.

And if you deduct from the mortgage the old debt 
of #*250 ami your inspection fees of #"20 and some other items 
you have charged in there, that mortgage will Ik* wiped out 
alisolutelv? That is the first mortgage. Ar’n’t you satis­
fis! of that? That would Ik* correct wouldn’t it? A. 
Yes.”

Ferguson was there sinking from his own books. 
James Davidson (xisitivcly proved the correctness of the 
account, ami there is no other evidence on the subject. It is 
therefore clear that Ferguson has actually been paid all that, 
according to the undisputed evidence, he could have ever re- 
covered on this first mortgage, and all tliat it was really 
intended to secure. This is altogether apart from the 
illegality which would have attached to the mortgage, if it 
hail in fact lieen given to secure the |myment in full of 
Ferguson’s debt, in pursuance of the secret agreement, made 
in fraud of the other creditors of Janies Davidson. Mrs. 
Davidson’s part in this, as well as the subsequent trans­
actions, was little more than the mechunical act of signing

1908.
McGakkioan 

Fkrovkon 
Harkkk. ('. J.
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1008. lier name, as directed or rc<|nested 1»y daines. Ile had aj>- 
Mvuakfmiax jMircntlv aH|iiiml complete control over lier—wliat she had 

kkhuvhox in the way of money or projK*rty she seemed ready to give 
Bakkkr, J. liiin, 'I'hongh not so debilitated at this time as she was 

when she gave the second mortgage, she was feeble and old 
and weak in mind. The mortgage was prewired by dames. 
It was not read over to the old lady — it was not explained 
to her. She had no independent advice. She does not seem 
to have liven consulted as to what was done or what was 
agreed to Ik* done—how the amount of the mortgage was 
arrived at, or as to its terms, or as to what Ikkiuiic of dames’ 
property. Beyond tile fact that she was willing to assist her 
son as he suggested to her, she does not seem to have known 
anything more ulioiit the transaction than an entire stranger 
to it. She received no lienefit from it—James and Ferguson 
shared that lietween them. Nor can there, I think, he any 
doubt from all the evidence that Ferguson knew perfectly 
well in what relation dames stood to his mother, as to this 
or similar transactions. In such a case this Court will inter­
fere, and set aside the security as illegal, ujHin such terms 
as may lx* equitable, and there must be a decree to that effect 
as to this mortgage.

The facts in reference to the "sale to Philip Arsenault 
are as follows: The conveyance was made Deeemlier 28th, 
189b, ami at that time dames Davidson still owed Arsen­
ault 8280 of the old debt upon which he had claimed when 
dames assigned. He also owed Ferguson a large stun. 
Arsenault was anxious to purchase this lot, and had s|ioken 
to dames several times alnnit it. They finally agreed on a 
sale on these terms. The price was to lie $000, and it 
was to U* paid in this way—8200 was to go on account of 
dames’ debt of 8280, and the remaining 8400 was to Ik* paid 
by 0 notes made by Arsenault in favor of Win. Ferguson as 
follows,—one for 8133.33 payable in a year—one for the 
same amount " in two years, and a third for 8133.34 
payable in three years ; all of them liearing interest at the 
rate of 7 '/r. These notes were to lie given to Ferguson, who
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was to cm lit James Davidson with the amount. James 190N. 
Davidson wrote the conveyance as lie had previously written MoGakkkmn 

the mortgage. It was executed before Savoir, the Justice Fkrochok 
who had taken Mrs. Davidson’s acknowledgment to the tir«t harkkh. c.j. 

mortgage. It was delivered to Arsenault, the notes were 
written by James, signed by Arsenault, and handed over to 
Ferguson, who credited the $400 to him on account, and 
Arsenault credited James with the $200 on aecouut of the 
old debt. Arsenault registered his conveyance and went into 
possession. It is e< * * that the sale should be set aside, 
or, failing that, that Arsenault and Ferguson should account 
to the plaintiff for the purchase money, for nothing has l>een 
paid on the notes. It is not contended that Arsenault stood 
in any fiduciary relation to Mrs. Davidson, and so far as the 
evidence goes, lie hail no direct communication with her on 
the subject of the purchase. S> far as she was consulted in 
reference to it, or acted in reference to it, it was through 
James Davidson and him alone. Arsenault knew that she 
had already given a mortgage on the same property for more 
than its value to Ferguson. That was s|>okcn of at the out­
set of the negotiations lietween them. The only evidence 
there is on this jKiint is that of Janies Davidson himself. It 
is as follows:

"il. Did you or not have any conversation or negoti­
ations with her alxmt the Arsenault lot? A. AI >out buying 
the piece of projicrty? Yes.

Just tell us what took place. A. Well Philip 
Arsenault on several occasions asked me iiIkhiI buying that 
piece of property on the op|>osite side of the road from his 
home. Well of course 1 told him that Win. Ferguson had 
already a mortgage for that.

“(£. From your mother? A. From my mother.
Oh well ! says Philip, we can easily arrange that with the 
old man, alluding to Win. Ferguson 1 supjiose. Says he, 
that mortgage is not put on record. Well it was found after 
that a little time may lie and he was asking me again, and I 
slid, well I will tell yon Mr. Arsenault what 1 will do. 1

455^
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1008. will go down and see Mr. Ferguson, and if Mr. Ferguson is 
McUakkioan willing or agrees that I should sell you this piece of ground, 

fkmuvhon it will lie all right, on eondition that he will take you for the 
Marker. t.\ J. amount of 84(10.

“(J. What was he offering you for the property? A. 
8000.”

The witness then explaine<l that at that time he owed 
Arsenault something over 8200 including the old debt, and 
his examination then proceeds.

“(J. (letting hack to where we were. In your negoti­
ations with him «limit the side of the land, you say he offered 
you 8000. Mow did he propose to pay that for this land of 
your mother’s A. He proposed 1 would leave to my credit 
on his account 8200 and that he would give me notes in 
three years, payable one, two aial three*, in favour of Win. 
Ferguson for the 8400.

Well then you said you wouldn’t do anything 
until you went and saw Mr. Ferguson? A. I told him 
Win. Ferguson had a mortgage on the property, and he said 
the mortgage was not on record, ami the old man* (lie named 
him this time) would tix that all right.

“<J. What did you say to that? A. I said I would 
go ami see Mr. Ferguson myself, and 1 didn’t know whether 
Mr. Ferguson would accept these notes till 1 would see Mr. 
Ferguson.

“<J. You went ami saw him liefore anything was done? 
A. Saw him shortly.

“<J. What did you say to Win. Ferguson? A. I went 
in ami mentioned the matter to Mr. Ferguson.

“(J. Tell us what you told him, as near as you can? 
A. I told him 1 came to see him alnmt a piece of projierty 
that Philip was very anxious to get, ami I was aware lie hud 
a mortgage of the sune piece, and Mr. Ferguson told me the 
mortgage was not on reixird, that I could please invsclf.

“(£. What «lid he sav a I Hint the notes? A. He said 
this, of course he would accept the notes, but lie didn’t know
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exactly what time he would lu- paid, as Philip owed him then 1908. 
a considerable amount. MoOakkioa*

Did he agree to vmlit you with them ? A. Yea.” fkroubom

The witness then says that he himself wrote the deed Babkeh, c>J* 

ami got it signed, and his examination proceeds.
“(|. You wrote out the deed yourself, ami what dal 

you do about getting it executed? A. 1 went ami spoke to 
my mother tirst about it, and she said it was all right. I 
didn’t explain anything about the first mortgage on the same 
pro|M*rty or not, and I don’t remember she asked me about 
anything particular.

“Q. Did you explain to her? A. That I was going 
to get a deed of what we call the Arsenault property; that 
is the way we had of distinguishing it by the name, and she 
said it was all right. S> I sent up for the magistrate, Jus­
tinian Savoir, and he came down.” •

Liter on in his examination the witness was asked as 
follows:

“(J. Di«l you say you explained anything to your 
mother almut tin» notes, aliout how this was to lie paid for, 
or anything of that sort, or what did you tell her about that?

“Q. (By the Court) Did she know how much you were 
to get for the land? A. Yes, I mentioned that to her.

“<J. Did you tell her how you were to get the money, 
in the sha|>e of notes, and what was to lie done with it? A.
Yes, 1 think 1 told her.

“(J. Told her that liefore the deed was executed? A.

This evidence is unoontrudicted except in one particular.
I'Vrguson swears that he knew nothing whatever about the 
transaction until Davidson actually " him the notes.
I do not know that it is inijiortuiit, so far as this ease is 
concerned, which version is correct. In either case, Ferguson 
knew wfien he took the notes that they had lieen given in 
payment of this old lady’s projierty, and that she was not de­
riving a | «article of lienefit from the side, lie also knew her 
mental and physical condition was such as to make her an

11
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1908. easy prey to any one disposal to impose upon her, and lie 
McIiakkhian also knew how entirely and unreservedly she yielded to the 

Kkbovson wishes of James Davidson, and how for his lienefit her prop- 
Hakkkr, c. J erty ha<l lK*en and was being dissipated, as a result of 

Janies’ control over his mother. And he knew, that not­
withstanding his advice to her, to save her property for her 
sup|K>rt, she was squandering it all at Janies’ instance, and 
that lie was himself gathering in the fragments in satisfaction 
of Janies’ debt to him. Apart from this, it seems an almost 
necessary inference from the evidence that Ferguson’s 
memory has failed him in this as in other rs; for it
seems unreasonable to suppose that James Davidson and 
Arsenault would go to the trouble of having the notes given 
and the conveyance drawn and executed without saying a 
word to Ferguson, when a part of the arrangement was that the 
notes were to Ik? made payable to him, and accepted in satis­
faction pro tanto of Janies’ debt, and also that he should 
waive his lien on the property, created by the first mortgage, 
when his refusal to accede to either of these terms would 
have defeated the whole arrangement.

Where a gift is made to a parent by a child, not entirely 
emancipated from parental control, the law, on grounds of 
public utility, assumes as incident to the relation In‘tween the 
parties ami arising out of it, that the gift is the result of un­
due influence, where the child has had no iiide|iendent advice. 
The converse of this proposition is, however, not true. There 
is nothing illegal or suspicious or unnatural in a gift from a 

to a child. In Ilea nla ihI v. lira (Hey (1) the Vice 
Chancellor says—“ It is said that the lessor, I icing the grand­
father of one of the lessees and father-in-law of the other, there 
existed such a confidential relation lietween him and those he 
inteiahnl to lienefit as to throw upon them the onus of prov­
ing the absence of undue influence. It is a new (Joetrine 
that a parent cannot by a deed, only a few days lief ore his 
death, lienefit a child or grandchild * * * There is, how­
ever, n<i rule of this Court which prohibits a man by a 

(1) 2 Hm. & G. :m.

8095

9



IV.J NKW BRUNSWICK KQUITY KKPORTK. 25

voluntary deed from In-stow mg a Ix-nefit ii|hhi his son or his 
grandson or son-in-law, even although only a few days Im*- 
fore his death. To provide for his ehildren or graiidehihlren 
is, or may he, a necessary duty; and where a father dis­
charges that duty, this Court will not presume a fraud. If, 
therefore, fraud is alleged, it must Ik* proved in the ordinary 
way.”

The evidence shows that when James Davidson married 
in October, 1887, he went to live in the Arsenault house, and 
that he remained there until 1890. He then went to live 
at the homestead with his mother, and continued there until 
1807, when he moved to his new house, which is only a few 
yards distant. Ilis mother lived with him two or three 
months during the winter of 1808; she returned to her own 
house in the spring of 1800 and remained the summer. 
She went hack to James in the fall of 1800 More Xmas, 
and remained until she went to the hospital in October, 
1004. So that for many years previous to her death James 
was ci ' with his mother—in fact they practicallv
lived together. That he had acquired and actually jiosscsscd 
great influence over her cannot Ik* denied, lie swears to it, 
his wife proves it, the transactions themselves show it ; 
Ferguson knew it, and no one, as it seems to me, can read 
the evidence, in the light of all the surrounding circumstances, 
without U'ing impressed with the Iwlief that lx»th Arsenault 
and Ferguson carried on their dealings with James Davidson, 
feeling assured that whatever Mrs. Davidson had in the way 
of projierty, James could at any time secure for himself for 
the asking. Between $2000 and $15000 of the cash had 
gone in that way, and now that the |K*rsonal pro]x*rty had 
lieen exhausted, an onslaught was being made on the mil 
estate, and all this without a particle of Uaiefit to Mrs. 
Davidson herself. She was then 70 years old, showing at 
that time marked evidence of mental weakness. James was 
some 54 years of age and a man of business cu|iucity, not­
withstanding his intemperate habits. He prewired the first 
mortgage and the conveyance to Arsenault, and secured their

1908.
McOAmOAN 

KKROl SON. 
Harkkr, C. J.
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1W08. execution. Neither of them was read over to the old ladv, 
McUakkioan and it is not by any means clear that the latter was even ex- 

Kkhouson. plained to her. She certainly did not seem to remember 
Barkkr, ( -j- when she execute<l the dee<l to Arsenault, that she had only 

a few months Indore mortgaged the same projKTty to Fergu­
son for more than its value. Nor was she reminded of 
this fact. James Davidson concealed both transactions from 
his wife, who never heard of them until, as she says, the 
trouble «une in October, 1904, five years later, when the old 
lady went penniless to the hospital. Arsenault also con­
ceded th<‘ fact of the purchase from his wife, though she 
seems to have learned of it from some other source. Now 
have we not here precisely the elements found in cases where 
this Court has repeatedly interfered? There is the improvi­
dent contract, in this case not merely improvident, but abso­
lutely without any advantage to the donor. There is the 
old age and the enfeebled mind easily imposed upon and 
dominated ; the absence of id I advice except that of the man 
she trusted — the man who was getting the lienetit of the 
transaction, and whose duty and self-interest were in direct 
conflict. There is the absence of any real explanation of the 
nature and effect of the transaction itself, or the effect of it 
upon herself, ami there is the intention to make the convey­
ance, brought about by the ascendancy of one mind over 
another, sufficiently great to com|>cl submission. In Harvey 
v. Mount ( 1 ), tile Master of the Rolls, s|Miiking of this descrip­
tion of influence, says: “ Now, that species of influence may 
be used for good or for evil, ami as the advice of one so 
circumstanced is received by the other as a command, sub­
mission may Iki easily effected.” In Cooke v. Isi motte (‘2), the 
M. R. says: “it is very ditlicnlt to lav down with precision 
what is meant by the expression—relation in which dominion 
may be exorcised by one person over another. That relation 
exists in the «ise of parent, of guardian, of solicitor, of 
spiritual adviser, ami of medind attendant, ami may h • said 
to apply to every case in which two persons are so situated,

(1)8 Bom. 43». (2) 15 He». 231.
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that <me may obtain considerable influence over the other. 1908. 
The rule of Court, however, is not confined to such eases. McGakkiuan 

Lord ( 'ottenhain considered that it extended to every ease in Fkkochon 
which a |ierson obtained, by donation, a lienefit from another ,,ARKKM’r-J 
to the prejudice of that other person, and to his own 
tage ; and that it is essential, in every such ease, if the trans­
action should Ik* afterwards (piestioned, that he should prove 
that the donee voluntarily and delilwrately performed the act, 
knowing its nature and effect. It is not possible to draw the 
rule tighter, or to make it more stringent, and I Iwlieve it 
extends to every such ease. The fact of such a relation ex­
isting between the parties is only a circumstance in the ease, 
which may, according to its I waring on the other facts, lie 
favourable or uiifin • to the person seeking to sustain
the gift ; but the existence of such a relation is not necessary 
to enable this Court to apply the rule Ik*fore referred to; 
and that rule may, I lielievc, lie thus express*d ; that in 
every transaction in which a jicrsou obtains, by voluntary 
donation, a benefit from another, it is necessary that he should 
Ik* able to establish that the jierson giving him that lienefit 
did so voluntarily and deliberately, knowing what lie was 
doing; and if this Ik* not done the transaction cannot stand.”
See also Sharp v. Leach (1); Mason v. Seney (2); Ihmahl- 
w« v. JhiiahhtoH (3); A laternon v. E/sir orth (4).

If this were a question simply Ix-tween Mrs. Davidson 
and her son James the conveyance in my opinion should be 
set aside. It is, however, more than that. Hia/ucnin v.
! lastly has lieen cited as an authority for the pro|»osition
that if the subject matter of the gift can be traced into the 
jMissession of third persons, it will Ik* effected by the fraud or 
undue influence which attached to the original transaction, 
and therefore Arsenault would stand in no lletter position 
than would. Morley v. Louyhnan, ((>) may
Ik* referred to as a recent ease in which the above rule was 
applied. The present transaction, I think, comes within a

'll HI Beil. 491. (4) 7 Jur. N. S. 1017; (5» 14 Vesey 278
2» 11 (Irani 447. 3 (Jiff. 154. <lt) 1180811 Ch. I).. 73fl.

(3) 12 (jrant 431.
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1908. different elans of nines. In (bbbett v. Brock (1), it ap|ieared 
McOakkioan that the defendant was considerably indebted to the plaintiffs, 

KKitiii won and that they were pressing him for payment. He then told 
Barkkk. c. j. them that he was about to lie married to a lady of fortune 

and that she would give the plaintiffs security for their debt. 
She did no by a mortgage, and in the action for foreclosure 
of that mortgage it was set up as a defence by the defendant, 
who had in the meantime married the lady who gave the 
security, that it had been obtained by misrepresentation and 
undue influence. The M. U. says : “In eases where a deed 
is obtained by fraud or undue influence, though it may l>e 
avoided as between the parties, yet it cannot lie set aside an 
against a jierson claiming for valuable consideration under it, 
ami without notice of the fraud. The real question is this: 
Assume that a fraud was committed by the husband, did the 
plaintiffs know of that fraud.” In the same case the M. It. 
says: “I fully adhere to what I expressed in the eases of 
Cooke v. Iai motte and lloyhioo v. I [o(//iton, and if this were 
a ease between llroek (the defendant) and his wife, 1 should 
require him to prove all the requisites I |>oiiited out in those 
eases as necessary to give validity to the transaction ; but 
when the security gets into the hands of a purchaser for 
valuable consideration, the case is very different, unless the 
person obtaining the benefit of it has lieen guilty of or privy 
to the fraud.” Again the M. 11. says: “I look at the ease 
in the same light as if certain lienetitn had lieen voluntarily 
conveyed to Mr. llroek by Mins Colyer, and he had after­
wards sold them to the plaintiffs. The fact of this being 
one transaction does not affect the question, unless the plain­
tiffs were privy to the fraud.” In the ease from which 1 have 
just quoted there was nothing to suggest that the creditor 
was party or privy to any fraud. Notwithstanding that, it 
was held to lie the duty of the creditor (who was aware of 
the relation between the parties) to the lady to see that she 
had proper indejiendent professional advice.

Now what in the |»osition of the several juirties to this
(1 ) 20 Bra. 524.
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transaction ? Mrs. Davidson’# position is easily ", She 1908. 
ha# simply given away $($00 worth of pro|»erty without lmv- McGassioan 

ing <lerive<l any Iwnetit whatever in return. Wlmt wa# the kkkuvhon. 
position of Arsenault V He was the person who proposed Bakkkk, c. J. 
this purchase, and was anxious that it should In* carried out.
He was the person who proposed the term# of payment, and 
he was the only |M*rson who derived any substantial Inaiefit 
from the transaction. It is true that on James Davidson’s 
old i‘ss to him of $280 he credited $200 of the
purchase money. Hut that was on a debt which he had 
agreed to compromise for 10'/, and which lie was now claim­
ing in full, under a secret arrangement " in fraud of 
creditors,and illegal on that ground. [Mara v. Sanford (1),
Ilif/yi"# v. Pitt (2), In re McHenry, McDermott v. lioyd 
(3).] It isalso true that he was to give his notes to his father- 
in-law for $400 on Janies Davidson’s account, and it is 
equally true, that although eight years have passed since 
then, he lias never paid one cent on account of that liability.
As to his actual knowledge of Mrs. Davidson’s condition 
there is no direct evidence, hut that he was well acquainted 
with it is clearly to he inferred from admitted facts. His 
wife, who is a daughter of Ferguson, knew the old lady well 
—they were friends and ncighltors. She was in the habit of 
re|Kiltedly visiting the old lady, and gave evidence herself of 
her failing memory. When he wished to purchase, Arsenault 
di<l not go to Mrs. Davidson hut to Janies, liecause he knew 
that he was the |iers<ni to manage the business, lie knew 
that lie was dealing with an infirm old lady, who had only a 
few months liefore come to her son’s assistance in the matter 
of the compromise. He knew that he was asking this old 
lady to give away $<*>00 worth of pro|**rty, and he was ask­
ing her to do that when she had already given a mortgage on 
the same pro|ierty for more than its value, which Arsenault 
himself knew was not on record. Hut in plain language, his 

* to Janies Davidson was this: “If you will procure 
for in#' a conveyance from your mother to me of this projierty

(1) 1 Gift. 288. (2) 4 Ex. 312. (3) 118041 2 Vh. 428.
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1008. 1 will credit you with *'200 on this old debt to me, and I
McOakkioan will assume *400 of vour debt to William Ferguson by giving 

Kkruvbon. him my notes for that amount, which I will arrange for him 
iiARKKit, c. J. to accept.” To regard this as in any sense an ordinary 

business transaction of Imrgain and sale, is to mv mind im- 
itossible. It could only l>c accomplished by u <lire<it fraud 
perpetrated on this ohl lady by reason of her absolute incom- 
|>etency to make such a contract, or else bv means of some 
pressure or undue influence brought to bear upon her by her 
eon. That Arsenault knew this 1 have not a shadow of 
doubt, lie may not have appreciated the risk he was run­
ning in taking a conveyance under such circumstances, any 
more than lie appreciated the unrighteousness of such a trans­
action, even though he was not an active guilty in turn ing 
it out, but that he was quite willing that the conveyance 
should lx- secured by such means for his benefit, and that 
lie knew that in the absence of any independent advice, it 
could not In* secured by any other means, I have not a shadow 
of doubt, flames Davidson, on his examination, was asked 
as follows :

“(J. AI suit Mr. Arsenault, when you were negotiating 
with him to get this deed to him, was anything said then ulioiit 
vour being able to persuade your mother to sign the deed? 
A. Well, yes, he just mentioned, 1 don’t suppose there 
would Ih* any trouble about getting your mother to sign it, 
ami 1 said, no, I don’t think there would l>e the least trouble.

“(J. Did he say you could convince your mother to sign 
the deed or sign anything? A. Well, yes, I think he did 
say that.”

It is clear that Arsenault, with this knowledge and with 
these expectations as to James Davidson’s influence and con­
trol over his mother, left everything to James, and must take 
the eonset|Uenre* wL aucli pressure or undue influence he may 
have used in order to obtain the cHUYcyance, or of such 
omissions as he may have made in affording his mMlmr such 
explanations as to the nature and effect of the transactions, 
as she was entitled to have. See Turnbull & Co. v. 7>am/(l), 

(1) 11902) A. C. 421) at p. 434.
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HÎKrlinJfn Tnt dre v. Frank ( 1 ), Chaplin & Co. v. HmmmnH {'!).
As to Ferguson, it is true tlmt lie liml no part in the 

negotiations, anil aooonliug to his own neeouut, knew nothing 
of the conveyance until the three notes were brought to him, 
hut he still retains the notes anil elainis the amount of them. 
When he took them he acquired a full knowledge of the 
transaetion, anil no one knew, as 1 have already pointed out, 
I letter than he did how altogether unlikely it was that such 
a transaction could have [sissilily lieen carried ont, except by 
resort to some of the methods I have already suggested. His 
refusal to take the notes would have defeated the whole 
arrangement. Si far from doing that lie adopteil it, hi far as 
it could lienefit him or his son-in-law ; they divided the ns- 
inllisl purclaiH' money lietween them, and in my opinion, are 
alike affected by what James I >avidsoii did or omitteil to do, 
and they must I will take the consequences. Krinjtmm v. A xh- 
6rr (:l), htitrmn v. Iknrnon (4), Heritor v. I In inn in (Ô), Hub r 
v. Ilitttlley (II), < h.r v. Atlanta (7).

I have not thought it necessary, in discussing these two 
transactions, to make more than a general reference to Mrs. 
Davidson's com . Three months after the con­
veyance to Arsenault was made she executed a will. It is 
ilatisl March litli, 11HHI. There ilia's not SI-cm to have been 
any question mind as to her competency to make it. In fact 
her entire property had lieen dissipated during her life, and 
there was eft to the devisees hut this lawsuit. The
last mortgage was given on the 22ml December, 1902, three 
years sulinquent to the conveyance to Arsenault, and two 
years and nine months sulwequent to the will. And it is 
•untended that during these years she had la-come so weak 
mentally that when she executed the mortgage she was in 
fact incapable of understanding the nature or effect of the 
instrument. It is also contended that then- were such fiduci­
ary or coiitiilentiul relations existing between Ferguson and

<11 8» l- T. 188. (4) 12 Grant 278. 16) 7 Deti. M. & G. 507.
12) (11108) 1 K. II. 238. (5) SI Ben. 003. (7) 85 8.U.H. 303.
(3) 10 Oh. Ap. 15.

1907.
McGakkioax 

Ferguson. 

Barker. ('. J.
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Mrs. Davidson, when this mortgage was mailt', that this ( 'ourt 
wiuihl set it aside, Mrs. Davidson having had no inde|ienileiit 
adviee. Not only is this contention made, lint it is also 
charged that the mortgage is the result of direct pressure 
brought to bear by Ferguson upon Mrs. Davidson. Therein 
no donlit that Ferguson had lieen an intimate friend of the 
Davidson family all his life. In his younger thus he was in 
their service and employ for a long time, and later on, when he 
was doing business for himself, he dealt with \V David­
son, anil I think continui'd to do so up to the time of his death, 
lie made him executorof his will, and after William David­
son's death I'ergnson constantly visited Mrs. Davidson, lie 
drew her last will and several others for her, ami in all I 
understand she Halm'll him as executor. It is true that some 
of her money was in his hands, lint it was subject t i her 
order, and was |>aiil out on her order or on that of someper- 
soii rifognizeil as acting by her authority. I do not find an 
instance where she iimsulteil him as to her affairs, or where 
she sought his adviee as to their management. I do not sir 
that there was any relation existing la'twceu these |>arties 
which of itself created any legal duty from one to the other, 
or which enuted anv dominion or control liv the one over the 
other, from w hich one might to assume the existence of undue 
iuHucncc or coercion of any kind in the case of a voluntary 
gift. At most, I think it may he said that there was a moral 
obligation ii|niii one situated as Ferguson was to some 
sulmtantial effort to protect a feeble old lady from _ " r-
ing her property, impoverishing herself, upon a reckless and 
s|*'iidthrift soil, doing him no |H'rmanent good and herself a 
|K'rnuinent injury, es|icciiilly where he was himself deriving a 
lifiirlit out of the transactions. And it may lie added that in 
reference to this sciund mortgage that it dis|mred of the last 
vestige of the pro|icrty which the old lady had, and which 
Ferguson knew that by the will she had made she " 
should lie left at her dcuth for the Is netit of .1111111* David­
son and his invalid wife and family. A|mrt from this there 
is, 1 think, ample evidence to show that this mortgage should

1
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not Ih* permitted tu stand. In the first place as to the pres- 1U0<S. 
Mire. I have1 already pointed ont that the $1,250.97 for Mcüakkioan

• 1 ’ V.

which the mortgage was given, was the total indebted ness fkrqubon. 

at that time of .lames Davidson to Ferguson. In his answer hahke*. c. j. 
Ferguson divided this stun into two—one for $822.90 as an 
indebtedness of Mrs. Davidson, and the other of $428.07 as 
as an indebtedness of James Davidson. In section 17 of his 
answer Ferguson states as follows: “The said mortgage was 
made and given for the pur|>osc of securing the indebtedness 
of the slid Helen Davidson for the said sum of $822.90 to me, 
and also the slid indebtedness of $428.(17 from the defend­
ant James Davidson to me, ami slid two indebtednesses and 
liabilities of the said Helen Davidson ami Jana's Davidson 
were then existing and due and owing to me from them as 
aforesaid. I have no knowledge, information or belief as to 
who suggested or advised the making and executing by the 
said Helen Davidson of the slid mortgage, but 1 allege and 
say that I informed the defendant James Davidson and the 
slid Helen Davidson that 1 would not furnish and supply 
the slid defendant Janies Davidson with any more goods ami 
supplies from my store, unless I got security on the slid %
house and buildings of the slid James Davidson, and on the 
slid lands and premises of the slid Helen Davidson, for his 
then existing indebtedness to me of the slid sum of $428.(17 
—that thereii|Hin, and in order to secure further advances of 
goods ami supplies from me, to and for the said James 
Davidson, the said Helen Davidson and Janies Davidson vol­
untarily ami of their own free will ami accord, made ami 
executed in my favor the slid second mortgage Inuring date 
the 29th day of 1 >eeenilier, A. 1). UK 12, as aforcstid.”

It is necessary to ex that when Ferguson here 
s|H*aks of house ami buildings Indonging to James Davidson, 
he refers to a house which Janies built oil the homwtiwl lot, 
to which he removed in 1897, and which Ferguson then 
sii|>|Mwed lielongcd to Janies. Fergusm’s evidence is sul>- 
-tantially in sup|H>rt of the extract from his a*i.-wer that I 
have just given, that is that Janies’ indebtedness to him at

VOL 4. N.H.K.K. 3
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1908. that time* was $428.07, ami lu* then told both Janus and his 
mhiakhoan mother, not that lie would not trust her any further without 
Kntm non security, Imt that he would not give James any more goods 

IIakkbm < J w*ti|0,d security ; and he also stipulated the seeiiritv which 
lie required — that is a mortgage both on what he sup|»osed 
was Janies’ house, and on what he knew was the last rem­
nant of everything in the way of property which the old lady 
then owned. In view of all the circumstances and the juisi- 
tion in which James Davidson then was, this demand for 
security n " * have l>een made except with a view of co­
ercing the old lady again to come to the rescue, and a pres­
sure upon Janies to use his control over her to force her to 
do so. It was precisely the kind of pressure likely to In* 

successful as it proved to In*. The mortgage was prepared 
by Ferguson’s solicitor under his instructions, and without 
consultation with Mrs. Davidson as to its terms or conditions. 
Instead of being given in order to get further advances, as the 
section of Ferguson’s answer which 1 have quoted would 
lead you to ? isc, there was in fact no agreement to make 
any further advances, and there were in fact no further ad­
vances ever made. Instead of lieing a mortgage to secure 
Janies’ indebtedness of $4*28.07, as the answer implies it was 
to lie, it is a mortgage to secure the* whole $1,200.97. The 
effect of the transaction was to inqiovcrish this old lady anil 
enrich Ferguson by $1,200.97. Ferguson gave the mortgage 
to Doucette his clerk and son-in-law, with instructions to 
take it to Raymond, who is a notary public and also a son- 
in-law of Ferguson, to go to Mrs. Davidson and get it ex­
ecuted. When it was executed there were present Mrs. 
Davidson, James Davidson, Raymond and Doucette. It was 
not read over to Mrs. Davidson, but Raymond after reading 
it over himself says that he explained it to her ; he told her 
that it was a mortgage on the homestead for $1,209, told her 
the terms and conditions, all of which she said she understood 
and which he says she seemed to him to understand. This 
took place in the forenoon, and when Mr. Raymond went 
home un interview took place lietwecn him and his wife which

9
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Ini him to return to Mrs. Davidson in the afternoon alone. BM)8. 
Mr. Bavmond’s evidence oil this point is as follows:— McO-osiuax

“< £. When yon went home didn’t your wife tell you Kkhuvhon. 
when you told her where you had been and what you had ÜABKKK* J* 
done, that it was a shame to go and have a mortgage from 
that old lady, and that everyone said she was crazy ? A.
She may have said words to that effect but not that.

“Q. But in ('onset|lienee of what she said anti what 
took place lietween you, you came back? A. Yes.

“<£. Anti went up again to see the old lady? A.
Yes; alone this time.

“<£. What took place then? A. 1 went up stairs and 
asked if Mrs. Davidson was upstairs. Mrs. Davidson was 
alone. She said, go up or something like that, and 1 said to 
her, 4 Pardon me, I would like to ask you a question,’ and 
1 saitl, ‘do von remember signing a certain document liefore 
me today,’ anti she said, ‘yes,’ and I said, ‘ would you mind 
telling me just what the document was,’ and she saitl then 
in her own words, told me what it was.

44 Q. Didn’t she tell you she signed a |m|ier to help 
dames? A. She told me the |ni|>er was a mortgage. She 
said, ‘ I remember signing a mortgage on the place to Mr.
Ferguson for 81,*200 to help James to pay his debts.’ That 
is the recollection [ have of it, or to get him out of his 
trouble.”

dames Davidson’s evidence on this |>oint. What he 
says in reply to a question as to what took place about the 
second mortgage : —

“A. Well Mr. Ferguson said he wished to get mort­
gage on the whole place for the whole amount.

44 Q. A mortgage for this 81,200? A. Yes.
“Q. A mortgage from whom? A. Well my mother, 

and 1 would have to sign it too, that the property was still 
(willed?) practically all to me, that is the way I understood 
it.

44<i. By whom? A. By my mother.
44 Q. Did lie say anything alunit your creditors ? A.
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I1*1OS. Oh tlivrv wns a party in (^uelieo IiihI a judgment against me.
Mv<i.xKKi«i.kx lit» mentioned that t<i me, ami as soon as I would fall into 

Kkhhvkox. the projierty that they would likvlv eonie down on me, an<l 
Bakkkk, c.j.by getting the mortgage he won h I lie seeure ami it would 

protect me at the same time.
“<J. l>i«l he want von to see your mother, or what did 

he say aliout it? A. I spoke to mother about it, and I don’t 
know whether Mr. Ferguson said yes or no to her aliout it.

“(J. You never heard that he spoke to her? A. No, 
for it didn't make much difference at that time, she wasn’t in 
a state to transact any business at that time.”

Mrs. Davidson’s mental condition at this time may afford 
a satisfactory explanation why in this last transaction she 
seems to have been consulted or considered even less than in 
reference to the other two, and why she could Ik* ignored 
lievond getting her signature as she was requested by her son. 
The evidence on this |Hiint is too voluminous to quote at 
length. 1 shall give but a brief summary of it as relating to 
the period form 1898 to 1902. Commencing with 1898 it 
appears that the old lady was becoming childish ami forget­
ful—she would cry to lie taken * when she was actually 
at home. She often imagined the boys were on the roof of 
the house tearing down the chimneys and wanted some of the 
family to go down ami stop them. They often took her to 
the house to convince her there were no boys there, but she 
imagined they had run away, and when she returned she 
would complain of the same thing over again. She had visited 
the lazaretto, and when she returned she said the Sisters there 
had very little to do, as they were tearing down the chimneys 
every day ami putting them up again. She continued sink­
ing of this, ami wondered why her huslmnd (who had lieen 
dead some years) «lid mit eonie buck. She complained of a 
“hissing” in her head, and consulted Father Morrisey, who 
had some reputation in that locality as an expert in the treat­
ment of sia-h trouble. He gave her a liquid with which to 
syringe her nose and ears, ami a salve to lie applied to the 
ear. When any attempt was made to use the syringe, she

0
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laughed and liehaved in such a childish way that they con Id 190N.
not line it all. She until the ear naive for rheumatism in MoCUmeAx
her knee. She used the potatoes and turnips prepared for Fkrouhox.

the table as a poulticre, which she also applied to her knee. Narkkr, c. j.
At another time she painted it with boot polish. In 1899,
though at times apparently rational, she became more lielp-
Icnn and more childish, and required greater care and more
constant attendance. She would still cry to go ’ when
in fact she was at home—constantly insisted that the weather
was foggy when it was line, and was constantly speaking of
the tides. To use Mrs. dames Davidson’s words, “she never
went out doors but it was high tide, or she was wondering if
it high tide for her huslmnd to come home.” Her weakness
and childishness continued to increase in 1900 and afterwards.
She would wash the table dishes with milk and the table with 
yeast. On one occasion—one Sunday in 1900—she came 
down stairs in her nightdress with her crepe Ixninet on, 
tilled the kettle with | mi rati ne oil, and put it on the stove.
'die constantly removed the pillowshams and counterpanes 
scmai after the IhhIs had lieen made up in the morning, put 
them away in drawers and turned down the liedclothes, 
imagining it was night and time to go to lied. She often 
talked and sang to herself, and spoke of her husband as 
though he were still living. She would cat the food pre|Mired 
tor the1 liens, and shut them all up in the daytime. She 
would cut up scMip to lie eaten as food. For a long time she 
did not recognize her own grand-daughter, an inmate of her 
own family, culling her “Mary,” apparently under the im­
pression she was a servant in the house, of that name. At 
one time she asserted she had lieen married again. In the 
'iiinmer of 1902 she continually cried for her mother; so 
violently on one occasion that they were obliged to put her 
in a chair and haul her from room to room in order to quiet 
and soothe her. From having been cleanly in her habits and 
particular as to her dress and (lersoual appearance, she lie- 
canie quite the reverse. In fact her mind liecame so weak, 
and her physical functions so im|Miirecl, that she lost all eon-

4
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1908. trol over herself, anil had to be washed ami cured for as a 
mhiakkioan child, sometimes two or three times during the day. This 

Fumai hon. was in ItMMl and ItKH. This seemed to annov her, and she 
Hakkkh. c. J. would often show her IkhIv to strangers so that they could see 

that she was clean and there was nothing wrong with her. 
Though naturally modest she at this time exhibited her rheu­
matic knee to strangers, regardless of sex, apparently under 
the impression that each was a doctor or could benefit her 
in some way.

1 have extracted the above facts from the evidence of 
Mrs. dames Davidson and her daughter, and there is nothing 
to suggest that it is an exaggerated account. In many of its 
details it is corrolxmited by the independent testimony of 
Brideau Soi lier and McGraw. Mrs. Hill, another witness, 
states that she occupied the old lady’s house as a tenant in ltMIl 
and 11102. She paid her the rent in 1901, but she would 
often come back for it again. She would go into the house, 
close all the doors and >peak of her Imsliand as if he were 
alive. In 190*2 she was worse. Mrs. Hill that year |iaid 
the rent to Mrs. dames Dividson. In addition to other un­
usual things the old lady did that year, she came to Mrs. 
Hill’s house one day dressed in most nigged clothing when 
she had plenty of good clothing at home; and sometimes she 
would come with two or three caps on her head and a dish 
towel tied around them. This evidence clearly shows that 
in the years 1901, 190*2 and later this old lady was not only 
under insine delusions, but that her mind and memory had 
lieeome so entirely weakened ami ini|»aired that no business 
tnmsaetion with her, much less a voluntary gift, regardless 
altogether of any question of undue influence, would lie per­
mitted to stand, without the clearest proof of her understand­
ing its nature and object and its effect n|h»n herself, and 
without having the protection afforded by a competent and 
inde|Hindent adviser.

In llot/hfon v. Jlof/hton (1 /, at page 298 the M. K. says: 
—“ I am of opinion, as I lately held in a ease of Cook v.

(1) 15 Ben. 278.
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Lamotte (1), that whenever one person obtains by voluntary 1908.
a large |>evuniary la-ncfit from another, the burthen McGakkioan 

of proving that the transaction is righteous, to use the ex- Fkhouhoii. 
pression of Lord Kldon in (iit)non v. Jeyen (2), falls on the Ba,<kk|<. c. -i. 
person taking the lienetit. But this pristf is given, if it In* 
shewn that the donor knew and understood what it was that 
lie was doing. If, however, liesidc# the obtaining the la-netit 
of this voluntary gift from the donor, the donor and donee 
were so situated towards each other that undue influence 
might have been exercised by the donee over tin* donor, then 
a new consideration is added, and the question is not, to use 
the words of 1 aird Kldon in Hugiwnin v. Hawley (3)— 
whether the donor knew what he was doing, but how the in­
ti ‘ was produeed—and though the donor was well aware 
of what he did, yet if his disposition to do it was produced 
by undue influence, the transaction would Ik* set aside. In 
in my eases the Court, from the relations existing l>etween
the parties to the transaction, infers the i .........¥ of such
undue influence having been exerted. There are the eases 
of guardian and ward, solicitor and client, spiritual instructor 
and ", medical mail and patient and the like, and in such 
eases the Court watches the transaction with great

"y, not merely for the purpise of ascertaining that the 
person likely to be so influenced, fully understood the act he 
was performing, but also for the purpise of ascertaining that 
his consent to perform that act was not obtained by reason of 
the influence possessed by the |arson receiving the lienetit.
Not that the influence itself flowing from such relations is 
either d or discountenanced by the Court; on the <•ou­
tran the due exercise of it is considered useful and advanta­
geous to society ; but this Court holds as an insepirable con­
dition that this influence should la* exerted for the laaietit of 
the |arson subject to it, and not for the advantage of the 
person |assessing it.”

In Huyuemn v. Hawley.(4), at page 299 Isird Kldon 
“Take it that she to give it to him it is bv no

(I) 15 Ben. 234. (3) 14 Vesy 273.
;2) 6 Veey 288. (4) 14 Ve*y 273.
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_190h.
McClASSIIiAN 

Fkrovhon. 

Mahkkk. ('. J.

[VOL.

means out of the reach of the principle. The question in, not 
whether she knew what she wax doing, had (lone or promised 
to do, hut how the intention wax produced, whether all that 
dire and providence wax placed around her, ax againxt tlioxe 
who advixed her, which, from their situation and relation with 
rexjiect to her, they were bound to exert on her liehalf. lier 
situation, with reference to pecuniary circumstances during 
the whole |>eriod, must also lx* attended to: her hiixliund a 
few weeks liefore having liecn relieved from distress by a sum 
of money advanced by Kaselev.”

I think this last transaction must lie set aside also.
There is one other matter in reference to which relief is 

sought. In William Ferguson’s account as executor of the 
William Davidson estate, he has charged under date of Jan- • 
nary I till, 18‘JU, the amount of two promissory notes, one for 
$255.83 and the other for #153.50 as having l>ecn paid by 
him out of estate funds. We have only Mr. Ferguson’s 
account of the transaction, and aetording to it this money was 
used in |Kiving these two notes, which were made by Ferguson 
for the accommodation of James Davidson at the request of 
Mrs. Davidson. It seems that the old lady wished to assist 
James who was wanting money, and she wanted Ferguson to 
help him. He suggested giving him his own notes which 
James could get discounted. This was done and at maturity 
Ferguson was obliged to pay them. There is nothing to 
show that James had anything to do with the arrangement 
or used any influence with his mother in reference to the 
matter. It is a simple disc of legal liability on the |xirt of 
Mrs. Davidson, at whose request the notes were given, and I 
think she would Ik* liable. In Itrittain v. IJoyii{ 1), I Nil lock. 
(’. B., says: — “If one ask another, instead of |Miving money 
for him, to lend him his acceptance for his accomodation 
and the acceptor is obliged to pay it, the amount is 
money |Kiid for the Ixirrower, although the lxirrower lx* no 
party to the bill, nor in any way liable to the i>ersoii who 
ultimately receives the amount. The borrower, by request- 

(1) 14 M. A W. 762.
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ing the aix'eptor to assume that character which ultimately 1908.
> him to pay, impliedly requests him to jmy, and in as McOakfioan 

much liable to repay, as he would l>e in a direct request to Ferguson. 

pay money for him with a promis* to repay it.” It may 1k?Bakkkm-c-J* 
that strictly shaking the charge should not l>e in Ferguson’s 
account as executor, inasmuch as it was a liability incurred 
at the instance of Mrs. Davidson, with which her husband's 
estate had nothing to do. But that would only make him 
have so much more money in his * < belonging to Mrs.
Davidson under her hualtand’s will, which she would owe 
him. While I express my opinion that the plaintiffs have 
no claim as to this money, I think the matter is one for the 
Prolwte ( ourt, as the plaintiffs have not asked for a decree 
for the administration of the Davidson estate.

1 think there must In* a decree setting aside the first 
mortgage and a declaration that all the money which Fergu­
son intended should Ik? secured by it lfas lieen paid. The 
conveyance to Arsenault must also lie set aside, except as to 
that part of the lot sold and conveyed by him to Doggie, and 
there will Ik» a reference as to tin» value of that lot, the value 
of present improvements, etc. The second mortgage will also 
lie set aside, and the defendant Ferguson will Ik* ordered to 
deliver up to the executors of Arsenault the three promissory 
notes on request to Ik» cancelled.

Reserve the question of costs until the Referee’s report.

5
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GOLDEN am. WIFE v. McGIVKKY am. OTHERS, 
Committee ok James McGivehv, a Lunatic.

Foot-note to Inti'rroyatorice—Practice—Ex ceptions to Aiimrer— 
Irrelevancy.

The plaintiffs omitted to add any foot-note to their interroga­
tories as provided hv See. 44 of the Supreme Court in Equity 
Art, Con. .Stat. (1WH). Chap. 112.

Oil a motion to set aside an order setting exceptions to the 
answer down for hearing :

Held, that hy a proper construction of the section, such an omis­
sion was equivalent to a requirement that all the defendants 
should answer all the interrogatories.

Where defendants, in answering interrogatories Hied as jmrt 
of the hill, neglect to state their belief, or, when required to 
set out a document at length, neglect to do so without assign­
ing a sufficient reason, the answer is insufficient, and excep­
tions on that groipid will la* allowed. If, however, the inter­
rogatories relate to matters which are altogether irrelevant, 
i he except Ions will be overruled.

This is n suit to mni|>el the sjieeitie |h-i foniianee of a 
contract. The answer was excepted to for insufficiency, and 
an order was made setting the exceptions down for hearing. 
The defendants gave notice of a motion to set aside this order, 
on the ground that the interrogatories had no foot-note, as 
required hv Nee. 44 of Chap. 112, C. S., UMlff. This motion 
and the exceptions came on for argument together.

II’. Mateon Allen, K.C., for the plaintiffs.

II . /». Mal/ace, K.( ’.,and VV. X Ititcliic, for the defendants. 

11KIS. April 21. IIakkkii, (’. J.:—

Exceptions to the answer of the committee of the 
lunatic Janies Metiivery.

'I'he hill is filed for thes|N>eiffe |ierformanee of a contract 
said to have lieen made by the lunatic James Metiivery with 
the plaintiff James ( ioldeu, who is a nephew of Met iivery,and 
his wife, hv which it is alleged he agreed to convey to the
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plaintiff, Margaret (iolden, a certain leasehold property on 
llrussels Street in St. John, in payment of services Ik‘fore that 
performed by the plaintiffs for him. This was in V.MIÔ, and 
at this time Margaret (iolden, as is alleged in the bill, was 
under treatment in the ( ieneral Hospital, and Metiivery pro­
posed that she shonld then Ik* removed to one of the tene­
ments on the property in question, but that in order to put 
the property in proper repair Met iivery was to collect the 
rents for a year, put the premises in repair, and in the 
following April (ItMMi) he was to execute the conveyance. 
The proposal was accepted. Margaret tiohlen, as is alleged, 
was removed to the premises and put in possession under the 
agreement, and the proposed repairs were commenced by 
Met iivery in May, 1UOÔ. In August, 1ÎMI.1, he was taken ill 
and was sent to the Provincial Hospital for nervous diseases, 
where he has In ch ever since under restraint as a lunatic. 
Proceedings were taken which resulted in an order living 
made by this Court on the '20th Feb., 1000, appointing the 
defendants Janies A. Met iivery, Reverdy Steeves and Andrew 
MeXieholl a Committee of the jicrsoii and estate of James 
Met iivery. This Committee ? made an appli­
cation to this Court for authority to Isirrow money on mort­
gage of the lunatic’s property, which was required for the 
payment of his debts. This authority was given and in pur­
suance of it the t onunittre borrowed from the defendant 
Catherine Dolan $l,AtM), anil as a security for the money ex­
ecuted to her a mortgage for that sum and interest, on the 
premises in question with other projierty of the lunatic. 
This mortgage is dated August 22nd, ltlOti, and was regis­
tered about the same time. The bill also alleges that the 
plaintiff completed at his own expense the repair in progress 
when Met iivery went to the Provincial Hospital, and that the 
Committee have not only <•oliveted the rents from the tenants 
of the premises in question, but also are seeking to collect 
rent from him and his wife for the tenement occupied by 
them.

When the exceptions came on for argument the Cont-

JÎH18.
(Ioi.mcn and

MvUivkky. 
Hark km. C. J.

C^+/C
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1908. mittee made a motion, of which they had given notice, to net 
cioldkn am» aside the* order setting the exceptions down, and I may as well 
McGokhy tlwt livre. It seems that the plaintiff’s Sdieitor

Barkkk <■ j om*0<,<l to specify in a note at the foot of the interrogatories 
which of them each defendant was to answer. It was con­
tended that in such a ease the defendants were not hound to 
answer the interrogatories at all, and that the answer put in 
was simply an answer to the hill, as if no interrogatories had 
Inch tiled, and it was therefore not ojicn to exceptions. 1 do 
not agree to this of the Act. See. 44 provides
for the foot-note in question, but it is evident to my mind it 
was intended to avoid the necessity, and therefore the ex jiense 
of serving the interrog ' s on defendants, who knew noth­
ing or hut little alioiit the matter in dispute, and whose 
answer therefore would serve no useful pur|M>se. No such 
note would seem of any use where there was only one de­
fendant, and I see no use for it where there are several de- 

< and they are all required to answer. I think the 
fair construction of the section is that, if the plaintiff chooses 
not to restrict his interrogatories, when lie should do so, hut 
puts the defendants or some of them to the exjienso of answer 
or portions of answer which are useless, he must run the risk 
of being * liable to pay the costs in any event under
section 4f>. If, when there are sever * * <} the plain­
tiff units the foot-note it is equivalent to a requirement that 
all si ta 11 answer, and the taxing officer mil deal with the 
question of costs if the interrogatories have been unnecessary. 
There vas also some question of waiver by reason of an ar­
rangement to take some evidence, but there is nothing in that.

The i rst exception relates to an interrogatory founded 
on an allegation in the bill in reference to the services alleged 
to have Isn'ii performed by the plaintiff, James Golden, to 
Janies McGiver;. which are put forward as the consideration 
for the agreement to convey. The answer is, I think, in­
sufficient for not sta ;ig the defendant’s belief, and 1 think 
the exception must be allowed.

D8D

C36D

89
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The Heeoiul and third exceptions must, I think, Ik* 1908. 
allowed oil the name ground. Goi.ukn and

The fourth exception in that the defendants have not set r.
1 I • , McGivkry.

forth in full the mortgage to Dolan and the order of Court ——
1SAKKKH. v • v.

under which it was made, as by the interrogatory they were 
«idled u|hui to do. They have net forth in full its date, its 
registry and all the |mrtieulars relating to it. It is difficult 
to see what purpose is to Ik* served by encumbering the re­
cords with copies of d«K‘timents which are not attacked in any 
way, and where there is no allegation or suggestion that U*- 
yond the fact that they exist, which is admitted, nothing turns 
ii|h>n them one way or the other. The public records and 
the mortgage itself are both as accessible to the plaintiff as 
they are to the Committee, and while the mortgage is their 
own conveyance, and they must therefore know its general 
terms as they have stated, there is nothing either in the nature 
of duty or usage which would require them to keep a copy of 
it. If they had said that they had no copies of the mortgage 
and order, I should have been disposed to overrule this ex­
ception, but they have not done so and I shall therefore allow 
it.

I think the remaining nine exceptions must be overruled.
They are all alike in their character and relate, as I think, to 
matters altogether irrelevant to the subject matter of the hill.
I tv section 1 of the bill the plaintiff alleges that the lunatic 
was possessed of considerable projierty lieside that which he 
agreed to convey to them, and that the Committee had plenty 
of pro|K*rty in their hands when they obtained from the Court 
the authority to Itorrow, and when they liormwed, to pay off 
the debts, and in fact there was no necessity for borrowing at 
all. The bill also alleges that the Committee have collected 
the rents of the projierty. Based ii|mui these allegations a 
>eries of interrogatories have been framed by which the de­
fendants were required to state the particulars of this prop­
erty, the amounts due to them, the amount of rent collected 
bv them, the appropriations by them of the moneys revived 
by them, and in fact to give a full account of their dealings
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1908. with tliv estate. This whole en<|iiii;v, as it seems t«► me, is 
uoi.iikn x\n wholly irrelevant to imv issue involved in this suit, and tliens 
.. r. fore vexatious. That wouhl ivrtniulv lie the ease if the
MrUlVKHY. ..."

HAK — ,. , plnintitT^ fail in estalilishiug their eoutruet. But ussuinnig 
that they do establish it, what has the value of the property 
in the Committee’* hands to do with the relief to wliieh they 
may lie entitled? The plaintiff’s right to relief dins not de- 
I mi id ii |m m the defendant's ability to carry out tin- decree of 
this Court granting it. The only relief to wliieh the plain­
tiffs ean be entitled is a conveyance of the |>ro|ierty, or a eom- 
peiisation in lieu of it. But tin- right to the compensation 
dues not (h'|H‘iiil upon the ability of the Committee to pay it. 
If there is anything in the nature or extent of the property of 
the lunatic which this Court should think it desirable to know 
for its guidance in directing the Committee as to their dis- 
posal of the estate, in ease the plaintiff’s right to compensa­
tion should lie i-staldished, it nm by its otthrrs get the re- 
ipiisite information. In Franc in v. I17</z#7/(I), the bill was 
for the same purpose as this, lint brought against a man and 
his wife. There was an interrogatory addressed to the wife 
whether she had not se|Nirute moneys and pro|ierty of her own 
to a considerably larger amount than the purchase money, or 
to wine and what amount. The demurrer to this alleging as 
a ground that the bill mmle no wise entitling the plaintiff to 
such diseovery. The Vice < hancellor says—“ It is admitted 
that if a similar interrogatory had lieen address<Nl to the bus- 
kind as to his property, or any other party against whom a 
specific performance was sought, such an inquisition into the 
eireuinstallées of the defendant wouhl not have lieen permitted. 
Is it then a pro|ier question with regard to the Feme Covert?” 
Here the defendants admit they have pmjicrty enough to pay 
the mortgage. -Sr also Hood v. Ilitchiin/* (-); Kenneth/ v. 
Dmlnhn (3).

It would, I think, beu monstrous pro|>osition to put for­
ward, that if this defendant bail not lieen afflicted as lie is, 
but had remained sane, ami this bill hail lieen tiled against 
(1) 1 Maddwk, 258. (2) 3 Benvnn, 504. (3) (1805] 1 Ch. 334.
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Mil1, 11*
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Iiim, lie idimild lie Hilijeeleil to nil thin inquiry us to hie private 1 !HIN. 
affairs anil their mmiagemeiit. Why should this Committee Ooihkx ash 
l«' oliligisl for their stewardship to them' plaintiffs
simple lieenuse thee elaim to Iw

, McOlVKRV.
ntitled to a conveyance of a „

BaRKKK. < . J
pirn* of the projierty in |iuynient of a debt?

The defendant’s motion to set aside the order setting 
down the exceptions for argument will lie dismissed.

Plie first four exceptions will lie allowed and the others 
overruled.

The defendants to have twenty days after service of the 
order herein as to the exceptions in which to file amended 
answer.

As each party has succeeded in part, there will lie no 
order as to costs, as to the defendant’s motion or the ex­
ceptions.

put for­
es he is, 
against 

Dh. 334.

29
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1908. BOYNE v. BOYNE.
April il.

Life Insurance—Will - Life Insurance Ad. ■’> Ed, VII. ( 190ô), 
Chap. 4—Ke-apjHidUniment—Election llequest in nature of 
Specijic Leyncf/.

H. died in 11W)7, having made a will in 11105, by which lie left, 
among other legacies, one for $1100 to his wife, the defend­
ant in this suit. It. had insured his life some years previous 
to 1U05 for $1500, the policy being made payable to Ins wife. 
In Ins will It. created a fund for the payment of the several 
legacies, and included as part of this fund the policy for 
$1500 above mentioned.

Held, that this provision in the will did not operate as a reappor- 
tionment of the insurance money as regards this policy for 
$1500, under the New Brunswick Life Insurance Act, 5 Ed. 
VII, (’hap. 4, Sec. 13; and that, the proceeds of the same are 
payable to the defendant as sole beneficiary thereunder.

Held, that the widow was not bound to make an election, and 
that she was entitled to he paid the legacy for $1100.

Held, that in case the fund created by the will is insufficient, 
then tlie specific legatc»es are entitled to rank for any unpaid 
balance upon the general estate.

This is a special case stated for the opinion of the ( otirt 
on the following four questions :—

1. lias the said will made any disposition of the said 
Policy No. IttIMKMl in the mutual Life Insurance ( ’ompany, 
or varied or altered the ap|H>rtionment of the same, or is the 
same |iayahle to Agnes K. Boyne ?

2. If the said will has made a disposition of the same, 
are the proceeds to lie apportioned between the said defend­
ant and the son and daughter of the said deceased, or to lie

** d generally to the pmiient of the legacies?
If the will has made no dis|iosition of said |ioliey, 

is the defendant put to an election, or is she entitled to the 
legacy also?

4. In dise the fund designated is not sufficient to |Miy

54
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the specified legacies, are the sanu- entitled to rank for any 1008. 
iui|Hti<l I hi lance upon the remainder of the estate ?

II. A. McKeoien, K.V., for the plaintiffs.

II’. Walmn Allen, K.C., for the defendant.

11MI8. April 21. Barker, C. J.

Hpeeial ease stated for the opinion of the Court.

The plaintiffs are the executors of one Gordon Boyne, 
who died on the lôth Pecvmlicr, 1007, having made a will 
dated February 17th, 1005. He left him surviving his wife 
the above named defendant, and one sc n and one daughter.
Sane years previous to the date of his will Boyne had insured 
his life in the Mutual Life Insurance Co. of New York, by 
I'obey No. 1800811 for the sum of 81500, which by the 
terms of the policy was " to the defendant his
wife. At the time of Bovne’s death there was clue on this 
|«liey 81310, after deducting a small sum which had been 
Imrrowcd on the policy from the Coni|Hiny. This sum has 
Iwcn paid to the executors, who hold it subject to the direc­
tion of this Court. The testator had "icr insurance on his 
life for 81000 with the Kcpiitnhlc of New York, and at the 
time the will was nuidc he had some 81800 on dc|msit at in­
terest in the Bank of New Brunswick in the name of himself 
and wife. At the date of his death, however, the sum hud 
Leu reduced to $58.40. The testator by bis will gave a 
legacy of $11011 to his wife, $500 to his son, $500 to his 
daughter and $500 to all adopted son. The legacies alto­
gether, including those I have just mentioned, and a nmnlier 
of small amounts given to strangers and charities, umounted 
to $8275, and the testator nuidc the following provision as to 
their payment :—“ All of the aforegoing liec|iiivta to Is1 |uiid 
•ait of tin- follow ing insuranc e on my life and cash on dc|meit 
in Link.

“ Policy No. 204755 in the Kipiitahlc Life Assurance 
Sieiety of New York for (.hie Thousand Huilais, $1000.110.

Hakkkk, C. J

VOI. 4. N.ILK.H i
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“Policy No. 133331 1 in the Multml Life Insurance 
( 'ompuny of New York for One Thousand Five Ilumlml 
Dollars, #1000.00.

“ Cash on dcjiosit Hank of New Brunswick at 3 say, 
JU300.00.”

The remainder of the estate consists of another policy 
in the Mutual Life for $1000 and a legacy of about #1440 
coining from Boyne’s father’s estate, and payable on the death 
of his mother.

The principal jHiint involved is what effect if any, the 
will has had as to the disjiosal of the money payable on the 
$1000 policy in the Mutual Life of New York. The plaint­
iffs* contention is that by the terms of the will the widow has 
lost all lienctit under the policy as the sole lieiietieiarv men­
tioned in it, except what she may derive as a legatee, in eom- 
nion with the other legatees, from the fund created by the 
moneys derived from this policy and the other moneys making 
up the fund of $3H00 mentioned in the will. Failing this the 
plaintiffs contend that the will operated as a re-apportionment 
of the policy moneys lietween the wife and children of the 
testator under the provisions of the Act of Assembly, 5 
Kdward XML Chap. 4 (130Ô) known as the Life Insurance 
Act. As a third contention the plaintiffs say that if the de­
fendant is entitled to the sole benefit of the policy, she s put 
to her election whether she will take tin; benefit of the legacy 
or the benefit of the policy.

It is not disputed that, except for the will, the |Hilicy 
moneys in question by law belonged to the defendant who is 
the sole lienefieiury mentioned in tin1 |M>licy, and the only 
jierson for whose lienctit the policy was originally effected. 
Sift ion \'i of the Insurance Act distinctly provides that in 
such a case (there having liecn no re-ap|>ortionmeiit of the 
money during the assured’s life) the money |myahlc under the 
contract shall not Ik* subject to the control of the assured, or 
of his creditors or form part of his estate when the insurance 
money Unnhiics payable. This money therefore lielongcd als- 
solutely to the wife, under the contract of insurance, by oper-
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ation of law, ami not in any way under the will. Section 15 
of tliis Act gives to the assured a power, subject to certain 
limitations, by a written instrument during his life or by his 
la>t will and testament, to re-adjust and change the disusi­
n'm of such insurance moneys. In order to secure that 
object, so as to accomplish what the Legislature had in view 
in these sections of the Act, that is to secure such insurance 
moneys for tin1 benefit of wives and children, possible Inmic- 
fieiaries arc bv the Act divided into two classes known as 
“ Preferred licnetieiaries” and “Ordinary lienetieiaries.” 
The first includes htislstnd, wife, children, grandchildren and 
ii ‘ r of the assured. All others arc included in the other 
class, and we find that by s. s. 2 of see. 15 the assured in 
this ease, while by his will lie might have included his 
children with his wife (they I icing of the same class) in a re- 
appi lit, he could not have diverted all the moneys to
a person of a different class or to the assured himself or to 
his estate. So that it was never eoni|>etcnt for the assured, 
either by his will or by an instrument executed and ojierative 
during his life, to have, without the consent of the lieiietieiary, 
diverted the lienetit of the insurance to himself or to his estate, 
so as to deprive the lieneficiary of all licneffts under the policy. 
The assured was therefore precluded from including in any 
re-apportionment anv of these seventeen legatees except his 
children. None of the others were “ Preferred l>cnetieiarics.,, 
It seems to me int|>ossihle to sup]>osc that by the direction in 
the will which I have quoted, the testator had any idea or 
intention of making any readjustment of this jiolicy money. 
The fact that he would thereby lie attempting to make a 
|«ilicy for #1000 pay the licnetieiaries #2100 seems an answer 
to any such suggestion, lie did have in his mind the creation 
of a fund from the proceeds of these two policies and the cash 
in the Hank of New Brunswick, out of which primarily these 
legacies were to be paid by the executors, and which, as the 
fund then stood, would have left a surplus of $525 in the 
hanils of the executors as estate assets. He made no gift 
or dis|Misal of this |iurticular insurance money ; the legacies

1908.

IIA It KK.lt (’. J.

4870
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1908. were us much |>nvul>le out of the cash in the Hunk of New 
iiotne ltriinswick us by the insuranoe moneys, uml there seems no

V. *
hqvnk. more reason for holding that the mere direction to pay these 

Bahkkk. c. J. legacies out of the fund derived from these three sources, 
operated as a re-adjustment of this insurance money, than 
there is for holding that it created a trust in favour of the 
wife and children as to the insurance moneys arising from the 
Ktpiitable policy for $1000. There was really no intention 
of doing either. In mv opinion the défendent as sole bene­
ficiary under the Mutual Life policy is entitled to In* paid the 
$131(1 due thereon.

The plaintiffs contend that in that event the defendant 
must lie put to her election as to the policy and the legacy of 
$1100. Though the doctrine of election is somewhat refined 
and not always easy of application, I do not think that this 
is a mse within the principle. In such eases there is always 
a dis|H>sition by the testator of projierty which lielongs to 
some one else, and which would of course he defeated unless 
confirmed by the real owner. It has therefore liccn held that 
in such a ease, if the real owner himself took a benefit under 
the will he must accept the will in its entirety, and he was 
put to his election whether he would retain his own property 
and defeat the attempted disjnisal of it bv the testator, or 
accept the lienefit given him by the will and carry out the 
t«-stator’s intentions. See Cooper v. Cooper (1)

In all these cases, as Lord Uomilly says in Box v. Barrett, 
(*2) there must be some dispositi * icrty the testator has 
no right to dis|s se of. As 1 have already pointed out this 
|M>liey nor the money secured by it, is in any way disposed of 
or attempted to lie disposed of by this will. It is true that 
the testator seems to have erroneously considered that at his 
death these moneys would form part of his estate available 
for the payment of the legacies mentioned in his will, includ­
ing the one to his wife, but that does not make a case of 
election. There is no attempted <lis|sisal of these policy 
moneys to be ratified, beoiuse none has been made. There 

(1) L. R. 7 H. of L. 63. (2) L. R. 3 Eq. 244.

1285



[VOL.

of New 
teems no
«y these 
sources, 
ey, than 
r of the 
from the 
iitention 
île bcne- 
paid the

efemhuit 
legnev of 
t refilled 
tlmt this 
s always 
longs to 
<1 unless 
licld that 
lit uniler 
I he was 
pniperty 
tutor, or 
out the

Iti melt, 
tutor has 
out this 

q Wised of 
rue that 
int at his 
iivuilulile 
, indud- 
a ease of 
e policy 

There

iv.] NEW ItltVNHWK'K EQUITY REPORTS. 53

is no donee of the ]>oliey to lie disup|>oiiited, and there is no 1008. 
one claiming it under the will. This 1 think is not a case for hotsk 

election. Botm.

The only other question raised is whether these legatees Ban*"*, 
having exhausted the fund out of which the will directs them 
to Is1 paid, ran claim on the general peroonal estate for the 
deficiency. I think they ran. This fund is not given to the 
legatees or any of them. It goes into the lianils of the ex­
ecutors, subject to the |«iyment of debts, ns a fund in course 
of administering the estate, to lie primarily appropriated to 
the payment of these |iecuniary legacies. In William* on 
Kxrruton it is thus laid down—“ Hut where a legacy is lie- 
i|iutitlied out of a debt, it will not, generally s|ieaking, lie a 
regular sjiecifie legacy Imt a liequest, in the nature of a 
s|iecifio legacy, according to the distinction already stated, 
with regard to legacies out of a |mrtieular stock. Such 
legacies, therefore, are in one sense only specific, viz. that 
against all other general legators they have a precedency of 
|«ivnieot out of the debt or security, hut in another sense they 
an. general, since if the debt lie not in existence at the testa­
tor’s death, or if it lie insufficient to |iay the legacies, the 
ligatir will Ik- entitled to satisfaction out of the general estate 
of the testator.” Fowler V. WVIouyliby (1). Pay<l v.
Hunt (2).

The questions stated for the opinion of the Court are as 
follows :—

1. Has the said will made any <lis|*isitioii of the saiil 
l’olicy No. 1399311 in the Mutual Life Insurance Conqinny 
or varied or altered the np|Mirtioiinient of the same, or is the 
same payable to Agios E. Bovne?

Answer. It is payable to Agnes E. Boyne.
Any answer to the second question is unnecessary by 

reason of the answer to the first.
3. If the will has made no disposition of said policy, is 

the I lefendant put to an election, or is she entitled to the 
legacy also ?

(1) 2 8. & S. 354.1. (2) 8 Jur. N. 8. 806.
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1908. Answer. She is nut put to elution mill in entitled to
iiovnk the legary.
Biivnk. 4, |n ease the fund di signated is not snitieient to [my

Hakkkii. i . J. |he h|Ksitieil legneies, are the same entitled to nuik for any 
unpaid lialanee upon the remainder of the estate'!

Answer. Yes.
Then- will lie a deelanition accordingly.
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CUMMINGS v. GIBSON kt al. 11K)8.
May 19

Demurrer—MultifarioutinesH—Conrenienee of Partie».

(J. «lied in 1002 leaving a will by which his property was be­
queathed to his eight children, with a small annuity to his

This suit is brought to compel tin* cancellation of a mortgage 
given by the Plaintiff to G., and the reconveyance to the 
Plaintiff of a certain life insurance policy and other property, 
which were held by G. to secure certain monies advanced by 
G. t«i the Plaintiff : and also to compel t he conveyance of two 
lots of land which the Plaintiff claims he purchased from G. 
under an agreement that G. was to give him the deed for them 
whenever he demanded it.

Ilelit, overruling the demurrer, that it was by no means certain 
that the Defendants were not all necessary or proper part ies, 
in regard to all the causes of action set out in the hill, or that 
they did not all have a common interest in them ; hut if that 
were not so, there are no special circumstances in this case 
which render it either difficult or impossible to deal fully and 
properly with all the causes of action, without causing incon­
venience to anyone, and therefore any discretion which this 
Court has, should he exercised in favour of continuing the 
suit in its present form.

The facts fully appear in the judgment of the Court.

Peter Hughe*» for the plaintiff.

I>. McLeod 17hit for the defendants.

1008. May 10. Bark Kit, V. J.

This is a demurrer to the hill for nmltifariousness.

It apjiears by the hill that in October, 1887, the plaintiff 
Imrmwed some $0000 or $0000 from one Win. (îilison for 
which he gave a chattel mortgage as a security, and also a 
mortgage on two lots of land. Some three or four years later 
tlie plaintiff 1 sir rowed from ( iihxm a further sum of $200.08, 
mill to secure its re|niynient the plaintiff and his wife con­
veyed what is known as the Moore and Dickenson lots to 
Cilieon. Though this cuuveyauoe is an alisoltite one, the hill
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1908. alleges that it was in fact made only by way of security 
Cvmmros for tile loan. At the same time, anil as an additional security 

oowns kt au. the |)laintiff assigneil a |mi<l up life |ailicy of insurance for 
Hark us. c. J. $218. The hill gow on to allege that in addition to various 

(Kiyments in cash and by the delivery of goods and produce 
on account of these hams, Gibson received some #1100 for the 
Moore lot and one of the other lots which he sold, and that 
in this way he has lieen more than paid what is due him on 
the hams, and that he is therefore entitled to have the mort­
gage cancelled, and the life policy and the other property re­
maining undis|Mjsed of, reconveyed to him. Giliaon died in 
February, 1902, leaving a will by which, with the exception 
of a small annual allowance secured to his widow, he gave all 
his property of every kind to his eight children, who together 
with the executors of the estate have I teen made defendants 
in this suit. This is what I may call the first cause of action.

The bill then goes on to allege that in Nov. 1880 
the plaintiff purchased from Gilison two lots of land known 
as the Griffiths lots for $000, and that at the time he paid 
$800 on account of the price ami on the 21st May, 1888, he 
paid the fadance, but tlmt at his request the conveyance was 
not made at the time hut that it was to Ik- made whenever he 
requested it. Gilison however refused to make any convey­
ance, and this bill is tiled to minitel a conveyance of these 
lots. This is the second cause of action, and the ground of 
demurrer is that these defendants cannot, or at least ought 
not, to lie joined in one suit as they are not interested in the 
result as to faith causes of action. 1 am by no means sure 
that the executors are not neiessary parties in faith cases. 
They arc the persona who now represent the payments, to 
whom anv fadance of the loans which may be found due will 
lie payable, and they have an interest in the contract as to the 
Griffiths lots for it is their testator’s contract which it is sought 
to enforce. A |»irt however from all this, there is but one 
plaintiff here and it is a question of discretion in the Court, 
to lie determined iquin considerations of convenience in refer­
ence to the circumstances of this |wrticular case, whether or
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not the mutters in controversy can lie properly disposed ami 1908. 
ilialt with in the one suit. Cummism

OnmpbeU v. Murkily (1); (hate* v. Ltyui'il (2). oibsow kt au

In the latter case Sir (ieo. Jessell, M. K. says that the l,1RxK*. c. J. 
ipiestion is, according to Poinlon v. Pointon (li) whether the 
varions subjects as to which relief is sought an-such as, if fit 
for discussion, can lie pro|>erly dealt with in one suit. I am 
altogether uiuihle to see any reason why this cannot lie dime 
here. No one run Ik1 inconvenienced by such a course, anil 
to coni|iel these [serties to carry on two suits where one 
answers every pur|s>se would lie to cause unnecessary expense 
without doing anv |>cracm any Is'iicfit.

The demurrer must Ik- overruled with costs.

(1) 1 M. & C. 810. (2) 1,. R. 19 Ei!. 56.
(3) L. U. 12 E11. 647.
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HARRIS et ai. v. SUMNER kt al.

K.rh ihifion .IHHociution— Incorporation —Objecté— Property—Or­
iginal Capital Stock—Sale of Stock—Discretion of Directorh 
—Confirmation by Company—Form of Hitt.

At a meeting of the Directors of an Exhibition Association, a 
large number of shares of the original capital stock of the 
Company xvere ulloteil to the Secretary of the Company at 
par, lie having subscribed for them : and immediately after­
wards he disposed of a number of these shares at par to the 
Directors themselves individually, in varying amounts.

It was established in evidence that the transaction was for the 
purpose of retaining control of the Company, in order that 
it might be carried on for the purposes for which it was or­
ganized. It was also established that the plaintiff had pre­
viously purchased a large number of shares, for many of 
which he had paid a premium.

He!it, that this allotment of shares by the Directors was not ille­
gal, as the transaction was bona title, and not ultra Viren of 
the Corporation itself ; that the l>i rectors were acting within 
their powers when they exercised their discretion, and in 
the interest of the whole body of shareholders sold shares at 
par which might have brought a premium.

Held, that as no fraud had been shown, and relief was sought only 
fop tie- Company, the bill should have been tiled In the name 
of the Company itself.

Hill to set aside a certain transfer of stock of the Mono- 
ton Exhibition Association Company to David I. Welch, 
one of the defendants, or for a declaration that the holders of 
this stock hold it in trust for the t'oui|mny.

./. />. Ilmen, A. (1., and F. It. Taylor, for the plain­
tiffs.

.1/. (i. Tril, K. V., and David I. Welch for the defend­
ants.

The Moncton Exhibition Association Company was 
organized in 19015, for the piir|sise of establishing a perma- 
nent exhibition at that place. The amount of capital stock of 
the eoiii|Ntuy was fixed at $10,000, divided into 1,000 shares, 
and some six hundred shares were suliscrilied for, of which
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the prwent plaintiff t<M»k two. Rml estate waa acquired 1008.
Iiv the comjiany for exhibition purposes. In 1007, owing to Harkis kt al 
varions circumstances, that real estate became greatlv in- svmnkh 
creased in value, and the plaintiff immediately set alnnit to 
acquire stock, and at the time the bill was tiled had he­
roine the owner of one hundred and eighty-eight shares, 
most of them bought at a premium. The ap)»arent object 
of the plaintiff was to secure ei * of the eoiiqinny, with 
a view to the sale of the real estate for the benefit of the 
shareholders. In May, 1007, the secretary of the company, 
one of the defem" v subscrib'd for and took at par the 
four hundred ami seven shares of the capital stork which had 
never l>ccn disposed of, and immediately after the ratification 
of this sale by the directors, he sold the most of these shares 
to them in varying amounts. The plaintiff claims that the 
dis|H»sal of the stork in this way was illegal and ultra dre* ; 
that this stock must be regarded as new stork, and not as 
original < ’ stock ; that the secretary of the company
acted with the knowledge and on behalf of the directors ; 
and that the directors hold this stork in trust for the benefit 
of the company.

Argument was heard March 31, It MIS.

F. J{. Taylor for the plaintiffs :—The defendant Com- 
I«any is not a public wrjMiration, but purely a commercial 
one. The directors are trustees for the shareholders, and 
stand in a fiduciary ea|>aeity. Directors must act hona fide, 
and not for |htsoimI gain. There must l>e no fraud, l'lain- 
tiff’s object in buying slum's cannot enter into thin ease in 
any way. The stock purchased by David I. Welch, and 
subsequently transferred to the directors, is new stock and 
must lie treated as such in its allotment, and the plaintiff had 
I right, as one of the original shareholders, to his progsirtion 
of this stock divided pro rata. Martin v. (lib*on (1); Punt 
v. Simond* (2); Perdrai v. Wright (3); York d* North

(1 ) 10 Ont. w. R , 8(1. (2) (1903) 2 Chan. 606.
(3) (1902) 2 Chan. 421.

5
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1908. .WilliamI Railway Company v. Hudnon (1); Parker v.
Hammi» rr al Mr Km na C2); Panhard v. Panhard (3); Imperial Mercantile 

hvmskii Crrtlit Amoeiation v. Coleman (4).
KT Al.. ' 7

-V. (V. JW, K. for the defendants :—The defendant 
< '<iiii|«inv is a publie one, organized in tlie interests of tlie 
general publie, and not with the ho|>e of gain. The Com- 
|»my muhl only buy and sell retd estate for the |iur|Miees for 
which it was organizi-d. Direvtors have discretion to allot 
stia-k as they will, if acting bona fide. Directors art1 trustees 
for the ( 'ompany, not for individual shareholders. No rights 
are taken away from the plaintiff, and he stands in as gissl 
a jsisitioii as he did liefore this transfer. The ('oni|wny is 
the pro|s r plaintiff in a suit of this nature, and the hill should 
show why the plaintiff brought suit in his own name, and 
not in the name of the Company. Fraud is alliged, and if 
the plaintiff’s hill is dismissed, the defendants are entitled to 
costs. Hr ftarte Penney (5) ; Wider V. Dexter (0); Rr 
Dindon <(• (hlonial Finance Corporation, Ltd. (7); Punt v. 
Rimond* (8); Martin v. Oibnon (9); Pereira! v. Wriyht (10); 
Font v. JIarbottle (11); Mosley r. A Mon (12); Hamilton v. 
Desjardin (13); Holland V. Raker (1-1); Forth West Trans­
portation (\nnpany, LUI. v. Realty (15).

./. D. Ilazen, A. (i., for the plaintiffs, in reply :—The 
suit is pro|s-rlv brought by the plaintiff. The Vom|»my is 
not a publie one, or of un eleemosynary character. Minority 
of shareholders have rights which majority cannot override. 
Stock in ipiestion must Is- reganhsl as new stock, and entirely 
separate from the original capital steak. Directors ui-ted in

(1) 16 Bear. 485.
(2) L. It. 10 Ch. App 116.
i»i (iuoi>2ni. h. ids.
141 6 K A I. App. 1*1.
16) 8 ('hail. 446.
(6) I10U2) App. C. 474.
(7) 77 L. T. 146.
(Ml HUH, 2 Chan. 6U6.

(t»| 10 Ont. W. K. 66 
(10) (1002)2 Clrnn. 421. 
{Ill 2 Hais-461.
(121 1 Philips, 70(1.
(13) 1 (Irani's Ch. K. 1.
(14) 3 liars, 68.
115) 12 App. C. 580.
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their own interwt*, nml not in the interest* of the Coni|xmy. 1908. 
Minier v. Hooper’» Trleipaph 11 ink* (1); J Hitler v. Dexter (2). IIahsis kt ai.

St’MNKK
1908. May 19. Marker, C. J. *Lil-

Hahkkh. V. J.

“The Moneton Kxhiliition Aswx-intion Company, 
l.imitiil,” one of the defendant*, wa* inmr|xirated by an 
Act of the I'rovineial législature in 19011, (:! Kd. VII. 
* 'hap. 87) with a capital of #10,(MHI, divided into 1,IMHI 
slianv of #10 meh. It* object* are *|ieeitienllv set forth in 
Sec. :i of the Act ; lint *|Hiiking generally, it wa* ineor|xir- 
alid at the instance of a large nninlxT of the wealthiest and 
most influential resident* of Moncton, for the |inr|*i*e of es­
tablishing a |wrnianent exhibition plaie. In on 1er to
aemmplish that object, the ('oni|»inv was authorized to 
acipiirc property, erect buildings, hold exhibitions, award 
prizes and do sueli < as are usual in the management of 
matters of this kind. Nine provisional dim-tor* were named 
in the Act for the pnr|xise of organizing the Company, but 
the permanent Ismrd was to is insist of five memlierx (a 
majority of whom were mpiiml to lx- residents of Moneton) 
elected fnnii the mendient of the Coni|auiy, and a further 
uunilx-r not exceeding fifteen, to !*• ehosen from the liiemlxTs 
by the five members of the I man! first elected. It was pro- 
videil by the Act that the selection of these fifteen memliers 
was to lw made, so that, as far as |xis*ililc, the prim-nail 
branches of tnnle, eommem1 and agriculture, should lie re­
presented at the IwNinl. . At present the Ismrd consists of 
fifteen mcmlx-rs, all of whom have been joined with tlicCom- 
p'un as defendants in this suit. After the Com|«uiy had 
Issai organiwil the directors pna-eedid to the sclci-tion of a 
suitable pni|xTty for their pur|*i*e. Severn I site* were ex­
amined, but the dim-tors finally settled upon the present one 
a- lining in all re-|xs ts the must desindde. It comprise*iilxiut
thirty-one acres within a mile of the lentnil jairt of Mi.... ton;
it is well dniined ; it is in the immediate vicinity of the Intcr-

(II 0 Cli. App. 850. (21 (1002) App. C. 474.

9
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WON. colonial Uailwiiv, whose tracks can at a moderate cost In* laid 
Hakkih kt u.to the exhibition grounds, so that live stock intended for ex- 

svmnkk hihition can he conveyed direct to the buildings. The (’om- 
itAKKKK c i |Mll,.v purchased the pro|>erty for $4,1100, and by their 

financial statement for the year ending with March, 11107, 
there had l>een ex|H*nded on the nice track, erection of stables 
and other ex|N>nses in improving the ground and fencing it, 
the stun of $7,400.41. No buildings for exhibition purposi-s 
have as yet lieen erected, though I understand plans have 
h:-en made for the purpose. The projierty is subject to a 
mortgage for #0,000, for money borrowed to pay the pur­
chase money, and for improvements.

This Association was actively promoted by the defendant, 
Mr. 1). I. Welch, a prominent mendier of the Moncton bar, 
who has resided in Unit city for many years and taken an 
active interest in its advancement. There are probably 
differences of opinion in reference to the advantages to In- 
derived from exhibitions to be held annually or at stated 
intervals. They are i-ertainly most common throughout the 
Dominion, and Imtli ( iovernments and Municipalities are con­
tinually recognizing their utility and their publie character 
by sulistautial money grants made in their aid. What the 
plaintiff’s view on this subject is I do not know, but Mr. 
Welch and the directors co-operating with him entertain 
very divided opinions that such au Association, pro|ierly 
sup|Mirted, while it might not and prolmbly would not bring 
any direct return to the shareholders in the way of dividends, 
would Ik* of immense advantage to the city generally. Act­
ing on this view they p re pareil a stock list, solicited suli- 
seriptions, sclt-cted the site, secured the property and gave 
their time and laUnir gratuitously to the work, so far as it 
has progressiil. Some five hundred and ninety-three shares 
were suliscrilied for by upwards of one hundred persons, 
in various amounts from one share up to fifty. Of these 
the plaintiff tiMik two shares, and aci-onling to the list of 
shareholders submitted to the annual meeting in May, 1007, 
the defendants then held in all one hundred and ninety-five
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shares. From 1904 up'to Juno, UNIT, tlioro wax no ninterinl 1908. 
change in tlio holding, now shareholders did not ooine for- Hahkk kt *i. 
waril. Tile plaintiff wx-ms to have a<x|tiiixxl sovou shares SIMM» 
«luring that period. Suoli was the ixmdition of mattors in tin-

e H IKK KH, I • J.
•nrly |Kirt of UH)<, wlivn tin* 1 Kimiuioii (fovcriiiiient mijiiiml 
a tract of some two or throe Inuulml ai-ros of luml adjoining 
this exhibition tract, for the purpose of erecting the now 
Intercolonial ear works, and the result was that land in the 
vicinity rapidly advanced in price. According to the 
plaintiff’s evidence the exhibition projierty which had liis-n 
purchasisl wane tlin-e years la-fore for 84,9110, and the im-
..........eats on which were uiiiiii|Hirtaut ill value except for

-nihint, ■ die sjaa-ial pnrjawe for which they wen- intenihsl, had laxxime 
mi l*r, I worth wane sixty or seventy thousand dollars. This is pnils- 
ken au I ably till over estimate, but then* iha-s w-eni to have la-eu a
•nimbly I substantial ndvanix-. Tin- defendants estimate the value at
« to la- I from 8'JII,0IMI to The plaintiff wx-ms to have w-t

statisl I »l«>ut inline liately to pun-hase shares, and bv the 1.7 th July, 
out the ■ I'111"- lie had aixpiiml in all one hundred and eighty-eight
re eon- H shar.-s, nearly all of them at a premium, and some of them 
inraeter I f'ir #’2.i a shun-. At this time four hundred and seven shares 
hat the ■ "f die original nipital st<a-k of the ( 'onijainy had never la-cn 
lilt Mr. ■ sales-rilail for. In May, UNIT, Mr. Welch, who was then 
ntertain ■ ‘"'«I nlways has lax-n, wx-n-tary of the < 'ompeny, subserllaxl the 
mijierly I original suliw-rijition list for this»- four huudred and seven 
it bring I shares, and dejaisitcxl with himw-lf, as reprew-nting Mr. ( 'lark

1-idends, I die treasurer of tliet '.pally, his own elnxpie for #4,0711, la-ing
. Act- I die |air value of the stock. In doing this Mr. Welch nctixl
cil suie I without the knowhxlge of the directors in any wav. lie did 
id gave fl «xinsult, but acted, or at all events profeswxl to act, under 
'ar us it I 11 résolution or bye-law of the Computiy jaiswxl in 19011, 
e shares I ulllorizing the sale of the iiiiissuixl stia-k. The minute 
jierwms, I b«ik of the Coni|iuny had lax-n destroyed by a fire which 
>f thi-sc I '-«ik plaix-in Mr. Welch’s office. At all events it with other 

list of I bilks had never lax-n wx-n since the fire. Hut the fact that 
g, 1907, ■ •ucli II resolution laid lax-n in fact jaissixl was sworn to 
n-ty-five | p-itivelv by Mr. Welch. The xulaaription for these un-
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100S. issued shares khiii became known to tin* plaintiff. He im- 
gjuui «T AI. mediately protested against their Iming so disused of, and 

hcmnek claimed a right as a shareholder to |uirtici|mlv ill any diapoaal
— " . of these shares. His elaim as now put forward, and as put 

Bakkkk, r.J. 1 . . i i ,
forward More the director 8 meeting on tue loti, of July is,
that as a holder of one hundred and eighty-eight shares he 
was alisolutelv entitled to a y«*« rata iiiiiiiImt of these 
four hundred and seven slum’s, or if they were not 
nlloted among the existing shareholders, that they should he 
sold at auction for the lienefit of the <'oui|uiiiv. Mr. Welch, 
ill consci|uemv of the plaintiff's action, eouseuted to suhliiit 
the matter to the Hoard. His ehe<|iic was not presented for 
imymeiit, and the matter mine la-fore the directors ut a meet­
ing held on the lôth July, I'.HIT, at which, according to the 
inimités, the following directors were present, that is the de­
fendants Hell, Kinnenr, Thoni|>snn, Harris, Humphrey, 
Jones, Clark, Met 'nag, MeSweeP**y, Masters, Higgins anil 
Sumner. When the of Welch’s sulieeriptioii for
these silures mine up for discussion, Sciuitur MixSweeiwy rmil 
two letters which the plaintiff had given him for the pur|a>sc. 
t Inly one of these is ini|Hirtant. It is dated July loth. I’.HIT, 
addressed to the directors of tluf Coni|*uiy, and is as follows :

I ,ls
I <"
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I l Im 
I -In
I inli
I Ma
I "f
I -I'M 
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I dire

I W"
I this
l I'hli 

I cert
I i>>i it

I im in 
I Wei

I -U

(ientleinen,—< )n l>ehulf of myself ami other stock­
holders of the above named < Nnii|mny, 1 <lo hereby protest 
against the sale of the treasury stin k of this < 'ompuny in 
any other manner than by first offering it to the present 
stockholders of the ( 'ompuny jtro rata, and in defanlt of their 
accepting their respective allotment the placing of it to public 
coui|»etition by public side. Any other method of the dis- 
|Misitioii of such treasury stock would U- unjust, uneonstitii- 
tit»ua 1 and contrary to the spirit and provisions of the N. B. 
Joint Sttiek ('ompnnies Act, lieing ( Imp. NÔ of the Consoli­
dated Statutes.

Yours rcs|H*etfully,

(■ho. L Haurih.

On India If of myself and other stockholders of the Maritime 
Kxhihition Com|iniiy.
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The minute of the meeting recording the lionrd’s action 1908.
as to this letter and the subscript ion for the shares by Welch Harkis kt ai. 

is as follows :—“Senator McSweeny presented two letters hcmnkr 
from Mr. (icorge h. Harris, which were read to the meetingjtAUKKK j 

and on motion ordered to U* tiled.” “ The secretary reported 
that he had jicrsonally sul>scril>ed four hundred and seven 
shares of the unsold e * stock believing it to he in the 
interests of the Company to do so. It was moved |>y ( apt.
Masters and seconded by W. F. Humphrey that the sale 
of the four hundred and seven shares of the capital 
stock of the Coni|Niny to Mr. Welch lie ratified and con­
tinued, and the officers of the Coni|Niny authorized and 
directed to issue a stock certitimte for the same to him, on 
payment for the stock.” It is therefore plain that in taking 
this action the directors acted with full knowledge of the 
plaintiff's claim and the ground upon which he based it. A 
certificate for the four hundred ami seven shares was then 
ii-Mted to Welch, and at the same meeting, or at all events 
immediately afterwards, the defendants purchased from 
Welch shares as follows:—Sumner ÔU, Senator Me Sweeny 

Kiuueur 10, Clark 10, Bell 10, Mari' 20, Humphrey 
20, doliii II. Harris 10, ( 'ole 10, Masters ô, .loues 10,
Higgins 20 and McCuug 10. For these they (mid pur or at 
the rate of *10 a slum». Mr. Welch states, and in this lie 
h confirmed by all the directors, that it was understood l>e- 
tween them, as a condition of Welch’s sale to them, that they 
should all stand together and hold the property for exhi­
bition purposes and not |H»rmit it to lie sold. This suit was 
commenced a few days later.

The plaintiff has sued on behalf of himself and all other 
shareholders of the Company, and in his bill he alleges that 
the sale of the stock to Welch was not m ule bona and 
that he was acting merely as agent for the directors in the 
transaction, and that it was part of a plan by which they 
procured the stock at |iar, which was far below its value.

. 18 is as follows, “ That the defendants have fraudulently
vol. I. N. It. K. H. .V

2
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1UUN. conspired among themselves, knowing tin* value of «aid 
Hakims kt ai treasury stock to Ik* far more than par, to take it up tliem- 

hvmxkk selves at a price or mini far lens than its real worth, anil 
Hark hr < i tl»t*r«*l>v depriving the Company of the profits they mu hi have 

obtained by the sale of the said stock in the open market, or 
depriving the other shareholders of the benefits they would 
obtain by a pro rata distribution of the said stock among 
themselves at the price of par.” S:*e. 20 alleges that the 
issue of stock was ultra rim* of the dire‘tors and made with­
out any lawful authority from the Coni|Niuy or otherwise, 
and that it was fraudulent and a breach of trust on the part 
of the directors. The bill prays a declaration that the issue 
of the stock to W elch was fraudulent and in excess of the 
|Hiwers of tin* directors, and that the transfers .should lie set 
aside, or that the holders hold them in trust for the Company. 
It will be seen therefore that the plaintiff seeks no relief for 
himself. The only relief asked for is for the Company.

There is no doubt in my mind that the plaintiff’s sole 
object in buying up these shares was to obtain control of the 
Company, with a view to forcing a sale of the projierty for 
tin* pecuniary benefit of himself as a shareholder, quite re­
gardless whether or not the result won hi In* to destroy the 
association, and entirely defeat the pur|Mise and object for 
which it was inmr|>oratod. Si long as it gave no prospect 
of any direct |>oeuiiinry return the value of two shares r<*- 
prcsented his interest in it, and he was willing to leave its 
management to those who were gratuitously giving their time 
and their lalmiir for the pur|>osc. Hut when by a combina­
tion of circumstamvs, in no way brought almut by him, the 
property, according to his estimate, ran up in value from 
aliout $lb(> an acre to $2,000, matters assumed an entirely 
different as|H?et. It is due to the plaintiff to say that he has 
not disguised his object, ami that in mining here In* is not 
asking for favours but demanding rights. It is, however, 
due to the general body of shareholders to say that, so far as 
the evideiKV shows, not one has come forward in sup|>ort of 
this action or of the |»olicv and pur|iose which are at the Imck 
of it.
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I'lte plaint ilT rest# It is claim on two grot me!#, in the 11108, 
first place lie contends as a shareholder, having at the time Harris et ai. 

one hundred and eighty-eight shares, he was entitled as of ^t'ai*** 
right to a pro rata share of this unissued stock, and that the Hahkk^ ( , 
directors had no legal right to withhold them. And in the 
second place he charges the dim-tors ’ in securing
the shares for themselves, and with doing an illegal act in 
disposing of them at pur, when they were worth a premium 
in the open market. The plaintiff has not always put for­
ward his claim in the same terms. In the first place 
he claimed a right to one hundred and eighty-eight shares 
because the directors, or a majority of them, had Urn allowed 
to double their holdings. So strong was he in that view, 
that on going to Boston a day or two after the meeting held 
on the 10th July, lie left a certified cheque for 91880 with 
Welch to |my for these one hundred and eighty-eight 
extra shares at |iar ; and so strongly did he feel on this 
point that he sent a telegram from Boston' to the defend­
ant, .luliii II. Harris, threatening some very dreadful 
things if his demand was not acceded to. The plaintiff 

a lawyer, and I presume conversant with matters 
of this kind, and it does strike me as unusual that 
with his knowledge of this alleged illegality, and his opinion 
as to the fraud alleged to lie wrapped up in this transaction, 
lie should have evinced such a determination to Ik* a partici­
pator in it. Healing with the case as it is now predated, I 
understand that, as a matter of law, it is contended that 
under no circumstances, unless by some s|HH*i:iI authority by 
statute, <1111 director# sell the original shares of a ('oni|iany 
except at the market rate where they are at a premium.
And I also understand it to Ik- argued, that as regards 
these four hundred and seven shares in question, the 
directors were * " i*d to offer to allot them among 
the existing shareholders at a fixed prier, and as to 
those shares not aeerpted they must lie sold at public 
auction. I do not ngrer with either of these1 proposi­
tions. I think there is a distinction which has esniped the

9251
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1 tMIS. plaintitTV attention U'twwn thv original silures of a ( 'oni|mny 
Harki h rr ai. and an added or new issue of st<N*k. Il in true that without 

hvmskr spmal authority original shares eannot In* |iart<*d with at a 
JitKKKK < i discount, hentuse if that were ho in the ease of compromise 

with limited liability the shares would not realize what they 
are ImmiimI to pay, that is the face value in full. That is the 
price the holder pays for the immunity from further liability. 
This would not lie done if they were sold at a discount, and 
the Company would never realize front its shares the capital 
authorized for its operation. Xorth- MW Electric Co. v. 
Hb/xA (1); Ooret/um Hold Mininy Co. v. /toper (*2).

Kut there is no rule that I am aware of which altsolutely 
prevents directors, who represent the Company and have the 
most of its powers, from selling shares where they are at a 
premium, except at that premium. In Udder v. Dexter, (Jl) 
at page 4 SO, Lord Davey says, “I am not aware of any law 
which obliges a company to issue its shares above par be- 
<iiuse they are saleable at a premium in the market. It de- 
jiends <m the circumstances of each ease whether it will Ik* 

priaient or even possible to do so, aial it is a <|ii<*stion for the 
dim-tors to decide.” The same opinion is expressed by the 
Ijords Justi<*es in In re London <V ( hfonial Finn nee Corpor- 
ation (4). It H<*ems to me a mistake to say that these shares 
had any marketable value in tin* proper sense of that term. 
What was it? No one was buying or wishing to buy except 
plaintiff. For his purposes la* was willing to pay all the 
way from par to ÜF'JÔ a share. What premium In'twccn these 
two limits represents the market price? This nine seems to 
me to In* one in which tla* discretion of the directors may well 
Ik* exercised ; and when once tla* silt* is made at |nir, it is not 
competent for a private shareholder to <pie>tion the exercise 
of discretion by the directors. That is a matter In'tween 
them aial the Company. What |sissible difference there 
<iin In* as to tla* right of selling these four hundred mal 
seven shares aial tla* remainder of tla* one thousind

(1) 2»s. <\ It.
(2) ( IHU2) A. C. 125.

Ci) (11*12) A. C. 471. 
(4)77 L. T. Itep. 14H.
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share# previously sold I iiuinot see. The Attorney 
( iviienil alluded to the time that had elapsed between 
11104 and 1907, during wliieli no st<H*k wan issued, hut 
that can have nothing to <lo with tlie |mdut. I admit, that 
as to the issue of new stock that is not the original capital 
stock, there in a different rule. In my opinion the director# 
had a perfmtly good right in the exercise of their dis'Tetion 
to di#|M>sc of the share# to Welch, always supposing the 
transaction was luma fide. As to that the direct evidence is 
all one way, and unless I am to disregard it altogether, my 
finding must Ik* in their favour. It was put forward as a 
strong argument in support of the plaintiff’s allegation in the 
hill as to the want of good faith on tin- defendants’ part, that 
the ( uinpany as a business venture hud not 1k*cii a success ; 
that up to the present time the net pnxreds had not ln-en 
large, and that it would he entirely disregarding all the rules 
by which facts are inferred, to find, first, that Welch, a man 
of moderate means, should as a inert* philanthropic act 
Inirrow $4,00(1 in order to purchase these shares; and second, 
that all tlies* directors should, with the same uns* Ifisli 

r, contribute their money and double their holdings in 
thi- Vti ny with no ex)>ectntion of gain to themselves, 
beyond what might mine to them in common with the citizens 
of Moncton generally. It was said that these defendants 
were shrewd business men, and that it would Ik* most un­
reasonable, after all that had taken place, to infer that they 
had really any other object in view than the money which 
they would make by reason of the enhanced value of the 
Company’s property. 1 recognize the force of this argument, 
but it is not mnclusivc. Of the fifteen defendants, all save 
three gave evidence. In the most unreserved way they all 
swear that they knew nothing of Welch taking the shares 
until after he " scribed for them, that he was in no way 
acting for them, and that they hail nothing whatever to do 
with it until after the sale had been ratified by the directors 
at their meeting on the 15th of July; and that when they 
purchased from Welch, it was with the distinct understand-

09

1908.
Harris kt al 
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Barkkr, C. J.
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1908. ing that the object of tlie Coiii|>anv, that is the vxhil>itiim 
Harris rr al project, should not 1m* sacrificed by a Hale of its pro|K*rtv. It 

hi mnkr was also said that if the plaintiff laid lieen allotted the shares
KT Al.. ( 1 ,

iiakkkr i .1 W*l*<‘*1 *lv «‘lainied, lie would not haven controlling interest.
That is true, but he would have been so much nearer the 
aniunpi.slmicnt of his pur|Hise. It is also said that another 
site was available for exhibition pur|»osos and therefore the 
sale of the '* present property did not necessarily
involve a destruction of the Company itself. The evidence 
shows that there is one other available site, which though not 
nearly so suitable or convenient for exhibition pur|Mises as the 
present, might answer the pnr|Mise. It is, however, common 
knowledge that the difficulties which stand in the way of 
organizing and establishing on a working basis associations 
of this nature are so great, as to render it impossible that a 
second attempt would In* made, or if made, that it would In* 
successful. From supposing that in taking these shares these 
defendants acted bona fitlr for the piir|N>se of preserving the 
Company, and in on 1er to carry out the objects for which it 
was ineor| Minitel I and defeat the plaintiff's efforts in an entirely 

direction, does the transaction nei-essarily Immiiiiic 
fraudulent or illegal, because it may. turn out that at some 
future time the pro|ierty may lie sold, and the defendants de­
rive some Uaiefit from its advanced value, as holders of these 
shares? I think not. Tin directors, in what they did, have 
done nothing which the Coni|iany itself could not have done; 
and if they have Imh*ii guilty of negligence or impro|>er con­
duct in the management of the Company’s affairs, or the dis- 
|Misal of its prjijierty, or have done an net which, as lietweea 
them and the ('omjinny, may Im* voidable, the Coni|iany itself 
can ratify and confirm what the directors have thus done, and 
in such rases the minority of the shareholders must yield to 
the majority. Patrick v. The Km là rr Coat Co. (I)and cases 
there cited.

I take it as settled by numerous authorities that in any 
rase like the present, where there is an ulweiHv of fraud, and

<!) 8N. B. Kq. 871.

135
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where tin* act complained of is not ultra rire* the corjHiration 1008. 
itself, the majority of the shareholders are the only pcrHoiut HAaaw er al 
who can etanplain, provided they are not themselves the 
wrongdoers, ami that any pna-eeding railing the act in hakkkk. r j 
«pu-stion must Ik* in the name of the Coni|Miny itself, unless 
the ( ’onipany refuses to act. bo** v. Jbnrboitle (1); Mosley 
v. A Mon (2); Mc/biu/all v. Hardliner (3). Precisely the 
same rule given in the Cnited Stat<*s. /lam* v. Oakland(4).

In (iray v. Isiei*(ô), at page 10Ô0, * , L. .1., says—
“ It is very ini|H»rtant in on 1er to avoid oppressive litigation 
to adhere to the rule laid down in Mozfrif v. A Mon and 
b'o** v. Ilarhottle, which « lises have always In-en mnsidered 
as settling the law of this Court, that where there is a cor­
porate IhhIv rapalile of tiling a hill for itself, to remver 
pmjierty either fmm its directors or otthvrs, or from any 
other |M*rson, that corporate IhhIv is the pro|H‘r plaintiff, and 
the only pro|»er plaintiff. One object of incor|H>rating IhhIU-s 
of this kind was, in my " to avoid the multiplicity of 
suits which might have arisen, where one slum-holder was 
allowed to tile a hill ou liehalf of himself and a great niunlier 
of other shareholders.” Now the sole object of this hill is 
that the**- shares should Ik* returned to the Coiii|nuiv as |iart 
of its assets, illegally in the hands of the directors. I tut the 
( oiupanv must have the right to say, even if the transaction 
could Ik- regarded as a \ Me one, we will n it, for
it was a beneficial net done in the interest of the whole IhhIv 
of the shareholders. That right cannot U- taken away from 
the shareholders at the will of an individual shareholder bv 
filing a hill and carrying on litigation of his own, in referem-e 
to the Company's affairs, simply because for ’casons |H‘rsonal 
to himself lie happens to differ from everyone else interested. 
llurland v. Earle} ((>).

The Hill must Ik- dismissed with costs.

(1) 2 lUre. mi.
(2) 1 I’h. 71*1
t3) 1 ( him. I). 18.

(4) KM U. S. 4SO.
C» 8c-ii. Ap. mas.

3

5 3

21



XKW IIBUNSW1CK Kljl'ITY lll'.VORTK. [VOI.

1908. MvKENZIE v. Mt-LEOD ki al.

May IV. Mort y aye— Rale nipt ion—Hate of intereet—Tender — Condition 
attached to tender—I)iHclaimer— Conte.

In a mortgage of real estate, the proviso for payment was that 
tht principal should lie paid in ttveeijual annual instalments, 
with interest semi-annually at eight per cent.: and five 
promissory notes with interest at that rate were given.

Held, that in a suit for redemption, when there was no special 
agreement for interest on overdue payments, the mortgagor 
adopting a certain rate higher than the statutory one and 
making payments under it, was hound by that rate so far ns 
payments actually made were concerned, hut was not IniuihI 
as to unmade or future payments, and only the statutory rate 
could lie enforced.

Held, t hat a demand for a discharge of the mortgage and release 
of the debt, accompanying a tender by the mortgagor, made 
the tender a conditional one.

Held, that when the mortgagee hampered and oppressed the 
mortgagor, and obstructed his suit in every possible way, 
the mortgagee, while entitled to the genera! vosts of suit, 
would lose the costs of his own unnecessary pleadings, and 
would lie coni|ielled to pay the costs of any such pleadings 
by the mortgagor as were occasioned by his procedure.

If there had been a sufficient and unconditional tender by the 
mortgagor lief ore suit, the mortgagee would have lieen liable 
for the costs of the suit.

Held, that a defendant who answered, and later on filed a dis­
claimer, would lose his costs, even if successful in having the 
bill dismissed as against him.

Hill filed for mlemption. This wits a motion to con­
firm the referee’s rejsirt, which had lieen excepted to by the 
defendants. The facts fully appear in the judgment of the 
Court.

.1/. S. t’ockbnrn, K. < '., and ./. IT. Iliehardeon, for the 
plaintiff.

M. Mae Monaffle t k. ( ’., for the defendants.

Argument was heard April ‘21, 1ÎH1N.

.1/. MacMonagle, K. (’., in support of the exceptions, 
for the defendants:—Referee should have allowed interest at
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right pci' (Tilt, instead of at six on the overdue payments, 1908. 
mid also all the défendante’ expenses, amounting to # lï\,r>f>. McKtsw» 
Jaelnwa v. Richanhmn (1); King v. htith (2). There was 
no good tender, for a tender to be good must be uncon­
ditional, and in this ease there was a condition attached.
Here there was no legal tender, only an offer : 9 ISacon'a 
Abridgement (3) ; ( We on Mortgages (4). Hugh A. McIahhI 
lias disclaimed, and bill should lie dismissed as against him, 
allowing him his costs : Teed v. Carruther» (I») ; l!7/*o« v. 
Hnrnhrnok (II). There has been no misconduct on the part 
of the defendants, and us mortgagees they are entitled to 
their costs: Thoman v. air ran (7).

M. .V. ( («'Miini, K. V., in sup|mrt of the motion, for 
the plaintiff :—Referee was right in calculating interest at six 
|ier cent.,as when there is no special agreement only the statu­
tory rate cm be charged on overdue payments : The People’» 
hew ami l)ri me il Co. v. Omni (8) ; DanielI v. Sinclair (9) ; 
Mnrrliir v. Theriault (10); (bole on Mortgages (11). The 
defendant Hugh A. Meland answered, and afterwards dis­
claimed, and if bill is dismissed against him it should 
Is* without costs : Roberte V. Jlotre (12); Lame v. (Inerette 
(13); Horn v. Kennrily (14); ( bole on Mortgages (IS); l)an. 
(linn. I Mead, and 1‘ract. (10). There was a goisl tender ; 
money was offered, and offer was met with a square refusal. 
Tender was unconditional. The plaintiff has been forced 
into Court to obtain her rights, and it would lie a great in- 
justiiv if she is compelled to pay the defendants’ costs, as 
they have acted wrongfully : areijej v. Slater (17); Drlillin

II) 1 Ei|. N. B. R. 325. 
(2) 1 lii|. N. K. K. 538. 
|3| l*n. .Ill, 316 and 316. 
14) 4th Kil. p. 885
(ft) 2 Y. ,V 0. ( 'll. It. SO.
III) 1 Han. N. It. It. 108. 
Cl 1 K<|. N. It It. 314. 
(8) 18 Can. 8. C. K. 282.

tit) 6 App. Cases 181.
(Ill) 1 E(i. N. It It. 588.
(ID 4th Eil. 8(18.
(12) I Bo. N. H. K. 1311.
(13) 1 Bt|. N. 11. It lilt).
(14) True. N. It. Bq Com an.
(15) 41 h Eil. 732.
(10) 4th Eil. 7(81.

(17) 22 Beav. 314.
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11K)S.
MvKkweik

Bakkkh, ('. .1

[VOL.

v. Hale (1); Br y «on v. I In nti iif/ton (2); liobertn v.
Ulllifimtt (:>) ; A*liworth v. Lord (4); Lirini/xtone v. 
of Xeir Iirunniriek (,">).

MacMonayle, K.C., in reply.

100S. May 10. Haiikkr, C. J.

Redemption Rill.

The mortgage in question was made by one Alexander 
8. McKenzie, the husband of the present plaintiff, to one 
Howard II. McAllister on the 12th November, 1800, to 
secure the sum of #000 and interest. It was assigned on the 
0th March, 1807, to one Hattie F. < lark, wife of Augustus 
T. < 'lark. The < Marks assigned it to the defendant, Mary 
Ann Mcljeod, on the 20th February, 1007, and by various 
conveyances the e juity of redemption became vested in the 
present plaintiff. Her husband died intestate on the 11th 
< >etolier, 1001, leaving three children, who by their separate 
conveyances transferred their interest in the equity of redem- 
tion to the plaintiff. These conveyances are dated respectively 
as follows:—October loth, 1000, March 20th, 1007, anil 
April ôth, 1007. On the 14th March, 1007, a little over a 
month after the mortgage had lieen assigned to the defendant, 
she and her husband gave a notice of sale, under the |x>wer 
contained in the mortgage, to take place on the 21th April. 
On the 4th of April, the plaintiff made a tender of what she 
alleged to Ik* due on the mortgage and expenses, #414 in all. 
This was not accepted. The plaintiff then tiled this bill, and 
mi her application I granted an injunction staying the sale, 
and ordering the #414 to lie paid into Court, where it still 
remains, subject to the order of this Court. That order was 
made April 1 ôth, HI07, and the money was |iaid in on the 
2llth of that month. When the cause came down for hearing

(1) 7 Vvsy 583; IK R.R.C. 602. <3) 4 Hare 128.
(2) 25Grant’s (Mi. R. Vp. Can.ÜBà. (4l .‘to L. K. Ch. I). 545.

(5) » Allen N. H. R. 252.
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I referral it to a Referee to report the amount then due on 
the mortgage, an well an the amount due on the 4th April, 
UNIT, when the alleged tender was made. The Referee hat* 
re|torted that <m the 4th April, 1907, the t*uni of $355.53, 
mid on the 4th February, V.M)8, the sum of $372.07 was due, 
including in both eases a sum of $7 to cover the expenses of 
drawing ami publishing the notiee of sale. In computing the 
amount due, the Referee allowed interest at the rate of 8rj 
as stipulated for in the mortgage until the due date of 
the several instalments, and on overdue principal at the rate 
of 0%. Kxeeptions were filed, ami this matter now 
comes before me on a motion to confirm the Referee’s report. 
The Referee does not seem to have had any evidence liefore 
him, except the commission issued for the examination of Clark 
to shew the payments made while he hud the mortgage. The 
defendants filed an account Indore the Referee bv which they 
claimed, for princi|>al ami interest due February 4th, 1908, 
8.V.I1.10 as against $300.37 ns reported by the Referee, a 
difference of $'2*20.43. The first exception relates to the 
admissuhility of some evidence liefore the Referee, taken 
under the commission, I disposed of that on the argument 
adversely to the defendants. The second exception is as fol­
lows:— “Referee improperly disallowed ' 'b interest 
at the rate of eight per cent, per annum after each instalment 
lieaune due, although evidence is that each |iayment (except 
one) was for interest at 8 |ier annum, by agreement 
after interest was due from time to time.’* The proviso for 
payment jn the mortgage is as follows:—“Provided always 
that if the said Alexander S. McKenzie, his heirs, etc., shall 
and do pay unto the said Howard B. McAllister, his heirs, 
«•te., the full sum of $000 in five equal annual instalments of 
s|uo each, with interest semi-annually thereon at 8% 
as by five promissory notes of even date herewith given.” 
These notes are made payable “with interest semi-annually 
sit 8'/.” It was not denied that interest under a pro­
viso such as this could only lie allowed at the rate of 0'/ 
<mi | my meats overdue as settled by St. John v. llykert
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1008. (1); and The People’h Loan Co. v. ( iront (2); uml follows I 
McKknzik in this Court (prior to the date of thin mortgage) in Hanford 
*k<! Au'* v* H°lrard (•!); unless there wan nome 1 »imling agreement to 

Bakkkh.C. j. *be contrary. There certainly in no such agreement in tin- 
mortgage itself, hut assuming for the sake of argument 
that a sulise<|iient agreement lietween the jwrties could 
1hi made in consideration of forbearance or some other 
good consideration, charging the property with interest 
by way of damages after default, at a rate exceeding the 
statutory rate, has that been done here? The defendants 
set up in their answer that such an agreement was 
made, and the onus of establishing it is on them. I think 
1 may assume that there never was any such agreement 
made, either orally or in writing. If there had been, 
the fact could easily have l>cen proved. Am I to infer it, 
and if so U|xm ' * <? The Referee has simply made a
calculation of the interest on the basis that six per cent, was to 
lie the rate after the due date, and lie has credited |myments 
amounting in all to #.*>00. The defendants dispute not only 
the correctness of the principle upon which this calculation is 
made, inasmuch as 8% instead of (i f/c should have 
liecn allowed, but they also dispute the correctness of 
the amount of the credits, and allege that the #f>00 is too 
much bv #148. 1 have no doubt, whatever, that the $506 is
the correct amount. The receipts, endorsements on the notes, 
and the jxisitivc evidence of (lark all shew it, and it was on 
that basis the defendants themselves arrived at #400 as the 

due when they purchased the mortgage, and which 
they paid for it. 'l'he other point is not so easily dis|x>sed of, 
but after giving the matter careful consideration, 1 have come 
to the conclusion, under the peculiar circumstances of this 
case, that the plaintiff has no just ground of complaint if she 
is held liable for the interest at the higher rate. The plain­
tiff has produced receipts for the eighteen |iavments which 
together make up the #000 credited. The first two are for

(1) 10 Can. 8. C. K. 278. (2) 18 Can. 8. C. R. 262.
13) 1 N. B. Kq. 241.
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the interest due in May and November, 1897, l>efore default, 1908. 
and are unimportant. The third one in tinted June 19th, McKenzik 
I SUS, and is “in full of intcrlnt on mortqaqc to Man 12th. McLkihï

1 * a KT AI ••
1S!)8” All of the other receipts down to that of November ltu<KI,„ , 
12th, 19<M, nine of them, 1 think, are all for interest in 
full to a certain date, or, on account of interest due at a cer­
tain date. The receipt dated Nov. 12th, 1901, which is the 
last in that particular form is as follows:—“Ree’d of J. 1).
McKenzie thirty dollars interest on mortgage to date.” These 
receipts all given by Clark to whom all the payments were 
made. This last $30 made $200 in all, paid up to that time 
specifically for interest, and there had accrued due up to that 
time $200, if the 8f/ were allowed, as it of course 
was. ( )ne of the notes had been overdue then for four years, 
one for three, one for two and one for one, and the remaining 
note fell due on the 12th November, 1901. Now I find it 
difficult to see upon what principle such a payment can be 
rend led. If A voluntarily pays 11 $100 in full for interest 
on a certain mortgage to a certain date, and both parties 
know that the interest is calculated at the rate of 8'/, 
how can it be said that A has not agretd to pay it? He has 
not only agreed to do so, but he has actually done so, and in 
the absence of any mistake of fact or of law—and there is no 
suggestion here of either, there is certainly no evidence of 
either—I think such a payment ought not to be disturbed.

I hat, however, does not necessarily give rise to an inference 
as to future transactions of a similar character, where the 
precise object of the |wyment is not stated. On the 8th 
February, 1904, there was a payment made of $00. Of this 
s 10, according to the terms of the receipt, was for interest 
and $10 on account of principal. On the lfith February,
190.4, $20 was paid on account of intercut, and a similar 
Mini on the ôth July, 190:1. These two with $40 paid 
on the 8th February, 1904, made up the $80 or two year’s 
interest from November 12th, 1901, to November 12th,
1903. I’he last three payments, amounting in all to $210, 
are represented first by a receipt for $00, dated December
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1908. 7tli, 1004, which is said to he ou account of interest ; one is
McKk.nzik for $”>0, dated Decemlier 7th, 100.*», and the last for $100 on

MoLkou account.
KT Al.. . .neither i

Harkku. ( J

By these receipts it may 1h* said the plaintifT has
neither made nor assented to any specific appropriation of the 
money, and she is therefore free to insist upon her legal rights 
as to the statutory rate of interest after November 1*2, 1000. 
To a certain extent this is so. When, however, in the ease 
of a series of transactions like these, lietween mortgagor and 
mortgagee in reference to the same security, and extending 
over a period of ten years, for more than half of which the 
mortgagor was in default, you find them uniformly adopting 
a certain rate for the calculation of their interest, and pay­
ments are made on that basis, and there is no suggestion of 
mistake, the inference is not unnatural, that as to later pay­
ments of interest on the same mortgage, the same rate has 
been agreed to, though the evidence of the fact may not Ik* 
so clear. It is not a necessary inference, but, in the absence 
of evidence to the contrary, it is not, I think, an unreason­
able one. Before this suit was commenced the plaintiff pro­
ceeded to make a tender of the amount due, and in doing so 
her solicitor, on her behalf, in addition to offering the 8414 
tendered, served the defendants with a formal notice signed 
by the plaintiff, in which is shown how the 8414 is arrived 
at. After stating her desire to redeem the property and pay 
all the moneys due on the mortgage, it states thus: “ 1 here­
with and at the same time of the service of this notice u|w»n 
you, tender you the said Hugh A. MeLvod and you the 
said Mary Ann McLeod, with the said money so due there­
on (that is on the mortgage)as follows:—

The amount due on the said mortgage at the date 
of assignment to you, and which amount you
paid for the said assignment.............................. 840Ô 00

Interest oil $400.00 from February 20th, 1007, to
April 5th, 1007, at 8%..........................

Costs of publishing notice of mortgage sale
3 40
4 00

8412 40
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There U n very nmterial difference between the iimoiiiit 111(18. 
line if interest is allowed at 8 '/, and the amount if it MiKknzik 
is allowed at (i . The plaintiff, in serving this McI.kod. 1 . r* ^ KT AI»
notice, was not setting to effect a compromise of some dis-,,utKKK”, j
puted claim. She hail never hail any dealings with the
defendants in reference mortgage at all. She hail all
the receipt» in her possession, she knew exactly what she
had [mid. She knew that the $4(l."> paid by the defendants,
and which she mils “tin- due on the said mortgage
at the date of assignment to yon,” was made up by allowing
interest at the rate of 8'/, and ill order to compute
the amount due at the time of the offer, she adds the
subsequent interest, computed also at 8%. Having the
payments, it was a very simple calculation to arrive at the
a.... nut due for princi|>ul and interest. If it is made up on
a li % basis, the lia la net1 will lie some $80 less than 
what this tender makes it. It is nnreasonnlile to suppose the
plaintiff or her solicitor was willing, without living even
asked to do so, to throw away this sum for no pur|xise 
whatever. I regard it as a deliberate adoption of that 
amount as due, and as strong evidence that the plaintiff 
recognized a liability to |uiy interest at the rate of 8'/, 
and was willing to act ii|miii it. There is another cir- 
cunistance pointing to the same conclusion. In section 4 
of her bill in this suit, the plaintiff sets out tile assignment 
of the mortgage by Clark to the defendant as having been 
Made for the sum of $400, “lieing the amount then due for 
princi|iul and interest under and upon the said mortgage.”
These are not wonls of recital taken from the assignment, 
for they are not there ; they are»the allegations of a 'act hv 
the plaintiff in her bill. In section 12 the notice of the 
tender is set out, and there follows an allegation “that there 
was tendered and offered to the defendants the sum of $414 
of lawful money of Canada, as the amount then due from 
the plaintiff to the defendants under and upon the said 
mortgage, in part recited and referred to in the second para­
graph of this bill, and as the consideration for which the

54
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plaintiff was entitled to have the mortgage cancelled.” 
And in the interrogatories the defendants are asked this 
question in section 4, “Was not the sum of $405 the amount 
then due upon said mortgage, ami if not, what amount was 
then due thereon?”. In an affidavit mai le by the plaintiff’s 
solicitor verifying the hill for the purpose of applying for 
the injunction, he states the particulars of the tender which 
lie made, lie says: “1 then told her” (that is, the defend­
ant, Mary A. McLeod) “that 1 had as solicitor for Martha 
l>. McKenzie, the amount of #412.40 to offer her the said 
Mary Ann McLeod, and the said Hugh McLeod to pay the 
amount as far as 1 could ascertain triad iras due for j.rinci- 
/nt/y interest and costs of advertishuj sale of propertii, and 
that 1 would, etc.” 1 do not wish to lie considered as hold­
ing that a mere tender of a sjiecific sum of money hv a 
mortgagor to a mortgagee as the amount due on the mort­
gage is necessarily evidence against the mortgagor of the 
amount due. The circumstances here are, however, unusual. 
The only question I am now dealing with is whether the 
plaintiff has herself fixed or assented to the appropriation of 
the last three payments to the payment of interest computed 
at the rate of «S'/, as she had done in reference to 
previous |>ayments. In order to demonstrate to the défend­
ants that her tender is sufficient, she undertook to show how 
she makes up the amount then due on the mortgage, and she 
takes as a starting point the #400 paid by them on the *2.1th 
February, 1007, as the amount due at that date, ami she 
adds the subsequent interest made up at 8%. In the 
notice of tender sin* says : “The amount due on this mort­
gage at the date of tin*assignment to you,and which amount 
you |inid for the assignment was #400.” If you eliminate 
the question of mistake, this statement can only lx» true oil 
the theory that the payments in question were made like the 
previous ones in pursuance of an agreement to pay the 
S% interest, which must lx* inferred from the circum­
stances. This, however, has no reference to future trans­
actions, and 1 am disposed to think, notwithstanding that the
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plaintiff charges herself ill the notice of temler with 8% 
after the 25th February, 1907, in milking up the 
amount to be tendered, she is not hound to pay over fi%. 
The amount due for prinei|>Hl and interwt I state as 
follows:—

l*riiici|«d................................................................... $500 00
Interest at 8% from Nov. 12th, 1890, to

February 25th, 1907, 10 years and 105 days, 411 51 
Interest from Feb. 25th, 1907, to 4th April, 1907,

88 days, at 0%............................................... 3 12

#914 03
Deduct pay meats........................................ 500 00

Amount due April 4th, 1907 ................................ #408 03

The amount due on the 4th February, 1908, will lie 
#433.78, made upas follows:—

Principal................................................................... $500 00
Interest at 8% from Nov. 12, 1890, to Feb.

25, 1907, 10 years and 105 days................. 411 51
Interest from Feb. 25, 1907, to Feb. 4, 1908, 344

days, at 0 %..................................................... 28 27

$939 78
Deduct payments........................................  506 00

Amount due on Feb. 4th, 1908.............................. $433 78

As to the charges claimed by the defendants amounting 
in all to #48.55, the referee ullowed two—#3 charged for 
|ire|«ring the notice of sale for publication, ami #4 paid for 
publishing it. These are the amounts charged by the de­
fendants’ solicitor for these services, ami there is no evidence 
that any other services were performed. I think the referee 
was right in rejecting the others. Adding this #7 to the 
alwve Isdances, there was line on all accounts on the 4th of 
April, 1907, when the tender was made, #415.03, and on 
the 4th February, 1908, $440.78.

VOL. 4. N.B.K.R.—8.

_________________________________________

1908.
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I romc now to the question of mists, anil tirât ns to the 
alleged tender. That the plaintiffs’ solicitor, in his interview 
of the -4th April witli the defendants, laid a liana fide intention 
of |wiving them all to which they were entitled under this 
mortgage, there can lie no doubt. He had the money with 
him for the purpose ; he made no objection to the defend­
ants’ own method of making up the account. It is equally 
clear to my mind that they placed every obstacle in the way 
which they could, and that before the suit was commenced, 
as well as afterwards, there seems to me to have been one 
principal object in view—to make this suit as expensive and 
oppressive as jiossible. It is not necessary to inquire whether 
or not, in view of the defendants’ absolute refusal to give 
any information as to their expenses, the tender might not be 
considered sufficient as to amount, because I think it did not 
amount to a legal tender by reason of tile condition attached 
to it. There is no doubt from the evidence, as well as from 
the terms of the notice to which I have already referred, that 
the offer to pay was iiininqinniiil with the condition that the 
release should be given. Mr. Itiehnrdson, who made the 
tender, was asked the following question: “Did you not say 
it was on condition of having that signed” (that is, the dis­
charge), “that you would 'pay the money?” His adswer 
was: “I said hi ebullition of the mortgage lieing dis­
charged 1 wil l pay the money.” This placed the defend­
ants in a position where they were obliged to refuse tile 
monel, because if they accepted it and executed the release, 
the whole matter would lie closed whether the amount was 
correct or not. The case must therefore lie treated as though 
no tender had lieen made. The general doctrine ns to mets 
in cases of this kind is laid down ill Cotterell v. Stratton (1). 
Isml Selbourne there says: “The right of a mortgagee in a 
suit for redemption or foreclosure to his general costs of 
suit, unless he has forfeited them by some inqinqier defence 
or other misconduct, is well established, and does not rest 
upon the exercise of that discretion of the Court, which, in
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litigious causes, is generally not subject to review. The 1908. 
contract lietween mortgagor and mortgagee, as it is under- MvKknkik 

stood in this Court, makes the mortgage a security not onlv m< i,koi«' • i i \i
for |>rinci|ml and interest and such ordinary charges and ex-BAKj~"t, j
|icnses as arc usually provided for by the instrument creating
the security, but also for the costs properly incident to a suit
for foreclosure or redemption. * * * These rights, resting
substantially contract, can only lx* lost or curtailed by
such inequitable conduct on the part of the mortgagee or
trustee as may amount to a violation or culpable neglect of
his duty under the contract. * * * A decree therefore in a
redemption suit which disallows the costs of the mortgagee,
is of right ap|H*alable, and if ap|Kiiled against <1111 only Is*
sup|x>rted by proof of s|>ceial circumstances sufficient to
justify such a departure from the ordinary course of the
( burl. That there may 1h* such circumstances is undeniable,
the question is whether they exist in this ease.” In Cliff v.
Uaihtworth (l), the Vice-Chancellor says : “A mortgagor is 
entitled, like every other man, to Ik* protected against 
litigious and unreasonable conduct.” I shall as briefly as I 
can, give the facts and circumstances which have led me to 
make the order as to costs which I am about to pronounce.
It ap|Hiirs from the evidence and what took pliuv, that the 
defendant, Mrs. McLeod, was very anxious to obtain control 
of this property, and that it was to enable her to accomplish 
this objn't that she purchased this mortgage. She actually 
Imrrowed the money for the pur|»osc, and nemrding to her 
evidence, she paid for ex|>ense in getting the assignments the 
Mini of $2f>. The purchase was certainly not made as an 
investment. The assignment was executed in Colorado on 
the ‘J.itli February, 1907, and it was registered on the 1 .">th 
March, 1907. The plaintiff was in arrear in her pay­
ments; the last • ne, made shortly before the assignment was 
made, only reduced the original loan by nlsmt $100. With­
out notifying the plaintiff of the assignment, or making any 
application to her for payment, or communicating to her

(1) 8Y. A C. Chan. R. Ô08.



84 NEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY REPORTS.

1908.
McKknzik

llAHKKK. <’. J

[VOL.

in any way, the defendants caused a notice of sali- to 
la- |iiihlislii-il in the St. ('rob ( burin- of the 21st of 
February, to take place on the 24th April, one 
month I wing the shorti-st time for a notice of sale reipiireil 
by the mortgage. Si sis in as the plaintiff lenruetl of this she 
consulted with her solicitor, anil she immediately set to work 
to ascertain the amount which the defendants claimed, so that 
it might lw paid. Ikitli the defendants and their solicitor, 
after some delay, alwolntely refused to give any information 
as to the a mount of their claim, not only us to the ainoimt 
iui|»iid for prim-i|Kil and interest, hut also the amount claimed 
for ex|wnses. The answer put in raises defences, which mi 
one attempted to sup|sirt, in addition to the one as to the rate 
of interest. Its unnecesssay length, filled as it is by repeti­
tions, long ^notations and irrelevant matter, I ho|ie the tax­
ing master will not lose sight of in taxation. The defenihints 
then tiled long interrogatories for the plaintiff’s examination. 
Her answer was not even read or used in any way. In order 
to avoid the ex|wnse of issuing a commission to ( 'olonidii tn 
prove by Clark the payments which had I wen made to him, 
and ulmut which there was really no dispute, and the evidence 
of which the defendant had seen and knew all ulmut and hail 
acted ii|mii, the plaintiff gave notice to admit facts. The 
defendants refused to admit, and the commission was issued. 
Then shortly Iwfore the hearing the defendant who hud al- 
readv answered filed a disclaimer and he now asks for his 
costs. There was in reality nothing to dispute ulmut except 
the amount due, and this involved so little room for differ­
ences when once the rate of 8% was conceded, that five 
minutes mnfereni-e should, and, with reasonable men, would 
have settled it. The defenilants’ actions throughout look 
like a deliberate attempt by accumulating costs, so to increase 
the hurt hen ii|mn this plaintiff us to plui-e the redemption of 
her property beyond her reach. If there had I wen a suf­
ficient and unconditional tender, the defendants would have 
I wen saddled with the costs of this litigation, and the money
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which lias been paid into Court would have stop|ied the in- 1908.
lerest, Robert» V. Jeffery» (I), McKknzik

This hill will lie dismissed against the defendant, Hugh A.
McLeod, without costs. The defendant must pay the costs lllKK^T(. t 
of the three overruled exceptions and get the costs of the 
other. The defendant must also |iuy the costs of the plain­
tiff's answer to the defendants' interrogatories and lose the 
insts of this hearing. The cost of the commission will lie 
disposed of by the Clerk. Otherwise she must have her 
general costs of suit. When taxed they will lie added to 
the mortgage Udunee, and the money in Court, so far as it 
will go, will lie used in payment, and the Ixdunce us ascer­
tained by the Clerk, will liear interest at the rate of (1% 
from 20th April, 1007, when the money was paid into Court 
for the defendants’ protection, and which she might have had 
at any time on application.

There will lie the usiuil order as to redemption by pay­
ment of the lialuuce.

(1) 8 L. J. Chan. 137.
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E Alt LE, Trvktkk, Etc., or Lawton v. LAWTON et al.

IVill Construction Fund for Heirs—Time for Distribution— 
Determination of Class—Discretion of Trustees.

L died in 18U1), having made a will in 1808, by which he left all 
his property to two trustees, to hold in trust for the benefit 
of the infant children of two nephews. The trustees were 
to use the income, according to their discretion, for the sup- 
port, maintenance and education of these children, until 
each reached the age of twenty-one years.

The words in the will are,—“and on each child attaining the age 
of twenty-five years, to pay to such child what they consider 
would he his or her share in my estate, dividing the same 
equally bet ween such children living, and the children of any 
deceased child when such payment shall lie made, such pay­
ment t<> be /<- r êHrpea, and not p< r capita, etc.

In 1904, one of the children died .without issue, and in 1906 
another child was horn to one of the nephews. The oldest 
child has now reached the age of twenty-five years.

Held, that the child who had reached the age of twenty-five 
years was entitled to be paid her share of the corpus of the 
estate, which share was to he ascertained by dividing the 
corpus equally among the children then in esse, they being 
the only ones entitled to rank, as the class was then deter­
mined.

Held, that the child horn after the death of the testator, but 
before the time for payment to the oldest child, was entitled 
to rank equally with the other children as the class was no* 
determined until then.

Held, that as the testator had given the trustees full discretion, 
to use the income as they might see tit, for the purposes men­
tioned in the will, the Court would not, in the absence of 
fraud or wrong-doing, interfere or direct them in this respect.

Charles Lawton died at St. John, on the 11th February, 
INI Ml, leaving a will dated February 28th, 1 NUN, by which lie 
appointed the present plaintiff and the late L. J. Almoin ex­
ecutors and trustees of the estate. He dis|H>scd of his pro- 
jHTtv as follows: — “I give, devise and lieqiieith unto my 
executors, hereinafter named, their heirs, executors and admin­
istrators, all my real and |>ersonnl estate, whatsoever and 
wheresoever situate, ii|mui trust, to |wv all my just debts and 
funend ami testamentary ex|ienacs, to pay from time to time, 
so much of the income of my said estate, as they, in their 
discretion, shall see fit, towards the sup|sirt, maintenance
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ami education of the children of my nephews Janies (’lark 1908.
Lawton and Charles Ablxitt Lawton, until tliev shall resiN*et- Kaklk.■ , . , .... Tim 'in . i nivelv arrive at tlie age of twentv-one years, and on each child „ «e 

; n ’ ' Lawton
attaining the age of twenty-five years, to pay to such child, j A^:TON
what they consider would he his or her share in my said KT AU 
estate dividing the same equally lietween such children living, 
and the children of any deceased child when such payment 
-hall lx* made, such payment to Ik* per xtirpex, and not per 
capita, and the children of any deceased child lx*ing entitled 
to the share of their father or mother, as the ease may Ik*, 

and their respective share or shares 1 icing transferred to their 
respective guardians.” At tin* time of Charles Liwton’s 
death his nephew James Clark Liwton had three children 
living—Kliza Kdna, Benjamin and Richard Woofendale.
Ilis nephew Charles Ablxitt Liwton at the same time had 
four children living—Alice, William Barker, Charles Ralph 
and Herlx»rt Clarence. All of these seven children were 
then under age, and there were no (diildren of a deceased 
child in either family. Charles Ralph Liwton died March 
2Jrd, 1904, without ever having been married. On the 19th 
February, 1900, some seven years after tin* testator’s death, 
another child — the defendant Van Dyke Liwton—was Ixirn 
to James Clark Liwton. Alice Liwton attained the age of 
twenty-five years on the 29th January, 1908, and has there­
fore Ix-comc entitled to Ik* paid what the trust<*es consider her 
share in the terms of the will. In determining that, two 
questions have arisen ami are now stated for the opinion of 
this Court. First,—is the property to Ik* divided into two 
equal parts and one half to Ik* distributed among the children 
of the one nephew, and the other among the children of the 
"tlier nephew; or is the whole pro|K*rty to Ik* divided equally 
among the children of both? And second,—is Van Dyke 
Liwton entitled to a share, he having 1k*cii Ixirn after the 
testator's death but lx*fore Alice Liwton attained the age of 
twenty-five years, she having lieen the first of the children to 
reach that age?
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IK. A. Ewing, for the plaintiff.

A. 11'. Macrae, K.C., J. Hog Campbell ami K. J. 
Macrae, for defendants.

Argument was heard May 20, 1008.

A. IK. Macrae, K.C., for defendants : — Estât»1 2 3 4 is 
divisahle per rapita among all the children of the 
two nephews, living at the time for distribution. Weld 
v. !Bradbury (1); Derisme v. Mello (2). A liecpiest to a 
particular description of persons at a particular time, vests in 
|a*rsons answering that description at that time exclusively. 
Godfrey v. Doric (8); Hughe» v. Hughe» (4); Whitbread v. 
St. John (n) ; In re Wenmoths Entate ((>). Vm 1er the will the 
estate liecnmc vested in all the children when the oldest child 
reached the age of twenty-live years, and distribution should 
lie between the children then in eew. The word “equally” 
when uscil, has lieen held to show an intention that the estate 
was to be divided per capita. Houghton v. Hell (7) ; Gonrleg 
v. <iilbert (8) ; Bartlett v. Hollinter (it).

J. Hog Campbell, for defendants: — Estate is ilivisiblc 
jier dirge* and not per rapita, but if the latter con­
struction is held, then the division should la* made among 
all the children living at the time of the testator's 
death. Theobald on Wills (10); Dari* v. Bennett (11); 
Archer v. Iegg (12). Child I torn after testator's death will 
not lie entitled to a share in the estât»-. Scott v. Hnnrooil(\'.})m, 
Healhe v. lleathe (14). Estate vested from the moment of 
the testator’s death. Maddimn v. Chapman (In). Estate 
vesting at testator’s death, the representatives of the deceased 
eliilil would be entitled to his shnre. Stapleton v. ( tieele (111).

(1) 2 Ver. 705. (0) 87 Oh. D. 2H6. (11)4 DeG.F.&J. 327.
(2) 1 Hm. C. ( .537. (7) 23 Can. 8.U.K.4H8. (12) 31 Beav. 187.
(3) 6 Vesv 43. (8) 1 Han. N. H H. 80. (13) 5 Mail,lock 332.
(4) 3 Bro." C. C. 434. (0) Amtil 331. (14) 2 Atkyns 121.
(6) 10 Vesy 152. (10) 2nd. K»l. 252. (15) 4 K. St. J. 700.

(10) 2 Vein. 073.
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K. ./. Macrae, for defendant* :—Kstate vest* inline- 1908. 
diiitelv on the death of the testator, and should lie Eaki.k.
divided into two equal share*, one of which is divisable 
among the children of one nephew share and share 
alike, and tile other is divisable among the children of the " Al~ 
other nephew share and share alike. Child Ixirn after the lll"KllH'1 1 
lestator’s death has no share in the estate. Coleman V. Sey­
mour (1); Horeley v. Chaloner (2); Mill v. Chapman (3);
Arroic v. Mellieh (4); Mairlcin* v. Mamerton (5).

1908. July 14. Barker, C. J. :—

(His Honor recited the facts of the east1 as stated aliove, 
and proceeded as follows.)

I think the intention of the testator, as clearly indicated 
by the will, was to lienelit all the children of his two nephews 
alike—first, by giving them all during their minority an 
equal right to such amount as the trustees might in their dis­
cretion think pnqicr for their sup|sirt, maintenance and edu­
cation ; and in the semnd place, by making an equal division 
of the eoryin* among the children of Isitli families. There is 
nothing in the will, that I can see, to suggest or to warrant 
any different construction. Although the other children are 
not entitled to lie |iaid their shares, a present Inisis of distri­
bution must lie determined in order to enable the trustees to 
tix the amount coming to Alice Iaiwton, and for that reason 
it Is necessary to ascertain whether VanDyke l-awton is a 
lieneficiarv and entitled to a share eipiallv with his brothers 
and sisters living at the time the testator died. The general 
rule, us laid down in Hawkins on Wills (11), anil other lmoka 
of authority is, that in the absence of a contrary intention 
ap|Htiring on the fare of the will itself, the time for ascertain­
ing the elans, is the |ieriod when the first of the class, by 
attaining the *|ieciHed age lieeome* entitled to rereive his

(Il 1 Ve«. Sr. 209. (4) 1 Del). & Sm. 363.
|2| 2 Vea. Sr. SI. |5) 16 Sim. 410.
(8) 8 Bra. Ch. C. i*l, Iti) I». 75.
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1908. share, and those who come into <vme after that time are ex- 
Earle, rinded. Andrew* v. Parthu/ton (1); In re Emmett* E*taie

i i« .................................
. ,,K (2). This is said to he a rule of convenience, in reference to
Lxwto.n which Jessel, M. It., in the ease just cited, says :—“There 
étal. ||,ls> however, been established a rule of convenience, not 

Hakkrr, (. J. fou„ded on any view of the testator’s intention, that since 
when a child wants its share it is.convenient that the payment 
of the slum should not In* deferred, it shall he made payable 
by preventing any child born after that time from -
ing in the fund. The rule is, that, so soon as anv child 

if the class were not susceptible of increase, lie en­
titled to call for payment, the class shall liecome incapable of 
being increased. That rule of convenience, lieing opposed to 
the intention, is not to Ik* applied when it is not necessary, 
there I icing also a rule that you let in all who are born up to 
the time when a share becomes payable.” lierketry v. Swin­
burne (J); In re Wen moth'* Ext ate (4).

The words in the will itself are certainly not happily 
selected, and their meaning is not free from doubt, but I should 
read them as fixing the time of payment of the first share as 
the time for determining those entitled to shares, and that such 
persons were the children then living and the children of a 
deceased child who were to take per xtirpex and not per vnpita. 
I cannot give any other reasonable meaning to the words, 
“when such payment shall Ik* made.”

I shall therefore hold that VaiiDvke Liwton is entitled 
to share as <me of the nephewVchildren, and there will be a 
declaration accordingly*

The only |Hiint mentioned at the argument was as to an 
increased allowance for the support and education of some of 
the infant children. If the fund is to remain in the hands of 
the trustees the testator has placed the amount of the income to 
Ik* used for the sup)Mirt and education of the infants entirely 
in their discretion, and it is not usual for this Court to inter-

(1) 8 Brown Ch. C. 101.
(2) L. R. 18 Ch. I). 484.

(3) 10 Him. 27."i.
14) L. R. 37 Oh. I). 200.

0033

61
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fore with siuii discretion in the absence of Uni faith, fr/w- 
hai-nr v. (Vubomt (1). There is u large sum to the credit of 
income in the hands of the trustee available for such purjioses. 
I have no evidence U-fore me lien ring on the i|iicstion, and 
therefore nothing on which to proceed if it were a r 
with which this Court would at present interfere.

Declaration as to Van Dyke Isiwton, with leave reserved 
to apply for further directions.

1908.

Tiiistkk. ktc.

Lawton 

Hark km. ('. J.

(1) !.. R. 2 A. O. 300.

7
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1908. EARLE, Trustee, Etc., of Lawton v. LAWTON, et al.
A II (/Il Ht IS.

— No. 2. See ante p. 80.

Will—Construction—Gift to CIiihs—Time for Distribution— 
Income— Provision for Mainte mince—Costs.

Heldt that the oldest child, having reached the age of twenty-five 
years, was entitled to he paid her share of the corpus of the 
estate, and took an absolute vested interest.

Held, that the remainder of the capital was not to be set apart 
now, but held in trust until another child reached the age of 
twenty-five years, when another division must be made.

Held, that the oldest child was not now entitled to any share of 
the accumulated income. That can only be divided when all 
possible claims upon it have ceased.

It was ordered that the costs in this matter as between solicitor 
and client, be paid out of the corpus of Un- estate.

This in an application by the trustee for directions, in 
the matter of the construction of the will of the late Charles 
Lawton ; and the opinion of the Court is asked on the fol­
lowing five questions:—

1. Is Alice Ijawton entitled to a share of the accumu­
lated income on hand when she attained the age of twenty- 
five years, as well as of the capital, and if so, to what pro­
portion?

2. Is Alice Uiwton’s share of the estate, or any and 
what |>art of it, payable to her now, or when is it payable? 
If not how is it to In» held ?

3. • Should the shares of the other |Mtrtics interested 
under the will be set ajwrt liow, or should any and which 
part of such shares l»e set ajmrt?

4. If so, how should such sham* Ik* ascertained as 
regards capital and the accumulated income resj>eetivoly?

T>. If such shares should U* set apart now, should any 
and which of them Ik* held in trust until the |mrties respect-
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ivcly utUiin tliv ugi' of twenty-five years, or kIioiiM such shures, 1908. 
or any and which of them, be paid to the guanliuuH, or to 
whom and when arc such shares to be paid ? Lawton

Sec <inle p. 86 for statement of facts ill tile report of Lawton
1 . . / KTAL.

llie previous hearing, in addition to which the following may 
lie stilted. The four children of James Clark I .aw toll who are 
living are, Eliza, who was born August 8th, 1886; Benjamin, 
who was born Deccmlier 16th, 1887; Richard Woofendule, 
who was born January 10th, 1891, and VanDyke, who was 
born February 19th, 1906; and the three children of Charles 
Abbott Iiiiwton now living are, Alice, who was born 
January 29th, 1883; William Parker, who was born March 
9th, 1886, and Herbert Clarence, who was born April 17th,
1891, the other son Charles Ralph having died March 23rd,
1904, at the age of seventeen, without having lieen married.
Tile trustees’ accounts were passed ami allowed up to 
August 22nd, 1907, at which time the capital fund was 
#02,687.04, and the accumulated income #6,532.10, making 
in all #59,219.14, all of which, with the exception of #319.14, 
is invested in mortgage securities. The total amount |iuid up to 
that time for maintenance was #6,575. Of the seven children 
entitled to participate in this fund, at present Alice has 
attained the age of twenty-five years, Eliza aud William 
Parker are between twenty-one and twenty-live, and the 
ethers are infants.

IP. A. Etring, for the plaintiff.

A. IP. Macrae, K.C., Hoy Campbell and K. J.
Macrae for defendants.

Argument was heard July 31, 1908.

A. IP. Macrae, K.C., for defendants :—Estate is divis- 
able at the time the oldest child attains the age of twenty-five 
veers, and the shares should then lie ascertained and paid over 
to the children, or if infants to their guardians. Alice Isiw- 
ton is now twenty-five years old, and is entitled to be |inid
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1008. not only her share of the eoiyju* of the estate, lint also her

■Tkvhtkk. i:ii

Harkbk. c. .

share of the accumulated income: Itarien v. Finher (1) ; In 
re BireiT* Will (’I); Hawkins on Wills (It); Ihujejee v. Papa 
(4); In re Emmett’n Entatf (Ô); W/iitlimiil v. Lonl St. John 
(<l); It* llinroe (7). X

V
./. Half f 'ampin'll for defendants :—Shares should he 

ascertained anil distributed at the time the oldest child attains 
the age of twenty-five years. All the children are entitled 
to their shares at that time, and their interests liecome vested. 
The oldest child is entitled to her share of the accumulated 
income. Accounts should lie made up and passed to January 
■Jiltli, 1008, at which time the oldest child attained the age 
of twenty-five years : Booth v. Booth (8); Jonrn v. MaekH- 
«•«III (0); Jarman on Wills (10); Green v. Ekinn (11).

A. II". Mamie:—Costs should lie allowed out of the 
estate to all |tallies as lietween solicitor and client: Seaton 
on Decrees (12).

1008. August 18. Maiikkii, C. Jft—

(His Honor recited the facts of the case as 
and proceeded as follows.)

It is, 1 think, clear by the terms of the will that Alice 
is now entitled to lie |iaid what the trustee* may consider to 
la- her share in tile estate, on the Imsis of an equal division 
lietween the seven children now living. That amount can 
never decrease, latinise when once |«iid it cannot la1 got Wick. 
Gilman v. I taunt (l.'t). It is, however, subject to increase by 
reason of the share of any child falling in, should he die 
without issue before attaining the age of twenty-five. It is 
dear, 1 think, that the testator intended that as inch child

(1) 5 Bcav. 21)1. (7) 48 L. R. 610.
(2) 1 Ch. 1). 231. (HI 4 Vcb. 30».
(3) pp. 74 and 75. (41) 1 Russ. 231.
(4) 23 Bcav. 474. (1(1) 5th Ed. 014.
(5) 13 Ch. D. 484. (Ill 2 Atk. 473.
(6) 111 Ves. 162. (121 5th Ed., Vol. 2, 1413.

(18) 3 K. X J. 48
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. IIA UK Kit, ( J.

reached tlie age of twenty-five, lie should then Ik» entitled to Ih» WON.
naît I his shave of the estate, to lie determined as directed bv „ Earle.
I * ... * Tni HTKK. ETC.
the will, he then taking an absolute interest in his share en- - 
titling him to its use, possession and enjoyment. What inter- La^.,tox 
est in the estate have these children previous to attaining the *TAT‘ 
.tge of twenty-five V Is it more than a contingent interest1 

becoming absolute only on their attaining that age?
The " of this testator, in some respects at all

events, is clear, whatever dittieulties there may arise in carry­
ing it out. It seems evident that he into * * that his two 
nephews’ children should lie maintained and educated during 
their minority, and he placed the income of his estate at the 
dis|H»sal of his trustees, to l>e used in their discretion for that 
pur|M*t‘. It seems equally clear that he intended his estate 
to Ik» divided equally among such of these children as t I 
attain the age of twenty-five years, subj<»et to this, that if any 
one died before reaching that age leaving children, these 
children should take the |>arent’s share, just as the |iarent 
would have taken it had he lived; not as his next of kin, but 
under the will by way of substitution. It is a direct gift by 
the testator for their Inmefit in such a case. The provision 
for maintenance is confined to the nephews’ children only.
I tv the will, all the testator’s projiertv is given to his trustees 
in trust to carry out these two objects, after |>uvmcnt of 
debts and testamentary excuses. The first trust, in |siint of 
order, is a trust “to pay from time to time so much of the 
income of my said estate as they (the trustees) in their discretion 
shall see tit, towards the support, maintenance and education 
of the children of my nephews James (Mark I .aw ton and 
< ’hurles A hi s>tt Lawton, until they shall respectively arrive 
at the age of twenty-one years.” Then» is no gift of this 
income to these children. It is subject to the control of the 

l usters for the lienetit of the whole class, and it was known 
that as a necessary result of the <lis|mrity in the children’s 
ages, that some would require allowances for a longer |>eri<Hl 
then others, and therefore the appmpriation of the income 
need not necessarily be on the Imsis of equality. In In re

5

1
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1‘nrker (1), tlie will contained 'lie following provision. Tint 
residuary estate was given to trustees “in trust for side anil 
conversion, and to invest the proceeds upon the stocks, funds 
and securities therein mentioned, and to stand jwissessed of the 
stocks, funds and securities upon trust, to pay the dividemls, 

'' interest and income thereof, or such |iart thereof as mv said 
trustees for the time I wing shall from time to time deem ex- 
(wdient, in and towarils the maintenance and education of my 
children, until my said children shall attain their rcsjiective 
ages of twenty-one years; and from and immediately after 
attaining their respective ages of twenty-one years, then upon 
trust to |my, assign and transfer the said stiwks, funds and 
securities to my said children in equal Shari’s, etc.” One of 
the children died an infant, and it was held that he took no 
share. Jessel, M. K., says :—“In my opinion, when a legacy 
is |Mtyahle at a certain age, hut is in terms contingent, the 
legacy Iweomes vested when there is a direction to pay the 
interest ill the meantime to the [wrson to whom the legacy is 
given ; and not the less so when there is sii|wnidded a ilirei-- 
tion that the trustees (shall pay the whole or such pu t of the 
interest as they shall see fit.) Hut I am not aware of any 
case where the gift I wing of an entire fund piyahle to a class 
of |iersons equally on their attaining a certain age, a direction 
to apply the income of the whole fund in the meantime for 
their maii.ienance has been held to create a vested interest 
in a member of the class who ilia’s not attain that age.”

In In re Grinuhaum Trunin ("2), the same principle was noted 
ii|M»n. Hall, V. C\, says:—“It npiwars to me that in this 
will there is no gift of any of the inpital fund to any child 
who did not attain the age of twenty-one years. It may per- 
liaps Iw considered to Iw a somewhat critical miale of constru­
ing wills like this one, to notice whether the gift of tlie 
capital fund comes first or whether the direction for nuunten- 
ance diws. In this will” (as in the present one) “the direction 
for maintenance comes first and that circumstance is oiw 
which, in the present state of the authorities iiinnot Iw disre- 

. (1) 16 Ch. D. 44. (2) 11 Oh. D. 406.
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garded.” The trust there was * “ the income, or so much 1908.
thereof, as the trustee# shall think pro tier in the maintenance,, Karle,

1 1 _ Trustee, etc.
of the children.” Hall, V. (\, held that this was a trust not LawTOn
in respect of the income of the whole fund, but only of the Lawton 
income of the whole fund, or of so much as the trustees CT AL' 
should think proper. The trust there was, that upon theBAKKKR' t,J* 
attainment by the children of the age of twenty-one years, 
the trustees were to pay and divide the same principle and 
the accumulations. Hall, V. ('., held that this trust was 
only for the lienetit of those who attained the specified age, 
and that they were not to take unless they fulfilled that 
description. The children, therefore, who died in infancy 
were excluded.

In In re Coleman (1), the trust was to apply the income of 
the testator’s estate, “in and towards the maintenance, <iluca- 
tion and advancement of my children, in such manner us they 
dial I deem most expedient, until the youngest of my said 
children attains the age of twenty-one years” and in the 
happening of that event he directed them to divide his estate 
equally . mnng all his children then living. Cotton, h. J., 
says :—“The conti of the appellant was that each of the
four children took a vested interest in one* of
the income till the youngest child attained twenty-one. I am 
of the opinion that no child has a right to any share of the 
income. The trustees have a discretion to apply the income 
for the maintenance of the children in such manner as they 
think fit. This excludes the notion of the children lieing 
entitled to aliquot shares. I will assume, though I do not 
decide, that the trustees have no power to exclude a child, 
hut 1 am clearly of opinion that under this power they could 
make unequal allowances for the lienefit of the children, and 
might allow only half a crown to one of them.”

In Leake v. Robiiuton (*2), the testator gave to trustees 
«•ertnin real estate and certain ground rents upon trust, to 
apply the said ground rents and the rents and profit# of his

(!) 30 Oh. D. 443. (2) 2 Mer. 363.

VOL. I. N.H.K.K. T.
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1908.

Trvrtkk, im:

Bark*», ( .1

said estate, » lid inti'ivst of the said mortgage moneys, or Midi 

Iiiirl UK thi-y should judge jini|irr, to tin1 innintennnee, eduen- 
tinn imd advancement of his gmmlsiin until twenty-five, anil 
after his attaining that age, to pay to or |icrmit him to have 
and receive the same during his life, etc., and to pay, assign 
and transfer the slid property to such child or children at 
twenty-five, if sons, etc. The Master of the Rolls, lifter |mint­
ing out that there was no direct gift to any of the classes 
and that it was only through the medium of directions given 
to the trustees that the liencfits intended for them could lie 
nsrertuined, says:—“As to the capital, there living as I have 
already slid, no direct gift to the grandchildren, we are to 
see in what event it is that the trustees are to make it over to 
them. Then' is with regard to this some difference of expres­
sion in the different |iarts of the will. In some instances the 
testator directs the payment to lie to such child or children as 
shall attain twenty-five. In others the payment is to he made 
111mni attainment of the age of twenty-five.” (In this 
ease the wonls are “and on each child attaining the age of 
twentv-five veurs, etc.”) “In the residuary clause it is from 
and immediately after such child or children shall ' lin­
age of twenty-five that the trustees are to transfer the pro- 
|iertv. Hut I think the testator in each instance means pre­
cisely the same thing, and that none were to take vested 
interests before the specified period. The attainment of 
twentv-five is necessary to entitle any child to claim a transfer. 
It is not the enjoyment that is |sist|smed ; for there is no 
antecedent gift, as there was in the ease of May V. Hood (1),of 
which the enjoyment could lie |sist|Hiued. The direction to pay 
is the gift, and that gift is only to attach to i 
attain twenty-five. The ease of Batufortl v. Kfbhrll (2), was 
milch more favourable for the legate»', for the interest of the 
fund was given to him alieoliitcly until he should attain the 
age of thirty-two, at which time the testatrix directed her ex­
ecutors to transfer to him the principal for his own use. He 
died miller thirty-two. I Sin I Rosslyu, said, * There is no

(1) 3 Bro. Ch. V. 471. (2) 3 Ves., Jr. 303.

7
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gift lint in tin' direction fur payment, mill the direction fur 
|mvinvnt attache» only upon a person of the age of thirty-two. 
Therefore he lines nut fall within the description.’” Silltij v. 
M7u7/«ter (1); Jnlmm v. llirhimlmn (2) ; lluntrr'* Tnlxix (A).

From these anil numerous other authorities to the same 
effect, it seems clear that utnler a maintenanee clause such as 
the one ill this will, no one child can claim a vested interest 
in any share of the income. The trust as to the distribution 
of the estate, liv which I understand the eu|iital anil utiex- 
|cmled iniiime, is as follows:—“And on each child attaining 
the age of twenty-five years, to pay to such child, what they 
(the trustees) consider would la- his or her share in my said 
i-state, dividing the same equally Is'twjecn such children 
living, and the children of any demised child, when such 
|«yincnt shall be made, etc.” There is no clause in this will 
giving this estate tv these children, except the direction to the 
trustees to |»iy to each child, on his attaining twentv-fivc, 
what they consider to lie his share. The giving of the pro­
perty consists in the direction to transfer the share, which is 
Hilly on the child being twenty-five, and until he has attained 
that age he has no right to mil for |iuymcnt.

It would, I think, lie disregarding the clear language of 
the will, to hold that there was not to lie a division " In- 
the trustees, on each child attaining twenty-five, for the pur­
pose of ascertaining what at that time is to lie |mid over to 
him as his share. A final division cannot Is- made until all 
have fulfilled the conditions snlijei't to which they are entitled 
lu I*' jiaid. I think Alice is entitled to have paid to her, 
«lint the trustee considers to have lieen one-seventh of the 
principal of the estate on the 'Jiltli January, UNIS. The 
l«ilance of the whole fund will remain in the trustee's hands 
until another child shall the age of twentv-five, when
the trustee will make a division as before. If in the mean­
time any child, other than Alice, shall have dual without 
leaving children, that share shall fall in ns |iart of the estate 
divisible among the survivors of the class. If such child

‘.Ml

IfIf IS.

Trvhtkk, kto. 

Lawton

it A It lx Kit, V. J.

(1) 6 Ch. 1). 230. (2) 44 Ch. I). 154. (3) 1 Eq. 205.

1
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1908. shall have children, they would take their parent’s share, and
when entitled to have it transferred to them, if they are then 
infants, the shares would Ik* transferable to their guardian. 
As to the accumulated income, 1 do not think the children

Trvwtkk, ktc

Lawton

are entitled to imv division of it, until all tin* children shall
iI'hkkh. I J- lmve attaint'd tlivir majority, or for that or any other reason,

all |nissiblc claims upon the filial shall have ceased.

There will lie the following declaration :—

1. That VanDyke Luwton is entitled to a distributive 
share of the estate, as one of the nephews’ children.

2. That Alice Lawton, on her attaining the age of 
twentv-tivo years on the 211th January, 19(18, took an abso­
lute vested interest ill one-seventh of the istate, and was then 
entitled to lie paid what the trustee considered to lie one- 
seventh of the capital fund for her own use.

IS. That Alice Lawton is not now entitled to any share of 
the accumulated income. That is to remain in the trustee’s 
hands, to lie used at his discretion in the sup|Hirt, maintenance 
and education of the infant children of James Clark L 
and Charles AMwtt Lawton until they attain the age of 
twenty-one years.

4. That the remainder of the capital fund is not to lie 
set a|«irt, but held by the trustee until another child reaches 
the age of twentv-Hve years, when another division of the 
capital fund will lie made.

The insts of all |mrties will lie taxed as between solici­
tor and client, and paid by the plaintiff out of the corpus of 
the estate.

04
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FEN ET Y et al v. JOHNSTON.

Practice—Insufficiency of A nu ire r—Exception».

A defendant who has acted entirely through his solicitor in any 
matter, and has himself no personal knowledge, must state in 
his answer, when required to do so, the knowledge that he 
has of the matters In? is interrogated upon, basing his answer 
upon the information given him by his solicitor.

Where there are a number of different and distinct questions 
included in one section of the interrogatories,and the answer 
to that section is sufficient as to one or more of these ques­
tions an exception to that whole answer must be overruled. 
The exception is too wide.

The case of Hurpee et al v. The American Hohhin Company (1), 
followed.

Judgment on exceptions tiled to the defendant’s answer.

./. ./. Fraser Winslow for the plaintiffs.

./. />. Phinney, K. C., for the defendant.

1909. January 5. Barker, (\ J. : —

Exceptions to defendant’s answer. 1 think all these 
exceptions, except the seventh, must Ik? allowed. The rules 
by which the sufficiency of answers is governed are so fully 
discussed and so clearly laid down in Hendricks v. Hallett 
(-), that there is really not much excuse for practitioners 
going astray unintentionally. This suit is brought to enforce 
flic performance of an alleged agreement lietween the jmrties 
for the purchase by the defendant of a pro|K»rty in Frederic­
ton describ'd in the bill as “Linden Hall.” Some difficulty 
><fins to have arisen as to the completion of the purchase, 
and during the negotiations which took place with a view of 
settling the matters ii|mhi which the |mrties differed, Mr. 
Barry acted for the defendant as his solicitor. As to wliat 
took place the defendant dot* not seem to have had any |»er-

(1) N. B. Eq. Cases 484.

1909.
January 5.

(2) 1 Hanna y 185.
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1909. sonal knowledge. Wlmt he <li<l know lie learned from Mr. 
kenkty 1 lurry, ami the plaintiffs were desirous of procuring admis- 

Johxhtqx. sioiiH, by way of his lielief, of certain facts based on the 
Bakkkh. ( •J inforniation given him by his solicitor. The answers excepted 

to are, with one exception, all faulty in this resjieet, ami 
some of them in others as well.

The seventh exception has reference to the thirteenth 
section of the answer. By way of meeting the objection 1 
was refemd to tin* rule acted ii|hhi by Palmer, J. in Burpee 
v. The American Hoi thin Co. (1), ami the ntscs there cited. 
It was there held that when an exception is filed to an 
answer to several separate questions included in one section 
of the interrogatories, and the answer is sufficient as to 
one or mort* of the questions, the whole exception must 
Ik* overruled. The exception is too with*. Section 
thirteen of the interrogatories ixmtains some ten or more 
sc|Kirntc and distinct questions. The exception seems 
to Ik* to the answers to eight of these. Among these ques­
tions was this—whether or not .Mr. Barry was not informed 
by the plaintiff, W. T. II. Fenety, that one of the heirs at law 
was in the Yukon, ami that it might lie difficult to locate 
him, and whether or not the said Fenety did not offer to have 
all the other heirs at law join in the promised conveyance, 
ami suggest that the defendant might accept a deed similar, 
as to the parties executing it, to a deed from the estate to 
Mr. Justice (iregorv of another |>ortion of land purchased 
from said estate. The answer states : “ I am informed by the 
said J. 11. Barry and admit it to Ik* true that he was 
informed, etc.” following the question rerhatim. This was. 
I think, a sufficient answer under the eireuinstances.

I must make some reference to the many objections there 
are to the practice of crowding into one interrogatory a great 
numlier of what are really sepinite ami distinct questions, 
and stringing them together as though they formed hut one. 
Section fourteen of these interrogatories contains some fifteen 
distinct questions. Where this practice <«n Ik* avoided it 

(1) N. B. Kq. Cases 484.
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should Ik*. It leads to misapprehension of the scope and 1ÎMHK
meaning of the inquiry, the questions are liable to lead to Ewcty
unintentional omission and inaeetinicies in answering, result- JoUNHToy- 
ing in exceptions, that might well have been avoided ; and HARKeR-( •Ji 
they may, as in this case, result in a slip by the pleader who 
framed them. Besides this, it throws ujkhi the Court which 
lias to deal with them, an unnecessary amount of work.

The first, second, third, fourth, fifth, sixth, eighth, ninth 
and tenth exceptions will l>e allowed with costs. The seventh 
will lie overruled with costs. The costs of each party will 
Ik* taxed and the one deducted from the other. The defendant 
to have leave to file amended answer within thirty days from 
the date of settling this order, and on ]>uying the plaintiffs 
the ' * e of costs |myable by him hereunder, as certified 
by the Clerk.

88
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1909.
January

NK VERS v. LILLKY et al.

Injunction—Lease—Quia Timet Action—Supporting Affidavit*— 
Probability of Damage—Legitimate Hu*ine*a.

The defendant L. holds certain premises under a lease granted 
by the plaintiff N. to one VV. and assigned by W. to L. The 
lease contains express covenants, but nothing in reference to 
its assignment, or to the use of the premises, with the excep­
tion of the word “office" used in the description, which is as 
follows : “ All that certain office situate on the ground floor 
of her brick building on the East side of Main Street in the 
said Town of Woodstock, and the office in the said building 
fronting on the South side of Regent Street in the said Town, 
also the lower part of the shed in the rear of the said office, 
etc.” W. is an attorney and occupied the premises as an 
office. L. i s a retail meat end fish dealer, and proposes to 
carry on this business in the premises.

Held, that there was no implied covenant in the lease, restricting 
the lessee to the use of the premises as an office, as it was not 
necessary to carry out any obvious intention of the parties: 
and that the word “office’* in the lease was used merely as a 
means of identifying the premises included in the demise. 

Held, that as no actual damage had been shown, the action was 
in the nature of a gain timet action ; and that as the defend­
ant was carrying on a legitimate business, and there was no 
probability of any immediate or irreparable damage to the 
plaintiff arising, the application for an injunction must l>e 
dismissed.

Thin is an application, made on notice, for an 
to restrain the defendants from using the premises as pro­
posed, or as the pmver of the hill reads, “ from keeping, 
storing or selling meats and fish, or either or any of them99 oil 
the premises.

ir. I*. .1one* ami Thane M. Jane* for the plaintiff.

./. ( '. Hartley for the defendants.

The plaintiff Klizal>eth Ne vers, owns a three storey brick 
building, situated on the corner of Main and Regent Streets, 
in the Town of Woodstock, X. 15. She occupies the corner 
store in the lower flat as a cake shop, and resides with her 
family in the two up|>er flats. On Oetolier 22nd, 1907, she 
gave a lease of two rooms and a shed on the ground fhx>r of

7306
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this building, to one J. Norman W. Winslow, an attorney 1909. 
residing in Woodstock. The lease is for five years ami six NKXrKKM 
months at a yearly rental of $200.00, and contains a number L,,LKY»|,rr AL 
of covenants. One to pay the rent, one to deliver up at the 
expiration of tin* term in as good condition, and others in 
reference to repairs and improvements to lie made by Winslow.
Winslow occupied the premises for about a year, removing 
from them in Demnlier, 1008, and then assigned the lease to 
the ul>ove defendant Mary J. Li 1 ley. It ap|>cnrs that the 
defendant currys on a retail meat and fish business in Woml- 
stock, and it is her intention to use the premises in question 
as a retail meat and fish store, and she has already stored 
fish in them.

Argument was heard December 10, 1908.

IT. /*. Jone* for the plaintiff :—The defendants have 
created a nuisance to the injury of the plaintiff, with respect 
to her property adjoining and being a part of the same build­
ing ; and also, under the bill, the plaintiff has a right to an 

as against a private nuisance, irresjiective of the 
relationship of landlord and tenant : Reinhardt v. Ment anti 
( 1 ) ; Walter v. Selfe (2); Ball v. Ray (3). The * * 
should Ik* granted, Itceause if it is not, waste will ensue, viz.: 
the occupation will diminish the value of the inheritance. The 
covenant to surrender in as good condition in the lease, does 
not prevent an injunction being granted : Queen* College,
Oxford v. Ilallett (4); Mayor of London v. lledger (f>) ;
Went llam Central Charity Board v. East London Water­
works Co. ((>). Under the hase the lessee could not use the 
premises for anything but an office. A covenant should Ik* 
implied to this effect, based ii|h»ii the general construction of 
the lease : Kehoe v. Marque** of lAinsdoirne (7); Wood 
v. Co/gter Miner** Co. (8); Jjancey x. Johnxton (9); Am.
A Kng. Kney. of l^aw (10).

(1) L. R. 42 Ch. D 685. (0) |19001 l Ch. D. «24.
(2) 4 l)eO. A Sm. 315. (7) 118tW| App. C. 451.
(3) 8 Cli. App 467. (8) 7 C. 11. 905.
(4) 14 East. 481). (0) 2» (ir. Ch. R. (Ont.) 67.
(3) 18 Ves. 355. (10) 2nd Ed., Vol. 18, p. 684, par. 13.
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♦/. C. Hartley for the défendants :—The hill and affi­
davits do not support the allegation that there is a private 
nuisance ; no private nuisance has ]jeen shown. The lease 
gives the lessee the right to use the premises for any reason­
able purpose for which they were constructed, in the absence 
of restrictive covenants. The plaintiff could have protected 
herself by covenants in the lease, but she did not choose to 
do so. With regard to the <mention of waste, the covenant 
in the lease to surrender in as good condition, prevents any 
injunction being granted on the ground of the waste alone. 
Where a written contract is entered into, the negotiations 
leading up to the contract and conversations beforehand are 
not binding, as the contract is supposed to embody the final 
agreement. See In re Railway ami Electric Appliance# 
Co. (1); I/am/yn v. Wood (2); I he deni. 11 et he re!! v. Bird 
(3) ; Bon mit v. Sadler (4.)

1900. January'). Hark Eli, C. J.;—

Whatever may be the fate of this suit at the hearing 1 
think this present motion for an injunction must he dismissed. 
It apjHNirs that the plaintiff, Klizal>etli Xevers, owns a lot of 
land on the corner of Main and Regent streets in the Town 
of Woodstock, fronting on Main street. On this lot she 
erected a three storey brick building in the year 1907, and 
she o<*ciipies the two up|>er storeys as a dwelling for herself 
and family. The corner store in the lower flat the plaintiff 
occupies as a bread and e ; the remaining part of the
flat is the so called office, in reference to which this suit has 
arisen. On the 2'2nd day of October, 1907, the plaintiff 
leased this office to Mr. Winslow, an attorney practising at 
Woodstock, for a term of five and a half years at an annual 
rental of $200. This lease, so far as it bears ii|mhi the ques­
tion in «“ is as follows : “This indenture made this 22nd 
day of October A. I)., 1907, between Klizal>eth Xevers, of 
the Town of Woodstock in the County of Carleton, married

1) 38 C’h. I). 607. (3) 2 Ad. & Kills 161.
(2) (18D11 2 Q. B. I). 488. (4) 14 Ves. 626.

D-D
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woman, and .1. Norman \V. Winslow of the* same place, 11)01). 
attorney-at-law, witnessed), that the said l\lizaU*tli Ne vers Nkvkkm

doth hereby demise and release unto the said J. Norman lii.lkv.ct ai» 

W. W inslow, his executors, administrators and assigns, all Hakkkk. <\ J. 

that certain office, situate on the ground iloor of her brick 
building oil the east side of Main street in the said Town of 
Woodstock, and the office in the said building fronting on the 
smith side of Regent street in the said town, also the lower 
|Kirt of the shed in the rear of the said office, excepting 
that tin* said Elizabeth Ne vers is to have the right to the use 
of the stairway in said shed leading to her dwelling above, 
to hold to the said Winslow and his aforesaids for the term 
of live years and six months from the first day of Xovemlier 
next, yielding and paying therefor during the said term 
the yearly rent of two hundred dollars, the same to lie pay­
able quarterly, first payment of $f>0 to Ik* made on the first 
day of February, A. I)., 1908.” The lease contains a coven­
ant by W inslow to pay the rent, “and to deliver up said 
premises to the said FlizalH*th Xevers or her attorney, peace­
ably and quietly at the end of the said term, in as good coll­

as the same now are, or may be put into by the said 
Winslow or his aforesaids, reasonable wear and tear thereof 
and fire excepted.” There was also a covenant on the jmrt 
of W inslow that lie* would put up a partition in the Main 
street office and a lavatory and closet in that office wherever 
la* thought U*st at his own expense. He was also to jwy the 
water and sewer taxes and he had the right if he wished to 
Imild a vault in the shed in the rear of the Main street office.
This vault was removable by the tenant at the end of the 
term, but the partition, lavatory and closet were to Ik* the 
pro|K*rty of the lessor. W inslow went into {Kissession of 
these mans under the least* and continued to occupy them as 
his office up to the second day of Decemlier, 1908, a little over 
• year. It seems that in April last (1908) a fire t<s»k place in 
a building owned by W inslow in another jiart of Main street, 
and in rc|iairing and enlarging that building he fitted up 
riHmis for his offices and that he removed there, as I have

39
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1900.
Nkvkkm 

Lillby, kta 
Hakkkk, C.

[VOL.

stated, on the first of Decemlier. In the meantime Winslow 
had put up the )Kirtition and put in the lavatory and closet 

f~ ammling to his covenant, at a cost as he alleges of $150. 
’•There were some negotiations between the plaintiff and 

Winslow with a view to an agreement for a surrender of the 
lease, hut these did not result in any settlement. On the 
24th day of November, 1008, Winslow assigned the lease 
and premises with all the improvements for the unexpired 
term, to the defendant Marv ,1. 1 alley for the consideration 
of $150. The hill alleges that the defendant Mary .1. Li 1 Icy 
was then and for some eleven months In-fore that had lieen 
carrying on the business of selling meats and fish by retail in 
premises on Main street nearly opposite the plaintiff’s office, 
and that for some time In-fore that her liiislmad, Will. Li I ley, 
had carried on the same business at the same place. In 
Dceemln-r, 1007, Li 1 ley, the IiiisImiihI, failed in business and 
made an assignment for the In-nefit of creditors, and that 
after that the business has l>een carried on in the name of 
the defendant, Mary, by William Li I ley, Junior, who 1 su|h 

|m»sc is a son of hers, though the bill does not so state. In 
section eight of the bill the plaintiff alleges that on the 2nd 
day of Deccmlier last (1008) the defendant Win. Li 1 ley, 
Junior, having a key to the office, went into it and left u 
ipiantity of vegetables there, whcreu|M»n the plaintiff’s hus­
band, acting for her, asked Li 1 ley what lie was going to do 
in the office and he replied that he was going to keep meat 
and fish there. Section nine of the bill sets out the plaintiff’s 
cause of mmplaint as follows: “The said offices of the 
plaintiff are tinisln-d very nicely in hard win si flooring, and 
with walls and ceiling of steel sheeting, and it would lie 
ini|M>ssibh‘ for the business of dealing in meats and fish in 
said office to lie carried on without |H-rmanent injury to tin- 
said offices and other | tarts of the said building of the plain­
tiff, lieeause of the odours and stench from the said meats and 
fish |>ernieatiiig and clinging to the Hours, walls and ceilings 
of the same, and the jun-es of the said meats soaking through 
and in the Hours, and the nirrying on of such business would
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cniite a very offensive odour from dav to day through the 
.aid buildings : And also that the earn ing on of the said busi­
ness of the defendants’ would, through such odours and L 
stenches place the said office in such a state as that it would B 
he impossible to deliver it up at the end of the said term 
mentioned in said lease thereof, in as good condition as the 
same now is.” Section ten of the bill alleges that in carry­
ing on a meat and lisli business in these rooms, the defendants 
are not using the premises in that reasonable manner cnntcni- 
plati'd by the lease. Section eleven alleges that the use of 
tlnwe premises as alleged would, on account of the odours and 
stench occasioned by the continuous presence of meats and 
lisli, lie very injurious to the health and comfort ol the plain­
tiff and her family living in the up|ier part of the house, and 
would make it iui|H>ssible for the plaintiff to lease the dwell­
ing to a desirable tenant at a proper rent. Section twelve 
alleges that the defendant, Mary J. i.illey, has already com­
menced to move her retail meat and lisli business into these 
offices, and that she had on that day (Decemlier 3rd, 11 a IS) 
moved and placed therein a quantity of lss-f, and she was 
al oint to o|M'ti these offices for the sale of this lieef by retail, 
and “to constitute sail! main office and shell in rear thereof a 
retail meat and lisli shop.”

This is an ation, made on notice, for an injunction 
to restrain the defendants from using the premises as pro- 
|»ised, or as the prayer of the bill reads, “from keeping, 
storing or selling meats and fish or either or any of them ” 
on the premises, and several grounds are put forward on 
which the motion is I nisei I. In the first plaie, it is said there 
i- a covenant to lie implied from the terms of the lease, by 
which the lessee is restricted in his use of the premises to 
their use as offices, and that the use to which the defendants 
are now putting them is a violation of that covenant. While 
il may he quite true that when Mr. Winslow rented these 
premises he intended to occupy them for an office, then- is 
nothing to suggest that either he or the plaintiff had any 
intention of restricting the use of them in any way. The

4
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1000. lea** is not » loosely drawn instrument—it <*oiit:iiiiH express 
Nkvkkm covenants in reference to many matters, hut no restriction 

Lim.ky.i t ai., over either as to the use of the premises, or the assignment of 
barkkk, <. J. the lease. In such cases covenants are never implied, because 

they are not necessary to carry out any obvious " of
the parties. In re Railway & Electric Appliance* Co. (1); 
llamlyn v. II ooil (2) per Lord Ksher.

The word “offices” in the lease is used simply to 
distinguish or identify the premises are the subject
matter of the demise, it has no relation whatever to its 
use. If A. demised to Jt. for five years a barn situ­
ated on a certain piece* of land, no one, as it seems 
to me, would think of saving that H. could not use the 
building except as a barn ; or that if lie stored meat and fish 
in it, he would lu* violating some implied covenant arising out 
of the terms of the lease. The “ habendum ” is to Winslow 
for five and a half years without restrictions, except those 
mentioned in the lease itself. Martyr v. Lawrence (3).

The plaintiff claims an injunction on two other grounds ; 
first, on the ground of nuisance, and second, on the ground of 
waste. I can dispose of these two points together, as the 
evidence, slight as it is, may Ik* said to ln*ar on both. So far 
as these two |x>ints are concerned, the bill is in fact a quia 
timet bill, and must be so dealt with. For the purposes of 
this motion it is sup|M>rted by two affidavits, which with the 
hill, we»c served on December 7th. I shall later on refer to 
the contents of these sits, but as one of them was sworn 
on the 3rd day of December and the other on the 7th of 
Decemlier it is obvious, that for the purposes of establishing 
a nuisance, which could not have possibly commenced before 
the 3rd of December, they cannot be very useful, especially 
where the nuisance mmplaincd of, is the unpleasant odours 
emanating from meats and fish in the month of Demuber, 
when meats and fish are usually in a frozen condition.

In the Attorney General v. Corporation of Manchester 
(4), the principles applicable to quia timet bills are dis-

(1) 38 C3». 1). 697. (3) 2 DeO. J. Sc S. 261.
(2) (1891)2 Q. B. 488. (4) (1893) 2 Ch. 87.

6269
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cussed, smd two propositions are there laid down. In the first 1901). 
place the principle is alike applicable to eases of public and Nkvkkm 

private nuisance. And in the second place, in order to sustain Lu.LKr.rr au 

such a bill, the plaintiff must shew a strong case of probability Hahkkh, <• J 
that the apprehend<*d mischief will in fact arise*. Wood,
V. ( in The Attorney-Genera/ v. Mayor of Kiin/ston (1) 
said, there must Ik* “ evidence of the extreme probability of 
a nuisance if that which was being done was allowed to con­
tinue.” And Fry, J., in the Darenth Hospital Camp Cane 
(2) adopted Chief Justice ( 'ocklmrn’s statement of the law 
that there must l>e proof of “a well founded and reason­
able apprehension of danger.” In Fletcher v. lieafey (J),
IVarson, J., after referring to many of the authorities, says :
“ 1 do not think, therefore, that I shall be very far wrong if 
I lav it down that there are at least two necessary ingredients 
for a (plia timet action. There must, if no actual damage is 
proved, be proof of imminent <langer, and there must also Ik* 
proof that the apprehended danger will, if it conies, Ik* very 
substantial. I should almost say it must Ik* proved that it 
will Ik* irrc|mrable, because, if the danger is not proved to Ik* 
so imminent that no one cun doubt that, if the remedy is 
delayed, the (Limage will Ik* suffeml, I think it must Ik* 
shewn that, if the damage does occur at any time, it will come 
in such a way and under such circumstances that it will Ik* 
impossible for the plaintiff to protect himself against it if 
relief is denied to him in a quia timet action.” The evidence 
in the present case falls far short of bringing it within the 
least stringent of all the rules laid down by these and numerous 
other rities. Of the two affidavits read in support of the 
hill, one was made by the plaintiff, and the other by her 
husband. His affidavit I regard as altogether useless. He 
wys he is a trader, residing at Woodstock, that he is the 
plaintiff’s husband, and then he says that he has heard the bill 
read and that all the sections in the bill are true and correct, 
rxcept the sixth which he has Iktii informed and believes is

(1) 34 L. J. Ch. 481. (2) 2 Times L. K. 361.
(3) (1886) 28 (’h. 1). At p. tXW.

02
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It 109. true. That section refers to the negotiations for a surrender
Nkvkum of the lease. He (has not state in what way or by what

Ln.LKy.KT au means he is coin intent to judge as to the injurious effects 
Barker. <\J. upon 5l house of the odours from a meat and fish store kept 

in it. His affidavit for the puqiosesof this ease is of no value 
whatever. The other affidavit is made by the plaintiff her­
self. After swearing to the truth of several sections in the
hill, and her belief as to the truth of the remaining sections,
she says that the offices in «|iiestion are finished with hard­
wood flooring and with walls and ceilings of steel sheeting. 
She proceeds as follows: “In the construction of the said 
walls and ceiling, boards were nailed into the studding and 
the steel sheeting was then placed directly upon the said 
Ixxards. The said walls and ceiling were not lathed or 
plastered. The odours from meat and fish, if kept in the 
said offices, would pass gh the cracks where the sheets 
of the said sheeting are join<*d together, and would then piss 
all through the said 1 and would thence pass through
the* wadis and floors of the two upper storeys of thesaiid build­
ing where I reside with my family, and would liecome and 
be very offensive to. myself and niv family, and would, I 
Indievc, ln‘ ai source of danger to the health of myself anal my 
said family.” In onler to demonstraite how these noxious 
odours anmlal, anal, of a •ourse, wamlal reach that part a»f the 
premises occupieal by herself amal family, the plaintiff seems 
to have thamght it necessary to aleserilae with saune particu­
larity what seems, at adl events to me, an exceptional mainner 
in which these offices were finished. Anal if this case is 
intendeal ta> rest upon the exavptiamad condition* to which this 
evidence is dim-teal, the plaintiff would, I think, not have, 
much cause fan* complaint, for the ammyance, if it existed at 
all, wamlal l>e the result a>f her own act, anal the aslours wamlal 
have reaadieal her apartments by a adiamiad created by herself 
in the unusual median! of finishing the tamant’s pmnises, of 
whiadi, so far as there is any evidence ba*fa»re me, the alefcnal- 
ants had neither kna>wlealge nor notice. Apart from this, it 
must be liorne in mind that the aladviialants ara» engageai in a
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legitimate business, not in any way necewarily causing dis- 1M09. 
comfort to any onv. The business is not in itself a nuisance, Nkvkrs 

mill even if it were possible to carry it on so as to Is* a unis- Lu.lkv.kt al. 

mice, there is no evidence that such is the case, nor is there Bakkkr’ ( •Ji 
anything to suggest that it must necessarily or is at all likely 
to become so. The defendants arc* not carrying on the trade 
of butchers, but simply a retail trade in meats and fish, such 
as one sees in all parts of well regulated cities, and such as 
has I teen carried on by them in the immediate neighlandmod 
of these premises for years.

The bill in this ease seems to Ik* directed to a |>ermancnt 
injury to the plaintiff’s property bv reason of the floors and 
walls alisorbing these fishy odours, and thus lieeotning so 
offensive as not to lie tenantable at all, or only capable of 
living rented at a reduced rent. It is not pretended that any 
such injury has taken pla<*e; in so short a time that would lie 
ini|Hissiblc, but danger of that result oceuring is put forward 
:is a ground for this Court interfering. There is absolutely 
no evidence on the subject ; either that such a thing ever did 
happen or if it were possible that it is to lie expected in the 
present nise. The bill is also directed to the |iersonal dis­
comfort to the plaintiff and her family. There is a distinc­
tion Iictween these two grounds of relief which is pointed out 
in The St. Helen** Smelting On. v. Tipping (1). The Ixird 
Chancellor there savs: “My Isirds, in matters of this 
description it ap|K<ars to me that it is a very desirable thing 
to mark the difference lietween an action brought for a nuis- 
miee upon the ground that the alleged nuisance produces 
material injury to the projierty, and an action brought for a 
nuisance on the ground that the thing alleged to lie a nuisance 
b productive of sensible personal disnunfort. With regard 
to the latter, namely the |iersonal inconvenience and interfer- 
vmv with one’s enjoyment, one’s quiet, one’s (lersonal free­
dom, anything that disconi|K)ses or injuriously affects the 
«vases or the nerves, whether that may or may not Ik* denoin-

(1) Il H. of L. (142.
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190b. "mated a mmaiiee, must undoubtedly depend greatly on the 
Nkvkkh circumstances of the place where the thing complained of 

Lilley. kt au actually occurs. If a man lives in a town, it is necessary 
Rakkkr, C. J. that he should subject himself to the consequences of those 

o|H»rations of trade which may In* carried on in his immediate 
locality, which are actually necessary for trade and commerce, 
and also for the enjoyment of property, and for the l»e ne fit of 
the inhabitants of the town and of the public at large. If n 
man lives in a street where there are numerous shops, and a 
shop is opened next door to him, which is carried on in a fair 
and reasonable wav, lie has no ground for complaint, lieeaust* 
to himself individually there may arise much discomfort 
from the trade carried on in that shop. Hut when an occu­
ltation is carried on by one jterson in the neighliorhood of 
another, and the result of that trade, or iKnipation, or 
business, is a material injury to projterty, then there s- 

" "y arises a very different consideration. I think, my 
lourds, that in a ease of that description, the submission which 
is required from persons living in society to that amount of 
discomfort which may lie necessary for the legitimate and free 
exercise of the trade of their neighbors, would not apply to 
circumstances the immediate result of which is sensible injury 
to the value of the property.” I must assume that the 
defendants will carry on their business in a legitimate way ; 
that the meat and fish which they sell are fit for sale and lit 
for use. If not I imagine the public health regulations will lie 

for putting an end to the practice. It then 
comes down to this, that this Court is asked to restrain this 
defendant from selling fish and carrying on her business 
liecause the plaintiff does not like the smell of li.«" , * she
has smelt them in her room on one occasion and her daughter 
on another.

What as|K*et this ease may assume after the evidence 
shall Ik* given at the hearing I cannot say. As to this 
present motion I think it must fail. The motion will lie 
dismissed with costs.

3
1
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PHILLIPS v. PHILLIPS kt al.

Doirer—Bar—Adultery—13 Edu\ /., r. .14.

A wife voluntarily separated from her husband after having 
lived with him for three years. Nine years later she married 
again, knowing that her first husband had married, and be­
lieving that he had obtained a divorce from her and that she 
was at liberty to marry. Subsequently she learned that her 

marnage was Illegal, and she immediately toft her 
second husband.

Held, that under the Statute 18 Edw. L, c. 34, the dower right of 
the wife in the estate of her first husband was not barred by 
her subsequent cohabitation with another, as she acted bona 
fide, believing, on reasonable grounds, that she was legally 
entitled to marry again.

This is an application for ndmcugiimncnt of dower.

T. ,1. Carter for the plaintiff.

./. V. Hartley for the defendants.

The plaintiff, Esther Caroline Phillips, was married to 
Janies K. Phillips, at Andover, N. B., on Novenilter l*2th, 
isV.l, when she was fifteen years of age. They lived to­
gether three years, and then voluntarily separated. At the 
time there was one child living, a son only a few weeks old, who 
was taken by his father. After the separation the plaintiff went 
to Ijcwiston, Maine, and later to Iwell. She never had any 
communication of any kind with Phillips, and sup|>orted her­
self, Nine years after she had left Phillips she went through 
the ceremony of marriage with one William Barnes, at 
Lovell. At this time the plaintiff knew that Phillips had 
married again. She and Barnes lived together as man and 
wife * nmt nine years. When she learned that Philli|>s had 
never procured a divorce from her, and that her marriage 
to Barnes was illegal, she immediately left Barnes, and 
since that time has had no communication with him of anv 
kind, and lias sup|»orted herself.

1909.
February in.

Argument wan luiinl January "JO, 1909.

8
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1909.
I‘1111.1.11*14

Phii.i.ii’h

[voi_

T. J. Varier for the plaintiff :—There must lie a know­
ing ami wilful living in adultery to liar dower. If there is 
an almnilomnent liv the Imsliaml, a sllliscqllent living in 
adultery hv the wife does not liar her dower. There must IK- 
a guilty knowledge. The plaintiff diil not voluntarily live in 
adultery, and her dower right is not barred. See Uraham v. 
bur (1); Woolitcy V. Finch ('-'•); Xrjf'v. Thom/tmii (it).

./. C. Hartley for the defendants:—The plaintiff’s dower 
right is burred under the Statute lit Kdw. I., e. i!4. She 
should have made sure that she was entitled to marry again 
lieforc she did so. She did not exercise that cure which 
would reasonably he necessary, in order to find out if she was 
at lilaTty to marry again, and her ignorance is no excuse. 
She never made any proper impiiries herself before her 
second marriage. She was never served with any divorce 
papers, and consequently could not have believed there was a 
divorce. It is a matter of evidence as to wdiet her she was in 
ignorance or not, and whether she neglected to take the neces­
sary precautionary stejis to mid out the true state of affairs, 
viz. if she was at lilierty to marry again. See llrihrini/ttm 
V. Uraham (4); Wumheard v. Ihnrnr (.1); Itontnrk v. Smith 
(ti); Sear/rare v. Snu/rare (7); Frampton v. Strphnm (8); 
Am. A Kng. Kney. of Ijiw (9); Digest of Eng. Case Ism 
(Mews) (1(1).

1909. February 1(1. Barker, ('. .1.: —

'This is an application bv Esther ( 'aniline I’hillips, widow 
of the late James E. I'hillips who died on the 9th August, 
1997, seized of certain real estate in the County of Victoria, 
for the admeasurement of her dower. Notice of the applica­
tion was duly given and the matter came lieforc me in July 
last, w hen Counsel ap|ienrcd for all the parties interested. As 
the circumstances as disclosed by the affidavits seemed so

(1) tl U. C„ C. P. 310.
(2) 20 1T. ('., C. P. 132.
(3) 2(1 U. O..C. P. 211. 
(41 II Bing. 133.
(5) 10 0. B., N. 8. 722.

(0) 34 Beav. 57.
|7| IS Ves. Jr. 138.
(8| 21 ('ll. II. 101.
Ill) 2nd. E(l. Vnl. Ill, 21*1. 

(10) Vol. 7. 1245.
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umisiial in their character nml tliv right was " ", 1 con- 1901).
eluded to hear the matter on rim voce testimony, and at a PiiiLura 
later date the applicant and other witnesses were examined Pinixiw 
liefore me. It ap|s*ars that the |ietitioner and l'hilli|»s were j
married at Andover oil the 12th day of Novcmlier, 18.19, 
she In-ing at that time only fifteen years old. They lived to­
gether for alnnit three years and then voluntarily se|iarated.
She then had but one child living, a son only a few weeks 
old, and the father took him and brought him up until he 
was alxrnt sixteen years old. On tin» separation, or soon 
after, she went to Lewiston in Maine where she remained 
a year and a half and then went to Lowell, and sup|>orted her­
self by weaving in some of the mills there. She has been 
living there until recently, and since the separation, which 
took place some forty-four years ago, 1'hi I lips never con­
tribute! anything to her sup|M>rt, and they had no communi­
cation of any kind. About four or five years after she went 
to Isiwell and about nine years after the st " she 
married, or went through the ceremony of marriage, with one 
William liâmes, at Lowell. They lived together at Lowell 
as man and wife for about nine years when they se|iarated 
and have never lived together since, nor has Karnes con­
tributed anything to her support.

On the 10th August, INKS, l,hillip> married, or at all 
events went through the ceremony of marriage, with Martha 
Amanda Dyer, and they lived together as husLind and wife 
up to the time of I'hillip’s death, a perils I of thirty-nine years.
They hail three children. She says she sup|ioscd I'hi I lip's 
first wife was dead when she married and that she did not 
Irani to the contrary until llerliert—that is the son of 
I'hillip’s by the first wife—returned from Isiwell, where he 
went when about sixteen years of age, and that he was then 
alsiut twenty-one years old, which would make it almut 1882.

The answer set up to this application is that the 
petitioner has forfeited her right of dower by reason of her 
adultery in cohabiting with Karnes, at I si well, for the nine 
vrtrs I have mentioned ; and the Statute 19 Kdward 1., eh.

02
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:>4, is relied on for the contention. There was evidence to 
show tlml Phillips treated tin* pel it inner cruelly, assaulted her 
at times and subjected her to all kinds of indignities. It is, 
however, admitted by the petitioner that the separation was a 
voluntary one; she was to go her way anil get along as liest 
she could and he was to do the same. While his conduct 
may have l>cen such as would sustain a suit for a divorce 
a iiinisa et thorn, it would not justify her living in adultery, 
ami that is the substantial ground which the forfeiture 
created by the Statute rests. lloodinml v. Dow (1); 
Wool ne y v. Finch (2); Ilwtock v. Smith (•>). At common 
law adultery was no liar to the widow’s dower, and it is said 
that as this Statute is in derogation of lier common law rights, 
it is necessary in order to make the Statute applicable to 
prove a guilty knowledge in the jietitioiier. The question 
then arises is the jietitioner’s right of dower barred provided 
the evidence shows that at the time of her so called marriage 
with Karnes and while she continued to live with him as his 
wife, she bona fide believed, and had reasonable grounds for 
lielieving that she was free to marry and that the subsequent 
cohabitation was that of husliand and wife legally married.

In Re;/, v. Tol*on (4), it was held on a nise reserved for 
the consideration of all the Judges that a woman who had 
gone through the ceremony of marriage within seven years 
after she had liecn deserted by her husband, could not lie 
convicted of bigamy, if at the time she had a bona fide belief on 
reasonable grounds that her husliand was then dead. In such a 
nise the menu rea was held to Ik* an essential requisite and 
that without it there could Ik* no conviction. I can see no 
distinction as to principle lietween a case ot jjigamy and a nise 
of adultery, and if this were a trial for that offence on an 
indict ment, as it might Ik* in this Province, it would, in my 
opinion, lie a goixl answer to the eluirge that the sotrallcd 
a< lu Itérons intercourse was with a man with whom the 
|K*titioner had gone through a ceremony of marriage in the

(1) 10(î. B , N. 8. 722.
(2) 20 V. C.. C. P. 132.

(3) 34 Heav. f>7.
(4) L. R. 23 Q. B. I). 108.
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hona Jjilr lielief on reasonable grounds that slit* was fret* to 11)01). 
marry. lu other words can a woman be convicted of adnl- Phillip* 
tew when the inteittmrsc is with one whom she honestIv Phillips

• e * KT AT.
Iielieves on reasonable grounds is her own liuslmud? I think ,
not. The rule at common law was that an honest and 
reasonable belief in the existence of circumstances, which, if 
true, would make the act for which a |H*rson is indicted an 
innocent act, is a good defence. If in such a case the woman 
cannot 1k* convicted of adultery, how can she be said to lie 
living in adultery, that is without all regard to her duty as a 
married woman to remain chaste though separated from her 
hiislmnd. Besides this, it is to be rememliercd that this 
Statute was passed in a country where adultery is not a crime, 
where it is only an offence against the ecclesiastical law, and 
where it is not a criminal act but an immoral one. An act, 
however, which a wife in the discharge of her duty to her 
husband must avoid as the price to Ik* paid for her dower in­
terest in his estate. Common justice {mints to a guilty 
knowledge as the basis of the immorality which the Statute 
says shall bar the dower.

There is no suggestion in the evidence that the petitioner 
has not lived an honest and moral life. So soon as she 
learned that her marriage to Barnes was illegal she left him 
and has had nothing to do with him since. The evidence 
shows that when Barnes made pro|M>sals of marriage to her, 
which was two years liefore the marriage took place, she told 
him that she was a married woman and told him the circum­
stances. Barnes said he would ns* a lawyer alxmt it, and he 
afterwards told her that the lawyer told him that it would Ik* 
all right for her to get married as she had 1ks*h away (from 
her husband I suppose sin* me * ir seven years. Not being 
altogether satisfied with what the lawyer had said Barnes told 
her that he would take measures to find out if Phillips had pro­
cured a divorce. She proceeds in her evidence thus:—“Si he 
(Barnes) came and told me Mr. Phillips had got a divorce, 
was married and all this, and so lieiug there alone and friend­
less and homeless 1 made up my mind after a while I would

40
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marry him for the sake of a home ami friend; Imt after 1 
married him and HerUrt (that is her son) rame out there I 
questioned Jlcrliert about his father having a divorce and 

, Ilerliert said he didn’t know whether he did or not, he didn’t 
think he did, he didn’t hear anything about it. So Herbert 
went to a lawyer to see what the lawyer would say to him and 
the lawyer told him a different story, * * *. ”

“Q. (Ily the (’oiirt) You left your second husband? 
A. I did after I found out Mr. Phillips-------.

“Q. You did leave him? A. Yes.
“(J. When ? A. Twenty-eight or twenty-nine years

ago.
“(J. And you have never lived with him since? A. 

Never have seen him.
“<i. What was the information you got that led you to 

leave him? Was it in consequence of information you got that 
your first husband was still living or married or what? A. 
That he had no divorce.

“(J. Ifa<l you heard of his second marriage? A. Yes.
“Q. When did you hear of his second marriage? A. I 

heard of it before 1 was* married, that is how 1 came to Ik* 
married liecause they told me 1 was clear on account of him 
lieing married and having children.

“(J. And you got information some years afterwards 
that lie hadn’t a divorce at all. Whom did you get that in­
formation from? A. From Herliert, my son.

“(J. That is to say, he told you he didn't think his father 
had a divorce? A. Yes.

“(J. And since that time you have accepted nothing 
from Mr. liâmes in the way of sup|K>rt? A. Not anything.

“<£. And you have not lived with him or mhahited 
with him since you learned or were told no divorce had lieen 
secured? A. I haven’t seen him.”

Herliert Phillips gave evidence on the same |K)int. I le 
says that after he went to Lowell his mother asked him if lie 
knew whether his father was divorced or not and he told her lie 
couldn’t say for certain whether he was or not, but tliat he
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wrote to il friend of liis and ascertained later on that there 1 MM. 
had not been a divorce. He then consulted a lawyer and the •‘«nu.nv 
result was that lie was convinced, or to use his own exprès- ^SFalT8 
sioti “they knew it wasn’t a legal affair and they got out.” harkÊr! <. J.

It is contended that the information which the jietitioner 
procured was altogether too meagre, too vague and too unre­
liable for any reasonable person to act upon in so important 
a matter, and there is much force in the observation. We 
must, however, look at all the circumstances in judging as to 
her bona fide*. To one situated as this |)etitioner was when 
liâmes made pro|H>sals of marriage to her, the prosjieet of a 
home and a happy married life must have lieen a very allur­
ing one, and yet with all its temptations she not only did not 
accept the offer but frankly told him why. It was not an un­
natural thing that he should undertake to procure the infor­
mation and find out what her legal position as to a re-marriage 
was. lie does not seem to have brought her very correct 
advice as to the law or very correct information as to the 
divorce. Hut she believed him as to the divorce, having heard 
that Phillips had married again and naturally reasoning that 
lie must on that aemunt have procured a divorce from her.
In this she was mistaken but her reasoning was precisely 
what most women under the same circumstances would have 
followed. Ilcsides this when she, years afterwards, found 
out her mistake, she promptly did what she could to correct 
it. She left Barnes and the apparently comfortable home 
which he had given her, and went off again to provide for 
herself.

The evidence is, 1 think, quite as strong as it was in the 
following cases where a similar question arose : Ouney v.
(hutry (1), F regard v. Freegard (2); Joncph v. Joarph (3);
Potter v. Potter (4).

I think the |ietitioner is entitled to <lower and there will 
In* an on 1er for the admeasurement.

(1) L. R. 3 Proh & Dlv. 223. (3) 34 L. J. Mat. 90.
(2) L. R. 8 Proh. I). 186. (4) «7 L. T. 721.
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PUOSLEY V. FOWLER and POPE, et al.

Verbal Agreement—Time the Ease nee of the Contract—Laches.

In November, 1Ü02, the plaintiff and the defendant F. with a 
number of others formed a syndicate for the wo of
acquiring options and purchasing land with a view to sale.

The transaction was a large one, involving the purchase of some 
200.000 acres of land in the Northwest Territories, and before 
the land was finally disposed of the syndicate was compelled 
to pay to the owners the sum of $00.000.

The agreement between the plaintiff and F. was verbal, and at 
the time it was made the plaintiff paid the sum of $200.

On tlie 90th of March, 1003, the defendant F. wrote to the plain­
tiff to hold himself in readiness to raise $2,000, “ to hold your 
corner of the deal,” and that if they had to call upon him it 
would beat short notice. The plaintiff took no notice of this 
letter and made no preparation for securing ilie money. On 
the 14th of April, 1003, F. telegraphed the plaintiff as fol­
lows :—“Three thousand dollars absolutely necessary to hold 
your interest in the land deal. Will I draw ? Wire." To 
this the plaintiff sent no reply.

In 1003 the plaint iff learnt speculation had been success­
ful and thot large profits had been made, hm it was not until 
1007 that this suit was brought.

Held, that in view of the special nature of the transact ion, the 
plaintiff's refusal to contribute bis share of the money re­
quired to complete the purchase, and his refusal to answer or 
take any notice of both letter and telegiam, justified the 
defendants in acting on the assumption and belief, that he 
had entirely abandoned the contract and his interest in the 
purchase, and that he did not intend being any loegcr bound
by it.

Held, also, that the plaintiff’s delay in commencing a suit until 
long after he knew that a large profit had been made by a 
re-sale of the land, was, in the absence of any satisfactory 
explanation, evidence that his failure to pay i lie money, anil 
his refusal to answer either the letter or telegram, were in 
fact intended at the time as an abandonment of all interest 
in the transaction.

Bill tiled for an accounting. The facta fully appear in 
the judgment of the Court.

Argument was heard Decern lier T,\, 1 DOS. 

A. \V. Macrae, K.C., for the plaintiff :—

1

3306



NEW Hill)NMWICK EQUITY REPORTS. 123IV.]

A partnership wuh formed between the pluintiff and 
defendants and others. Once there was a jiartncrship it 
could not be diwolved without plaintiff’s nuisent. Onus of 
showing that partnership was dissolved falls on the defend­
ants in this case, and they have failed to do so. Plaintiff 
contributed towards the ex|tenses of the venture, and l>e<rame 
interested in it to the extent of one-thirtieth, and he is en­
titled to receive one-thirtieth of the profits. See Lindley on 
Partnerships (1); Clarke v. liar* (2); Heeketh v. Blan­
chard (3).

.1/. G. Teed, K. ('., for the defendants:—

Plaintiff has not made out a ease within his bill. If 
any agreement has lieen made out, it is void under the 
Statute of Frauds, as transaction was in reference to land, 
and there was no note or memorandum in writing. Plaintiff 
by his acts abandoned any interest that he had, and if any 
agreement, defendants were legally justified in considering it 
rescinded by the actions of the plaintiff : Withers v. Reynolds 
( I); Mersey Steel Co. v. Naylor (•">) ; Frecth v. Burr (fi) ; 
Fry on Specific Performance (7). In eases of options or 
unilateral contracts time is of the essence of the contract, and 
the plaintiff has failed to recognize this : Fry on Specific 
Performance (8); Roberts v. Berry (If).

A. A. 117/xon, K. C. for the plaintiff, in reply :—

Once a partnership existed it could not Ik* dissolved 
without an accounting or mutual agreement. No such pro­
ceedings were taken in this east*. If there was a partner­
ship, Statute of Frauds would not apply. Transaction dealt 
with an option only, and Statute was not applicable. If 
Statute was applicable, draft accepted and paid by the plain-

(1) Ot h Ed pp. 550. 570. 
(2i 0 II. of L. C. 633.
(3) 4 Hast. 144.
(4) 2 Barn. A: Adol 882. 
6} 9 A IT- < Wl

(0) L. H. 9 0. P. 208,
(7) 3rd Ed., pp. 484, 485.
(8) 3rd Ed., p. 407.
(0) 3 DeU McN. A O. 284.
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t i tV won hi lie sufficient. There was no agreement a»* to time, 
ami it canmit lie said to In* of the essence of the contract. 
If there was any negligence on the part of the plaintiff, it 
was not sufficient to justify the defendants in regarding it as 
an abandonment, or to take away the plaintiff's right to a 
share in the profits.

I*.MW. February Hi. ll.uiKKlt, C. J.:—

At the time the transactions which have caused this 
litigation took place, the plaintiff was the proprietor of an 
hotel at Sussex, the defendant, Fowler, was a member of the 
House of ( ominous, redding at Sussex, and the, defendant, 
INipc, was a resident of ( 'ookshirc in t Province of Quebec. 
Ky this suit, which was commenced in .lune, 1007, the plain­
tiff seeks to obtain an account of the profits made by the 
defendants from the sale of some 200,000 acres of land in the 
Northwest Territories, purchased by them from the Canadian 
Pacific Railway Company, and soon afterwards sold to the 
firent West Land Company at an advance of some SI 1;{,000, 

in which profit the plaintiff hv his hill claims a one-thirtieth 
interest, lie bases his claim on a verbal agreement made by 
him with the defendant Fowler, in No vein lier, 1002, in a 
conversation which, lie says, took place at the station of the 
Intercolonial Railway at St. John, and which, from his own 
account given in evidence, was as follows:—“I had gone 
down to catch the train going to Penohs<|uis, due to leave at 
seven o’clock, 1 think. Mr. Fowler was in the * and 
spoke to me, and saitl he was waiting for his train going 
out—the C. P. R. west—and, after a few preliminaries, he 
went on to say lie was interested in a land deal in the North­
west—he and Rufus II. Pope—and had got an option on 
217,000 acres of land from the ( 'inn Pacific Railwax 
Company, lying along the promised road of the Canadian 
Northern Railway, and would like to have me interested in 
this deal ; that it was a good thing, as immigration had set 
in to the west, and that town sites would naturally spring up 

this promised road of the Canadian Northern, and

4
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while this eunsiste<l of 217,000, the 17,000 was a private 1000. 
transaction hetwmi himself and Mr. Po|ie—200,000 for the 1'uusi.ky 

svndicate. The land was to »st—they were to pav for the Kowi.ki: am» 

land—$0.50 an acre, and they were to divide this land matter |tU(KKl{ « j 
up in this way—first into thirds, and the thirds into tenths, 
making it fairly equal shares, saying, I have one share left 
ami I would like you to have it. I have taken a few of my 
friends in, and he mentioned Mr. (leorge Parker and Mr.
S. A. McLeod of Sussex, and Mr. \Y. II. Parlée of Sussex, lie 
slid, Mr. Pojie ami myself are the promoters, and, as promo­
ters, we expect a reasonable amount for promotion ; apart 
from that you shall get your share of the profits. I said, 
how much do you want for the share? And he said $200.
I said, what are the eliaiices, the prosjieets of making a little? 
lie said, you may make #0,000, you may make #5,000, you 
are sure to make something. I said. 1 will take it. lie said,
Mr. Pope will make the draft. Mr. Hnfus II. Pope, and you 
can accept it when it conies. A few days later the draft 
came down.”

“<J. (By the Court.) Was that all the conversation that 
took place down at the train ? 1 >id you say anything further 
to him? A. I said, is it necessary to have a certificate? lie 
said, no, the draft will b- sufficient.

“(J. I )o you recollect anything else that was said ? A. I 
tliink that was alsmt all.

“IJ. Did you pari at the station ? A. We "at 
the station, his train going west, his train went first.”

On his cross-examination the plaintiff adhered to his 
statement as to what took place at St. John, except that la- 
admitted that Fowler might have said something as to the 
lands lieing sold, and the money to pay for them realized in that 
way. And lie also admitted tliat he expected that if more 

money should la* required to pay for the land it would come 
from tla-syndicate of which he was a member, although he says 
that nothing was said about that. Stated shortly, the plaintiff’s 
«use is this, that he Imuglit from Fowler for #200 a onc-thir-

76
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tieth interest in a tract of land comprising 217,000 acres, 
which the defendants had an option to purchase from the 
< anadian Pacific Hail way at $3.50 per acre, or $750,500, and 
which on a re-sale it was expected would realize to him a profit 
of $3,000 to $0,000. In view of the magnitude of this trans­
action ; in view of the fact that the plaintiff was committing 
himself to a possible liability of over $25,000, and in view of 
the place and the occasion at which this casual conversation 
took place, it seems difficult to conclude that the plaintiff’s 
account has been a complete, or in all respects an exact 
account of all that took place, lie is, however, the only 
witness for himself, and the defendant Fowler is the only 
witness for the defence, and it will, perhaps, serve a good 
purpose if on disputed |Hiints, we compare their accounts as 
we go along. On the 7th Novemlier, 1902, a draft for 
$200 was drawn bv Fowler in favor of Pope on the plaintiff 
at forty days. It was accepted, and on its maturity it was 
renewed by a draft at ten days, which the plaintiff afterwards 
paid. It ap|>ears that itt the time this interview took place 
between the plaintiff and Fowler, negotiations for the land 
side had not pnx-eeded far, and nothing very definite had lieen 
decided oil. Mr. Fowler says—and on this |M>int his evidence 
is uncontradicted—that as a result of a visit to the west 
and inquiries into the prospects of railway and colonization 
development in that part of Canada, he and Po|»e on their 
return made a formal application to the Canadian Pacific 
Railway Company for the purchase of 200,000 acres of tin- 
land stretching from the elbow of the Saskatchewan west­
ward, following along the projected line of the Canadian 
Northern Railway, at $3.50 an acre, to which application 
they had receiviil no reply. This is all that had I wen done. 
Hearing this in mind, let us see what Fowler’s version of the 
interview Iwtwccn him and the plaintiff is. After stating that 
lie does not recollect of any interview of the kind at the rail­
way station, and that his impression is that it took plan* at 
Sussex, lie says :—“ I did sec him (plaintiff) sometime the lat­
ter |mrt of tin- month of ( Holier or the first part of the month
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of Novemlier, 1 iM)2, and I suggested to him the coming into 10UÜ. 
a syndicate of tail that Mr Pope and I were getting together 1'iuhi.ey 

for the purpose of purchasing a traet of land in the North- Yv»»'k 1 ktAaiu 
west, and I cannot recall all the conversation in regard to it, jUllKKH , , 
the information I may have given him ahont the lands ont 
there, lieeause 1 had recently returned from the Northwest, 
and was very much impressed with the prospects in that 
country, and I may have talked at some length al>out the 
profits to he derived from land values in the Northwest, but 
I suggested he should become one of a syndicate of ten, and 
informed him it was necessary for each member of the syndi­
cate to put up £"200 for preliminary ex|tenses, to cover the 
necessary charges in connection with the location of the land, 
and that each one of the syndicate would have one share, and 
there would he ten shares altogether. I never told Mr. I*ugsley 
that there was going to In* thirds and those thirds divided into 
tenths, because there was nothing like that contemplated, and 
it would have been an absolute falsehood and unnecessary.”

“<£. Never a word alsuit thirtieths? A. No.
44 Never a word about thirtieths in it from beginning 

to end? A. Never, from I «ginning to end. I told him that 
in my opinion we would Is* able, we liojicd at least to lie able 
to sell before we would have to put up any money.

44 (}. To sell the land you expected to purchase? A. To 
-ell the land that we e.\|>eeted to purchase before we would 
have to put up any money on the purchase price.

44 (J. In other words, make the sales pay the purchase?
\. Yes. I said we ho|>cd to do that, but ! said you must be 
prepared in case we cannot, to carry your corner of the deal, 
as I ex|>eeted every other man to carry his corner.

44 Q. Was there anything said by von on the subject of 
giving reasonable notice if money was required? A. Yes.
I slid if it was ni|itired he would have notice so there would 
lie plenty of time for him to get the money together.

44 <$. hid you tell him at that time von had an option 
•il 217,01 Ml acres of land? A. No.
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“ < What, it" anything, did von tvll him an to your hav­
ing or •**tiiig to have, or expecting to purchase lands in the
Northwest, just relating to the acquisition of them ? A. I 
told him that we expected, we were organizing this syndicate 
of ten, and we expected to buy 200,000 acres of land in the 
Northwest.

“(J. Was anything said then about 17,000 acres?
A. No.

“t£. Was there any purchase of 17,000 acres in contem­
plation ? A. No, Uvatisc it was ini|K>sxiblc for that to have 
l)cen mentioned, because it was not until nearly the first of 
May that the thing resolved itself into the 17,000 acres, and 
if you like I can explain it.

We will come to it later. At that time when you 
had the conversation with Mr. Pugslev, the latter part of 
< Holier or early in Novemlx'r, 1002, had you or not any 
option from the Canadian Pacifie Railway Company, or any 
definite arrangement whatever? A. None whatever.”

I have no hesitation in concluding that in view of all the 
circumstances howler’s version of the interview is much the 
more proltahle one of tin* two, and I adopt it.

howler states that lie went to Montreal and there found 
that Rope had received an answer from Mr. (iriflin, the 
Canadian Pacific Railway Company's land commissioner, in 
which on behalf of the company he declined to sell the land 
at $3.00 an acre and wanted $0.00. This led to a further 
interview with the railway officials in reference to the price, 
and they advised the defendants to go and look over the lands 
and make a selection of the tract out of which they wished to 
take the 200,000 acres. This they concluded to do, and the 
draft for $200 was drawn on the plaintiff as his one-tenth of 
the expense. The defendants then went out to examine and 
locate the lands, and spent some weeks there and at the land 
office in procuring such information in regard to the lands as 
they required in order to make a selection, and they finally 
sehrted the land out of a tract of 300,000 acres. Other
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intervit*wh t<sik place with the Canadian Vavitie Railway 1000. 
officials, the result of which was that the price wax nettled at I'uomlky 

an acre, and a proposal bv tin* defendants to extend the k«wi.kk amh
’ 11 e l*OI*K KT Al..

paymcuts to ten years instead of the usual term of six was,|VKK~ (. , 
refused. 'Phis seems to have heen in 1 )eceml>er, and nothing 
more was done until the latter part of February. I p to this 
time no written agreement of purchase had liccn made, and 
though the price and terms of payment had been agreed upon, 
no money had been paid.

Returning to the plaintiff’s evidence he says, that he 
heard nothing from Fowler (except the " * * had no
communication of any kind with him from the date of the 
interview at the Intercolonial Railway station until March 
:*»lst, I!MW, a period of about live months. On that day he 
received the following letter from Fowler, dated March With 
at < )ttawa.

“Dear I’ugsley,— Hold yourself in readiness to raise 
8-\UlMl to hold up your corner in the land deal. If we have 
to <*all upon you it will Ik* at short notice. The deal is all 
right financially and a good thing, but we may have to put 
up the stuff as the sale has not gone through. We are now 
lighting for our life as (irittin, the land commissioner, is try­
ing to turn us down, huf we hope to lient him out, though lie 
may have influence enough to make us put up the cash at 
once. Yours, etc.,

(•BMtiiK W. Fowl Kit.”

To thir* letter the plaintiff made no reply. He ignored 
il altogether and t<iok no steps to have the #‘2,000 or any part 
<>f it available should it Ik* required. On the 14th April, 
a fortnight later, he received the following telegram from 
Fowler, dated at ( ookshiro, April 14th, 1003.

“Three thousand dollars absolutely necessary to hold 
your interest in the land deal. Will 1 draw? Wire.”

This telegram the plaintiff treated precisely as he had 
touted the letter. He did not reply to it, but ignored it 
altogether.

2733
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The eireumstanees which led up to the wilding of this 
letter mid telegram are thus detailed by Mr. Fowler:—

“(J. What, if anything, occurred that led up to your 
i. writing Mr. Fug-lev the letter of the 80th of March ? A. It 

might have liven in the latter part of February, or it might 
not have been until March, but sometime during the winter, 
either in February or March, I got word. 1 think when I 
got to the Mouse I found Mr. Griffin saying they wanted 
$20,000 paid on account of the purchase price, and that that 
must lie paid at once or the agreement would lie voided ; that 
is, they would not reserve the lands for us. It was not a real 
option, but they would not reserve the lands. Si 1 think 
he then notified me that they had taken the lands out of the 
reservation afterwards. 1 think I had a notice to that effect.

“Q. What, if anything, did you do, so far as the plain­
tiff at all events is concerned, when you found this becoming 
imminent, and what steps did you take to get rid of paying 
the $20,000 in <nsh ? , A. Well, we saw Mr. MeXicoll, 
first vice-president of the Canadian Pacific Railway. Sir 
Thomas Shauglmessy was in Kitrope. We saw Mr. MeXicoll 
and got him to stand the thing over until Sir Thomas would 
return, and notified Mr. (irittin to that effect, and after Sir 
Thomas Shauglmessy returned, we met him. And I may 
say there was another jierson had conic east by the name of 
Brown for the purjHise of purchasing these very lands.”

Fowler says that before he interviewed Sir Thomas 
Shauglmessy lie wrote the plaintiff the letter of March 80th, 
and that when he saw Sir Thomas, he said we would have to 
pay $20,01 HI down, and it might lie $80,000 and we had 
I letter be prepared to pay our money, because this mail Brown 
was prepared to take up the reserved lands and pay the 
money. The telegram of April Nth, 1008, was then sent to 
the plaintiff. The defendants were obliged to pay up the 
$20,000 and subsequently $10,000 more, making $00,000 
in three *of $20,000 each. The defendants then sold
their interest in the purchase to the (îreat West Land Com-
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pany at a profit of some $143,000. The 17,000 acres spoken 
of was simply the surplus of the 300,000 acre tract, after tak­
ing out the ‘200,000, the ( ’anadian 1* Railway, School and 
other reserves, and making the usual allowance for water 
areas. This was not ascertained and could not Ikî until the 
matter was finally settled up. It had nothing to do with the 
original purchase, and the defendants lwmght it themselves at 
S3.f»0 per acre. It therefore seems quite impossible that 
anything could have Ireen said about this 17,000 acres at the 
conversation at the station as the plaintiff says.

Fxccpt for the purposes of an accounting it is perhaps 
unimportant whether the plaintiff’s interest was to he a thir­
tieth, as lie says, or a tenth as Fowler says. The substantial 
defence set up here is, that whatever that interest was the 
plaintiff abandoned it altogether, or so conducted himself as 
to warrant these defendants in believing that he had done so, 
and acting on that I>elief. It is with a view to this defence 
that I wish to call attention to the plaintiff’s conduct in refer­
ence to this transaction. lie says that in the latter jmrt of 
the summer or the early part of the autumn of 1903 he knew 
that the “ deal had gone through,” to use his own expression. 
This suit was not commenced until June, 1907, nearly four 
years later. The plaintiff says that the first time he saw 
l owler after the interview at the Intercolonial Railway station 
was on the 13th of April, 1903, the day before the telegram 
was sent and a fortnight after he had received the letter of 
March 30th. Fowler was then at the mil way station at 
Sussex waiting to take the train for Montreal. He says he 
mw Fowler and he walked over to see him and said, “Good 
morning Mr. Fowler, are you going away? 1 said, I receive! I 
:i letter, lie said, yes, 1 thought it wise to write you in case 
we needed the money. Just after that he took the train and 
went a way.” Mr. Fowler had lieen in Sussex for some days 
at that time, and yet the plaintiff had not sought him out, as 
"lie interested in a transaction of that kind naturally won hi, 
t<‘ get some information as to its progress and the reasons for 
making so large an assessment, lie puts forward now as an
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1UOU. excuse for non-payment, that hv c\|M*<te<l a statement of Home 
I'uihlkv kiml. lint at that time In- slid nothing about statements, 

^;|WI>K.AXD neither «lid hv express any surprise at being railed u|khi to 
h xKHf h « J. 'Hie next «lay when he received the telegram l«e

consulted his solicitor, ami lie says both the solicitor and liim- 
self «nine to the conclusion that the whole thing was a fraud. 
Ilv took no notin' «if the ti-legmni, although it «•alletl for an 
immediate answ«-r. <'onmioii business eivility won hi haw 
snggvste«l a reply, e-pecially as Fowler was anting in the 
plaintiff's interest in the very business from whieh he is now 
seeking t«i beneüt. It smns impossible to suppose that in the 
«utirue hv t«K>k he was not anting delilmratelv with a well 
defined intniithin. Was it to remain in the syndicate ami 
assume his share of tin- responsibilities, that la* might earn his 
shaiv of the profits ? Fvnrything, as it seems to me, points 
to a different conclusion. Was it that lie should, with the 
smalh'st loss, get «mt of a tra usant ion whinh lie and his 
solicitor Inul «‘oiH'lmled was a fraud? Was he ailopting that 
noii-nonimitlal noiirse of aetion which |>eoplc more numiiiig 
than «'amli ! son intimes adopt, anil whinh «"in lie cited as proof 
«if their lining in the s|>enulatiuii if it sliouhl turn out a 
siurnss or nipially well as proof of their lining out of it, if it 
sliouhl turn out a failure? There is some positive evidence 
on the point. FowIit says that he had a malversation with 
tin- plaintiff a few weeks aft«ir the telegram hail I wen sent 
whh'h lie ri'lates as follows:—“ I aske I him why he didn’t 
allow m«i t«i make a draft on him for the money, ami lie said 
that he nouliln’t pay it, «•ouhln't handle it. I said, do you 
want to drop out of tin* thing? And liesahl he would have 
to, it was too big for him to handle, he hud mi i«lea when he 
went int i it he would have to put up money, except the $200 
for preliminary «expulses, ami he said he «•ouhln’t carry it 
further.” Anil Fowler hiivs, that in consecpience of that, they 
made no further «-alls upon him. This conversation is denicil 
by the plaintiff. If it is to lie mvepted, notwithstanding the 
plaintiff's «lenial, it wouhl. I think, establish the defence. It 
is not necessary that I sliouhl express an opinion as to the

relative 
ever, sa 
hi imtu 
with hi 
versatic 
told it.

Tl
or tin-1 

sit ion v 
after th 
ascertai 
to tell >
laiird tl 
Imuse t 
matters 
es. I 

«liiln’t a 
siek tha 
thought 
sai<l, voi 
place mi 
Fowler 
which tl 
towards 
spoke t< 
make ii| 
I will; 
away, 
«li.hi’t H

siiil, I w 
ami I an 
th«- eonv 
ing to «I
NTVHW

on the i 
just quo 
plaintiff



XKW IlltUNxWH'K K^IIITV IIKl‘<Mil's.■ V.]

relative credit to l>e given these two witnesses. I can, how- I‘.MW.
i‘vtT, sav that the statements attributed to the plaintiff seem ivohi.m
so natural under the circumstances, and so entirely in accord Kowi.ku ans

... . ' POHK R1 xi
with Ins own actions that I can readily understand the eon- Ha,>km, ( , 
versation may well have taken place precisely as Fowler has 
told it.

The plaintiff says that in the latter part of the slimmer, 
or the early part of the autumn of ItMKl, he had a conver­
sation with Fowler. This was the first time he had seen him 
after the telegram was sent, and it was after the plaintiff had 
ascertained that the sale had been complete I. lie was asked 
to tell what occurred, and his answer is as follows :—“ I had 
heard that this deal had gone through, and went down to his 
house to see him one evening. After we had chatted over 
matters 1 said, the land deal has gone through. And he said, 
ves. I said, where do I stand in the matter V 1 le says, you 
didn’t answer my letter or telegram. I said, no, I was taken 
sick that day and confined to my lied for several days, and I 
thought you asked me for a very large amount of money. He 
«aid, you wont lose anything. That is all.” Nothing more took 
place until the early part of 1 «)04,some four or five months later, 
howler was then in Sussex and another interview took place 
which the plaintiff describes as follows :—“ I saw him coming 
towards the hotel one day and I went out to the door and 
spoke to him and said, Mr. Fowler, I would like to have you 
make up my bill and contra account as well. He said, yes,
I will ; I would like also to have yours, and started to walk 
away. I said, what alnuit the land matter? He said, you 
didn’t flash up. I said, what about what I did Hash up? He 
slid, I wi ! see you about that later. 1 am going away to-day, 
and 1 am in a hurry to-day, 1 will see you later. That is all 
the conversation then.” These accounts asked for had noth­
ing to do with this transaction. They related to professional 
services of Fowler on the one side, and some contra uccount 
on the other. These last two conversations, which I have 
just quoted from the plaintiff’s evidence, are relied on by the 
plaintiff as amounting to admissions by Fowler of an interest
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ill the land sale and profits, and 1 shall deal with theni 
together, for they impress me in an entirely different way. 

i We must not forget that at this time the lands had hern sold 

! at a profit of ? 143,000 odd, of which the plaintiff on his basis 
of owning a one-thirtieth interest would he entitled, subject 
to charges, to over #4,700. Fowler was the only person who 

had dealt with him in the whole matter ; he, if any one, was 

the accounting party liable to him for this substantial sum of 
money. And yet, lie did not ask for an account or how the 
matter stood. On the contrary, the conversations, short as 

thev were, related principally to matters of comparatively 

trilling importance. Fowler’s version of these conversations 

is, that the allusion in them to the land sale had sole refer­
ence to the #200 actually |»iid by the plaintiff. It is clear 
that the second conversation does only refer to that. The 

plaintiff save nothing more took place until December, 1904, 
some eleven ' ‘ iter, when he again applied to Fowler
about the accounts between them, but there was not a word 
as to the land sale. Another year passed and nothing was 

done until sometime during the winter of lOO.i-li, when the 

plaintiff says lie wrote Fowler “asking him for his contra 

account and also his statement in other matters between us." 
To this letter there was no reply. The next interview took 

place several months later, in the fall of Il’OO. The plaintiff 
gives the following account of what tisik place :—“ 1 
say this was in the autumn of liKIli, it may have been in the 

early autumn. 1 «tilled Mr. Fowler up at his office on the 
’phone anil again asked him for my hill, and he said In­
come in and see me on his way down.”

“ Q. What did you say to him on the telephone7 A. I 
said 1 wanted my hill, and I think that is all 1 said on the 

’phone, and I think 1 mentioned about a statement, and he 
said he would <«11 and see me on his way down. He «wine 

down in the afternoon, came in the house in company with 
Mr. S. A. McLeod and some other gentleman I didn’t know ; 
he was a stranger. He didn’t speak to me about the matter 
and went out again. In the evening, I think the same cven-
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ing of that afternoon, lie came in again apparently to gee 
munebotly, and I called him into the cloakroom in the hall 
and Haiti, Mr. Fowler I am anxious to get your hill and these 
matters between us settled, they have been standing fora long 
time, and I referred to the land matter.

“(J. (By the Court.) Tell me what you said? A. I 
am anxious to get the land matter settled, and he said he was 
in trouble and in law and the ease in Court, and if it went 
against him it would ruin him. I said, 1 think you asked 
me for too much money. You asked me for $'2,000 in a 
letter ami in the telegram for s: 1,000. lie said, the telegram 
S2,000. I said, no, $0,000. He said, look it up. I said, I 
have looked it up and it is there, lie said, you offered $000. 
I slid, no, 1 never made any offer. That is what he told me. 
lie said, 1 will see you again. That is all he said to my 
recollection.”

The plaintiff says he waited for some time, and as noth­
ing was done, he brought this action, lie uIm> says that at 
this time he had learned from the published reports of an 
investigation which took place at Ottawa, how the sale had 
turned out, though lie knew long before that it had taken 
place, 'faking the plaintiff’s own account I am unable to 
reconcile his want of interest in the results of this s|>eculution, 
hi< anxiety as to the $200 and his apathy as to the profits, 
his constant and almost persistent efforts to procure his pro­
fessional account and his casual allusion to the land sale, and 
then with special reference to the $200 only, with the ordi­
nary conduct of a man who claimed to have an interest in 
the transaction. I think the evidence of Fowler as to tin- 
plaintiff’s express abandonment is eorrolwrated by the ad­
mitted facts and his own conduct. But apart from that, I 
think there is abundant evidence to show that the plaintiff, 
w hen he found he was to be called on for a somewhat larger 
payment, concluded that he had lletter not risk any more 
money in a speculation of such magnitude, however attractive 
it might look. In short, that his first loss would lie the 
- mallest, and that he would therefore, withdraw. If he
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could get his #*200 Irnek, well anil good, hut if not, that lie 
would not perforin his contract by | wiving what his assess­
ment was in order to hold his interest. 1 think also the 
defendants were quite justified in believing that to he his 
intention and acting on it.

The plaintiff knew that this was a sjieciilation—a deal 
as he calls it—involving a large sum of money, and involving 
many risks, lie also knew, or should have known, that 
promptness in making payments is one of the essential factors 
in such transactions. And he must have recognized the fact 
that the money which he refused to pay must necessarily lie 
paid by some one or the whole arrangement would fall 
through and result in loss. It is no answer to this to say 
that in tin1 accounting the amount paid for the defaulter can 
lie re-paid with interest. But such a position cannot he 
forced upon him, and if there was a loss in the speculation, 
those who |iaid would lie without remedy, Iavalise they did 
not pay at the defaulter’s request in any way.

( >n the hearing the plaintiff amended his hill by alleging 
a |iartiiersliip to have liecii created, so as to entitle him to an 
account on that basis, and that the moneys which the 
should have paid would Ik* chargeable with interest against 
his share of the profits. I do not agree in this view. Had 
the Canadian Pacific Bailway lieen |*iid in full the convey­
ance would have vested the property in the ten memliers 
as tenants in common, or in trust for them as such. At 
most these ten wen* interested in the profits in the pro|>ortion 
of one-tenth each, and whether you call them partners or 
tenants in common, it is equally open to any one to abandon 
his interest.

In Freeth v. Burr (1), ls>nl Coleridge says:—“ I men­
tion that lieeauHe it is inqiortniit to express my view that, in 
mses of this sort, where the question is whether the one party 
is set free by the action of the other, the real matter for coti­
saient tion is whether the acts or conduct of the one do or do

(I) L. R. 9 C. P. 208.

C4A
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mit nniimiit tu an iiitiiuntiuii ni un intention tu nlmiulon and I!»(»!*. 
nltogetlier to refiiee perfiirmanee of tlip contract. I sav tliis Vio»i.kv 
in order to explain the ground upon which I think the t'iwi.aii in a 
decisions in these eases must rest. There lias U*en si une eon- „utKMe < j 
tliet amongst them. Hut I think it may he taken that the 
fair result of them is as 1 have stated, viz., that the true 
<|iiestion is whether the aets and eonduet of the party evince 
an intention no longer to Ik* hound by the contract. Now, 
non-payment on the one hand, or iion-deliverv on the other, 
may amount to such an act, or may he evidence for a jury of 
an intention wholly to abandon the contract and set the other 
party free.”

In Mcmcy Steel and Jeon Co. v. Saylor (1), Lord Sel- 
I'oiirne states the rule as laid down in Freelh v. Bit it, thus :—

You must look at the actual circumstances of the ease in 
on 1er to see whether the one party to the contract is relieved 
from its future |>crforniniiee by the conduct of tin* other ; von 
must examine what tint conduct is, so as to see whether it 
amounts to a renunciation, to an absolute refusal to perform 
the contract, such as would amount to a rescission if he had 
the |tower to rescind, ami whether the other party may accept 
it as a reason for not |>erformiug his part ; and 1 think that 
nothing more is necessary in the present ease than to look at 
the conduct of the parties, and see whether anything of that 
kind has taken place here.”

And in Clarice v. Ilart (2), the same rule is laid down.
That ease was relied on by the plaintiff in regard to the ques­
tion of forfeiture, but it has no application to a ease like the 
present. It was a case of a mine, and by the rules of the 
proprietors the share of a member was liable, on certain forms 
I icing observed, to forfeiture for non-payment of calls. There 
k however, one passage which liears upon this ease. The 
Lord Chancellor, after alluding to the doctrine of estop|>cl as 
enunciated in Pickard v. Scam (!)), and Freeman v. Cooke. 
f I), goes on to speak of the general law as applicable to

(1) 9 A. C. 434.
(2) « II. of L. (’. 033.

(3) 0 A. A; K. 4110.
(4) 2 Kxeh. ÜÔ4.
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1UOU. special descriptions of property such as mines. He says :— 
I'nisi.KY “The ease of mines lias always been considered by a Court 

Kmvi.Mt anii of Kquity as a peculiar one. The proju-rty is of a very pre- 
!t mikKit < i ^^***^m® description, fluctuating continually, smMen emergen- 

cies arising which require an instant supply of capital, and in 
which tin* faithful performance of engagements is absolutely 
necessary for the prosjierity and even the existence of the 
concern. And, therefore, where jiartics under these circum- 
staiices stand by and watch the progress of the adventure to 
see whether it is pros|ieroii8 or the contrary, determining that 
they will intervene only in case the affairs of the mine should 
turn out pros|M*rous, hut determining to hold off if a different 
state of things should exist, Courts of Kquity have said that 
those are parties who are to receive no encounigcment ; that 
if they come to the Court for relief, its doors shall l>e closed 
against them ; that their conduct lieing inequitable, they have 
no right to o ‘ * *« relief.’*

In this case no question arises as to the amount asked 
from the plaintiff being required at the time. Ami when lie 
was first notified that it would probably Ik» required, so that 
fie might prepare to meet the payment, ami afterwards in­
formed by the telegram that the $d,000 was necessary—abso­
lutely necessary are the words—to hold his interest, and he 
is asked to wire if he (Fowler) may draw for the amount, ami 
lie makes no reply to either the letter or the telegram, it is a 
refusal in itself ami an acceptance of the result which the 
telegram s.ivs will follow on the non-payment. There is 
nothing in the evidence, from lieginning to end, to show that 
the plaintiff ever hail any intention of paying the money or 
any part of It. His excuse that he wanted a statement, 
or that he coni*1 not answer the telegram because he was 
taken siek, is too trifling to merit any consideration.

This bill must lie dismissed with costs.

1
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SMITH, kt ai,., Trustees, Etc. ok Robertson v. 
ROBERTSON, ET ai.. February f.1.

1909.

Will—Construction—Administration of Trusts Legatee's Power 
of Appointment—Time for Distribution—Implied Power to 
Sell Ileal Estate—Interest in Hesidnary Estate.

If. di«*d in 1870, leaving practically nil his property upon trust for 
the benefit of his widow and children. In his will, in order 
to make an equal distribution of a large portion of his estate 
among his five daughters, he grouped together certain prop­
erties, in part real estate and in part personal, in five separate 
schedules. The property in schedule (A) was devised to the 
testator’s daughter M. A. A. who died in 1002, leaving a will 
hv which, in exercise of the power of appointment in her 
father’s will, she devised one-third of her estate to her hus­
band who survived her.

The clause in the will relating to the final distribution of the 
scheduled property was as follows “ And upon trust on 
the death of either of my said daughters to convey one-third 
of the said lands, tenements, hereditaments and premises 
apportioned to her in such schedule, to such person or per­
sons upon the trusts and for the ends, intents and purposes 
or in such manner as my said daughter may by any writing un­
der her hand, attested by two or more witnesses, or by her last 
will and testament direct and appoint, and as to the remain­
ing two-thirds, to hold the same for the child or children, or 
such of them of my said daughter so dying, upon the trusts 
and in the proportion, and for the intents and purposes my 
said daughter may by her last will and testament direct and 
appoint and in default of such direction and appointment 
then and in such case the said two-thirds and one-third shall 
he held by said executors and trustees in trust for such child 
or children and ]>e divided equally between them and their 
heirs, share and share alike, on the youngest child living 
attaining the age <if twenty-one years and in the meantime 
and until such child shall attain such age, the rents, issues 
and profits thereof shall he applied hv my said executors 
toward the support, maintenance and educat ion of such child 
or children, and in the event of my daughter dying, leaving 
no issue her surviving, then and in such case 1 will and direct 
that the said two-thirds and one-third before mentioned (if 
no disposition of the same shall he made by my said daugh­
ter) shall he equally divided by my said executors and trus­
tees between her sisters and brother and their respective 
heirs in equal proportions per stripes and not /ter capita.”

Held, that the trustees, in order to make a distribution, had 
power to sell and dispose of the scheduled property appor­
tioned to the deceased daughter, such power being implied in 
the will in order to carry out the trusts, though no express 
power was given.
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liHIÎI. 1/t‘hl also, that, the deceased daughter having died without iwue, 
thi* unappoiiited two-thhdsoi lier scheduled property should 

-iMirii kt xi lM« eipially divided now between the surviving daughters and 
Kuiikhthun the heirs ol the deceased son.

1 1 xl' Tin* residuary clause in the will was:—•'The rest, residue and 
remainder of my sail! estate, Isitli real and personal and 
whatsoever and wheresoever si'uate, I give, devise and lie- 
< I ileal h the same to my said exe« utors and Irustees, u|hiii the 
trusts and for the intents and purposes following, that into 
say : I'pon trust after paying my brother Duncan Itoliertson 
or his heirs, to whom I give and hiMpmath the same, the 
legacy or sum of four thousand dollars. Dominion eurrenev. 
to sell and dispose of the same as and when they shall in 
their discretion see fit and consider to Ik* most for the lieneHt 
and mixantage of mv said estate, and shall ap|M>rtion the 
same or the proceed* of such parts or portions as shall he sold 
from time to time, equally to and among my said children, 
share and share alike, and shall hold the same for my said 
children ami their heirs, share and share alike, subject to any 
advances or sums made or to he made hy me, as aforesaid 
upon the same trusts, with regard to my said daughters as 
are hereinlsdore declared with respect to the said estate In 
the said schedule* mentioned.”

//chi, that the deeease«l <1 «lighter had a disposing power over 
one-third of her share of the residuary estate; and that the 
remaining two-thirds was divisible as was directed in regard 
to the schediihal property.

Tin* is an application l»y the trustee for directions, in the 
matter of the construction of the will of the late lion, .lolin 
Ixoliertsuii. The opinion of the Court is asked on the fol­
lowing thru* <ptestions;—

1. In what manner shoithl tin* payment he ntaile to the 
executors of Is-wis .1, A Inton of the onc-thinl of sclnilitle 
(A), np|Miinteil to sail I L. .1. Almon tun 1er the will of his wife 
Marx Allan Almon, /. r„ have the plaintiff* the | tower to sell 
ami dispose of the laml* ami premises mi it prising jiart of said 
schedule (A ) ?

2. What di*|Hi*ition should In* made by the plaintiffs of 
the remaining unap|siinte<l two-thin Is share of said Marx 
Allan Almon in said sehedttle (A), #. <*.» should same In- 
iiptallv divided now Itetween the surviving eltildrett of the 
testator, and the heirs of David l>. Kohertson deeiiinal ; or 
should the same Ik* held in trust until the death of the last 
surviving daughter of the testator, ami then ap|»ortioited Ite- 
tween the ehildren of any deceased child per at ripe* f
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!>. I lad slid Man A Mini A linon a <lis|H>sing |>ower 1ÎI0U.
« » vit oiiv-tli'ml of lier interest in tin* residuary estate? If so, smith rr \i. 
what dis|H>sition should lie made by the plaintiffs of the mi- Hohkmtmon 
appoinhd two-thirds? If not, what disposition should lie 
made of her whole interest in the residue?

'I’llis bill has been tiled by the exeeutors and trustees 
under the will of the late Hon. John Hoi h-its on for direetions 
as to the adininistratioii of the trusts deelaml in the will in 
referenee to certain portions of the estate. This will, after 
making provision for the testator’s widow during her life and 
for a legacy of £1,0011 to Duncan Rol>ertson, deals exclusively 
with provisions made for the lieiiefit of the testator’s children, 
and the distribution of the estate among them or for their 
lienctit. I le left him surviving Inside his widow, live daughters 
and one son. Of these children David, the son, was married
and had issue living at the time of the testator’s death. One
of the daughters, Mrs. Alinon, was then married, but had no 
bsue, ami another, Mrs. ( liles, was married since the testa­
tor’s death, and she has a son and «laughter living. The 
remaining «laughters of the testator are unmarried. David 
D. Robertson, the son, died on the : »r«l March, 1 SIM », intes­
tate, leaving a widow ami live «laughters, all of whom are 
living. Tin* test it ir’s widow died on the *27th March,
IS!M. Mrs. Alinon died on tin* *20th January, 1ÎMV2,
leaving her surviving her Imsliand L«*wis ,1. Alinon, but no 
issue. She left a will, dated August *2*2nd, 1S77, to which 
I shall refer later on. The testator <li«il August Jnl, 187M.
L J. Alinon died August *2Jnl, DM 17, having made a will 
by v hi«‘li In* gave all his real and personal projierty t«i his 
tixeeutors and trust«*es upon «*ertain trusts which are iiuim- 
portaut for the purpos«*s of this ease.

Argument was henni Deeemlier *21, IMUS.

.1. O, Earle, K. (’., for Kliza Roliertson, Siphia Roliert- 
^on and Agnes Lucas HolH*rts«m, tin* tlnw unmarrie«l daugh­
ters «if the testator, defendants :—
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190U. Ho fur ns scheduled projierty is concerned, distribution
Smith kt al should Ik- made immediately upon tin* death of any of tin* 
^'rrAir"0* W‘1UH1,,1<‘ legatees. There is nothing in the will to warrant 

a post | smell lent. The imnp|M>intcd two-thirds of schedule
(A) should In- equally divided now among the surviving 
children of the testator. By the words of reference, all the 
trusts referred to in the schedule shares have to Ik* read into 
the trust of the residuary share, and therefore it would Is* 
divisible at the same time and in the same manner as the 
schedule projierty.

W. A. Kirin;/, K. for the executors of Ix*wis 
«I. AImon, the husliniid of the testator’s deceased daughter, 
defendants :—

The direction in the will to divide the property does not 
mean to convey an undivided third ; the trustees must set 
apart a separate third : Comtek v. Pearce (1); Henry v. 
Üim/Mon (2). The trustees have an implied power to sell : 
Moirrr v. Orr (3). See also Jarman on Wills (4). The 
trustees uiupiestionnhlv have |tower to sell and convert the 
jiersoimlty : . Feryneon v. Steirart (Ô). There was a jniwer 
of ap|M>intment by the testator’s daughter over one-third of 
her interest in the residuary estate: Coo/ter v. MacDonald((»).

J/. G. Teed, K. for T. Unira ( 'ampliell Giles, a 
daughter of the testator, and the representatives of David l>. 
UoIhtIsoii the ileeeasi'd son, and all other defendants :—

The word “ convey ” in the will clearly cannot mean sell 
and divide ; it is a s|»ecific and delinite word. The word 
“then” where ux-d in this will is clearly a won I of reference 
and not of time : Campbell v. Hardiny (7); Branded: v. 
Dormer (8); Jarman oil Wills (9). The will must Ik* taken 
as a whole, and general intention of testator considered.

(1) 7 Hare 477.
(2) 1» Hr. Ch. K. r»22.
(Si 7 ll.m- 472.
(4) fith Ed. pp. .V>2, 553. 
(6) 22 (ir. Ch. It. 304.

(6) L. It 10K«,. 2.W.
(7) 2 It. X My. 300 at p. 411. 
(H) 2 Atk. 3m.
(V) 5th Ed. Vol. II. 1885.
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Intention wits for estate to be divided equally. If the una|>- 1909. 
jMiiiitcd two-thirds of the proj>erty devised to the deceased smith ict ai. 

daughter of the testator in schedule (A) Ik* divided now, and Roms'itson 
mi on as each daughter dies, the * of the twtator will „U(Kn{ ( ,
lie defeated, as the surviving daughter will receive by far the 
largest amount. There was no disposing power in any of 
the daughters of the testator, over any jiart of the residuary 
estate. The trust as to the schedule property and the resi­
duary trust are irreconcilable and irrepressibly in conflict.
The specific words of the residuary clause must be given 
effect, in preference to general words before used. Residuary 
trust was by way of reference, and in such a ease the inten­
tion of the testator will prevail : Surtees v. Ilojtkinson (1).

A. O. Earle, K. C., in reply.

Jluwijer S. Smith, for the plaintiffs, took no part, except 
to state the points upon which the direction of the Court was 
sought by the trustees.

1909. February 23. Baukkr, (\ J.:—
(His Honor recited the facts of the ease as stated aUive, 

and proceeded as follows.)

Kliminating all parts of the will n* to the share 
given to the son David D. Itoliertson, in referem-e to which 
qieeial provisions and directions are made which have no 
reference to the questions now under discussion, the testator 
for the tse- ol his will and in order to make an <*qiial 
distribution of a large |sirtion of the estate among his live 
daughters, grouped together «vrtain properties, in |iart real 
«•'late and in part personal, in five separate schedules desig­
nated for the purjMise of reference by the letters A, It, (1, D 
and K. These schedules form a part of the will and the 
property deserilied in each, the testator when he made his 
will valued at #00,000. The property dvserilied in schedule

(l) I. R. I Kq. UK.

7

2369

4
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lMOi). (A) wiih devised for Mix Almon’s benefit—that in (H) for 
smith kt ai. the lienetit of her «inter Eliza, and so on. Eliminating for 

the présent also all the provisions in the will relating to the 
iuhkkk. (, j ineome of the estate, the trusts in reference to it and the 

various directions given for the purposes of its management, 
previous to the death of the testator’s widow, the will pro­
vides that after the widow’s death, the net annual income from 
the property described in the several schedules shall be paid 
to the daughters to whom such property has been 
tinned ; that is, Mrs. Almon was, during her life, to receive 
the net income of the projierty described in schedule (A), and 
so on with the others. The will then piis-eeds thus:—

“ And u|hiii trust on the death of either of my said 
daughters to convey one-third of the said lands, tenements, 
hereditaments and premises apportioned to her in such sche­
dule, to such |arson or |arsons upon the trusts and for the 
ends, intents and pur|»oses or in such manner as my said 
daughter may by any writing under her hand, attested by 
two or more witnesses, or by her last will and testament 
direct and ap|>ouit, and as to the remaining two-thirds, to 
hold the same for the child or children, or such of them of 
my said daughter so dying, ii|»on the trusts and in 4he pro­
portion, and for the intents and piiqsises my said daughter 
may by her said last will and testament direct and ap|>oint, 
and in default of such direction and ap|M>intinent then and in 
«licit ease the said two-thirds and one-third shall lie held by 
my said executors and trustees in trust for such child or 
children ami Ik* divided equally lietween ‘ ‘ heirs,
share and share alike, on the youngest child living attaining 
the age of twenty-one years, and in the meantime and until 
such child shall attain such age, the rents, issues and profit* 
thereof shall Ik* applied by my said executors toward the 
siip|N>rt, maintenance and education of such child or children, 
and in the event of my daughter dying, leaving no issue her 
surviving, then and in such case I will and direct that the 
said two-thirds and one-third Ik-fore mentioned (if no dis­
position of the same shall Ik* by my said <laughter)4

47

13190668
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shall Ik.* equally divided by my said executors and trustees 
1 N't ween her sisters and brother and their resjicetive heirs in 
equal projiortions per «tirpcs and not per capita

This is the only elan.** in the will relating to the final 
distribution of the scheduled property. Two of the three 
questions submitted for directions relate to these properties, 
and it will lie convenient to disjmso of them here. They are 
as follows :—

1. In what manner should the (laymeut In* made to the 
exécutons of Lewis J. AImon of the one-third share of sche­
dule ( A ), appointed to the said L d. AImon under the will of 
liis wife Mary A. A Inion, i. #•., have the plaintiffs the jniwer 
to sell and dispose of the lands and premises comprising part 
of schedule (A)V

What disposition should lie made by the plaintiffs of 
the remaining unappointed two-thirds share of said Mary 
Allan Almon in said schedule (A), i. should the same he 
equally divided now lictween the surviving children of the 
testator, and the heirs of David IX Roliertson deceased, or 
should the same lie held in trust until the death of tin.1 last 
surviving daughter of the testator, and then apportioned 
In tween the children of any deceased children per «tirpes f

Mrs. Almon by her will executed her (tower of ap|ioint- 
nieiit as to her scheduled property in favor of her huslmnd. 
It consists partly of personal pro|>crty and partly of real 
estate. The trust is to convey to the ap|Miintee one-third of 
the lands, tenements, hereditaments and premises, etc. upon 
►m il trusts as the daughter may direct. This docs not mean 
an undivided one-third interest in all the lands and property, 
hut either one-third of the projierty set apart and equal in 
value to one-third of the value of the whole or part in projierty 
and part in money. It would lie a most unusual provision 
hy which trustees in making a final distribution of a mixed 
fund, are required to convey a one-third undivided interest to 
one (arson upon certain trusts and the remaining two-thirds 
among nine other (arsons with different interests and for

190b.
smith et ai. 

Hoiierthox

Hakkkk. J.
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190V. pur|»oses altogether different. That is not the true eonstruc- 
smitii n \t timi. The np|>ointee is eutithal to have transferred to him 
lium.i:rsox either in siwcilic proiwrtv or in mont‘V or in Ixitli what is

BT AI* . 1 *
equivalent to one-third of the value of the whole, and the 
other two-thirds are to lie divided equally as the will directs. 
And if, in order to make this division or to determine the 
value for that purpose, it is necessary to make a sale, there 
is in my opinion an implied power in the trustees for that 
purjMw as incident to the complete execution of the trust. 
.1 fnmr v. Orr ( 1 ).

As to the |>oint s|xvificully mentioned in the second 
question I have alreidy indicated my view. I think that 
the scheduled properties are to lie treated and dealt with as 
entirely separate funds, and that hy the clear language of the 
will, it was the testator’s intention that as each daughter 
died the property apportioned to her was to Ik* distributed 
according to the directions in the will, which seem to me to 
Ik* explicit and to have I wen prepared with a view of provid­
ing for the various discs which might arise hy reason of 
marriage, failure to appoint or otherwise. There is no pro­
vision in the will for the payment to any one (except in the 
«use of children) of the interest or income arising from these 
scheduled properties after the ddith of the daughter to whom 
they are resjwetively apportioned. Was it to accumulate in 
the hands of the trustees for the Ixnicfft of some jmrson after 
the sisters had all died? I think not. No such provision 
was made lx va use the vorjm* of the fund was then going out 
of the trust into the |x>ssessioit ami for the use of the sisters 
ami others entitled to it. How can it he .slid that when the 
testator directes I that two-thirds of Mrs. Almon’s scheduled 
property should, in the event of her death without issue, lx* 
equally divided by the trustees Ix'tween her sisters ami brother 
ami their resjxvtive heirs in equal proportions yxv Why**, lie 
intcmled that so far from this being done it should not lie 
divided at all until all the sisters hail died, then to go among 
those who would lw include! within the term “heirs.”
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The |»riii<*i|ml, 1 may «ay the only argument for a 190V. 
different construction was this—that the result of a distri- smith rr ai. 

Imtion of each of these finals on the death of the daughter to lu,£*‘"w,N 
whom it had lieen apportions! would result in an unequal uABKKR , tf 
division of the estate among the testator’s children, and thus 
defeat his will and desire as expressly declared in the will 
itself. That is to say the last surviving daughter will come 
into the use and possession of her share in the different two- 
thirds interests of the |h ni ions of the others and in that wav 
derive a greater lienetit from the estate than her sisters who 
had predeceased her. That will Is* so, and I imagine there 
is no jierson more likely to have forseen that result than the 
testator himself. He, however, made a different provision 
for daughters with children than for those who had none, 
for in the former ntse the mother had practically a |tower of 
di>|tosal over her whole fund for the Itenetit of her children, 
and in no east1 did the two-thirds share of it go to the sisters. 
Speculations like these are of no value in determining a tes­
tator’s inti where on the face of the will itself he has 
declared his particular * in clear and precise language,
lie himself scheduled and np|tortioncd these pnqiertiiMi; lie 
made s|tceial provision bv which the trustees were authorized 
to restore the equality in value in oise it had by losses or 
otherwise U-en disttirlxd after the date of the will ; and so 
far as his daughters are concerned, he made precisely the 
same provisions in reference to each where the iimditions 
were the same. He has not only expressiil in his will a 
desire to divide his estate equally among his children, but in 
the control, enjoyment and filial dis|»usil of these scheduled 
funds, ereatiil hy himself, se|Nirute and distinct from the 
remainder of his estate he has expressly providsl for
in his will he has given a of what he
himself meant by an equal distribution of his estate among 
his children.

The third question is as follows:—
21. Had said Mary Allan Almoh a discing |lower 

«•ver one-third of her interest in the residuary estate? If so,

7
6369

^
24503
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l'.MIli. mluit <lih|Hihitiiiii hliimlil lw mmlv liy tlir |ilniiitilTs of tlie un- 
smith KT Al. Iip|*iint«-il tMTi-thiriU? If not, wlint <lk|*wition slimilil I».
II"ctKa7in iii,i,*,‘ Iwr w hole intmvt in tin-rwiilucV

Hmikhi, C. .1. The residuary v lu il h» in the will is us follows:—

“ The rest, residue nml remainder <if my said estate, 
Imtli reul nml |ktsoiuiI, nml whatsoever nml wheresoever 
sit i in tv, I give, devise nml Impiintli tliv snmv to my said 
executors nml trnstves, ii|mui tliv trusts nml for tile intent* 
nml |Mir|MMS* following, tlmt is to sav: U|sm trust after inly­
ing my brother Dimiiiu Koliertson, or his heirs, to whom 
give nml Isipicuth the Mime, the legnev or sum of four 
thousand dollars, I tomiiiioii currency, to sell nml <lis|Hise of 
the s'.uiK* ns nml when they sluill in their discivtion see tit 
nml mushier to lie most for the U'licHt nml mlvnntnge of inv 
**uid estnte, nml slinll n|i|»ortion the same, or the proiveds of 
siieli parts or (Hirtioiis ns slnll Is* sold from time to time 
cipiully to nml uniong my sniil ehihlren,sluirv nml sluircnlike, 
nml slinll liohl the snme for my siiil ehihlren nml their heirs, 
slinre nml sluirv nlike, subject to any advuneis or sums miulr 
or to In* iiukle by me, ns nforesnhl, ii|niii the same trusts, with 
regard to my snhl daughters, us are herein In-fore «1er In ml 
with re>|ieet to the snhl I'stnte in the snhl selinbile mentioned.”

In anhlitioii to the eoiiteiition tlint by n present distrihn- 
tion nil iunpiulity wouhl arise ns lietwceu the sisters in the 
division of the estate, and whieh I have dismissed in dealing 
with the seem id ipiestioii, it has been argued ns to the third 
« I notion that the trusts de.dnrnl ns to the selieduhil funds 
were so inconsistent with those declared ns to the residuary 
i•state that they could not Ik* incor|»orutod together, and the 
Inst provisions of the will must prevail. Ily the clause the 
trustees are given u power of sale, and out of the pro|»ertyor 
the pr<M‘ecds of the sale the trustees are to do with tin 
residuary estate precisely wlmt the testator had himself done 
xxitli the other |mrt of the estate, that is, np|sirtion it to and 
among the ehihlren cipiullv. They wen? then to hold tin 
same, that is these np|iortioiifd slum's, for tin* ehihlren nml
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their heirs, share and share alike, as aforesaid, upon the same 190$*.
trusts with regard to the daughters as had by the previous smith kt ai.

part of the will been declared with resjieet to the seheduled Roiikhthun 

|irn|H*rty. If the testator’s intention and desire was to make ,UllK~ , j 
an eipial division of his estate among his children, as no
doubt it was, for he has expressly said so in the will itself,
and if the provisions of the will in reference to the enjoy­
ment, control and final disposition of the scheduled proper- 
lie-, represented the testator’s views as to carrying his inten­
tion into effect, is it certainly did, was it not the most natural 
way for him, when dealing with the residuary estate, to 

♦ ntrust the apportionment of it among his children to his 
trustees, and then direct that they should hold it for his 
children and their heirs in just the same way and upon the 
suite trusts as they held the scheduled properties. I am at 
a loss to see what better way there was by which lie could 
accomplish his object There is no inconsistency in the clauses 
that I can disinvcr. The words “for my slid children and 
heirs ” are but a copy of a phrase in the previous part of the 
will, and the trustees were to hold it in trust for 
ters upon the same trusts as had lieen declared in reference 
to the scheduled projierty. I think that the effect of the 
will is that the portion of the residuary estate set a|mrt for 
Mrs. Almoii as representing her share must lie dealt with as 
living held by the trusti-es on precisely the same trusts as 
they hold the projicrty described in schedule (A). It 
iin-essarily follows that she had an ap|>ointing |tower as to 
«•lie-third of it, which she has exercised in favor of the 
husband, and the remaining two-thirds will Ik* divisible as 
before.

As to the first <| nest ion ; I say that in order to make the 
|Kiyment to the executors of L. ,1. AImon of tile one-third 
•hare of schedule (A) a p| minted to him, the trustees have 
|M»wer to sell and dispose of the pro|»erty in that schedule or 
hi much of it as they may deem necessary.

In answer to the second <|Uestion. The uiiap|Kiinted 
two-thirds share vf Mrs. Almon in the projierty of schedule

815
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(A) should lx* equally divided now lx)tween the surviving 
vhihlren of the testator and the heirs of David D. Koltertsou.

In answer to the third question. Mrs. Alinon had a 
. disposing |>ower over one-third of her share of the residuary 
estate. The iiiiappointed two-thirds should lx* distribute! 
now as declared in referenee to the last question.
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PICK v. KDWAHDH kt al.

Except uni» to .1 murer.

Answers to interrogatories must he mule substantially nml fully, 
ami not with a view to avoid giving information, hut they 
need not In* in strict or technical language.

The rule in Itcmie v. WootlroojYc (1) followed.

This matter came up for hearing on exceptions filed to 
tin* defendants’ answer.

Argument was heard S'ptembcr l.*i, 1 ‘.MIS.

Willia in II. (hniul/er, K. < for the plaintiff.

Peter Ihn/lic*, for the defendants.

11108. ( Holier 0. Hark Kit, < ’. .1. :—

Ivxceptinns to Answer.

The th>t exception arises out of an answer to the sixth 
interrogatory, in which the defendants were asked as to 
whether or not, on or alsiut the lOtli of ()etolK*r, 1000, or on 
* line other or what date, and immediately Indore the hearing 
in a certain suit lietween the same |nirtics, a conveyance was 
made by one Isalndla L. Murray and the defendant Alice 
Kd wards. The defendants state their belief that a convey­
ance of that date was made, hut they do not state whether or 
ii<>t this was immediately Indore the Imaring in this other 
suit. ' It is objected that the answer is insullieieiit, inasmueh 
a» whether such a conveyance was made or not is a fact 
within the |nirsonal knowledge of at least one of the defend­
ants, the plaintiff is cutithM to distinct admissions of the fact, 
and that a statement of mere lielief in such a case is insuf­
ficient. It is ii meecssnrv for the decision of this ease to

1908.
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190S. express any opinion on (liât |>oint. The mil question in­
i'» k volved in exception* to answer* is whether the (leicndniits

Kkt a?I>8 *lilvt' mihstantinlly and fully answcml the interrogatory. I 
o(KKit < ,i these defendant* have done so. In the first place we

have their belief that the conveyance in question was made, 
and it is at all events the general rule that the defendant*’ 
belief w ill be as against them accepted by the Court as its 
belief, lint in addition to this, in another |nirt of the answer, 
the miiveyaiMr is set out at length. And as to the question 
whether or not it was made immediately before the hearing 
in the other suit, it is stated in the answer this bearing was 
adjourned from Octol>er 2nd, ltH)6, until the 30th of the 
same month. The rule a* laid down in Hemic v. If oodronffc 
(1 ), is, that where the substantial information is given,though 
not strictly and technically, it is sufficient when there is 
nothing to suggest that the defendant is seeking to avoid giv­
ing the information. I think this exception must be over­
ruled. I think the other five exceptions must be allowed. 
The answers to which they are directed are altogether in­
sufficient.

The first exception will lie over-ruled w ith costs and the 
others allowed with costs. The Clerk will tax the costs of 
both parties and deduct the one sum from the other and 
certify the balance due, which balance is ordered to be paid 
as certified. The defendants will have thirty days after 
settling minutes of this order to put in amended answer.

(I) 24 I ten. 421.
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NIXON v. CUHUEY, et al. 1908.

Conveyance to Secure Advances—Mortgage— Payments—Appro­
priation by Creditor—Accounting—Redemption—Sale.

October

One W. Q. conveyed certain real estate to the defendant 0. in 
181)1. This conveyance was absolute on its face, but was 
really hv way of mortgage to secure a certain sum of money 
in which W. Q. was indebted to C. for goods supplied from 
U.'s store.

W. Q. was also indebted to the plaintiff N., and the latter obtained 
judgment against him for the sum of #230.50, a memorial of 
which was filed Decern lier 3rd, 1800.

After the conveyance from W. Q. to C. had been made, the latter 
continued to supply goods to \V. and W. Q. worked for 
him and made cash payments to him, which amounts were 
credited by V. against bis account.

W. Q. died in 1002 intestate, leaving a widow and several children.
In 1003 C. conveyed the premises to W. Q's son, A. Q., who, at 

the same time, gave C. a mortgage on them. In 100.» C. s Id 
the premises under a power of sale contained in the mortgage 
to one A. S., who immediately reconvey til them to U.

This suit was originally to set aside the conveyance from W. Q. 
to V. on the ground of fraud, but the bill was amended, and 
it was by agreement treated as a redemption suit, the sole 
question of fact being what was the amount necessary to lie 
paid C. in older to redeem the pro|a*rty.

Held, that where a mortgagor is seeking to discharge himself 
from liability by payment, the onus of proof is upon him.

Held, that where a conveyance, absolute on its face, hut suhjt ct 
to certain verbal agreements as to reconveyance, is taken by 
a creditor to secure advances, instead of the oidinary form of 
iii"iigage in which the terms of agreement would have been 
set out, 1 111* onus of proof, ill case any dispute arises, is on the 
creditor to show (lie exact sum for which the conveyance is 
to stand as security.

Held, that where there were several debts, in the absence of any 
appropriation by the debtor at the time of payment, the 
creditor had the right to appropriate the payment to any of 
the debts he chose, and tins right could lie exercised at any 
time, and need not be shown by any specific act or declar­
ation, but might lie inferred from facts and circumstances.

Held, that the parties wishing a sale, there will be an order for 
sale in case the plaintiff fails to redeem instead of the bill 
standing dismissed with costs, as is usual.

Bill filed to set aside a conveyance from William Quint 
to the defendant Currey. By agreement the suit was changed

VOL 4, N. R. E. K.—11.
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I'.HIN. to onv of nil«>iM|)tioii, ami came up for liraring oil tile taking 
Nixon of amiimti'. The facta fully apjaiir in the jiiilgment of

<'kt"o' the Court.
IUltKK.lt. < . .1. Tituf ,/. Girtcr, fur the plaintiff.

Aaron burton, fur the defendant*.

t008. ( letolier ft. It.x HK KR, (\ J. :—

In it* original form the hill in thin suit wa* framed with 
a view of setting aside a certain conveyance made hv one 
William Quint to the defendant < 'urrey, dated February 
I I tli, I SIM, as g lieen made without ii * consider­
ation and as I icing fraudulent under the Statute of Kliznltetli. 
'riiough this conveyance is alisolute on its face it was really 
given to secure an indebtedness existing from Quint to 
( iimy and a further advance to lie made to Quint. For 
convenience Nike I sliiil I s|Miik of it as a mortgage. The 
expressed coiishlenition is $200, and the nro|ierty conveyed i* 
valued by the plaintitT at alnnit 9100 and by Currcy at 
lietween $200 and 9000. Currcy kept a country shop in 
< arleton County, at which Quint was in the habit of purchas­
ing supplies for his family from time to time, for which he |Kii<l 
partly in cash and (tartly by work. It seems that Quint 
also lienime indebted to the plaintiff Nixon who obtained a 
judgment against him on the OOtli March, 1800, for $230.00, 
a memorial of which was filed on the Ord of the following 
I humilier. The amount of this judgment is unpaid, and it 
is by virtue of the lieu created by the memorial that the 
plaintiff claims the relief asked for. William Quint died 
May 20th, 1002, intestate, leaving a widow and several 
children—one of them a soft named Alonzo. On the 2nd 
March, 1003, Currcy for an expressed consideration of $200 
conveyed the premises to Alonzo Quint, who at the same time 
gave Cur rev a mortgage for $200 and interest. The mn- 
veyance to Alonzo Quint has never been registered—in fact 
the evidence goes to prove that Quint himself destroyed it.

37770



The mortgage from Alonzo Quint was registered on the 20th 1908. 
.human, 1004. On the 12th June, lOllfi, the defendant Nixon

wild or profess, si to sell under the (lower in thin mortgage. cmujnv 
One Alexander Straton lain me the purchaser. A convey- uakkih cj 
aiiie wan made to him on the 12th June, 1U0A, and he at the 
wnne time conveyed beck to Currey. Admittedly this sale 
was alsirtive as Straton was acting throughout for Currey 
and as his agent. Alonzo Quint died on the 28th Alignât,
IlMId, so the only evidence we have ns to the conveyance to 
him is that of Currey. It is clear from that, that the trans­
action was merely a means to substitute Alonzo Quint in the 
(ilins1 of his father in reference to the (irojierty. Currey’* 
evidence on the (siint is as follows :—“ Sane years afterwards 
his son mine and lairgiiiiiixl with me for the pince—for the 
old homestead. 1 said, ‘Alonzo, I will tell yon what I will 
do. I will do just as I agreed with your father ; if von give 
me the #21111 he owisl me von mil have the place.This is 
a clear notiis‘ to Alonzo that although the conveyance from 
his father to t'urrev was in its terms an alisolnte conveyance, 
it was in fact sulijis't to an agreement that on (mvinent of the 
indelitishn-ss which he spoke of as licing #200, the property 
was to Ik* rcfonveyed to Quint. At this time William Quint’s 
equity of re ‘ was subject to the plaintiff’s lien under
his judgment, so that if the conveyance from Currey to 
Alonzo Quint hud been recorded, the tnuisaetion would not 
have alterisl the rights of the plaintiff as a second ineiiin- 
liranccr. The representative* of Alonzo Quint, who are all 
(«irlii*. to this suit, do not set up any s|ss*ial interest in the 
(in-iniw*----in fact they Mem to la* willing that all the con­
veyance- should lie set aside. When the 'nrrey
(nil in his answer he not only denial all fraud, but he set up 
a- a defence that he held the property simply as a security 
for an indebtedness which then ixisted, ami for further ad- 
vxtNi** to Ik* made and which laid in fact IN*en made. It ikkiii 

lieeaine evident from the evidenii* that the bill in it* original 
form is,11Id not Ik* maintained, and that the sole question of 
fwl which was to Ik* determine,I was as to the nmoinit nei*es-

0588
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nary to I* |HiUl to Currey in order to redeem the property. 
Ah the amount involved wan Hinall and the value of the 
property whh hIho small Mr. (Surrey’s counsel waived any 

| objection there might l>e to amending the bill and treating 
the suit as a redemption suit, and 1 consented to take the 
account in order to avoid the cost of a reference. The bill 
was therefore amended and the suit now stands ns a redemp­
tion suit. As to the account the evidence is most unsatisfac­
tory in many ways. Quint kept no books, and, so far as 
ap|M«rs, no accounts of any kind ; and except a general state­
ment by his wife as to the work done by him for Carrey, and 
which was to go in |»iyment of his indebtedness, there is no 
evidence on that point except what is supplied bv Currey him­
self. After the mortgage was given by William Quint iu 
February, 1891, Currey went on ' { him with goods 
and Quint pud him moneys on account, and did work for 
him. Currey prisluces an account against Quint, the correct­
ness of it, so far as it goes, is not <|iieationcd. It commemes 
November 2nd, 1880, and ends on Mardi 4th, 18110, and the 
total amount of debits is #li!W.4.'i. The ea-li credited during 
the same jicriod amounts to <224.80, though by an error ill 
the addition, Currey’s account as stated makes the amount 
#124.80, or #100 lees. This leaves a lia lance due of $4d8.U*> 
on the whole account, subjis-t to a further reduction by the 
value of the work done ; and it is in reference to this that 
the whole " _ arises. As to this part of the case it is to 
lie Isirne in mind, that, where a mortgagor seeks to discharge 
himself from the liability by piyment, the onus is iipin him. 
Colieell v. Iloliiiuon (1). There are two purts of the evidence 
which liear upon this |ioint. There are Carrey’s I sicks in 
w hich are entries of times during w hich Quint worked for 
him. As I make them out they are as follow s :—

(1) 23 N. B. It. IN.

D.D
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lu 1891—17 days at $1.00.................... $17.00
1892— 32 ......................  32.00
1893— 061 « « “ ....................... 66.25
1894— From Dec. 3, 1893 to July

20, 1894, less 9 days—say 7 j 
months at $20................................... 145.00

$ 260.25

Currcy says there was more work done than is entered 
in his I moke, though I do not think he had a very correct idea 
uf what was in his Ixxiks. In addition to the I looks, Currey 
s|Niiks of a settlement wliieli he and Quint had ns to the 
uiiiiiiint due him. This took plait1 about a year before 
Quint’s death and it is admitted that no work was done after 
that. At that time he says, they had the Ixxiks, went over 
the accounts, hut they had no way of fixing the amount of the 
work as he hud kept no account, thinking that Quint had 
ilone so—and he says they then agreed to put the value of
the work ut $300 and this left a balance due of nlxiut $270.
This statement is eorrolxirateil liv the evidenee of Mrs. Quint. 
It is also iiirnilxirateil by the figures, putting the cash credits 
as they had them ut $124.80, instead of $224.80 as they 
should be.

Total account................................................ $693.45
Cush Credit. $124.80

Work... 300.00 424.80

$208.05

This Iwlimee is only a trifle under the $270 s|xikeu of 
l>\ ( urrey, and I think in the absence of any more precise 
evidence I alii justified ill adopting $300 as the sum to be 
credited on the account. In other wonls the true Uilanee on 
the whole m•count after crediting the proper cash |«muent* 
would Ix; $168.65. As, however, the whole account was not 
wared |,y the mortgage it lieeomee necessary to sc|iarate the 
two accounts, the secured from the unsecured, and ascertaiu 
the balance due on the mortgage. The Ixxiks show that the

157
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debits on the 14tli February, 1891, wlien the mortgage wae 
given, amounted to 8320.25 and the cash |aiid before tliat 
8195.12, leaving a Ui lance of 8130.13, which with the value 
of the advances and less credits on account of work (if any) 
would represent the princi|«l money secured. It is difficult 
to tell from Currey’s evidence exactly what was intended to 
be secured by the mortgage in addition to the amount then 
due, which he says was about 890. It seems fairly certain 
that the whole amount to lie secured was limited to 8200—in 
fact both sides adopt that view—but what was included in 
the term “advances ” it is difficult if not altogether im|ioesiblr 
to determine, t.'urrey was interrogated on the ]>oint bv liotli 
counsel, and according to his answer to me it would rather 
seem that the advances were confined to supplies furnished 
in moneys |inid distinctly for the erection of the barn. Accord­
ing to bis account of the agreement, as given on cross-exami­
nation, the arrangement was that 'lie advances were not only 
to include these two sums, but also the goods supplied until 
the time when the I turn should la1 completed, which it was said 
was two or three years. 1 n the first case the advances accord­
ing to the plaintiff's counsel amount to 834. I confess I can­
not tell from the account how this amount was arrived at, 
but no was made to its accuracy. In the second
case 1 assume that the advances would existed the limit of 
8200. Seventeen years have |iassed since this transaction took 
place, and every |ierson who had any [lersonal knowledge of 
it is chad, except the defendant Currev himself. Instead of 
taking his security in the ordinary form of a mortgage ill 
which the terms of the agreement were set out, he chose to 
take an absolute conveyance subject to verbal conditions, on 
the fulfilment of which he was to rceonvey the property. If 
under these circumstances he is unable to give [awitive evid­
ence as to the sum for which the mortgage was to stand as a 
security, and thus discharge the on a* ii|ion him, he cannot 
complain, if in taking an account of what is due to him on 
his security, the smaller of the two sums I have mentioned 
is preferred to the other, as the sum which was originally

86
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mailt' a charge on the land. I therefore hold a* a matter of 
fact that the mortgage wan to meure what wax then due and 
the advance* which were to be made and which proved to 
amount to 8:14. Irrespective of any work which ought to lie 
credited liefore the mortgage was given, the mortgage account 
wmdd stand thus :—

Amount of account to Feby. 11,1801.... 8 325.25 
Credit cash |siid before tha.............. 195.12

8 100.13
Add advances for Uirn............................ 34.00

8 104.13

It is contended, however, and I think correctly con­
tended from the evidence, that this sum should Is* reduced by 
a further credit for work, as it is eleir from the evideniv that 
all of the work was not done sulneipicnt to February, 1801, 
though Cnrrey’* hooks do not show any memorandum as to 
work done previous to that date. There is no distinct évid­
ente on this point one wav or the other. When the 8300 was 
agreed on as the amount to lie credited on the whole account, 
no di-trihutioii of the amount was made, as to the sum to lm 
cnilited liefore, and the sum to lie credited after the mortgage 
was given. We have, however, Currey’x evidence, in which 
lie swears that when the mortgage was given Quint owed him 
alunit 800. That sum could only Is- arrived at bv crediting 
the account with 840 on account of work, reducing the 
$130.13 down to $00, ami reducing the work to be credited 
afterwards from $300 to $200. The true amount due on the 
mortgage as I lind it is $121.13. In stating this I have not 
allowed any interest. I have ' no allowance for profits 
for the year during which it is said Currev was in |siesussiou, 
and I have credited the $200—the value of the work done 
sul snap lent to the mortgage—in [layment of the unsecured 
pirt of the mortgage. As to the first, 1 think the account 
was not nu interest I waring account anil was never so treated

1908.
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by cither party, anil the agreement when the mortgage wan 
given, was that on the jiayment of the debt, the pro|ierty 
would be reconveyed to Quint. Thompeon v. Drew (1).

As to the second point, there is no evidence ii|kiii which 
to Isise any finding. It does ap|ieur that Currcy took some 
bay, hut there is no evidence either ns to value or amount. 
As to the appropriation of payments, the rule is well estab­
lished that a debtor owing several debts lias in the first place 
the option of ascribing a payment which he makes to any of 
the several debts as he may think fit, the rule I wing "mlriltir 
in inodum eolrenlie." The debtor must, however, make the 
appropriation at the time of |siyment, and if he fails in doing 
this, the creditor may appropriate the |mvment to any part of 
the indebtedness lie chooses, and such appropriation need not 
lie shown by any spécifié act or declaration, hut may lie in- 
ferre I, as any other inference may lie made, from facts and 
circumstance*. City Dierount Co. v. McLean (2); Mille v. 
Fowket (il) ; .Simeon v. Ingham (4); St. John v. llykerl (.1): 
Mayberry v. Hunt (' ).

While the creditor cannot recede from an appropriation 
once made, his right to appropriate exists up to the last mo­
ment, or, as it is said in Philpott v. Jonre (7), up to the time 
the ease goes to the jury. This is not a mac where in the 
alweniv of any appropriation by either jairtv the law will 
appropriate the first |»iymcnta to the earliest indehtcilness. 
It is not pretended here that Quint ever made any appro­
priation, and at the hearing and so soon ns any ipiestioii of 
this account arose, the defendant Ciirrev has claimed the 
right to appropriate the jiayments, first in lii|iiidution of the 
unsecured account, that is, to that |inrt of the whole ooeoimt 
not covered by the mortgage security. There is nothing ill 
the evidence to show any other or liny different appropria­
tion than this one, which is the most natural and reasonahlc

111 20 I ten. 40. (5) 10 8. C. R. 278, iter Strong, J.
(2) L. R. 0 V. P. «02. (fl) :tt N. H. K. 028.
fit) 5 Bing. N. C. 455. (7) 2 A. A E. 41.
(<) 2 B. A C. 65.
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H|i|iropriatioii to be made. That part of the aeeomit not 1908.
•mired by the mortgage is as follows :—

CVllIlKt

Amount of account subsequent to Feb. 14, 
1891, less the $34 included in the mort­
gage account,............................................

HahkKit, ('. .1,

$334 20

(it.
( 'ash paid subsequent to Fell. 14,

$ 20 08 
200 00 289 68

1891.........
< 'ash by work,

llalance due on o|ien account, 8 44 .*2 
124 13“ mortgage,

on all accounts, 8108 05

The amount due the plaintiff on his judgment is 
*J3ti.50 and interest on that amount situe March 30th, 18!)0.

The defendant Currey must have his coats after answer 
added to amount due under the mortgage.

The plaintiff will have the right to redeem in three 
( frdinarily the order would be that in default the 

hill would stand dismissed with costs, but under the |ieeuliar 
eimmistaniea of this ease, and the |iarties wishing a sale, 
there will lie a sale in case the plaintiff fails to redeem. 
Ilullett v. Furze (1).

(1) 31 Oh. O. 812.
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1U0V. MORRISON v. BISHOP OK FREDERICTON, kt al.
Mnrrh

WiU— Construction— Paroi evidence—General Intention of 
Testator.

The following provision wan contained in the will of Mitre F. 
‘‘that the sum of twenty dollars per annum be paid annually 
to Madeline Fisher, daughter of ti. Frederick Fisher, formerly 
of Fredericton, now deceased, as long as she lives and remains 
single." M. F. had been married, hut before the date of the 
will, had been divorced a rinrulo, which fact was well known 
to the testatrix.

Held. that M. F. was entitled to the legacy.
The following clause was contained in the will of Mrs. F.:—“ I 

release and direct my executors to cancel, without collecting 
I he money, the mortgage to me from John Doherty." Mi s. 
F. held no mon gage from J. I)., and she hail never had any 
dealings with anyone of the name of J. I)., hut she did hold 
one from W. I).

Ifrltl, that parol evidence was admissible to correct such a 
mistake.

The codicil to Mrs F's. will contained the following provision :
“ All the residue of my estate given to the City of Fredericton 
by the *aid will, I give and bequeath to T. Carle uni Allen and 
.1. Albert Gregory both of.the said city, barristers-at-law, in 
trust for the purpose of founding an institution to Is- called 
the J. J. Fraser Fanaline Place for a home for old ladies, and 
for that purpose to execute a deed of settlement, eon aiuing 
such provisions and regulations and appointing such trustees, 
including themselves if they see fit, as they shall consider 
expedient, at which Home I direct that the said Sarah F. 
Bliss shall have a comfortable living for her life." The fund 
created by this provision is not at present sufficient for the 
purpose for which it was intended.

Held, that the general intention of the testatrix that 8. F. B. 
should have a comfortable living at the Home for the re­
mainder of her life, should not be defeated by reason of the 
funds being at present inadequate for the maintenance of 
the Home as intended, and that an allowance from the 
annual income of the fund would la* made to S. F. B. in lieu 
of the support and living intended for her at the Home.

This is tin application for directions in the matter of the 
construction of the will of Mrs. J. J. Fraser, and of the will 
of her sister, Miss Fisher. The facts are sufficiently stated 
in the judgment of the ( \>urt.

Albert J. Gregory, K. (\, for the plaintiff.
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I/unlock Coy, for the University of New Brunswick.

//. II. llaimford, for Mrs. Sarah F. Bliss, et al.

J. J. Fr<uer if'îns/oir, for the Bishop of Fredericton.

II. II. Ha mon, for Miss Fisher, et al.

1909. Man'll 2. Barker, C. J.:—

The position of the several estates whose affairs are 
involved in this suit is so entirely exceptional, and the direc­
tions anil decree which I tun nlsiut to aniioiinee are Uised to 
-o large an extent ii|miii mmpromises and mutual concessions 
altogether unavoidable under the circumstances, that it must 
not I»' regarded as a precedent. The pnijicrty lielonging to 
tile estate of Miss Fisher anil her sister Mrs. Fraser, stems 
to have Iss'ii at the time of Mrs. Fraser's death in such con­
fusion and unisTtainty, that, without explanations which 
there was no living jierson to give, it was impossible to t il 
limv thiss' two estatw stissl in relation to each other. Those 
who are interested are, I think, indebted to the counsel, 
through whose gissl sense and judgment the conclusion em- 
Imdlisl in the referee's rc|sirt on the ipiestions referred to 
liiiu, and upon which I understand all juirties are ngreeil, 
were arrivtsl at.

There are two or three (siints u|hiii which I am asked 
to give dim-tions, upon which 1 shall make a few olwcrva- 
lions indicating m a general way my reasons for giving the 
directions mnlaimsl in the decree I am about to pronounce.

In the first place, as to the legacy to Madeline Fisher 
In Miss Fisher. The direction in the will is “that the sum 
of twenty dollars |H'r annum lie |iaid annually to Madeline 
I'isher, daughter of 0. Frederick Fisher, formerly of Fred­
ericton, now deceased, as long as she lives and remains single.” 
It Is admitted that this lady was a near relative of the testa­
trix—a cousin, I think—that she had ben in the habit of 
visiting the testatrix, that she had been married, but before

IKS
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Marker, (’. J.
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l'JO!l. the date of the will hud licen divorced a vinculo. This fuct 
Muhhikix >vas well known in Krederieton, where the testatrix lived, mid 

KH.hKKic-mx:^ere hevnl8 to be no iloulit that it was known to the testatrix.
CT<I" She has not been married again. I think she in entitled to 

iuiikkii. i i. |,er annuity » She certainly was not married, ami was there­

fore single liecause she was free to marrv. “ Single,” as the 
testatrix used the word, means that the legatee was to have 
the annuity “until she married."

As to the Doherty mortgage. Mrs. Fraser’s will eon- 
tains the following clause:—“I release and direct my execu­
tors to cancel, without collecting the money, the mortgage to 
me from John Doherty.” There is clearly a mistake in the 
name; it should lie William Doherty. Parol evidence is ad­
missible to ixirreet such a mistake: Smith v. Coney (1); 
Doe <1. Cook v. Danvers (2). The evidence shows that the 
testatrix held no mortgage from John Doherty, hut she diil 
hold one from William, and there was no John Doherty 
known in the vicinity.

The other and more difficult <|iiestion arises out of the 
]ivuvisions in Mrs. Fraser's will providing for the establish­
ment and maintenance of “Fanaline Place," her late resi­
dence, as a home for old ladies. The provision in the will is 
as follows:—“Mv property on (£ueen street, known as 
Fanaline Place, I leave upon trust to E. Byron Winslow 
executor, anil Frances A. Fisher executrix, to be held by 
them for such purposes as may be mentioned herein, or in 
any memorandum of directions which may lie signed by me 
now or hereafter. I desire that the house called Fanaline 
Place Is1 rented and after deducting from rent such money as 
will lie required to pay all necessary taxes, insurance and 
repairs, the residue of the money accruing from the rent be 
placed from time to time in Savings Hank to accumulate, or 
invested in some way us may lie deemed best by my executor 
and executrix for pur|Kws hereinafter mentioned in this my 
will. And after the decease of my sister Frances I do will

(1) 6 Ves. «2. (2) 7 Bast. 2UB.
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ami Isipieath my house known n» Funnline Place, mnl all 1909. 
tile laml fenced in around it, to tile City of Fredericton, u]miii Xomums
trim! to lie used entirely and altogether as an old ladies awiinr w 

J ... . Ekkiikhiitox
home, anil known ns the J. J. Fraser Fanalinc Home, in " 1L
meiuory of my dear husband, subject to conditions and direc- *’.J.
lions si't forth in this my will, or in any memorandum of 
directions in reference thereto which may be signed by me at 
the time of making this my will or in any future, or addi­
tional memorandum of directions which may at any future 
time lie signed by me. And I hereby declare and direct that 
inii'Ii and every of such memorandum shall be as valid and 
etfeetual for the declaration of such uses, purposes and inter­
ests as if the same had been incorporated in and made jiart 
of this my will or contained in a codicil or codicils thereto.”
Then follows a provision for the ]>uymeiit to her sister Frances 
during her life of $500.00 a year out of the income of her 
binds, mortgages ami other projierty, except Fanalinc Plaie, 
and the will then proceeds thus :—“ And I further direct 
that whatever further interest may lie obtained from the 
aforesaid Isinds, mortgages, hank shares or whatever other 
soilin', shall be taken from time to time by my executor and 
executrix and pintail in Savings Hank w ith rent money afore­
said, and left to accumulate till after decease of my sister 
Frances when I will, licipieatii and devise all Isinds, mort­
gages, lauik shares or from whatever source belonging to 
me interest may. lie drawn to tli." City of Fredericton u|sin 
trust, the interest to be used as a fund, the principal in no 
wise to lie touched, to go towards the maintenance and keep­
ing up of the home for old ladiis, railed the J. J. Fraser 
Kanaline Home, and 1 further hop- and humbly pray that 
the government will grant a sum sufficient for the full muin- 
trnance of the Home." 1 let ween the date of this will anil 
the iislieil, which is dated October 20th, 1007, Mr. Winslow 
ami Miss Fisher, who were namcil executor and executrix,
Imtli died. The iislieil makes the following provision :—
“All the residue of my estate given to the City of Fredericton 
In the said will, 1 give and bequeath to T. Carletou Allen
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and J. Alliert Gregory Isitli of the said city, barristers-at-law, 
in trust for the purpose of founding an institution to lie called 
the J. J. Fraser Funaline Place for a home for old ladies, 
and for that pur|>ose to execute a deed of settlement, con­
taining such provisions and regulations and np|ioiiiting such 
trustees, including themselves if they see fit, as they shall 
consider i Home I direct that the said
Sarah F. Bliss shall have a comfortable living for her life.” 
Mrs. Fraser in the same codicil gave Mrs. Bliss a legacy of 
$200.00, which has I wen paid her.

It turns out that the funds applicable for the establish­
ment of this Funaline Place Home are at present inad­
equate for that purpose. The net annual interest of the fund 
will probably not exceed $000.00. The testatrix seems to 
have had that idea in mind, for she expresses the ho|ie and 
prayer that the government will grant a sum sufficient for 
the full maintenante of the Home. I util therefore the fund 
shall of itself have accumulated sufficiently or I men augmen­
ted from other sources, some |iortinn of the public who would 
otherwise have lienetitcd by the institution must lie dis- 
appointed. Does that, however, apply to the particular case 
of Mrs. Bliss? I think not. She is now nearly eighty years 
of age, and there is I think a clearly expressed intention in 
this codicil, made bv Mrs. Fraser only two days before her 
death, that Mrs. Bliss should have a comfortable living at 
this Home for the rest of her life. In cases like the present 
in administering the trust, the general intention of the testa­
tor will not lie allowed to be defeated by the failure of the 
(•articular mode prcscrilied for effecting it. It is true that 
the living with which it was supposed Mrs. Bliss would lie 
furnished was one as a resident of this Home. But is she 
to have none at all because the fund is at present insufficient 
for the full purpose for which it was intended, and will likely 
remain so until after Mrs. Bliss’ death ? Should the inten­
tion of the testatrix as to Mrs. Bliss, to whom she gave a prior 
right to the lienefit of this fund, be defeated cither because 
for want of money the Home cannot at present lie carried on

04096331
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an intended and support furnished for more than Mrs. Bliss lUOlf. 
herself, or because the living cannot be furnished in the par- Mokwson 

titular house intended for the purpose? 1 think not. This hmiioi* ok
11 e I* KKlieitlCTHN

Court in such cases will see that the charitable wishes ami — 
intentions of the testator are not thus defeated. If a stun hjOxsaim. < ■ 
allowed her for her living until the Home is established, not 
in excess of the cost of furnishing her a living in the Home 
if it were in o|teration, the fund will not have suffered, and 
the object of the testatrix will have been accomplished :
///woe v. Jar him (1) ; lie Dari» Trunk (2) ; Incorporated 
Sncielp v. Price (!$).

Ordinarily the matter would be referred for inquiry as 
to the amount, hut it is unnecessary to incur that expense 
here. I shall lix the sum at ffdOO.OO annually, and the 
trustees will pay that sum annually to Mrs. Hliss during her 
life, or until she lie furnished a living at Fanaliue Place 
when established as a Home for old ladies under the trusts 
of the will.

The costs of all parties will be taxed and paid one-half 
hv the plaintiff out of the estate of Frances Fisher, and the 
other one-half by tin executors, Ac., of Mrs. Fniser out of 
her estate.

(1) 33 Ch. D. ton. (2) 61 L. T., N. S. 430. (3) 1 J. & I.aT. 408.
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ROBINSON v. ESTABROOKS and McALARY.

Lease — Improvident Contract —Misrepresentation —Fraud -Fi- 
diiciary Relationship.

R. was the owner of certain premises situated in Saint John, 
which she leased t<> EC. and M. by a written Indenture of 
Lease made February 4th, 1908.

The defendant M. offered to draw the lease for her, and did so, 
and it was executed by all the parties at the same time, in 
the presence of th«« father of the defendant E.

The lease was read over to R. by M. on two separate occasions, 
and was given to R. to read for herself.

R. is a middle-aged woman of property. She has been accustomed 
to transact all her own business, and manage her own prop­
erty without assistance from anyone, and it was not con­
tended that she was not fully capable of making an agree­
ment of this nature.

Held, that the lease would not he set aside, as there was no fraud 
or misrepresentation ; that the defendant M. did not stand 
in any fiduciary relationship to R. by reason of his having 
drawn the lease, and the rule as to independent advice in 
such cases was not applicable here.

The lease contained the following provision for renewal “For 
a furlhei term of five years or more and containing and sub­
ject tu precisely the same covenants, provisions and agree­
ments as are herein contained.”

The defendants consenting the words “or more" in the renewal 
clause were expunged.

Hill filed to set aside a lease from Mary G. Robinson 
to II. Ashley Esta brooks and Joseph W. Me Alary on the 
ground of fraud and misrepresentation, or failing that, to 
rectify the lease by striking out certain |>ortions and inserting 
the usual covenants and conditions. The facts fully ap|>ear 
in the judgment of the Court.

Argument was heard April 10, 1909.

M. O. Tccdy K. C., for the plaintiff :—

Lease should be set aside, as it is unfair, and the jiartie# to 
it did not stand on equal terms. Plaintiff had no independent 
advice, and did not understand the terms of the lease. Defend-



IV.] NEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY REPORTS. 169

mil MeAlary stood in n confidential relationship to the plaintiff. 1909. 
Failing to set aside the lease, it should lie rectified by striking Roam™™ 
out the renewal clause, and also the words “ barn, carriage shed k"t,a™!'"k' 
and outhuildinga,” anil inserting the usual clauses and con- *< ai.arv. 
ilitions. Failing this, the words “ or more ” should lie struck 
out of the renewal clause. Kerr on Fraud and Mistake (1);
Fry on Specific Performance (2) ; Talc v. M'illiamêon (3) ;
Durh< v. Abraham (4); Baker v. Monk (5); Torrance v.
Iloilon (ti) ; Ifogliton v. Iloghton (7) ; Cooke v. Lamotte (8) ;
I burin v. Pepjierelt (9) ; Woodfall’s Landlord and Tenant
(10) and eases there cited, particularly Church v. Brown
(11) ; Kendall v. Hill (12); Hodgkinmn v. Crowe (13);
In re Anderton and Milner’» Contract (14); In re Lander 
and Bar/ley’» Contract (lii).

If. If. McLean, K. C'., for the defendants :—

Lease was read to the plaintiff, was given to her to read 
and the defendants offered to leave it with her, and she could 
hardly have failed to understand it ; it contained description of 
the property and renewal clause. The hill alleges fraud, and it 
must succeed as a whole or it must fail. If the consideration 
is fair the plaintiff has no right to complain. The evidence 
shows that the bargain was a good one for the plaintiff, and 
the rent reserved as much as could lie obtained. Treated as 
she was, the plaintiff cannot now ask the Court to believe she 
was deceived or defrauded as to the lease. Fraud has not 
tieen established by the plaintiff, nor any right to rectify the 
lease shown. The lease should stand as it is. (Airman

(I) ill, 143,152,182,18Unn<138U. 
I2i2nd Ed. p 338.
(3| I,. It. 2 t!h. 55.
(4) 5 W. It. 465
(5) 4 DeO. .1. Ai S. 388.
((il I,. K. 8 Ch. 118.
(7) 15 Rea. 278 at p. 311. 
is) 15 He a. 234 at p. 245.

(B) L It. 5 Eq. 1.
11(1) inns Ed. p. 138.
(11) 15 Via. 258 al p, 2(13.
(12) 6 Jur. N S. 908.
(13, !.. It. lllCh. 1122.
(14) 45 Ch. II. 47(1.
(15) 1892 3 Ch. 41.

VOL 4 X. B. K. K.—12.
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v. Smith (1); Tate v. Williamson (supra) ; Baker v. Monk 
(eupra); Fry on Specific Performance (2); Torrance v. Bol­
ton (supra); Hoghton v. Hoghton (supra); Cooke v. Lamotte 
(supra); Woodfall’s Landlord and Tenant (3); Con. Stat. 
(1003) Chap. 153, Sec. 3.

F. R. Taylor, for the defendants :—

Cites May v. Platt (4); Dart on Vendors and Purchasers 
(5); Kerr on Fraud and Mistake (li).

M. G. Teed, K. C., in reply :—

Parties did not deal on equal terms in this matter, and lease 
should lie set aside. See Baker v. Monk (supra) Fraud is said to 
lurk in generalities. Defendant MeAlary drew the lease and 
clothed himself with the character of the plaintiff’s solicitor, 
lie stood in a fiduciary relationship to the plaintiff, and the onus 
is on him to show that she understood the transaction. See 
Tate v. Williamson (supra) ; Davis v. Abraham (supra) ; 
Hoghton v. Hoghton (supra). If plaintiff did not understand 
the lease and was misled, the Court can set it aside, whether 
the bargain was a good one for the plaintiff or not. The 
rent reserved is not grossly inadequate, but it is too little, and 
the bargain is an improvident one. The plaintiff was entitled 
to have a solicitor, who would have seen that the usual cove­
nants and provisos were put in the lease. If the renewal 
clause was inserted fraudulently, then the whole lease should 
lie set aside, as fraud in one part destroys the whole.

1909. May 18. Barker, C. J.:—

The plaintiff, who is an unmarried woman living in the 
City of St. John, is the owner of a property fronting on 
Douglas Avenue, about 400 or 500 feet from the junction of 
that street with Main street. It has a frontage of some 80 
feet on the Avenue and extends hick some 160 feet. On it

(1) 3N. B. E. K. 44.
(2) 2nd Ed. 238, see. 764.
(3) 1008 Ed. 110.

(4) 1000 1 Ch. 816. 
(6) fitti Ed. 83».
(6) 1001 Ed. 363.



P
IV.] NEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY REPORTS.

stands n four storey brick building some 40 feet wide. In 
tin1 ground Hat there are two sho])s capable of being used 
together, and the three up|»er flats are used as tenements. 
On the rear of the lot there is a warehouse used in connection 
with the stores, a barn and some sheds. The plaintiff pur­
chased this property from one Watson in August, 1900, for 
the sum of $0,400. It was then, and appirently is yet, subject 
to two mortgages, one for $2,500, ami one for $ 1,000. The 
difference between the amount of these two mortgages and 
the purchase money, $2,900, the plaintiff paid in cash at the 
time of the purchase. In the latter |iart of 1907 or the 
early juirt of 1908, the defendant McAlary, who had lieen in 
business for some five or six years, and the defendant Kstu- 
brisiks who hail never been in business at all on his own account, 
entered into partnership with a view of carrying on a whole­
sale and retail grocery business, anil for that pur|Hisc they 
applied to the plaintiff for a lease of a portion of the premises 
I have dcscrilied, and which had been vninnt for some time. 
As a result of the negotations plaintiff and defenihints on the 
4th February, 1908, entered into a lease for a term of five 
years from May 1st, 1908, at an annual rental of $175, with 
a is,venant for a renewal for a further term of five years. 
This lease is under seal ; it was executed on the day it liears 
date by the plaintiff and defenilants, in the presence of one 
II. A. Kstabrookn, who is the father of the defendant of that 
name, and it was registered on the 24th February. The 
premises demised as described in the lease are as follows:— 
“Two stores and rooms (including the refrigerator) and all 
appurtenances in connection therewith situate in brick build­
ing No. 84, 36, 38 Douglas Avenue, St. John, N. B., also 
including the warehouses, burn, carriage sheds, and out-build- 
ings situate in rear of said brick building, with privilege of 
erecting new warehouse if desired in connection with the said 
premises, with right of way to and from all said premises, 
and yard room, to lie free from all taxes, bills of every kind 
and nature whatsoever.” The lease contains the usual cove­
nant for |iayment of rent, and also a provision for a renewal

171

1909.
Robinson 

KstabrookK 

McAlary. 

Barkkr. C. J.



172 NEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY REPORTS. [VOL

19011. “ for a further term of five years or more, ami containing and
Robinson_ subject to precisely the same covenants, provisions and agree- 

Kbtabbooks ments as are herein contained.” In May, 1908, the plaintiff 
l Mi'Ai.ahv. commenced this suit for the purpose of setting aside the lease 
Bahkkh. v. J. on t|le groun,l that it had been procured by means of fraud 

and misrepresentation. In section nine of the bill, the plaintiff 
alleges that wlmt she agreed to lease to the defendants were 
the two stores, the use of the refrigerator, the up|>er or north­
erly warehouse and a shed adjoining it on the north side of 
the lot, with the right of way to the rear of the lot—also a 
right to repair the slits I or to rebuild the same—and that the 
improvements were to lielong to her, and that the tenancy was 
to be only for live years without any right of renewal, and 
the lease was to lie upon the covenants and conditions usually 
contained in a lease of that nature. It is alleged in the same 
section that negotiations for renting the property commenced 
in the autumn of 1907, anil that the plaintiff finally agreed 
to give a lease such as I have mentioned. In section eleven the 
plaintiff alleges that the defendant MeAlary asked her to 
agree to a renewal of the term, but she distinctly refused to 
do so. The bill also alleges that the plaintiff is very ignorant 
of business matters, that she had no inde[>endent advice, that 
*170 a year is a grossly inadequate rent for the premises, 
that she was induced to permit or assent to the defendant 
MeAlary drawing the lease, that he did draw it, and repre­
sented the lease in question to lie in accordance with the terms 
agreed on which I have mentioned. The bill also alleges 
that MeAlary read over the lease to the plaintiff, “but,” to 
quote from section twelve, “ in so reading the same, did not 
make the said plaintiff understand, and the said plaintiff did 
not understand, and the said defendant Joseph A. MeAlary 
did not read the said lease so that the plaintiff could under­
stand that the said lease contained anything more than as 
aliove set forth as having been agreed to.” The bill also 
alleges that the plaintiff was thus induced to execute the 
lease, lielieving it to be in accordance with the terms settled 
upon us set forth in section nine. Section seventen of the bill is
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ill- follows :—“ That the said plaintiff charges and alleges that 11)01). 
the said defendants have by fraud and misrepresentation Robisson 

induced the said plaintiff to execute the said instrument which KsTABrànss 
was so executed by her, as nlxive set forth.” The bill prays *tcAu»r. 
for a decree setting aside the lease on the ground of fraud,B,KKK*. *'•Ji 
and, failing that, for a decree rectifying the lease by striking 
out certain [tortious and inserting the usual covenants and 
conditions which it is said were improperly omitted.

In the view I take of the evidence in this case, it is 
unnec essary to discuss these two heads of relief separately.
If the plaintiff can succeed at all, it must I think be on the 
ground of fraud, and in disposing of that question the other 
will lie disposed of also. This plaintiff is not a woman whose 
mental [lowers were cither naturally weak or had been im­
paired by old age or disease. On the contrary, she manages 
her own affairs without assistance and her capacity to make 
a contract, such as this lease is, and to fully understand its 
nature and effect, is not questioned. She is not in straitened 
circumstances driving her to make improvident tairgains in 
order to relieve her pressing necessities. On the contrary, 
she is a woman of property amply sufficient for her mainten­
ance in comfort. The bill alleges that she is very ignorant 
of business affairs. Hut her own evidence disproves that, at 
all events, so far as the particular kind of business involved 
in this dispute is concerned. She seems to have bought and 
wild valuable properties without the assistance of anyone ; she 
rented her premises, made out and served notices to quit, col­
lected rents, and managed her property in all its details with­
out requiring aid from anyone. In section nine of the hill she 
has placed herself on record in regard to this very transaction 
as one who for weeks was in negotiation with McAlary over 
this lease, who absolutely refused to any renewal clause and 
who finally consented to an arrangement as clear cut, as 
[Kisitive and as business like ns only one of experience and 
knowledge of such affairs could have secured. All those 
attendant circumstances which make success easy for those 
who set out to defraud in transactions of this character are
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1909. absent here. Ill such a ease questions such us the improvid- 
Robihson enve of the contract, the inadequacy of the rent, the unfuir- 

Kbtabkooks ness of the provisions of the agreement and the supimacd 
McAlakv. inequality of the terms iqsm which the |uirties met have hut 

iuhker. c. .1. little I slicing on the real matter in dispute. The facts are I 
think against the plaintiff, even on these minor («lints. When 
the plaintiff purchased this property in 1900 the stores, ware­
house and barn leased to these defendants were rented for 
*104. The shells are of little or no value. Secord occupied 
the stores in 1905 and 1900 at a rental of *100 a year. He 
refused to |«iy an advanced rent ill Mav, 1907, and moved 
his business elsewhere. The stores were vacant from May, 
1907, until these defendants took them, though the plaintiff 
naturally tried to find a tenant. In addition to this, the 
premises were out of re|mir, the stores had to lie cleaned up 
and shelving put in with an office. This cost the sum of 
*257.51. The defendants were also obliged to exjiend *52.07 
in fitting up a stall in the warehouse, and the cost of the 
repairs necessary to put the warehouse and barn in good 
oilier was estimated at from thine to live hundred dollars. 
In addition to this, if the defendants carry out their intention 
of erecting a new warehouse, it will revert to the plaintiff at 
the end of the term. There is no evidence that the plaintiff 
could have got an increased rent, and there is strong evidence 
that us a business stand it is not nearly so valuable as it 
would be on Main street, a few hundred feet away. There is 
nothing improvident I think in the lease or the rent reserved. 
It was also contended that this lease must lie set aside on the 
ground that the plaintiff hud no inde|iendent or competent 
advice. I am at a loss to see how any such question inn 
arise here. The plaintiff’s conqieteney to contract is in no 
way disputed, neither is her capacity to fully comprehend the 
nature and effect of the business in hand. Why is her free­
dom to contract to lie enjoyed only in the presence of an 
adviser whom she has not asked for and does not require ? 
It was said that McAlarv stood in some fiduciary relation to 
the plaintiff in reference to this property, which entitled her
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to the protection of nil independent adviser, and therefore 1909. 
ii|niii well settled equitable rules, the lease would lie set aside Bom*»* 
on that ground. There is absolutely nothing in the evidence, K*™**»)*» 
as given by the plaintiff herself, to show any such fiduciary McAu*T- 
relation. The only fact that seemed to be relied on was thatB,,,K,K r J 
he offered to draw the lease and she consented to his doing so.
He says that she complained of lawyer’s charges, and he then 
said he would draw the lease, and if it did not suit her, she 
need not sign it. The inde|iendeut advice to which a donor 
or grantor is entitled when dealing with a person occupying 
some fiduciary relation to him is for his protection in making 
the contract, so that the [icrsoii who is to receive the lienefit 
may not secure it as a result of the influence naturally aris­
ing out of the relation itself, or of the influence actively used 
in his own favor. In this particular case, before anything 
was said about drawing the lease, the parties had settled 
lietween themselves all the terms of the contract anil agreed 
to them, and the provisions of the lease, whether good for the 
defendants or not, could in no possible way lie attributed to 
a fiduciary relation sulise<iucntly created, even if what took 
plate could under any circumstances lx? construed as having 
that effect, which as at present advised I think it could not.
The verbal agreement was binding as a tenancy at will, and 
it only required a writing to satisfy the Statute of Frauds.
What MeAlarv was to do was simpiy to reduce the verbal 
arrangement into writing for the signatures of the parties, 
without in any way altering the effect, adding such clauses as 
might lx- usual in such instruments in order to secure the 
(x-rformance of their mutual obligations according to their 
intention. If in doing so an error as to some material matter 
should be made either by way of mistake, inadvertence or 
fraud, and the plaintiff executed the instrument, she might, 
on a projier case shown, have it rectified so us to conform to 
the actual agreement between the parties or have it set aside 
mi the ground of fraud. No question of inde|MMident advice 
could arise—the necessity for tliat ended when the negotiations 
culininntcd in a complete and concluded agreement. The
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only tiling wliivli might be said is that where fraud is charged, 
as it is here, he was given a chance of smuggling something 
into the lease for his own iicnefit with n dishonest intention. 
Coming now to the sulistantinl point in this—that is, the 
charge of fraud and misrepresentation—what are the facts? 
I have already mentioned the plaintiff’s position as to the 
premises and her anxiety to secure a tenant. What was the 
defendants position? They were starting a business in premises 
which were originally built and for a long time occupied in a 
business such as they were opening. They required the 
warehouse to store their heavy gissls in, and the barn anti 
out-buildings to stable their horses and delivery wagons used 
in connection with their business. They laid a business to 
make on premises for which there seemed no demand. In 
view of the situation of lioth parties, the lease in question 
seems to me not unreasonable. The plaintiff’s account of this 
transaction is that McAlary came to her and offered $150 for 
the two stores, what she calls the upper half of the warehouse, 
the right of wav to the rear of the lot from the street and a 
shed. She asked $‘200, but they eventually agreed on $175. 
There was nothing she says about the barn or a renewal or 
improvements. That was the result of their nee ions. 
The defendant McAlary she says drew the lease in question 
and took it to her, and when both defendants were there, read 
it over to her, and that as he reail it, all the pnqiertv deserilwd 
was the two stores, the refrigerator, the upper half of the 
warehouse, the shed and the right of way, and to quote her 
own language, “ he nodded his head at the same time, to make 
it sure.” As to the renewal clause her evidence is as follows :—

“Q. When he read it to you, did he read anything 
about renewal, and what, if anything, took place if he did ? 
A. He said, I gave it to him for five years, and then at their 
request he said, have it for five more ; and I said, no, not at 
all, never, and he said, if you don’t want to at the end of the 
five, you need not give it, you need not renew it. I never 
intended to renew it, never.
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“Q. Wliat lie read was for five years, and at their re- 190V. 
quest a renewal for five years more, and you objected to it ? Robixuox 

A. Yes, I objected to it and didn’t give it, and it rested there, Khtaukookh
McAlary.

This is the actual lease in dispute, and by the plaintiff's |l411K~ j 
evidence just quoted, it will be seen that MeAlarv read the 
precise provision for renewal as it is in the lease which she 
then signed. The examination ••ontinues :—

“Q. And he said, if at the end of five years you didn’t 
want to give it you need not ? A. Yes.

“ (1. Did you sign it, having that understanding in your 
mind that you need not give it unless you wished ? A.
( 'crtainly.

“Q. Was anything said, or did you understand any­
thing being said that at their request you were to make a 
lease for more than five years by way of renewal. A. No, 
never.

“Q. You never understood anything alxmt more than 
five years ? A. I never.

How it is [lossihle for these statements to be reconciled,
I do not know. In answer to a question, she had said that 
lie read this very renewal clause from the lease, and that 
when he read that it was for five years and at their request 
a renewal for five more, she objected to it and didn’t give it.
And a moment afterwards she said she understood nothing 
about a renewal—it was only for five years. The plaintiff 
says this was the occasion when the lease was executed, both 
defendants were there and MeAlary read it over to her to see 
if it was right. She was then asked :—

“Q. After it was read over in this way, did you read 
it yourself? A. I never read it. He says I did. I never 
read it

“ Q. Did he hand it to you ? A. Yes, he handed it to 
me, hut I didn’t read it. There was a lot of tine writing 
lietwecn it, and it seemed kind of dark, and I said, I siqqiose 
it is all right, 1 didn’t read it.”



178 NEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY REPORTS.

19011.
lUmi nmon 

Khtahhooks

McAlahv. 

Marker, (’. J.

fvoi,.

.She then tells how the witness was sent for, and the 
lease was executed in his presence. There is no pretence that 
the lease was changed in any way, and it is clear from the 
plaintiff’s own testimony that she must have signed the lease 
with the renewal clause in it just as she says McAlarv read 
it to her, though she did object. This is important, because 
the defendants say that she did object at first, but afterwards 
consented to the clause. Later on in her evidence the plain­
tiff states that on this occasion there was no one present but 
McAlarv and herself. On her cross-examination she swears 
|weitively that the lease was only read to her once on the day 
it was executed, and that when the witness and the defendant 
Kstabrooks came it was not read over to her. McAlary’s 
evidence as to what took place when the lease was executed 
is this : There is no ns to the statement that the
plaintiff and defendants executed this lease when they were 
all together on the 4th February, 1908, in the presence of 
Henry A. Kstabrooks, who signed as the aulweribing witness. 
McAlarv says that when the lease was prepired bv him he 
and the other defendant went to the plaintiff’s home, that he 
read it over to her precisely as it is now, except her second 
name was not in—that he omitted nothing from it—that he 
handed the plaintiff the lease and told her to read it over for 
herself and see that everything was right, that she had it in 
her hand for fully fifteen minutes. She objected to the 
renewal and said she wouldn’t sign it at all. The defendants 
then said they could not take the premises on any other con­
dition, liemuse there was a lot of repairs—that Kstabrooks 
got up to go out, saying it was no use. They then offered 
to leave the lease with her, to take her time and look it over. 
When Kstabrooks got up to go out, the plaintiff said she 
might as well sign the lease now as ever. McAlarv said, 
you need not sign it now if you don’t want to, that he did 
not want her to sign it, if it was not right. Kstabrooks then 
went out and brought back his father ns a witness, and, after 
he came, the lease was again read over just ns it is, omitting 
nothing, that the plaintiff and others said it was satisfactory.

D-D
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The plaintiff went and got the ink, her middle name was 1909. 
inserted where necessary, and the |>arties executed it. Me- Robiotox 

Alary then told the plaintiff that lie would give her a copy Eht»hrouk- 

later on, to which she replied, “ all right, any time.” This HcAunv. 
witness also states that just liefore signing the lease thel,<RK“'1 ■Ji 
defendant Kstabrooks asked her if she had given Watson and 
(■odnrd notice to quit. They then occupied the liurn and 
warehouse, and she said she had, and added :—“ Whether 
von lease "the premises or not they have to go, because they 
are not paying the rent.” The defendant Kstabrooks, previous 
to his going into this business, was in his father’s employ at 
t lagetown. He says that he came down to St. John about the 
Kith of January, when lieand MeAlarv inspected these premises 
with a view of making the plaintiff an offer. After they had 
gone over the buildings they made her an offer of #100 foi­
lin' two stores, the buildings in the rear, and liarn and shell, 
that is the premises mentioned in the lease. She wanted 
#200. They then told her they could not see their way clear 
to give it, and she '.uuted to know if they wouldn’t think it 
over, which they agreed to do. .Five years was the time 
mentioned. After talking the matter over they concluded to 
offer #17ô. He went home, and ntxmt the latter |iart of the 
month he heard from MeAlarv, and by appointment he came 
to St, John on the 3rd of February, his father accompanying 
him on some business of his own. On the afternoon of the 
Ith February they took the lease and went to the plaintiff, 
when the lease was read to her bv Me Alary just as it is. The 
plaintiff objected to nothing, except the renewal clause. His 
evidence on this jxiint is ns follows :—

“Q. Did lie raid the whole lease ? A. He did.
“Q. Everything that is in it? A. He did.
“Q. And Miss Robinson objected to the clause for 

renewal after he had read it ? A. Yes.
“Q. What did she say about it ? A. Said she couldn’t 

give a lease for renewal ; she wouldn’t sign a lease like tliat.
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“Q. Was anything said by you or McAlary then to 
her? A. I told her that was my errand down, and if she 
didn’t care to sign it we wouldn’t take it on nnv other terms.

“<i. What business did you and MeAlary intend to 
carry on there ? A. Grocery business.

“ Q. Wholesale and retail grocery business ? A. Yes.
“Q. And you wanted the property for a longer term 

than five years if von were smsvssful there? A. Certainly, 
anil it had to lie repaired.

“ When you said you would not take it on any other 
terms but with a right of a further term of renewal, what did 
Miss Kobinson say or do then? A. I got up to go and she 
said she might as well sign it now as any time.

“Q. Said she would sign it ? A. She would sign it.”

lie then went to a store where his father was, not far 
away, and brought him to the plaintiff. He savs that the 
lease was given to the plaintiff by MeAlary to ritul—that she 
hud it in her hands fur fifteen or twenty minutes, long enough 
to read it, and she was turning the sheets over and acting as 
if reading it. That was fiefore Henry Kstabrooks came in. 
After he had come, and while he and the defendants and 
plaintiff were all together, this witness states that the lease 
was again read over by MeAlary, and the plaintiff made no 
objection to it, and it was signed. He also states that liefore 
the lease was signal he asked the plaintiff if she hud given 
Watson and Goddard notes1 to quit, and she said she hail, 
that they were |sior tenants and didn’t pay their rent.

Henry A. Kstabrooks evidence entirely i-orrolionites that 
of the defendants as to what took place at the time of the 
execution of the base on the 4th February at the pluintiff’s 
house. He says he recollects that MeAlary, who read it, 
mentioned the renewal clause, and the lami and out-buildings 
just as they are mentioned in the lease. He also says that 
liefore the lease was signal Ashley Kstubnioks uskal the 
plaintiff if she hud notifiai the |mrties in the Imrn to quit the 
1st of May, and she said she had.
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lu lluti'hinmii v. Colder, u case noted in Cassels Dig. lUO'.f. 
78."», the Supreme Court of Caniuln, is tluis nqiorted Robinson 

“ Where the Court below dismissed the plaintiff’s bill pray- Estabbook» 

ing for the reeission of an executed contract, held that a clear MoAbabv. 

lase of fraud must lie established to obtain the mission of an *'•J
executed contract, and the allegations of fraud made by the 
plaintiff being uncorroborated and contradicted in every |mr- 
ticnlar by the defendant, neither the Court below, nor the 
Court in ap|ieul would be justified in rescinding the contract 
in question." The evidence to which I have referred brings 
this ease within the rule laid down in the authority just 
quoted, and I should lie justified in dismissing the bill with­
out further remark. It is, however, only fair in cases of this 
kind to those who have been deliberately charged with gross 
fraud that if the Court entertains the view that the charge has 
lieen entirely disproved, it should say so and not take refuge 
I «‘hind a mere technical rule. There are other portions of 
the evidence, which, in this mmection, should not lie lost 
sight of. Some reliance was placed on the fact that no copy 
of this lease was given to the plaintiff until she had made 
rc|ieated applications for it. It cannot lie that the defendants 
were in any way keeping the matter a secret, because they 
put it on the public records within three weeks of its date.
When the plaintiff’s mind liemme so disturbed by the rumours 
as to the iniquity of this lease set afloat by some of her 
meddlesome neighliors, she applied to the defendants for a 
copy of it. This was in the latter part of March, or early 
|iart of April, and the evidence shows that she received it 
about the middle of April. And yet she never even read it 
until about the first of May. She says she “ chased ’’ after 
the defendants for this copy, went repeatedly for it, so great 
was her anxiety as to its contents and the rights she had given 
the defendants under it, anil when she got it she did not take 
the trouble to look at it. Unless the plaintiff's account is 
much exaggerated, it seems incredible to me that she should 
have treated the copy with such indifference. It is equally 
incredible that if this lease was read to the plaintiff certainly



182 NEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY REPORTS.

1909.
Robinson 

Kstahrookh 

McAlary. 

Barkkk, ( .1

[voi..

on two occasions, an these witnesses |s>sitively swear, in it» 
present form anil without omission» that «he «lioulil not have 
understood that the I torn was included. A technical term or 
a formal covenant she might have misunderstood, hut the 

' words of the lease are the two stores and rooms, etc., “ in­
cluding the warehouse, barn, carriage sheds and out-build­
ings, etc.” For Me Alary, in the présente of his partner, to 
attempt such a piece of deception hy purjioscly omitting these 
words seems silly, for Kstabrisiks, unless a party to the fraud, 
must have detected it. There was no more reason for omit­
ting the wools “ barn,” “ carriage sheds, etc.,” than for 
omitting the miewal clause. Of the two, |tcrlin|>s that was 
the more ini|iortaiit provision. Besides this the lease was 
immediately handed the plaintiff, so that she might read it, 
and the fraud would be discovered. This lease, however, 
was not the only paper executed that day. It was part of 
the arrangement that the defendants weo- to have immediate 
|K>ssession of the premises in onler to make the necessary 
repairs. A written agreement to this effect authorizing them 
to take |Hissession for that purjiose was put in evidence. It 
was signed hy the plaintiff at the same time as the least', in 
praence of the same witness, and it deserilies the poijierty in 
the same wools ns no' used in the lease. The plaintiff admits 
she made a verbal agreement to that effect, but she says 
jiositivcly that the signature to that paper is not hers, and 
that she never heard of the paper until long after the trans­
action took place. As to this |ia|icr she is |iositively contra­
dicted bv the two defendants who weo' present when it was 
signed anil who say it was read over to her, and by Ksta- 
lioMiks the witness to the signature. In addition to this she 
swore positively that the signature to the lease in dispute, the 
instrument which she wishes to set aside, was not hers, and 
it was with great reluctance that she eventually admitted tliat 
it might be. Her signature to her answer to the cross-inter­
rogatories tiled in the suit was shown her, and she swore most 
jiositively that it was not genuine. To charge this lady with 
a wilful disregard for the truth would, 1 have no doubt, lie
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doing her an injustice. I cannot, however, satisfactorily 
account for the pertinacity witli which she adhered to state­
ments which were |#dpably incorrect, ami others which were 
not only improbable in themselves, but were positively contra­
dicted by at least three witnesses. It is sufficient for me to 
say that it is quite impossible for this Court to accept her 
evidence as a basis for granting the relief asked for, and I 
think the fraud with which the defendants are charged is 
not proved.

Mr. Teed contended that if all other relief was refused 
the plaintiff was at least entitled to have the words “or 
more” struck out of the renewal clause, so that it would lie 
limited to a second term of only five years and no more. It 
would seem from the defendants’ evidence that they only 
expected a lease for five years and a renewal for five, and 
that would be the meaning of it if the word “or” were 
expunged. They consent to the words “or more” Iteing 
struck out if there is any doubt in reference to the meaning 
of the clause in its present form. Had that l>een made till1 
only ground of complaint originally, 1 have no doubt this 
litigation might have Itcen avoided.

There will be a decree expunging the words “or more" 
in tin' renewal clause, the defendants consenting thereto, and 
in other respects the hill will be dismissed.

The plaintiff must pay the costs.

1909.
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iu<m. SEELY V. KERR, et al.
/; /Mise from City of Saint John--Foreshore or Water Lots—Ri­

parian Rights—Rights of lessees- Damaging Erections— 
Injunction.

The plaintiff S. is the lessee from the City of Saint John of two 
water lots (so-called) situated between high and low water 
mark in the harbor of Saint John, on which a wharf or 
wharves and buildings have been erected, which have been 
used at different times for various purposes. One of their 
advantages consists of access by the waters of the harbor of 
Saint John, there being ten feet of water on the southern 
aide of the plaintiff's wharf at high tide. The southern side 
is the oidy part of the plaintiff’s wharf to which he has direct 
access by the waters of the harbor, his lot or lots, as origin­
ally leased, being shut off on the other three sides. The 
lease, under renewals of which S. is tenant, was granted by 
the City of Saint John some fiftv years ago, both lots being 
included in the one lease at that time.

The defendant K. is the lessee from the City of Saint John of the 
water lot lying immediately pouth of tvs. lots. It is bounded 
on the north by S’s. southerly line, and extends along the 
entire southern side of S’s. lot. K’s. lease was granted a few 
months ago, being dated March 10th, 1000, and is precisely 
similar in terms to S’s. leases, except as to rent reserved.

K. is proceeding to build a wharf covering his entire lot, which 
when finished, will completely close up all direct access by 
water from the harl>or to S’s. lots

By the Charter of the City of Saint John, confirmed by an Act of 
the legislature, the title to these water lots was vested in the 
City, and in addition to this the City was made the conser­
vator of the water of the harbor, and has sole power over it. 
In the Charter is the following saving clause:—“So always 
as such piers or wharves so to be erected or streets so to be 
laid out, do not extend to the taking away of any person’s 
right or property, without his, her or their consent, or by 
some known laws of the said Province of New Brunswick or 
by the law of the land.”

Held, that the right of direct access by water from the harbor 
appertained to the plaintiff’s lots and could not be taken 
away, and that the plaintiff was entitled to an injunction re­
straining the defendants from interfering with this right.

Motion on notice for an injunction to restrain the defend­
ants from further proceeding with the building of a wharf on 
a water lot leased to them by the City of Saint John. The 
facts fully appear in the judgment of the Court.
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Argument was heard June 7, 8, 1900.

A. A. Wilson, K. C., for the plaintiff :—

The lease under which the plaintiff holds was granted 
In the city over fifty years ago, and the lessees have always 
hud right of access by water to these lots, and the plaintiff 
now has this right by prescription. The plaintiff as one of 
the public, one of the citizens, has a right to the use of the 
waters of the harbor. The plaintiff also has right of access 
by the waters of the harbor to his lots, as a riparian pro­
prietor. See Lyon v. Fishmongers’ Co. (1); Booth v. Balte 
(2); Marshall v. Guion (3); Williams v. City of New York 
(1); Van Dotson v. City of New York (5); Farnhnm on 
Waters (6); Gould on Waters (7).

C. N. Skinner, K. C., for the defendants :—

The city is the only ri|iarian owner in regard to the harbor 
by the charter itself. The plaintiff never has been and is not 
a riparian owner. The charter gives these rights to the city 
as trustee for the citizens. Everything is vested in the city, 
viz., foreshore rights, riparian rights, etc. The city holds 
the waters of the harbor for the benefit of the public. Under 
the charter the city has the right to deal with the harbor and 
with all wharf building as to them seems licst ; and the mayor 
and aldermen are forever made the conservators of the lutr- 
Iwir. The plaintiff’s title is from the city, and he cannot cut 
down the city’s rights. The servient estate cannot cut down 
the remainder man’s rights. See Local and l‘rivale Statutes 
of New Hrunswick (8); Washburn on Easements and 
Servitudes (9).

Ill L. R. I App.Cas.002 at p. 073. (6) 17 Fed. Rep. 817.
|2| !.. R. 15 App. Cite. 188. (0) Vol. I. pp. 530, SUS.
I'll 1 Dénions N Y. O. L. It. 581. (7) p. 275, sec. 148.
'I) 11 Northeastern Rep. 821)

(8) Vol. 3 pp 082. 081, 008, 1010 and 1014.
(0) Ed. 1803, pp. 110, 102 and 103.

VOL. 4 N. ». K. a.—13.
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A. 0. Earle, K. C., for the plaintiff, in reply :—

Rights gninte 1 by the cliarter are subject to the private 
Kaiikkh! c. j. rights of individuals. Fifty years enjoyment gives rights to 

the plaintiff, and he is entitle I to access by water. The 
equities of the case are all in favor of the plaintiff. Malice 
is shown by the defendants in hastening the work after they 
knew proceedings for an injunction had been instituted. See 
Lyon v. Finhmongen/ Co. (supra).

1909. June 29. Barker, C. J.:—

This is a motion on notice for an injunction to restrain 
the defendants from further procce ling with the building of 
a wharf on a water lot leased to them by the City of Saint 
John so as to obstruct the plaintiff’s access by water to hi8 
lot also under lease to him from the City. The facts are not 
complicated and there is substantially no dispute in reference 
to them. It appe irs that by a certain Indenture of Lease 
dated February 2nd, 1882, the City of Saint John leased to 
one John Sandal I a certain w ater lot described in the lease as 
follows: “That certain lot, piece or parcel of land beicli or 
flats situate lying and being in Sydney Ward in the said 
City and known and distinguished in the plan of water lots 
laid out by the said Mayor, Aldermen and Commonalty of 
the City of Saint John approved of in Common Council the 
26th October, A. I). 1836 and on file in the office of the 
Common Clerk of the said City by the number (2) two 
Block A. the said lot I «‘in g 50 feet front on Charlotte Street 
extending liack preserving the same breadth 80 feet or to the 
east side line of the wharf erected as and for a public high­
way on the east side of Sydney Market Slip.” The term 
was seven years from May 1st, 1877, and the annual rent 
was 614. In addition to the usual convenants for payment 
of rent and the right to re-enter in case of default, the lease 
contains a proviso that in case the lessee shall during the 
term erect or put upon the lot any wharves, bridges, build­
ings or other erections, the value of the same shall at the

186
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expiration of tlie term lie appraised by two persons, one to be 1909.
chosen by the by the lessor and one by the lessee, which two s««i »
in vase of their disagreement shall choose a third, and the KKM^5rAI-
value so appraised the City agreed to pay or to renew the B,HKItK' * 'J'
lease for a term not less than seven years upon the same
terms. This lease .is in fact a renewal of a similar lease
made by the City to .Sandall dated March 10th, 1858, for
twelve years. On the 26th November, 1879, the City leased
to one Joseph A. McAvity water lot No. 1, in Block A, for
a term of seven years at an annual rental of $14., and in all
respe. ts upon the same terms and conditions as the lease to
Sandall. Lot 1, leased to McAvity is of the same size as
Ix>t. 2., it lies directly north of it and is bounded on its
eastern side by the western side of Charlotte Street and on
the west by the Sydney Market Wharf. This last lease is
also a renewal of a similar lease made by the City to one
John McAvity dated March 17th, 1858, for twelve years,
It appears that many years ago—the precise time is not 
stated but I should say some forty odd years ago—wharves 
were built on these two lots and they were eventually used 
together as one lot. Their value, if unobstructed, is placed 
at $8,000 and the rent last year was $450. Through a 
aeries of intermediate assignments the present plaintiff lieenme 
the assignee of these leases and of the improvements upon 
the lots in question on the 18th June, 1900, since which 
time he has been in possession of them as the tenant of the 
City. None of these leases contain any reservation of any 
kind by the City as to the use or occupation of the i 
water lots. The western side of Charlotte Street at this point 
extends down in a southerly direction to what is known as 
the Ballast Wharf, a distance of some seven hundred feet.
It runs below high water mark and is built up as a w harf at 
which vessels load and discharge and for which the City 
collects wharfage. At the southern side of the plaintiff’s 
Lot No. 2 there is at high water an average depth of water 
of about ten feet, and schooners of from eighty to one 
hundred and fifty tons come and discharge cargo there,

4279
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1V09. though at low water the ground is dry. The wharves have 
skki.y liven used at various times for different purposes as the 

kkrh, kt au husiness of the owner for the time living required—sometimes 
Mahkkh. <• J.luj a lumlitT yard and sometimes as a coal yard—and vessels 

came there discharging lumber or coal at the southern side 
of the lot as required for the business at the time living 
carried on there.

The defendants are a corjioration under the New Itruns- 
wiek Joint Stock Company’s Act, and Francis Kerr is its 
manager and principal shareholder. On the ltltli March 
last (1000) he obtained for the defendants from the City of 
St. John a lease of water lot No. 3, lying immediately to the 
south of the plaintiff’s lot. It extends along the southern 
line of lot No. 2 and across the southern end of the Sydney 
Street Wharf, in all a distance of one hundred and forty feet 
and has a width of one hundred feet, making a lot one hund­
red by one hundred and forty feet. The defendants have in 
course of erection on this lot a wharf, occupying its entire area, 
for the pur|Hise of carrying on the coal business. The effect of 
this structure is to deprive the plaintiff altogether of an css to 
his wharf by water as the defendants’ wharf occupies the entire 
water frontage of eighty feet which the plaintiff and others used 
as I have described. The defendants’ lease was not produced, 
but 1 understand that it is precisely similar in terms to the 
plaintiff’s lease, except as to the rent reserved. Speaking in 
general terms the situation of these lots is this. They are 
Isitli held by tenants of the same land land under leases, one 
granted over forty years ago, the other a few months ago ; 
they are Isitli water lots lying between high and low water 
mark and forming a |iart of the foreshore owned by the city 
when the first lease was made and continuously since ; the 
wharf now under construction by the defendants will when 
completed close up the water frontage of the plaintiff’s lot, 
the effect of which will necessarily lie to materially reduce 
its value. The defendants say that they have by virtue of 
their lease authority to do this—not that the lease in any way 
specifically authorizes it, for it does not—but simply as a
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result of the demise itself. At first lilusli it seems a some- 1909. 
what startling proposition tnat under the conditions existing hk«lv 

here, the eitv call thus enrich one of its tenants at the expense Kxkk. kt*i. 

of another, or increase the luirlmr facilities for the lienefit of Hahkkr- ‘ J- 
the " by expropriating the projierty of a private citizen 
without his consent and without comiwnsation. I thought it 
likely that the Keconler of the City, who appeared for the 
defendants and is necessarily familiar with the legislation pro­
cured by the city during the last century, would cite some 
statute liearing on the subject, but with the exception of the 
Charter of the City he has produced none, and I therefore 
assume that there is none. This reduces the (piestion within 
a comparatively narrow compass.

It is scarcely necessary to point out that by the Charter 
of the City of Ht. John, confirmed as it was by an act of the 
legislature, the title to these water lots between high and low- 
water mark is vested in the City. In addition to this the 
City, by the express terms of the Charter, is made the con­
servator of the water of the harbor, and has the sole [tower 
of amending and improving the same for the more lonvenient, 
safe and easy navigating, anchoring, riding and fastening the 
shipping resorting to the City ; and for the 1 tetter regulating 
ami ordering the same, the City shall and may as it shall see 
proper, erect and build such ami so many [tiers and wharves 
into the river and for the loading and unloading of goods as 
for the making docks ami slips for the purposes aforesaid, so 
always as such [tiers or wharves so to be erected do not ex­
tend to the taking away of any jterson’s right or projierty, 
without his, her or their consent, or by some known laws of 
the said Province of New Brunswick or by the law of the 
land. Without the authority of the City the erection of a 
wharf, such as the defendants are constructing, would la- 
altogether illegal and the structure would be an olistruction 
to the public navigation and removable by the City author­
ities as a nuisance : Brown v. Reed (1) ; Eagle* v. Merritt (2).

(1) 2 Pug 21X1. (2| 2 Allen 560.

24



190 NEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY REPORTS. [VOL.

1909. That a private individual may have rights in public
sbklv navigable waters beyond his rights as one of the publie is 

Kbkk, ct *u settled by Lyon v. Warden» of the Fielimongers’ Co. (1). 
baiikkr. c. .1. 'flic question arose between two riparian owners on the 

Thames, the control of which is vested in a Board of Conser­
vators who are given powers, similar in many respects in 
reference to that river, to those given by the City Charter to 
the City in reference to the harbor. One of these riparian 
proprietors was proceeding under a license from the Conser­
vators to erect an embankment in front of a wharf on a por­
tion of the property of the other, the effect of which would 
have been to take away his access to the river at that point. 
Tlie license was granted in pursuance of section fifty-three of 
the Thames Conservancy Act, which provides as follows :— 
“ It shall be lawful for the Conservators to grant to the owner 
or occupier of any land fronting and immediately adjoining 
the river Thames, a license to make any dock, basin, pier, 
jetty, wharf, quay or embankment, wall, or other work, 
immediately in front of his land, and into the body of the 
said river, upon payment of such fair and reasonable con­
sideration as is by this Act directed, and under ami subject 
to such other conditions and restrictions as the Conservators 
shall think fit to impose.” Speaking of this section laird 
( 'aims says :—“ My lairds, it is to be observed that the power 
granted by the 53rd section to the Conservators is not simply 
a power to be exercised by them with any view to the im­
provement of the navigation of the Thames. It is of course 
a power which, like every other power given them by the Act, 
they are to exercise so as to preserve the navigation from 
injury ; but subject to this, it is a power of granting to 
individuals, iqy>n a money |iaymeut, the privilege of doing 
what they otherwise could not do in a navigable river, of 
pushing out an embankment or work in front of their land 
into the body of the river. * * * Now, it is farther to
be oleerved that no compensation whatever is provided by 
the Conservancy Act, for any injury done to the adjacent

(1) 1 A. C. 662.
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owners of lands on the banks of the river, by the execution 1909. 
of a license granted under the 53rd section. Admitting, smxv 
therefore, as may well be done, that a license under the 53rd Skkr.kt 41. 

section, would lie a perfect justification for an embankment f*1111'"- r 1 
made by a riparian owner in front of his own land, so far as 
it merely affected the public right of navigation, it would 
ap]>ear to he, a priori, in the very highest degree improbable 
that an Act of Parliament could intend, through the Der­
ation of that section, to authorize the Conservators to |iermit 
one rijwirinn owner to affect injuriously the land of another 
r'qwirian owner, in consideration of a payment to be made, 
not to the |ierson injured, but to the Conservators themselves.”
Is there itHV substantial distinction between the two eases ?
In the one we find the Conservators granting a license 
authorizing the building of an embankment for a pecuniary 
com|icii8ation ; in the other they gave a lease for a term of 
years at an annual rent of a pa. t of the foreshore, not 
specifically but impliedly authorizing the erection of a wharf 
on the demised lot. In both cases, while we may assume that 
the ( 'onservutors did not consider the erections injurious to 
the public right of navigation, they beiamie private projierty 
and were intended for the sjieeial use and advantage of pri­
vate individuals. In Ixith cases the sole question involved 
was the right of access to one’s property by water. The 
effect of the license, as well as the lease, was only to prevent 
the erections authorized to lie built on the lot from being 
indictable as public nuisances by reason of their interfering 
with the public rights of navigation. In the same case Lord 
Cairns says :—“ Unquestionably the owner of a wharf on the 
river hank has, like every other subject of the realm, the right 
of navigating the river as one of the public. This, however, 
is not a right coming to him qua owner or occupier of any 
lands on the bank, now is it a right which, per se, he enjoys 
in a manner different from any other member of the public.
But wlien this right of navigation is connected with an 
exclusive access to and from a particular wharf, it assumes a 
very different character. It ceases to lie a right held in com-
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mon with the rest of the public, for other mem Iters of the 
public have no access to or from the river at the particular 
place ; and it liecomes a form of enjoyment of the land, and 
of the river in connection with the land, the disturbance of 
which may l>e vindicated in damages by an action, or restrained 
by an injunction. * » * The taking away of river frontage 
of a wharf, or the raising of an impediment along the front­
age, interrupting the access lietwecn the wharf and the river, 
may 1* an injury to the public right of navigation ; hut it is 
not the less an injury to the owner of the wharf, which, in 
the absence of any Parliamentary authority, would be rom- 
pensated by damages, or altogether prevented.” The right 
of access to one’s property by water and by land is governed 
bv the same principle. This Court recognized that doctrine 
in Byron v. Slimpaon (1), where it was held that a riparian 
owner whose land was hounded by high water mark was 
entitled to an unolwtrueted access from his land to the navig­
able waters of the sea. In the Attorney-General v. The 
Conservator* of the Thame* (2), Wood, V. C., at page 31 is 
thus reportisl :—“ The plaintiff, an innkeeper on the bunks 
of a navigable river, complained that the access of the public 
to his house was obstructed by limiter wliich the defendant 
had placed in the river; and it would lie the height of absurd­
ity to say, that a private right is not interfered with, when a 
man who has I teen accustomed to enter his house from a high­
way finds his doorway mndeini|iassalile, so that he no.longer has 
access to his house from the public highway. This would 
npiully Ik- a private injury to him, whether the right of the 
public to |tass and re-|tass along the highway were or were 
not at the same time interfered with.” Has the City any 
I let ter right to take from the plaintiff his right of access by 
water than they have to take away his right of access by land 
from Charlotte Street by some structure in no way connected 
with the street maintenance ? Rose v. Grove* (3).

The precise nature of this right of access has come up 
for discussion in many cases in reference to eoni|iensation to

(I) 1 P. * B. (#17. (2) 1 H. & M. 1. (3) 6 Man. & G. 618.
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Ih' |«ii(l by railway and other companies vested with the |*>wer 1909. 
of expropriating private lands. The statutes under which sekvv 
the eompensetion was vlaiineil are not all alike, hut in all the k«hr. *t ai. 

right of access, both by land and water, has been held an ■>****. u. J. 
injury to the pro|>erty which must be paid for. The Duke 
aif Bucclcuch v. Metropolitan Board of Work» (1); The 
Metropolitan Board of Work» v. McCarthy (2) ; North Shore 
Hailimy Co. v. Pion (3).

It was held iu the Lyon» v. Fiehmonyer» case that the 
right of access which was sought to lie taken away was a 
right within the saving clause in the Thames Conservancy 
Act and therefore the Conservancy authorities had no power 
to license the building of the embankment. On this point 
l/ord Cairns says: “It appears to me impossible to say that 
a mode of enjoyment of land on the bank of a navigable river 
which is thus valuable, and as to which a landowner can 
thus protect himself against disturbance, is otherwise than a 
right or claim to which the owner of land on the bank of the 
river is by law entitled within the meaning of such a saving 
clause as that which I have read.” Section 179 of the 
Thames Act which is there referred to is as follows :—“None 
of the powers by this Act conferred, or anything in this Act 
contained, shall extend to take away, alter or abridge, any 
right, claim, privilege, franchise, exemption, or immunity to 
which any owner or occupier of any lands, tenements, or 
hereditaments on the banks of the river, &c.” The saving 
clause in the Charter of the City is: “so always as such piers 
or wharves so to be erected or streets so to be laid out, do not 
extend to the taking away of any [lerson’s right or projierty, 
without his, her or their consent, or by some known laws of 
the said Province of New Brunswick or by the law of the 
land.” In reference to the saving clause in the Thames Act 
bord Melbourne says : “That a public body, such as the 
Thames Conservancy Board, should be cm|towered by Parlia­
ment to sell, for money, to private |ierson* the right to 
execute, for their own benefit, works injuriously affecting the

(Il L.R.7H. L. 243. (2) LR.SH. I.. 418 (3) 14 A. C. «12.
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1909. land of an adjoining proprietor without compensating him
hkklv for that injury (which is the contention of the respondents),

Kkkh. ktai- is inconsistent with the ordinary principles and with the 
iiahkkh. CN. general course of public legislation on such subjects. When, 

therefore, we find in the Act which is alleged to confer such 
powers a saving clause in the large and untcchnical terms of 
the 179th section, by which (without any forced or unreason­
able extentiun of their natural meaning) this class of rights 
may be sufficiently protected, 1 think we ought not to hesitate 
to construe it so us to afford that protection.”

The principal value of a wharf projierty consists in its 
right of access by water, and, as applied to the plaintiff’s 
pro|>erty the right is one which under the saving clause in 
the Charter neither the City nor its lessee could without his 
consent take away from him. Per King, J. in Magee v. 
The Mayor, etc., of Saint John (1).

I think the plaintiff is entitled to an injunction restrain­
ing the defendants from olistructing his access to his wharf 
by the wharf which they are building or have completed on 
their lot. At the hearing if I am right in my view the 
plaintiff will Is- entitled to a mandatory injunction for the 
removal of the obstructions or for damages. I shall not 
exercise the |>ower which the Court has on this motion to 
grant a mandatory injunction, althougth in view of the 
defendants’ action after notice of this motion was given 1 
think I should lie justified in doing so. .See Daniel v. Fer- 
gumn (2); Smith v. Day (3). Costs reserved.

The defendants will be restrained from erecting or 
permitting to lie erected any wharf or other structure on the 
lot men pied by them under the lease dated March lltli, 
1909, from the City of Saint John mentioned in the plain* 
tiff’s bill and lying immediately to the south of plaintiff’s 
Lot No. 2 mentioned in the bill, whereby the plaintiff’s right 
of access to the waters of the harbour of Saint John on the

(I) 23 N. B. R. 275, at page 300. (2| 1801, 2 Ch. D. 27.
(8) 13 Ch. D. (151.

m
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southern side of his wharf or the privilege heretofore enjoyed 
hy the plaintiff of loading and unloading, embarking and 
iliseinliarking goods on the south side of the said wharf may 
he defeated, destroyed or prejudieed.

19S

1909.

K Kit It, KT Al.. 
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11)0!). EARLE v. HARRISON, kt *l.
.full/ U.

Mortgagee in l‘o**e**ion—Exception* to Referee* Report—Ac­
counting—Interest—Rent*.

A mortgagee in |amavMinn I» not a» a rule entitled tn commis- 
sion for mllerting rents. There must lie evidence to support 
such a charge.

Before a mortgagee in possession can he made liable for rents 
which h - lots foiled to collect I here must lie evidence to show 
that it nas lieen due to his default in some way.

This was a suit for foreclosure and sale under a mort­
gage dated April 27th, 181)1), to secure the sum of $450.00 
for two years, with interest at 7%.

The bill was filed June 10th, 1902. The mort­
gage went into possession August 29th, 1902. The decree 
was made August 10th, 1908, and a reference was ordered 
to Charles F. Sanford, Referee in Equity, to take the av­
euli ills. After the mortgagee went into ]iossession, the 
premises were managed by his agents Messrs. Rustin A 
Porter, who procured tenants, collected rents, paid taxes and 
did re|iair*. At the hearing before the referee the defend­
ants were represented by counsel. Objection having been 
made to the accounts as filed, it was agreed by all parties 
that the referee should make up the accounts. The referee 
accordingly submitted an account in which every |mymeut of 
rent was credited as a payment on account of the money due 
at that time, and the interest was then computed on the 
balance brought down. Evidence was put in to prove this 
account. One of the items of ex|ieiiditure, under date of 
August 10th, 1908, was as follows : “To paid for pluinli- 
ing $20.00.” In support of this item the witness, Mr. 
Rustin, produced an itemized statement of account from .1. 
S. < 'oughlun, a pluinlier, amounting to $28.83, and statist
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that lie hail ordered the plumber to do work on the houses 1909. 
when the tenants complained, and the tenants afterwards said Kiki.k 

the plumber had fixed things up. Other than that he had tioousos. 
no personal knowledge that the work had been done. Counsel 
fur the mortgagee moved to amend the account by increasing 
the item to $28.83. The referee refused to do this and 
allowed the item at $20.00. The referee found due on the 
mortgage on August 29th, 1902, $‘>87.20j expenditures to 
March 4th, 1909, $970.14 ; interest to March 4th, 1909,
#243.51 ; rents collected $1,239.99; balance due on mort­
gage March 4th, 1909, $.*>00.76; rents due February 1st,
1909, $483.71, which amount added to the rents collected 
totaled $1,723.70. Of this amount the referee found that 
the plaintiff should have collected 80% or $1,378.90, and 
therefore charged him with the difference $138.97. It ap­
peared that during the hearing, Mr. llustin in answer to a 
ipiestion from the referee had stated that 85% or 90% of 
gross rental should l>e collected from property as a rule, but 
apart from this there was no evidence adduced to show wlmt 
prmmtage should have been collected in this particular case.
In the accounts as originally filed whenever a payment of rent 
was credited, a corresponding charge of 10% commission was 
made. In the accounts as made up by the referee no com­
mission charges apfieured, and he refused to allow a commis­
sion. The referee found there was due on March 4th, 1909, 
the sum of $421.79.

The plaintiff tiled exceptions to the referee's rejsirt as
follows:—

First Exception :—For that the findings of the said 
referee are not supported by the evidence :

Second Exception :—For that the said referee was in 
error in not allowing ns a disbursement, in addition to the 
Twenty Dollars ($20.00) allowed by him for the amount of 

I :ll of John S. Cougldnn, the sum of Eight Dollars ($8.00) 
and Eighty Three Cents (0.83) :
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• Third Exception :—For that the said referee was in 
error in allowing only Two Hundred and Forty Three 
Dollars and Fifty One Cents ($243.51) as the amount of in­
terest chargeable under the mortgage set out in the plaintiff’s 
hill in this cause during the period lietween the Ninth day of 
August, A. D. 1902, and the Fourth day of March, A. ]). 
1909:

Fourth Exception :—For that the said referee was in 
error in charging the said plaintiff with One Hundred ami 
Thirty Eight Dollars and Ninety Seven Cents ($138.97) in 
resjiect of rents of the mortgaged premises which he'had 
failed to collect :

Fifth Exception :—For that the said referee was in 
error in finding that the said plaintiff was not entitled to he 
allowed commission paid his agent for the collection of the 
rents of the said mortgaged premises.

Argument was heard May IS, 1909.

K. T. C. Unotrlen, for the plaintiff, in support of the 
exceptions :—

The referee should have allowed the plaintiff to amend 
the account by changing the Goughian item from #20.00 to 
$28.83. The referee’s system of making up the account by 
a system of rests was right up to the time the plaintiff took 
possession, but from then he should have made up the in­
terest to the date of the finding (March 4th, 1909), and then 
deducted the credits from that : further, he should have 
made up the whole outlay and allowed interest on that lieforc 
deducting the amount received. The rule is the mortgagee 
is not Isiimd to accept payment by driblets : Union Bank 
of London v. Ingram (1); Brights. Campbell(2); Ainsworth 
v. Wilding (3); Wrii/lcy v. Gill (4). As there was no wilful 
default, the plaintiff is not liable for the rents he failed to

(1) 1(1 Ch. I). 63.
(2) 41 Ch. D. 3H8.

(3) llio:., 1 Ch. 43.'. at n. 440.
(4) 1900, i ch. 1er..
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œVect : Fisher on Mortgages (1). Here it was impossible 
to collect more as the tenants were of a poor class: Ooldwell 
v. I Ml (2); Union Bank oj London v. Ingram (supra). 
The plaintiff was aiment frequently from the city, ami the 
circumstances were such that he was justified in employing 
an agent, and therefore he was entitled to commission : Bright 
v. Campbell (supra).

J. A. Barry for the defendant Harrison, and C. F. 
hushes for the other defendants, contra :—

There was an agreement. The referee’s account was 
made up in accordance with a method determined on by all 
the |iarties, and therefore should not be changed.

D. Mull in, K. C., for the defendant, Harrison contra :—

The plaintiff should have expelled tenants in arrears, 
and should have distrained. The plaintiff’s agents were 
guilty of gross mismanagement.

(Barker, ('. J. The evidence must show the facts 
from which the Court must judge that 80% of the rents 
-liould lie collected).

Commission of 10% was an extraordinary charge, the 
more so when it was just as convenient for the tenants to pay 
at the plaintiff’s office as to the plaintiff’s agents : ('note on 
Mortgage (3) ; Fisher on Mortgage (4) ; Ooilfrey v. Watson 
(5). The account should be made up as outlined in Bell 
and 1 >iiiiii on .Mortgages (0). A mortgagee in fiosscssioii is 
accountable for rents he ought to have collected : Chaplin 
v. Young (7) ; Parkinson v. Ilanbury (8).

Knowles in reply :—
The eases cited for the plaintiff lieforc the referee and 

■snitaiiied in the referee’s report are applicable. The ap-

(1) 3rd Ed., Vol. 2, «II.
(2) » Or. Oh. K. 110, at p. 115. 
I») 4th Ed. 743.
II 3rd Ed., Vol. 2. toil.

(5) 3 Atk. 484.
(0) p. 155. 
l7l 38 Hea. 330.
(8) L. R. 2 K. & I. App. 1.

Mill

1909.

Hahkihox.
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1VOU. |H)iiitnient of an agent is determined by the reasonableness of
Faki.k. the matter, and not by the eonvenience of the tenants.

Harrison.
100». .July 13. Barker, C. J.

Hahkkii. I . .1.

The plaintiff has excepted to the referee’s report as to 
the ninoiint due on the mortgage. The plaintiff took [sisses- 
sion under his mortgage oil the 20th August, 1002. The 
mortgage was given to secure the payment of *450.00 and 
interest at the rate of 7%. The referee has found that 
when the plaintiff took |H>sacssion there was due on the mort­
gage *587.20, and about this sum there is no dispute. He 
has also found that the plaintiff since he went into possession 
has expended in the payment of taxes, ground rents, neces­
sary re|>airs anil improvements up to March 4th, 1000, the 
sum of *070.14, and alsiut this there is no dispute. He has 
also re|Mirteil that the interest chargeable under the mortgage 
from August 20th, 1002, to March 4th, 1000, is *243.51. 
He also finds that the plaintiff received from rents during the 
same period the sum of *1,230.00, leaving a balance due on 
the mortgage of *500.70 on March 4th, 1000. There seems 
to lie an error as the Imhmce should be *500.80. From the 
balance of $500.70 the referee has deducted the sum of 
* Ï 38.07 for rents which the plaintiff is chargeable as having 
been lost by his default. This leaves the sum of *421.70 as 
the true Uilanee found by the referee to he due on the mort­
gage on the 4th March, 1000. The third exception refers 
to the item of *243.51 w hich the plaintiff alleges was made 
up on a wrong principle. He «daims that it should be 
*207.17. I do not think either sum is correct. The prin­
ciple upon which the account of a mortgagee in |iosscssion 
should I s' made up is stated by Jessel, M. K., in Union liank 
<>/ London v. Injram (1). He says—“In taking the ac­
count you take all the mortgagee’s receipts, Ac., * * * * 
for all the rents ami receipts go in reduction of the principal 
and interest.” (See page 50.) .See also Bright v. Campbell
(SO-

ll) lflt'h. D M. (2) 41 Ch. D. 388.
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The referee made up the account by crediting rents as 1900. 
they came in on the mortgage as payments. The difference k*ki.k 

is not very great. The plaintiff’s amount is wrong. He 
lias charged 7% on the balance of #587.20 which of itself is niHK"t"H , 
partly made up of interest. By the endorsement on the 
summons which was issued March lltli, 1002, there was due 
for Interest #12.50, and the interest from March lltli, 1902, 
to August 20th, 1902, is #14.74. These two items amount­
ing to #27.24 should lx- deducted from the #587.20 and 
interest charged on the difference, or #559.90 from August 
20th, 1002, to March 4th, 1000—six years and one hund­
red and eighty-seven (toys—which amounts to $255.20.
That will Ik- the sum instead of #2411.51 as stated by the 
Referee and #207.17 as claimed by the plaintiff.

I think the referee was <piitc right ill disallowing the 
claim for commission for collecting the rents. There does 
not seem to he anything in the evidence to warrant any such 
charge. The referee was equally wrong as to the $138.07 
« liich he charged to the plaintiff as a loss on rents not eol- 
lected. As to this item the referee says in his re|K>rt :—“ 1 
find that the mortgagee in possession should have collected at 
hast eighty |>cr cent, of the rental of the saiil mortgaged 
premises during the period of jiossession of the same, or the 
sum of #138.97 more than he did collect, and therefore 
charge the plaintiff with the said sum of $138.97 which I 
deduct from the balance of $5(10.76, Ac.” Before a mort­
gage in [Missession «in lie made liable for rents which he has 
failed to collect, there must he evidence to show that it 1ms 
I «vu due to his default in some wav. I never heard of any 
Midi rule as the referee has acted upon—there is no evidence 
of any such rule and of course no such rule could well exist.

The aivount will lie stated thus :—

There was due on the mortgage on August 
29th, 1902, when the plaintiff took pos­
session, .........................................................  $ 587 20

VOU N. a. K. K.-it
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1909. Taxes, ground rents, improvements up to
Barm March 4th, 1909,..................................... $970 14

Harruo* Interest on the mortgage from August 29th, 
rivai.. " 1902, to March 4th, 1909,.................... 255 20

Hakkkk, C. J. -----------------
$1818 60 

Cr.
By rents, Ac.,................................................. $1239 99

March 4th, 1909, Balance due,........... $ 578 01
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DYEK v. McGUIRE, bt al. 1900.
July 11.

Conveyance—Fiuud—Stat. IS Eliz. Cap. 6—Valuable Coimuler- 
atiun—Eon a Fuie».

On February 10th, 1908 the plaintiff I). commenced an action at 
law against the défendent M , a verdie was given for 1). and 
judgment was signed for $7<W.58 on June 5th, 1008, which 
judgment still remains unsatisfied.

On May 20th, 1008, M. conveyed certain real estate which he 
owned in Charlotte County to his sou A. M. for the consider­
ation of $9UU, taking in part payment a mortgage for ÿôUO, 
accompanied by a promissory note for a like amount.

A. M. performed work for his father M and on May 20th, 1908, 
the latter was indebted to him in the sum of $100, which with 
the mortgage for $.100 made up the sum of $900 the consider­
ation for which M’s propeity was conveyed to A. M.

M. was not insolvent at the time he made the conveyance to his 
■on A. M. The only creditors he had besides hie son were the 
plaintiff, and hie solicitoi to whom he owe.i a win . II Amount 
for professional services rendered in connection with D’s. suit 
lu'-iinwi him.

Held, that the conveyance would not he set aside and the bill 
must lie dismissed, as the evidence showed that the s.ile was 
made bona fide for a valuable consideration with the intent 
to pass the property, and in such a case it w .s immaterial 
whether or not there was an intention to defeat or defraud 
a creditor.

This suit was brought for the purpose of setting aside 
ivrtaiii conveyances of real estate as having l>een made to 
delay, hinder and defeat the plaintiff, a creditor of the de­
fendant Robert McGuire, and which are therefore fraudulent 
under the Statute 13th, Kliz. Cap. 5. On the 10th Febru­
ary, 1008, the plaintiff commenced an action at law against 
the defendant Roliert McGuire for the recovery of the sum of 
*•">04.58 alleged to l>e due to the plaintiff for gowls sold and 
delivered by him to McGuire. The action was tried at the 
< liarlotte Circuit held in May 1008, and resulted in a ver­
dict by the jury for the whole amount. The posten was stayed 
until the first Monday in the Trinity Term following, which
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1000. was June 3rd. No motion was made for a new trial and on
dvkr the 5th June, 1008, judgment wan signed for #704.58, which

MktL*iKK' remains unsatisfied. A writ of Fi. Fa. was issued to 
the Sheriff of Charlotte County on June 0th, 1008, which 
was afterwards returned “nulla bona”. At the time the 
action was commenced the defendant Rol>ert McGuire owned 
a house and some land on which he was living, in Saint Fat- 
rick, Charlotte County, x at $900.00 On the ‘20th 
May, 1008, the defendant Rol>ert McGuire conveyed this 
property to his son the defendant Archibald K. McGuire for 
the consideration of $000.00. This conveyance was acknow­
ledged the same day and registered on May 22nd, 1008. 
That at the same time, that is May 20th, Archibald K. 
McGuire and bis wife executed a mortgage to Robert 
McGuire to secure the sum of $500.00 in three years with 
interest at 5'/ accompanied by his promissory note for the 
same amount and of a like tenor and date. This mortgage 
was acknowledged by Archibald McGuire on May 20th, and 
by his wife on May 21st, and it was registered May 22nd. 
( >n the 21st May, McGuire assigned this mortgage and the 
mortgage debt to one Mell>ouriie MacMonagle for the con­
sideration of $500.00. It was acknowledged the same day 
ami registered on the 22nd, May. On July 8th, 190S, 
MacMonagle assigned the mortgage and note to his daughter 
the defendant Millie I. Hunt for an alleged consideration of 
$500.84, the amount then due on it. That assignment was 
acknowledged July 8th, and registered July 0th. The bill 
alleges that all these conveyances were made without con­
sideration and fraudulently as against the plaintiff as a 
creditor of Rolært M<*Guire’s, and in order to prevent him 
from realizing the amount of his judgment, and that they are 
void under the Statute of Klizalwth.

Argument was heard May 22nd, 1000.

.1. O. Earle, K. C. for the defendant Millie 1 Hunt :— 

The bill should Iw dismissed as against this defendant, as 
there is no evidence at all against her.

5
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I,. A. Currey, K. C. (>/. N. Oockbuni, K. C. with him) 
for tlu* plaintiff:—

The whole of these transactions are tainted with fraud. 
The knowledge of the father was also the knowhslge of the 
daughter.

(This application for the dismissal of the hill as against 
Millie I. Hunt was refused by the Court.)

All these transfers were fraudulent anil are therefore null 
and void ; further they were made pendenU lile to the know­
ledge of the lairties. There was a relationship of some kind 
among all the [lartics to the several conveyances. The alleg­
ed consideration was an old debt, and there was an alisemv 
of items ; it was also inadequate, and there was a misstate­
ment in regard to it. In the transaction lietween McGuire 
and MacMonaglc there has I wen nil inability to prove the 
payment of any consideration. MacMonaglc acted for all 
the parties to these transfers and had full knowledge of every 
transaction, and his knowledge as attorney and agent was 
landing on the others.

If. MacMonagle, K. U for the defendants Archibald K. 
Met in ire and Kolwrt McGuire contra :—

Robert McGuire had the right to prefer one creditor to 
another, and Archilwld E. McGuire has shown a reasonably 
good debt. In In re Johnson (l), the Court found that the 
dml was an honestly intended family arrangement, and not 
executed with the object of defeating creditors, and that such 
a deed was valid under the Stat. 1:1th. Kliz. Chap. 5. 
II It il pie y v. Riley (2), is a New Brunswick case, where there 
was held to lie no such fraud ns to void the sale. In Air 
/ttirlr Games (3), it was held that a bill of sale would only 
lie void if it were not bona fide, that is if it were a mere cloak 
for retaining a benefit to the grantor. Ill Hale v. Metropol- 
ihin Saloon Omnibus Company (4), it was held that if bona

(l)20Ch. D. 380. 
|2) 2 Allen 27$.

(8) 12 Ch. D. 314.
(4) 28 L. J„ Ch. 777
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1900. fide for a valuable consideration, a sale of goods is not in-
1)ykk validated. See also Wood v. Dixie (1), and Earle v. Firkin

MoUuirk, f‘2)
KT Al«. ' ’

Bakkkk, <". J. Carrey, K. C. in reply.

(Hie Honor recitatcd the facts of the case ns stated above, 
anil proceeded as follows.)

1909. July 13. Bakkkii, V. J.

The ease set up by the way of answer is this. It is 
alleged that the defendant Robert McGuire was indebted to 
his son in the sum of #400,00 for money lent and for work 
and labor, anil that he anil his father agreed upon the sale 
of this house and premises to him for #900.00 to be paid for 
as follows:—$400.00 in satisfaction of the debt, and the 
Iwdance of $500.00 to lie secured by his note and a mortgage 
payable in three years. Robert McGuire was also indebted 
to MacMonagle in the sum of #154.40 for costs incurred in 
the defence of McGuire in the Dyer suit, and in settlement 
of that sum and in consideration of the lialance to lie paid in 
cash he assigned the mortgage anil note to MacMonagle. The 
evidence shows that MacMonagle on the 21st May, 1908, 
when the mortgage was assigned to him gave his note to 
Robert McGuire on demand for $845.00, the difference be­
tween the #500.00 and his bill of costs. This amount Mac- 
Monaglc swears he paid to McGuire in cash on the 2nd 
June, 1908, and his note was given up. The evidence also 
shows that the defendant Mrs. Hunt, who is a daughter of 
Xlr. MacMonagle and resides somewhere in Maine, was en­
titled under her grandfather’s will to a legacy of $500.00. 
Isaac McKIroy the grandfather died in 1890, and by his will 
which is dated Dec. 5th, 1890, he gave to his three grand­
daughters, children of his daughter Mrs. MacMonagle, 
$500.00 each. I.otters testamentary were granted to the

(1)7 Q. H. R. 882. (2) 5 C. & F. M2.
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testator’s daughter Mrs. MacMonagle as executrix, and his 1909. 
sun William McElroy as executor. The evidence shows Dveit 
that money for the |«iyment of these legacies had come into UcUvjhk. 
the hands of Mrs. MacMonagle as executrix, and on her death lllHKKK r 
it came to MacMonagle who liecame liuhle to the legatees for 
the amount due them. He said that he had sometime since 
settled with the two other daughters by assigning them mort­
gages, and he settled with Mrs. Hunt in the same way by 
assigning to her this mortgage and note which he consider­
ed a perfectly good security for the amount. This account 
is corroborated by the evidence of Mrs. Hunt and there is 
nothing to contradict it in any way. The case depends 
mainly upon the evidence as to the indebtedness of Holiert 
McGuire to his son, for I take it to lie long since settled by 
Hood v. Dixie (1), and numerous other cases that a convey­

ance by way of sale for a valuable consideration will he up­
held, although the vendor’s object may have been to defeat 
an execution creditor, provided the sale is made bona Jule and 
with the intention to pass the property. In Wlielphey v.
Itilry (2), Parker, J. directed the jury “on the authority of 
Hood v. Dixie that the circumstance of I lull (the debtor) selling 
the Imy in order to prevent its being taken in execution on the 
ex|MH'ted judgments in the suits then pending (no judgments 
or executions being then in existence), although he then in­
tended to run a wav from the Province, would not constitute 
such fraud as to deprive him of the power to sell, and thus 
make the sale void ; nor would the knowledge of these facte 
In the plaintiff (that is the vendee) prevent his becoming the 
purchaser, and thereby obtaining the property in the hay for 
a full valuable consideration, although it might cast suspicion 
on the whole transaction and tall for a careful inquiry into 
the reality of the birgain and sale. The property was not 
Isiund until the executions were delivered to be executed, 
and therefore Hull, although in debt or even insolvent, might 
law fully dispose of it for a valid consideration.” This charge 
was sustained by the full Court. In Alton v. Harrison (3),

(1) 7 Q B. D. 892. (2) 2 Allen 27.x. (3) L. H. 4 Ch. Ap. 822.
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the law ii* thus laid down: “In this, as in all other 
eases of the same kind, the question is as to the bom fide* of 
the transaction. If the deed of mortgage and bill of sale was 
executed by Harrison bonestlv for the purpose of giving a 
security to the live creditors, and was not a contrivance re­
sorted to for hie own personal benefit, it is not void, but must 
have effect.” Gifford, L. J. adds “If this appeal were to 
succeed the result would be, that one creditor would lie paid 
in full, and the other creditors entirely left out, which is ex­
actly that which the ap|iellaiits now complain of as unjust. 
I have no hesitation in saving that it makes no different in 
regard to the Statute of Elizabeth whether the deed deals 
with the whole or only a |iart of the grantor’s property. If 
the deed is bona fide, that is, if it is not a mere cloak for 
retaining a lienefit to the grantor, it is a good deed under the 
Statute of Elizabeth.” See DalglM v. McCarthy (1), 
Mulcahy v. Archibald (2).

This is not the case of a voluntary conveyance, nor is it 
the ease of a business mail in insolvent circumstances, mak­
ing a conveyance of his property in order to defeat certain 
or all of his creditors. McGuire does not seem to have owed 
any person but Dyer tbe plaintiff for the giants, and his son 
for his work and for money lent, anil MacMonagle for the 
costs of his defence to Dyer’s action at law. Kola-rt McGuire 
was not produced as a witness. It apjienrs that in the action 
to recover the prim of the giaals, he, by way of counter claim, 
set up a claim against the present plaintiff for alienating his 
wife’s affections from him. It seems that McGuire’s wife 
left him a year or two ago anil hr, rightly or wrongly, attri­
buted it to the plaintiff’s influence ind charged him with 
having illicit intercourse with her. The jury found in favor 
of the plaintiff ou this charge, and, after the trial was ended, 
McGuire was arrested on a charge of [icrjury as to his evid­
ence at that trial. He was tried and found guilty. A case 
was reserved as to the iinprojier admission of some evidence, 
and a new trial was ordered. When the present hearing took

(1) 19 Grant 678. (2) 28 S. C. R. 623.
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place lie was confined in the gaol of Charlotte awaiting the 1 !»<>'•».
argument of the case reserved. He was not sworn us a wit- Urn* 
ness in the present case. The only evidence that we have as 
to the indebtedness from Robert McGuire to his son is that ll<|1KeH , , 
of the son and his wife. Archibald McGuire, the son, is 
alsnit twenty-seven years of age, has been married some three 
years, and has lieen earning his own living since he was seven­
teen or eighteen years old. He says that about a month 
before these conveyances were ' , he was living at Wood­
land, which in I understand, somewhere in Maine, though not 
far from Charlotte County, ami his father sent for him to go 
and see him. The father was then living alone on this land 
in question, Klmville is the name of the place. His evidence 
then proceeds :—

11Q. Was he there living on the land ? A. Yes.
“ Q. Had he anyone living with him on the land at that 

rime? A. No, he was living alone.
“ (j. What took place at that time la-tween you and 

your father with reference to this land? A. He told me la­
wns going to sell his place, he wanted me to buy it.

“Q. Yon said he wanted von to buy the land?
A. Yes.

“ ( Go on and state what took place between you anil 
your father about it. A. He said he owed me a little bill, 
and I might as well buy the place, he was going to sell it, 
lie was there alone and he was tired staying there alone, and 
I told him I didn’t have the money just then, and he said I 
could give him a mortgage for the balance he owed me and I 
could |Hiy it sometime. I thought it over and ugmsl to 
take it.

“ Q. How much did hr want for the farm in the first 
instance? A. He told me nlxmt a thousand dollars, he 
would let me |my for it.

“Q Did you agree to give a thousand dollars? A.
No, we agreed on nine hundred.

“Q. Then von got a deed of it at that time. A. No.

5
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“ Q. How long after that before you got a deed of it ? 
A. It must have been a mouth anyway.

“ Q. At any time before you got the deed of it, did 
you make up a hill against your father? A. He said he 
owed me he didn’t know how iniivli, and we made up the 
hill between us to see how mueh he did owe me.

‘•tl. Did you make up the bill ? A. Yes."
This conversation Met luire says, and there is nothing to 

eontradiet it, took plan- alsmt a month la-fore the conveyance 
was made. It must, therefore, have lieen la-fore the trial took 
place, as the verdict was given on tile 14th May. He alleges 
a very natural reason for selling his liomi-—his wife had left 
him and he was alone. The account which Archibald made 
up against his father amounts to $ 1(10.00, and consists of six 
items. The first is for four months work in 1904, $100. 
There is a charge of $100.00 for five months work with him 
in 1905. A charge of $’24.00 for two weeks work at $2.00 
a day in 1000. A charge of $48.00 for a month and twenty- 
four days work in January, 1907, and a charge of $117.50 
for a month and a half’s work in March, 1907. The last 
item is a charge of $40.50 for money lent. As to this the 
evidence is not very satisfactory, except as to about $20.00 
or $110.00. Hut as to the other items, the evidence of Arclii- 
hald Mcduire is positive as to the work ls-ing done, and as 
to the amount there is no suggestion that it is excessive. 
Mrs. Mrtiuirr oorrolmratrs her huslinnd’s evidem-e as to 
several of the items. It is true that the account was not kept 
in a very regular way, but, on the other hand, the charges 
relate to work, the |iurticulara of w hich it is not difficult to 
recollect. It is also true that $400.00 seems a large sum for 
Archiliald Mcduire in his circumstances of life to allow to 
accumulate as a debt due by his father. No doubt it is, and 
that is a feature of the <-ase to lie ninsidcn-d. The dealing, 
however, was lietween father and son—Archiliald says that 
he diil ask for 1ns money at times, but his father never seemed 
to have any money. Reliance is also placed on certain 
admissions, which the defendant Archiliald Mcduire. is said
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to have made to the plaintiff and Mr. Cockburn his solicitor 1009.
in a conversation apparently brought about by the latter. i>vkk

Mr. Cis'kliuvn gives this account of it in bis evidence :—“ I
told Mr. McGuire, speaking of these transfers, that I con-, ,
sidcrcd them all fraudulent and made for tile purpose of
defeating Mr. Dyer in obtaining satisfaction of his verdict for
the judgment which he had then signed, and Archibald E.
McGuire said when the property had to [miss out of his 
father’s hands, his father had to lose the property, lie felt he 
had as good a right to lie paid for his work as Mr. Dyer to 
lie jmid for his bill. I said, for what work do you claim you 
have a right to la? paid ? And he said, for work on the farm.
I asked if his father had ever agreed, when working on the 
farm to pay him wages, and he said no, and I asked if he 
had ever asked or demanded wages from his father during 
that time, and he said he hadn’t, and I asked if previous to 
bringing suit by Dyer against his father ltoliert McGuire, had 
he ever naked or demanded wages, and he said no, and 1 
asked if Mr. Dyer hadn’t sued his father and obtained a ver­
dict against him would he have asked for wages or for a deed 
of the property, and he said no, I wouldn’t. I said, Archie, 
this matter will have to lie brought up in Court to set aside 
those transfers, and I 1io|m; you will tell the same story there 
as you are telling now, and he said, I wouldn’t tell any other 
story for I wouldn’t tell a lie for the whole thing, and he 
further asked if the deed should turn out to la- a fraud what 
rcs|w>naibility he would have in the matter, and I said,
Archie, you will have to take chances in that. I also stated 
if lie ex|iecteil to be allowed to hold this pro|ierty he would 
have to satisfy Mr. Dyer’s claim. 1 further stated to him, I 
thought it was rather a poor way for a young man like him 
to la- starting life, to be mixed up in a transaction as si indy 
as 1 regarded these proceedings." It seems to me that if Mc­
Guire’s claim is a good one, as I think the evidence shows it 
to lie, his right to lx- paid is just as good as that of the plain­
tiff. 1 never feel much impressed with evidence of admissions 
brought alsnit ns these were, but take them as Mr. Cockburn
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I ms given them, wlmt <lo they imioinit to? Met luire then as 
liefore uml since put forward his elaiin for work, wliieli the 
evidence shows to have lieen done, and liis right to tie paid 

! for it does not rest on his worrying his father or asking for 
security.

There is one other |iieee of evidence given by the plain­
tiff to wliieli I should refer. One I*. K. Mills, a provincial 
constable living at St. Stephen, went to Wisslland a town in 
Maine ini the ‘dHtli .laim irv, 1IIIIS, to serve llolicrt Met luire 
with an order to np|>cnr in this suit. He found Met Inin1 at a 
house there sawing wood. Met luire was a stranger to him, 
and instead of serving the pu per which he went there to do, 
lie engaged in a long conservation with him alwait the Dyer 
suit and the transfer of the property. The whole conversation 
is iii'iilmissjlilc against anyone except himself, and if any |uirt 
of the case rested u|xm the evidence of this interview, I should 
not act U|khi it. It seems that Mills, who, according to his 
own testimony, has not taken anything in the way of intoxi- 
cating licpior for three years, that day took a Mask with him, 
gave McGuire a drink and then gave him the flask. He 
returned a second time on Unit day and then served the- order 
for appearance. The same witness arrested McGuire on the 
charge of perjury on the Hth of April last, and on their way 
from St. Stephen to St. Andrews on the steamer “ Aurora ’’ 
a conversation took plaça; la-tween Mr. < 'ockhurn and Mc­
Guire which Mills dcserihial as follows:—“Mr. Cockbum 
approached to where we were and entered into conversation 
with liola-rt McGuire. He naked Mr. McGuire if his son 
had |iaid him anything on the elav he rect-ived the decal and 
he said, no, lie- hadn’t—that he owed his son for lalwir per- 
fornied and for money he had Isirrowed at various times in 
small sums ns lung ago as when his mother was living ' 
and that he gave- the decal to his son for the- amount of money, 
•400 I think he said, and lalsir the son laid done for him, 
and he received no money at that time, at the time he gave 
the deed, hut that his son had given his note, I think he said 
for $500 on that day.

0
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“(J, Wlmt further was stated? A. Mr. Cockhurn lUOtl. 
naked him if MacMonagle paid him anything, and he ml id l>vr*
I hat he owed MavMonagle quite a large hill and that he gave 
MacMoimgle the mortgage for the hill and nome money, he, 
itiuldn’t remember how mueh the bill wan, nor lmw much 
money he received from MacMonagle.”

That in evidence given by the plaintiff's own witneas on 
the |nu t of the plaintiff himnelf. The declaration of the de­
fendant Holier! Mctlnire entirely comiboraten tin- evidence 
of Inn non ill reference to thin transaction.

When the conveyance wan made to Archibald Met iilire 
and the mortgage wan given buck with Arehilmld’a note for 
$0(10 and interi'nt, it only |«ii<l Arehibald’n ilidebtednenn and 
left Robert with a mortgage nnbjeet to execution anil nuttici- 
ent to pay till' plaintiff's.' claim lenn contn. That thin moit- 
gnge wan annigned to MacMonagle dues not alter Archibald 
Mi tiuirc’n |ainition for be bad nothing to do with that urnigu- 
nient. It wan a trannactiou between Inn father and Mac- 
Monagle in which he had no internet whatever. If that wan 
fraudulent it iloen not ariee here for MacMonagle in not a 
a party to thin nuit.

I think the evidence nhown that it wan the intention of 
Hubert and Archibald McGuire to |«ina the ent ile in the 
property according to the ternin of the conveyance and that 
it wan made bom fide fora valuable tainnidcrutioii and that 
it wan not intended to defeat or defraud the plaintiff, though 
that in I think immaterial. In Haniutn v. Richard* (1), 
the laird Justice Turner navn: “It renutinn, then, to lie 
considère.I whether the nettlement, which wan than made for 
valuable conniderntion, wan also made bona fide; for a deed, 
though made for valuable connideration, may lie affected by 
mala fide*. Hut those who undertake to ini|icurh for mala 
tide* a dim I w hich him lieen executed for valuable consider­
ation, have, I think a task of great difficulty to discharge."

In Freeman v. Pope (2), Gifford L. J. navn: “I do not 
think that the Vice Chancellor nix'd have felt any difficulty

(1) 10 Hare 78. (2) 6 C. Ap. at page 544.
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about the case of Spirett v. H7//oir* (1), but he seems to have 
considered, that in order to defeat a voluntary settlement 
there must I* proof of un actual and express intent to défait 

! creditors. That, however, is not so. There is one class of 
cases, no doubt, in which an actual and express intent is- 
necessary to be proved, that is, in such cases as Holmt* v. 
Penney (2), and Lloyd v. Attn-nod (3), where the instruments 
sought to lie set aside were founded on valuable consideration; 
but where the settlement is voluntary, there the intent may 
lie inferred in a variety of ways.”

In hi re Johnmn, Golden v. Gillam (4), Fry, J. says : “1 
therefore prisvisl to impure, looking to all the circumstances 
of the Iliac and at the nature of the instrument itself, whether 
I can or ought to infer an intent to defraud creditors in the 
parties to the deed. I say in the |unties to the died, Issause 
it ap|ieurs to me to lie plain that whatever fraudulent intent 
there may have lieen in the mind of Judith Johnson (the 
vendor), it would not avoid the deed unless it was shown to 
have I sen concurred in by Alice, who became the purchaser 
under the deed. It luui not I sen contended and it could not 
Is- contended, that the mere fraudulent intent of the vendor 
could avoid the deed, if the purchaser were free from that 
fraud. * * * It appears plain from the case of Holme* v. 
Penney (/>), that the mere fact of a bona fide creditor I sing 
defeated is not of itself sufficient to set aside a deed founded 
on a valuable consideration.” In Mulcahy v. Archibald (0)t 
already referred to, the Court says: “The goisls which were 
transferred to her (plaintiff) by Wrayton from the pns'eeds 
of which the gissls levied u|sm were Isiught were transferred 
to her on an account of this indebtedness. No doubt it was 
the intention on the |uirt of Wrayton to prevent this seizure 
under the judgment which he expected Blais would very 
si sin recover against him and for the very purpose of secur­
ing his sister at tile expense of Blais and with intent

(1) SI>. J. AS. 2U3.
(2) » K A J. BO. 
(S)SDeO. A J. «14.

(«) an cti. I). :«n.
(5) 3 K. A .1. no.
(6, 28 8. C. R. 523.
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either to delay him ill his remedies or to defeat them alto- It !()!•.
get her. The Statute of Klizalieth, while making void traits- Uvaa
fers, the object of which in to defeat or delay creditors, does 
lint make void hut expressly protects them in the interest of himk*h o. j. 
transferees who have given valuable consideration therefor, 
and it has lieen decided over and over again that knowledge 
on the part of such a transferee of the motive or design of the 
transferor is not conclusive of bad faith or will not preclude 
him from obtaining the benefit of his security. So long as 
there is an existing debt and the transfer to him is made for 
the purjiose of securing that debt and he does not either dir­
ectly or indirectly make himself an instrument for the pur- 
|*ise of eulieeipientlv lienelitiug the transferor he is protected 
and the transaction cannot lie held void.” See also Middle- 
ton v. Pollock ( I ).

Apart from the suspicion which naturally attaches to 
transfers of priipvrty following each other in such close 
proximity on the eve of a judgment I wing signed against the 
debtor, there is nothing in the evidence in this case to show 
any fraudulent intent in the McGuires, much less in Arclii- 
liahl, or to show that the transfers were not made bomi fide 
for the pur|iose of securing Archibald’s debt. To infer 
fraud so as to defeat these transfers solely from the cin-uin­
stances under which they were made, and to reject the testi­
mony which has lieen given on liehalf of the defendants as 
unworthy of credit, solely Iwcause it is inconsistent with a 
mere inference, would Iw contrary to the recognized practice 
in judicial investigations, unless the circumstances were en­
tirely exceptional in their character.

The bill must lie dismissed with costs.

(1) 2 Ch. I). 104 at page 10S.
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EENETY kt ai. v. JOHNSTON.

S/tecifie Performance—Memorandum of Agreement—Statute of 
Frauds—Construction of Will—Title—Con. Stat. (1903) 
Chap, 100. Sec. 34—Convenance by E.recutors and Tmstees.

G. K F. died in 1N09, and by his will left the greater part of hie 
property to hit* executors and trustees upon various trusts.

The testator's widow is still living, and the surviving executors 
and trustees are the plaintiffs, G. (\ F. and W. T. 11. F. two 
of the testator’s children.

In December, 1907, negotiations were entered into by the defend­
ant J. and \V. T. H. F., acting for and with the consent of 
his co-trustee and mother, for the sale and purchase of the 
Linden Hall property, which with other real estate had I teen 
devised by ilie testator to his executors. An agreement was 
made, and a memorandum containing ils terms was drawn 
up by J. and signed by him and VV. T. H. F. I her«\was only 
one copy of this memorandum which was retained by J , anil 
later destroyed by him when he determined not to go on 
with the purchase. This memorandum as stated by the 
plaintiff W. T. II. F. was as follows :—

“ December 13th, 1007.
** Johnston to purchase from Fenetv estate property on Bruns­

wick Street, 70 x 185, 25 feet to In» clear on upper side, 15 f»*et 
on lower side : estate to give an unencumliered title; John­
ston to hand the estate 25 shares of Toronto Street Railway 
and 10 shares Fredericton Gas Stock—all furniture, including 
that belonging to .Mrs Roberts, to be removed from the 
premises. Stork not to Ik» transferred before January 2nd. 
1H08."

“ L. W. Johnston,
Wm. T. II. Fkxkty."

It contained the name of the vendor and purchaser, the property 
to lie sold and the price to lie paid.

Held that there was a valid agreement for purchase and sale ; 
that the memorandum was amply sufficient to satisfy the 
Statute of Frauds, and was capable of being enforced.

The will contained the following provision,—“ I give, devise and 
bequeath all my other property both real and |a»isoiml what­
soever and wheresoever situate of which I may lie seized or 
possessed or otherwise enlItled, to my executors and trustee! 
herein named upon the trusts following. Ac." The clause in 
the will which referred to the Linden Hall property was,— 
“Up hi trust that my trustees will hold my residence known 
as Linden Hall and the grounds connected therewith (hut not 
to Include the property purchaeed by me and known as i L*• 
Grammar School property) during the will and pleasure of 
my wife, and there she may live as long as she desires, free
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from rent, she paying one-half of the taxes, insurance, water- ] ‘Mill.
rates and such like—also she paying in full the running ex- ----------------
penses in keeping up the establishment, during her oeru-*■KNK'^ 1 r Al 
nancy, it lieing my intention that she may live in lier present Johnston. 
home so long as she may so wish. If, however, the above 
property he leased or sold during my wife’s lifetime, with her 
consent, then in such a ease I desire, if leased, the rent de­
rivable therefrom shall he used as rent for a house for her to 
live in and such house is to he as good as one of my present 
houses situate on College Hoad, Sunbury Street, Fredericton , 
and if after paying such rent with the money received from 
the rent of the said Linden Hall property, there remains a 
balance from time to time, this balance shall he added to the 
principal sum already set aside for my wife’s maintenance, 
the income in the meantime being paid to my said wile.
Should however the said pro|>erty be sold during my wife's 
lifetime, with her consent, the purchase money shall he used 
as follows :—so much of it shall lie invested as will yield 
enough interest to pay rent for as good a house as one of my 
College Road houses, and in such a house my wife may live, 
such interest being used to pay the rent therefor, and the 
balance of the said purchase money shall be divided equally 
among my children then living."

//#•/</. that while no express power of sale was contained in the 
will, there was an implied jiower in the executors and ti ns 
tees to sell the Linden Hall property, to be drawn from the 
provisions contained in the will itself, and to enable them to 
carry out the trusts declared in the will ; and that a convey­
ance executed by the surviving trustees and executors, in 
whom the title was vested, and the widow of the testator, 
gave a good title to the property in question, and that it was 
not necessary that the beneficiaries under the will, other than 
the widow, should join in the conveyance.

Memorials of judgment on record against some of the cestui #/i/r 
trust» are not a bar to the trustees giving a good title to the 
property, as they have no interest in the real estate involved, 
which would be liable under an execution.

Courts of first instance in deciding ‘questions of title are hound 
to decide according to their own view, whether they have 
doubts or not, leaving it to be decided by a Court of Appeal.

The hill in this ease was tiled for the s|»eeitio |>erfnrm- 
shut of a contract for the purchase by the defemlnnt of a 
certain projierty in the City of Fredericton known as 
“ Linden Hall/’ a |mrt of the white of the late (ieorge K. 
Feiictv, in his possession at the time of his death in Septem- 
lier, I StHh Mr. Fenety left a will dated IW. 20th, ISO*», 
with three codicils dated resjiectively, Aug. 20th, 180S, 
Iks*. 9th, ISOS, and March 10th, 1800. The will and 
codicils were duly proved and letters testamentary were 
-.'runted to William T. II. Fenety, (ieorgina V. Fenety, and

VOI. IV. N. H. K. II.-15.
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I ill 111. Frederick S. Sharpe, the executors and trustees n|i|iointeil in 
mxktv n ai. the will, on the '-hit! i (let., 1K!I!I, Sharpe died sometime

jmiNsTux. before this transaction arose, anil the plaintiffs are the two 
surviving executors and trustees, who arc also two of the 
testator’s children. The testator left him surviving fi mi­
sons and three daughters and his widow, who is still living. 
In Ifeeemlier, 1907, the plaintiff William T. II. Fenety, 
acting with the consent and authority of his eo-trustee and 

r, entered into negotiations with the defendant for the 
purchase by him of a portion of the Linden Hall property. 
.Mrs. Fenety, the widow, had continued for some years after 
her Imelmnil's death to reside on this property, hut at the 
time in ipiestiou she was occupying a house elsewhere in 
Fredericton, and Linden Hall was hi the occupation of a 
tenant. The negotiations in ipiestiou resulted in an agree­
ment to purchase I icing made, a memorandum of which was 

and signed by the defendant and hv the plaintiff 
William H. Fenety, acting for and by authority of his in- 
trustce and " r.

Argument was heard duly 15, 19(19.

A. ./. G ra/oi-y, K. ('. (J, ./. F ruser Window with him) 
for the plaintiffs :—

Under the will of the late ( ieorge K. Fenety the pits 
jierty in ipiestiou in this suit was vested in fee in the execu­
tors and trustees, and a conveyance by them gives a good 
title : Con. Stat. X. It., (1903) Chop. 100. See. 24 it 
25. Con. Stat. X. It., (1903) Chap. 103. See. 3. The 
testator's widow is living, and joined in the conveyance. 
There was an implied (lower in the will in the executors anil 
trustees to sell this property. See Mower V. Ore (1) ; Forhn 
v. Peaeork (2) j Flux v. Beet (3) ; Gurlielc v. Cook (4) ; 
Collier v. Walters (5). Under the Acts referred to and eases 
cited plaintiffs are entitled to a decree for specific perform­
ance. Sec also llueeey v. Horne-Payne (6).

(1) 7 Hare 472. (4) L. R. 1 Ir. 260.
(2) 11 M. Ai XV. (I3U.
(3) 31 !.. T, N. S. 613.

<5) L. R. 7 Ei|. Cas. 282. 
(6) 4 App. Cas. 311.
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./. />. Phhtney, K. C., for the defendant :—

Memorandum signed by the parties <li<l not amount to 
an agreement or contract. Defendant thought it was simply 
a iiiciiioraiidimi for his own and his solicitor’* use, ami was 
hi* private property. Before Court will decree specific jier- 
forniance, title must be reasonably clear and marketable: 
Oaborne v. Roiclett (1); Franci* v. St. Germain (’2). Under 
the will of the testator the trustees were not given |>ower to 
sell this pnqiertv. The provisions in the will are not strong 
enough to vest the pro|>erty in the trustees and take away 
the rights of the heirs. A * nt solicitor would not 
advise that a title given by the trustees was wholly satisfac­
tory. Mr. Barry seems to have been rtssignisisl by all the 
parties as the arbiter whose decision as to the title was to Ik* 
final. Carol evidence is admissible in the construction of 
this memorandum or agreement. See Taylor on Kvidem-e 
(3); Addison on Contracts (4); Waiter* v. Mi Ilif/an (.V) ; 
Hum* v. Chi*hoha (I»),

Greyory, K. C., in reply :—

Title offered is a |>crfectly good one and should lie 
accepted by the defendant The |>arties did not agree ii|miii 

Mr. Barry as arbiter, lie was simply the defendant’s solici­
tor, and the plaintiffs never agreed that his decision as to the 
title should lie final. The memorandum of agreement was 
drawn up and contained everything that was necessary, and 
was signed by the (Nirties, and if the plaintiffs had wishes 1 to 
withdraw the defemlant could have en forets 1 it.

1909. August 17. Barkhh, C. J.:—

(His Honor recited the facts of the case as stated alsive, 
and proceeded as follows) :—

The first question to lie disposed of is one of fact. Was

ll) 13 Oh. D. 774. (4) 10th E<1. p. 452.
-2, il Gr. Oh. R. (W6. (ft) 22 N. B. R. 622.
(3) Vol. 2 Sec. 1135. (0) 32 N. B. R. 588 at p. 1129.

219
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Kkxktv kt ai.

JOIISMTOX. 

llAKKKR. ('. J.

3
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1110(1. (livre a concluded ami iiuii|dctc ngm'lnent arrived al lietween 
l>m n kt «Ltlie parties and signed so as to satisfy the Statute of Frauds, 

JmiNsTux. mid jf so wlutt are its terms. The memorandum of which 
Bikhkii. c. J. there was hut the one copy « liicli was retained by the de­

fendant «as destroyed by him after he had knowledge and 
full notire that the plaintiff intended to enforce the contract. 
The defendant claimed the right to withdraw his offer, as lie 
culls it, «lien lie could not get a conveyance signed by all 
the IK'lieticiaries and he says lie then destroyed the memoran­
dum as being of no further use. There is however in my 
opinion no sulistantial difference lietween the two versions 
given of it—one by the defendant and one by the plaintiff 
William Fenety. The latter in his evidence gives the follow­
ing as his recollection of it :—

“ I teeemlier Util, 11107.
“Johnston to purchase from Fenety estate property on 

Brunswick Street 70 x 185, "J."i feet to Is1 clear on up|ier 
side, l.-| feet on lower side ; estate to give an uneiieumliercd 
title; Johnston to hand the estate 25 shares of Toronto Street 
Railway and 10 shares Fredericton (las stock—all furniture 
including that lielonguig to Mrs. Roberts to lie removed from 
the premises. Stock not to lie transferred before January 
2nd, lilOS.

(Sgd.) L. W. Johnston,
Wm. T. II. Fknktv.”

The ilefendant in his answer states the memorandum as 
follows :—

“ Johnston agrees with Fenety estate to exchange ten 
shares Fredericton ( las Company stock and twenty live shares 
of Toronto Street Railway stock for a satisfactory deed, free 
and uuenctiinhered in every way of the Linden Hall pro- 
iierty, so called, with a lot of land 7li x 185 feet, beginning 
at a point 15 feet east of a line to Brunswick Street, purallel 
with the «'est side cellar wall line of Linden Hall. The 
buildings of said lot to lie delivered in the same rendition as 
now, nothing to be removed lint the furniture of the present 
tenant and that lielonging to Mrs. U. Roberts.

I* W. Johnston,
W. T. II. Fknktv."
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111 In* eviileiii'e the defendant stated the invmoniinliiin 11NMI. 
as in IiIk miswer down to the wool “ feet He oinitteil the Kkxktv kt u. 

clause “beginning at a |ioiiit |.*i feet east of a line to Bruns- Junaaww. 
wick Street parallel with the west side cellar wall line of ■ ('. J.
Linden Hall” and then proceeded, “the pro|ierty ” instead 
uf “ the huililings of said lot ", to lie delivered, die. There is 
no essential difference I «tween these three versions. If there 
well1 I should feel at lilierty to adopt the plaintiff's version 
in view of the defendant's destruction of the writing when 
hr knew it was to Iw made the Imsis of proceedings against 
him. Kaeli is amply sufficient to satisfy the Statute of 
Kmuils as a written ineniomndiiin of an agreement ea|iahle 
of lioing enforced. They state the names of vendor and pur­
chaser, the property to be sold and the price to lie |*iid—
I at lint/ v. King (I); Shu nlImr v. Oottercll (2).

It is not denied that the parties actually agreed u|sm 
the sale ami purchase of this property on the terms men­
tioned in this memorandum which they signed. The defend­
ant however sought to show that this memorandum was not 
intended as an agreement hut merely as instructions drawn 
out by himself to his solicitor by which he was to lie guided 
in carrying the verUil agreement into effect. It does not 
seem to me of niucli importance what |airticular use the 
defendant intended to make of this memorandum. The 
iin|wirtuiit ipiestion is did it in fad contain the terms of the 
verbal agreement to purchase, so us to satisfy the require- 
loents of the Statute of Frauds ? If it ilid that is all that 
llie plaintiff requires as to that hnincli of the ease. Before 
referring to the evidence on this (siint I shall mention another 
|Kiint strongly relied on at the hearing. It was there con- 
teiidcd that it was one of the conditions of the iuntract that 
the ipnetion of title was to lie altogether subject to the de­
cision of Mr. Burry the defemlnnt’e solicitor, so that no 
ipiestion of that kind could ever mine before a Court, Mr.
Harry’s opinion u|ion that |H>int, so far as this transaction is 
■siiiivrneil, l«ing conclusive u|k>ii both |>urties. It is true

11) 6 fh. I). nun. (2) ait'li. I), no.
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190U. that Mr. Barry was acting for the defendant as hin solicitor 
Kkmktv rr ai. in the way usual in transactions of this kind, and that the 
Johnston, defendant was relying upon his opinion as to the title. Mr. 

Hakkkk. c. J. Barry was however not to draw the conveyance or, so far as 
1 can see, do anything which required this written memoran­
dum for his guidance, however useful it may have lieen. He 
certainly was not acting for the plaintiffs in anv way. I 
think the defendant’s own evidence on this |K)int is directly at 
variance with his contention. In his direct examination after 
telling of their negotiations as to the terms ami their final 
agreement verlwlly which seems to have taken place on tin* 
20th I>e<\, 1907, the defendant’s evidence proceeds thus :—

<4<J. Did you tell him (i. e. the plaintiff Fenety) to 
come in the next day ? A. Yes.

“(j. Aliout what date was that, the next < lay ? A. 
Well as I have it in mv mind it was the 21st of December.

“Q. What took place on that occasion V A. Well I 
had the securities with me and prior to his coming there.

“(J. This was in the Assessor’# office? A. Yes, ami 
prior to his mining there I had drawn up a memorandum 
and when he came in I showed him the securities and showed 
him the memorandum, ami told him that I intended Mr. 
Barry slum hi investigate the title and pass u|H)ii the validity 
of the deed they would offer, and that 1 had made a memor­
andum for Mr. Barry’s guidance, which was there which 1 
would like him to read to see if it was correct, ami he 
mid the pa|»er and after he had rend it he asked me if lie 
should sign it ami I told him I dare say he might as well, 
it would do no harm.

“(J. Did you sign it yourself? A. I hail signed it 
Indore he arrived.

“(j. This was a |ni|kt of your own prejianition? A. 
Entirely so.

“(£. You told him Mr. Barry was to pass tin 
title? A. Yes I did.

“ (J. I>i<l he assent to that or make any objection ? A* 
I presume he assented to it; he raised no objection at all.
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lit- linked me if the matter wan to lie entirely in Mr. Hurry’s 1901». 

thereafter and I said it wan. Kb*err ftai.
“ Q. Was anything said as to the title being satisfactory Johx«t»x. 

to Mr. Barry or words to that effect? A. Certainly IBakkkk. c 

luM him Mr. Harry would investigate the title and pass 
upon the validity of the deed.

“ il. Mr. Barry bail lwen your solicitor for a good many 
x ears ? A. He has acted for me on a great many occasions.”

This evidence shows that the defendant had selected 
Mr. Barry as his adviser hut it altogether fails in proving 
that it was in any way agreed by the plaintiffs that they were 
ohliget 1 as a part of their contract to furnish a title satisfac­
tory to Mr. Barry. They were no doubt to give a good title 
and one free from encumbrances, but they never agreed that 
Mr. Barry should Ik* the sole arbiter by whose decision they 
were to Ik* bound. This evidence shows that at this time the 
defendant handed this memorandum of agreement and the 
»tuek <*crti fini tes which were to be handed over in |Niyinent, 
to Mr. Barry, in whose hands, as the defendant said, he left 
the matter entirely, lie said nothing whatever as to Mr. 
Harry’s opinion living a<*eepted. It seems strange that if 
there was so im|sirtaiit a condition in the mntraet as is put 
forward, that a memorandum written out for Mr. Barry’s 
guidance in closing up the matter should not have lieen in- 
vorporuted in it. On his cross-examination on this |>oiut the 
defendant gave the following evidence:

“($. When this memorandum was drawn you had 
agreed to exchange this stock for that property? A. Under 
• vrtain conditions.

Ml|. Under conditions of getting a good title? A. 
< “ ions regarding a title satisfactory to Mr. Barry
my solicitor.

“(J. Then1 was n> " said in the ngnnnent, this 
memorandum itself, as to it living satisfactory to Mr. Barry?
\. Nothing at all.

“Q. And that mcmnnindum was drawn up to ciiiIhmIv 
the terms of the agreement? A. It was.”

8
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It MW. It seems that the plaintiff and defendant went to Mr.
kkxktv in ai. Harry’s oHiee immediately after this memorandum was 

.ion ns ion. signed and Mr. Harry thus descrilies what took place. 
KâMKBM. r,j. «I remcnilier the occasion. I have no means of fixing the 

day alisolntely, Imt 1 have no doubt it was at the time stated, 
the 'Jlst of Decemlier in the year 11107. Mr. Johnston and Mr. 
Fenety came into my office, my private office. * * They 
«line into my own office and Mr. Johnston had a package 
with him in a hrown envelope and told me that he was treat­
ing for the pnrshase of the Linden Hall projierty and wanted 
me to search the records and investigate the title and see it 
was satisfactory in every way and he left the |m|»ers with 
me. * put them in my safe. (The |wi|>ers were the memor­
andum of agreement and the two stock certificates in an 
envelope). * * *

“<J. You say Mr. Johnston asked you to complete the 
matter and see the title was satisfactory, did lie? A. Yes, 
that is what lie came to me for, to investigate the title and see 
that it was in every way satisfactory.”

Mr. Harry says that he drew up a description of the 
pro|ierty and made searches at the Record Office, lie was 
asked on cross-examination :

“<i. l>id you form an opinion that the convev- 
anee by the trustees without the heirs joining would Ik* 
an inadequate or invalid deed ? A. I formed the opinion 
it would lie very doubtful. There is a very grave doubt in 
my mind as vet. I think 1 would not take a title today 
without it.”

It will lie seen that these instructions given by the 
defendant to Mr. Harry were nothing more than anv one 
pun * property usually given to his solicitor. There
is nothing in the conversation to suggest that by his decision 
the plaintiff was to Ik* IhiiiikI. I find as a fact that there 
never was any such agreement at all.

I» //«Ascy v. llornc-Puyne (1); an action similar to thi>, 
it ap|ieaml that this provision “subject to the title living

(1) 4 A. (’. 311.

8
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approval by our Solicitor” wtuü sought to Ik* introduced into 1909.
a contract entered into hv corres|iondenec. In reference tokknetv ktal

it Lord Cairns says :—“I feel great dilliculty in thinking Joint won.
that any person could have intended a term of this kind to have ■ahkkr. (. j.
that operation, because, as was }>ointed out in the course of
the argument, it virtually would reduce the agreement to
that which is illusory. It would make the vendor bound by
the agreement but it would leave the purchaser perfectly
free. He might appoint any solicitor he pleased—lie might
change his solicitor from time to time. There is no dinvtio
jtcrwnarum there is no ap|M>intnieiit of an arbitrator in whom
both sides might lie supposed to have confidence. It would
he simply leaving the purchaser, through the medium of his
solicitors, at liberty to say from <11 price at any moment, we
do not like the title, we do not approve of the title, and
therefore the agreement goes for nothing. My Lords, I
have great difficulty in thinking that any person would
agree to a term which would have that o|icmtioii. But it
appears to me very doubtful whether the words have that
meaning. I am disjsiscd rather to look ii|xm them, and the
case cited from Inland would lie authority, if authority were
needed for that view, 1 am disposed to look ujmjii the words
as meaning nothing more than a guard against its living sup-
posed that the title was to lx* accepted without investigation,
as meaning in fact the title must lie investigated and approved
of in the usual way, which would be by the solicitor of the
purchaser.” See Andretrs v. Oulori (1).

Admitting that |iarties might bind themselves bv so one 
hilled a contract as such a condition would create it would 
never lie inferred from evidence such as I have <|noted, es- 
|Mi*ialIy where we have the contract drawn up by the defend­
ant himself “to emliody the terms of the agreement”, as he 
says, and it contains no such provision. In addition to this 
I think this memorandum of agreement signed by the parties 
and drawn up by the defendant for the purposes 1 have 
mentioned is available for the plaintiff as a foundation for

(l) 88 8. C. H 688.
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19011. thin action, though the defendant intended giving it to his 
kkxktv kt ai. solicitor for his guidance in carrying out the agreement of 

Jqhmmtok which the signet 1 meniornnduin was the legal evidence. If 
Hakkkh. i . .1. two jMirties negotiate by correspondence and eventually 

arrive at a point where all the essential terms of a contract 
have been determined and agreed upon, the contract is en­
forceable though it apjiears by the eorres|K>ndeuce that it 

* was the intention of one of the partus that the agreement 
was to Ik- put in due form by a solicitor, /{(miter v. Miller 
(1).

The defendant however says the title which you offer 
me is not good ; at all events it is not such a title as I can 
be comp lied to accept. In the first place the beneficiaries 
under t v will must join in the conveyance, and in the second 
place there are memorials of judgment on record against one 
or more of tin- beneficiaries. As to the first question the 
evidence shows that a conveyance duly executed by the plain­
tiffs as trustees, and by the widow and children except one, 
was tendered to the defendant and he refused to accept it. 
Though six of the beneficiaries joined in the conveyance it 
was not because that was necessary but only in order to meet 
tlu* wishes of the defendant’s solicitor. And the plaintiffs 
now claim that a conveyance executed by themselves as sur­
viving trustees and by the widow will give a good title to 
the defendant, free from all incumbrances, ami satisfy all the 
requirements expressed or implied in the contract of sale.

The testator by his will after making a specific legacy 
and giving directions as to the payment of his debts, gave to 
his wife “ Eliza A. during the term of her natural life, the 
household stores, furniture and effects of every deseri 
whatsoever, which may be found in my dwelling house or 
lielonging thereto at the time of my death, as well as all 
animals, carriages, sleighs, waggons, harness, stable imple­
ments, goods ami effects contained in and alnuit the liarn in 
connection with my premises with full power to my said wife 
to sell any or all of the alxwe mentioned priqierty.” What-

—

(1)3 A. ('. 1124.
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ever of this property remained at the «lentil of the wit low the 1 Of III.
executors were directed to sell and divide the proceeds equally Enxrrv kt ai. 
among the children then living. The proceeds of any sales JoasjnuN. 
of this property by the widow were to lie added to the pria-D ,HKI<" 1 

sum to he set aside for her maintenance as is hereafter 
mentioned and the income was to go to the widow during her 
life. Then follows this clause : “ I give, devise anti lie-
qiieuth all my other property Ixitli real anti |wrsonal what­
soever and wheresoever situate of which I may lie seized or 
|tossessed or otherwise entitled, to my executors and trustees 
herein named u|kiu the trusts following—that is to say (1) 
ii|m>i) trust that my trustees will invest (or set aside invest­
ments already held by me and yielding interest) such of my 
pmjierty as will be sufficient to yield interest amounting 
yearly to $1,200 and u|kjii trust that my trustee* shall |>uy 
the said amount of $1,200 to niv wife quarterly during her 
lifetime for her sole lienefit and sup|s)rt, iVc." Then follows 
ivrtain directions as to keeping up this fund so that the 
annual income may la maintained at $1,200. On the 
of the w" * * "a fund was “ to lie dealt with by my trustees
as follows ” : Then follows a direction for the trustees to 
divide it among the testator's children. The second clause 
of the will has reference to the Linden Hall pro|ierty and is 
as follows : “Upon trust that my trustees will hold my 
residence known as “Linden Hull” and the grounds con­
nected therewith (but not to include the property purchased 
by me and known as the (iramnuir School property) during 
the will and pleasure of my wife, and there she may live as 
long ns she desires, free from rent, she |wiving one half of the 
taxes, insurance, water rates and such like—also she jwiying 
in full the running ex|ienses in I'eeping up the establishment, 
during her occupancy, it I icing my intention that she may 
live ill her present home so long as she may so wish. If, 
however, the aliove property lie leased or sold during my 
wife’s lifetime, with her consent, then in such a case I desire, 
if leased, the rent derivable therefrom shall lie used as rent 
for a house for her to live in and such house is to be as good

1
6556
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un ont' of ni y prônent houses situate on ( ollege Road, Sun- 
H \> n mi ai. bury Street, Fredericton, and if after paying such rent with 

'oiwmiN. the money received from the mit of the said Linden Hall 
utKMt. t. .1. pro|ierty, there remains a Imlanee from time to time, this 

Imlanee shall lie added to the prinei|Nil sum already set aside 
for my wife’s maintenance, the income in the meantime lieing 
paid to my said wife. Should however the said jirojierty 1m* 
sold during my wife’s lifetime, with her consent, the pur­
chase money shall Ik* used as follows :—so much of it shall 
Ik* invested as will yield enough interest to pay rent for as 
go*mI a house as one of my College Road houses, and in such 
a house my wife may live, such interest being used to pay the 
rent therefor, and the Imlanee of the said purchase money 
shall he divided equally among my children then living.”

It is clear I think from this clause in the will that it 
was optional with the testator’s widow either to continue to 
reside at Linden Hall or to do as she in fact has done, select 
a residence elsewhere. If the projierty was leased she was 
entitled out of the rents sufficient to pay the mit of another 
house, and if it was sold sufficient of the jiurehase money to 
jiroduee interest eipial to the rent was to Ik* invested for that 
purjiose. In view of tlu*sc facts and of the sjiccial direction 
that the trustees to whom the projierty was devised “were to 
hold it during the will and jileasure of the widow ” I should 
Ik* disjMised to think, though it is not necessary to d<*cide that 
jHiint for the jnirjMises of this <*ase, that the widow had the 
right to have the projierty leased or sold, ipiitc irrespective 
of the wish<*s of anyone else ; she had a right to occupy 
Linden Hall free of rent ; she had a right to abandon it and 
live elsewhere, and if she did she had the right to have the 
rents of Linden Hall or the interest of a jmrt or all of the 
pr<i<*eeds of its Nile ajijirojiriutcd to the jiayment of her rent. 
It was imjMissible for the trustees to carry out these trusts 
without leasing or selling and the widow’s consent was all 
that was rajiiired.

See. 24 of t’liaj). Hit) resjacting Wills (2 ( on. Stat. ji. 
11140) proviiles that “ where any real estate shall lie devised
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to any trustee or executor, such «levise .shall Ik? construed to ltHit*. 
I»ass the fee simple, or the whole estate or interest which the kkxkty m v 

testator hail power to <lis|Kise of by will in such real estate, John-tu* 
unless a definite term of years absolute or determinable, or H-uikkk. i . J- 

an estate of freehold, shall thereby lie given to him expressly 
ur bv implication.” By virtue of this provision the trustees 
took the fee simple in this property which the testator had at 
the time of his death. Apart from this it is abundantly clear 
I think that the testator intended to vest the fee in his trus­
tee* as necessary for them to have in order to execute tin- 
trusts declared in the will. I have alnady mentioned those 
referring to the Linden Hall pro|wrty, but there are others.
By a codicil to the will the testator directed that the houses 
1 milt by him in 1'Yedcricton, bringing in rents, should not In- 
-old «luring his wife’s life, but that tin- rents slnmld lie <lc- 
voted toward her $1,200 a year allowance. This |Hirtion of 
the real estate will therefore form part of the property «lis- 
tributable on the widow’s death. Clause four of the will 
deals with the resnlue of tin- pro|ierty, that is, what is not 
s|H-eifi<iilly devised in clauses one ami two, ami as to this 
residue the will provi<les that it lx- In-Id “ upon trust that my 
trustees will «leal with all the resnlue of my projierty, or 
estate, both real ami jiersoiuil in manner ami form following, 
that is to say, that they shall «livide it as fairly as possible 
into seven iNpial shares which shares an* to be dealt with by 
the trustees in the following inunner.” Then f«dlow s|ie«-iti<‘ 
directions which I may state generally. The trustees, or the 
survivors, are to pay over to eiu-li of the four sons one share,
I nit if either of them pmleccaseil him leaving chihlren under 
age, then the trustees are to bold the share ami pay the inter­
est to the guanlinn of the youngest chihl for the lienetit of 
all until the youngest chihl liecame of age, when the trustees 
were to «liviile it among the children. Similar provisions 
were iniule as to the widow of a chihl who was to have the 
income for life or «luring widowhood. The other three share* 
the trustees were to retain ami keep se|Miratc—one for tin- 
Isaietit of ea«-h «laughter, ami to |wiy the annual inonim- to
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1000. such i laughter <lnring life for lier se|iaratc use. Then fol- 
Krxirrv nr «i. loweil provisions to be oliserved in ease of the death of u 

■iimt-niK. daughter before the testator, leaving chili Iren, similar to those 
Hahki fi. e. J. made in the ease of the sons. By a second codicil the testa­

tor direct» that on the division of the estate property as far 
as it can lie his three children (j. Linden l'Vnety, Walter 
Pierson Fenety anil (ieorgina V. Fenety should Ifc provided 
for first—that is to say, each shall receive #10,000 as their 
first instalment, U'hicli sums shall lie severally paid to them 
in cash or as otherwise may lie agreed u|k>ii or as may lie 
most convenient to the executors. The trustees Men- also 
einjFou'ered to vary and transfer any security or securities 
they may hold, and each of them was only responsible for his 
own default. The testator also declared that all trusts anil 
(lowers re|N>scd and vested in the trustees might lie exercised 
by the survivor or survivors of them or the heirs, executors 
or administrators of such survivor or other the trustees or 
trustee for the time bring of the Mill,

In Darien to Jnnen anil Kran» (1), on an application 
under the Vendor and Purchaser Act for a decision of tile 
Court as to title, Pearson J. after referring to the rule as 
laiil down by laird Mansfield in Oaken v. Cook (2), and In 
Bayley B. in Anthony v. Reen (3), says:—“Now, in niv 
opinion, there were two things required, one was that the 
executors wen- to carry out all the intentions of the testator, 
and another was that they were to distribute the residue of 
the estate among the wife and daughters in the manner 
pointed out ; consequently the wife and daughters take noth­
ing absolutely, and the only May in which I am give effect 
to the whole of the will is by saying that the executors must 
in the first place raise so much as may lie necessary for (lay­

ing the testutor's debts and funeral cx|ienses, and after that 
they are to provide for the legacies, and then to have in their 
own liands whatever remains and to divide that lietween the 
wife and children in the manner directed bv the will. I must 
therefore hold that they had the legal estate for the punaise

(1) 24 Oil. D. 1011. (2) Burr. 16811. (3) 2 Cr. Ü J. 83
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of the will, und my opinion is that they ean make a good title ltMlil. 
to the purchaser.” Ill that ease there was no devise of the Kkxktv ht ai. 
property to tlie executors as there is in his, Imt it was held Jouxirox. 
that they took the title to the residuary estate, which they Harkkk. v. i 
were to distribute, that I icing necessary to enable them to dis­
charge their duty under the will, and, having the title, they 
could give a good title to a purchaser. See Yount/ v. Elliott 
(1), Collier v. Walter» (2).

It is true that this will contains no direction or express 
power of sale of the real estate. There is, however, a clearly 
implied power for that purpose. Such a |Kiwer would lie 
implied when it was necessary for the trustees in order to 
carry out the trusts imposed upon them. 1 have already cited 
the clause as to the Linden Hall projierty, and that the tes­
tator himself considered that he had conferred ami intended 
to confer such a power as to all of his real estate, ap|ienrs 
from the codicil to which I have already referred, by which 
lie directed that his Fredericton houses should not lie sold or 
ilis|wised of during the life time of his wife, thereby placing 
a limitation on the [lower given by the will. In Glorer v.
II ilnon (3), Strong .1. says :—“It is clearly established In- 
many authorities, amongst which may lie cited the follow­
ing :—Forben v. Peacock (4); llord v. Devon (ô) ; Tyblrn 
v. Hyde (fl) ; Curtin» v. Fu!brook(7); William’s Heal Assets 
(X) ; Dart Vendors, Ac. (!l) ; and Sugden on Powers (10)— 
that where a testator bv his will directs real property to lie sold, 
without saying by whom, and the proceeds to he distributed 
or “ " by his executors, they take a power to sell and 
convey the fee. Now, in this informal will, we find a clear 
though clumsily expressed (lower to sell in the following 
words: ‘ Also, it is my will that, when the aforesaid projierty 
lie sold, that the interest lie put to the clothing and schooling 
of my children and to the sup|Kirt of my wife, so long as she

(1) 23 V. C. Q. B. 420. (6) 2 X. tc 8. 238.
(2| 17 Kq. 252. (7) 8 Hare 25.
(3) 17 Grant 111. (8) p. 84.
(4) 11 Sim. 162 ; 11M.*W. «37. (9) p. 400.

15
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l'.Ml't. remains lily widow,’ and the proceeds living directed to be 
Kkxktv mi. applied to maintenance indicates that an immediate and not 

.imivmix. a |,nst|imied sale was intended.” Strong, J. then points out 
Baiiki h. i . j. |,(iw that the executors were to apply the estate and effects, 

and proceeds thus. “ I think, therefore, that Klim (Hover, 
the testator’s daughter, horn after the making of this will, is 
not, either as one of the co-heirs at law or as entitled to the 
lieiiefit of the trust for maintenance, a necessary party to the 
mil voyance, inasmuch as the executors take a legal power of 
sah', and I must, therefore, allow tile appeal with costs.”

In Mnwir v. Orr (I), the testator gave his estate, in­
cluding copyhold of inheritance, leaseholds, merchandise, 
money in the funds, and cash, to his children and grand­
children, in twenty shares, and directed some of such shares 
to I mi invested in the government funds for the infant lega­
tees and requested his executors on his death to get his 
pro|«rty together and divide it, it was held, that the will 
must lie taken to direct a sale and conversion of the eopvhold 
estate. There was no devise of the estate or anv part of it to 
the trustees as in the present ease. The Vim Vhnivellor 
held that the testator must lx' understood as directing the 
conversion of the copyhold estate into (M-rsonalty. The 
division of the entire pro|K,rtv ii to a luunlwr of shares and 
the directions contained in the wil! as to the investment and 
disjHisition of sonic of such shares, precluded the sup|sisitioii 
that the testator intended the copyhold should remain un­
sold—and a sale was accordingly ordered.

In Hamilton V. HuekiMi*trr (2), a tall was tiled for the 
B|ieeific performance of a contract to purchase a leasehold 
house, raising the question whether the cxmitrix, who had 
entered into the contract, had (Miwer to sell i> ider her testa­
tor’s will. The executors were directed to s'il “all his 
(testator’s) stocks, shares, and securities, and such other part 
of his (K-rsonnl estate as was in its nature saleable, and i-olivet 
and get in all money due and owing to him, and all other his 
estate, ami convert the same into money anil stand possessed

(1)7 llare 472. (2) L H. 3 Eq. 323.
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nf the |mHve<ls upon trust to pay délits, fimeml and testa- 1901).
nientary expenses, anil invest the residue thereof upon the I'knktv kt al

trusts therein declared.” After the date of the will the Johnston

testator liecame jiossessed of the freehold house in question. H<"KKn' c' J-
It was put up for sale liy the executrix who, in the absence
of the executor (the testator’s heir-at-law) in India, laid alone
proved tile will. The defendant purchased the property but
refused to ixunplete the purchase on the ground that the title
was defective inasmuch as the will contained no |iower to sell
this freehold projierty and that at all events the concurrence
of the devisee (if any) or the heir-at-law should be procured.
Wood, V. C., said that he never had any doubt that the “X- 

teutrix had |stwer to sell the house and he made a decree in 
favor of the plaintiff holding that the words “and all other 
his estate ” included this freehold property. See Flux V. Bent 
( I ) ; Carlisle v. Cook (2) ; Cooke v Simpson (3).

In all of these cases, and many others of the same kind 
can lie found, it is clearly held that where a testator devises 
real estate to trustees 11)1011 certain trusts so as to vest the 
absolute interest ill them and directs or authorizes a sale of 
the property, the trustees have the sole power to sell, to 
lunvey to the purchaser, to receive the purchase money and 
give a discharge for it. And if instead of thus devising the 
estate to the trustees, the testator gives such directions to his 
trustees as render a sale of the property necessary in order to 
carry out the directions, the trustees take the estate for that 
purpose and their conveyance to the purchaser is good. In 
none of the cases so far as I have examined them, has the 
inijvrvunce lieen executed by others than the trustees. In 
this present case the testator made s|iecial provision for 
_rr:i 111 Icliililreu under age in case of the death of any of his 
children living liefore him leaving children. If the defend­
ant’s laintention can lie sustained, hud such a case happened 
this property could never have lieen sold as the minors could

(1) 31 L. T. N. 8.645. (2) 1 L. H. Irish 2111).
(3) 46 L. J. Ch. 403.

VIII. I. N. B. K. R.— 16.
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1909. not Imve joined in the eonveyant'e and without it the title 
frnktt ktal would Ik* i1111k*i*ftH*t. The testator's intentions an to his 

Johnston, wife’s maintenance would have thus been in a great measure 
Baukkk, c. j. frustrated. I have no doubt myself that the trustees’ con.

voyance was <|iiitc sufficient to pass the title without the 
concurrence of any one except the widow, to signify her 
consent to the sale.

The defendant’s counsel contended that at least the title 
offered to the defendant was so doubtful that this Court 
would not force it on a purchaser; and in support of that 
contention he cited two cases. One is Francis v. St. Germain 
(I), in which the Court sitting on ap|ieal sustained the deci­
sion of listen, V. C., against the title. The facts of the case 
were not at all similar to the facts of the present case, and it 
therefore has no liearing on this case for no one disputes the 
general proposition that a doubtful title will not Ik* forced on 
a purchaser. The other <itse is Osborne to Rowlett (2), 
and so far as it bears upon the present case is an authority 
against the defendant. It siip|s>rts the rule to which I shall 
presently refer bv which Courts of first instance in dealing 
with this question are Inmnd to decide according to their 
view, whether they ha Me doubts or not, leaving it to Ik* de­
cided by a Court of Appeal. In that case Jessel, M. R., says 
“ The ease is one which I am bound to decide, as lietween 
vendor and purchaser, whether a good title can Is1 ' or 
not.” Two or three other easts will illustrate the rule I 
have mentioned. In Hamilton v. Unci'master (supra), already 
referred .o which was decidt-d in 1 Stiff, Mr. Dart, one of the 
conveyancing counsel to the Court, had given an opinion 
against the title. Wood, V. C., said that he never had any 
doubt that the title was good but the question was whether 
the title could lie forced u|m»ii a purchaser. He savs, “with 
res|»eot to enforcing sjhhmHc performance against the pur­
chaser, it has lieen contended that, having regard to the differ­
ence of opinion lietween the eminent counsel who have advised

(1) 0 (liant 886. (2) 13 ( h. 1). 774.

5
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h|kmi this title, there is such a reasonable doubt that I ought 1900.
not to force the title upon the purchaser. But am I to make Kknkty ktal
tlii» estate unmarketable, for that will lie the effect of re- Jqhnwtom.
fusing specific performance? If, in deciding in favour of the Barkkr- c*j*
vendor, 1 am wrong, my decision can In* set right by the
Court of Appeal—but if 1 decide in favour of the purchaser,
then I shall lie condemning the title beyond the power of
:ip|ie:il, as the Court of Ap|>eal has always held, that the
simple expression of doubt in the Court below is sufficient to
prevent the title from lieing forced iijion a purchaser.” The
latter part of this passage is smreely Isirne out by Beioley v.
Curtrr ( 1 ). The Master of the Rolls in that ease decided that 
the title was bad and dismissed the plaintiff’s bill for s)>eciHc 
performance. Selwyn, L. J., on delivering the of
the Court of Apfieal said—“We have not lost sight of the 
fact that this is a suit for specific |H*rformante, nor of the 
fact that the greatest weight is due to the opinion of the 
Master of the Rolls, nor of the observations of the Ismls 
Justices in Collin’ v. McBean (2), in which the danger and 
difficulty of forcing a doubtful title upon a purchaser are 
dwelt ii|m»ii. At the same time it is the duty of a Court of 
Ap|M5tiI to form an * ii|m»ii the question of title and to 
act ii | n ai it, as is well expressed by I xml St. Ix-onards in the 
can- of Sheppard v. Doolan (3). His lordship there says—
•With res|iect to the common eases of doubtful title, 1 cannot 
agree with the pro|k>sitioii that an unfavourable decision in 
tin-Court of inferior jurisdiction renders the title doubtful.
The Judge of the Siqierior Court would still lie IhiuikI to 
exercise his own discretion, and decide according to his own 
judgment. 1 have myself often argued at the Bar in siq>- 
jHirt of the proposition, but always without success; for 
although I have urged that no Judge could consider a title 
t" Ik- free from doubt when one or two Judges competent to 
d« le the question had pronounced it to lie defective, I have 
Urn ever met by this answer—that to adopt such a doctrine

(1) 4 Ch. Ap. 230. (2) L. R. 1 Ch. 81.
(8) 3 D. & War. 8.

45
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lftOO. would Ik* in effect to leave the ultimate decision of the ques- 
Femki y KTAi.tion to the Court below, while the law provides an ap|>cal to 
Johnhtqn. the Court above.’ \V e, therefore, consider it to Ik* our duty 

Bakkkk. c.J.to decide the case, and in doing ho there are two questions to 
be considered.” The Court there overruled the Master of 
the Rolls and decided the title to Ik; perfectly good and de­
creed H|M*eifie |R*rforinanee.

If therefore I had doubt as to the correctness of the 
conclusion at which I have arrived it would lie my duty to 
act on my judgment lis in other cases and leave it to a Court 
of Ap|leal to correct me if 1 am wrong.

There was one other objection raised to the title though 
on the argument the defendant’s counsel did not 1 think 
mention it. That was as to the memorials of judgment on 
record against some of the cestui que trusts. These Is'iieti- 
ciaries however take no interest in this Linden Hall property. 
It was devised to the trustees with a power of side and what­
ever they might eventually receive from the trustees under 
the trusts of the will as their portion of the proceeds of the 
side, they had no interest in the property itself leviable under 
an execution. See lie Ijewis and Thorne (1).

The result is that in my opinion there was a completed 
binding agreement for the purchase and sale of this property 
—that tin* objections to the title are urfoiinded ; that the 
trustees’ conveyance to the purchaser will pan a good title 
free from any of these objections, and that the concurrence of 
the beneHcaries other than the widow is not at all necessary 
for the validity of the conveyance to which the defendant is 
entitl'd. There will therefore Ik* a decree in favour of the 
plaintiffs and a reference as to the dividends receive!I on the 
shares, Are.

Reserve costs and other questions till report.

(1) 14 Ont. K. 133.
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CLARK v. CLARK, f.t al., Executors.
1909.

Will- Residuary Clause—Construction—Gift inter vivos- De- September si 
duration of Trust—Testamentary (rift—Wills Act.

J. À. C. the testator died April 15th. 1907. In his will, which 
was dated March 13tl . 1000, there was the following residuary 
clause:—“all the rest and residue of my estate, real and per­
sonal excepting only such personal property as may he found 
in my private cash I mix. or in my 1k>x in the vaults of the 
Bank of New Brunswick, St. John, and which I had already 
given to my daughter Hannah Gertrude, to meet the imme­
diate personal necessities of herself and her sister Jean, I 
give in trust to my executors, etc."

On or before April 11th, 1905 the testator gave to J. S. C., one of 
the executors afterwards named in his will, an envelope 
which J. 8. (-. lielieved to contain securities, and which the 
testator at that time stated he had given to his daughter H.
(i. ('., and requested J. S. C. to take the envelope and deposit 
it in a vault box in the Bank of New Brunswick. J. 8. C. 
leased a vault Ih>x as directed, in the names of J. A. ('. and 
II. (1. (’., either to have access, and gave both the keys of the 
Imix to J. A. C, ,

After J. A. C’s death a number of securities were found in the 
private cash box, and in the vault box an envelo|»e contain­
ing securities was found, addressed “ Rev’d. John A. ('lark,
Hannah Gertrude Clark," and also a number of loose secur­
ities.

Held, that only those securities which had been actually assigned, 
and to which she had the legal title, and which was therefore 
earmarked for her, were the propertv of H. G. C.as given to 
her by the testator during his lifetime.

Held, also, that in respect to the other securities there was no 
perfected gift inter virus, as no delivery had been shown ; 
that there was no valid declaration of trust hv the testator 
in favor of U. G. C.: that there was no valid testamentary 
gift to H. G. C.; and that therefore the other securities were 
a part of the testator’s residuary estate.

Where the only evidence of a gift of a promisory note is its en­
dorsement to the alleged donee without delivery, the title 
does not pass.

Money deposited hy one, in a savings account, in his own name 
and another’s, payable to the survivor, as a rule becomes the 
property of the survivor absolutely. In re Paul Haley (1), 
distinguished.

Bill filed by Jean Spurr Clark a daughter of the lute 
John A. Clark for the administration of his estate, and for 
directions in regard to the construction of his will. The facts 
fully np|iear in the judgment of the Court.

(I) 87 N. B. K. 483.
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1909. Argument was heard August 1.8, 19(19.

[VOL

A. O. Earle, K. V. (Janie* A. Belyea, K. C., with 
him) for the plaintiff :—

The securities found in the Bank of New Brunswick in 
the name of Hannah Gertrude Clark (the deceased daughter 
of the testator John A. ( 'lark), or in which her name jointly 
with her father’s was inserted, * ' absolutely. The
safety box in which all these securities were found, was taken 
out jointly in the names of the testator John A. Clark and 
his daughter Hannah Gertrude Clark, either to have access. 
1 he testator had a great deal of confidence in this daughter, 
as is shown by his treatment of her, and the provisions of the 
will. I lis son is only given an annuity under the will. 
Hannah Gertrude (’lark is entitled to the property found in 
the two boxes mentioned in the will.

I). Mnllin, K. C. («/. A. Barry with him) for the de­
fendant Percy S. Clark :—

There was no valid gift under the will. The evidence 
should show a delivery to the donee. The keys of the safety 
dejMisit box in the Bank of New Brunswick were returned to 
the testator John A. Clark ; consequently there was no 
<leiivery which was essential to the gift. The gift under the 
will was for a definite purpose, for the “ immediate personal 
necessities.” The securities in the Ixxxes amount to some 
$23,000, which would lie a very large amount to give for 
such a purpose. The testator only intended to give the 
income. The word “such” used in the will should l>e read 
“such of” and will only |kiss a portion of the securities. 
Nome of these seeuritit* Iwar the name of Hannah Gertrude 
(.'lark, and are therefore ear-marked for her. It was not the 
testator’s intention to give idl the securities in the l>oxes to 
Hannah Gertrude Clark, and the executors must show what 
property was ear-marked for her. The testator never parted 
with the possession of these securities, and without parting

03613269
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with the possession he could not make a valid gift. See 1909. 
/roii* v. Smatlpiece (1) ; Baa a v. Markham (2); Cochrane cuuc 
v. Moore (3). In reference to the promissory note found
in......g the securities, see In re Mitchell v. Smith (4). In re- H<Kllll^ c j
fvvi iiiv to the sto<-ks and shares, see Anteobu* v. Smith (5) ; 
Ilhmlenhiter v. liollicer (li). See also In re Paul Daley’*
Relate (7)} Morelia! v. Crutirell (8) ; lltirrensr v. Umlgert (9).

J. vl. Barry :—

The word “such” as used shows that all the securities 
were not intended to jutse to llaunah Gertrude Clark. I he 
property was ear-marked by the sulieeipieut wonls of the 
will. See, in reference to the I «ink l looks, Ex parte Gerom 
( 10) ; in reference to the endorsement on the promissory note, 
Weldon v. Weldon (11); in reference to the question of de­

livery, Halt v Hall (12).

Earle, K. (J., in reply :—

The only question liefore the Court is the question of 
evidence. The will states that he “ had given ” and the 
evidence of the only witness sup|sirts this. The testator 
stated to tins witness that he had given property to Hitnnnh 
Gertrude Clark, and he repeats this statement in his will.

J. MacMillan Trueman for the executors of Hannah 
< in trude Clark took no [etrt.

1909. September 21. Barker, C. J. t—

The question upon which the direction of the Court is 
asked arises under a clause in the will of the Reverend John 
A. Clark who died April 15th, 1907, leaving him surviving

111 2 B. It Aid. SSI.
(2) 7 Taunton 224.
(3) L. K. 25 t) B. I). 67.
(4) 4 DeO. J. AS. 422.
(5) 12 Ves. 38
(8) 31 N. S. R. 238.

(7) 37 N. B. R. 433.
•(8) I- K. 2» Kq. 328.
(8) L. R. 18 Kq. 34(1. 

tlO) 6 All. 512.
(11) 2 All. 580.
(12) 28 Ont. R„ (1881), 684,
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Barker, C.

[voi„

a widow nml three rliildmi, two ilaughters ami a will. Hannah 
Gertrude Clark, one of tile daughters, died on the 11th of 
November, 1908, before these proeeedings were instituted 

! and we are therefore without her evidence. Mr. Clark’s 
will, which is dated March 13th, 1900, contains the follow­
ing residuary clause: “All the rest and residue of my estate, 
real and jierwinnl excepting only such [icrsonal property ns 
may lie found in my private cash Ikix, or in my Isix in the 
vaults of the Hank of New Brunswick, St. John, and which 
I had already given to my daughter Hannah Gertrude, to 
meet the immediate jiersonal necessities of herself and her 
sister Jean, I give in trust to my executors to apply all net 
increase to the sup|*,rt anil maintenance of my children and 
their step-mother as long as she remains my widow.” There 
follow various provisions as to the ultimate " " of the
pro|ierty alunit which no <|iiestion is raised at present. The 

arises as to what property, if any, is included within 
the exception and which the daughter Hannah Gertrude took 
by gift from her father during his life time. The claim put 
forward by the plaintiff Jean Spurr Clark, who is the si.-ter 
of Hannah Gertrude Clark and the devisee of substantiallr 
all her property under her will, is that all the property found 
in the private cash Ikix and the Bank vault Ikix at the time 
of John A. ( 'lark's death had lieen given to Hannah Gertrude 
Clark by their father before his death and was excepted front 
his testamentary " by the clause 1 have mentioned. If
this claim can Ik- sustained, the gilt would comprise pni|K-rty 
valued at aliout #oO,IIO(l, more than half of the whole estate 
left by the testator. < 'lainis like the present are included in 
one of three different classes. The first is that of gifts inter 
Wrox which this is said to have Ih-cii, and the second is by 
traie fer of the property by way of trust or a valid declara­
tion of trust.

In Richards v. Delbridtje (1), Jessel, M. It., said “A 
man may transfer his pro|K-rty without valuable mnsider- 
ation, in one of two ways :—he limy either do such acts as 

(1) 18 Kq. II.

8995
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amount in law to a conveyance or assignment of the property, 1909. 
ami thus completely divest himself of the legal ownership, in cum 
which ease the |ierson who by those acts acquires the pro- 
|ierty takes it lieneticially, or in trust, as the ease may 1* ; or Bakk~ c , 
the legal owner of the property may, by one or other of the 
n as Us recognized as amounting to a valid declaration of trust, 
constitute himself a trustee, and without an actual transfer of 
the legal title, may so deal with the property as to deprive 
himself of its beneficial ownership, and declare that he will 
hold it from that time forward on trust for the other person.
It is true that he need not use the words, “ I declare myself 
a trustee,” but he must do something which is equivalent to 
it, and use expressions which have that meaning ; for, how­
ever anxious the Court may lie to carry out a man’s inten­
tion, it is not at liberty to construe words otherwise than 
according"to their pnqier meaning.” In that ease it appeared 
that 1 >elbridge who was the owner of a mill and machinery 
and a stock in trade connected with the mill business, made 
and signed the following memorandum endorsed ii|h>ii the 
lease of the mill property: “ 7th March, 1873. This deed 
and all thereto belonging I give to Edward Bernetto Richards 
from this time forth, w ith all the stock in trade." Soon after 
making this memorandum Delbridge delivered the lease on 
Isiialf of Richards who was then an infant, to his (Richard's) 
mother and she retained |Hieeession of it. The bill was filed 
for a declaration that by the memorandum Delbridge created 
himself a trustee of the projierty for Richards. A demurrer 
to the bill for want of equity was sustained. It was clear 
there that a voluntary gift was intended but the donor had 
nut executed any transfer of the legal estate, he had not done 
all that he might to jierfeet the gift and as a volunteer he 
had no equities which he could ask the Court to enforce by 
way of completing the gift.

In Milroy v. Lord (1), it apjieared that a transfer was 
made by one Medley to one Lord of fifty shares of the capital

(1) 4 DeO. F. & J. 284.
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stock of the I tank of liousiuua, then standing in his name in 
the I looks of the hank to be held by him upon trusts for the 
benefit of bis niece. This <lee<l of assignment was executed 
bv both Medley and Lord under their seals. My the consti­
tution of the Itank shares were transferable in the I woks of 
the (_"oni|ianv the certificates of stock lining surrendered at 
the time of transfer. No such transfer was ever made. 
Stuart, V. ('., held that these shares were lamnd liv the trusts 
decdaml in the deed of assignment, but he was overruled 
on appeal. I sit'd Justice Knight hruee sjieaking of the bank 
shares says, “ They stcswl in Mr. Medley's name before and 
at the time of his execution of that instrument (the deed of 
assignment) and continued so to stand until his death. He 
was during the whole time, and when he died, the legal pro- 

and unless so far, if at all, as the beneficial 
title was affected by that instrument, the alwilute proprietor 
of them beneficially likewise. He might, however, have 
affected the legal title. It was in his power to make a trans­
fer of the shares so as to confer the legal proprietorship on 
another |ierson or other jieraoiis. Hot as I have said, no such 
tiling was done." In the same ease laird Justice Turner 
says—“| take the law of this Court to lie well settled, that, 
in order to render a voluntary settlement valid and effectual, 
the settler must have done every thing which, according to 
the nature of the projierty comprised in the settlement, was 
necessary to Is- done in order to transfer the property and 
render the settlement binding ii|sin him. He may of course 
do this by actually transferring the property to the (icraons 
for whom he intends to provide, and the provision will then 
be effectual, and it will lie e " effectual if he transfers 
the property to a trustee for the pur|sises of the settlement, 
or declares that he himself holds it in trust for those pur- 
|Kises ; and if the property lie |iersonal, the trust may, as I 
apprehend, lie declared either in writing or by parol ; but, in 
order to render the settlement binding, one or other of these 
modes must, ns I understand the law of this Court, lie re­
sorted to, for there is no equity in this Court to perfect an

1
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imperfect gift. The cases 1 think go further to this extent, 1909.
that if tlie settlement is intcmlctl to lie elfectimteil hv one of Cuaic
the modes to which 1 have referred, the Court will not give cuhk 
effect to it by applying another of those iiknIcs. If it is B(K11~ c j 
intended to take effect by transfer, the Court will not hold 
the intended transfer to ojicmte as a declaration of trust, for 
then every imperfect instrument would lie made effectual by 
I wing converted into a |ierfeet trust. Throe are the princi­
ples bv which, as I conceive, this case must be tried.”

In Heartley v. Nicholson (1), the same principle is laid 
down by Huron, V. C., and applied to an intended transfer 
of shares in a Colliery Company. lie is thus reported :
“ That no Jierfect transfer was at any time made by the testa­
tor iqqsiirs to lx* |wrfectlv clear; but it is not less clear to 
me that the testator intended to give, and ou the lltli Febv.
Iielievcd that he had given, the shares in question to the 
plaintiff, his daughter. It is, however, established as un­
questionable law that this Court cannot by its authority 
render that gift |>erfcct which the donor hail left inqicrfvct, 
and it will not and cannot convert an imperfect gift into a 
declaration of trust, merely on account of that inqicrfcction.”
As to the donor constituting himself a trustee the Vice < 'han- 
eellor savs, “ It is not necessary liait the declaration of a 
trust should lie in terms explicit. Hut what I take the law 
to require is, that the donor should have evinced by acts 
which admit of no other interpretation, that he himself had 
ceased to lie, and that wane other |>eraou had Iwcomc, the 
lienclicial owner of the subject of the gift or transfer, and that 
such legal right to it, if any, as he retained was held by him 
in trust for the donee.” In the same case the Vice < 'han- 
cellor expresses his approval of the distinction lietween a 
present gift and a creation of a trust for the donee’s lienefit 
as laid down by Jessel, M. R., in the following ]iassage in 
Richards v. Delbridge (supra) : “ The true distinction ap­
lani# to me to lie plain, and beyond dispute ; for a man to

(11 19 Eq. 283.
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make himself a trustee there must Ik* an expression of inten­
tion to liecome a trustee, whereas words of present gift show 
an intention to give over property to another, and not to 

, retain it in the donor’s own hands for any pnrjiose, tiduciarv 
or otherwise.” See also Warrencr v. Rodr/cru (1). These 
eases must I think Ik* taken as stating the true principle 
governing the question under <1L • ussion though they are at 
variance with two previous decisions, Riehardnon v. Richard- 
*on (2), and Morgan v. Matlemm (3).

It is much to Ik* regretted that the rights of those inter­
ested in so large a sum of money must necessarily be 
determined ii|khi evidence so meagre anil uncertain as that 
which remains available sinix* the death of Hannah Gertrude 
Clark. The only witness who knows anything about the 
questions involved, and the only witness who has been ex­
amined, is the defendant J. Sutton Clark, who is the surviving 
executor of John A. Clark (Hannah Gertrude Clark having 
been the other) and also one of the executors of Hannah 
Gertrude Clark. Sutton Clark says that in consequence of 
a letter received from his‘uncle—the testator—he came to 
St. John to see him. They talked some business matters over 
and the testator brought forward—to use the witness’s own 
expression—some securities which he said lie had given to his 
daughter and told him to take them to the Bank of New 
Brunswick and put them in a vault Ik>x there. I do not 
know that the daughter’s name was even mentioned but it 
was taken for granted at the hearing that Hannah Gertrude 
was the one referred to. It was not stated what the secur­
ities were or what their value was. They were enclosed in 
an envelope I think at Sutton Clark’s suggestion, given to 
him, and in pursuance of the testator's directions, he went to 
the Bank of New Brunswick, took out a safety Ih>x lease in 
the names of John A. Clark and Hannah G. Clark, either to 
have access, and dc|K>sitcd the envelojK* with its contents as 
given to him in the lx>x and gave the keys (there were two) 
to the testator. He never saw either the box or the keys

(1) 10 Kq. 340. (X) 3 Eq. 086. (8) 10 Kq. 475
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or the securities afterwards until after the testator’s death, 1909.
when as exeeutur he was taking charge of the estate. He Clark

did not state the date of this interview, but it took place Çlark 

immediately before the safety box was procured. The lease c j
is dated April lltli, 1905, and the securities must have been 
deposited at or alwmt that date, which would be eleven months 
lief ore the will was made and two years before the testator's 
death. When the executors took charge of the estate they 
found two boxes as mentioned in the will—one, the liank 
vault box just referred to and a private cash Ik>x at the testa­
tor's residence, the keys of both 1 icing then in the [Hisaession 
of Hannah Ciertrude Clark, but under what circumstances or 
at what time or for what pui'|Kise she liecame possessed of 
them there is alwolutelv no evidence whatever. The private 
cash liox was then opened and found to contain the following :

A [kiss I look from the Bank of New Brunswick, Savings 
Bank account in John A. Clark’s name for $810.119,

A [kiss Isxik from the Dominion Savings Bank, account 
in John A. Clark’s name for $1527.99.

A dividend warrant on shares of the British Bank on 
certificate for ten shares in the name of John A. Clark,
Hannah Gertrude Clark and Jean Spurr Clark for #79.

< 'ertifiiute in the name of John A. ( 'lark from the British 
( 'nlumhia Permanent Loan iV Savings t ompnuy for $9(592.00, 
and some miscellaneous articles of no value.

I nmy as well without going farther dis|sise of the claims 
to the property in this box. There does not seem to me anv evi­
dence of any kind to suggest that, with the exception of the 
dividend warrant for $79, it was not all estate property lielong- 
ing to the testator when he died. The dividend warrant carries 
on its face the evidence of ownership and the money will go ac- 
<' y. The pro|ierty was found in what the testator in his 
will calls “my private cash box” at his own home ; and there 
is nothing to indicate that Hannah Clark had any interest ill 
it except as to the Link dividend. It is true she laid the key 
of the box, but she was executrix anil as such entitled to it.
If she had not lieen, I should not have attached my signifi-

7
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1909. calice to the mere fact of her having possession of the key. 
Clark Some one must under such circumstances take |H>ssession of 
ci.ahk the key for the safety of the pro|>erty. Of itself it is no 

Bakkkr ( j, evidence of ownership either of the Im>x or its contents.
The contents of the Bank vault box were as follows : 

All envelope tied up and addressed “ Bevd. John A. Clark, 
Hannah Gertrude Clark ” containing the following :—

1 X. 8. Steel <V Coal Co. del icntu res for §1000
each, payable to bearer, 0 %....................... §4000 00

*2 Town of Sydney Debentures for §1000 each,
payable to bearer, I y,.................................. 2000 00

10 shares British Columbia Loan Ac. Co., for 
§100 each, payable to John A. Clark,.. . 1000 00 

4 Town of North Sydney Debentures for §000 
each, bearing interest at 4 j ^ , payable to
I surer,......................................................... 2000 00

2 shares in the British Columbia Permanent 
Loan A<*., Co. for §200 each, payable to 
John A. Clark,............................................ 400 00

1 Debenture of the British Columbia Perman­
ent Loan Ac. Co. for §1000, pavable to
John A. Clark,.............................................. 1000 00

2 Centenary Church Del tentures for §000
' ‘ ' to I surer,.............................. 1000 00

§11400 00

The al>ove securities were in the envelope. In addition 
to these there was also in the l*>.\ a promissory note dated 
June 1st, 100.*i, for §1000, made by Roderick McDonald of 
Halifax, X. S., in favor of John A. Clark and endorsed by 
him to Hannah Gertrude Clark. A pass l>ook with 
the Canada Permanent Mortgage Co., for §3270.89 
in the name of John A. Clark and Hannah Gertrude 
Clark payable to the survivor of them. Also a Ixjnd 
and mortgage for §S000 from Annie K. Earle, wife of 
Win. K. Earle, to Hannah Gertrude < ’lark. A life insur­
ance |H)licy on Earle's life for §1000, payable to his wife and 
by her assigned to Hannah Gertrude Clark issued by the

—

813
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Ontario Mutual Insurance Co. Another life policy in the 11*09. 
same Company for $1000 on Earle's life, payable to his wife ci*rk 
ami hv her endorsed to Hannah Gertrude Clark. Some lire Clark 
insurance policies in different com|mines upon Earle's pro-Bark~ c j 
pvrty made payable by him to Hannah Gertrude Clark for 
siioou.—Several tire insurance |x>licics on the King Square 
proper!\ owned by the testator and which is valued at about 
$10000. All of these Ixxiks and securities including those in 
the envelo|Hî were found in the Bank vault box which the 
testator in his will deserilies as u my lx>x in the vault of the 
Bank of New Brunswick ” ; and they together with what 
was in the private cash box, comprise substantially all the 
personal property included in the testator’s residuary estate 
Great reliance is placed on the evidence of Sutton Clark as to 
the so-called declarations of the testator in reference to the 
securities placed in the envelope and <le|xisited in the Bank 
Imx. I am asked to infer that when the testator said “ I 
have given these securities, Ac.”, it should lie inferred that a 
complete gift had l>een made, and that where delivery was 
necessary for that purpose it should lie inferred that a delivery 
had actually taken place. 1 do not feel at liberty to act upon 
the assumption that a gift completed by a delivery had ac­
tually Ihi'ii made, in view of the manner in which the testator 
dealt with the property for the two succeeding years of his 
life and in view of other circumstances to which I shall pre­
sently refer, (hiring these two years the testator had the 
custody of the Imx and the control of everything in it.
1 hiring that time he seems to have de|x>sited in it the Mc- 
Hottald note, the Earle iM|x*rs, the pass Ixmk in the Canadian 
I'ermanent Mortgage Co., and the insurance |x)lieics on the 
King Square projicrtv for none of these seem to have lieen 
put in the lx)x originally. It is ini|x>ssiblc for the plaintiff 
or any one else to select any one security fourni in the enve- 
lo|>e on the testator's death and identify it as having lieen in 
the envelope originally deposited in the box. I am asked to 
infer that the contents of the envelope when originally debi­
ted in the Ik>x were the same as when they were examined
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two years later after the testator laid died. I am s|>eaking 
of the denatures transferable bv delivery. As to these I 
think there is really no evidence of any gift, and that so far 
as inferences may fairly Ik* drawn from the facts and circum­
stances, there never was any delivery. As to these the 
plaintiff’s claim must fail. The ten shares in the British 
Columbia Isian Company and the two shares in the British 
Columbia Permanent Loun Coni|iany are in the name of John 
A. Clark as the legal owner and were so when lie died. The 
ilelH'iiture in the same Com|winy is made * on its face 
to John A. ( 'lark. As to these, even if the testator intended 
to make a gift, there never was any assignment which was 
neoeeeary in order to complete it. As to the remainder of 
the property there is first the McDonald note for $1000 in 
favor of the testator and endorsed sjieeially to his daughter 
Hannah. It is evident that this note was not among the 
pajiers dc|x>sited in the box by Sutton Clark, because it is 
dated June 1st, 190ft, some seven weeks after the box lease 
was taken out. The only evidence of a gift is the indorse­
ment. If a delivery of the note had also taken place it would 
have l»en complete. There is nothing to show nor anything 
from which one could infer that the daughter ever saw this 
note or heard of it until after her father’s death. The money 
on de|H>sit with the C * i Permanent Mortgage Company 
stands in a somewhat different |s>sition. That was a de|x>sit 

by the testator in the joint names of himself and his 
daughter “ payable to the survivor.” In re Pan/ Daley (1), 
was cited to show that money so deposited did not necessarily 
go to the survivor. In that ease the money was not de|Hisitcd 
so as to go to the survivor, but simply iu the joint names of 
Daley and his daughter with power to either to withdraw ; 
and the Judge there thought that there was evidemt* to rebut 
any presumption of a gift. In the present ease the testator 
when he dc|M>xited the money did so under a contract with 
the Company that they would pay it to his daughter if she 
survived him. There muld therefore be no doubt that it was

(I) 87 N. B. It. 483.
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the testator's intention that his daughter il she survived him 1909. 
-Iimilil lieve the money und lie did all that win- necessary in On**
urdiT tn carry out that intention. I think she in entitled to <^,*K
the money. Foutlce* v. l'am-oe (1). c

The Earle mortgage wan evidently an investment for the 
Iwnelit of the testator’s daughter. She is the mortgagee and as 
sneli Inis the legal title and is entitled to the money secured 
by it. The insurances on this |iro|ierty as well as the life 
insurance |*>liey iissigneil were a jsirt of the mortgage trans­
action and " in tile same [swition as the mortgage.

t )f the property found in the boxes 1 think the daughter 
Hannah Gertrude was entitled to retain ns her property giv­
en to her liv her father during his life the following :—

I lev shave in the Hank Dividend warrant for 
#70 which I assume to lie one third, say.. O "-24 04 

Canada l*ermanent Mortgage Company |iuss "
Iwwk.............................................................  3270 89

Earle Mortgage................................................ 8000 (HI

*11290 20

The remainder of the pro|iertv will go to the executors 
of .loliu A. (.’lark as part of his residuary estate. In arriv­
ing at this result it will lie seen that only those moneys and 
securities which had actually lieen assigned to the daughter 
and of which she had the legal title have las'll allotted to her, 
and it may la-thought that Mutton Clark's evidence micoii- 
tmdictcd as it was, has I wen entirely ignored. That is not 
-o, but on examination of it, it real I# had not much bearing 
mi the ini|aa'tant |aiints involved. It certainly, so far as it 
went to prove a gift, made out no stronger a ease than that 
presented in Mnrt/iui v. ilallenon, (tupra) in referencs' to 
which Hacon, V. V. ill expressing his disapproval of that 
decision said:—“I am strongly iuelined to believe that there 
must la- some imperfection in the re|sirt of it, lieeause what 
staggers me most is to find that the decision, as it stands.

(1) 10 Ch. App 813.

5
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1909. would seem t«i establish that if a mail writes a letter to nay, 
ii tKK “ | have given” a Imnk note, or an Indian Bond, or anything 
*kt*5i* ‘‘I**** t<to ,lll<* 1,0 l,lore» nni* r«*tains the liank note or

Hahkkk i .1 an<* the ineniorandtun in his own |>ossession, that letter 
has a valid o|>erution as lietwecn himself and A. It. If that 
were all that apiKitrcd in the ease 1 sliouhl certainly <»nsid- 
er sueli a letter to Ik* a mere nullity.” Se Warrencr v. 
Itodgen. (1)

A strung argument against the elaim put forward as to 
all this |iro|wrty may Ik? found in the sehene of the will 
itself. The testator s<»ems to have derived his pro)>erty from 
two sources, a |mrt from his father and the remainder from 
some other source; it was said front his first wife. His 
interest in his father’s estate which was unsettled at the time 

f his death has since Iteeii settled at alxiut £10,000. The 
testator gave his interest in that estate to be divided equally 
lietwecn his three children, after the payment of two legac­
ies of each, lie gave all his |iersonal and household 
effects of every description to his «laughter Hannah (iertrude 
“to be used for the furnishing ami mainteuan<‘c of a home 
over which she is to Imve control ami which is to Ik* the 
home of her sister Jean as long as she remains unmarried, 
ami also <if Iter ste|»-mother my present wife, so long as she 
remains my widow.” The residue of that part <tf the estât»* 
is «lis|Hwe«l of by the clause 1 have before mentioned ami it 
«lirects the executors to apply the net income to the support 
ami maintenance of the children and their step-mother 
so long as she remains his 'widow. This fund is 
divisable after the year 1911, as follows, two ninth* 
to Hannah, two ninths to Jeun, two ninths in trust 'for 
the son ami the income of the remaining three ninths to 
the ste|»-niother «luring widowhood. It is obvious if Hannah 
(Iertrude took by way of gift all the |K*rso.tal pro|>erty, tin- 
remainder wouhl have Iteen altogether inadequate for the 
maintenance «if the «•hildren ami step-mother, ami tin-

(1) 16 K«|. 840 ut ,mg#* :«v.
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provinion for tin* latter, un a division of the fund, ami whi<,li 1909. 
is the only provision the testator seems to have made for his Clark 
wile, would lie, one would say, out of pro|K»rtion to the <K|'A"K 
V«I"V of the estute. b .kk^ <

[ linvv mentioned two of tin1 three classes of nw* in 
which i|iientionn of thin kind urine. The third in where 
there in a gift hut not to take affect until the donor’s death 
and which in therefore testamentary initncharacter. I think 
it not unlikely that the tentutor may have had some ntieh 
idea in hie mind. In hin will he excepts ntieh of the person- 
al property in the Iwixen, not “which I have already given ", 
hut “which 1 hail already given" that in an I mul the wonln, 
an he had lieforc hin death given. The immediate pemonal 
neivssities of the two daughter,- for the relief of which the 
gifln were made, i-onlil not very well refer to necessities 
during the tentator’n life, Inn a one he would relieve these liini- 
-elf. The marking of the envclo|>e with the oilmen of the 
testator and daughter sustains the notion that she wan to have 
an interest, Imt it "" sustains the notion that he had not 
|iarted with his. Anil strongest of all in the fact that up to 
his death he retained the posennion and control of all these 
-1‘i uritien, treated them an hin own and collected the interest 
and dividends for his own use. Thin in entirely opposed to 
the idiit of a present gift, except where the gift had lieen in 
fact completed and Ultime irrevocable an in the nine of the 
asnignitl securities I have mentioned, and which answer the 
descri of tile property exceptai. If any such gift an I 
have ikecribed were intended an to the other securities or any 
of them, it would lie testamentary in its character and of no 
validity hv reason of the formulitiiti of the Wills Act reipiin- 
ite in such nines having lieen disregarded. lVarrtnrr v.
Rodger». (mipm.)

There will lie a declaration such un I have mentioned 
and the lusts of all [lurties will lie jxiiil out of the residuary 
estate of the testator, the executors costs to lie allnwisl an 
U'tween solicitor and client.

5
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SMITH, et al, Tkvhtkkm, rn\, or Rohkktson v. 
ROBERTSON, ht al

— No. 2. See ante p. 130.

Will—Construction Heirn ut hue—Statute of Üiatritmtiona—
Sin lu I nr// \r.ii of Kin I if limit Scheme of Will.

R. died in 187(1 lenving a will by which lie devised practically all 
hi» property to trustees, upon trust for the benefit of his 
children and their heirs.

I). I). R., a son of the testator, died after his father, leaving him 
surviving a widow and five children.

11 rlil. that the word “heirs” in the will should lie construed in 
its strict legal and technical sense, and was intended to mean 
the heirs at law and not the statutory next of kin; and that 
the widow of the decease!I son was not entitled to any part 
of the testator*» property, under his will.

This is an application bv the trustees for further direc­
tions, in the matter of the construction of the will of the late 
I Ion. .lolm Robertson.

The pi lint upon which the trustees now ask for directions 
is as to the meaning of the word “heirs” in the clause in the 
will which provides for tin* final distribution of the scheduled 
projierty. See ante p. 18R.

In neeordaiiee with tin* declaration made bv this Court 
in February, HMIB, the trustees have sold the projierty 
included in schedule (A.), that is Mrs. .Union’» property, 
and tin* final is now ready for distribution under the will.

See ante p. I ll for the statement of facts ill the re|sn1 
of the previous Ini.ring.

Argument was heard August 27, HNMI.

[lawyer S. Smith for the plaintiffs; —

The general rule is that the won I “heirs” must lie 
construed in its strict sense, i. e„ the (arsons who would
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inherit mil white in tlie case <>f an intestacy. This is the l'.KMl. 
line unless there is something in the context of the will or smith n ai 

instrument to niialify that meaning: De Hrauroir V. /V 11 
Itrauroir (1), Smith v. Hatcher (2), In the i/nmln of Dixon 
(It), t'ontmcorth v. Carnon (4), Bateman v. Bateman (."if.
The fart of the conversion of the mil estate into |iersonalty 
ilocs not alter the meaning of the word “ heirs ” The widow 
of the deceased son of the testator is not one of the “heirs" 
ns mentioned in the testator’s will and should lie excluded.

II’ .1. Kirin;/, K. <for the daughters of David I*. 
Iloliertsoii the demised son, defeni :—

In the will the won Is “issue”, “children” and "heirs" 
are need iiiterchanguhly, and therefore the won I “heirs” 
ilins not include the widow of the dmnacd soil, and she dors 
not inherit under the testator's will : Hull v. t'omhrrhach (II).

.1/, tl. Teeil, K. < for Martha M. S. Kolwrtson, the 
widow of David I). Roliertson the deceased son, defendant:—

If the heir takes In siiiveasioii or sulwtitution the pro- 
|h rl v will go am in ling to its nature. <aise, hv looking
at the will carefully, it is easily seen that the heirs take by 
-ii.session and sulwtitution ; the wonls “per ntirpe* anil not 
jn'r capita ” allow this. The word “ heirs " ninnot innin 
heirs-at-law in the strict sense, hut the heirs who would take 
under the Statute of Distributions. See llamiltnn v. Mill* 
(7), Wiiujfirlil v. Wingfield (8), Kray v. Boulton (tl), In re 
Stannaril, Stannard v. Hint (10).

Smith in reply :—
As this fund il a Mended fund, the meaning of the 

word “heirs” cannot lie determined fnnn the nature of the 
property.

(1) » It. of L. Cas. 624
(2) 10 Ch. D. 113.
(Si 4 Prob. D. 81.
(4) 24 Oat ltep. 186. 
|6| 17 Or, Oil. K. 227.

(«I 26 Bea. 640.
(7) 28 Hea. 108.
(8| I,. R. 8 Oh. I) 06S.
(8) L. K. 23 Oh. I). 212 

(10) 62 !.. J . Oh. 11888)666.

8
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1909. S-ptemlx-r 21. Baiikkii, ( .1. :—

Further directions. When this case was Indore me in 
Fehruarv last there was a declaration made (I) that in order 
to make the |Nivment to the executors of the will of L. .1. 
AInion of the one third share of the property «•omprised in 
schedule “ A ” appointai to him the plaintiffs have |H)wer to 
>ell and ilispos<‘ of it as they may tleeni necessary, and (2) 
that iiiuippointed two third shares of Mary Allan AImon in 
the same projierty should lie divided now into live equal 
shares, one share to each of the surviving children of the 
testator and one share to the heirs of Ikivid 1). Koliertson.

In «won In nee with this declaration the plaintiffs have 
sold the property included in Schedule “A ”, that is Mrs. 
A Imon’s property and the fund is ready for distribution 
under the will. This pro|>erty was by the terms of the will 
vested in the plaintiffs the present trustee* upon trust on 
Mrs. A1 moil’s death to convey one third of it to such person 
or persons and such trusts as she might ap|foint. The 
remaining two thirds were in the ntse of a daughter dying 
leaving children surviving, to Ik* held by the trustees for the 
benefit of the children as particularly directed in the will. In 
case a daughter died leaving no issue surviving the will pro­
vided as follows: “ And in the event of my «laughter «lying, 
leaving no issue her surviving, then and in such «use I will 
and direct that the slid two thirds and one third licfore men­
tion (if no <lisp«isitioii of the same shall Ik* made by my said 
«laughter) shall Im* «xptally divided by my slid executors and 
trustees lietween her sisters and brothers and their respe«*tivc 
heirs in ixpial proportion.1» per utirpe* and not per capita.” 
Mrs. Aliiion executed her |mwcr of ap|K)intuient as to one 
third of tin* property in favour of her huslmml who survival 
her. She «licsl without ever having ha«l any chihlren, leaving 
four sisters an<l the widow of her deceased bmtlicr I hiviil I >. 
lioliertson and their five «‘hildren surviving. The question 
as to whii'li the trustees now ask for «lireetions is as to the 
meaning to lie given to the word “heirs” in the clause I
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li;ive Quote I. On the purl of the widow of DaviilD. Uoliert- 190!). 
-mi it in clüime I that tile ward inunt lie rend an meaning the smith kt m 
statutory next of kin no that so much of the one fifth share of Ro»kkt»i'> 
ilie final as consisted of |K-rsoiuil estate would lie divisible BlK„~, j 
miller the Statute of I listrlhiitions in which ease the widow 
would la- entitled to one thinl. On the part of the children 
uf David D. Kohertson it is claimed that the word must Ik- 

rend in its primary sense as “heirs at law," in which case 
lIn* whole fund would go to them to the exclusion of the 
widow. "No doubt there are many eases to lie found where 
.lodges, in order to carry out what from the provisions in the 
will, they i-oueluded was the testator's , have given
In the word “heirs" and other similar expressions " g a 
well understood tei " meaning, an altogether different 
interpretation similar to that pro|niseil here, and in order to 
inrrv into effect this " ' , they have incor|ionitfd into
I lie will provisions of the Statute of Distributions, us must lie 
done in the present case in onler to include the widow as a 
|«irtiei|«mt in this fund. After an examination of many of 
ilnse eases I have come to the conclusion that they are not 
applicable to the present anil that the widow's claim cannot 
Is- sustained. It is not disputed that this must Ik- the result 
unless the won I “heirs" was used liv the testator in some 
other than its primary and ordinary meaning.

In Keay v. Boulton (1), cited by Mr. Teed as a repre- 
-entutive ease of the class to which I have referred Person,
•I.. snvs, “The next ipiestion is, what is the meaning of the 
word “heirs", the gift ineluding Isitli mil and |iersonal pits- 
|icrty? Is the wonl “heirs” used in the sense of ys-rsowi 
-ti'sK/Mii/fl, indii ' the |K-rson who would have In-cii the 
heir at law of mil estate of a child who had died intestate, or 
i- it to Is- mid in a ipialiliisl sense, so as to give the mil estate 
in those (K-rsons who would in tin- event of the intestuey of 
the dix-eased children have taken their mil estate and the 
|ieruomil estate to their m-xt of kin according to the Statute 
of Distributions? I think this <use is to Is- decided by

(1) ill Ch. II. 212.
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authority ami by authority only. No doubt the wonl “ heir" 
i lia* a technical meaning, i. e. the heir at law of mil estate, 
v and if there is nothing in the will to allow a contrary mtention 
, the heir at law must take the pro|ierty as yxrnoiui ileiit/nata.’’ 

It is therefore neivssnry in order to sustain the widow’s claim 
that we should find something in the will clearly " 
an intention on the testator's |«irt in using the wonl “heirs" 
not to mean the heirs at law hut a different class of |icrxons 
altogether.

The scheme of this will, stain I shortly, is this,—elimina­
ting the jimvixions made for his widow, tile testator for the 
licnctit of his five daughters, divided up certain real and 
|ierxonal properly into live |nirts, one for each daughter. 
Knell |uirt was extimntnl to la- worth $011,01111 and they were 
nientionnl and descrilml in five separate schedules distin­
guished res|wetively liv the letters A, It, (', I) A’ K, the 
projierty mmprisnl in S'hedulc A, having lierii allottnl to 
Mrs. AIiimmi anil representing the fund now reedy for distri­
bution. On the death of a daughter the projierty iiimprixnl 
in her schedule was to ls' dix|ioacd of by the trustees in the 
manner already mentioned. These pro|ierties as they are 
described in the schedules, iimsisted principally of real i•state 
—that in Schedule I) seems to have lieen entirely so—but 
the others consist of l*>th real and |icrsniml. The trustee- 
had jiower to vary investments and with the consent of the 
daughter to sell her mil is-Lute and invest the procmls of such 
Nile, as well ns moneys received by way of insurance against 
loss by fire, in mortgage and other securities ; so that it is 
wholly unlikely that the nature of theae scheduled propertie- 
would remain tin lav as they were at the testator’s death over 
thirty years ago. I lannot think that the testator had any 
intention in providing for the final distribution of his estate— 
for the residuary estate is subject to the same trusts—that 
the (juration ns to who should take it under bis will should 
dejienil in any wav u|kiii the nature of the projierty as it 
might iia|i|ien to Is' lit the date of distribution. He treated 
real and |htsoiuiI jirojierty as one fund and not sejmnitely.

7018
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His intention clearly war that tlie whole final should go to 
tilt- one class irrespective of its nature. It war one thinl of 
the whole property over wliieh the (laughter had a power of 
ap|K)iutment and in tnmrferriug that to the ap|iointee the, 
Irnrteer were under no obligation to divide it one third of the 
|iermnal and one third of the real. Both were treated as one 
land. |tv the language of the will it ir in the care which 
liar hap|>encd, the two nnilp|minted tliirdr “ of the lande, 
teneinente, hereditments and pretniree npportioneil to her in 
such rehedule” which the trnrtecr are to divide equally 
Ih'tween the rirterr and brother and their resjiectivc lieirr in 
eipuil proportionr per Mirpt■» and not per capita. The evi­
dence of intention ie quite ar rtrong nr ill the care of <hep nee 
v. Miuldock (1), in which the Master of the I tolls rays—•• I 
have not found any ease directly applicable ; lint there ir no 
doubt, the heir at law properly and technically sjienking, may 
lake |H'rmnal property liequratlied to him by that description. 
It ir always a question of intention, what the testator means 
bv the use of such description. Where two descriptions of 
property are given together in one mass, then the difficulty 
arises, who ir meant ; for Imtli the next of kin and the heir 
cannot bike ; unless this construction can lie made reddendo 
eini/iila uingnlu, that the next of kin shall take the |H'rsonal 
estate ; and the heir at law the real estate. But in this ease 
the tesbitor could not mean that ; for he blends all the real 
and |H'rsoiud estate bigether ; and after the death of Aim 
Williams directs that his Highest heir at law shall enjoy the 
same. As Imtli are bi be enjoyed together, it is alwolutely 
necessary for the Court bi say, who shall enjoy both. It 
would lie contrary to the intention to divide them ; and it 
would lie contrary bi the words to give the whole to the next 
of kin. Therefore the Court has no alternative but to adhere 
to the words of the will ; and |iermit the person, who answers 
the description of heir at law to enjoy the whole.” See Dr 
Beaueoir v. De Deaiixnir (2) ; Smith v. Butcher (3) ; In tlir 
•/owls of Dixon (4).

1000. 
smith kt ai. 
Koiikktkom

tAKKKK. V.J.

ll) 14 Ve». 48s. (8) 10 Ch. D. 118.
(2) 8 H. of L. V. 524 at p. 560. (4) 4 Proh. D. 81.
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It is scarcely necessary to jx»int out that the wife is not 
next of kin to her husband nor the liusUmd to the wife. 
Watt v. Watt (1), Chohnondeley v. Ashburton (2), Kilner v. 
fdicvh (3). What she takes under the Statute of Distributions 
she takes as widow. She takes an arbitrary proportion and 
the remainder goes among the next of kin as specially pro­
vided. In its primary sense the phrase “next of kin ” does 
not include either husliand or wife. (Sarrieh v. Lord Cam­
den (4), In re Fitzf/crald (.">), M'dne v. Cilbart ((>). It is 
therefore necessary in order to inelude the widow as one of 
those entitled to the personal projierty that the word “heirs” 
shall lie read as including all persons who, in the <nse of an 
intestacy, would lx* entitled under the Statute of Distribu­
tions. In other words I must hold as a matter of construeton. 
that when this testator directed his trustees, in the events 
which have hnp|>cncd, to divide the one fifth of this projxTty 
share and share alike among the heirs of his deceased son 
David D. liobertson he only intendi-d so far as it was per­
sonal property that they should have two thirds of it and the 
remaining one third go to one who was not next of kin or of 
kin to him at all. Is such a de|mrture from the ordinary 
and primary meaning of the testator’s language admissible ; 
for after all it is as Kindersley, V. (’., says in Loir v. Smith 
(7), “a mere application of what is the ordinary elementary 
rule of construction, that for the purpose of construing any 
word in any will that ever was executed, such word must 
receive its ordinary and primary meaning, unless the Court 
is satisfied that the testator intended to use it in a .«toialary 
and less pro|H*r sense.” There is not in this whole will any 
mention of the Statute of Distributions or any reference to it 
in any way. Itoper in his work on legacies at |tage 121 
says :—“ It may be considered settled that a testator is to lx* 
understood to mean by the expression “ next of kill,” when

(1) H Vex. 244.
(2) « Ilex. HU.
(S) 10 Bex. 362. 
(41 14 Vex. 872.

Co .ViL .1. Ch 668.
(U) 2 I Mi. M. K (4. 715, xtlt.l. on 

xpp. ô lb. 510.
<7i 2 .1 nr. N. S. 844.
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I it* does nut refer tu the statute or to,u distribution of the pro- ItHIU. 
perty as if he laid died intestate those |>ersons only who smith ktai. 

should Ik* nearest of kin to him to the exclusion of others 
who might happen to lie within the degree limited by tlieButKKK , , 
statute.” And lie treats the conflict of opinions on this point 
:is definitely sett ht l by Minnie y v. Young (1), us to which lie 
sivs, “ After a full discussion of the conflicting authorities 
the Lord Commissioner decided that the words “next of kin ” 
when used nimpliciter, are to I** construed strictly as meaning 
the next of kin in degree according to the civil law of com­
putation anil not the persons entitled according to the Statute 
of Distributions; it is to Ik* observed that the above is the 
«use of a deiiI ami not of a will. Hut this decision has !»cen 
followed in the <nse of a will in Lfooper v. Denimn (2)”. The 
•uses are fully discussed in Elmnley v. Young (nupm) and in 
«uinming up the different arguments Isird Commissioner 
lkisani|iiet says—“The two grounds, then, upon which the 
decision of Mr. .1. Huiler proceeds, are first, that the words 
“next of kin” have, since the statute, acquired a particular 
meaning; and secondly, that the ease of Thom a* v. Hole was 
a decision in jioint to govern that nisi*. Now how, and when, 
and to what extent did the words “ next of kin ” nnpiire any 
I «articular meaning distinct from their known legal mealing.'
That liefore the statute the meaning of those words was dur 
and intelligible, ami that there was no difficulty in applying 
ili«-m, as they Imd I teen applied on former occasions and a.*- 
conling'to the language of Lord Coke, to the next in blood, 
there can lie no doubt. How, then, did they aeijiiire a 
different meaning ; and how can that meaning In* “ d to 
an instrument which does not profess to relate to the Statute
• if.............. i—which does not profess to relate to an
intestacy—but which, on the contrary, professes to |hdut out 
the jiartieiilar |iersniis who are to take the pro|n*rty, and 
which, as it appears to me, indicates an anxiety not to leave 
any part of the settler’s property undisjiosed of? Do the 
words “next of kill” imply that a distribution is to Is* made

(1) 2 M. K K. 78ii. (2) 13 Sim.29ii.

5
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11*00. imi “ to tin» directions of tilt* statute or are they to be
'Mini ktai. construed “ next of kin ” ns described in flit* statute ? That 
H«.Hri(TM.\ they <lo not imply a distribution anxirding hi tin* provisions 

Makkkh. c. J, °f ^le Ktotute, is, I think, clear from this circumstance, that 
they do not extern I to the wife ; for it is not argueil that they 
exteml to the wife.”

In the present mse the testator has used the wonl heir», 
Imt if he had ns<‘d the term " next of kin” the mse from 
wliieli 1 have just ipioted is an authority for saying that the 
widow would not have lieen ineluded as there is no reference 
dirent or indirect to the .Statute of I )istri!iutions, and the words 
therefore have their on I inary meaning. Ilnltnn v. Foder 11), 
and Withy v. Mant/len (2), are to the same effeet.

There is one other provision of the will wliieli is op|>oscd 
to the construction proposed on the part of the widow. The 
will direets that this property (real ami |iersonnl) shall Ik* 
e "y divid'd by the trustees lietween the surviving sisters 
and brother and (not or) their respective heirs in 'Npial pro- 
| nut ions /ter diry*#w and not per capita. It is clear that 
whoever is entitl'd as heirs to take the property are to take 
it in e'jiinl proportions. How mil that apply to a widow, 
who, if entitled at all, is entitled under the statute to one 
third of the whole, 'file words “in e<|iial projetions fter 
dirpen and not per capita”. which are not apt words to use in 
reference to a widow’s interest in her htislmnd’s |icrsoiuil pro- 
|ierty where he dies intestate, must lie struck out altogether 
in order to give the pni|siseil meaning to the wonl “ heirs.” 
That would lie making a new will, and as it si-ems to me 
rejecting a plain nimning used in onler to do so. I think 
the widow is not entitl'd to jiarticijiate in the fund.

The «lists of all imrtim will lie paid out of the general 
residuary estate. Trustees* to lie taxed as lietw'HMi solicitor 
and client.

(1)8 (’li. App. fin-V (2) 10 0. A K 21.1
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SEELY v. K El<H, kt al.

— No. *2. See ante p. 1N-I.

Injunction.

Hill tiled for an iiijiinrtimi toeoni|iet the removal of the 
wharf ereeted by the Knmeis Kerr Co., Ltd., on a water lot 
leaned to them by the City of Suint .John, and for damage*.

Argument wan heard Novemlier *50, and I>eeeml>er 3,
r.ioit.

.I. O. Mir le, K. C., and A. A. II7Zno#i, K. ('., for the 
plaintiff.

a Ar. Skinner, lx. ( \, for the defendant*.

It MV. I. Dceeinlier 3. B.XRKKII, V. •!. :—

The interim injimetion gnmted by me oil the previoun 
hearing of this ease will lie made per|ietnal, and varied no a* 
to lie mandatory, <*oni|ielliiig the removal of the wharf. The 
defen hints must pay all msts.

< lllliKR.

'Die defendants will lie restrained from ereeting or 
permitting to remain ereeted or built any wharf or other 
strueture oil the lot to them under lease dated the
Eleventh day of Mareli, A. I>. ltMV.i, by the City of Saint 
•lolin, mentioned in the plaintiff’s bill, and lying immediately 
to the south of plaintiff’s lot numlier two, mentioned in the 
plaintiff’s bill, so as to injure or obstruet the plaintiff’s right 
of aeees* to the waters of the harliour of the City of Saint 
dolm on the southern side of the plaintiff’s wharf, in the mid 
bill mentioned, on the said plaintiff’s hit, or the privileges 
heretofore enjoyed by the plaintiff of laying and mooring 
«•rafts, loading and unloading, and embarking and disem­
barking goods on the south side of the said plaintiff’s said 
wharf.

•><;i

loot*.
Dm uiher i.
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TA Y LOR v. McLEOD, et ai, Tiivstkks or Taylor.

Will—Construction—Fund for Maintenance and Education— 
Time for Payment—Costs.

B. (i. F. the testator died Octotier 1st, 189.">, leaving him surviving 
a widow and one child, a son, the present plaintiff.

The will contains the following provision:—“And I hereby will 
and bequeath all my estate, real and personal (of which I may 
die possessed) to mi said executors and trustees for the fol­
lowing purposes that they shall, in tin* first place convert 
all property into cash within one year from the date of my 
death, and after the payment of my just shall Invest 
the remainder in safe interest paying investments and out of 
such investments I direct that the sum of one thousand 
pounds (4M,000i or the equivalent thereof be set apart and 
used by my said executors and trustees for the purpose of 
educating and giving a profession to my son Gordon Winslow 
Taylor providing he has not already been educated and re­
ceived a profession.” The will also provides that the plaintiff 
l s not to receive his share of the residue of the estate until 
he reaches the age of twenty five year".

(«. W. T. became twenty one years of ag« Sentemlier 2nd, 11XM.
Held, that as the plaintiff has reached the age of twenty one 

years lie is now entitled to have paid over to him the £1,000 
fund with accumulations and interest, or to have transferred 
to him the securities in which this fund is invested.

Trustees who refuse to pay over a legacy when they have no 
reasonable doubt but that it should he pnid, will not be 
allowed any costs in an action to compel its payment.

(Jun're, in such a case are not trustees personally liable for the 
costs of the proceedings?

Bill tiled for the administration of the trusts of the 
will of the late Bvron (1. Taylor. The facts are sufficiently 
stated in the judgment of the ( Vmrt.

Argument was heard Devemlier 21, 1909.

J. I toy Onnjdull for the plaintiff :—

There apjienr to lie two classes of «uses res|siting testa­
mentary gifts of this nature, viz.—(1.) Where there is a 
gift to a |M»rson for a particular purjiose, and where the gift 
is for the lienefit of the person: (2.) Where a discretion is
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given to trustee* or executor* to apply money to it particular 11HMI. 
purpose. The prtwnt case falls within the first class, anil Titi-oii 

the plaintiff is now entitled ti. have the fund in the hands of *•£*■*'" 
the trustees paid over to him, as it was lieqncathed for hisHlMKK” , 
lieneflt, even though the particular purpose, for which it was 
left fails. See Jarman on Wills (1), Aerill v. Nevill (2),
Apreeee v. Apreeee (3), Leighton v. Bailie (4), In re Bowen,
Strathmore v. lane (5), llutehinmn v. Hough (ti), Karl 
of Slexborough v. Snrile (7). In the scrotal class of rases 
there is a power given to trustees to apply money to a pnr- 
ticular pur|Hisc, and it is left in tin- discretion of the trustees 
as to whether or not they shall exercise that isiwer. S-c 
(hoper v. Mantel/ (N), Bohinnnn v. Cfeator (9).

C. II. Fergumn for the trustees, the defendants, took no
|>n rt.

December 31. 190V. IIahkkii, .1.:—

In form this hill is one for the administration of the 
trusts of the will of the late Byron <}. Taylor, lint in sttls- 
stance and fact it is for the |iavmcnt of n legacy which the 
plaintiff, his son, claims from the defendants, who are the 
trustees under his will.

The testator died on the first of October, 1S95, having 
him surviving a willow and one child—the plaintiff—who 
was then about seven years old. The will contains the 
following provisions—“ And I hereby will anil lieipieath all 
my estate, real and |iersonal (of which I may iliiil imssi-ssed) 
to my said executors and trustees for the following pur|io*c— 
that they shall, in the first place rouvert all projierty into 
rash within one year from the date of my death, and after 
the [wvinent of my just debts shall invest the remainder in 
<afe interest |laving investments anil out of such investments

(1) 6th Kd. Vol. 1, 367.
(2) 2 Ver. till.
(3) I Vea. K B. 364.
(4) 8 Myl. & K. 267.

(6) 18110, 1 Ch. D. 607.
(6) 40 !.. T. 280.
(7) 88 L T. 131.
(8) 22 Bea. 231.

(0) 15 Vea. 626.
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I dii-ect 11 lilt the Mini of one tlionsiiml pounds (Cl,000) or 
the equivalent thereof lie set a|*irt anil nseil by my said ex- 
iTiitore anil trustees for the pnr|iose of ishientiiig and giving 
a profession to my son Gordon Winslow Taylor providing 
lie has not already lieen edlimited and received a profession.” 
The will then contained directions as to the “ " of the
residue of the estate and provides that the plaintiff’s share of 
it shall la- paid over on his attaining the age of twenty
live years, tile income of the share la-ing in the meantime 
available for his sup|>ort and maintenance. This Cl,000 
fund was set aside and it is in the defendants' hands invested 
as follows:—$0,000 in City of Saint John dela-ntnrcs, $500 
in Kings ( oiinty debentures and $15.00 on s|a-eial deposit in 
the I lank of New Brunswick. This is the unexpended Isil- 
nin-c of the original fund and accumulations after deducting 
S|,500, allowed the plaintiff by the defendants to enable him 
to travel in Kuro|ie in 1907.

The plaintiff reached the age of twenty one years on the 
2nd September, 1000, and lie has filed this bill by which it is 
prayed that this estate la- administered under the direction of 
this < 'onrt. The plaintiff claims that he is entitled to have 
(mid over to him, now that he is of age, the Cl,000 fund, 
and to secure that is the sole object of this bill. There is no 
dispute as to the facts, and the only |mint u|xm which I 
intend making any observation is the ipiestion of costs. 
Section twelve of the bill is as follows:—“That since the 
said plaintiff has attained the age of twenty one years as 
aforesaid he has applied to the said defendants, George Otty 
I lixon Otty and James A. Ilelyca, to have the balance of the 
said fund and interest or the securities representing the same, 
transferred to him the said plaintiff, but the said two last 
mentioned defendants informed the said plaintiff that the 
defendants were unwilling and would not do so without the 
sanction of this Iloiiounible Court.” The defendants admit 
this statement to Is- true. I think the plaintiff is entitled to 
the payment of this fund. It is clearly a legacy for his 
la-nefit and ill the alwenix- of any provision postponing its

8955

8
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|mivmeiit tu » Inter date, as in the nine with the remainder of 
the estate, would lie payable to the plaintiff on his coming of 
age when he could give n valid discharge to the trustees. 
The authorities cited by Mr. Cauipliell, and there are many 
others which might lie cited, sustain the plaintiff’s claim. 
There must therefore lie a decree for the payment of the fund 
to the plaintiff.

As to the costs—To make them ]>aynlile out of the fund 
as would lie the usual course is simply so far as the plain­
tiff’s costs are concerned, to order his costs to lie jiaid out of 
his own money. I asked the plaintiff’s counsel if he claimed 
that the defendants should |wy the costs of this suit and he 
distinctly said that he did not. There is therefore no one to 
pay them hut himself and there seems no order necessary as 
he is liable on his own retainer. An order might lie made 
for the trustees to pay them out of the fund and pay the 
lailnnce over to the plaintiff. There is no object to Is- gained 
by that, more especially as a security would have to lie sold 
for the pur|sise, and that no one wanted done. As to the 
defendants’ costs, in what position do they stand? I asked 
their counsel to [siint out why the defendants refused to pay, 
and in what way doubts as to the plaintiff’s right to the 
money laid arisen, lie frankly told me that in his opinion 
the money ought to Is1 paid, and the two defendants < Hty 
and llelyeu, both of whom are lawyers, were apparently of 
the same opinion. These proceedings therefore have been 
rendered necessary, not by any doubt the trustees had or 
could even suggest as to the plaintiff’s right, but Issiuise 
they refused to pay without the sanction of this Court. I am 
disjMjsed to think that there are authorities which in such a 
case would render them |iersonally liable for the costs of the 
pnx■endings, but that is not asked here and so the only Ques­
tion is whether they should have costs. 1 have come to the 
conclusion that they should not.

In Knight v. Martin (1), a trustee who refused to |>uy a 
legacy without the direction of the Court in a case which

X H. K. K. IK.

_

2(1.1

Mil, KOI'

Baku Kit. C. J.

190».

_______

(Il 1 Kins. \ Mvl. 711.
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1900.
Taylor

Barkkr. C. J.

[VOL.

admitted of no doubt was refused his costs, and only esefl|>ed 
an order to pay costs because lie might have been ignorant 
and did not act from any improper motive. Campbell v. 
Home (1), and cases cited in the note at page 070 are to the 
same effect.

The same rule has been applied to trustees paying the 
fund into ( ourt under the Trustees Act to escape some fancied 
liability. They have Ikhmi obliged to pay the costs of getting 
the money out of Court, lu In re Elliot's Trusts (2), Malins, 
V. ( \, says :—“ By the present proceedings the fund will be 
greatly diminished and 1 am sorry to find that the trustees 
were not taught a better lessen when, in deciding the ntse 
in July last, regarding the sister’s share, which they also paid 
into Court, I ordered them to pay the costs. I decided that 
they were not then bound to make inquiries about the en­
cumbrances on the fund. I think these proceedings were 
perfectly unjustifiable, and although it is clear that the Court 
will incline towards the payment of the costs of trustees 
when they act in a bona Jirie way, still, on the other hand, 
it is most important that trustees should not incur unneces­
sary ex|>enses for the mere purpose of relieving themselves of 
all liability, and |»articulnrly so when there is no reasonable 
doubt in their way. * * * I van find no excuse for
their having paid the money into (’ourt except a restless 
anxiety to get rid of it and I cannot relieve them from the 
payment of costs.” See also In re Oder's Trusts (3), In re 
l\ nit//it's Trusts (4).

The same rule has been adopted in the case of trustees 
unnecessarily seeking advice or opinions of the Court on 
questions of management.

While the Court will afford trustees every assistance and 
protection when they are acting bona fide and are in doubt 
on reasonable grounds as to the proper course to pursue, it 
is obvious, that, if the tru>t funds are to lie utilized in pro- 
ecedings and applications to meet cases where the trustees

(I i I Y. Ac (\ Ch. R. (MM. 
<2> 15 K.i. MM.

13) 25 Ri'ii. 30!. 
(4) 27 Hen. 45.
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themselves cannot even suggest a doubt as to the course lllll!l- 
they should take or when there is no substantial doubt as Taymm 

to wh it should be done, trustees would lie of little use, 
they would be little more than clerks or ministerial officers bahmT c. j. 
of the Court paid out of the trust funds.

There will be a decree for the trustees to pay over the 
fund as invested with accumulations and interest.

There will be no order as to costs.
No order as to administering the estate in this Court.

There seems very little to lie done and the Probate Court 
cm pass the accounts. Under the circumstances there is 
no reason for taking the administration over.

VOL. 4. N. 1. K. 1».
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1910. GODARD v. GODARD.
March 15.

Injunction—Trespass—Legal and Equitable Remedies—Supreme Court 
in Equity Act, Con. Slat, {IDtid) Chap, lid, See. 3{.

In an ordinary case of trespass where there is an adequate legal remedy
in the nature of damages, an injunction will only be granted by a
Court of Equity when special circumstances are shewn.

Application on notice to continue an injunction 
obtained ex parte.

Fouler & Jonah for the plaintiff.

M. G. Teed, K. C., and J. Herbert McFadzen for 
the defendant.

Argument was heard "February 15, 1010.

1010. March 15. Barker, C. J.:—

After a careful examination of the bill and affidavits, 
I have come to the conclusion that this application to 
continue the injunction must be refused. 1 granted 
it with hesitation, and was too much influenced by the 
fact that the defendant had the protection afforded by 
the plaintiff's indemnity as to damages. Although this 
present application has been supported by additional 
affidavits to those originally used before me, it ought 
not to succeed.

The case set up by the bill and supported by the 
affidavits is nothing more than an ordinary case of
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trespass for cutting down and carrying away trees from 
off the plaintiff’s land. No relief is sought, except an 
injunction restraining further cutting, the removal of 
the trees already cut and damages for the trespass. 
The dispute seems to he a bom fide one between the 
plaintiff and defendant as to which of them owns the 
land in question. So long as the distinction between 
legal and equitable remedies is maintained, cases of 
trespass like this, where there is an adequate remedy 
by action at law, will not lie entertained by this Court. 
It is true that Section 34 of the Supreme Court in Equity 
Act authorizes this Court, if it should think fit, to inter­
fere in cases of apprehended trespass, and cases no doubt 
arise where that authority will be exercised. But if 
the Court were to interfere in this present case, there 
is no case of trespass where this Court might not as well 
t>e asked to act, and the result would lie that all such 
cases might be transferred here instead of remaining 
in the other branch of the Court where they properly 
belong. It might be that a defendant is wholly unable 
to pay damages, or it might appear that acts done 
professedly of right were really mere trespasses, or other 
circumstances might exist to render the interjxisition 
of this Court necessary for the proper protection of all 
parties with the least possible injury. In the present 
case there is no suggestion in the bill or affidavits that 
the defendant is unable to pay any damages for which 
he may lie found liable. The extent of the cutting or 
the value of the trees cut is not made to appear very 
clearly, but there is nothing to indicate that the defend­
ant acted recklessly or in any different way from what 
in undisputed owner might have done in the prudent 
use of his property. Besides this, it seems an action 
it law was brought in 190.S for similar cutting, which 
was not proceeded with, although the cutting was not 
ihandoncd. I can see no stronger reason for restraining 
the defendant at plaintiff's instance than for restraining

1910. 
Godard 

Godard. 

Barker, C. J.
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1910. 
Godard 

Godard. 

Barker, C.

the plaintiff at the defendant's instance. The case does 
not differ materially from Wood v. LeBlanc (I), See 
also Webster v. The South-Eastern Railway Company (2).

The application to continue the injunction will be 
refused with costs, without prejudice to the plaintiff 
to take any proceeding at law.
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LOMBARD V. THE DUNBAR COMPANY.

Infringement of Patent—Injunction—Damages—Patent Act, R. S. C.
(1906) Chap. 69.

The plaintiff L. obtained two Canadian patents for a certain log- 
hauling machine. The first was applied for April 17th. 1901, 
and was granted July 16th, 1901. The second was applied for 
May 22nd, 1907, and was granted November 19th, 1907. L. also 
obtained a patent in the United States for the same device, which 
was applied for November 22nd, 1905, and granted in May, 1907.

Four of the machines were manufactured in the United States in 
accordance with the specifications of the 1907 Canadian patent, 
and were sold there in the years 1905 and 1906 with the know- 
l' 'L' .md iornent <>i I

On the hearing all rights under the Canadian patent of 1901 were 
formally al>andoned by L.

Held, that the Canadian patent dated November 19th, 1907, is void 
on the ground of non-compliance with the provisions of the Patent 
Act, as the invention so |>atented was in public use and on sale 
with the consent of the inventor thereof for more than one year 
previous to the application for the said patent in Canada. R. S. C., 
Chap. 69, Sec. 7.

The words “in Canada" in section seven of the Patent Act have 
reference to the application for the |>atcnt, and not to the sale 
ni the machine t" I» patented. >»////; \. Coûte (1) followed.

In the Canadian patent of 1907 small rollers were substituted for 
roller chains, as s|>ecificd in the 1901 patent, to |>erform a certain 
function in connection with the operation of the machine. These 
rollers were afterwards found to be impracticable, and in all the 
machines manufactured both by U. or his agents, and by the 
defendants, with the exception of the four machines mentioned 
above, the roller chains were used as specified in the patent of 
1901.

Three of the machines were manufactured in Canada by L.'s agents 
in 1906, ami two were acid m i anada m that year. Three "i 
the machines were also manufactured in the United States by 
L. in the years 1906 and 1907, and were sold by him in Canada 
during those years. All of these machines were fitted with the 
roller chains according to the specifications for the patent of 1901, 
and not with the small rollers as provided for in the patent of 
I'.'i 17.

Held, also, that the Canadian patent dated November 19th, 1907' 
i» void nn ihe ground "i non-compliance vh the provisions <>' 
the Patent Act, as the construction or manufacture of the inven* 
tion so patented had not I hit. commenced or carried on in Canada 
within two years from the date "i the said patent. K. S. C., 
Chap. 69, Sec. 38.

1910. 
At ay 17.

(1) 7 Ont. App. 628. (On appeal 9 S. C. R. 46)
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1910. Bill filed for an injunction and (or damages. The
i.oMMAHn facts are fully stated in the judgment of the Court.

TcoM^Bv'e Louis E. Young and Ira G. Hersey (of the Maine 
Barker, c. j. bar) for the plaintiff.

F. B. Cornell, K. C., for the defendants.
Argument was heard January 4th, 1910.
101(1. May 17. Barker, C. J.:—
The plaintiff is a resident of the State of Maine, and 

the defendants are a Company incorporated under the 
New Brunswick Joint Stock Companies Act, and doing 
business at Woodstock. The plaintiff is asking for an 
injunction restraining the defendants from infringing 
two Canadian patents issued to him as the original 
inventor of certain improvements in log hauling machines, 
and for damages sustained by reason of sales made by the 
Company. The first of these patents is numbered 722(53. 
and dated July Kith, 1901, and the other is numliered 
108070, and dated November 19th, 1907. The bill, which 
was sworn to by the plaintiff on the 7th of Decemlier, 
1908, alleges as to the earlier patent, that the plaintiff 
"was the original and first inventor and owner of new 
and useful improvements in logging engines not known 
or used in the Dominion of Canada, and not patented 
or described in any printed publication in this or any 
foreign country before his said invention was discovered, 
and not more than one year prior to his hereinafter recited 
application for a patent therefor, and not in public use or 
on sale for more than one year prior to his hereinafter re­
cited application for a patent therefor; and no application 
for a foreign patent for said invention was filed for more 
than twelve months prior to filing of the application in 
the Dominion of Canada." Section seven contains a 
precisely similar allegation as to the 1907 patent. 
Section eleven alleges that both of these patents were then 
in full force and effect and that the plaintiff was the sole 
owner of the patents and improvements. Section
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twelve is as follows:—“That since the issue of the patents 
to the plaintiff as set out in the preceding paragraph of 
this bill the plaintiff has been at all times in a position 
under said patent to supply the public in the Dominion 
of Canada with the said logging engines and log haulers, 
and he has invested and expended large sums of money, 
and been at great expense, in making, constructing and 
building said logging engines and log haulers under said 
patents, and has made valuable contracts with divers 
persons to manufacture, build and sell for him, the said 
plaintiff, said machinery and log haulers as aforesaid 
throughout the Dominion of Canada, and is now engaged 
in the manufacture and sale of the said log haulers under 
'aid patents as aforesaid, and believes that he will realize 
and receive large gains and profits therefrom, if infringe­
ment of said patents by the defendants shall be prevented." 
The bill further alleges that the defendants had manu­
factured and sold three log hauling machines in Canada 
for which they had been paid $18,000, and that these 
machines were infringements of his patents. Although 
no mention is made of it in the original bill, the evidence 
'hows that the plaintiff, on the 21st of May, 1007, 
obtained a patent in the United States for precisely the 
same improvements and on precisely the same claims 
and specifications as those on which the Canadian patent 
issued in 1007. The United States patent is numbered 
''■">4304, and although it was not issued until May, 1007, 
it was applied for on November 22nd, 100.), eighteen 
months before. The application for the 1001 patent 
in Canada was made on or about April 17th, of that year, 
and the 1007 patent was applied for on the 22nd of May 
of that year.

On the hearing the plaintiff’s counsel formally 
abandoned all rights under the patent of 1001 and also 
all claims for damages. The discussion is therefore 
limited to the plaintiff’s rights under his Canadian patent 
of 1007.

1910.

Lombard

The Dunbar 
Company.

Barker, C. J.
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1910.
Lombard

The Dunba* 
Company.

Marker. C. J

The machine in question was designed by the 
plaintiff for hauling, by means of a traction engine pro­
pelled by steam power, heavy loads of luml)er over rough 
roads, soft ground and roads covered with snow. Trac­
tion engines for hauling heavy loads on smooth and solid 
roads were well known, but as such roads arc not always 
to be found in the lumber woods, the plaintiff’s aim was 
to discover some means by which the machine would 
operate equally well whatever might be the nature of 
the road. He therefore designed a revolving belt—a"lag 
belt" he called it — a foot or more in width which formed 
a continuous track for the wheels. This, I should say, 
not only from the evidence, but from the claims set out 
in the applications for both patents, was the only part 
of the machine for which any claim for novelty could 
very well be maintained.. The combination, however, 
with it of other appliances well known, and their 
arrangement so as to make a x'aluable machine accomp­
lishing a new and useful result, was the idea patented. 
After giving some evidence as to the novelty of the machine 
as patented in 1901 the plaintiff gave the following:—

"Q. At that time tile idea came to you and you 
worked out yourself the principles and constructed the 
mechanism of this machine which you call an improve­
ment in logging engines? A. Yes.

"Q. In this improvement in logging engines, where 
does the improvement mainly consist? A. In the 
traction.

“Q. In all former logging or other engines they 
have been confined to what we call a round wheel as a 
traction member? A. Yes.

“Q. The spirit of your invention at that time was the 
changing of this and the invention of a traction member 
with what difference? A. It gave a great traction 
to the ground and simply laid a plank on the grounil 
and made you go over snowy roads the same as even 
roads and accomplished a feat never before done.
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“Q. A member bearing on the ground? A. The 
same .is throwing a plank on the ground and getting 
on to it.

191(1.

I.OMBARI)

The Di sbar 
Company.

“Q. A distance of about what length? A. Oh ! barkkr c. j. 
about five feet in length approximately. . . .

"(J. The reason for making the machine in that 
form was to enable the engine to do what’ A. To 
enable the engine to pass over the snowy roads and rough 
roads and to do it easily, and have a great hauling trac­
tion to get over snowy places the same as snow or mud, 
and pass over uneven places like on a skid and do that 
in this kind of business which it was designed to do, 
which the round wheel absolutely could not accomplish.
It would sink and bury itself, and this had a flat and 
would go over the snow, and what I was trying to 
accomplish was to get an engine that would go through 
loose snow and mud and so on, and do it practically 
was what I was aiming at."

The plaintiff soon found that a machine made accord­
ing to the 1901 patent was defective. He explains it 
as follows:—

“Q. Wherein wouldn't it work? A. Well, when 
we got this machine out and put it on the hard 
ground or ice where there was no snow or mud the 
machine worked and its idea and principle were all right, 
but just as soon as we struck loose, soft snow or soft, 
clayey mud, the mud worked right under those cogs, 
and would throw it out of place and haul a belt out so 
straight that it wouldn't work and filled all up, and we 
would constantly have to stop and take these out with 
little chisels and when frozen there it would keep the 
steam up half an hour and stop and thaw them, because 
the snow sifted in and the cogs underneath them would 
fill with ice so solid we couldn't move the machine, and 
while my principle was right it was impracticable to 
go in this snowy country with, under my first [latent.
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101(1.

Lombard

The Dunbar 
Company

The plaintiff then describes at some length the 
various methods which he tried in order to find some 
way to get rid of all these difficulties. Many of them 
failed, but eventually he conceived the idea of substi­
tuting sprocket gear for the cog wheels, and after some 
fitting and making some changes in the adjustment of 
the parts to suit the new gear, he had a machine which, 
to borrow his own phrase, “did the trick." This led 
to the application for the patent applied for in the 
United States in May, 1905, and to the 11107 patent 
obtained in Canada.

It has been contended before me that the machine 
is not novel cither in its principle or results and there­
fore not patentable. I do not assent to this. The 
machine as completed does accomplish a useful purpose 
not accomplished before, and although it may be 
merely a combination of parts—each perfect in itself 
and in common use—the combination is patentable as 
a new and useful arrangement of these parts producing 
a new result. It was also contended by the defendants' 
counsel that, at all events as to the patent of 11)07, the 
machine then patented could not be said to be novel, 
in view of the fact that the plaintiff had himself obtained 
a patent in 1901 for a machine to serve the same purpose, 
precisely similar in principle and containing the flexible 
road belt, which was really the only novelty in the com­
bination and without which the machine would have 
been an entire failure.

It is unnecessary, in the view which I take of the 
case, to go into any critical examination of the nature 
or importance of the alleged difference between the two 
as specified in the two applications, because I think it 
must be disposed of on other grounds.

In order to obtain a patent in Canada it is necessary 
that in addition to the novelty and utility of the machine, 
or other subject matter to lie patented, that it shall not 
have been in public use or on sale with the consent or
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allowance of the inventor for more than one year pre- 1910- 
viously to the application being made (Patent Act, Lombard 

svc. 7, Chap. 09, R. S. C.) As I have already pointed TB(f0“t™'Y4* 
out, the bill alleges as to the application for thcB<1K^c j, 
11107 patent, that the machine had not been so in 
use or on sale, and to the truth of that statement the 
plaintiff, by his affidavit verifying the bill, pledged his 
oath. The evidence of the plaintiff himself shows that 
l his statement is not correct. After he had made the 
changes in the first machine necessary to obviate the 
defects in it, and designed, as he supposed, one which 
would work successfully, he had a machine built accord­
ing to the specifications of his United States patent which 
was applied for on November 22nd, 190.7, a little over 
two years lieforc his patent was granted in Canada. On 
a test ot this machine it was found that the arrangement 
of rollers designed to overcome the friction Itetween the 
bottom of the frame and the top ol the lag lied was 
altogether unsatisfactory. This arrangement had Iteen 
introduced into the patent of 1907 as an improvement 
on roller chains provided for in the 1901 patent, to 
accomplish the same result. I shall have occasion later 
on, when dealing with another point in the case, to refer 
to the evidence on this point. For the present it is suf­
ficient to say that when the plaintiff found out that those 
rollers did not answer their purpose he abandoned them 
altogether and went back to the roller chains, and in 
all the machines which he has constructed and put on 
i he market since, except four, he has used these roller 
chains. These four machines were made with the rollers 
according to the specifications of the 1907 patent in the 
United Stales and sold there. One was sold by the 
plaintiff to the Western Lumber Company, of Montana,
October 25th, 1905. One to the Joggins Lumber Com­
pany, of Oldtown, Maine, Decemlier 26th, 1905. One 
to the Berlin Mills Company, of Berlin, New Hampshire,
January 9th, 1906, and one to the Stockholm Lumber
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juilii. Company, of Maine, February 3rd, 1900. It is there-
lomb»«d fore clear that the plaintiff’s statement as to these 

T'coi>rANBvA' machines not being in public use or on sale by his con- 
BahkebT"c. j. sent was not correct, for these four machines, which were 

all that the plaintiff had ever manufactured of that par­
ticular kind specified by him as a new and useful inven­
tion in his application made in Canada on the 22nd of 
May, 1007, had been manufactured and sold by the 
plaintiff himself in the United States between October 
25th, 1905, and February 3rd, 1900, all of them more 
than a year before he made his application in Canada. 
The plaintiff, in answer to this, contends that Section 
Seven (7) of the Patent Act refers only to the previous 
use of the invention in Canada, and as his machines were 
manufactured and sold in the United States the section 
does not apply. That section has, however, been 
amended since Smith v. Goldie (1), was decided in 1882, 
and the words “in Canada" in the section as amended 
have reference to the application for the patent and not 
to the sale of the machine to be patented. The plaintiff 
further contended that he was protected under Section 
Eight (8) as a foreign patentee, inasmuch as he had 
applied within a year from obtaining his United States 
patent. As I read that section it only keeps the field 
open as against other applicants for a year, within 
which the foreign patentee may apply. It in no way 
gives him any right to obtain a patent in Canada merely 
because he has one in a foreign country. In order to 
do that he must comply with the provisions of Section 
Seven (7). In my opinion the Canadian patent of 1907 
must lie declared void.

There is another ground upon which I think the 
plaintiff must fail. Section Thirty-eight (38) of the 
Patent Act provides that unless otherwise ordered every 
patent shall be subject to various conditions, the most 
important of which is that which relates to the manu­

al 7 Ont. App. 028. (On appeal » S. C. R. -IQ.)
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(acturc in Canada of the patented article. It is pro- 1D10.
\ ided that any patent shall he null and void at the end LoM"1,D 
nf two years from its date, unless the patentee shall, T 
within that time, commence and continue to manufac- iuhker-c. j. 
I ure the patented article so that it can lie made available 
fur the use of those desiring it. Admittedly there has 
been no extension of the time, and the two years expired 
on the 19th of November, 1909, after this suit was com­
menced, but Irefore the hearing which took place in 
January, 1010. In order to comply with the provisions 
as to manufacture in Canada the plaintiff entered into 
.1 contract with "The Jenckes Machine Company, Lim­
ited," a company doing business at Sherbrooke, in the 
Province of Quebec, for the manufacture of the machine 
as patented in 1907. The contract is dated June 3rd,
1908, and it assigns to the company the exclusive right 
to manufacture the machines in accordance with the 
s|>ecifications of the 1907 patent and sell them in any 
part of Canada east of Port Arthur. The price of each 
machine of a certain type was to lie $5,500 and the 
plaintiff was to have a royalty of $1,000 on each machine 
sold. This company has manufactured three machines— 
one of which was sold to the North Shore Power, Railway 
l'i Navigation Company, of Queliec, on Scptemlier 3rd,
It 8 IS ; one to the Lake Megantic Pulp Company on 
October 15th, 1908; and the third was on hand. These 
are all the machines manufactured in Canada. The 
plaintiff, however, sold from his own establishment at 
VVaterville to Canadian purchasers at least three other 
machines which he knew were going to Canada for use 
there, and two of which he must have known were 
actually in use in Canada when he applied for his patent 
of 1907. One of these machines was sold on December 
Oth, 1900, to Andre Cushing & Company, of Saint John, 
ne on Decemlrer 13th, 1900, to the Tracadie Lumber 

Company, of Chatham; and one on November 5th, 1907, 
to John Henderson & Company, of Sayabec, in Quelrcc.
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191(1, All these machines, including those I have mentioned,
lombard the ones manufactured at Sherbrooke and all others 

T compas*?" ma,uifactured by the plaintiff himself, except the four 
barkerTc. .1. first mentioned, which were sold in the United States, 

were fitted with the roller chains as patented in 1901, 
for which the plaintiff discarded the rollers specified for 
in the patent of 1907, and which, on a practical test, 
were found useless for the purposes for which they were 
designed. As to the relative efficiency of the two appli­
ances used for taking care of the friction in operating 
the machine, I shall quote from the evidence of the plain­
tiff and the defendants, Manager Dunbar and his son, 
Ixith of them mechanics of long experience. The plain­
tiff's evidence is as follows:—

"Q. In your 1901 patent you have two roller chains 
that travel completely around a portion of the traction 
member? A. Yes.

"Q. What was the object of these two roller chains 
in the 1901 patent? A. They were to support tin- 
centre of the lag bed.

“Q. Nothing else? A. That is all, just to keep 
it flat on the snow.

“fj. Wasn’t it intended to some extent to remove 
friction? A. Well, of course, you take it, and if they 
were not there it would be the same as hauling a load on 
the floor without wheels under it and putting wheels 
under it.

"Q. And almost impossible to do it? A. Yes.
“Q. And the principal object of the rollers was 

to get rid of the friction of the lag bed travelling along 
the bottom part of the frame which supported the whole 
weight of the machine? A. Yes.

“Q. Because if those were taken out, then as you 
attempted to revolve the lag bed the upper side of the 
lag lied would have to scrape or drag against the lower 
side of the machine? A. Just like dragging it on the 
floor.
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“Q. Without this it would lie like holding one fast 1910. 
against the other? A. Yes. Lombard

“Q. But by inserting those rollers you overcome T‘c'ompas;v*R 
the friction between the bottom of the frame and the barker-c. J 
top of the lag bed? A. Yes....................

“Q. You found that those rollers were a failure?
A. Well, found they were not so good as the chain.

“Q. Wherein were they a failure? A. Well, they 
were so small and revolved so fast and when anything 
would go under go over them, put the whole strain on 
to one particular bearing and put them right out, cut 
the gudgeons or bearings right up.

“Q. Spoiled them? A. Yes, destroyed them.
“Q. And you were continually making new portions 

In replace both gudgeons and bearings? A. Yes.
“Q. And you went back to your roller chains of 

1001? A. Yes.
"Q. Only you applied it in a little different manner?

A. Yes.
"Q. But you don't claim any difference in the 

application of that in 1907 and in 1901? A. No, in 
just the roller chains.

"Q. You come back to the roller chains? A. Yes.
“Q. And the machine manufactured by the Jenckes 

Machine Company had the roller chain exactly the same 
in principle as the patent of 1901? A. Yes, just the 
Mime principle.

“Q. You don’t claim any patent in the different 
application of the roller chains between 1907 and what 
il was in 1901? A. No, we don’t claim any difference 
vn the roller chain, but on the rest of the construction."

The two Dunbars in effect say, that without some 
"leans of obviating the friction, the machine was useless 
and that it was practically impossible to reduce it by 
means of the rollers as described in the 1907 patent for 
the reasons which have been mentioned. They also 

iy that in machines made by them, and which are claimed
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to be infringements of the plaintiff's patent, they have 
always used roller belts as the plaintiff uses them or 
t the same. It is therefore contended that
the article patented has never Ihvii manufactured in 
Canada, that what has been manufactured as satisfying 
the requirements of the Statute is not the machine 
patented. That would have been useless and unsaleable. 
The machine which has been manufactured and sold, 
is a machine which is useful and saleable because a part 
of the combination patented has been abandoned and 
something not included in the specification substituted 
in its place. It has I teen argued that the differentes 
between the two are so trivial and unimportant that the 
manufacture of either would satisfy the requirements 
of the Statute as to this patented machine. In the 
manufacture of a patented article, trivial departures 
from the specifications of the patent may in many cases 
be disregarded as immaterial, but where, by the substitu­
tion of one constituent of a patented combination of parts 
for something else not specified at all, the combination 
is changed from a failure to a success, the two can 
scarcely be treated as identical. It must be remembered 
in dealing with this point that the machine as patented 
is a combination of mechanical contrivances none of 
which, except possibly one, were new. In such cases 
where an infringement is charged, the combination is 
treated as an entirety and the omission of any material 
part deprives the remainder of the protection of the patent.

In Primly v. Meats (1) Chief Justice Taney, in 
delivering the opinion of the Supreme Court of the United 
States, says:—“The patent is for a combination, and 
the improvement consists in arranging different portions 
of the plough and combining them together in the manner 
stated in the s|x*cification for the purpose of producing 
a certain effect. None of the parts referred to are new, 
and none are claimed as new, nor is any portion of the

(1) 16 Peters 338.

872970
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rombination less than the whole claimed as new or stated 1910. 
to produce any given result. The end in view is proposed 
to be accomplished by the union of all arranged and Thc0mP”nvA" 
combined together in the manner described. And this ba*ke»7c. j. 
combination, conqiosed of all the parts mentioned in the 
specification, and arranged with reference to each other 
and to other parts of the plough in the manner therein 
described, is stated to be the improvement and is the 
thing patented. The use of any two of these parts only, 
or of two combined with a third, which is substantially 
different in form, or in the manner of its arrangement and 
connection with the others, is therefore not the thing 
patented. It is not the same combination if it substan­
tially differs from it in any of its parts."

This case was cited and acted upon in Eames v.
Godfrey (1) where the Court, after quoting the extract 
which I have just given from Prouty v. Meats, say:—

‘The Court (that is the Court appealed from) laid down 
a broad rule without qualification, that although Eames’ 
mechanism for distending the leg of the boot-tree did 
differ in its construction and operation from that patented, 
yet if it performed the same functions as the mechanism 
in the combination, there was an infringement. This 
view of the law was wrong in principle and authority.
Eames had a right to use any of the parts in Godfrey's 
combination, if he did not use the whole; and if he used 
all the parts but one, and, for that, substituted another 
mechanical structure, substantially different in its con­
duction and operation, but serving the same purpose, 
he was not guilty of an infringement."

In Schumacher v. Cornell (2) the Court say:—"A 
rombination is always an entirety. In such cases the 
patentee cannot abandon a part and claim the rest, nor 
can he be permitted to prove that a part is useless and 

(1) 68 U. S. 547 1 Wall 78. (2) 96 U. S. 549.

VOL. «. H. ». B. *.—20.
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therefore immaterial. He must stand by his claim as 
he has made it. If more or less than the whole ol his 
ingredients are used by another, such part)1 2 is not liable 
as an infringer, !>ecause he has not used the invention 
or discovery patented. With the change of the elements 
the identity of the product disappears." See also Vance 
v. Campbell (1); Gill v. Wells (2); Seed v. Higgins and 
Olliers (3); Parker v. Grace (4).

These cases may he cited as authorities for holding 
that the defendants have not infringed the plaintiff's 
patent as they have never used the roller arrangement 
which formed a part of the claim for the 11)07 patent. 
If that were so it can scarcely lie contended that the 
manufacture of a machine which differs from a patented 
machine so that it is not an infringement of it, is neverthe­
less a manufacture of the patented machine so as to satisfy 
the Statute. But if this were not so, it is obvious that 
a patentee cannot by manufacturing a machine so far 
different from the machine he has patented in its form 
of construction and results as to render the one useful 
while the other is not, extend the protection of the patent 
to the machine as manufactured. It was contended that 
the roller l>elt was nothing more than a mechanical 
equivalent of the rollers called for by the specifications 
for the 11)07 patent and therefore covered by it. But 
that is not so, Curtis in his work on patents (Sec. 331) 
says:—“Patent laws have for their leading purpose the 
encouragement of useful inventions. Practical utility 
is their object, anil it would be strange if, with such object 
in view, the law should consider two things substantially 
the same which, practically and in reference to their 
utility, are substantially different."

The patent must therefore lie held void for want of 
manufacture in Canada within the two years fixed by 
the Statute. The plaintiff’s bill will therefore be

(1) 1 Black, 427, 06 U. S. 168. (3) 8 H. L. C. 550.
(2) 22 Wall 1, 8!) U. S. 711. (4) 1 Ex., Wei.. Hurl. & Cor. 339.
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dismissed with costs on the ground that the plaintiff’s 
Canadian patent dated November 10th, 1907, Number 
108070 is void,—(1) Because the machine was in public 
use and on sale with the consent of the inventor thereof 
for more than one year previously to the plaintiff's appli­
cation for the said patent in Canada; and (2) Because 
the said plaintiff has not within two years from the date 
of the said patent (the time not having been extended) 
commenced or carried on in Canada the construction or 
manufacture of the said invention patented as required 
by Section Thirty-eight (38) of the Patent Act.

Bill dismissed with costs.
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—— SHAW ET AL V. ROBINSON et al.
Stpltmbtr JO.

Injunction—Declaration as to rights of Parties—Absolute assignment 
in nature of Trust.

The plaintiff S. and the defendant R. were associated in matters 
connected with mining in New Brunswick, for some time prior 
to the transaction over which this suit has arisen, both in promoting 
and developing coal mines, and their transactions had been for 
the benefit of both. S. was in a position in which he could interest 
capitalists in New York and Boston, and R. was a practical man 
and spent the greater part of his time superintending the mining 
and development work at the mines, and in obtaining concessions 
and licenses from the Government at Fredericton.

Their first transaction was in reference to the Crawford Mine (so 
called). In June, 1908, R. sold this property to the Canadian 
Coal Company, a different Company from the plaintiff in this 
suit. R. owned this property and S. found the purchasers, and 
was paid a percentage of the proceeds for his services. S. also 
held a number of bonds of the Company belonging to R., as part 
of the purchase price, and which he was to dispose of for Rs'. 
benefit.

On September 12th, 1908, R. executed an absolute assignment of 
certain applications for license to work to the plaintiff, the 
Canadian Coal Lands, Limited. On the same day he was paid 
the sum of one thousand dtVIars by S. Previous to this date, R. 
had received money from S. to cover expenses in connection with 
procuring the licenses mentioned above.

The Canadian Coal Lands, Limited, was not an active organization, 
but what is called a “holding Company." It had only five 
members, each holding one share, and on January 4th, 1910, 
after this dispute had arisen it assigned its interest in these areas 
to S.

Held, that the assignment to the plaintiff Company by R. was made 
for the sole purpose of enabling S. to sell the mining rights for the 
joint benefit of himself and R., and that it was not an absolute 
sale to the plaintiff Company.

Bill filed for an injunction restraining the defendants 
from selling, assigning, transferring or incumbering, 
certain licenses issued by the Crown Land Office of New 
Brunswick, and for a declaration of the rights of the 
parties. The facts fully appear in the judgment of the 
Court.
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M. C. Teed, K. C., for the plaintiffs.

lion. II. F. McLeod, and W. Watson Allen, K. C., 
for the defendants.

Argument was heard July 28, 1910.

1910. September 20, Barker, C. J.:—

The bill alleges that on or about the 25th June, 1908, 
one J. J. Fraser Winslow, James Holland and Stewart 
Benson, either jointly or separately, or both, had made 
six different applications under tfhe general Mining Act 
of New Brunswick for licenses to work for mines and 
minerals upon certain Crown lands in Queens County. 
These applications were numbered from 79 to 84 inclusive, 
and comprised about one square mile each, or about six 
scpiare miles in all.

That both before and after these applications had 
been made, negotiations had taken place between the 
defendant Robinson and the plaintiff Shaw with a view 
of obtaining these areas for coal mining purposes, and 
that as a result of these negotiations "It was ultimately 
and in the month of August, A. D. 1908, finally agreed 
between the plaintiff Shaw and the defendant Robinson 
that Robinson should acquire the rights of Winslow, 
Holland and Benson in the applications, and the plaintiff 
Shaw should purchase the same from him for the sum of 
one thousand dollars over and above certain expenses, 
the account of which Robinson was to make up." That 
in order to carry out this arrangement and sale, Robinson 
obtained from Winslow, Holland and Benson assignments 
of their rights under the said applications. These assign­
ments were all made by the consent of the Surveyor 
General and registered in the Crown Land Office on the 
21st August, 1908.

The bill further alleges that in pursuance of the 
arrangement Shaw, for the purpose of handling and 
managing the Coal areas, procured the incorporation
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U* 10 in the State of Maine of the Plaintiff Company. That 
shaw it ai |,e, Shaw, paid from time to time to Robinson moneys 
*— on account of the expenses, and that he did on the twelfth 

Barker, c. j. day of September, 190S, pay to Robinson one thousand 
dollars as the balance of these moneys, and at the same 
time the defendant Robinson, at Shaw's request, made 
and executed to the Plaintiff Company an assignment 
of these six applications, which assignment is as follows:

“Know all men by these presents that I, Alexander 
G. Robinson, of Marysville, in the County of York, in 
consideration of one dollar to me in hand well and truly 
paid by Canadian Coal Lands, Limited, of the State of 
Maine, one of the United States of America, have sold, 
assigned, transferred, and set over, and by these presents 
do sell, assign, transfer and set over to Canadian Coal 
Lands, Limited, its successors and assigns, applications 
for license to work, numbered 79, 80, 81, 82, 83, and 84, 
dated June the 25th, A. D. 1908, in the Parish of Chipman 
and Canning, County of Queens, to have and to hold 
the same to the said Canadian Coal Lands, Limited, 
its successors and assigns.

In witness whereof 1 have hereunto set my hand 
and seal the twelfth day of September, A. D. 1908. Signed, 
sealed and delivered.

(Sgd.) Alexander G. Robinson.
In presence of

(Sgd.) Charles Joseph Fitzpatrick."

This assignment was registered in the Crown Land 
Office on the Kith September, 1908. The bill further 
alleges that the plaintiff Shaw out of his own moneys 
paid all the expenses amounting to twelve hundred dollars, 
and the one thousand dollars for the assignment, and 
that the plaintiff the Canadian Coal Lands Company, 
Limited, holds the same as trustee for him the said Shaw. 
The bill then alleges that on Shaw’s application the
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Surveyor General issued licenses to work under the Mining 1010. 
Act to the plaintiff Company on the areas included in SM," BT,L 
the six applications; these licenses were numbered 67, »t*l.'

68, 69, 70, 71, and 72, each for one square mile, and all Bahkek. c. j. 
dated August 1st, 1908.

It seems from the evidence and facts that are now 
in dispute that later on a difference arose between the 
plaintiff Shaw and Robinson as to the real arrangement 
and agreement between them as to the assignment,
Shaw claiming that Robinson had no interest in it and 
Robinson claiming that he had. This is in reality the 
question of fact to be determined and will be dealt 
with on the evidence. It seems that by a letter dated 
at Fredericton on March 18th, 1909, from Robinson 
to Shaw, he put forward his claim as to the real 
agreement between them, which he said had been 
violated, and in consequence of which he (Robinson) 
claimed that all the licenses issued to the plaintiff 
Company should be assigned forthwith to him. This 
the plaintiff refused to do, whereupon Robinson on the 
2.">th March, 1909, presented a petition to the Surveyor 
General to have the assignment by him to the Company, 
and the licenses issued thereon to the Company, 
rescinded and cancelled. On this application the 
Surveyor General, assuming to have jurisdiction in the 
matter, after giving notice to Shaw, held an investigation, 
and after hearing the evidence he made an order on the 
eighth day of April by which he found in accordance 
with Robinson’s contention, that the assignment by 
Robinson to the Coal Company, though absolute on its 
face, was in fact obtained from him in trust for the purpose 
of arranging a sale of the coal areas for his benefit without 
any delay, and that as the agreement as to the sale had 
lieen violated and nothing done in compliance with the 
arrangement, he cancelled the assignment and licenses 
and ordered new licenses to issue of these areas to Robinson. 
Accordingly the assignment and licenses were marked
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1910 in the Crown Land Office as "cancelled" and new licenses 
shaw it *1. were jssue(] to Robinson. These were numbered 75 to 
"ST" SO inclusive, and dated April Nth, 1909, the day on which 

bahkkk, c.J. the Surveyor General made his order. In consequence 
of the plaintiff's inability, by reason of the short notice 
of this hearing, to fully prepare himself and procure his 
witnesses, he subsequently applied to the Surveyor 
General to re-open the matter and to rescind his order 
of the Nth April as well as the licenses issued under it to 
Robinson. On this application the Surveyor General 
re-heard the matter but adhered to his previous finding, 
and so matters stood as they were. Subsequently an 
application was made to the Supreme Court for a 
certiorari to remove the Surveyor General’s order of the 
8th April with a view to its being quashed, on the ground 
of a want of jurisdiction, and an order to that effect was 
afterwards made. The defendant Puddington claims 
as assignee of Robinson, for value without notice, of these 
licenses issued to him, under two assignments dated 
August 31st, 1909, and registered in the Crown Land 
Office on the Nth Septemlier, 1909.

The answer set up by Robinson is this. He says 
that previous to any quèstion arising as to these areas, 
Shaw and he had had some dealings about the Crawford 
Mine, so called, a mile area owned by Robinson and 
somewhere near these other areas. Quoting from Section 
2 of Robinson answer, he says:—“I told him, (Shaw) 
there was a possibility of a piece of New Brunswick Coal 
and Railway areas being open and asked if it would be 
possible to handle it. At that time the plaintiff Shaw- 
said he thought it was too large. Afterwards I went 
to the said James Holland and he, with the said Winslow 
and Benson, applied for the alxwe areas. It was not 
at that time, I believe, the intention of the said Shaw 
to obtain the said licenses or mining areas. The said 
mining licenses or areas were not applied for, for or on 
behalf of the said Shaw. The owners of the said licenses
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were the said Holland, Winslow, Benson and myself. 
We agreed that if the said Shaw promoted a Company 
lie was to have one mile for his work in so doing. The 
said Shaw was a party to this agreement. It is not true 
that in August, 1909, or at any other time, that it was 
agreed between the said Shaw and myself that I should 
acquire the rights of the said Holland, Winslow, and 
Benson, or of any of them, in the said several applica­
tions for licenses to work and should sell and assign the 
same unto the said Shaw all or any of the said applica­
tions or the rights thereunder or the licenses to be 
issued thereon, or any of them, for the sum of one thou­
sand dollars, or for any other sum of money, or for any 
consideration whatsoever. There was no such agree­
ment. On the twenty-first day of August, A. D. 1908, 
1 purchased and acquired the interests of the said 
Winslow, Holland, and Benson on my own behalf and 
for myself. The said Shaw had no interest in the said 
licenses. The said Shaw had had a Company called 
the Canadian Coal Lands, Limited, incorporated at 
Augusta, in the State of Maine, in the United States 
of America, and represented that he was in a position 
to dispose of stock of the said Company to an American 
investor if the licenses were assigned to the said Cana­
dian Coal Lands, Limited, and the said Shaw was to 
share in the proceeds of the stock for his work and 
exjienses in promoting the Company. On the twelfth 
day of September, A. D. 1908, I assigned the said 
licenses and areas to the Canadian Coal Lands, Limited, 
in trust to be sold for my benefit, and the agreement 
which I made with the said Shaw was that said Cana­
dian Coal Lands, Limited, should hold the said appli­
cations and areas in trust to lie promoted and placed 
upon the market, and the stock sold for my benefit, 
and the said Shaw was to receive half of the proceeds 
of the stock for promoting the said Company and selling 
the stock. The said Shaw stated that he already had
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a purchaser for the said stock and that I would receive 
my money within a few days.” The defendant then 
admits in his answer the assignments to him from 
Winslow, Holland and Benson and the issuing of the 
licenses. He denies that Shaw ever paid him twelve 
hundred dollars or any other sum for expenses as he 
alleges, and while he admits a payment of one thousand 
dollars by Shaw to him on the 12th September, 100S, 
he says it was in no way on account of the purchase 
money for these licenses or in any way connected with 
it, but that “it was an advance or loan on account of 
moneys due me on fhe sale of my stock in the Crawford 
mine so called.” Quoting from section 0 of his answer 
Robinson says: “My stock in the Crawford Mine in 
the hands of the said Shaw, who was under agreement 
to sell the same and pay over the proceeds to me and the 
sum of one thousand dollars, was an advance pending 
further sale of said stock in said Crawford Mine, and 
a large block of said stock in said Crawford Mine is still 
unaccounted for by the said Shaw.”

By the prayer of the bill the plaintiffs, in addition 
to an injunction preventing the defendant Robinson 
from assigning the licenses issued to Robinson or inter­
fering with the areas mentioned in them, asked that 
they should be set aside, as well as the assignments to 
Puddington dated August 31st, 11(09, as being a cloud 
upon the plaintiff's title, and that the licenses issued 
to the Canadian Coal Lands, Limited, numbered 67, 
68, 69, 70, and 71 and 72 be decreed valid and subsist­
ing and to have priority of the licenses issued to 
Robinson.

The transactions in reference to the Crawford Mine 
are only indirectly mixed up with those relating to the 
six mile area, out of which this suit has arisen. It is 
necessary to refer, however, to some of them as they 
throw some light on the later dealings between Shaw 
and Robinson. In the first place I must point out that
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by the provisions of the “General Mining Act" (Chap. 
30 of Con. Stat. 1903) so far as it relates to mines other 
than gold and silver, the Surveyor General is authorized 
by section 89 to grant “licenses to search” in force for 
a year and six months, under which the licensee is 
authorized to dig and explore for such minerals other 
than gold and silver, and he is to report the result to 
the Surveyor General. Provision is also made for the 
granting of "licenses to work.” These are granted for 
a period of two or three years and authorize the licensee 
to commence and carry on effective mining operations. 
Such licensee is entitled, on application within the term 
uf the license, to apply for and obtain a lease of the area, 
which lease in the case of coal, runs for twenty years 
and is subject to a variety of conditions which are unim­
portant here.

On the 17th October, 1900, the Surveyor General 
granted a coal mining lease, No. 157, to one G. Byron 
Crawford and the defendant Robinson of a square mile 
situate at Salmon Bay in Queens County. On the 10th 
of December, 1907, Crawford gave Robinson a lease 
of a piece of land adjoining the area comprised in lease 
157 and which was considered necessary for the con­
venient operation of the mine. On the 25th June, 1908, 
Robinson assigned lease No. 157 to the Canadian Coal 
Corporation, a Company incorporated in Maine, having 
its head office in Augusta, but a different Corporation 
from the plaintiff Company. On the following day, 
"June 20th, 1908," Robinson transferred the Crawford 
lease to the same Company, and since that time the 
Crawford Mine has been operated by that Company, 
Robinson being its manager with full charge of the work.

The sale of the Crawford Mine to the Canadian 
Coal Company was negotiated by Shaw for Robinson, 
• ind it was a part of the arrangement of sale that until 
the Company got into a sufficiently strong position 
financially to enable it to operate the mine, Robinson
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1910. was to do so on their account. Robinson gave Shaw 
shaW'Itai. authority to sell the Crawford Mine for thirty thousand 
Re"'al!>n dollars. It was sold, and for his services Shaw received 

barker, c. j. thirteen thousand dollars in the bonds of the Company.
In this transaction Shaw says he was woiking for 
Robinson, not the Company. This was the origin of 
the business relations between Shaw and Robinson. 
Robinson owned the property and Shaw found the pur­
chasers and was paid a percentage of the proceeds. 
Taking Shaw's own account he says that the question 
of the six mile area was brought up to him by Robinson 
in the winter of 1907 or first of 1908, and this question 
was asked :

“Q. What was suggested or how did it come up? 
A. Mr. Robinson suggested that through his connec­
tions it would be possible to get the whole or part of it 
on a sub-lease and that something might be done with 
it in the way of inducing capital to operate it or taking 
speculative holding. And the next step or next time 
it was discussed, was when this piece, so called six 
miles and actually secured by a party of Fredericton 
men, in the form of a sub-lease in which there were six 
to benefit, and I believe I was to be one of them.

“Q. Was that secured from the Crown Land or 
from the old Company? A. No, the old Company, 
and that was offered to me to handle in such form as I 
might suggest. And the next step was after interview­
ing a party who I thought might do something in the 
way of purchasing it from us and operating it. I offered 
them verbally what was suggested and we talked the 
thing over in Fredericton and decided nothing further 
could be done on that lot, that the sub-lease from the old 
railroad would not be valid and the matter was dropped."

The difficulty was simply one of the title. That 
was the only reason why the scheme failed and the 
property was not handed over to Shaw to handle as he 
thought best, but of course for the benefit of the six of
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whom he was one. Shaw says that some months after- IMP- 
wards Robinson told him that Winslow, Holland and SHAW,,BI AL 
Benson had secured rights to search, and he (Robinson) rËt‘al°n 
suggested to him (Shaw) that those three had tried to Barkb*. c. j. 

sell these rights, that they had only paid twenty-five 
dollars or fifty dollars each, and he thought if he 
(Shaw) would advance him money and pay him for his 
trouble he could get them to assign their leases to him, 
and he would make them over to Shaw as he had no 
money to work them and that it was on that basis he 
went ahead and advanced his expenses and told him to 
see what he could do. The indefiniteness and uncer­
tainty of this arrangement is so apparent that the 
plaintiff's examination was continued as follows :

“Q. About that time (July, 1908) or afterwards 
you say you and Mr. Robinson had some more definite 
negotiations? A. I think he told me before the pro­
perty was actually sold, I speak of that to fix the date, 
he had advised me, as he expressed it, of the trickery 
of Holland, Benson and Winslow to go and get these 
licenses from the Crown Land Department and I said 
he wanted to know what 1 thought of it and I said, well 
you know what I think of it, and let it stand that way.
I got the impression, although I don't think he asked 
me then if I would be interested to take the matter up 
again, but after his property was turned over to the 
C anadian Coal Corporation.

"Q. That is the one mile? A. The only property 
as I understand, he ever held there, this one mile. Then 
he said, I find that these men, Holland, Benson and 
Winslow, they have invested fifty dollars or one hundred 
dollars apiece there and they have tried to sell it and 
h «iked into the matter of opening up the mines and found 
they could not afford to do it and he said, if you will 
keep out of sight and not let them think you are after 
it again, if you will be interested enough I could get it 
if I offered them two hundred dollars apiece or some-
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think like that, and did a little work underground and 
might be able to buy it, and what would you give me 
should I succeed in getting it? I considered the matter 
and in some way he gave me to understand” (The 
Solicitor General here objected).

“Q. Give me as near as you can what took place? 
A. It is a good time back to rcmemlter the words but 
there was something to this effect, that they were stuck 
and they had the money tied up in it and he could buy 
them out for about two hundred dollars apiece and he 
wanted to take them in his own name, because if they 
knew he was transferring them direct to me, they would 
want more money, and he wanted to know how much 
I would give him for his trouble. Well I told him to 
go on and see what he could do first, see if the chances 
were good that he could make the purchase for me, and 
later in the month he advised me to come on with the 
money, about such a date, to buy out two of them and 
I came on to Fredericton. I started for Fredericton 
and it seems he had written me and told me not to come 
to Fredericton for fear they would get wise. He didn't 
want them to know I was coming down to see them.

“Q. Up to this time had you ultimately agreed 
or arrived at a definite figure or basis upon which you 
were to take the rights over if he got them? A. No."

The date is fixed as August 17th, A. D. 1908, when 
Robinson met Shaw at Fredericton Junction on his way 
to Fredericton, and Shaw at his suggestion went on to 
St. John. The letter to which Shaw refers containing 
Robinson’s reference to Benson's and Winslow's ideas 
going up is dated August 12th, A. D. 1908.

Stopping here for a moment let us see what was the 
condition of affairs at that time and how it bears upon 
the plaintiff's present claim of sole and absolute ownership. 
Admittedly the first proposition which included six persons 
as interested failed liecause of the supposed invalidity 
of a sub-lease from the old Railway Company. That
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difficulty was obviated by acquiring the rights under _
the Mining Act direct from the Government, and Benson, AL
Winslow and Holland acquired the rights or licenses to 
work. Then Robinson suggests to Shaw that if he was lunum. c. j. 
interested enough to take up the matter again, he could 
purchase Benson’s, Winslow's and Holland’s interests best.
The matter which was to be taken up again was the 
matter which they had before abandoned. The proposal 
by Robinson now was to purchase out Benson, Winslow 
and Holland, which would leave him and Shaw as owners.
The plaintiff then says that Robinson was to purchase 
these interests for him, and he was to pay Robinson for 
his trouble. The amount Robinson was to receive was 
not fixed and the amount to be paid for the outstanding 
interests was not ascertained, and Shaw had come to 
Fredericton from Boston to pay for Winslow's and 
Benson’s interest, two hundred dollars each — which 
would leave Holland’s interest outstanding. It seems 
that Shaw went to St. John by the Boston train on August 
17th, A. D. 1908, remained there until evening when 
he returned by train to Boston. During that afternoon 
lie had communication with Robinson at Fredericton 
bt telephone in which he says Robinson told him he 
could get the third man's interest and that he, Robinson, 
would take one thousand dollars over and above expenses 
for his part of the deal. And in reply to that Shaw says 
that he accepted the offer. "I told him if he would get 
the three people lined up and make the transfer to me 
or whoever I wanted, and have it secure so that there 
would lie no legal entanglements I would give him a 
thousand dollars and pay his expenses." The plaintiff 
>.tys "that he then sent Mr. Andrews, of Augusta, his 

licitor, to Fredericton to get the transfers from 
Robinson, that he gave him two five hundred dollar 
I ills and four or five hundred dollars in smaller advances 
ad instructed him to take the money down and if 

Robinson had the title, that is the right to work from the
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department, either assigned to me or in such shape he 
shaw etal cou|j assjgn to a Company which I had formed. I had 
Ret‘au>n Mr. Andrews organize this Canadian Coal Lands, 

Barker, c. j. Limited, and I wanted the title from the department 
or the assignment from Mr. Robinson to go to this Company 
and told Mr. Andrews not to pay over the money unless 
the title was in such a shape he could do it, and his report 
was he only had applications to assign and not the rights 
to work, and he came back for want of further instruction." 
The plaintiff further says in consequence of a letter he 
received from Robinson a few days later he himself went 
to Fredericton when the transfer from Robinson to the 
plaintiff Company was executed, and the one thousand 
dollars paid. This letter is dated August 21st, A. D. 
1908, and speaks of Andrews having been there the day 
before and of the three transfers having Ijeen made to 
Robinson. In fact they were registered at the Crown 
Land Office that day. In this letter Robinson says 
“They (»'. <., the Crown Land Department) cannot issue 
the lease till the ground is surveyed and we have com­
menced work," clearly indicating a joint ownership. The 
plaintiff's case is that he actually paid all the expenses, 
including the cost of survey, the amounts paid to Winslow 
and Benson, in all amounting to twelve hundred and 
fifty dollars, and that he also paid Robinson the one 
thousand dollars when the assignment to the plaintiff 
Company was executed by him at Fredericton on the 
12th September, by virtue of which he became the absolute 
owner of the rights secured by the six licenses to work. 
I have already pointed out some features of the earlier 
history of this transaction which seemed to me to be 
opposed to the plaintiff's version of it. There arc two 
or three other points to which I shall refer. I have already- 
given the plaintiff’s statement as to his instructions to 
Mr. Andrews and Mr. Andrew's report of what he did. 
It seems that with the one thousand dollars he brought 
with him to Fredericton he brought an assignment of
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these licenses to the plaintiff Company to be executed 
by Robinson, apparently the same document which was 
afterwards executed. Holland, who seems to have been 
acting professionally for Robinson, says that Andrews 
telephoned for him and Robinson to meet him at his 
hotel at Fredericton. His evidence proceeds thus:—

“Q. What occurred there? A. After coming 
there he wanted to present a paper for Mr. Robinson to 
sign, as I said it was a large area of six and a half miles.

“Q. To sign to whom ? A. To the Canadian 
Coal Lands, Limited. Wanted to take over the larger 
area anyway and asked me to execute the assignment, 
that he had been sent by Mr. Shaw for that purpose, 
and he also spoke of having one thousand dollars with 
him. I don't remember seeing it. So he said upon 
executing this paper he would pay him this one thousand 
dollars. And Mr. Robinson said words to this effect ; 
Where will I stand if I sign it? And lie said I don't know. 
Mr. Robinson said. What am I signing it for? He 
wouldn't know that, Mr. Shaw told told him to get him 
to sign it. And Mr. Robinson said he wouldn’t sign it. 
Then Mr. Andrews made the remark to Robinson, “I 
don’t blame you for not signing it,” so Andrews went 
away and the paper was not signed.

Robinson gives evidence to the same effect. He 
says:—

"Q. What did he (Andrews) want you to do? A- 
lie said he was sent down by Mr. Shaw to get me to sign 
certain papers for which he was to hand me a thousand 
dollars which he produced and laid on the table.

"Q. What did you say? A. I said, this is rather 
indefinite, where do I come in in this matter? I said, 
I own half the matter, or at present the whole of it. He 
'.lid, I don't know anything about it only just I was sent 
down by Mr. Shaw to get your signature on this paper.

“Q. Did you sign? A. I didn't.
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"y. Did you hear Shaw say yesterday the reason 
you didn't sign was you told Andrews the papers were 
not ready? A. There weren't any papers.

“Q. Did you hear Shaw say that or words to that 
effect ? A. Yes, which papers do you mean?

"y. That is what Mr. Shaw said? A. Well the 
leases were on hand at the time.

“y. Did you hear Shaw say yesterday that the 
reason you didn't sign when Andrews came down was 
ltccause the papers were not ready? A. I did,

“y. Is that so? A. That is not so.
"y. So Mr. Andrews went home without you 

signing? A. Yes, I said to Andrews, If you were in 
my position what would you do? And he said, I wouldn't 
sign.”

It is clear from this evidence that Robinson did refuse 
to make the assignment at that time. The plaintiff’s 
case is that he did pay twelve hundred dollars or about 
that sum to Robinson for expenses as he agreed, and 
the one thousand dollars to himself, in all twenty-two 
hundred dollars. As to this Robinson not only says 
there never was any agreement to pay the expenses but 
that in fact Shaw never paid the sum or any part of it. 
One would suppose that in reference to such a transaction, 
which had taken place such a short time liefore, there 
would have been no material difference lietween their 
accounts of what took place. Neither of these gentleman 
seemed to be in very good circumstances. Robinson 
was struggling to keep the Crawford Mine in operation 
and was largely indebted to Puddington for advances. 
And while Shaw spoke somewhat flippantly of his 
generally having from five hundred to one thousand in 
his pocket he was largely indebted to Sherman. Shaw 
says that on the Kith of August, A. D. 190X, he left Boston 
for Fredericton in consequence of a letter from Robinson 
dated August 12th. His ticket seems to have been a 
through ticket anti that part of it covering the route from
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Fredericton Junction to Fredericton, was produced in 
Court, it having been unused by reason of Shaw going 
on to St. John as I have already mentioned. I quote 
Shaw's account of what took place at the Junction.

1910.

Shaw et al 

Robinson

Barker, C. J.

"Q. You received that letter of the twelfth and 
did you come down? A. Yes.

"Q. Do you remember was there any communication 
between you and him as to where you would meet him? 
A. I was going to Fredericton.

“Q. Do you know of any communication between 
you. He says not to go to Fredericton, you intended 
to go to Fredericton? A. Yes, as I remember I couldn’t 
sec how my going would have any bearing on my buying 
from them in one way or the other. I don't agree with 
him in that.

"Q. Did you go to Fredericton or what occurred? 
A. No, I got as far as Fredericton Junction. I think 
I must have wired 1 was going to Fredericton in spite 
of that, because at Fredericton Junction he met me and 
as quick as 1 stepped off the train he said, Have you got 
the money? And he told me how much he spent to find 
out if he could buy them out and he must have two 
hundred dollars apiece to pay these men because they 
were ready to make the transfer.

“Q. Which two was it? A. I don't remember, 
but my impression would be. Well I couldn’t say, it 
was two of the three that he was right ready to buy out, 
and he said you go on to St. John, don't come up with 
me. Well, 1 had several hundred dollars in my pocket, 
and my impression is l gave him two hundred dollars 
apiece for them and two or perhaps it might have been 
two hundred dollars or one hundred dollars more. I 
know while the train was standing at the Junction there 
I counted this out to him, and got in the train and went 
back to St. John, and of course my ticket wasn’t good 
and I put it in my pocket with the letter and kept it there.



302 NEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY REPORTS. [VOL.

1910.

Shaw kt al 

Robinson

Barker. C. J

“Q. This will fix the date. Is this the date. It 
is marked “Union Station, Boston, August 10th, A. D. 
HfOS?" A. Yes I got to Fredericton Junction August 
17th and I left St. John that night and went home.

“Q. You on that occasion paid him four hundred 
or five hundred dollars? A. It was more than four 
hundred dollars and my impression was it was about 
six hundred dollars.

“Q. That was for what? A. The four hundred 
was to buy out these two men and the other was for 
expenses that he—well we were only there two or three 
minutes while the train stopped at the Junction, but I 
rememlier he told me he had lieen to that expense, and 
went on to tell me the details, and I said, never mind 
the details.

“Q. That was on account of the cost of acquiring 
the rights to this six mile area? A. Yes."

In view of all the circumstances I confess this account 
seems to me incredible. On the examination which took 
place before the Surveyor General in April, 1909, only 
seven months after the meeting at Fredericton Junction 
had taken place and when the whole transaction would, 
one would suppose, be fresh in his memory, he gave an 
entirely different account. In fact he did not mention 
any payment at the Junction but gave a somewhat 
uncertain account both as to the time and place of the 
payment going to make up the twelve hundred dollars 
which he says he paid for expenses. His explanation 
of this slip in his memory as given in his evidence is as 
follows :

“Q. Are you able to tell us any amounts you paid 
him? A. I remember the final amount and I rememlier 
the two amounts at Fredericton Junction, and if I hadn't 
found that ticket and letter I don’t suppose I would have 
had anything to bring that back to my mind exactly.
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"Q. That doesn't say amounts, does it? A. No 
hut it brings back that I paid him four hundred dollars 
and some more."

The ticket referred to is the unused portion of the 
through ticket from Boston to Fredericton. It was 
certainly useful to fix the date of Shaw’s arrival at the 
Junction, but in what possible way it could recall pay­
ments or amounts or anything else as he puts forward, 
I cannot see. He was in the Boston express, which he 
says only stopped a minute or two, he must have 
purchased a ticket there for St. John, and for him to have 
the hurried conversation with Robinson and to have 
shuffled out of his pocket four or five or six hundred 
Hollars and given it to Robinson and then forgotten the 
whole transaction nine months afterwards, anti two years 
afterwards have the whole incident brought back to his 
recollection by finding this unused portion of his ticket 
is to me so extremely improbable that I ought not to give 
effect to it, especially in view of the positive denial of 
Robinson. In this connection it must be remembered 
That up to this time no agreement had liven made as 
Shaw says himself, the right of Benson, Winslow and 
Holland had not lieen assigned or paid for and Shaw had, 
according to his account, paid out for expenses some one 
thousand dollars without any account and without any 
definite arrangement one way or the other. The balance 
of these expenses, two hundred dollars, Shaw says he 
paid Robinson on the boat going from Gagetown to 
Chipman, which sum included the expenses of the survey, 
-ome seventy-five dollars. This was somewhere lietween 
the 20th and 25th of August. This evidence it is said 
is supported by that of Miss Quirk, who was Mr. Shaw’s 
-ecretary. She says that on this trip when she and two 
thcr ladies were present, there was a discussion lietween 

'haw and Robinson about this six mile area the effect 
if which was that “Robinson was to get this six mile 
irea and transfer it to Shaw and after the surveying was
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done and the report filed at the Crown Land Office, he 
was to be paid a certain amount and the licenses were 
to be transferred to Shaw." I cannot but think that 
Miss Quirk was giving evidence of matter of which she 
had no personal knowledge, for it seems very improbable 
that in scraps of conversation between these two men 
travelling on a steamer with their lady friends they should 
be discussing the terms of an arrangement lretween them 
which had been made and concluded some days before. 
She says she saw money paid by Shaw to Robinson on 
the boat but she could not say the amount. Miss Quirk, 
from her position, no doubt had become familiar with 
the dealings between Shaw and Robinson and in such 
cases it is by no means unusual for a witness unconsciously 
to mix up information derived in this way with facts 
within her personal knowledge and then give the 
impression made upon her mind as what really took place. 
When analysed I think Miss Quirk's evidence is of little 
importance except as to one point, that is as to the 
payment of money to Robinson, whatever may have 
been the amount or the object of it.

Coming now to the plaintiff's version of what took 
place at the Queen Hotel on the 12th of September when 
the assignment to the plaintiff Company was executed, 
and the one thousand dollars was paid. Besides Shaw 
and Robinson there were present Holland, who, although 
he had assigned his rights to Robinson, seems to have 
had as l>etween himself and Robinson a certain interest 
in them, and Fitzpatrick, the clerk of the hotel who 
witnessed the signature. Shaw cannot remember 
whether the assignment was executed in duplicate or not. 
but he says that after it had been signed he took up the 
paper or papers and put one thousand dollars on the 
table and said “ there is the payment for them," and I 
remember walking out to the door with Fitzpatrick and 
turning around Mr. Robinson or Mr. Holland had made 
a snowball out of the two bills and were throwing them
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at each other, were very much pleased and having a jollifi­
cation." Fitzpatrick did not see any money paid. He 
witnessed the signature and that is all he remembers of 
any importance. Holland is an attorney who has been 
practising at Fredericton for some years, and though 
he seems to have advised Robinson as to all these matters, 
he says it was only as a friend. He says that some two or 
three weeks after Andrews had been down to procure 
the assignment Shaw came to Fredericton and he and 
Robinson and Holland had a conversation which, so far 
as 1 can tell from the evidence, took place at Holland's 
office on the day the assignment was executed or shortly 
before. Holland’s evidence is as follows:—

“Q. Did you have any conversation in relation 
to this and if so tell us what it was, as near as you can 
the gist of it. A. They talked generally of the large 
area, relative to the sale of the matter. Mr. Shaw made 
the remark then that if this six and one-half miles were 
placed in the Canadian Coal Lands, Limited, he could 
immediately go to some persons in New York and dispose 
of it in a short period for a very large amount, between 
fifty thousand dollars and one hundred thousand dollars.

“Q. Did he mention any parties? A. He did 
mention Mr. Sherman, mentioned a man by the name 
of Wier 1 think.

"Q. That was in your office was it? A. In my 
office.

"Q. In September? A. Possibly August, August 
and September both. We talked about it all the time 
he was there and he was in there on more than one 
occasion. He didn’t leave until on in September.

“Q. Said if it was transferred to this Corporation 
lie had people to whom he could sell it for a large amount 
of money? A. I made the remark that being interested 
in the property at the time, Mr. Shaw where am I going 
to stand in this matter? I have bought out Mr. Benson’s

Hill).

Shaw et al 

Robinson

Barker. C. J.



306

1910.____

Shaw et al 

Robinson

Barker, C. J.

NEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY REPORTS. [VOL.

interest and Mr. Robinson has acquired Mr. Winslow's 
interest, shall we assign these interests jointly to the 
Company or shall I assign to Mr. Robinson? He 
suggested in order to clear up matters that I assign my 
interest to Mr. Robinson and Mr. Robinson place directly 
on lease in the Company's name and that he would go 
to Mr. Sherman and other gentlemen in New York and 
sell it for cash and Mr. Robinson was to receive fifty 
thousand dollars and Mr. Shaw the excess.

"Q. Over and above fifty thousand dollars? A. 
Yes 1 was to receive five thousand dollars....................

“Q. When did the conversation in reference to 
Mr. Shaw being able if the matter was placed in the hands 
of the Canadian Coal Lands, Limited, being able to sell 
it to these people for a large sum of money, when did 
that take place? A. Well this conversation took place 
in my office in the afternoon of the assignment of the 
interests,

"Q. What took place in the Queen Hotel? A. 
Mr. Shaw came there, the bell boy came up first — some­
one suggested they wanted to execute this assignment 
there from Mr. Robinson, this Coal Company to hold 
for Robinson. I was there as Mr. Robinson's, there 
interested in the property and also looking after my own 
interests.

“Q. Acting as Mr. Robinson’s attorney too? A. 
Well, in a friendly nature. But the bell boy came and 
someone suggested to let him witness, and 1 said No, 
get the clerk. Then the bell boy went and Fitzpatrick 
came up and witnessed, and 1 said to Mr. Shaw, 1 am 
interested in this matter, and 1 expect by the assign­
ment 1 should get at least five thousand dollars, and 
I said, Mr. Shaw, you are going to pay to-day one 
thousand dollars and I didn’t want to get my interest 
in this large area mixed in any way, and the payment 
of one thousand dollars is a loan to help out Mr. Robinson 
and carry out the whole matter; and 1 said, fourteen



IV.) NEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY REPORTS. 307

thousand dollars or fifteen thousand dollars, don’t pay 1910. 
the money at present, don't pay before the execution SM,”eT,L 
of this paper, and it is to be considered between the r'e"'a"n 
whole of us that this payment has nothing to do with barker, c.j. 
assigning the interest in this large area to the Canadian 
Coal Lands.

"Q. You said that? A. I did, and I put the 
nominal sum of one dollar in the assignment and there 
was no money paid over prior to the execution, I tried 
to keep it separate.

“Q. And Mr. Robinson executed this assignment 
to the Canadian Coal Lands, Limited? A. Yes, 
he did.

“Q Did you hear Mr. Shaw say you and Mr.
Robinson were using these five hundred dollar bills after 
you got them for snowballs. Is that correct? A. My 
recollection was that Shaw had them then.

"Q. Did you sec anyone throwing them? A. Yes,
I saw Mr Shaw throwing them over totvard the corner 
when Fitzpatrick was going out, but I didn't touch it.
I never had it in my hand.

"y. Did Mr. Robinson throw it on the floor? A.
Xo, Mr. Robinson didn't have any. They were not 
paid over until after the execution of the paper."

On his cross-examination Holland said that he was 
with Shaw in most cases when the matter was under 
discussion and lie never heard it intimated either by 
Shaw or Robinson that Shaw was buying out or paying 
expenses. Robinson’s evidence on the same point is 
as follows:—After speaking of the meeting of himself 
and Shaw at Holland's office he is asked this question:

“Q. What talk did you have in Mr. Holland’s 
office and who was there? A. Mr. Shaw, Holland and 
myself.
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‘‘Q. What talk did you have there? A. Rela­
tive to this matter? Well, Holland, Shaw and I talked 
the matter over.

“ti- Was it a question of assigning this transfer 
to the Canadian Coal Lands, Limited? A. I think 
that was brought up incidentally. That was Shaw's 
mission down, he assured me they wouldn’t touch the 
matter unless it was in what he called the hands of a 
holding company.

“0- Who wouldn't touch it? A. Mr. Shaw’s
friends.

“Q. Did Mr. Shaw make any representations as 
to what he would be able to do or was ready to do? A. 
Mr. Shaw assured me the matter would be closed up 
in a very short time.

“Q. How closed up? A. The matter would be 
taken out of the holding company and I would get my 
cash for it, not less than fifty thousand dollars, that was 
the amount stated.

“Q. What did he represent? What did Mr. Shaw 
say? Did he mention any names of any persons he had? 
A. Well, I think Mr. Sherman was the only name he 
mentioned.

"Q. Mr. Sherman of Boston? A. Yes.
"Q. What did he say about Mr. Sherman? A. 

That Sherman was willing and anxious to take the 
matter out of our hands as soon as we could get it into 
shape, that is as soon as it was handed over to this 
holding company.

“Q. And you were to receive fifty thousand dollars? 
A. To receive not less than fifty thousand dollars.

"Q. Was there any further conversation in Mr. 
Holland’s office that day? A. Yes, I referred to this 
matter of getting the money out of the other.

“Q. At this time there was money coming to you 
from the sale of your bonds in the Crawford Mine? 
A. Yes, and I thought he had lieen a long time clearing
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the matter up, and he suggested at first that he would, 
put one thousand dollars in to help me through with 
mv expenses in connection with the handling of the big 
area, that is until the matter was sold, and we talked 
the matter over and I said,—No, I didn’t want the two 
matters tangled at all, one would have to be settled up 
before the other was touched. He then said as he had 
brought the one thousand dollars down that he would 
leave it with me until he had sold such bonds as would 
reimburse him for the one thousand dollars.

“Q. Was that all the conversation then? A. No, 
he asked me if I would sign the transfer to the Cana­
dian Coal Lands, Limited, and after quite a lot of hesi­
tation I finally signed, with the understanding.

"Q. Was this in Holland's office? A. I said 
I would sign and it was then arranged I was to sign as 
he represented there had been no stock printed. I asked 
for the stock to hold as security and he said there had 
had been no stock or bonds printed. The stock I was 
to hold would lie the stock of the Canadian Coal 
Lands, Limited, that is the big area.

"Q. But there had been none printed? A. There 
had been none printed, therefore I couldn't hold it.

"Q. Then when did you meet again? A. It 
was either that afternoon or next day, I am not just 
sure as to that, I rather think it was the next day.

“Q. Where did you meet ? A. Just at Fredericton 
at the Queen Hotel.

"Q. Where did you meet? A. At Mr. Shaw's 
room at the Queen Hotel.

“Q. Who was there? A. Mr. Shaw, Mr. Holland 
and myself.

"Q. Will you tell us the conversation? A. Well, 
the conversation was general. There had I teen nothing 
-aid about the matter. It was understood I was to sign 
this thing over and I did so. Before I signed it Mr. 
Holland brought up the same question. Mr. Shaw,
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he says, this has nothing whatever to do with the six 
MiAvvKTal mj|e areai aIK] Shaw assured him nothing whatever.
KkÏ'Âl°’1 “Q. Mr. Shaw paid you one thousand dollars? 

Barker, C. J. A. He did.
"Q. Did you hear him say yesterday when he 

handed you this one thousand dollars that you and Mr. 
Holland seemed greatly elated and you rolled it up in 
a ball and threw it about as a snowball. A. I did.

“Q. Is it so? A. No, I handled a good deal of 
money every year but never got so familiar with it as 
to throw it about.

“Q. Did you throw it about? A. I did not.
‘‘Q. Did Mr. Shaw? A. He did. He threw it 

in a corner. There was quite a laugh over it.
"Q. Did you throw any money around? A. No.
“Q. Did Mr. Holland? A. No."

I have already made some reference to what seems 
to be well established by the evidence that in the 
earlier negotiations in reference to securing this six and 
one-half mile area, not only Shaw, but every one else 
interested had in view a joint venture. That this was 
so, so far as Shaw is concerned, is plain by the letter in 
evidence. In a letter from Shaw to Robinson dated 
April 27th, A. D. 1908, principally in reference to the 
Crawford Mine deal, there are the following passages 
as to the large area. “I am very much pleased at your 
success in getting hold of the other lots and shall be 
more so when you actually have it. Mr. Sherman is 
enthusiastic about it also, and thinks you must be a 
pretty keen sort of a business man in order to be able
to pull it through.................... While their methods
are not exactly yours and mine, I rather think when 
the deal is pulled through (evidently referring to the 
Crawford Mine) you will find that we have all learned 
something and we will then take our coat off and go into 
the bigger undertaking of handling the six and one-half
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mile area. I am going to fix it so you will be an officer 
in that Company and will stand in with the ‘‘push’’ 
to make not only one profit, but as the saying is, “to be 
in with the bunch" with anything that is going. The 
one lot which we have gotten for Sherman I think will 
be a big help to this end.”

In another letter from Shaw to Robinson dated 
May 14th, A. D. 1908, he wrote as follows:—"You 
probably are aware that I must have spent a good deal 
of money and a lot of my time for some weeks past on 
the matter of your mine and the six and one-half mile 
adjoining. As a matter of fact when I figure up how 
much I have spent in cash I am surprised at myself for 
going into the thing as far as I have without calling on 
you any further than I have done. I am not asking 
for anything now and do not want it, as I agreed that 
whatever expenses I went to I would wait until the 
thing had been brought to its conclusion. The fact is, 
I have created a fabric woven upon certain definite lines 
and to retract, revise or go back on same at this date 
is absolutely out of the question. You know that my 
purpose, while I am not doing it for my health but am 
doing for whatever I expect to make out of it, is to see 
a square deal given to you, I am therefore at a loss to 
understand why you have apparently allowed your 
friends to change your purpose and would say that it 
will lie absolutely necessary for you to follow out the 
original plan and secure direct leases from the Govern­
ment for the seven lots, comprising the six and one-half 
miL-s, and each individual to give me authority to dis- 
pose of the property in the best way possible. As to 
the exact price I cannot dicker on that until I have 
omething to dicker with. 1 am not going to let things 

out of my hands. It is sufficient for me to keep my 
agreement with you. You will get just as much and 
.our friends will get just as much for their lots as I 
will get for mine and that the property will not be dis-

1910. 
Shaw et al 

Robinson

Barker, C. J.



312 NEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY REPORTS. [VOL.

1910. 
Shaw et al 

Robinson

Barker, C. J.

posed of except at the best figure. The fact that Mr. 
Sherman and I are to have a full mile each in that 
arrangement should lie sufficient guarantee to you and 
the others there that they would get the last dollar 
obtainable. . . . The Government lease for twenty 
years is renewable for three periods more, making eighty 
years, no time lapses, whereas the sub-leases has already 
been running some time. The question of title would 
immediately arise on the sub-lease, whereas a direct 
grant from the Government could not be overthrown. 
The large amount of money and considerable time I 
have spent in working this matter up has been done with 
the object in view that you would not only get a good 
profit on your own mile that you have developed, but 
that you would obtain a large profit, that I would do 
likewise, and that your friends would all participate 
equally in the transfer of the different lots into the 
hands of the people I have interested, and further than 
this that I had so arranged and laid plans before them 
that we would all participate later in and with them in 
the large profits and other undertakings which would 
unquestionably follow. I cannot make myself any 
clearer to you and it is up to you to do your part and 
forward the papers to me as soon as possible."

These letters show clearly that the scheme for the 
acquisition of this large area was originated by Robinson 
and proposed to Shaw and that it was intended for their 
joint benefit. When Winslow, Benson and Holland 
got rights under their applications they had to be got 
rid of or remain in as a shareholder in the venture. It 
was a speculation, not for the development of the mine 
but for the sale of the mining rights. Shaw was to 
manipulate the sale and for that purpose he stipulated 
for the control. It is also clear from these letters as well 
as the other evidence that the question of the sub-lease 
had no importance whatever as to the object and inten­
tion of the parties. As a title it was objected to as
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unsatisfactory and the Government leases were there- 1911). 
(ore insisted upon in its place. There does not seem Sl,,wr,T,L 
to be anything to suggest a reason why Robinson should 
have accepted the offer which Shaw says he made or that Bmnx.l. 
Shaw should have thought of making any such offer.
I therefore find as a fact that when Robinson made the 
assignment to the plaintiff Company at Shaw’s request, 
it was for the sole purpose of enabling Shaw to sell the 
mining rights for the joint benefit of himself and Robin­
son in the way I have mentioned and that the assign­
ment was not made in completion of a sale as the plain­
tiffs claim. In this connection it is right to point out 
that the plaintiff company seems not to have been an 
active organization, it had only five members, each 
holding one share. It was what the plaintiff called a 
"holding company," and on the 4th of January, 1910, 
after this dispute had arisen it assigned its interest in 
these areas to Mr. Shaw.

In arriving at the conclusion I have just announced 
1 have not overlooked an argument that was addressed 
to me on the part of the plaintiff. It was said that this 
case must be dealt with as though the bill had been filed 
by Robinson against Shaw for a declaration of his rights 
in the property, in which case it was said, as the assign­
ment is absolute on its face, he must in order to succeed, 
show by clear and cogent evidence that it was in reality 
subject to certain trusts in his favor. I had occasion 
to consider that question in McLeod v. Weldon (1) and 
in Beaton v. Wilbur (2). This case stands in a different 
liosition. It relates solely to the rights of two competing 
licensees of the Crown of these mining areas. The 
Crown is in no way a party to this suit or in any way 
!«>und by any decree which may be made, and it is by 
no means clear that if the plaintiff had a decree in the 
terms asked for in the bill, he would obtain any practical 
r useful result. As the case stands the Surveyor General 

(1) 1 N. B. Eq. 181. (2) 8 N. B. Eq. 30U.
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has issued two sets of licenses for the same areas. What 
position he may assume in view of the order cancelling 
the first issue having been set aside, I cannot say. I 
should myself have thought that if the plaintiff could 
succeed at all, it would be by virtue of an equity he 
would have to compel Robinson to assign the latter licenses 
to him, Robinson, having, as the plaintiff says, agreed 
to sell and convey to him the first licenses and having 
in execution of that agreement actually assigned the 
licenses, or at all events his right to get them, and the 
Surveyor General having on Robinson's application 
revoked the licenses and issued the others to him direct, 
one would think, as the revocation was in fact made 
though without authority, Robinson would hold the new 
leases as a trustee for Shaw they being at all events so 
far as Robinson is concerned the undoubted titles to the 
areas, which Shaw had bought from Robinson and paid 
for. He would seem to stand in much the same position 
as a vendor who sells and is paid for a piece of land to 
which he has no title, does when he afterward acquires 
the title. See the Continental Trusts Company v. Mineral 
Products Company (I). If that view is correct the plaintiff's 
bill would Ik: in effect for the specific performance of a 
contract, in which case it is doubtful if the rule to which 
reference has licen made would apply. This point was 
not commented upon by the counsel and I only allude 
to it incidentally as showing a possible answer to the 
argument put forward.

There are, however, other considerations in a case 
like this which are important in determining the question 
of fact. It is said to be necessary in putting schemes 
like this on the market, that the promoter should have 
unquestioned authority not only to enter into a contract 
for the sale but also to carry it out, without further 
reference to any one. This was the reason for Shaw’s 
stipulation in these negotiations that he should as he 

(1) 3 N. B. F.q. 28 Affirmed on appeal 37 N. B. 140, 37 S. C. R. 517.
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terms it “handle” the property as he wished. There 
can be no better authority to sell than that which arises 
from the ownership of the property to lie sold; and one 
can see that in transactions like this it is not altogether 
an unlikely thing to do to make an assignment which 
does not in reality disclose the true consideration. Out of 
all the assignments and other documents in evidence 
but two or three of them disclose the true consideration 
on their face. It is therefore not to be wondered at if 
the assignment in question from Robinson to the Coal 
Lands Company, which is absolute on its face, should lie 
-ubject to some trust inconsistent with the absolute and 
beneficial ownership which it seems to confer. There is in 
this case no dispute as to the fact that though the 
assignment to the Company is absolute on its face, it was 
not intended either by Shaw or Robinson, to give to the 
Company the absolute and beneficial ownership of the 
property. That question is not in dispute here, the 
dispute does not arise over that point. Shaw says 
though the assignment is absolute, the Company held it 
in trust for me. And Robinson says though the 
assignment is absolute on its face the Company held it in 
trust for me. The question of fact to be determined is 
whether it was held in trust for Shaw or Robinson, it 
living admitted that it was held for one or the other.

The form of the assignment is therefore unimportant 
and has no licaring upon the question in dispute. But 
if it had I should still be of the opinion that the facts and 
circumstances do not support the plaintiff's contentions.

The bill must be dismissed with costs.

1910.

Shaw et al 

Robinson

Barker, C. J.



316 NEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY REPORTS, [VOL

1910.
September 20.

JONES, EXECUTOR OF CATHERINE MURDOCH, 

V.

SAINT STEPHEN’S CHURCH et al.

Construction of Will—Legacy—Charitable Intention.

Catherine Murdoch died October 26th, 1909, leaving a will dated 
November 27th, 1905.

The following legacy is found in the will:—“I give and bequeath the 
sum of one thousand dollars to be paid by my said executor to 
the Aged and Infirm Ministers’ Fund in connection with Saint 
Stephen's Presbyterian Church in the City of Saint John.”

The defendant, the Board of Trustees of the Presbyterian Church in 
Canada, Eastern Section, is a corporation created for the purpose 
of taking in trust any property which may l>e conveyed or 
bequeathed or intended for the use of the said Church or any 
scheme or trust, not incorporated, in connection therewith.

The Presbyterian Church in Canada maintains a fund which is not 
incorporated, known as the Aged and Infirm Ministers’ Fund, 
in connection with the Presbyterian Church in Canada, and in 
this fund the ministers of Saint Stephen’s Church are entitled 
to participate. There is no separate fund in connection with 
Saint Stephen’s Church.

Held, that the bequest does not fail for uncertainty, as the intention 
of the testator is easily ascertained; and that it should be paid 
to the defendant, the Board of Trustees of the Presbyterian Church 
in Canada, Eastern Section, for the Aged and Infirm Ministers' 
Fund in connection with the Presbyterian Church in Canada.

Bill filed for the construction of the will and for a 
declaration of the parties’ rights.

The testatrix, Catherine Murdoch, died on the 
26th of October, 1909, having made a will bearing date 
November 27th, 1905, which was duly proved, and letters 
testamentary of which were duly granted to Mr. Jones, 
the executor named in it. The legacies, with the excep­
tion of the one involved in this suit, have all been paid, 
and it appears that after payment of all the legacies,
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testamentary and all other expenses and debts, there 19>0- 
will be a substantial residuary estate which the testatrix bi«u“ <* 
disposed of as follows:—“I give, devise and bequeath Murdoch, 

all the rest and residue of my estate, real and personal, si. sirphen'r
ClIURUH

unto the Trustees of Saint Stephen’s Presbyterian 
Church in the City of Saint John, and the Saint John 
Natural History Society, to be divided between them 
share and share alike.” These legacies were all to be 
paid free of succession duty, and in case of the death, 
during the lifetime of the testatrix, of any person named 
as a legatee, the legacy was not to lapse, but it was to 
be paid to the next of kin of the person so dying. All 
of these legacies, with the exception of four, are given 
to individual legatees. These four are as follows :—"I 
give and bequea' unto Pioneer Lodge of Odd Fellows 
in the said City of St. John the sum of $500.00 to be 
used and applied for the benefit of widows and orphans 
of members of that lodge.” A legacy in similar terms 
of $500.00 to the Trustees of St. Andrew's Society of 
Saint John to be used for charitable puproses. A legacy 
of $1,000.00 to the New Brunswick Society for the 
Prevention of Cruelty to Animals. And the legacy 
over which this controversy has arisen, which is given 
as follows:—“I give and bequeath the sum of one 
thousand dollars to be paid by my said executor to the 
Aged and Infirm Ministers’ Fund in connection with 
Saint Stephen's Presbyterian Church in the City of 
Saint John.” This legacy is claimed by the defendants,
” Saint Stephen's Church in the City of Saint John,” 
the corporate name of that Church as fixed by 61 Vic.
Cap. 74 (1898). It is also claimed by the defendants,
“The Board of Trustees of the Presbyterian Church 

in Canada, Eastern Section," a corporation created by 
7 Ed. VII., Cap. 79 (1907). These two defendants also 
claim that if neither of them is able, by reason of the 
uncertainty of the demise, to establish a right to be paid 
the legacy, it is a charitable bequest which would not
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__ *212:__be allowed to fail for want of a trustee and that it would
Exrcutorof be administered by this Court for the benefit of the fund 

Murdoch, mentioned. The defendants, “The Natural History 
S,'cmurch"'s Society of New Brunswick," a corporation created by 

nu- 4(i Vic., Cap. 29 (1883), claim not only that the other 
defendants are not entitled and that the bequest is not 
a charitable gift, but that it is void for uncertainty 
and becomes a part of the residuary estate which, in 
that case, both the defendants, the Natural History 
Society and the Saint Stephen's Church, claim as resid­
uary legatees notwithstanding the difference I «’tween 
their corporate names and their names as designated in 
the residuary devise. This bill has been filed for a 
declaration of the parties' rights.

IP. A. Ewing, K. C., for the plaintiff.

IV. B. Wallace. K. C., and Macrae, Sinclair 6* 
Macrae, for the defendant Saint Stephen's Church.

M. G. Teed, K. C., and Homer D. Forbes for the 
defendant the Board of Trustees of the Presbyterian 
Church in Canada, Eastern Section.

J. Roy Campbell for the defendant the Natural 
History Society of New Brunswick.

Argument was heard August 10, 1910.

IP. A. Ewing, K. C., for the plaintiffThere was 
a charitable intention. This legacy comes in the will 
between two other charitable bequests, and a gift of 
that nature will not lapse for uncertainty. In re While 
v. While, (1) A gift to effect a charitable purpose is 
good. If you show an intent the Court will carry it 
out. In re Mann, Hardy v. Attorney-General, (2); In

(1) 1893 2 Ch. D. 41 (at p.53.) (2) 1903, 1 Ch. D. 232.
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re Davis, Ilannen v. Hillyer, (1); In re laguire (2); In 1910. 
the Matter of the Clergy Society. (3); In re Douglas, Executor of 
Obert v. Barrow, (4). Having established the fact of Cithmumoch. 
the charitable intention the gift does not lapse, and if si. stî'rais'x 
there is no one to take, the Court will administer it aru. 
c y-pres.

M. G. Teed, K. C., for the defendant, The Board of 
Trustees of the Presbyterian Church in Canada, Eastern 
Section :—Refers to the authorities cited by Mr. Ewing 
and also Dobie v. The Temporalities Board (5); Attorney- 
General v. Comber (6); and Power v. Attorney-General.
(7). There is much legislation:—Acts of Assembly 
(N. B.) 38 Viet. (1875), Cap. 99, 7 Ed. VII. (1907)
Cap. 79, and other Acts. Under the words of the 
Statute we are the persons entitled to the bequest, not 
the Trustees of Saint Stephen’s Church. If the New 
Brunswick statute had not been passed the bequest would 
have gone to the Presbyterian Church in Canada and 
not to Saint Stephen’s Church. The statute of 1907 
is to cover just such cases as this.

IV. B. Wallace, K. C., for the defendant Saint 
Stephen’s Church :— The defendant, the Board of 
Trustees, was organized in connection with the Eastern 
Section of the Church only. The Aged and Infirm 
Ministers’ Fund is controlled by the main Church. If 
it is paid to the Board the bequest would not get to 
the proper place where the donor intended it to go.
Saint Stephen’s Church is just as competent to hand 
over the bequest as the Board of Trustees. They arc 
incorporated. They are residuary legatees. The tes­
tatrix might want Saint Stephen's Church to have so 
much, money given through them. The Trustees of 
Saint Stephen's Church are capable of giving receipts

(1) 1802, 1 Ch. D. 876 (at p. 882). (5) 7 A. C. 130.
(2) L. R. 9 Eq. 632. (6) 2 Sim & Stuart 93.
(3) 2K&J 615. (7) 1 Ball & B. 145.
(4) 35 Ch. D. 472.
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Executor of question is, is it payable to them?) As we have evidence 

C,™mv«doch. that the testatrix had been contributing to that fund 
St. Stephen's through Saint Stephen’s Church, then her intentions 

et *l. was that this money should go in the same way. (The 
Court:—She had been accustomed to pay into the plate, 
but the executor in this case must find some one who 
can give him a legal discharge. Saint Stephen’s Church 
Trustees can not give a discharge because the money 
is not given to them. It is not given specifically. 
There is no such fund in connection with the Church. 
It is a collection. It is not a fund in connection with 
the Church any more than there is a fund for the pay­
ment of the minister's salary.) I contend there is a 
fund, and it is to be paid to that fund if there is anyone 
to give a discharge. The question also arises if it comes 
under the heading of charity. It is doubtful if it does. 
(The Court:—Does it not then follow that if Saint 
Stephen's Church cannot give a discharge, it fails?) No, 
but the question is as to where it will go. It would not 
fail, but would go cy-pres. It will be for the Court to 
say whether it goes to the Trustees of Saint Stephen’s 
Church or to the Presbyterian Church in Canada. 
Cites:—Attorney-General v. Comber (supra) ; Powell v. 
Attorney-General (1); Mayor of Lyons v. Advocate Gen­
eral of Bengal (2); In re Rymer, Rymer v. Stanfield (3).

J. Roy Campbell for the defendant the Natural 
History Society of New Brunswick:—We are willing 
that the money should be paid to the person that can 
give a satisfactory receipt. The bequest may be void 
for uncertainty, but we do not claim that it is. If it is 
void we would get one-half as one of the residuary 
legatees. It is not a charitable bequest. Cites :— 
Pemsel's Case (4): Cunnack v. Edwards (5); Thomas
(1) 3 Mcr. 48 (4) 1891 A. C. 531 (at p. 583.)
(2) L. R. 1 A. C. 91 (at p. 112). (5) L. R. 1896 2 Ch. D. 679.
(3) 1895 1 Ch. D. 19.
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v. Howell (1); Baker v. Sutton (2) Townsend, v. Carus (3); 1910.
Grimond v. Grimond (4). Executor of 

Catherine 
Murdoch'

Wallace:—In reference to costs. Costs should not st. Stephens 

come out of the bequest, but out of the residuary estate. eial. 

Costs out of the estate as between attorney and client, bake», c.j.
Mills v. Farmer (5). Blunder of testatrix is the ground.
In re White, White v. White (supra).

Ewinz:—In any event solicitor for the executor 
should have costs as between solicitor and client. In re 
Mann, Hardy v. Attorney-General (supra).

Campbell:—The costs should come out of the bequest, 
not out of the residuary estate.

1910. September 20. Barker, C. J.:

(His Honor recited the facts of the case as stated 
above and proceeded as follows.)

The evidence shews there is not now and there never 
has been any Aged and Infirm Ministers Fund in 
connection with St. Stephen's Presbyterian Church in 
the sense of a fund for the benefit of the ministers of that 
Church or of a fund of that character administered by 
that Church or under its control. There has, however, 
lieen a fund connected with the Presbyterian Church in 
Canada known as the Aged and Infirm Ministers Fund 
in which all the ministers of that Church, including the 
Ministers of St. Stephen's Church, have a right to 
participate, subject to the rules and regulations made 
for its management. There are various branches of 
Church work organized and maintained by these various 
Presbyterian Churches and among them is the mainten-

(1) L. R. 18 Eq. 198. (4) 1905 A. C. 124.
(2) 1 Keen 224. (5) 1 Mer. 55 (at p. 104.
(3) 3 Hare 257.
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__ 191°-__ancc of this fund for aged and infirm ministers. Collections
Exmoor of in the various congregations are taken up during the 

Murdoch. year and each contributor may, if he wishes, designate 
S,'chu»“hNS t*le particular scheme of work to which he wishes his 

*T*1- offering to be devoted. Once a year these contributions 
Barker, c. J. for general purposes are divided by the officers of the 

particular congregation and allotted to the several funds,— 
so much for missions, so much for the Aged and Infirm 
Ministers Fund, and so on, always regarding any special 
purpose indicated by contributors. These funds arc 
then remitted according to the present practice, as I 
understand it, to an official of the Church at Halifax 
who accounts for it and remits it to the proper officer 
of the Presbyterian Church in Canada whose office is 
at Toronto, where they are carried to the credit of the 
several funds as the yearly contribution of the particular 
congregation. These funds are managed and administered 
by committees appointed lor the purpose by the Presby­
terian Church of Canada. The precise details as to the 
transmission of the money may have varied from time 
to time in some immaterial particulars but whether they 
did or not is unimportant because (using St. Stephen's 
Church by way of illustration) whatever amount was 
allotted by the officers of that Church as a contribution 
to the Aged and Infirm Ministers Fund came into the 
hands of the proper official at Toronto and became a 
part of the general fund to be managed and used 
according to the rules and regulations provided in 
reference to it. The fund is maintained by interest 
from invested funds, private contributions and the 
congregational offerings I have mentioned. For the 
purposes of administration and making a distribution 
of the fund equitable in view of the different conditions 
prevailing in the western part of Canada from those to 
be found in the East there seems to have been at one 
time what was called an Eastern and a Western Section 
of the Church. There was, however, but the one fund,
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and since 1904 there has not been any division even 
nominally. By the rules and regulations by which this 
fund is governed the minister of St. Stephen’s Church 
was entitled to participate, provided he himself 
contributed to the fund an annual fee of eight dollars. 
And under the regulations the Rev. Dr. Macrae did 
receive, for some time previous to his death, four hundred 
dollars a year. Stated generally every Presbyterian 
minister in Canada has a right, on complying with the 
conditions and requirements laid down by the Church 
as to age, contributions and service, to receive an 
allowance which comes to him from the Toronto office. 
Mr. Willett, who is fully conversant with its object and 
the details of its working by an experience covering a 
long number of years, aptly describes it. He says, “It 
is a superannuation fund, an insurance fund on super­
annuation principles and they (i. e., the ministers) 
contribute among themselves and the congregations and 
well-disposed people help the funds as well. It is purely 
for the purpose of aged and infirm ministers on an 
insurance basis complying with the rules of the Church." 
The scheme serves the same purpose for the Ministers 
of the Presbyterian Church that the Civi1 Service Super­
annuation Act does for the civil service officials and the 
-imilar organizations maintained in connexion with the 
larger banking institutions of the present day do for their 
officers and clerks. Whether this legacy could under 
these circumstances be regarded as a charitable bequest 
even under the legal definition of that term I shall not 
-top to consider for I think the case may be disposed of 
on another ground.

The evidence shews that the testatrix was a memlier 
of the congregation of St. Stephen's Church and alwa> t 
a regular and generous contributor to all these schemes 
of Church work, not forgetting them even when abroad 
but sending her gifts when absent from home. That 
bhc, in fact, intended this particular fund to benefit by
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— ' ---- the legacy there cannot I think be any doubt. Has she
Executor of expressed that intention with sufficient clearness to giveCatherine e e e ®

Murdoch, it effect? For there is ample authority for holding that 
St'ch'Ich’< * a devise will not fail for uncertainty if the Court can 

"■*' ‘1th' arrive at a reasonable degree of certainty as to the person 
Barker, c. j. ;ntencigcl to be benefited. Adams v. Jones (1); Tyrrell 

v. Senior (2). When you find that the fund referred 
to is a fund for the Aged and Infirm Ministers Fund in 
connection with St. Stephen's Presbyterian Church in 
the City of St. John, and that the fund in question is 
the only fund of the kind with which St. Stephen’s 
Church has any connection, and that the connection 
is of the substantial character I have described, and the 
same as that of all the Presbyterian Churches in Canada, 
there is no difficulty in fixing on this fund as the one 
intended to be benefited by the testatrix. The fact that 
she had contributed generously and regularly to its 
support during her lifetime is not necessary for the 
conclusion as to her intention, though it supports it. To 
whom is the legacy to be paid? There is no legatee 
named as in the case of the other legacies. “I give and 
bequeath the sum of $1,000 to be paid by my said executor 
to the Aged and Infirm Ministers Fund, etc.” The 
language is very similar to that in Lockhart v. Ray (3) 
which was as follows, “I bequeath to the worn out 
Preachers and Widows Fund in connection with the 
Wesleyan Conferences here the sum of £1250, to be paid 
out of the moneys due me by Robert Chestnut of 
Fredericton." No question was made as to the payment 
being made to the corporate body having and controlling 
that fund (see same case on appeal G S. C. R. at page 
322). It cannot be said in the present case that the 
testatrix intended to give this fund to the St. Stephen’s 
Church. She has rather shown an intention not to do 
so, because in disposing of the residuary estate she

(2) 20 Cnt. Ap. 156.
(3) 20 N. B. R. 129.

(1) 9 Hare 485.



IV.) NEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY REPORTS. 325

expressly gives one-half to that Church, by what I assume 191Q- 
she supposed to be its corporate name and no doubt will Editor of 
be accepted as such. The only object the testatrix had CAIIMuiaoai. 
in using the words “in connection with St. Stephen's si. Stephen s

Church
Church, etc." was thereby to identify the particular et^al.
Ministers' Fund which she wished to benefit. It is bakker. c. j. 
equally true that the testatrix did not in terms specify 
any individual or society or corporation as legatee, and 
we are left therefore to ascertain what corporate body 
represents the fund and can take it so that it may reach 
its destination. I think the defendants, “The Board 
of Trustees of the Presbyterian Church in Canada,
Eastern Section," sufficiently represent the fund and 
that payment may be made to them. That body was 
incorporated in 1907 by an Act of the Provincial 
Legislature, 7 Edward VII, Cap. 79. Section 2, 
provides as follows: — "All gifts, devises, convey­
ances or transfers of any lands or tenements or 
interests therein and all assignments, gifts, and bequests 
of |>ersonal estate in this Province, which have been or 
shall hereafter be made to or intended for the Presbyterian 
Church in Canada Eastern Section, or any of the trusts 
in connection with the said Church, and any of the 
religious or charitable schemes of the said Church by 
the name thereof, except any trusts, schemes or institutions 
connected with the said Church which are now or may 
hereafter be incorporated, shall vest in the said board 
of trustees as fully and effectually as if the assignment, 
gift, devise, bequeu, conveyance or transfer had been 
made to it and shall be held by the said board of trustees 
for the benefit of the said Church of the particular scheme 
of the said Church or of any of the said trusts in 
connection therewith to or for which the said real estate 
has been or may lie bought, given, devised or bequeathed.”
The part of Canada comprising what the Presbyterian 
Church in Canada called the "Eastern Section" included 
the three Maritime Provinces and Newfoundland, so
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that St. Stephen's Chi . in St. John was one of the 
churches. And there can be no doubt that this bequest 
was intended for one of the religious or charitable schemes 
of that Church and as the fund was not incorporated, 
it by virtue of this section vests in this corporation for 
the benefit of the scheme mentioned. Section 3 makes 
provision for the appropriation and application of the 
money, and section 12 authorizes this Board of Trustees 
under the corporate seal to give a discharge on payment.

The evidence does not make it very clear whether the 
distinction between the Eastern and Western sections 
is still kept up or whether it existed or not at the time 
the will was made. This seems to me to be unimportant. 
The fund was the same, whether for the convenient manage­
ment or application of it there were two divisions or 
sections or one. In either case it was the Aged and 
Infirm Ministers Fund in connection with St. Stephen's 
Church in the City of St. John. The liequest should, 
I think, be paid to the defendants, "The Board of 
Trustees of the Presbyterian Church in Canada Eastern 
Section," for the Aged and Infirm Ministers Fund.

Costs out of the residuary estate. Plaintiff's costs 
to be taxed as between solicitor and client.



IV.] NEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY REPORTS. 327

l’UGSLEY v. THE NEW BRUNSWICK COAL AND 
RAILWAY COMPANY, et al.

Pill filed by Director for an Accounting—Demurrer—Rights of Parlies.

\ director of a company cannot file a bill for an accounting against 
the company end iii-. co-dirvctont, unless special circumstances 
are shown.

The report of a Royal Commission, whose duties were inquisitorial 
and not judicial, finding that a sum of money received by the 
directors Is unaccounted (or; and the fad thaï the complaining 
director was the Attorney*(iencral of the Province, and as such 
an ex officio director of the company by the Act of Incorporation, 
are not such special circumstances as would support a bill for 
such an accounting.

Bill filed by a director against the company and his 
m-directors for an accounting. This is a demurrer to the 
bill by one of the defendants, a co -director with the plaintiff 
in the company, for want of equity. The facts fully appear 
in the judgment of the Court.

Argument was heard July 27, 1910.

M. G. Teed, K. C., on liehalf of one of the defendants in 
support of the demurrer:—

The plaintiff has no right or title in him to maintain the 
bill. 1 Daniells Practice in Chancery 4th Ed. (Am.) 314. 
If any interest is shown here it would be in the company, and 
if action be brought it should lie brought by the company. 
Storey’s Equity Pleading, Sec. 261 ; Foss v. Harbottle, 
(1); Mozley v. Alston, (2); Cooper v. The Shropshire Union 
Railway and Canal Company, (3); Patrick v. The Empire 
Coal and Tramway Company, Limited, (4); and Harris v. 
Sumner, (5). If there are any reasons why the company

(1) 2 Hare 461.
W i i'lumps /«o. ». t. K. 571.

(6) 4 N. B. E. R. 58.
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should not file the bill, then the bill should show it. The bill 
alleges that the directors have performed their duties, and 
that the moneys received were used for the legitimate 
purposes of the company. The situation then is, that the 
plaintiff, having no interest, brings this suit against persons 
whom he says have fully accounted.

W. B. Wallace, K. C., for the plaintiff, contra:—
By Chapter 12, 1 Edward VII., (1901), all matters in 

connection with this company were put under the 
supervision of the Lieutenant-Governor in Council. The 
Provincial Secretary and the Attorney-General were made 
directors of the company, ex officio, to look after the interest 
of the Government in regard to the moneys advanced, and 
so the plaintiff, who was then Attorney-General of the 
Province, had an interest, and as he stood in a fiduciary 
capacity in reference to this property, which was afterwards 
transferred back to the Government, he is now entitled to 
an accounting for the time he was in office. His remedy 
lies in equity. Attorney-General v. Mayor of Dublin, (1);. 
The deficit report by the Commissioners is a charge against 
the directors. Executors and administrators, and so also 
directors, can lx: sued in this Court. The directors would 
be responsible to the plaintiff who was in a fiduciary capacity 
in charge of the company's money. (The Court:— It 
is the Government’s money. The plaintiff was put there 
to represent the Government, but he was a director, and 
has no different liability, as between him and the company, 
than any other director. If he had a duty to the Province 
to perform, then the matter should be settled between him 
and the Province, and if necessary the Province should be 
made a party.) But a charge has lxx:n made against 
the plaintiff, and further, irrespective of liability, 
this is a matter of very intricate accounts, and there 
is no other way besides this to reach the parties 
who kept them. (The Court: — There is nothing due 

(1) 1 B!igh,N.S.312.
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between these parties and the company is not 
asking anything. The true way in which to view the 
situation is to eliminate the commission altogether. It was 
appointed by the Government to find out what became of 
the money, but the report is not binding on the directors.) 
It being a public document they have a right to come into 
this Court. (The Court:—But what would they come for, 
the moneys have been spent. If I do find the report 
erroneous I cannot set it aside. If I find nothing due the 
plaintiff, and something due other parties, I could not even 
then do anything but dismiss the bill. The bill states that 
everything has been done, so there is nothing to account for.) 
Under the peculiar circumstances of the difficult accounts 
we have a right to come into this Court. (The Court:— 
But all accounts are more or less intricate. You must 
eliminate the commission and argue the case on that basis. 
If the Government chooses to take proceedings the plaintiff 
c an show the report is wrong. If they do not take proceed­
ings the fact that the planitiff would lie under some stigma, 
would relate to the moral side of it, while I am dealing 
solely with the money side of it.) The report shows that 
bonds were issued which were not. That makes a difference 
in the interest. That makes a complication in the accounts. 
By this suit the plaintiff can show what the proper balance 
is. (The Court:—An account is not complicated because 
an item is omitted.) The whole point turns on the question 
as to whether there is any interest in the plaintiff. The 
interest is that he stands in a fiduciary capacity. (The 
Court:—So does every director. It is the fact that a trust 
exists that makes the fiduciary character.) As between 
themselves they are agents. (The Court:—But only to 
ihc company. The trust is to the company.) The Statute 
puts the plaintiff in a different capacity. He represented 
the Government. (The Court:— But the Government is 
not complaining.)
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A. O. Earle, K. C„ for the plaintiff, contra:—
The plaintiff has no remedy at law. He must have 

one somewhere and so it is here. His duty is fiduciary. He 
ceases to act. It is then found that he and his co-directors 
have l>een derelict in their duty. The company takes no 
steps, the Government takes none, so to clear himself of the 
charges that hang over him he must seek his relief here. 
(The Court:—Suppose that these charges were made in a 
newspaper ?) It is a question of degree. The report is 
binding on the directors because it is a public document. In 
Sturla v. Freccia, (1) a report seems to have been evidence. 
The effect of taking an account now is the perpetuation of 
testimony, and if no account is taken, then there would 1m> 
an estoppel. Foss v. Harbottle (supra) does not apply. 
The Government has no pecuniary interest. The grant 
went from it and it could not file a bill to get anything back. 
The company cannot take proceedings because it is insolvent 
and its franchise is gone. So the director must himself file 
a bill if he wants relief. It is because of the necessity of 
the case.

Teed, K. C., in reply:—
Sturla v. Freccia fsupra) has no bearing.

1910. September 20. Barker, C. J.:—

This is a demurrer to the plaintiff's bill by the 
defendant Bruce for want of equity. The facts, so far 
as they are material to the present hearing are these. 
By an Act of the Provincial Legislature passed in 1901 
(1 Edward VII., Chap. 12, Sec. 1) the Lieutenant- 
Governor in Council was authorized to guarantee the 
bonds or debentures to the amount of $200,000 of any 
company authorized to construct a line of railway from 
the terminus of the Central Railway at Chipman in
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Queens County, to Gibson in York County, with interest 
at the rate of three per cent. By the same Act it was 
provided that the Provincial Secretary and Attorney 
General of the Province should be ex officio mcmliers 
of the Board of Directors of the said Company and have 
the same powers and privileges as any other member 
of the Board. The principal object of this enactment, 
as it appears by the preamble, was the development 
of large and valuable coal deposits in the Counties of 
Queens and Sunbury, from which it was supposed the 
Province would derive substantial returns in the way 
of royalty and otherwise. The Act contains various 
provisions designed to secure the money for which the 
Province was to become responsible. The specifica­
tions for the railway were subject to the approval of 
the Governor in Council (sec. 3.) The Province was 
not to be under any liability until after the railway had 
lieen completed and in running order, properly equipped 
with sufficient rolling stock so as to pass the inspection 
of an official to be appointed by the government for that 
purpose. The Company was required (sec. 0) to keep 
such books and accounts as the Government might 
from time to time require, and these books and accounts 
were at all times to be open to the inspection of the 
Government or such persons as they might appoint 
for that purpose. In addition to this the Company’s 
books and accounts were to lie audited every half year 
by an expert accountant appointed for that purpose 
by the Governor in Council. Section 7 also provided 
that the company should produce and file semi-annually 
with the Provincial Secretary a statement of the com­
pany’s business, with the net profits for the preceding 
half-year and that this statement should lie verified 
under oath by the president or secretary of the company. 
It was also provided that the road bed, rolling stock 
and plant of the Company, and its tolls and earnings,
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should be conveyed to trustees by way of mortgage to 
secure the principal and interest of the bonds. The 
defendant, "The New Brunswick Coal and Railway 
Company,” was incorporated by an Act of the Legis­
lature of New Brunswick passed in the same year (1901, 
Chap. 77) and by sec. 5 it was authorized to carry on 
a mining, milling and manufacturing business, with 
very general and extreme |towers, including the power 
of building and maintaining a railway between Chipman 
and Gibson. The head office was to be at Fredericton; 
the capital stock was fixed at $100,000, divided into 
shares of $100 each. The company was also authorized 
to issue bonds for $250,000, to be secured by a mortgage 
on its stock and plant; and in case it acquired any 
other railway it could, with the permission of the 
Government, issue additional bonds to such an amount 
as the Lieutenant - Governor in Council might allow, not, 
however, to exceed the amount which the acquired rail­
way had power to issue. The Coal Company soon after 
its organization entered into contract with the govern­
ment for the construction of the road from Chipman 
to Gibson, and they also secured from the Central Rail­
way Company an option to purchase its railway and 
stock for $180,000. In order to carry out that option 
an Act of the Legislature was passed by virtue of which 
the purchase of the Central Railway by the Coal Com­
pany was ratified. Some change was made as to the 
issue of the lionds, but eventually the government did 
guarantee the bonds of the Coal Company in all to the 
sum of $450,000 to provide the money for the construc­
tion of the road from Chipman to Gibson—for the pur­
chase of the Central Railway and for some extra 
improvements on that road. In addition to this the 
government also advanced the Company large sums 
of money by way of subsidies and loans to meet current 
expenses.

In 1905 another Act of the Legislature (5 Ed. VIL,
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Chap. 16) was passed by which, for various reasons 
specifically set forth in the preamble, the government 
was authorized to take over the Coal Company's line 
and property and manage it by means of a commission 
of two members to be appointed by the government. 
And in order to provide the money necessary to pay 
outstanding liabilities, to purchase rolling stock and 
make necessary improvements, the commissioners were 
authorized to make and issue four per cent, bonds, 
amounting in all to the further sum of $250,000, also to 
lie guaranteed by the Province. The commissioners 
were required to submit annually to the Legislature a 
report of their receipts and expenditures. Under this 
Act the Railway was taken over by the government 
and bonds to the extent of $250,000 were issued and 
their payment guaranteed by the Province. The plain­
tiff, when all these Acts were passed and during the con­
struction of the road by the Coal Company down to 
1907, was Attorney-General of the Province and as such 
an ex officio Director of the Company.

In 1908 an Act of the Legislature (8 Ed. VII., 
Chap. 19) was passed authorizing the Lieutenant- 
Governor to cause a commission to issue to three per­
sons to hold an investigation or enquiry into certain 
matters connected with the Central Railway Company 
and the New Brunswick Coal and Railway Company, 
and in pursuance of that authority Mr. Justice Landry 
and Messrs. McDougall and Teed were appointed com­
missioners. They made an investigation and on the 
29th day of March, 1909, made a report by which they 
found that, after making allowance for all disburse­
ments made by the Coal Company and taking account 
of receipts, there was the sum of $135,035.35 unaccounted 
for. The bill alleges that this account as taken by the 
Commissioners is incorrect by reason of certain errors 
and omissions which are specifically set forth and that 
if the account were correctly taken there would not be
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anything unaccounted for. The bill also alleges that 
the Directors appointed proper and trustworthy offi­
cers to attend to the financial and other business of the 
Coal Company, and that it was the duty of the plain­
tiff, as one of the ex officio directors of the company, 
as well as the duty of the other directors of the company, 
to take all necessary and reasonable steps to see that 
the affairs of the company were well managed and that 
all available moneys were used for the legitimate pur­
pose of the company and for the best possible advantage 
of the company. The plaintiff also alleges that in all 
respects he and the other directors of the company did 
everything which was reasonably possible and feasible, 
so far as the construction of the railway and its branches 
were concerned, and its operation was done in the 
interests of the said province. The bill also alleges that 
all moneys received from the governments of the Prov­
ince and Dominion for or on behalf of the defendant 
company, and also all loans and advances received for 
or on Ix'half of the defendant company, and also all pro­
ceeds of the sales of debentures of the said company 
and all other moneys whatsoever received for or on 
account of the defendant company, were used for the 
legitimate purposes of the company.

The twenty-second section of the bill is as follows: 
"That no accounting has ever been had between said 
officers and directors and the defendant company, am! 
in view of the position which the plaintiff occupied in 
respect to the defendant company as an ex officio director 
thereof, by virtue of his having been Attorney-General 
of the Province of New Brunswick and by reason of the 
appointment of the said commissioners pursuant to the 
Legislative authority referred to, and in view of the 
report which they made alleging that the amount $135,- 
035.35 was unaccounted for and also of the complicated 
character of the accounts of the defendant company 
and death of said officer and the company’s audroit,
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the plaintiff believes and alleges that he and the other 
directors of the company are entitled to have an account 
of the receipts and disbursements of the defendant 
company.” The prayer of the bill is "that an account 
may be taken under the direction of this Honorable 
Court of the receipts and expenditures of all subsidies 
and other moneys received by the said defendant com­
pany or the directors and officers thereof from the 
Dominion Government and the Government of the 
Province of New Brunswick, and also the exiicnditures 
and appropriations ol the proceeds of all delientures, 
bonds or securities for money guaranteed by the said 
Province, and of all the dealings and transactions of 
the said defendant company or the directors thereof 
in any way connected with the business of said defend­
ant company and said receipts and expenditures.”

The parties defendant include the Coal Company 
and all the directors tiesides the plaintiff who are living, 
anti the personal representatives of Messrs. Stetson, 
Winslow and Trueman, who died before this suit was 
commenced.

In discussing the question raised by this demurrer 
the plaintiff's counsel seemed to attach so much impor­
tance to the fact that the government commissioners 
had by the report which they made, found, if not directly, 
at all events by inference, that the plaintiff and his 
ro-directors, some or all of them had, by reason of their 
breaches of trust as such directors, incurred a very large 
liability, it will perhaps simplify matters if I first discuss 
the plaintiff’s position and rights irrespective of the 
report and then see whether they are altered in any way 
by what the commissioners did.

The relation which exists between a company such 
as this Coal Company and its directors has been described 
-ometimes as that of trustee and cestui que trust and 
-ometimes as that of principal and agent. Directors 
are sometimes described as agents of the company,
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to their own use and benefit, or use it for purposes ultra 
vires of the company, they are in both cases guilty of 

Babk»». c. J. a „f trust, and though the measure of the liabil­
ity may not be the same in the two cases, in both the 
breach of trust is the foundation of the jurisdiction of 
this Court. In re Bolt & Iron Company (1) it appeared 
that the president and manager of the company had taken 
from the Company's fund an amount in payment of his 
salary. It was treated as a breach of trust, though 
he took the money bona fide, believing that he had 
a right to do so. See also Ex parte Kelley (2) and Rane- 
skill v. Edwards (3). In Patrick v. Stanley (4) the Vice- 
Chancellor says, ‘‘It was there said that this was a 
case of principal and agent and that if the principal may 
file a bill against the agent, the agent may file a bill 
against the principal, but I cannot admit that the rights 
of principal and agent are co-relative. The right of 
the principal rests upon the trust and confidence reposed 
in the agent, but the'agent reposes no such trust or 
confidence in the principal." This is an authority for 
holding that this bill could not be sustained as against 
the company. It is still more difficult to see what 
interest the plaintiff has to file a bill against his 
co-directors. The plaintiff alleges that he and his 
co-directors had a duty to see that the Company's 
moneys were all properly expended and used for the 
legitimate purposes of the Company and he also alleges 
that he and his co-directors have fully and honestly 
discharged their duty both to the company and the 
Province, and that if an account were taken it would 
be found that neither he nor the other directors owed 
the company anything. The bill does not allege that the 
Company is making any claim. The effect of taking

(1) 14 O. R. 211 and on appeal 16 Ont. A. C. 307.
(2) 21 Ch. U. 492. (3) 31 Ch. 100. (4) 9 Hare at page 628.
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the account would be to show that the directors owed 
the Company nothing, a fact which according to the bill 
no one who is a party to this suit ever denied. I think 
I am not travelling outside the admissions of the plaintiff's 
counsel on the argument if I assume that this bill would 
never have been filed if the case rested solely on the aspect 
of it which so far I have presented. It was said, 
however, that the investigation and report of the com­
mission had altered the plaintiff’s position so as to give 
him rights to come to this Court which he had not be­
fore. The allegations in section 22 of the bill which I 
have quoted at length are intended to furnish additional 
reasons for sustaining this position. There is no doubt 
that the Legislature, when it stipulated, as one of the 
conditions upon which the bonds of the Company were 
to be guaranteed by the Province, that the Attorney- 
General and Provincial Secretary should be ex officio 
Directors, regarded that arrangement as a safeguard 
to the Province against any misapplication of the 
Company’s moneys or their waste from loose and 
incompetent management. The plaintiff in his bill 
speaks of his duty to the Province and his duty to the 
Company — separates the one from the other. With 
his duty to the Province so far as it is distinct from his 
duty to the Company this Court has nothing to do in 
this proceeding, for this bill both in its allegation and 
in the parties to it, has reference solely to the dealings 
l>etween the plaintiff and the Company in his capacity 
as Director. In that view I am unable to see in what 
particular his right to maintain this suit is greater or 
different by reason of the appointment of the commissioners 
or the report which they have made. The report is 
intended for the information of the Governor in Council — 
the duties of the commissioners were inquisitorial and 
not judicial. Re Gordon v. City of Toronto (1). The 
report is not binding upon anyone, and it would seem 
from the reasoning in Stubla v. Freccia (2) that it is not 

(1) 16 Ont. Ap. 452. (2) 5 A. C. per Lord Blackburn at p. 644.
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even evidence against the plaintiff. It, in fact, from the 
allegation in the hill, only finds that as a result of the 
investigation the commissioners were able to make, there 
is a sum of $135,035.35 out of the $95S,709.75 received 
by the Company (and the correctness of this sum does 
not seem to be questioned) which is unaccounted for; 
that is, as I understand it, they are unable to tell what 
became of it. It is true that the report does not fix the 
liability for this balance upon any particular individuals. 
It is, however, a necessary inference that if the balance 
were correctly stated it represents a liability which the 
directors, some or all of them, must assume. Under 
these circumstances it is easy to understand how this 
Company and its directors who were responsible for the 
management of its affairs during the period when these 
large expenditures were being made, should seek the 
aid of some judicial tribunal for a thorough investigation 
of these accounts, and in that way correct the errors and 
supply the omissions to which the plaintiff alleges this 
large balance is attributable. But that does not add 
to the jurisdiction of this Court or give the plaintiff a 
right to file a bill for that purpose. It is still an accounting 
to be enforced by the principal against the agents. On 
a bill properly framed for the purpose this Court would 
have no difficulty in making the enquiries usual in such 
cases, and any special enquiries which the allegations 
in the bill or other circumstances might render necessary. 
If the real object of such a hill were to show by evidence 
that the directors had fully discharged their duties and 
fully accounted, as the object of this bill is said to be, 
and in that way by a decree of this Court prove that the 
commissioners’ reputed balance was altogether wrong, 
that object would not lie attained by a decree simply 
recording a result agreed upon by the parties and to which 
none of them made any objection, or by any decree based 
on anything short of a thorough enquiry and investigation.

The demurrer must lie allowed with costa.
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KENNEDY, Administrator,

SLATER, Administrator.

Practice—Concurrent Jurisdiction of Chancery and Probate Courts— 
Con. Slat. (I9D.1) Chap. 118.

In matters where the Chancery and Probate Courts have concurrent 
jurisdiction, the Chancery Court will not act, when the question 
involved can lie more conveniently and inexpensively disposed 
of in the Probate Court, unless some special reason Ik- shown wh\ 
the Probate Court should not act.

Originating summons by the administrator of David 
Kennedy who died on the 21st of February, 1907, his wife 
having pre-deceased him, raising the question as to whether 
or not the administrator of a deceased grand-daughter who 
died March 31st, 1910, is entitled to a share of the estate. 
The facts are fully stated in the judgment of the Court.

Argument was heard September 20, 1910.

H'. B. Jones, K. C., for the plaintiff.

M. G. Teed, K. C., for the defendant.

1910. October 4. Barker, C. J.:—

This matter comes lief ore me by way of originating 
summons and arises out of the following facts. David 
Kennedy died intestate on the 21st February, 1907, 
possessed of certain real and personal property and leav­
ing one son and three daughters surviving (his wife 
having pre-deceased him), and one grand-daughter,

101(1. 
October 4.
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Helena M. Slater, child of Jennie H. Slater, who was a 
daughter of David Kennedy and died in 1902. Helena 
M. Slater died March 31st, 1910. The question for 
determination is whether she was entitled at the time 
of her death to a share in the surplus of the personal 
estate of her grandfather, David Kennedy. This involves 
the construction to lie placed on Section 2 of Chapter 
161 (Con. Stat. of N. B. 1903), relating to intestate 
estates, and will arise in the ordinary course of procedure 
when a distribution of the personal property is made 
by the Judge of Probate. It is unnecessary for me to 
refer to the argument of Mr. Jones, because for reasons 
which I shall give I do not intend entertaining the appli­
cation. Two objections were taken to the proceeding,— 
one, that the case is not one intended to be disposed 
of on an originating summons; and the other, that in 
view of the jurisdiction of the Probate Court, this Court, 
though it has full jurisdiction, would refuse to hear it.

The application is not for the administration of the 
estate, but simply to determine whether or not this 
grandchild is entitled to participate in the surplus. It 
is not necessary to decide the question, but as at present 
advised I think the proceeding is correct, though some 
amendment may have l>een required as to the parties. 
In fact In re Nat!., (1) relied on by the plaintiff as sus­
taining his contention, arose on an originating summons. 
See Order 55. Rule 3 (a) and (6). Jud. Act, 1909.

Without in any way interfering with the jurisdic­
tion of this Court as to the administration of intestate 
estates, the legislature has created a Probate Court for 
each County, whose jurisdiction has lieen from time 
to time increased, so that it can now deal with trustees' 
accounts and other matters quite lieyond the original 
area of its jurisdiction. It has always been vested 
with the power of passing estate accounts and ordering 
the distribution of the surplusage of the personal pro- 

(1) 37 Ch. D„ 517.
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pcrty. Section 2 of Chap. 161, to which I have just 19H). 
referred, enacts thus:—“Subject to the provisions of. Kponov. 
the next following section, the surplusage of the per- 
sonal estate of the intestate shall lie distributed by the 
Judge of Probate in manner following, etc." Section Blluu!,'c-J 
50 of “The Probate Courts Act," Chap. 118. (Con.
Stat. of N. B., 1003), provides for a distribution of the 
surplus of the personal estate to be made after the lapse 
of eighteen months from the time of granting letters 
of administration. This can be compelled on the appli­
cation of any heir or next of kin, and upon the hearing 
the Judge of Probate is to make a decree for the payment 
of the distributive share. And the bond which the 
administrator is obliged to give on his appointment, 
binds him after having his accounts of administration 
filed and allowed, to pay the surplus as the Probate 
Court or other competent Court by decree shall adjudge.
There is of course the appeal to the Supreme Court as 
there is from actions in this division. Within a few 
years the Probate Courts' jurisdiction has been extended 
to matters relating to trustees which before that came 
exclusively within this Court's control. Their accounts 
are passed and allowed with the same effect as if allowed 
by this Court (Sec. 58). A trustee may be removed 
in certain cases and a new trustee appointed in his place, 
and if the estate is in danger of being wasted the Judge 
of Probate may require additional security (Sec. 73).
I think this extended jurisdiction to the Probate Courts 
must have been intended by the Legislature to relieve 
this Court from the obligation to act, where there exists 
no special reason why the Probate Court should not act, 
and where considerations of convenience and expense 
are in favour of that course being adopted. It has 
been said that the Probate Court is not a Court of con­
struction and the late Mr. Justice Palmer acted on that 
principal in Parks v. Parks (1). That case, however,

(1) N. B. Eq. Cases, 382.
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involved the construction of a will, and it was held that 
an order of the Court to pay a legacy, which was made 
under an erroneous view of the meaning of the will, was 
no protection to the executor who paid the legacy as 
directed. That, however, is an entirely different case 
from this. It arises under a long established practice 
and jurisdiction. The plaintiff must go to the Probate 
Court and pass his accounts in order to determine what 
the surplus personal estate is which the Judge of Pro­
bate is required to distribute or to make a decree for 
that purpose, and the question involved here can thus 
be easily and inexpensively settled. Vnder these cir­
cumstances I think I should decline to act and leave 
the matter for the Probate Court.

I have consulted Mr. Justice McLeod as to the 
course I intended to take and I am authorized to say 
that he concurs in it. There will therefore be no order 
made as the matter will drop, and there will be no order 
as to costs.
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TILLEY, Assignee of deForest, v. DEFOREST, et al.

Specific Performance—General Assignment—Trade Mark—Good Will 
of Business.

In March, 181)4, the* firm of G. S. deF. & S, consisting of the defendant, 
H. VV. dcF., and his brother C. YV. dcF., registered a trade mark 
for a certain blend of tea known as 11 Union Blend,” which was 
prepared under a formula made by the defendant.

In May, 1901, (\ YV. dcF. assigned his interest in the trade mark to 
the defendant and shortly after seems to have retired from the 
business.

In May, 1908, the business was put into a joint stock company in 
which the defendant was by far the largest stock holder, he paying 
for his stock by assigning to the company all his interest in the 
business, which he valued at $50,000. This assignment, dated 
June 29th, 1908, after particularly setting out the real estate and 
chattels personal, contained the following, "and all personal 
property of whatsoever nature and description owned by the -.ii'l 
II. YV. dcF. in connection with the business of the said II. YY\ deF. 
together with the good-will of the business of the said H. YY\ deF.” 
There was also a covenant in the assignment that the defendant 
would execute and deliver all papers necessary to give a perfect 
title to the property. The trade mark itself was not specifically 
mentioned in the assignment. The defendant was elected presi- 
< U nt of t his company and for two years this trade mark was 
used and the business carried on, chiefly under his management.

In May, 1910 the company, being insolvent, assigned to the plaintiff 
under Chap. 141, Con. Stat. of N. B. (1903). On investigation 
the plaintiff found that there was no specific assignment of the 
trade mark to the company which could be used for registry 
under the Trade Mark Act.

Held, that the words used in the assignment are amply comprehensive 
to pass the trade mark, and that the defendant is bound to exe­
cute a specific assignment of it to the plaintiff as assignee of the 
company

Bill filed for specific performance. The facts are 
fully stated in the judgment of the Court.

M. G. Teed, K. C., for the plaintiff.

Daniel Mullin, K. C., for the defendant Harry W. 
deForest.

Amon A. Wilson, K. C., for the defendant J. Harvey 
Brown.

1910.
Octobl' IS.

Argument was heard October 4, 1910.
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IPM. G. Teed, K. C., for the plaintiff: The plaintiff 
TlLr1;EV is entitled to the trade mark under the general agreement 
~T between Harry W. deForest and the company. It passes 

BarÜûTc. j. as part of the good-will and as appurtenant to it. 2 Rev.
Stat. of Can., Chap. 71. Sec. 15. It will probably be 
contended that the trade mark was a personal possession 
of Harry W. deForest and was not intended to pass to 
the company. See Sebastien on Trade Marks, 4th Ed., 
pp. !), 10, ON, 00, 101 and 103. Mr. deForest was not 
required to use his own personal skill in the preparation 
of the tea, he had general supervision, but it was not neces­
sary that he should be personally present. See Churlon 
v. Douglas; (1): Bury v. Bedford (2); Levy v. Walker (3); 
Mossop v. Mason (4); Banks v, Gibson (5). The 
plaintiff is entitled to a decree for the specific perform­
ance of the transfer of the trade mark.

Daniel Mullin, K. C., for the defendant : It is a 
question whether the trade mark was conveyed under 
the general agreement. If it was intended to be conveyed 
it is a strange thing that it was not specifically mentioned; 
that the word "trade mark” was not set out. The trade 
mark was the personal property of the defendant and 
belonged to him, and not to the business, and it was never 
intended that it should be conveyed to the company. 
See Lecouturier v Rey (6).

A mon A. Wilson, K. C., took no part.

1910. October 18. Barker, C. J.

This case lies within a very narrow compass, and 
the facts upon which its decision rests are substantially 
not disputed.

( l > Johnson, 174.
(2) 4 DcG. J. & S., 352. 
(5) 34 Beav„ 566.

(3) 10 Ch D., 430.
(4) 18 Gr. Ch. Rep. 453. 
(6) 1910 A. C„ 202.
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Previous to the year 1894 the firm of George S. 
deForest & Sons, consisting at that time of the defendant Ta,';,v 
Harry W. deForest and his brother Clarence W. deForest, U,EFI0“SI 
carried on a general wholesale grocery business at St. ba«m«7c. J. 
John, dealing, among other things, largely in teas. They 
eventually put upon the market a particular blend of 
tea under the name of the “Union Blend,” consisting 
of a blend of Indian and Ceylon teas under a formula 
made by the defendant Harry W. deForest. This tea 
seems to have acquired quite a reputation not only in 
New Brunswick, but in other provinces. On the 14th 
March, 1894, the firm of George S. deForest & Sons 
(which at that time consisted of the defendant and his 
brother Clarence) applied in the firm's name to the 
Minister of Agriculture, under the provisions of the 
"Trade-mark and Design Act,” for the registry of a 
certain label as a specific trade-mark, and on this applica 
lion the trade-mark was registered on the 22nd March,
1894. It is described in the certificate of registery as 
follows:—"This is to certify that this trade-mark (specific) 
to be applied to the sale of tea, and which consists of a 
red label having printed on it in gold the words, etc.,
‘Union Blend selected from First Pickings of Choicest 
New Seasons Teas — a figure formed of two triangles 
and containing initials G. S. deF. & S., etc.,' has been 
registered by George S. deForest & Sons of the City of 
St. John, Province of New Brunswick, on the 22nd day 
of March, A. D. 1894." By an assignment under seal 
Clarence W. deForest on the 1st of May, 1901, assigned 
his interest in the trade-mark as registered to the defendant 
Harry deForest. In 1908 the defendant registered the 
trade-mark in the United States in his own name.
Sometime after Clarence deForest assigned his interest 
in the trade-mark he seems to have gone out of the part­
nership, and the defendant Harry deForest continued 
the business in his own name. He established a branch 
in St. John's, Newfoundland, and later on in Boston.
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He continued to use the trade-mark — he spent large 
sums of money in advertising the tea sold as the " Union 
Blend," and his sales were made not only in the Maritime 
Provinces but in Newfoundland and in parts of Maine 
and in Boston. In May, 1908, the business was put 
into a joint stock company under the Provincial Act 
under the name of "Harry W. deForest, Limited.” The 
capital stock was $99,000, divided into 990 shares of $100 
each, of which 542 shares were subscribed : Harry W. 
deForest taking 500 shares and the other forty-two were 
divided as follows:—Charles W. Howell and Noel F. 
Sheraton each ten shares ; Clarence W. deForest two 
shares, and Annie E. W. deForest twenty shares. These 
forty-two shares were to lie paid for in cash, and the 500 
shares taken by the defendant were to be paid for in full 
by the transfer by him to the company of his interest 
(speaking generally) in the business, which he valued 
at $50,000, over and altove the liabilities which the 
company were to assume. In the petition for incorpor­
ation the applicants whom I have just mentioned say 
as follows :—“The objects and purposes for which incor­
poration of the said company is sought are as follows : 
(a) ‘To purchase or otherwise acquire and take over 
all the stock-in-trade, merchandise and property of all 
and singular the tea business now carried on and engaged 
in by Harry W. deForest of the City of St. John, together 
with the offices and buildings now occupied by the said 
Harry W. deForest as a tea office and warehouse in the 
City of St. John, and the land and appurtenances thereto 
belonging or appertaining.' (6) 'To carry on and 
continue the tea business now owned and conducted by 
the said Harry W. deForest, and to buy, sell, import, 
export, purchase and acquire tea and to carry on a whole­
sale and retail business." The sixth section of the 
petition is as follows:—"The said company as one of its 
objects and purposes as alxive stated seeks authority 
to purchase, acquire and take over, hold and own the
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tea business heretofore carried on by Henry W. deForest, 
one of your petitioners, at the said City of St. John, 
together with the good-will, stock-in-trade, business, 
property, assets, rights and credits, subject to the said 
debts and liabilities as aforesaid, which said good-will, 
stock-in-trade, business, property, assets, rights and 
credits aforesaid are valued at and worth $50,000, and 
are necessary to the business of the said company, and 
good value to the said company at the said sum of $50,000.” 
Section twelve of the petition, which is verified by an 
affidavit of the defendant, states the terms upon which 
he was to pay for his stock by transferring to the company 
when incorporated “all the good-will, stock-in-trade 
goods, wares and merchandise, chattels, estate, property 
and effects, rights and credits owned by him in connection 
with the business, etc.," for which he was to receive 500 
(laid up shares of the capital stock, and the company 
was to assume the liabilities of the defendant arising out 
of the business. After the letters patent of incorporation 
had been issued the defendant executed an assignment 
of the property, which under the arrangement, he was 
to hand over as representing the $50,000, the par value 
of the shares he agreed to take. This assignment is dated 
June 29th, 1908, and after reciting the various terms 
of the arrangement it proceeds thus:—“Now this 
Indenture witnesseth, that the said Harry W. deForest, 
for and in consideration of the issue to him of five hundred 
shares of the capital stock of the said Harry W. deForest, 
Limited, and in further consideration of the sum of one 
dollar of lawful money of Canada to him in hand well 
and truly paid, etc., has assigned, transferred, etc., all 
his right, title and interest in and to the said mentioned 
and descrilied land and premises situate on the corner 
of Union and Mill streets aforesaid, with the buildings 
and appurtenances thereto belonging or appertaining,

1910.

dkKorbst

Vol. 4. N. B. E.R.—24
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"«t°auT waggons, harness, book debts and all personal property 
Ba«e«Tc. j. of whatsoever nature and description, owned by the said 

Harry W. deForest in connection with the business of 
the said Harry W. deForest, together with the good-will 
of the business of the said Harry W. deForest." The 
assignment contains the following covenant:—“And the 
said Harry VV. deForest hereby covenants and agrees 
to and with the said Harry W. deForest, Limited, that 
he will execute and deliver all necessary papers or documents 
in order to convey and give a perfect title to the said 
property hereinbefore referred to and intended to be 
conveyed to the said Harry W. deForest, Limited."

On the delivery of this assignment the certificates 
for the five hundred paid up shares were issued to the 
defendant. The company was organized. The defendant 
was elected president, and the business was carried on 
by the company chiefly under his management. There 
were no new books opened, but the busniess carried on 
by H. W. deForest in his name before the incorporation 
was continued by the company in its name afterwards. 
Of the $50,000 carried to his credit in stock account, 
$35,434 represented the estimated value of the trade­
mark or good-will of the business. It continued to be 
used by the company as it had been originally by the 
firm of George S. deForest & Sons, and later by H. W. 
deForest when he carried on the business in his own name. 
Large sums were spent after the incorporation in adver­
tising. The parties differ as to the amount, but it must 
have exceeded $20,000. The business had l>een extended— 
it had been for many years limited to teas, and the sales 
in 1905 amounted to about seven hundred thousand 
pounds, of which the principal quantity was "Union 
Blend."

In May last it was discovered that the company’s 
financial position was such that it could not carry on its
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business, and accordingly it made an assignment to the 
plaintiff on the 3rd of May, in pursuance of Chap. 141, 
Con. Stat. 1903, N. B., respecting assignments by insolvent 
persons. On investigating the company’s affairs the 
assignee found that the assignment of the trade-mark 
from Clarence deForest had not lieen registered, and 
there was no specific assignment to the company which 
could conveniently, if at all, lie used for registry under 
the Trade-mark Act. The plaintiff thereupon applied 
to the defendant to execute a transfer, not only in order 
to carry out his intentions as to the property but also 
his covenant to execute such further conveyances as 
might be necessary for the completion of the title. This 
the defendant refused to do for a reason so altogether 
insufficient that it is not worth discussing. The plaintiff 
then brought this action to compel the defendant to 
execute the necessary assignment.

Assuming the trade-mark to lie assignable, it passed,
I think, under the assignment from the defendant to the 
company. The words used are, in my opinion, amply 
comprehensive to pass the trade-mark and thus carry 
out what was beyond all doubt intended by the defendant 
as by everyone who had anything to do with the trans­
action. Gage v. Canada Publishing Company (1). In 
Lecouturier v. Rey (2) the Lord Chancellor treated the 
trade-mark as property situated in England, and there­
fore regulated in accordance with the law of England. 
The object of organizing the company was to transfer 
the assets and business of the defendant to the company 
so that the business should be continued and carried on 
by it. That is what in fact was done. It would be a 
strained construction of the conveyance to hold that 
under such circumstances such words as “assets," 
"property" and "good-will” did not include the principal 
asset of the whole business. Without it the business

1910.
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(1) 10 P. R. 160. (2) |1910| A. C. 282.
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could not be continued or carried on as tiefore. It is in 
that way quite within the rule mentioned by Fry, L. J., 
in Pinto v. Padman mentioned in the case I have just 
cited. He says:—"It has liecn laid down by the clearest 
authority that a trade-mark can be assigned when it is 
transferred together with, to use Lord Cranmouth’s 
language, the manufacture of the goods on which the 
mark has been used to be affixed." Viewed as a question 
lietween the defendant and the creditors of the company 
in which he held nearly all of the subscrilied shares, which 
he had himself organized and promoted for the purpose 
of taking over and continuing the business, and to which 
he had made the assignment I have already referred to, 
it seems difficult to suggest any good reason for his refus­
ing to perfect the title to the trade-mark as he has been 
requested to do. It seems to have been regarded by 
him as the most valuable part of the assets; he had 
received a large sum for its transfer, and it is fair to 
assume that it was a chief factor in enabling the company 
to obtain so large a credit as $100,000, which the evidence 
shows to have been its indebtedness at the time of its 
failure. The case relied on by the defendant’s counsel 
is Lecouturier v. Rey (1) already mentioned. All that 
case decides is this, that where a foreign manufacturer 
had acquired a reputation in England it is beyond the 
power of a foreign Court or foreign Legislature to prevent 
the manufacturers from availing themselves in England 
of the benefit of that reputation. As I have already 
pointed out, the benefit of the reputation is, as Lord 
Lorcburn there says, not only property, but property in 
England, and therefore subject to English law. There 
does not seem to me any analogy between that case and 
this. The "Chartreuse,” manufactured solely by the 
Carthusian monks, was made according to a formula 
known for a long period only by two or three of the Order.
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Under the legislation which took place in France in 1901 1910. 
known as the law of Association, and which was directed T,L“l
against unlicensed religious associations, the monastery "VV’"'1 
of La Grande Chartreuse was dissolved and their property baiimTc. j. 
in France, including their distillery and French trade­
marks, were confiscated and sold. This, however, it 
was held did not include either the secret of the manu­
facture or the benefit of the reputation which the liqueur 
had acquired in England. Had these monks done what 
the defendant did with his business they would have 
stood in a different position. Had they organized a joint 
stock company for the purpose of taking over their 
business of making and manufacturing the "Chartreuse" 
made and manufactured by them for the benefit of the 
company in which they were, or might be interested, the 
company could scarcely carry out its purpose without 
using by right the word “Chartreuse" as indicating the 
article for sale, or without owning the right to use the 
process of manufacture which up to that time had remained 
a well guarded secret known only to two or three people 
at any one time. The case relied on by the defendant 
has not any bearing on this case, which is simply the case 
of assigning a registered trade-mark. This brings me 
to the Act of Parliament under which the mark was 
registered (Chap. 71 R. S. C. 1900.) Section 13 provides 
that the proprietor of a trade mark may, on complying 
with certain regulations, have it registered for his own 
exclusive use, and " thereafter such proprietor shall have 
the exclusive right to use the trade-mark to designate 
articles manufactured or sold by him.” Section 15 
provides that “Every trade mark registered in the office 
of the minister shall be assignable in law." There is no 
limitation here as there is in Section 70 of the English 
Act (Chap. 57, 1883) which is as follows:—“A trade-mark 
when registered shall be assigned and transmitted only 
in connection with the good-will of the business concerned
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in the particular goods or classes of goods for which it 
has been registered, and shall be determinable with that 
good-will." The good-will was sold and assigned in this 
case. Section 19 of our Statute gives the proprietor 
of a registered trade-mark a right of action against any 
person using it, or any fraudulent imitation of it, or any 
person who sells any article bearing the trade-mark.

Stated shortly, the defendant, who was the proprietor 
of this trade-mark, sold it with the good-will of his business 
to the company for a valuable consideration which he 
received — he made an assignment of the property, not 
specifically mentioning the trade-mark, but by words, in 
my opinion, amply sufficient for the purpose of transferring 
it — he and the company used it, and for the two years 
which the company existed treated it as the company’s 
property and he, as a part of the arrangement under which 
the company was organized, gave a covenant that he 
would execute all papers necessary to give a perfect 
title to the proper' v. The plaintiff, as the assignee 
of the company, •’ luired a specific assignment of the 
trade mark by name, in order to have it registered under 
the Statute and the rights protected. He asked the 
defendant to do this ,t his expense. He has refused 
for reasons which seerr* to me altogether insufficient.

The plaintiff must have a decree with costs.
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McGAFFIGAN V. THE WILLETT FRUIT 
COMPANY, et al.

1911.

April 18.

Party Wall—Right to Support—Easement—User—Lost Grant—Injunc­
tion—Costs.

The plaintiff McG. and the defendants the W. F. Co. are the owners 
of adjoining lots which originally comprised one lot. On each 
lot is a building which entirely covers its whole area.

The wall about which this dispute has arisen is used as the northern 
wall of the plaintiff's building and the southern wall of the defen­
dants'. It is clear however from the evidence that it stands 
entirely on the plaintiff's lot.

In 1877 the buildings on these two lots were destroyed by fire, the 
foundations however being left standing, and when the buildings 
were rebuilt, immediately after the fire, these old foundations were 
used, the walls were rebuilt on them, and the then owner of the 
defendants' lot used the wall in question as a support for the joists 
of the building he constructed.

The original lot was first divided in 1833 when the part now owned by 
the plaintiff was conveyed to one T. P. who continued to own it 
down to the time of his death in 1875. T. P. died intestate leaving 
him surviving a widow and five daughters. In 1896 this piece of 
property became vested in one of these daughters by a conveyance 
from all of the other heirs of T. P. to her. In 1899 she and her 
husband conveyed it to one E. F. J., who was acting for the plaintiff 
and later on in the same year conveyed it to him.

The eldest daughter of T. P. became of age in 1876 and the youngest 
in 1887. One of the daughters married before she reached her 
majority.

Held, that while the wall in question is entirely the property of thc 
plaintiff and is not a party wall, the defendants have an easement 
for the support of the joists of their building in the wall as con­
structed after the fire in 1877, it having been openly and uninter­
ruptedly used for that purpose for a period of more than twenty 
years; that a lost grant must be presumed to which this user would 
dc referred.

Semble, the plaintiff when he purchased the building in 1899 had at 
least constructive notice of this easement.

Held, also, that as the youngest daughter of T. P. became of age in 
1887, over twenty two years before this action was commenced, 
the grant might have been made at any time during the two years 
succeeding her attaining her majority; and further that coverture 
does not bar the presumption of thc making of this grant.

The defendants recently constructed an elevator in their building, and 
for that purpose let beams or joists into the wall in question and 
used it for the support of the elevator.
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Mandatory injunction granted for the removal of these beams or 

No costs to either party, each having succeeded in part.

Bill filed for an injunction, and for a declaration of 
the parties rights. The facts fully appear in the judgment 
of the Court.

M. G. Teed, K. C., for the plaintiff.

A. A. Wilson, K. C., and J. King Kelley, for the 
defendants.

January 5, 1011.

M. G. Teed, K. C., on Itehalf of the plaintiff applied 
for an order for inspection of the premises in question 
under Order 50, Rule 3, Jud. Act 1909. In support of 
the application cites:—East India Co. v. Kynaston (1) 
Walker v. Fletcher (2): Attorney General v. Chambers (3) 
Lewis v. March (4); Bennett v. Whitehouse (5); Barlow 
v. Bailey (fi); Bennett v. Griffiths (7).

A. A. Wilson, K. C., on behalf of the defendants, 
contra.

Order for inspection made under old practice.
Argument was heard February 3, and March 28, 1911.

M. G. Teed, K. C., for the plaintiff:—The plaintiff 
submits:—

1. That the whole of this wall is on the plaintiff’s 
land, and belongs exclusively to him.

2. That there is no evidence of a party wall either 
by ownership or contribution to cost.

(1) 3 Bligh, 153 and 168 
(Notes); 3Swanston 248.

(2) 3 Bllgh, 172.
(3) 12 Bea. 159.

(4) 8 Hare 97.
(5) 28 Bea. 119.
(6) 22 !.. T. 484.
(7) 7 Jur. N. S. 284.
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3. That no right by user or lost grant is made out 
or established.

(а) Because the user was not open or notorious or 
known to the plaintiff or his predecessors in title.

(б) Because irom the nature of the user being from 
the defendants' property, the plaintiff had no right to enter 
on that properly or to abate the user and therefore it was 
not adverse and time would not run against him.

(c) Because the plaintiff's premises are admitted 
to have been continually in the occupation of tenants up 
to the time of the defendants' purchase, therefore the 
twenty year user would not run against them.

(d) Because one of the heirs of the Parks' estate 
(Mrs. Wm. Pugsley) was continually under disability of 
infancy or coveture up to the time of the plaintiff's purchase.

4. That if the defendants have acquired the right 
by user to have the timbers which support their building 
in the wall, the breaking of the wall and entering timbers 
for an elevator in 1909, was not justified.

5. That there is no evidence of any user of the 
chimneys on the upper floor for twenty years.

Under these points we submit that there should be a 
declaration that the wall belongs exclusively to the 
plaintiff. Cites :—Gale on Easements (8th Ed.) 228-231. 
Union Lighterage Co. v. London Graving Dock Co. (1); 
Loggie v. Montgomery (2).

Mr. Wilson for the defendants contra submits:—

1. That the wall is a party wall, as the evidence shows, 
and is used as such. See 22 Am. and Eng. Ency. of 
Law, 236.

The defendants' building is two feet higher than the 
plaintiff’s building, and the wall in question goes up two

(1) (1901) 2Ch. :!00; On appeal,
(1902) 2 Ch. 357.

1911.
McGaffigan

ft
The Wili.et 

Company

(2) 38 N. B. R. 112.
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feet four inches above the plaintiff’s building. The general 
mcGaffigik custom ;n building walls of this nature is that they go 
T"f»viiLI!T eight inches above the roof of the building to which they 
' HtPAL!Y belong. Also the chimneys in the wall with flues on the 

side of the defendants' building show it to be a party wall. 
The evidence all goes to show a party wall. The only 
evidence of entering or breaking the wall of late years, 
is where two timbers were put in for the support of the 
elevator.

2. In case it is decided that it is not a party wall by 
agreement, then it is a party wall by prescription. See 
Washburn on Easements 4th Ed. 605, 008, 609. In regard 
to party walls see Cubitt v. Porter (1) ; Wiltshire v. Sidford 
(2); Lends v. Allison (3); Standard Bank of British South 
Ameriea v. Stokes (4); Rains v. Buxton (5) ; In Re Jennens, 
Willis v. Howe (6).

We submit that this wall is a party wall by agreement, 
and if it is not a party wall by agreement, then it is a party 
wall by prescription.

M. 0 Teed, K. C., in reply: The principles which 
govern as to real estate and easements are entirely different. 
The legal documentary title to the wall is in the plaintiff 
without any doubt This wall ought not to be assumed 
to be a party wall by agreement as the evidence does not 
support that in any way. As to user it must be notorious 
and open. Undoubtedly the joists were put in the wall 
when the building was built. The owners could have seen 
it at that time but later on they could not. Easement 
would only give the defendants the right to do what had 
been done for twenty years, it would not give any property 
in the wall, and they would have no right to do anything 
further.

March 28, 1911.
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(1) 8 B. & C. 257,259.
(2) 8 B. & C. 25V, Note.
(3) 30 S. C. R. 173.

(4) 9 Ch. D. 68. 
(8) H Ch. D. 537. 
(6) 50 L. J. Ch. 4.
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M. G. Teed, K. C., on behalf of the plaintiff submits:—

1. That four of the heirs of Thomas Parks were 
infants at the time the building was put up, and no notice 
could be presumed against them.

2. That the user was not open and notorious.

3. That Mrs. William Pugslev, one of the Parks’ 
heirs, has never ceased to be under the disability of either 
infancy or coverture, as she married before she was of age.

4. Assuming that a lost grant could be presumed 
against Mrs. Daniel Pugsley, who was of age when the 
building was erected, it could not run against the other 
heirs.

5. A user cannot be acquired against one of many 
tenants in common, but must be against all of them.

Under these points it is not possible for any easement 
to exist. See Washburn on Easements (3rd. Ed.) 131-160; 
Gale on Easements (Sth Ed.) 214-215; Bradbury v. Grinsell 
(1); Daniel v. North (2); Freeman on Co-tenants (2nd. 
Ed.) Sec. 185; Portmore v. Bunn (3) ; Durham fir Sunderland 
Railway Co. v. Wawn (4); Ross v. Hunter (5). Mrs. Hall 
and the plaintiff acquired a title free from such incumbrances 
as are set up by the defendants.

Wilson, K. C., for the defendants contra: — The 
plaintiff cannot take advantage of Mrs. Wm. Pugsley’s 
• overture as Mr. Wm. Pugsley is not dead. See Ingalls 
et al v. Reid (6) ; Jumpsen v. Pitchers (7). In regard to stale 
demands see Brooks v. Muchleston (8); Roe dem Langdon v. 
Rowlston (9).

fl) 2 Saunders 175 i. (5) 7 S. C. R. 289, set page 301
12) 11 East 372. (0) 15 Up. Can. Rep., C. P. 190.
(3) 3 D. & R. 143; 1 B. and C. (7) 13 Sim. 327, see page 332.

694. (8) (1909) 2 Ch. D. 51B.
t4) 3 Beav. 119. (9) 2 Taunt. 441.

1911.
McGtmcAN 

The Willbt
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Teed, K. C., in reply:—The plaintiff submits that 
one tenant in common cannot make a grant of any specific 
property (easement).

c. j. 1911. April 18. Barker C. J.:

The dispute involved in this action arises out of the 
use of what the defendants allege to be a party wall 
between their building and the building adjoining it on 
the south owned by the plaintiff. These buildings are 
situated on the western side of Dock street in the City 
of Saint John. The plaintiff’s lot—or the Parks lot, 
as it is called by the witnesses—has a frontage of twenty- 
five feet on the western side of the street, and it is joined 
on the north by the defendants’ lot—or the Butt lot, 
as some of the witnesses call it. The buildings in both 
lots occupy their entire frontage on Dock street, so that 
the wall in question is the northerly wall of the plaintiff's 
building and the southerly one of the defendants. The 
owners of these lots derive their title through the same 
origin. They formed a part of a lot described in the 
earlier conveyances as' No. 3, which was conveyed in 
1832 to one Ratchford by the devisees of one John 
Black. In August, 1833, Ratchford conveyed that part 
of this lot No. 3, which the plaintiff now owns, to the 
late Thomas Parks, who continued to own it up to the 
time of his death in October, 1875. He died intestate, 
leaving him surviving a widow and five daughters, who 
continued the ownership down to May 1st, 1896, when 
all, except Mrs. Hall, joined in a conveyance to her. 
She and her husband conveyed to E. F. Jones by deed 
dated January 19th, 1899. Jones had really purchased 
for the plaintiff, and he conveyed the lot to him by 
deed dated January 24th, 1899, and registered on the 
twenty-eighth of that month. That part of the lot No. 
3, which is now the defendants' lot, was conveyed by
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Ratchford to one Vaughan in September, 1833, and 
eventually the defendants acquired it under a convey­
ance from one Annie McLean dated September 2nd, 
1909, and registered December 24th, 1909. One W. 
F. Butt owned this lot at the time of the fire in St. John 
in June, 1877, when all the buildings on these lots were 
destroyed. He remained owner until after the new 
buildings had been erected. In the conveyance of the 
plaintiff's lot from Ratchford to Parks it is described 
as follows: “A certain piece or parcel of the said lot 
"No. 3 and which said piece or parcel is abutted and 
“bounded as follows: Commencing at the northwest 
"angle of the lot known on the plan aforesaid as No. 2, 
“thence northwesterly and westerly along the line of 
"Dock street twenty-five feet; thence southerly and 
"westerly in a line parallel to the northwestern line of 
"lot No. 2 forty-one feet, six inches, thence southerly 
“twenty-four feet more or less till it strikes the north 
"west line of lot No. 2 at the distance of fourteen feet, 
"six inches from the angle formed in the lots by the 
“house now standing on lot No. 2, thence northerly 
"along the northwest line of lot No. 2, fifty-six feet 
“more or less to the place of lieginning.” This descrip­
tion has Iteen continued in the conveyance to the plain­
tiff. The defendants' lot is, in its description in the 
conveyance to Vaughan in September, 1833, as well as 
that in the subsequent conveyances in terms bounded 
by the Parks land as conveyed to him in August, 1833. 
Beyond the fact that there were buildings on these lots 
at the time of the fire in June, 1877, there is nothing 
whatever in the evidence either as to their uses or man­
ner of construction to assist in the determination of the 
question now in dispute. The Parks building had two 
underground storeys—a basement and sub-basement— 
in one of which were wine vaults. These vaults were 
not destroyed by the fire and the foundation of this wall

1911.
McGaffigan 

The Willbt 

Company

Barker, C. J.
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1911- in question remained comparatively uninjured, so that 
McGaffigan was jn faC( USed as the foundation for the new wall. 
™f»v'tL,t In July, 1877, a few weeks after the fire, building oper- 

Crr ations were commenced by the then owner of these 
Barker. c. j. lots and by the owners of other lots in Dock street.

That this wall in question was built on the old founda­
tion is, I think, beyond doubt. Mr. Pugsley, who 
married one of Mr. Parks' daughters, and seems to have 
had some supervision of the building operations, says 
that the new wall was built on the old foundation. 

• This fact, from what the witnesses who examined the
premises say, is capable of determination by an inspec­
tion of the wall itself.

The first and most important question is, on whose 
ground does this wall stand and who is the owner of it? 
This question must I think tie answered in favor of the 
plaintiff. Mr. Murdoch, the City Engineer, says that 
in July, 1877, about three weeks after the fire, he was 
employed by Mr. Pugsley acting on behalf of the Parks 
heirs, to make a survey of their lot. The ground was 
then being cleaned up and prepared for rebuilding. Mr. 
Murdoch had the Ratchford conveyance and some other 
deeds with him—he made the necessary measurements 
and a plan of the lot which he produced. This was July 
15th, 1877. He says the foundation of this wall was 
not destroyed. Referring to the plan he was asked—

"Q. What does the red line through the centre 
or apparently the centre of the south line of the Parks 
lot indicate? A. The line of division between the 
properties.

“Q. And you found from your survey the line of 
division between the Parks lot, now the McGaffigan 
property, to the southeast was in the centre wall? A. 
Yes, about the centre wall.

"Q. Then how did you find to the northward? 
A. I found the line in the north face of the wall there.
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“Q. In other words you found the whole wall on 
the Parks lot, the north wall?

“(By the Court) All this northerly wall you found 
was on the Parks property? A. Yes.

“Q. And half on the other side? A. Yes."

The witness went on to say that the distance from 
the southern line of the Parks lot which he found to be 
in the middle or about the middle of the wall between 
that lot and the contiguous lot on the south, to the 
northern side of the wall in question, was just twenty- 
five feet or the exact frontage on the street which the 
conveyance gives.

The evidence of Mr. Mott, an architect of consid­
erable experience, leads to the same conclusion. Before 
purchasing the lot the plaintiff employed Mott to inspect 
the building and examine the premises in order to fur­
nish him with an opinion as to their value. Mr. Mott 
took the measurements of the building and from the 
details in its finish and manner of construction, which 
he described at some length, he concluded that the wall 
was built not as a party wall but as a distinct part of 
the building, and he seems to have valued it for the 
plaintiff as a part of the property he wa hen about 
purchasing.

From this evidence, which is not disputed, there 
is no difficulty in finding as a fact that the wall in ques­
tion stands altogether on the plaintiff’s lot and is his 
exclusive property.

In Watson v. Gray (1) Fry J„ classifies party walls 
under four heads. The first and most common class 
is where the two adjoining owners are tenants in com­
mon. ‘‘In the next place," he says, “the terms may 
1<‘ used to signify a wall divided longitudinally into 
two strips, one belonging to each of the neighboring

1911.

McGaffiga.n 

The Willet 

Company
ET AL.

Barker, C. J.

(1) 14 Ch. D., 192.
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owners. Then, thirdly, the term may mean a wall which 
belongs entirely to one of the adjoining owners, but is 
subject to an easement or right in the other to have it 
maintained as a dividing wall between the two tene­
ments. Lastly, the term may designate a wall divided 
longitudinally into two moieties, each moiety being 
subject to a cross-easement in favor of the owner of the 
other moiety."

The defendants in their answer claim the wall to 
be a party wall. The evidence does not sustain that 
contention. It is certainly not a party wall within the 
definition given by Fry J., in the case I have just men­
tioned. That, however, does not determine the point 
at issue. It is possible—and this I think is the defend­
ants' true claim—that by the uninterrupted use of this 
wall for so long a period, they, the defendants, have 
acquired an easement for the use of the wall for the sup­
port of their building as begun in 1877, though they 
acquired no right of property either in the wall itself 
or in the land in which it stands. That remained in 
the Parks heirs and is now in the plaintiff. This ease­
ment is limited in its nature and extent by the nature 
and extent of the user out of which the easement arises. 
The distinction between a party wall in which the con­
tiguous owners have rights of property and a wall owned 
by one and built altogether by himself in his own land, 
but subject to an easement in favor of the adjoining 
owner for the support of his building, is illustrated and 
pointed out in Waddinglon v. Naylor (1) and James el 
al v. Clement (2).

There is no doubt from the evidence, that when 
these buildings were erected in 1877, the joists of the 
defendants' building were let into this brick wall and 
that from that time down to the present, the building

(1) 60 L. T. 480. (2) 13 Ont. 115.
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has derived its support in that way. There was no 
secrecy about this. It was open and notorious; it was 
patent to any one who chose to use his eyes, whether 
from mere curiosity or from interests. Those who were 
interested in the Parks property knew where the northern 
Itoundary of their lot was. They had had it measured 
and ascertained by Murdoch and they built the new wall 
on the foundation of the old one.

So far, therefore, as the case rests upon their know­
ledge of matters as they stood at that time, and as they 
remained up to the time they parted with the property, 
they must have had, or at all events they must be taken 
to have had, full notice of the use to which this wall 
was subjected by the owner of the adjoining lot—com­
menced by Butt in 1877 and continued from that time 
down without interruption or objection until the plain­
tiff's letter to Brown in November, 1008—a period of 
over thirty years. More than twenty years had elapsed 
when the plaintiff purchased in January, 1899. He 
must have known at that time where the northerly line 
of his lot was. Mott, his architect and valuer, who 
examined the building for him previous to his purchase 
ascertained very easily that there was no wall on the 
defendants' lot and there was nothing therefore to sup­
port their building unless the wall in dispute was used 
for that purpose.

I do not know that it is necessary at all for the 
determination of this suit to determine whether the pre­
sent plaintiff, when he purchased, had notice of the 
actual condition of things, but if it were I should hold 
that he had constructive notice at least. He knew 
where his northerly line was. He knew what he is now 
contending for, that this wall was all on his lot, and it 
was plain, according to the evidence, that there was 
no wall beyond that line and that this could be seen

1911.
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from the street without entering the defendants' build­
ing at all. There was a visible state of circumstances 
which was altogether unlikely, and, in this case, I should 
say impossible—to exist without a burden. In that 
resjtect it is a much stronger case than Allen v. Seckhani 
(1), or Ilerrey v. Smith (2).

This case is not governed by the Prescription Act. 
The rights were all acquired and this when action com­
menced before January 1st, 1910, when that part of 
the Prescription Act relating to easements of this kind 
came into force. The evidence therefore having estab­
lished an o|>en and uninterrupted use for over twenty 
years before the present plaintiff purchased, and over 
thirty before he made any complaint, I am, I think, 
bound as a matter of law to presume a lost grant—to 
which this user would be referred. In the latest edition 
of Gale on Easements (1908) the author sums up the 
effect of Dalton v. Annus (3) thus, “the effect of this 
decision is effectually to establish the rule that an ease­
ment of support for new buildings may be acquired by 
twenty years’ open and uninterrupted user, and although 
the Lords do not expressly discuss the general question 
as to what evidence is admissible to rebut the presump­
tion of lost grant, the effect of their judgment is to affirm 
the opinion of Thesiger and Cotton, L. J J. It follows 
that the presumption cannot be displaced by merely 
showing that no grant was in fact made; the long 
enjoyment either estops the servient owner from relying 
on such evidence or overrides it when given." (p. 197) 
It is, I think, clear from modern authorities, that 
although this presumption may be rebutted, a grant 
will be presumed in all cases where it is reasonably 
possible. For instance, in Goodman v. The Mayor of 
Saltash (4) a question arises as to a right to an oyster

(1) 11 Ch. D. 790.
(2) 22 Bca. 299.

(3) 0 A. C. 740.
(4) 7 A. C. 633.
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fishing in a tidal river which had been exercised from 
time immemorial by a borough Corporation. The 
House of Lords held that the lawful origin for the usage 
ought to be presumed if reasonably possible, and that 
the presumption which ought to be drawn as reasonable 
in law and probable in fact, was that the original grant 
to the Corporation was subject to a trust or condition 
in favor of the inhabitants in accordance with the usage. 
Kay J., in speaking of this case says, “The Court 
felt themselves bound to refer that usage to some legal 
origin and invented a most ingenious legal origin by 
supposi"" a grant to the Corporation in trust for cer­
tain persons, the free inhabitants of ancient tenements 
within the borough." Tilbury v. Si ha (1). In the 
same case at page 118, Bowen L. J., says:—“There is 
no doubt that it is the principle of the English law to 
suppose a legal origin for long established use—to 
assume that there is some justification to be found for 
acts of open enjoyment which are continued as long as 
the memory of living people extends." In the Attorney- 
General v. Simpson (2) at page GflS, Harwell J., says: 
“The principle is, that, when the Court finds an open 
and uninterrupted ■ enjoyment of property for a long 
!>eriod unexplained, the Court will, if reasonably possi­
ble, find a lawful origin for the right in question."

In East Stonehouse Urban Council v. Willoughby 
Bros. (3) at page 332, Channell J., speaks of this pre­
sumption as “the rule which says that on long continues! 
user or possession being proved, anything requisite to 
give that user and possession a legal origin ought to t>c 
presumed by the Court." He adds, “This doctrine 
has long been known to our law, but in recent times it 
has been applied more widely and to a greater variety 
of cases than formerly."

1911.
McGaffigan 
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Company n al.

Barker. C. J.

(1) 45 Ch. D. 98. (2) [1901] 2 Ch. 671. (3) [1902] 2 K. B. 318.
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In the absence of any evidence as to the nature of 
the occupation of the buildings of these lots previous 
to the fire in 1877 I think we must presume a grant made 
then or since. No doubt such a presumption may be 
rebutted by showing that any such grant was impos­
sible. For instance in the case of Mill v. The Commis­
sioners of the Neui Forest (1) the presumed grant was 
from the Crown at a time when by Statute the Crown 
was prohibited from making it. At page 521, Jervis 
C. J., says: “Suppose that a qlaim to the right of use 
of water in respect of a particular house is established 
by proof of enjoyment for twenty years and that it is 
then shown that the house had lieen built only twenty- 
one years, non constat but the right might have been 
granted the day before the twenty years commenced. 
But here it is shown, that the enjoyment commencing 
when it did, the Crown could not have granted the 
right.”

In HiiUips v. HalliJay (2) the dispute arose over 
the possession of a pew- in a parish church, annexed to 
a dwelling house. It appeared that the lessee of the 
house had obtained possession of this pew two centuries 
ago, from the Churchwardens who had no power or 
authority to make any grant of it. The Court held 
that the grant of a faculty which would be valid ought 
to be presumed. Lord Herschell says: “Now I appre­
hend that when there has been long continued posses­
sion in assertion of a right, it is a well settled principle 
of English law that the right should be presumed to have 
had a legal origin if such a legal origin was possible and 
that the Courts will presume that those acts were done 
and those circumstances existed which were necessary 
to the creation of a valid title." (p. 231). At page 235 
Lord Herschell continues: “The argument on behalf 
of the appellants is this. Here, they say, we see the
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origin of this alleged right—it arose out of the errone­
ous supposition of the Vicar dnd Churchwardens, or the 
Churchwardens, that they could sell to a parishioner 
a portion of the site of the church, and that having done 
so, and he having erected a pew upon it, a good title to 
it vested in him which he could assert and maintain at 
law. My Lords, they are, of course, perfectly justified 
in saying that a transaction of that sort is one which 
could have no validity. Their position then, is this— 
we show that in its origin this alleged right was acquired 
in a manner not legal, and that being so, you have no 
right to presume (as you would have but for the exist­
ence of that entry and the information which it gives) 
that the right has been acquired in a legal manner, and 
therefore to presume, if necessary, a faculty for the pur­
pose of so establishing it. I am unable to accede to 
that proposition. It cannot be disputed, whatever may 
lie said of the earlier period, that at any time from and 
after the year 1087—that is within seven years of this 
original arrangement, a faculty (supposing that I am 
right in the propositions of law which 1 have already 
put before your Lordships) could have l>een granted 
which would have given a complete legal title. Why 
should the House or the Court refuse to presume, or 
abstain from presuming, a legal title to this alleged 
right, which they would otherwise have presumed, 
because in its inception it may be shown to have rested 
upon a foundation which would not support it? Why 
does not the doctrine which I have referred to, the 
maxim which has been so often acted upon, apply just 
as well to the acts necessary to confirm a title originally 
invalid as to the acts necessary to create a valid title 
in the first instance? It seems to me that the argument 
of the learned Counsel for the appellants must go to 
this length, that for however many centuries it may be 
proved that an alleged right has been asserted and
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enjoyed, if it can be shewn in its inception to have 
rested upon a foundation invalid in point of law, then, 
although the title might have been perfectly well valid­
ated by some act which you would otherwise have pre­
sumed, you are never justified in presuming that act 
to have been done. My Lords, I am perfectly unable 
to see upon what basis such a principle can rest. It 
seems to me that the very reason which has been held 
not only to justify, but almost to compel, the Court to 
make presumption of this description, applies just as 
much in the latter case as in the former.”

Several grounds are taken in answer to the case 
set up by the defendants. In the first place it is said 
that the premises have for all these years been in the 
possession of tenants and that the owner had therefore 
no means of interrupting the user. The evidence as 
to this point is of the most general character and at 
most would go to show the ordinary yearly tenancies.

. Besides this the easement involved in this case 
differs materially from an easement of air or light such 
as was discussed in Ring v. Pugsley (1). You cannot 
by action compel an owner of a building to close his 
windows for fear he may by uninterrupted user acquire 
a right in reference to your property. You must erect 
the incumbrance on your own land in the exercise of 
your right as owner, and if you cannot for that purpose 
enter on the premises of your lessee the time does not 
run against you. That is, however, different from this 
case. This action could as well have been brought 
twenty years ago as now. In the next place it is con­
tended that any presumption of grant is rebutted because 
the only persons who in 1877 could have made a grant 
were the five daughters of Mr. Parks in whom the title 
was, and they were under the disability of infancy for 
a part of the time, and of coverture for a part of the

(1) 2 P. & B. (N.B.R.) 303.
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time, which rendered it impossible for them to make 
a valid grant. The evidence shows that these daugh­
ters were born as follows:—the eldest (afterward married 
to Dr. Daniel Pugsley) October 16th, 1855, the second, 
on March 10th, 1857, the third May 29th, 1858, the 
fourth August 12th, 1862, and the youngest on March 
23rd, 1866. The eldest daughter was therefore of age 
in October, 1876, over six months before the fire, and 
the youngest became of age on the 23rd of March, 1887. 
All of them were of ago when they were married except 
Mrs. William Pugsley—who became of age in March, 
1878, having been married on the 6th of January, 1876. 
1 am not able at present to accede to the objection that 
infancy of itself rebuts this presumption of law. The 
conveyance of an infant is as effectual for passing the 
title as that of a person of full age, subject to this, that 
he has the privilege, if he chooses to avail himself of it, 
of avoiding the conveyance within a reasonable time 
after he became of age. Edwards v. Carter (1) Mc­
Donald v. Restigouche Salmon Club (2). The convey­
ance of an infant is perfectly valid and does not require 
any confirmation by the grantor after attaining full age 
to make it so. It is, however, not necessary for the 
purposes of this case to determine that question, because 
ample time elapsed after all these daughters had attained 
full age to make a grant. Between March 25th, 1887, 
when the youngest child became of age, until December, 
1909, when this action was commenced, is a period of 
over twenty-two years. What was there to prevent 
a grant being made during the first two years of the 
twenty-two? Nothing so far as 1 can discern, except 
coverture. But how is that any obstacle? The pro­
perty was owned as the separate property of the wives, 
though it could not be conveyed without the husbands 
joining in the conveyance. But when you are at lib-

1911.
McGaffigan 

The Willett 

Company

Barker, C. J.

(1) U8931 A. C. 360. (2) 33 N. B. 472.
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erty, if not bound, to presume a grant, there seems to 
me no more difficulty in presuming one made by the 
husband and wife, if that was necessary, than by the 
wife only, for the fact whether it was made or not by 
the wife alone or jointly with her husband, is not a 
factor in the discussion. 1 therefore see no difficulty 
in making the presumption and I see nothing to rebut it.

It was further contended that when these children 
came of age the user was not open and therefore time 
did not run against them. What I have said on this 
point in reference to the plaintiff applies more strongly 
to those daughters, not one of whom has gone on the 
stand to deny actual knowledge of the origin of this 
right which has been exercised for so long a period with­
out objection. Assuming that until they became of 
age time would not run against them they had then as 
full knowledge and notice of the use and of its nature 
and extent as they had years before.

It appears that there are two flues in the wall with 
openings on its north side into the defendants’ prem­
ises. Farrell was the first tenant of the premises after 
the fire. He occupied them for some twenty years from 
the fall of 1877 immediately after the new building was 
finished. These openings were no doubt left by the 
Parks builder in the wall when it was built and they 
have been there ever since and used by the occupants 
when necessary. During some part of the time the 
plaintiff was a tenant of some part of these premises. 
Farrell seems to have used one of these flues and 
although the plaintiff does not seem to have actually 
used the other there can be no doubt that he knew it 
was there. The evidence is not clear as to its actual 
use, but the inference is, I think, irresistible that the 
Parks heirs, or those who acted for them, left these 
openings for the accommodation of the adjoining pre­
mises—under what circumstances I cannot say, for there
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is no evidence. If the right is continued to them it does 
not seem to me that the present plaintiff has any cause 
for complaint.

There will be a declaration:
1. That the wall in question is not a party wall— 

that it stands altogether on the plaintiff's land and is 
owned exclusively by him.

2. That the defendants have no right of property 
in the said wall or title to the land on which it stands, 
but they are entitled to the use of the said wall for the 
support of their said buildings by keeping and main­
taining the joists of the same in the northern side of the 
wall as placed in 1877 and used since. They are also 
entitled to the continued use of the two openings into 
the flues.

3. The defendants must, within four months from 
service of decree, remove all joists or beams let into the 
said wall or fastened thereto as part of the elevator 
recently put ii\to the said building or in any way con­
nected therewith.

4. As to the costs I think each party must pay 
his own. The plaintiff has succeeded in part and the 
defendants in part.

1911.
McGaffigan 

The Wit Lett

COMHANY

Barker. C. J.



NEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY REPORTS. VOL.

1911.

July 31.
TURNBULL REAL ESTATE COMPANY v. SEGEE

ET AL.

Land—Documentary Title—Title by Possession—Occupancy—Injunc­
tion—Damages.

In 1705 a certain block of land, a portion of which is the land in question 
in this suit, was granted by the Crown to J. S., R. S. and J. \\\, 
and from that date a documentary title can be traced to the present 
time vesting this land in the plaintiff company.

In 1855, the then owner of the land and the predecessor in title of the 
plaintiff company, gave a lease of a portion of it, and from that 
time to the present the different owners and predecessors in title 
of the plaintiff company have given leases to various persons and 
collected the rents. The plaintiff company during its ownership 
has also given leases and collected rents.

In 1872, the defendant S. and his father went on the property and 
drove some stakes on the boundaries of the land in dispute, cut 
wood and made some excavations, either searching for magnesia 
or for some other reason. From this date down to the present, 
the defendant has been more or less on the land, digging holes 
and making excavations. He did not live on the land but went 
on it and performed these acts whenever he was able. During 
all this time the land not occupied by buildings was under lease 
to other persons for pasturage purposes, though the defendant 
recently drove off their animals on numerous occasions.

The defendant's father died in 1891, but neither he nor the defendant 
ever collected any rent from the tenants on the land in dispute, 
while the plaintiff company and its predecessors in title have 
collected rents during the whole time of their ownership.

In September, 1909, through his solicitor, the defendant wrote to the 
various tenants claiming damages for trespass and threatening 
suit, but nothing further was ever done; and in October, 1909, 
he gave a deed of a portion of this land to one M. M. W.

Held, that the defendant has no title by possession as his possession 
was not open, notorious and exclusive; as the plaintiff company 
and its predecessors in title exercised their rights and occupancy 
during the whole of the defendant's alleged possession.

Decree that the plaintiff company is the owner in fee simple of the 
tract of land in dispute, and for an injunction restraining the 
defendants from interfering with or disposing of or using or dealing 
with its land in any way, and further, that the defendants give 
the plaintiff company possession of the lands and premises. The 
Deed to M. M. W. will be declared void and set aside.

An application for an injunction restraining the 
defendants from trespassing on the plaintiff's land, and
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for an order that the defendants deliver up possession to 
the plaintiff, that a deed given by the defendant Segce 
to the defendant Ward of a portion of the land be set 
aside, and for damages. The facts are sufficiently stated 
in the judgment of the Court.

J. D. Hazen, A. G., and IV. A. Ewing, K. C., for the 
plaintiff.

G. W. Fowler, K. C., and IV. B. Jonah for the 
defendant.

Argument was heard May 13, 1011.

G. IV. Fowler, K. C., for the defendant: The plain­
tiffs' claim is based upon a grant from the Crown. This 
grant provided that the grantee should pay a quit rent 
of one shilling a year, and in case three years rent should 
be unpaid or any of the grantees should within ten years 
in any way, except by will, give away the land, the grant 
should be null and void. Under a like penalty of forfeiture, 
the grantees were to improve or enclose one-third of the 
land in the first ten years, another third in twenty years 
and the balance in thirty years. As the plaintiffs have 
failed to prove due fulfilment of these conditions, it must 
be taken that the property reverted to the Crown, and 
the only title the plaintiffs can set up is by possession, 
and this they have not proved. The settling of these 
lands was the very basis upon which the grant was issued, 
and that part of the lands that was not improved or enclosed 
within the thirty years became absolutely forfeited.

(McLeod J.:—But these grantees went into possession 
and the Crown at this date would not take steps to 
repossess.)

The grantees cannot be said to have been there under 
color of right so that possession of part could be considered 
as possession of the whole, and therefore as there would 
be no actual physical possession of the unenclosed and
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unimproved portion of the premises, that portion was 
open like any other Crown land for any squatter to go in. 
In 1872 the defendant’s father did go in, and in 1873 began 
to exercise acts of ownership. He set out stakes, which 
he kept renewed from time to time. It was just such an 
enclosure as if he had squatted on improved land and 
enclosed it with a fence. He quarried stone and cut wood 
and sold both. All acts, which, taken alone, might be 
regarded as mere trespasses, yet, when accompanied by the 
maintaining of stakes, became unequivocal acts of owner­
ship.

The father's acts enured for the benefit of his son the 
defendant.

(McLeod, J : The acts of A. will not enure to the 
benefit of the act of B., unless A. conveys the right accrued 
to him or unless B. takes by heirship).

But here there was community between the parties. 
The defendant and his father took possession by staking 
out the whole territory except the McDonald lot, the 
Burke lot and the Rogers lot, but he doesn’t appear to 
have exercised ownership over the western portion ; but 
he does show possession as far west as the Giggey lot on 
the front, and extending back to the lime kiln road, cutting 
it about in two. Segee was joking when he said he was 
looking for treasure. Claiming the eastern half, his acts 
of possession for that began with his father's staking in 
1872 with iron and wooden stakes, and that act of taking 
possession was open, definite and notorious, and therefore 
fulfils the condition to make out the possession under the 
statute. The father continued that down to 1891, the 
time of his death, jointly with his son. The defendant, 
who was his heir and also was jointly interested with him 
in the possession, has continued it down to the present 
time, by cutting wood off the premises, by planting and 
cultivating it, by replacing stakes first set as they became
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dislodged, either by rotting out or being displaced, by 
erecting buildings, by digging a well, by erecting fences, 
quarrying and selling stone, cutting and selling wood, and 
grazing and pasturing.

(McLeod, J.; In other words, you say he used it 
exactly as an owner and used it exclusively as an owner 
would?)

He used it exclusively as an owner would, driving off 
other people's cattle when they came there, forbidding 
and preventing anyone from making use of the property, 
or cutting or quarrying stone, or taking it away and from 
grazing and pasturing the property.

On the point that the possession of the father enures 
to the son, see Handley vs. Archibald (1). The evidence 
of the witnesses as to the defendant’s possession is clear. 
They have all shown absolutely that the Segees claimed 
the property, and that it was known as their land. All 
these acts were open and notorious. It is singular that, 
with all these acts going on, if the plaintiffs owned the 
property, they took no preventative steps. The part 
leased by the plaintiffs for grazing was a very small portion, 
and if adverse possession of this land was shown all the 
time, the granting of the land did not amount to anything 
against the possession.

(McLeod, J. : He hadn't the possession if the owner 
takes and deeds it and uses it).

But he doesn't; this man holds possession, and drives 
the cattle off, and refuses to allow them to graze there. 
The fact that they put their cattle somewhere else 
strengthens our case. The working of the quarry for 
almost every day off and on for thirty years shows con­
tinuous acts that cannot be recognized with ownership 
in anybody else. That the law with regard to possessory
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(1) 30 S. C. R., 130.
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titles is all a question of fact, see Doedem DesBarres v. 
White (1). The facts do really fit in with the requirements 
that it shall be adverse possession.

(McLeod, J.: I do not know whether it has to be 
adverse now, it is simply a possession under the statute. 
The old rule was “adverse," and that the claimant was 
in possession so long that they presumed a grant. But 
now we have the statute).

J. D. Hazeit, A. G., for the plaintiff : There is nothing 
before the Court to show that the conditions of the grant 
have not been fulfilled. The Act respecting Witnesses 
and Evidence (2), provided that in putting in a grant 
of this kind the conditions can l>c left out entirely. The 
burden is on the defendant to show the conditions have 
not lieen fulfilled. As there is no evidence to that effect, 
the presumption must lie that they have lieen fulfilled. 
If any one could object, it would not lie the defendant 
but the Crown. The fact that for one hundred and forty- 
six years the Crown allowed it to go on is good evidence 
of acquiesence. The plaintiff has a perfect documentary 
title from 1705, and has also proved possessory title from 
the year 1800. The leases given since that date cover 
all the property, and the lessees actually occupied the 
property. So it cannot be said the defendant acquired 
possession. As the defendant entered without a deed or 
any color of title, he can claim no more land than he 
actually occupied. The placing of stakes fifty yards apart 
therefore cannot affect the question. “The whole doctrine 
of adverse possession rests upon the presumed acquiesence 
of the owner,"—Washburn on Real Property (3). In 
view of the leases given by the plaintiff it is absurd to

(1) 1 Kerr, 3 N. B. 595. (2) C. S., N. B., 1903, Cap. 27, Sec. 30.
(3) 2nd. Ed., 498.
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presume any acquiesence on its part. Washburn continues : 
"Acquiesence cannot be presumed, until the owner has, 
or may be presumed to have, notice of the possession." 
The plaintiff never heard of a claim by the defendant until 
1S99. If two persons are claiming possession, one having 
a title, and the other not, the person who has the title is 
in actual possession and the other is a mere trespasser. 
Jones v. Chapman (I). Here, two people arc claiming 
possession, and the title is vested in the plaintiff. The 
defendant was a trespasser. It cannot be said he had any 
possession at all. See also doe dem desBarres v. White (2) 
and Sherren v. Pearson (3) quoting from the judgment of 
Parker, J., in desBarres vs. White.

The defendant says he was there for the purpose of 
but one act, viz., to get magnesia. This would not give 
title by possession: Washburn (4). Nor would the mere 
making of an enclosure: Washburn (5); McIntyre v. 
Thompson (6); Wood vs. LeBlanc (7); Allison v. Rednor 
(8).

The defendant confines his claim to the eastern half. 
Yet the only claim to title from the evidence is, that he 
cut bushes there. The part where he actually quarried 
stone was included in the leases, and he therefore could 
not claim that. The evidence would lead to the conclusion 
that they were digging there under the insane delusion 
that there was treasure hidden there. That was the 
opinion of the people in the vicinity. He was therefore 
merely a trespasser. All the acts done by the defendant, 
or his father, are consistent with possession being in the 
real owner. The defendant must have known of Mr. 
Baxter's lease. The defendant never paid the taxes; 
he never asked the occupiers for rent, nor put them off.

(1) 2 Ex. 803. at 821.
(2) 1 Kerr, 3 N. B., 595. at pp.

627 and 640.
(3) 14 S. <\ R„ 581, at 580.
(4) 2nd. Ed., p. 5U0.

(5) 2nd. Ed., p. 596.
(6) 1 0. !.. R. (C.A.) 103.
(7) 34 S. C. R., 627.
(8) 14 V. C. Q. B„ 459.
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No part of the land was ever fenced off by defendant, or 
his father, and the defendant and his father cannot have 
occupied it continuously. If defendant had any possession 
at all it was for only about eighteen years and nine months. 
The father died intestate, leaving a number of children, 
of whom the defendant is one. If the defendant claims 
as heir to his father, he is only tenant in common. The 
defendant, could not claim title from his father, whose 
possession, if any, did not ripen into title at the time of 
his death, so that he could devise the land or give title 
to any one. Miller v. Robertson (1), is distinguishable 
from the present case, as there the plaintiff only claimed 
title by possession.

The Court :—The injunction continues for the present.

1011. July 31. McLeod, J.

This is an action brought by the Turnbull Real Estate 
Company asking for a decree declaring that the plaintiffs 
are the owners in fee simple of a certain tract or lot of 
land mentioned and described in the Statement of Claim, 
and also for an injunction to restrain the defendants, their 
workmen and servants, from entering upon or trespassing 
upon the said lands and premises or any part thereof and 
from committing waste or spoil thereon and from continuing 
to trespass thereon or any part thereof and to prevent them 
from conveying, mortgaging, leasing, disposing of or 
dealing with or attempting to deal with the said lands 
and premises or any part thereof in any way, and for a 
decree that the defendants give the plaintiffs possession 
of the lands and premises described, and for a decree setting 
aside and declaring void a deed bearing date the 15th day 
of October, 1000, from the defendant John A. Segee to 
the defendant Mabel M. Ward. And also for a decree 
that the defendants pay the plaintiffs damages to be

(1) 35 S. C. R. 80.
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assessed by this Honorable Court in respect of the said 1911. 
trespasses so committed by them respectively, and also Tramwi

Company 

Segee by al,

McLeod. J.

for costs of the action.
The defendant Segee in his Statement of Defence — 

claims that he has acquired a title to the land in dispute 
by possession, and the defendant Mabel M. Ward claims 
a certain lot of the said sixty acres under a deed made to 
her by the defendant Segee the lôth day of October, 1909.

I will first state the plaintiffs' claim of title. In the 
year 1705 the Government of the Province of Nova Scotia 
of which Province New Brunswick then formed a part, 
granted a large block of land containing altout 2,900 acres 
to James Simonds, Richard Simonds and James White, 
situated in what is now the City, of Saint John, North 
End. This grant was registered in the Province of Nova 
Scotia on October 3rd, 1705.

The Province of New Brunswick was afterwards 
established and set apart from Nova Scotia, and on the 
21st of February, 17S5, this grant was registered in New 
Brunswick under an Act passed by the Legislature of that 
Province entitled "An Act respecting Nova Scotia grants."

I shall not follow all the agreements and conveyances 
from that time until the present, but a part of this grant 
of which the land claimed by the defendant forms a part 
was conveyed to and came into the possession of Charles 
Simonds about 1831, and Charles Simonds by his will 
which was admitted to Probate in the City of Saint John 
on the 18th of April, 1859, devised all the land so owned 
or possessed by him to his two sons, Henry G. Simonds 
and Richard Simonds.

On October 20th, 1859, Henry G. Simonds and Richard 
Simonds made a partition of the land so devised to them 
by their father, Charles Simonds, and by that partition 
the land claimed by the defendant was included in the 
portion assigned to Richard Simonds.
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Richard Simonds subsequently executed two mortgages 
on the land conveyed to him in the partition, one to Stephen 
Wiggins and Frederick A. Wiggins, dated the 14th of 
October, 1X01, which was duly registered in the City and 
County of Saint John, and one to the executors and trustees 
of Thomas Gass, dated the 10th of November, 1804, which 
was also duly registered. These mortgages covered the 
land in dispute.

Richard Simonds died in 1X00, and by his will devised 
the whole of his property to Thomas Gilbert. This will 
was admitted to Probate in the City of Saint John on 
December 12th, 1X00. Thomas Gilbert immediately went 
into possession of all the property so devised to him, includ­
ing the portion now claimed by the defendant.

On the 14th of May, IX,SO, the mortgage given to the 
executors and trustees of Thomas Gass was assigned by 
the surviving executor and trustee of Thomas Gass to 
Thomas Gilbert, which assignment was recorded in the 
records in and for the City and County of Saint John on 
May 14th, 1880.

On the 25th day of May, 18X5, Thomas Gilbert and 
his wife conveyed the whole of the property devised to 
him by Richard Simonds by way of mortgage to the Bank 
of New Brunswick, which mortgage was duly registered : 
and on the 22nd day of November, 1880, he, by deed, 
absolutely conveyed the whole of the property so mortgaged 
to the Bank of New Brunswick, which deed was duly 
registered. The Bank of New Brunswick therefore at 
this time owned all the Richard Simonds property, subject, 
however, to the mortgage given by Richard Simonds to 
Stephen Wiggins and Frederick A. Wiggins in October, 1X01.

On the 3()th of April, 18X7, the Bank of New Bruns­
wick by deed conveyed the whole property to W. Wallace 
Turnbull subject to the Wiggins mortgage, which deed 
was duly registered. On the 5th of September, 1887, the 
executors of Frederick A. Wiggins, in whom the Wiggins
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mortgage had vested, assigned that mortgage to W. Wallace 
Turnbull and Mr. Turnbull then owned the whole property 
free from incumbrance. This assignment also confirmed 
all the leases that had been given by the different owners 
of the equity of redemption during the time the mortgage 
was held on the property.

Mr. Turnbull went into possession of the whole of 
the property on the 27th of September, 1887. Mr. Turn- 
bull and his wife by deed conveyed the whole of the property 
to their son Ernest H. Turnbull, which deed was duly 
registered, and he went into possession and remained in 
possession until July, 1891, when on the 3(lth of July, 1891, 
he reconveyed it to Mr. W. W. Turnbull, which deed was 
duly registered.

Subsequently and early in 1892 the plaintiff company 
was incor|x>rated for the purpose of taking over the property 
and on July 25th, 1892, Mr. Turnbull and his wife conveyed 
the whole of the property to the plaintiff company, which 
deed was duly registered, and the plaintiff company went 
into possession of the property and has remained in posses­
sion ever since.

It will thus be seen that the plaintiff company has 
a good documentary title by these various conveyances 
from the grantees from the Crown and their various suc­
cessors in title, unless its title to these sixty acres or ap­
portion of it has been disturbed by possession of the 
defendant.

On the argument it was contended by Mr. Fowler 
on liehalf of the defence that the conditions in the grant 
had not been fulfilled by the grantee and therefore the 
grant or a portion of it, of which the land in dispute was 
a part, failed and Ijccame void for the following reasons :

He says the grant contains a covenant that the grantee 
should pay a certain quit rent of one shilling a year, and 
further that they were to improve or enclose one-third of 
the land in fifteen years, the second third in twenty years
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and the last third in thirty years, otherwise their title to 
the land would he forfeited; and he claims that the plaintiff 
should prove that all this was done.

There is no proof with reference to that whatever. 
The grantees and their successors in title have remained 
in possession during these nearly one hundred and fifty 
years and I certainly shall not at this time undertake to 
determine that that grant became void over a hundred 
years ago. The grant was made in 17(>5 and the thirty 
years would expire before the commencement of the last 
century. Vnder these circumstances I think it is too 
much to expect me to undertake for a moment to determine 
that the grant is void. I will dismiss this objection without 
further remarks.

The defendant's claim is one entirely of possession. 
He says that the possession commenced in 1872 by his 
father. In order to obtain possession of land of w’hich 
another person has the title that possession must be open, 
notorious and apparent.

Doe dem Des Barre v. White (1) was cited by the 
defendants' counsel but I do not think that case under 
the evidence given supports his contentions. In that 
case it was said that the presumption is that the owner 
remains in possession of that which is not actually in 
jKkisession of others until proof be given of acts of possession 
by the defendant. "It is sufficient for the plaintiff as owner 
of the fee, to show the land continued in its natural state 
and uninclosed within twenty years before action.

In Sherren vs. Pearson (2) Ritchie C. J., at p. 585, 
says:—"To enable the defendant to recover he must show 
an actual possession, an occupation exclusive, continuous, 
open or visible and notorious for twenty years. It must 
not lte equivocal, occasional or for a special or temporary 
purpose." And Taschereau J. (afterwards Chief Justice 
Taschereau) in the same case says:—“Owners of wilderness

(1) 1 Kerr, N. B. 596. (2) 14 S. C. K. 581.
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or wooded lands lying along side of or in the rear of other 
cultivated fields are not bound to fence them or to hire 
men to protect them from spoliation. The spoiler, however, 
does not, by managing without discovery even for succes­
sive years to carry away valuable timber, necessarily 
acquire, in addition, title to the land. The law does not 
so reward spoliation."

I think 1 need not refer to further authorities.
It is undoubted law that a man going on land the 

title of which is in another person and the possession also 
in that person, cannot gain title unless his possession is 
open and exclusive, and when I say "exclusive" I mean 
it must be exclusive in itself, he cannot gain it if the owner 
of the land is in possession at the same time. With that 
statement I shall proceed first to see how the plaintiff 
company and its predecessors in title occupied this land.

So far back as in the time when Charles Simonds 
owned it, 1855, he leased a lot of this sixty acres to one 
Rogers, and Rogers or his successors in title have continued 
since that down to the present time to lease that lot and 
pay rent for it.

Thomas Gilbert while he was in possession leased 
one lot in 1871 to one John McDonald. He also gave a 
lease of a lot to a Mr. McCutcheon in 1873. He gave a 
lease of a lot to George Greer in 1878 and one to Martin 
Jeffries in 1880 and one to George Burke in 1884. Mr. 
Turnbull also leased it during his lifetime and the plaintiffs 
have leased lots of this very sixty acres.

It appears on the plan attached to the plaintiff's 
statement of claim that there are eleven lots leased within 
this sixty acres fronting on the roatl that surrounds it. 
In addition to that the balance of the land was leased, 
as far as 1 can say from the evidence, in the first instance 
in 1882 to a man named John Carvel!. He was a man 
who kept cattle and sold milk. He leased that, together 
with other lots, for pasturage purposes. He was occupying
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it for pasturage purposes under this lease, when Mr. Turn- 
hull came into possession of it in 1S87 and he continued 
to occupy it and paid $25 a year rent for it until 1892. 
This is the same property the defendant claims by posses­
sion. It also appears by the evidence of one witness, a 
Mr. Jeffries, that during the time he (Carvel!) had the 
lease he put a brush fence around it to protect his pasture.

On the Kith of May, 1892, Mr. Turnbull gave a lease 
to Robert E. Baxter. It is as follows:

“Mr. Robert E. Baxter,

“Dear Sir:—

"I hereby offer to lease you for the purpose of pasturage 
only the land on Adelaide Road formerly under lease to 
Mr. John H. Carvell, term five years from the 1st of May 
instant, you to keep the property fenced to your own 
satisfaction, at your own cost and expense, 1 to be at 
liberty without any deduction in rent to lease for building 
purposes any of the land fronting on the Adelaide Road 
to a distance from the Road of say not exceed il g 150 feet. 
The rent to be $25 a year, payable quarterly, the first 
payment to be made on the first day of August next, the 
sum of $0.25.

“Yours truly,

“W. W. Turnbull."

“I accept the abové offer.

“Robert E. Baxter.”

This lease expired in 1897. It was not immediately 
leased but in 1898 the plaintiff company leased it to Major 
H. Green for the term of fifteen years. There w'ere other 
lots included in the lease and the rent was $00 a year.
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Major H. Green has continued to occupy it for pasturage 
purposes.

Then back to the time Mr. Gilbert owned the property, 
at all events, these eleven lots fronting on the road surround­
ing those sixty acres were under lease to different parties 
all paying rent to the landlord, first to Gilbert, afterwards 
to Mr. Turnbull, then to Ernest H. Turnbull and then 
to the plaintiff company. The rest of the sixty acres was 
leased first to Mr. Carvell, which lease as 1 have said began 
in 1882 and continued to 181)2, then a lease was made to 
Mr. Baxter for five years, which expired in 1897. From 
1897 to 1898 it was not leased, but in 1898 it was leased 
to Mr. Green who still continues in possession. That is 
the statement of the plaintiff's title and the plaintiff's 
possession. The plaintiff’s title from the Crown I hold 
to be good.

The question is, has the defendant now disturbed 
the plaintiff’s title? He has no title in himself, his father 
had no title in himself and in my opinion neither the defend­
ant nor his father ever got a title by possession. The 
defendant Segee does not claim that his father ever had 
any legal title to the land but he says that his father went 
into possession of the land in 1872 and continued in 
possession until 1891 and that he, the defendant Segee, 
continued that possession down until the present time. 
He states that his father asked Mr. Gilbert for a lease and 
Mr. Gilbert told him he couldn't give it to him. Mr. 
Gilliert denies that and says he never asked him for a lease 
of it. That is a question of evidence upon which 1 must 
pass. I take the statement of Mr. Gilbert to be correct 
and find that he never asked for a lease of the land.

The defendant says that his father went on the land 
about 1872 and staked around the sixty acres, knowing 
he had no title to the land but thinking if no one came 
along to claim it he would get the title by possession. 
As to staking the lot around the evidence is not
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clear. There is some evidence that it was staked around 
and some that it was not. My opinion after having 
heard all the evidence is that the sixty acres was not 
staked around. 1 cannot find that his father did take 
any actual open possession of the land and certainly 
not of the sixty acres. There is no pretence that any of 
the tenants ever paid him anything or that he ever asked 
them for anything. There is no pretence that he ever 
interfered with them and he does not ap|iear to have done 
anything on the land, except it was said he was quarrying 
stone, but I think the evidence does not support that. It 
does not appear that he quarried stone or sold stone to 
anyone. I do not know what his occupation was but he 
made an ointment and from the evidence I think he was 
digging among the crevices of the rock for material for 
making this ointment. He, as well as the defendant Segee, 
appears to have been searching for magnesia.

It is said he planted a patch of potatoes there but he 
never gathered them; they were overrun and destroyed 
by cattle. The whole sixty acres does not appear to have 
been enclosed at all and in former times anyone went on 
it and cut wood on it and cattle owned by anyone went 
on it. His father never apjiears to have looked after the 
patch of potatoes, he did not enclose it and it was, as 1 
have said, destroyed by cattle. If a man thought he was 
in possession of the land and professed to be in sole posses­
sion, he would protect the crops he put upon it in some 
way.

The defendant Segce’s father died in 1891 and he 
claims that he continued his father's possession. After 
having heard the evidence given and having since care­
fully examined it I find as a matter of fact that the defend­
ant's father did not have open and exclusive possession 
of the sixty acres or any part of it, he simply went on the 
land from time to time for the purposes I have said. I 
may say that the defendant's father left him surviving
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five children but none of them except the defendant seem HHl. 
to have made any claim to the land. One witness I think rJÀi"e"iMe 
says George Segee, a brother of the defendant, did some 1 "M,PAS' 
quarrying there. The defendant himself says and the Slu^U;T Al 
principal evidence he gives of occupation at all is that he 
was quarrying stone there.

I have examined his evidence with great care and 
have come to the conclusion he was not quarrying stone 
there. He appears to have sold no stone except in 1009 
he says he^sold one or two loads for $2.75, but although 
he says he sold stone prior to 1900 he cannot give the name 
of a single man to whom he sold. Instead of quarrying 
in the cliffs where the stone was, he dug down into the 
ground to get out material for some purpose—the general 
idea was, I gather from the evidence, that he was digging 
for treasure, or sometimes digging for magnesia. He 
himself says a part of his object was to find magnesia.
I find he was not quarrying for stone.

It is true he says some stone was hauled from there.
My opinion however, from the evidence, is that the quan­
tity of stone he claims was hauled from there was really 
hauled from a limekiln that was then not used and was 
just outside the sixty acres. The defendant did not work 
or farm any of the land himself.

The plaintiff company and its predecessors were all 
the time using this land for the purpose, and the only 
purpose for which it was fit to lie used, that is a part of this 
land was fit for pasturage and they had it under pasturage 
and rented for that and received the rent for it. What 
lots there were along the road, so far as they could, they 
leased and received the rents. The defendant does not 
pretend that he ever collected rent or that the tenants 
paid him in any way.

So far as I can gather I think the first time the defend­
ant practically made a claim to the property was in 1909, 
on Septcmljcr 18th, when Mr. Currey, a barrister of this
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City, wrote the tenants a letter of which the following is 
a copy: (I read the one written to Thomas Gillen, one 
of the tenants). He says :

“Dear Sir:—

“Mr. John A. Segee complains you have been tres­
passing on his property situated on Millidgeville Road 
and has retained me to claim damages for trespass thereon. 
Unless you call and make satisfactory settlement for his 
claim my instructions are to issue a writ for trespass in 
the Supreme Court."

The same letter was sent to all those tenants who 
had leases. Some of them had been holding under leases 
for years and years and paying rent to the plaintiff company 
or its predecessors in title. No attention was paid to the 
letters and nothing further was done at that time.

In 1909 he built successively four different shanties 
on this lot. Those shanties were successively torn down 
by the plaintiff company and he appears to have taken 
no action about it.

He never lived on the property except that he says 
he has been living on it for the past six months. If that 
be true he must be simply living in a shanty, because in 
his own evidence he says that he commenced to build it 
on October Nth and finished on October 22nd. I find no 
cause for his pretension that he had possession of the land 
that he pretends to have sold to Mabel Ward, except that 
he gave her a deed of it.

Without going over the evidence in detail I come to 
the conclusion and find that the defendant had no exclusive 
possession of the property, in fact he had no possession 
at all; all that he did was to go there from time to time 
digging down in the ground for the purpose of finding 
some treasure or other, as he himself said time and time 
again, or for the purpose of finding magnesia ; but he did 
not in any way interfere with the possession of the plaintiff 
company in its lot.
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He says he sometimes drove off the cattle that were 
there, but the owners continued to use the pasture. I 
Itelieve the last year or two he made trouble and disturbed 
Mr. Green's cattle pasturing there.

Under these circumstances I find as a matter of fact:
First, That the plaintiff company had the title to the 

property and the company and its predecessors in title 
have had a continuous possession until the present time.

Second, I find that the defendant did not have any 
o|>en and exclusive possession so as to exclude the plaintiff 
company.

A judgment must therefore lie ordered for the plaintiff.
As to the defendant Mabel M. Ward who only received 

her title from the defendant Segee in October, 1909, and 
he had no ownership of the land and could not give any 
title to it as he did not own it, the deed conveyed nothing 
to her but it is a blot on the plaintiff company’s title and 
must be set aside.

The decree will be that the plaintiffs are owners in 
fee simple of the tract of land mentioned and described 
in the fifteenth paragraph of the plaintiff’s Statement of 
Claim and there will be an injunction restraining the 
defendants Segee and Maliel M. Ward, as asked for in the 
Statement of Claim, and further that the defendants give 
the plaintiff possession of the lands and premises. The 
deed to Mabel M. Ward will be declared void and set aside.

As for the damages, I cannot give all the damages 
claimed by the plaintiff. I cannot give damages for the 
legal expenses. The damages will be for the cost of filling 
in the excavations and for taking down the four buildings— 
everything outside of the legal expenses.

The defendant Segee will pay the damages and the 
decree will be with costs against the defendants.
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DONALD V. McMANUS, et al.
Sm ember il.

Agreement—Collateral Declarations—Specific Performance—Accounting

On September 7th, 1907, a written agreement was entered into between 
the plaintiff D. I). and the defendants C. McM. and L. MrM., 
for the sale of certain lands, the title to which was vested in the 
defendants, for the sum of two hundred dollars ($200).

At the same time there was a verbal understanding between the parties 
to the agreement and S. D., the mother of the plaintiff, that the 
agreement was only to be used to raise money to pay the creditors 
of the plaintiff and S. I)., and was not to he used for any purpose 
until tne assent of R. C. D., the father of the plaintiff, had been 
obtained.

The agreement was never used for the purpose of paying the creditors 
and the assent of R. C. D. to it was never obtained.

Held, that the agreement was valid, although the assent of the plaintiff’s 
father was never obtained, and that the verbal agreement not to 
use was only a collateral agreement, and did not affect the validity 
of the agreement itself.

Held also, that the defendants are liable to account to the plaintiff for 
the moneys received by them on the sale of the property, subject 
to the trust that such moneys be held for the benefit of the creditors 
of the plaintiff and his mother.

Billed filed for an -accounting, and for the payment of 
money due under an agreement. The facts are fully stated 
in the judgment of the Court.

Hf. B. Chandler, K. C., for the plaintiff.

M. G. Teed, K. C., and E. A. Reilly, for the defendants.

Argument was heard August 25, 1911.

1911. Noveml>er 21. Barker C. J.:

The plaintiff and the defendant Lucy McManus, who 
is the wife of the other defendant, are children of one 
Rol»ert C. Donald who for some years carried on the 
business of a contractor. In 1N90 he made an assignment
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lor the benefit of his creditors and since that time he has _ 1011. 
not had any property in his own name nor has he carried Donald 
on any business openly on his own account. His wife,
Susanna Donald seems to have acquired his property, or babmbTc. j. 
at all events that portion of it at Sunny Brae, in the Parish 
of Moncton, and in the latter part of 1003 or early in 1904— 
ihe precise time is immaterial—she made a conveyance 
of this property to her son-in-law, the defendant, Cecil 
McManus. On a portion of it the defendants have built 
a house now in their occupation. On another portion 
Roliert C. Donald has erected a house which is occupied 
by him and his family. The remainder of the property 
out of which arose this litigation was, on the 22nd March,
1905, leased by the defendant Cecil McManus to one 
William T. Campbell for five years from April 1, 1005, 
at an annual rental of $180. This lease contained a 
provision by which the tenant had the right at any time 
during the continuation of the term to purchase the pro­
perty for $3,000. In May, 1008, The Builders Wood­
working Co., Limited, which had acquired Campbell's 
interest in the lease and were then operating the factory- 
on the premises, gave notice of their intention to purchase; 
and on the 22nd June, 1908, the defendants executed a 
conveyance of the property to that Company in com­
pletion of their purchase. The price of $3,000 was paid 
by the Company's assuming two mortgages then on the 
property—one to W. W. Wells for $1,002.01 and one to 
Reilly for $350—a debt due the Company by Robert 
Donald of some $500 and a balance of $1,018.13 paid by 
$500 in cash, and two promissory notes. Though the 
purchase was made in June the money was not paid until 
the following September. The $1,018.13 was then paid 
to the defendant Lucy McManus. She paid it over to 
her father without consulting the plaint'ff, and he, without 
consulting the plaintiff, utilized aliout half of the amount 
in building his house on the land occupied by him, and of
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the remainder a part went to his creditors, though the 
evidence does not give any particulars as to the expenditure.

In the year 1900 the plaintiff and his father built a 
mill on this property and continued to carry on a wood­
working factory for some three years, sometimes as the 
Donald Company, hut later on in the plaintiff's name. 
The business resulted in a loss, and when it stopped in 
Deccmlicr, 1903, the indebtedness amounted to aliout 
$0,000. For about $2,000 of this, Susanna Donald was 
liable and for a large part, if not for the whole balance, the 
plaintiff was liable, and he says, and he is not contradicted, 
a portion of this indebtedness was made up of Robert 
Donald’s old indebtedness and which the plaintiff had 
to assume. In this condition of matters the plaintiff 
went away to Boston where he has been living ever since, 
and Mrs. Donald, in whose name the title to the property 
was, conveyed it to her son-in-law, and the creditors have 
apparently received but little. In Septeml>er, 1907, the 
plaintiff came to Hampton where he met the defendants 
and his mother by appointment. While there, tbdefend­
ants at his request executed under their hand< and seals 
the following agreement:—

Agreement.

‘"Agreement of Cecil W. McManus and Lucy M. 
McManus of Amherst, Nova Scotia, to Andrew D. Donald 
of Boston, Mass. For the sum of two hundred dollars 
($200), value received, we promise to convey to said Andrew 
D. Donald or assignee by a good deed and title, all property 
of any nature mentioned in an agreement between Cecil 
\\. McManus of one part and William T. Campbell of the 
other part, said agreement being dated March 22, 1905, 
subject to a mortgage given to W. W. Wells by one R. C. 
Donald for the sum of one thousand sixty-two dollars and 
one cent ($1,062.01).

"This is also subject to agreement, bill of sale (or any 
other designature as may be applied to said paper) in the
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sum of three hundred and fifty dollars ($350) to Albert__151L_
E. Reilly, and is also subject to agreement of lease and D°5JAU> 
option to William T. Campbell, until deed is given—we "''et'al.1' 
promising to pay to said Andrew D. Donald, all moneys Boule*, c. j. 

received in any way from said property.
‘‘Cecil W. McManus, (L. S.)
“Lucy McD. McManus, (L. S)

"All erasures and substitutions 
made More signatures.

“Susanna Donald.

"Signed, sealed and delivered 
in presence of,

"Fred W. Freeze.

"September 7, A. D. 1907.

This action is brought for an account of the moneys 
received from the sale of the property and for payment 
of the amount due under the agreement. At the hearing 
all parties interested, the plaintiff and defendants and 
Robert Donald and his wife, all seemed not only willing 
but anxious that the money should be paid over to the 
creditors. Notwithstanding this, my efforts to give 
practical effect to their apparent wishes by an amicable 
arrangement were thwarted I regret to say, by some family 
quarrel which has grown out of this business, the importance 
of which scents to me to have been much exaggerated.

The defence set up is contained in Section 10 of the 
statement. It is this:—That when the agreement was 
made it was agreed and understood by and between the 
plaintiff and defendants and Susanna Donald, that it was 
made subject to the terms and conditions that it should 
be null and void and of no force or effect and should not 
operate as an agreement unless and until Robert C. Donald 
consented to, approved and ratified it, and in the absence
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of such approval the agreement should he of no force or 
DON,u> effect. An alternative claim was added at the hearing

Mi M ini s to the effect that the agreement was made and given to
Basiuk, c. J. and obtained by the plaintiff for the purpose of enabling

him thereby or on the security thereof to obtain moneys 
to compromise and discharge certain debts due by the 
plaintiff and Susanna Donald and for no other purpose 
and that the plaintiff should compromise and discharge 
the debts on or before the 1st day of January then next. 
It was owned that the father's consent never was given, 
that no money was raised for the payment of debts and 
the agreement was not used for that purpose.

I have carefully read over the evidence since the 
hearing and compared the statements of the different 
witnesses. In one particular the plaintiff's evidence is 
in conflict with that of the other witnesses but with that 
exception there are no more differences in the accounts 
given by the different witnesses than we might look for 
in a family discussion carried on at intervals during a 
week on a subject upon which all the parties who took 
part in it, now substantially agree. For there is no doubt 
that the defendants and Mrs. Donald had no objections 
to the agreement. Mrs. Donald says that she made an 
objection that it might make trouble between the defendants 
and the plaintiff. None of the other witnesses mention 
this. I have come to the conclusion that the evidence 
does not sustain the defence set up that there was any 
undertaking going to the validity of the agreement. What­
ever promises or declarations or assurances the plaintiff 
may have given as to obtaining his father's consent to 
his using the agreement as he proposed they were collateral 
altogether to the agreement itself. The agreement is 
under seal, it was delivered absolutely and neither contained 
any condition nor was it subject to any upon which its 
validity dejicndcd which prevented it liecoming operative 
on its execution.
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The defendant Mrs. McManus seems to have been 
in charge of the property and the active member of the 
family in its management. In her evidence she states 
that they were all together at Hampton for a week and 
that the question of this agreement came up about the 
third day after her arrival. The matter was of course 
introduced by the plaintiff and when asked as to what took 
place Mrs. McManus said: “Well, he said he wished to 
come back home and wished to have his debts paid and 
he had a friend who offered to loan him means to relieve 
his mother's indebtedness and his own and he wished, he 
said, to get this money from his friend whom he would 
give his personal note for it and he asked this only not to 
use it unless his father consented and only to show to his 
friend whom he was getting this from." It is altogether 
improbable that this statement is correct just as it is given. 
To read it as an answer to the question one would think 
that this was the plaintiff's introduction of the subject 
and that the suggestion as to his father's consent, and all 
of that came from him as a part of his original p.ro|X)sal, 
when it is clear from the evidence that it did not. The 
passage I have quoted simply contains a summarized 
account by the witness of the results of conversations and 
discussions on the subject as she remembered them. She 
then went on to speak of the indebtedness of her mother 
and brother and her examination continued.

“y. Well how did this question of your father's 
consent the agreement not to be used as you termed it 
without your father's consent, how did that come up? 
A. Both my husband and I, we didn't agree to sign it 
without his consent.

“Q. Was that discussed between you more than 
once? A. Yes on three or four occasions.

"Q. And what do you say he promised? A. That 
he wouldn't use it or even show it to any person until he

Vol. 4. N. B. E. R —27.
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had his father’s consent, as he was more reluctant about 
it."

On her cross-examination she was asked this question. 
"Q. What objection had you to signing? A. I 

wished my father to be consulted about it before—I asked 
it to be left for his consideration before it was signed.

"Q. That he might see the agreement? A. Yes 
I wished him to sec it.

“Q. Your father was then in Charlottetown? A.
Yes.

"Q. And what did your brother say about that? 
A. He said we could trust him and if we would sign it, 
and trust him he would make this promise, that it would 
never be shown to any one or go out of his hands or be 
used in any way without his father's consent.

“Q. Is that all he said about it? A. That is all 
I remember.

“y. Was anything said alxmt obtaining your father's 
consent? A. Certainly, I told him 1 would write as soon 
as I got " , I would write ami explain it to him."

At another part of her examination she was asked:— 
“Q. You say you Sent a copy of the agreement to 

your father? Did you take a copy or did your brother 
give you a copy to send to your father, or was there a 
duplicate agreement? A. He gave it to me.

“y. Was that the copy you sent your father? A.
Yes.

"y. Was it given you for that purpose—was it 
spoken of that you were going to send it to your father? 
A. I can’t rcmemlter but I think it must have been.

"y. (By the Court) Do I understand as far as you 
recollect he gave you the copy for you to send your father, 
to show what the agreement was, in order to get his consent ? 
A. Yes.

"y. In that view you got it—for that purpose? A.
Yes.

4
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"Q. So you were to communicate with your father 
not he? A. Yes."

In accordance w-ith this understanding Mrs. McManus 
did write her father a letter—it is dated at Amherst, Sep­
tember 10, 1907, and that portion of it relating to this 
agreement is as follows :—

1911.

McManus
ETAL.

Barker. C. J.

“Duncan seems in a great hurry to get a settlement 
with his creditors. That Mr. Jacques he speaks of told 
him he would advance him money enough to fix them up 
on a note from him (Duncan). He didn't ask any security 
but Duncan brought a paper for us to sign. 1 am sending 
you the copy of it. He said it wouldn’t go out of his hands, 
that he merely wanted to show it to Mr. Jacques, that he 
would take his note anti after all the creditors were settled 
with, he could have it and perhaps get a working interest 
with the Frenchmen for himself.” ‘This refers to Messrs. 
Bourque & Le Blanc who were the Woodworker Company.) 
"Ma was sure you would consent to it, but I told Duncan 
I thought you should have it all explained to you, so Duncan 
said he would not show Jacques the paper or use it in any 
way until you approved of it. I intended to send it a 
week ago but time slipped by so." There is nothing in 
this letter to sustain the contention that this agreement 
was not to liecome operative until it was consented to by 
Mr. Donald. On the contrary the absence of any such 
stipulation in the instrument itself and the circumstances 
under which it was executed point to an entirely different 
conclusion. If there had lieen any such agreement or 
any intention on the defendants’ part to make one, Mrs. 
McManus was sufficiently intelligent to have understood 
it and sufficiently sensible to have made that fact clear 
to her father in the letter of explanation she wrote him. 
So far from this I wing the case, Cecil McManus, in whom 
the title to the property then stood, and his wife, who 
seems to have occupied some kind of a fiduciary position
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MU- in reference to the property, not definitely disclosed by 
Dosa'.d (he evidence, l>oth favored the plaintiff’s proposal and 

were both willing to accede to it. Mrs. Donald, who was 
Bauer, c. j. one of the two debtors to be substantially benefited by 

the proposed arrangement, was not only willing that it 
should be entered into, but expressed herself as sure that 
her husband would be equally so. Under these circum­
stances it seemed a most natural thing for the defandants 
to enter into this agreement. They only ran the risk of 
incurring Mr. Donald's censure, and in that event, remote 
as it seemed to be, they had the plaintiff's assurance that 
he would not use the agreement to fall back iqion. To 
this letter, so far as the evidence goes, there does not seem 
to have been any reply. There does not seem to have 
Iteen any communication with the plaintiff on the subject— 
I refer to Mr. Donald's consent—until September, 1II0N, 
a year later, when the plaintiff was in St. John. His father 
at that time wanted the agreement given up. I think it 
likely that he did know ltcforc that of his father's objections 
to hint having the control, though there is no positive 
evidence on the subject. Mrs. Donald in her evidence 
varies the statement somewhat. She was asked what the 
plaintiff said and how the question of the agreement first 
came up.

“A. 1 can't rememltcr the exact words.
"y. In a general way as near as you can tell. A. 

The impression was if he had that signed he could get money 
to pay his debts.

“Q. That would be the compromise? A. Yes, 
and the idea was it would be done right then, before 
Christmas.

“Q. Is that what he stated? A. That is what he 
stated to us.

“Q. That is the purpose for which he wanted it? 
A. That is the purpose for which he asked it."

On her cross-examination she was asked.
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"Q. Your husband was anxious to get this paper 
back from your son, wasn't he? A. Yes.

“y. For what reason? A. For the reason he didn't 
think he had any right to it when he didn't fulfil his part 
of the agreement. He was doing what he promised not 
to do.

"Q. And what was the objection he made, because 
he didn’t carry out the proposed arrangement with the 
creditors? A. Yes."

It seems inconsistent for the defendants to put forward 
that there never was any agreement by reason of Mr. 
Donald’s refusal to sanction it, and at the same time have 
Mr. Donald demanding the surrender of it because the 
plaintiff had not performed it. The plaintiff does not 
deny that he was anxious to raise money to enable him 
to make some arrangement with his creditors. In his 
account as to what took place at Hampton he says:—"I 
told them I wanted to raise money to either settle with 
my creditors, go into husniess and settle later or I might 
settle right away as soon as I could raise money with the 
agreement." He says the only objection raised to his 
getting it came from his mother who thought that it might 
make trouble for Cecil and his wife owing to the agreement 
in the Campbell lease.

Section 10 of the statement of defence as amended 
at the hearing alleges "that the defendants further say 
that the said agreement was made and given to and obtained 
by the plaintiff for the purpose of enabling the plaintiff 
thereby or on the security thereof, to obtain moneys where­
with to compromise and discharge certain debts and claims 
then due and owing by the plaintiff and Susanna Donald, 
the mother of the plaintiff and for no other purpose, and 
that the plaintiff should compromise and discharge the said 
debts ami claims on or Indore the first day of January next 
following the date thereof. And the defendants say that 
the plaintiff did not use the said agreement for such purpose
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and did not raise or obtain the moneys and did not com­
promise, pay or satisfy the said debts and claims or any 
part thereof." If you eliminate from this statement that 
part of it which alleges that the compromise was to be 
arranged before the first of January, which there is no 
evidence to sustain, it contains what I think the evidence 
shows to have lieen the object of the agreement. And 
now that it is the plaintiff's object to utilize the money 
derived from the sale and which the defendants undertook 
to account for and pay over to him for that purpose, what 
valid reason can be given why they should not be compelled 
to do so.

Some letters were put in evidence which throw' some 
light on the nature of the transaction by showing how it 
was dealt with by the parties interested. The payment 
of the purchase money by the Woodworkers Company 
though due in June, 190N, was not actually paid until the 
following September. On the 20th March, 1008, Mrs. 
McManus wrote a long letter to the plaintiff referring 
principally to family matters, but ending with the following 
passage :—

“Well Duncan it is about mail time—I'm sorry that 
the business has turned out as it has for it will no doubt 
be a disappointment to you, but there seems no >r it."

On the 20th May, 100S, Mrs. McManus wrote the 
plaintiff another letter in which she says:—

"I went over there “(Mr. Reilly's office)" and he told 
me they had given him notice that they were going to buy 
in thirty days so that will close it and since poor wretched 
dollars and cents seem to have made such a break lietwcen 
brother and sisters I can't help but thank God that it will 
be settled" "Ma will take a run to see you as soon as the 
business is fixed—it will be the safest way to send the 
money—"

1
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This refers to the identical money which the plaintiff 1011. 
claims in this action. His right to it was not disputed Do£*LD 
by her and her mother was going to Boston apparently M£“*"us 
for the purpose of carrying the money to him. B»»*ii«7c. j

On the 24th July. 11HI8, Mrs. McManus wrote another 
letter to the plaintiff in which she says:—

“Dear Duncan :—This is Friday noon. We hope to 
make arrangements to settle the business this evening and 
Ma would start to-morrow but Papa's wishes have to be 
considered and I wish, Duncan, you would write to him 
and tell him just exactly what you intend to do—for my 
part I can't get the thing off our hands soon enough and 
would wish you to have every cent of it now—but you 
know, Duncan, we can't have father long, and must respect 
his wishes for he has certainly had a hard time and worked 
for us when we were not able to work for ourselves and 
I’m very sure that in years to come we will never be sorry 
for the little pleasure we can give him by doing in some 
little measure what he wants us to. If you would just have 
such a paper made out as Papa wants, agreeing to take 
what’s over and above all expenses and 1 suppose Murray's,
Ma seemed to think he would be willing to sign off for $300.
As soon as you do that Papa will let Ma take the money 
to you. Now, Duncan, the more quiet and peaceably 
this business can be settled so as to please Papa will lie the 
I lest, and 1 can't >ut feel that it is the only way we
could expect to have any luck with it. This is the wish 
of your sister Lucy."

In this letter as in the other the plaintiff's right to the 
money is not questioned, there is not a word as to the 
invalidity of the agreement or anything now set up as a 
defence to this action. On the contrary an appeal is made 
to the plaintiff on his regard for his father, with a view of 
creating sympathy for him. On the 24th July, 1908, Mrs.
Donald wrote a letter to the plaintiff from which I make

8
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the following extract. After a reference to the delay in 
completing the sale and the trouble and anxiety caused to 
Mrs. McManus in consequence of it, she says :—

“I know Lucy and Cecil are more anxious to have 
the whole thing off their hands, than you are to get it, and 
she wants to know what you expect them to tell you by 
return mail, concerning the pa|ier of last September as 
they do not understand just what you wish them to do, 
so you must know there is no way of forcing the Frenchmen 
to do things faster; and, Duncan, I don't think it is reason­
able or nice to treat Lucy the way you arc doing after all 
the trouble she had over the business, sending them type­
written letters and threatening to put the business in other 
hands and all that as if they were holding it against your 
wishes. You know they could put it off their hands in 
a hurry by deeding it to you subject to the law, and put 
the deed on record in Dorchester and you can see how 
quick it would all disappear, but they know your wishes 
and so the one thing for them to do is to submit to your 
hard feelings towards them and everything else till the 
Frenchmen can come to. time. She says she will let you 
know the moment they buy as she would rather not touch 
the money at all, and I think when they buy you had better 
come home and arrange the thing as quietly and peaceably 
as you can for it would have Itcen better for us all if the 
whole thing had gone up in smoke long ago than have 
such wrangling and hard feelings over a few dollars. You 
had better write them and tell them what it is you expect 
to have from them in reference to September, 1907, and 
if they had better put a deed on record here, or wait for 
the F'renchmen to buy."

Nearly a year had passed since the making of this 
agreement when this letter was written. Mr. Donald's 
attitude towards it, whatever it was, must have been 
known then and Mrs. Donald had herself a personal know-
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ledge of all the circumstances connected with the making IQH. 
of the agreement and she had, as a debtor for some $2,000, Do”,u' 
a special interest in seeing that what she now says was the 
object of giving it, should be accomplished. And yet bahkhTc. /. 
there is not a word in this letter implying a doubt as to the 
plaintiff's right to the property under the agreement, that 
is recognized throughout. Neither is there even a sugges­
tion that the agreement had liecn obtained on conditions 
which had not been fulfilled, or that it had been used by 
the plaintiff in violation of his agreement or that he had 
failed in making good promises made when he got it.

If in fact the defendants’ contentions were correct 
that this agreement was executed subject to a condition 
that it should not operate as an agreement until it had 
been consented to by Mr. Donald, it would perhaps be an 
irrelevant inquiry as to his reasons for withholding it. The 
relations between the parties have, however, some bearing 
upon the disposal which should lie made of the case. It 
is not very easy from the evidence to say exactly what 
Mr. Donald's reasons were. At one time his wife says 
that he complained that the plaintiff had not fulfilled his 
promise to compromise the debts lief ore Christmas. At 
another he complained that it was unfair to the creditors 
here that the plaintiff should have this property to enable 
him to go into business in Boston. That is, as I understood 
it, that this property was intended for the creditors, that 
it equitably and honestly belonged to them and that this 
agreement would place it in the power of the plaintiff to 
defraud the creditors, put the money in his pocket, and 
live unmolested in Boston. At another time Mr. Donald 
put forward as a reason for withholding his consent to the 
agreement that he would not trust the plaintiff, but for 
what reason does not appear. On other occasions he seems 
to have objected to the plaintiff having the money liecausc 
of his determination not to treat Murray as generously 
as he thought he should. The truth is, that for reasons
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which do not seem to have appealed with the same force 
to the other members of the family so far as one may judge 

Metal!U5 from the correspondence in evidence, Mr. Donald had 
Barker, c. j. become angry with the plaintiff and refused to speak to 

him or have anything to do with him. This seems to have 
arisen out of the Murray transaction which is simply this, 
as told by Donald himself. When he and the plaintiff were 
starting the milling business, Murray lent them $000 and 
they gave him a bill of sale by way of security with the 
understanding that Murray should not put it on record 
to hurt the credit of the business unless they—that is, the 
plaintiff and his father—notified him there was going to 
be trouble. The plaintiff, it seems afterwards, gave a bill 
of sale of the same property to some one else who filed it 
in the Registry Office, and in that way got priority over 
Murray. Mr. Donald seems to have thought this a very 
dishonorable thing in his son. So it was. Mr. Donald 
seems also to have thought that by reason of it Murray 
was entitled on any compromise with the creditors, to 
special consideration. Before deciding that point it would 
be well to consider with what justice the other creditors 
might complain of Mr. Donald himse'f where they had 
been induced to give him credit on the Itelief that his 
business property was unincumbered when in fact it was 
subject to a secret mortgage unregistered at his request 
so that his business credit should not be impaired. When 
asked what he said to the plaintiff about this Murray 
transaction, he answered:—“I said about as hard things 
as I could. I don't remember just what I said. I didn’t 
think any man should be treated in that way, that he 
should be protected when he put confidence in us." On 
his cross-examination Mr. Donald was asked this question 
as to the letter Mrs. McManus wrote him in September, 
1907, already copied.

"Q. And will you undertake to swear you wrote 
your son? A. No 1 don’t remember as I wrote for some 
time.

1911.
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"Q. Anything at all about the agreement? A. 1. 
wrote sometime after.

"Q. But when you got this letter from your daughter? 
A. I think I didn’t write to anyone 1 was so annoyed.

“Q. Then you didn't write to anyone. A. I thought 
it better not to express myself on paper.”

There is one point upon which 1 think the evidence 
is against the plaintiff though in my view it is of very little 
importance. It is put forward that the plaintiff promised 
or agreed that he would not use the agreement in any way 
without his father's consent, and it is said that seeking 
to enforce this agreement is using it. So it is in a way, 
but not in the way indicated by the evidence. The plaintiff 
himself says he made no such promise, and the absence 
of all allusion to any such thing in the correspondence, 
gives support to his evidence. There is, however, the 
evidence of Mrs. McManus, Cecil McManus and Mrs. 
Donald to the contrary and their statements cannot be 
ignored. The most that can be said of them is that what­
ever was said had reference to the proposal made by the 
plaintiff. He sought this agreement and told them precisely 
why he wanted it and how he proposed to use it. 1 accept 
his statement in that respect, for the reasons given by 
some of the witnesses that he only wanted it to show his 
friend in Boston who would give him the money on his 
own note without security, seem altogether without point. 
The plaintiff’s promise had to do simply, if he made any, 
with the use of the paper in any of the ways proposed by 
him. He would not hypothecate it, or use it *> as to raise 
money on it. Assuming that he made this promise and 
that he did raise money on the security as he apparently 
did, it was only a collateral agreement, and who has lieen 
injured by what he did? No one, so far as 1 can discover. 
He has the agreement now unencumlxTed and asks for 
its performance. It seems an unusual defence to set up. 
“We admit that we gave you this agreement, but you said

inn.
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you wouldn't show it to anyone without Mr. Donald's 
consent and you did." In the correspondence that is in 
evidence, in all the discussions which have taken place, 
and in all the hard things that Mr. Donald felt justified 
in saying aliout his son, I can find no mention of any such 
answer to the plaintiff’s claims. It is evident that little 
or no weight was ever attached to this statement by anyone, 
and the plaintiff’s right to the money has been recognized 
by these defendants and Mr. Donald without question. 
The agreement was given at the instance of the plaintiff 
to enable him to raise money to compromise with the 
creditors of himself and his mother. That being so I 
think he is entitled to recover the proceeds of the sale 
whatever the amount may be, but he must hold the money 
in trust for these creditors, so that the object of giving it 
to him may not be defeated. One word as to the position 
in which these defendants stand. On her cross-examination 
Mrs. McManus was questioned as to the interest of her 
father in this property.

“Q- (By the Court) Do you say he had an interest 
in the property although the title had gone out of him 
years before? A Yes. 1

' Q- An interest how? Do you and your husband 
hold it fer him? A. Yes.

“Q. You were simply holding it for him? A. Yes.
“Q. Had you any written agreement with your 

father? A. No.
"Q. Do you claim you were simply protecting this 

property against your father’s creditors? A. Well I 
was, yes.

"Q. Then in plain language what you say you were 
doing is assisting your father to deprive his creditors of 
his property? A. Not at all.

"Q. Were you holding it for the benefit of your 
father's creditors? A. Yes."

Later on in her cross-examination she was asked this 
question in reference to one of the letters I have mentioned.
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"Q. If you did write that 'and would wish you to 
have every rent of it now,' it meant you wanted your 
brother to have every cent of the proceeds of that pro­
perty, didn't it? A. I wanted it to go for his debts."

Mrs. McManus seems to have been in the embarassing 
position of the man who tried to serve two masters. She 
says that when she took this property over in 1904 there 
was no special agreement as to the terms upon which she, 
or rather her husband, should hold it. There is no pretence 
that it was a purchase and in her evidence which I have 
given, whatever may be her inclination as to her father 
or whatever she may regard as her duty to him, she says 
that she was not holding the property to assist her father 
in depriving his creditors of it, but that she was holding 
it for their benefit and, as she stated in her letter to the 
plaintiff, she wanted this money now in dispute to go for 
his debts. The plaintiff has stated that his reason for 
asking for the agreement was to enable him to secure an 
arrangement with their creditors. On his cross-examin­
ation he was asked this question :—

"y. You got this paper and you claimed and still 
claim, the right to take the value of this property or the 
proceeds of it anti use it wherever you like in the States 
or elsewhere? Is that what you are seeking for the money 
now, to use in your business in the States? A. I am 
seeking for it to use it for my creditors, my just bills.

“y. Here? A. Yes, l haven’t got any anywhere 
else."

There must be a declaration that the defendants are 
liable to account to the plaintiff for the moneys received 
by them on the sale of the property, and that such moneys 
shall lie held in trust for the creditors of the plaintiff and 
Mrs. Donald. There will be a reference to a Master to 
report what that amount is and also the names of the 
creditors and the amounts of their respective claims.

All other questions reserved until after his report.

1911.
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THE BISHOP OF FREDERICTON vs. THE UNION 
ASSURANCE COMPANY, et al.

Special Case—Construction of Insurance Policies—Different Classes in 
Policies.

On July 3rd., 1911, Christ Church Cathedral, Fredericton, was partially 
destroyed by fire, and a chime of bells in the tower was wholly 
destroyed.

The building was insured for $66,000 in ten different companies, and 
the schedule of insurance in all of the policies was the same, being 
as follows:—

(1) On the stone building. Roof Amount Rate Premium 
covered with tin shingles includ­
ing the tower, spire and chancel
thereof, as well as choir room and 
and vault, and all monuments 
and memorial tablets in said 
building, situate on the south 
side of Church Street in the City 
of Fredericton, occupied as a 
place of public worship, and 
known as Christ Church Cathe­
dral.......................................... $42,000 .80 $330.00

(2) On pipe organ and appurten­
ances belonging (hereto includ­
ing choir music, communion 
table, pulpit, font, lectern, desks, 
pews and seating chairs, carpets, 
stoves, furnaces and their attach­
ments, steam heating apparatus, 
including piping, clocks, printed 
books, plate and plated ware, 
vestments and all church fur­
nishings, furniture and fixtures, 
fuel, lighting equipment includ­
ing acetylene plant and all 
piping used in connection there­
with while contained in said
building........................ *........... 10,000 1.00 100.00

(3) On stained glass and all other
windows in said building...........  3,000 1.00 30.00

$55,000 $400 00

Held, all parties agreeing that the bells were intended to be insured 
under the policies, that the "chime of bells" fell within class (2) 
under the description "all church furnishings, furniture and 
fixtures."
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This is a special case stated for the opinion of the Court,__1011 ■
the facts and questions are fully stated in the judgment. The Bishop of 

Fredericton

Argument was heard September 12, 1911.

A. J. Gregory, K. C., for the plaintiff.

The Union 
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Company

Barker C. J.

M. G. Teed, K. C., for the defendant.

1911. December 19. Barker C. J.:

This matter comes before me by way of a special case 
on the following facts. On July 3 last, Christ Church 
Cathedral at Fredericton was struck by lightning and in the 
fire which resulted the building and contents were consider­
ably injured. There was insurance on the property amount­
ing in all to $55,000, divided among the Norwich Union 
which carried $10,000, and nine other companies carrying 
$5,000 each. The risk was distributed on the several parts 
of the property as follows:—

1. “On the stone building, roof covered with tin shingles, 
“including the tower, spire and chancel thereof, as well as 
"choir room and vault, and all monuments and memorial 
"tablets in said building, situate on the south side of Church 
“Street in the City of Fredericton, occupied as a place of public 
“worship, and known as Christ Church Cathedral, $42,1100.

2. “On pipe organ and appurtenancesItelonging thereto, 
"including choir music, communion table, pulpit, font, 
"lectern, desks, pews and seating chairs, carpets, stoves, 
“furnaces and their attachments, steam heating apparatus, 
“including piping, clocks, printed books, plate and plated 
“ware, vestments and all church furnishings, furniture and 
"fixtures, fuel, lighting equipment, including acetylene plant 
“and all piping used in connection therewith while contained 
"in said building, $10,000.

3. “On stained glass and all other windows in said 
"building, $3,(MX)."
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The rate of premium charged on the property mentioned 
in class (1) was 80% and on the property mentioned in the 
other two classes $1.00, making the total premium #4t>0. 
In the Cathedral tower was a chime of eight bells weighing 
in all some 10,000 pounds, the largest of which weighed some 
2,000 pounds. They were securely fastened by bolts to a 
frame work erected in the tower for that purpose, the upper 
and floor beams of which were let into the stone walls of the 
building. These Itells were totally destroyed by the fire. 
The insurance companies, all of which except one, are parties 
hereto as defendants, have paid in all the sum of $50,710, 
that is $57,710 for the loss underclass (1) and the full amounts 
insured on the other two. In this sum nothing is included 
for the loss on the bells. The plaintiff’s contention is that 
these bells, annexed as they were to the tower, constituted 
a part of the Cathedral building within the meaning of that 
term in class (I) and that their loss is chargeable to that 
fund, in which case there is a balance available to meet it. 
On the other hand the companies contend that the bells, 
not distinctly mentioned in either class, are included in the 
second class under the term “all church furnishings, furniture 
anti fixtures," in which case the fund is already exhausted. 
For it is conceded by all parties that the bells were not only 
intended to be included but are in fact included in the property 
described in the policies, a fact which seems to me a fair 
inference from the unusually particular manner in which 
the property to be included in each class is described, all of 
which when pieced together, represented “Christ Church 
Cathedral on the south side of Church Street in Fredericton," 
anti its contents. The question submitted for the Court's 
decision is whether or not the Itells arc included in the properly 
described in class (1).

The only argument addressed to me on the part of the 
plaintiff was that these bells had been so annexed to the 
tower that they had become, and in fact were a part of the 
structure itself; and although Itells were not Eo nomine
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mentioned in the enumeration of subjects in class (1) they 
were included in the general term “stone building known 
as the Cathedral Church Fredericton,” or in the term " tower” 
and in that way appropriately and sufficiently described 
for identification as a part of the property insured in that 
class. In support of this view Hobson v. Gorringe (1) and 
other cases having reference to the question of fixtures, were 
cited by Mr. Gregory. These cases in my opinion have no 
bearing on the question in dispute. They relate solely to 
the relative rights to fixtures, so called, as lietween vendor 
and vendee, mortgagor and mortgagee, landlord and tenant 
and others standing in similar relations to each other. Speak­
ing generally they hold that chattels when affixed to the land 
in a ertain way, and with a certain intention, lose their 
character as chattels and become a part of the freehold. 
They cease to be personalty by reason of their annexation 
to the land and thereby become realty, so long as the annexa­
tion continues. The doctrine is based on the maxim “quicquid 
plantatur solo, solo (edit.” Buildings and erections of various 
kinds may however lie placed on land, without losing their 
character as chattels or becoming fixtures as the word is 
used in the cases cited. Chattels such as machinery, may 
lie annexed to buildings which are a part of the freehold 
without themselves losing their character as chattels. It 
is largely a question of intention depending upon the nature 
and object of the annexation and various other circumstances. 
Doran v. Willard (2); Fowler v. Fowler (3); Allan v. Rowe (4); 
and the Liscomb Falls Company v. Bishop (5) will illustrate 
the application of the rule to varied circumstances. In the 
case of Hobson v. Gorringe, the engine in question had been 
purchased under an agreement by which the title was not 
to pass to the purchaser until full payment of the purchase 
money. The engine was however annexed to the property 
-o as to make it a part of the freehold, and the mortgagee

(l) (1897) 1 Ch. 182. (2) 1 Pug. 358.
(3) 2 Pug. 488. (4) 1 N. B. Eq. 41.

(5) 35 S. C. R. 539.
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412 NEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY REPORTS. [VOL-

mu.
The Bishop ok 
Fredericton

The Union 
Assurance 
Company

Barker, C. J.

who had no notice of the agreement, took and held it as 
against the seller. As a result of that decision statutes have 
been passed in this anti other provinces, by which in such a 
case, the chattel though ever so firmly annexed to the free­
hold, will not cease to be a chattel or become a part of the 
freehold without the seller's written consent (Consolidated 
Statutes, 1003, Chapter 143, Section N.)

In the present case I have no doubt that if this were 
a mere matter of conveyancing, or of title, and a deed or 
mortgage of the property had licen executed in the usual 
manner, the title to the bells would have passed by the con­
veyance as a part of the freehold though neither bells nor 
fixtures were mentioned in the instrument. They had lost 
their legal character as chattels and become a part of the 
realty by becoming fixtures. They however never ceased 
to be bells or become a part of a stone wall. We are however 
not dealing with a question of title or a question of convey­
ancing. The question here is whether for the purpose of 
this insurance contract, bells are included in the description 
contained in class II), and in deciding that question reference 
must be made to the whole contract. The authorities cited 
do not I think I tear iqion this point ; they relate to an entirely 
different subject. An insurance policy is a business, mercan­
tile contract and must lie construed as such. The language 
must be given its ordinary meaning unless there is something 
in the surrounding circumstances or the natVre of the contract 
itself to make it an exception to that rule. I think it may 
be taken as beyond question that the parties to this contract 
ilid not intend that any part of the property insured should 
he included in two of the classes. The difference in the rate 
of premiums as well as the fact that the property was divided 
up as it has lx-en, make that point clear l>eyond all doubt. 
If therefore the term "church furnishings" or “church 
fixtures" by a fair construction would as they are used In 
this contract, include these bells, it would I think follow that 
it was the intention of the contracting parties to include the
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hells under that general description in class (2). That these 
hells were fixtures is not disputed. The plaintiff's whole 
argument is based on that fact. In its usual primary meaning 
the word “fixtures" would include anything fixed or fastened 
as distinguished from something that is moveable, kept in 
place by its own weight. Why should these bells thus clearly 
included in the term fixtures, be excluded from the property 
mentioned in class (2)? Once admit that they are fixtures, 
the nature or extent or object of the annexation to the building 
is immaterial so far as this insurance contract is concerned. 
Mr. Gregory endeavored to point out what would be included 
in the second class as fixtures and he mentioned an alms l>ox 
fixed permanently to the fabric of the church as an illustration. 
What degree or metlnxl of annexation would indicate the 
dividing line at which fixtures to the church become insured 
when described as a building and ceased to be included in 
the term fixtures and insurable as such?

In addition to these reasons for including this claim in 
class (2) there are some reasons for concluding that it was the 
intention of the parties not to include them in class (I). If 
the question to be determined was whether the policies 
covered all bells or not, the omission of them by name would 
furnish a fair ground for saying they were not, in view not 
only of their value, as compared with that of many of the 
enumerated articles but in view of the minute description 
of the property which the insurance was intended to cover. 
No such question arises here, In-cause it is admitted that these 
Ik-IIs are included in the property described in one of the two 
classes. One naturally inquiries why and for what object 
was it thought necessary by the parties to this contract to 
provide that the stone building which was being insured 
and which was situate on Church Street, Fredericton, used 
as a place of worship anti known as Christ Church Cathedral, 
-hould include the tower, the spire and the chancel? I confess 
I am not able to give any very satisfactory answer to that 
question. One would say that the general description would

1911.
The Bishop of 
Fredericton

The Union 
Assurance 
Company

Barker, C. J.
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1911. necessarily include these three component parts. It must 
VrolnucnM1'have been intended in providing for the distribution of the 

The Union risk to give to the word spire, tower and chancel a more 
coMEANr6 restricted meaning than they naturally would have as included 

— in the general term building—that is to say “tower" was 
to mean that alone—not a tower with a chime of bells attached 
to it. In other words it was the intention to confine the 
$42,(KM) on the fabric pure and simple and nothing inside 
of it except the monuments and memorials which are specially 
mentioned. They no doubt were fixtures in the ordinary 
meaning of that term. The manner and extent of their 
annexation to the fabric no doubt differed, but only to the 
extent necessary for the purposes and object of each. And 
as to the permanency of all, there is no more doubt that it 
was the intention of those who placed the memorials and 
tablets in the church as well as those who permitted them 
to be placed there, that they should remain as long as the 
Cathedral should itself exist. They were the only additional 
things which for the purposes of distributing the risk, were 
to lx considered as a part of the fabric. On the whole, 1 
think, in construing this agreement we should give effect 
to words which are sufficient without forcing their construc­
tion, to include these bells in class (2) rather than resort to 
a doubtful inference so as to include them in class (1).

There will be a declaration that the bells are included 
in the property mentioned in class (2) and not in class (l).
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1911.
January 10.

Voluntary Settlement of land in favor of son—lit Eli:, c. 6—Pre-existing 
Debts—Evidence of intention to delay creditors—Agreement by son 
to support and maintain grantor, and work performed by son on land, 
as consideration.

JACK V. KEARNEY.

A. and his wife and three sons F., J., and R. lived on A's homestead 
farm. A. helped F. buy an adjoining farm. Both farms were 
worked by A. and the sons. Two years later, A., wishing to 
provide for his other sons, made an agreement with F., in pursuance 
of which, F. conveyed his farm to J. for a nominal monetary 
consideration, and A. for a like consideration conveyed the home­
stead to F. who had agreed to convey half thereof to R., and did so. 
There was a verbal understanding that F. should support A. 
and wife on the homestead. By this conveyance A. practically 
denuded himself of all his property except the crop then in the 
ground, the proceeds from which F. agreed should go to pay A's 
debts. The crop failed. No express intention was shown to 
defeat, hinder or delay creditors. In a suit brought by a creditor 
of A. to set aside the deeds from A. to F., and F. to R. as void 
under Stat. 13 Eliz., c. 5.

Held, that the deeds were voluntary and without valuable consideration, 
in whole or in part, and as their effect was to defeat, hinder and 
delay creditors, they were void.

Even if the Agreement to support was in such a condition that it could 
Ik* enforced, it was not a consideration sufficient to support the 
deed against the plaintiff; nor was the fact that the sons worked 
at home a consideration.

In re Johnson 23 Ch. D. 389, distinguished.

Action by a creditor to set aside conveyances of land 
as fraudulent under the Stat. 13 Eliz. c. 5.

The facts are sufficiently stated in the judgment of 
the Court.

Argument was heard October 10 and 11, 1911.

M. G. Teed, K. C., for the plaintiff.

The plaintiff submits that the deeds in question are 
void under the Statute 13 Eliz., c. 5; there is no value or 
consideration sufficient to save them from the operation
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1911.

Kearney

of the Statute; being voluntary conveyances within the 
meaning of the Act, the circumstances are such that a 
Court should find they were accepted with intent to delay 
and defraud creditors; the circumstances are such that 
it is not necessary to show actual intent to defraud, but 
the effect of the conveyance might be exacted to, and in 
fact has lieen such as to defeat, delay or defraud creditors, 
and the Court must attribute a fraudulent intent to the 
persons executing and receiving deeds; that the assets 
of Robert Kearney that remained, and the expectations 
entertained of future crop were not such as to warrant 
the settlement or deeds; in any event we submit that the 
undivided one half that is held for Roy cannot be so held 
and the deeds to that extent must lie set aside. In regard 
to questions of value or consideration see Three Towns 
Banking Co. v. Maddever (1); Cornish v. Clark (2); 
Penhall v. Edwin (3). In regard to circumstances implying 
fraud see Mays on fraudulent conveyances pp. 40, 41; 
Smith v. Cherrill (4); Freeman v. Pope (5); In re Sinclair 
ex parte Chaplin ((>). As to reliance being placed on 
probable value of the crop, see Crossley v. Elworthy (7); 
MacKay v. Douglas (8); Ex parte Russell (!)); Spencer v. 
Slater (10); The Sun Life Assurance Company of Canada 
v. Elliott (11).

1C. P. Jones, K. C., for the defendants.
There was a valuable and adequate consideration 

given by Fred. A. Kearney for the deed. He has worked 
for three years in the interests of the farm and for the last 
two years under an express agreement. He has rights as 
well as creditors. His work in 1907, 1908 ami 1909 was 
a direct consideration for the deed sought to be set aside. 
He also agrees to support his father and mother for the

(1) 27 Ch. 1>. 523. (6) L. R. 5 Ch. 838. (9) HI Ch. 1). 588.
12) !.. R. 14 I-:,,. 184. tip 211 Ch. D. 819. Him 4 0. It. 1). 13.
(3) 1 Sm. & (1. 2.58. (7) !.. R. 12 Eq. 158. (Ill 31 S. C. R. 81.
(4) L. R. 4 Eq. 39(1. (8) L. R. 14 F.q. HXS.
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rest of their lives. The sum of five hundred and ten__
dollars was paid on the Hamilton Place, and the Hamilton 
place was part of the consideration. This is not a voluntary KEAe>E' 
conveyance at all. When a consideration is shown in 
family matters, Courts have not been very particular 
about the adequacy of it, see Mays on fraudulent convey­
ances at star page 27(1 and authorities cited there. In 
regard to Roy’s deed, Roy was to work for five years 
lieforc he could get the deed. This is simply a rider and 
part of the family agreement. Without proof of actual 
fraud on the part of Fred A. Kearney this Court ought 
not to take aw-ay the property and have his work go for 
nothing. In re Johnson, Golden v. Gillum (1); Gale v. 
Williamson (2); Whelphey v. Riley (3). Good faith is 
shown by the ttelief that ample provision was made for 
the payment of creditors and also by the fact that he had 
paid some creditors since the deed was given. Where 
there is valuable consideration (actual consideration) 
the burden is on the plaintiff to show actual fraud.

Teed, K. C., in reply.
A voluntary transfer it a transfer where there is no 

consideration going to grat tor, and this is a voluntary 
conveyance unless the grantor’s assets are simply changed 
and instead of land the creditors have other assets to look 
to for their claims. Fred was paid for his work by the 
Hamilton place and by other consideration. See Three 
Towns Banking Co. v. Maddever (4). The decree the 
plaintiff asks would not necessarily result in the loss of 
the property to Fred. A. Kearney ; it \ ould simply mean 
that pro|>erty would be liable to the plaintiff’s claim.
There is no valuable consideration in this case, liecausc 
the consideration must pass to grantor himself, where 
creditors are involved. Now as to Roy’s deed. It

(1) 20 Ch. D. 38».
(2) 8 M. & W. 41)5.

(3) 2 Allen 275.
(4) 87 Ch. I). 52.3.
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certainly ought to be set aside. The consideration was 
Roy's work and this went to Fred, and not to the father, 
not to the grantor.

1912. January 19. McLeod, J.:—

This action is brought to set aside a deed given by 
the defendant Rot>ert H. Kearney to the defendant 
Frederick A. Kearney and also a deed from Frederick 
A. Kearney to the defendant Roy Kearney on the ground 
that they are both void as against the plaintiff.

The facts of the case are really not in dispute, the 
defendant Robert H. Kearney being the principal witness 
on the part of the plaintiff.

The facts are about as follows :—
The defendant Robert H. Kearney is a farmer and 

in 1909 owned a farm a short distance from Woodstock 
in Carleton County, worth about four or five thousand 
dollars, which at that time was subject to a mortgage to 
the Canada Permanent Ixian Company for *2,300 and 
some odd dollars. He had three sons living with him, 
Frederick A. and Roy, two of the defendants, and James. 
Frederick A. was the eldest and was then about twenty- 
four years old, James the next was about twenty-two years 
old and Roy about fifteen. The boys all lived at home 
and worked on the farm. The two older ones had for 
some years during the winter months worked out pressing 
hay and part of their earnings was turned into their father 
and part they spent for themselves.

In 1907 Frederick A. then being about twenty-two 
years old, wished to leave home and work for himself. 
His father did not wish that and after some talk between 
them he agreed to buy another farm and did buy a farm 
adjoining his own from a Mr. Hamilton. The price paid 
was $3,100 which included alwut $300 of personal property. 
This farm was subject to two mortgages given by Mr.
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Hamilton, amounting to $1,550, and these remained as 
a charge on it. Five hundred dollars was paid by Robert 
H. Kearney and Frederick A. Kearney in cash within a 
few months after the purchase. The farm was conveyed 
to Frederick A. Kearney and he gave Mr. Hamilton a 
mortgage for the difference between $1,550 and $2,000, 
so that the farm was in Frederick A. Kearney’s name, 
subject to three mortgages amounting in all to $2,600. 
Frederick continued to live at home and the two farms 
were managed by Robert H. Kearney and worked together 
by him and his sons.

In the early part of 1909 James Kearney, the second 
son, then l>cing about twenty-two years of age, liegan 
urging his father to give him $1,000 and a pair of horses 
as he wished to marry and settle by himself. Robert H. 
Kearney was entirely unable to do that, but it was eventu­
ally agreed between him and the two older Ixiys that the 
defendant Frederick A. Kearney should convey the 
Hamilton farm to James Kearney and the defendant 
Roliert H. Kearney should convey the homestead to 
Frederick A. Kearney. This was accordingly done, the 
consideration mentioned in the deed to Frederick A. 
Kearney living five dollars. These deeds were given aliout 
the 21st of June, 1909, but were not then registered. The 
deed of the homestead was registered in April, 1910.

It was also agreed that Frederick was to give half the 
hom.stead to the defendant Roy Kearney who was then 
about fifteen years of age, provided he remained and 
worked on the place until he was twenty-one years of age, 
and the deed of the one half was made to him by Frederick 
A. Kearney and handed to his mother to lie given to him 
when he was twenty-one, provided he remained and worked 
on the place. If he did not remain and work on the place 
until he was twenty-one the whole farm was to lielong to 
Frederick A. Kearney.

1911.

McLeod, J.
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The defendants also say that it was understood and 
agreed that Robert H. Kearney and his wife were to have 
their living and support on the farm during their lives, 
but there was no written agreement to that effect, and at 
l>est from the evidence there was no more than an under­
standing to that effect.

This conveyance of the farm took practically all the 
property Robert H. Kearney the defendant had. He 
had the furniture in the house, which I gather from the 
evidence was not of much value, and one fifteenth share 
in a breeding horse which was not quite all paid for, which 
was of no practical value for creditors. He owed at this 
time between $1,500 and $2,000.

The crop had all l>cen put in. It consisted principally 
of |K)tatoes and it was agreed that he was to have the crop 
of that year to pay his debts. The boys were to assist 
in gathering it and he was to leave enough for seed for the 
following spring. The crop however, especially the 
potatoes was a failure, and there was practically nothing 
to pay the creditors.

The plaintiff does business at Halifax, Nova Scotia, 
under the name of The Nova Scotia Fertilizer Company. 
In January or February, 191 Ml, the defendant Robert H. 
Kearney purchased front the plaintiff fertilizer to the 
amount of about $000 which was to he paid for on the 
1st of January, 11110. It was delivered in the spring and 
was used on defendant's homestead farm. On July 1st, 
1909, he gave a note for the amount, due six months after 
date. The note was not paid and the plaintiff after 
pressing for payment brought an action and on the I Nth 
of February, 1011, recovered judgment for $025.25, 
principal and interest, and $30.IK) for costs and an execution 
was issued on the judgment but the sheriff was unable to 
find any property on which to levy and returned the writ 
endorsed “Nulla Bona."



IV.] NEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY REPORTS. 421

The plaintiff claims that the deed to Frederick A. 
Kearney is void under the Statute of Elizabeth. The 
first question is whether the deed is a voluntary one or 
not. If it is a voluntary deed and the necessary effect 
is to defeat, hinder or delay creditors then the law infers 
an intent to defeat, hinder and delay creditors and the 
deed will be set aside, without proving actual and express 
intent, but if it is founded on valuable consideration then 
it is necessary to prove actual and express intent.

In Freeman vs. Pope (1), which is a leading case. 
Lord Hatherley, L. C., at page .">41 in referring to the 
Spirell vs. Willows case, reported in 3 DeG. J. & S. page 
293, says as follows:—

1911

McLeod, J,

"In that case there was clear and plain evidence of 
"an actual intention to defeat creditors. But it is estab­
lished by the authorities that in the absence of any such 
“direct proof of intention, if a person owing debts makes 
“a settlement which subtracts from the property which is 
“the proper fund for the payment of these debts, an 
"amount without which the debts cannot be paid, then, 
“since it is the necessary consequence of the settlement 
"(sup|x)sing it effectual) that some creditors must remain 
“unpaid, it would lie the duty of the judge to direct the 
"jury that they must infer the intent of the settler to have 
"been to defeat, or delay his creditors, and that the case 
“is within the statute."

And in the same case Sir G. M. Gifford L. J., at page 
544 says:—

"There is one class of cases, no doubt, in which an 
"actual and express intent is necessary to be proved that 
“is in such cases as Holmes vs. Penney (2) and Lloyd v. 
“Allwood (3), where the instruments sought to be set aside 
“were founded on valuable consideration ; but where the

(1) L. R. S Ch. 538. (2) 3 K. & J. 90. (3) 3 DcG. & J. 014.
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Kearney 

McLeod, J.

1011. "settlement is voluntary, then the intent may he inferred 
“in a variety of ways. For instance, if after deduction 
"the property which is the subject of the voluntary settle- 
“ment, sufficient available assets are not left for the pay- 
"ment of the settler's debts, then the Law infers intent, 
"and it will be the duty of the Judge, in leaving the case 
"to a jury, to tell the jury that they must presume that 
"that was the intent."

And Crossley vs. Eluorlhy (1), decided by Sir P. Malins, 
V7. C., is practically to the same effect, and in Mackay vs. 
Douglas (2), the same learned judge says at page 120 as 
follows :—

“ It is not at all necessary to show that a man had any 
"fraudulent intent in making the settlement as the law 
"is now settled. It is very true that some of the old 
“authorities cited by Mr. Fischer, particularly Slileman 
"v. Ashdown (3), and many of the decisions long after 
"that, proceeded upon the assumption that the settlement 
“could not lie set aside unless there was an intention to 
“defraud, because the words of the statute are "With 
"intent to defraud, defeat or delay creditors." But that 
"has been long got rid of and it is not necessary now to 
"show that. The statute speaks of cases where the credi- 
"tors are, shall or might be in any wise disturbed, hindered, 
"delayed or defrauded' and it is not necessary to show 
"an intention to do that, because if the settlement must 
"have that effect the court presumes the intention and 
“will attribute it to the settler."

“That is distinctly laid down by the present Lord 
"Chancellor on appeal from V. C. James in Freeman vs. 
" Pope (ante). I acted upon that principle in Crossley vs. 
'‘Elworthy where 1 expressly gave Mr. Elworthy the 
"liencfit of my opinion that he did not intend to commit 
"fraud, but as the settlement had the effect of defeating

(1) L. R. 12 Eq. 158. (2) L. R. 14 Eq. 106. (3) 2 Atk. 477.
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“or delaying his creditors I attributed the fraudulent 
“intention to him within the meaning of the statute, and 
"set the settlement aside.”

See also In re Maddever (1) and Fry L. J. in Ex parte 
Chaplin (2) at page 330; Taylor vs. Coenen (3); Edmunds 
vs. Edmands (4) at p. 375. The Sun Life Assurance 
Company vs. Elliot (5). Numerous other cases may be 
cited to the same effect.

In the present case I do not think that it has been 
proved that there was an actual intent to defeat and delay 
the creditors but the effect of the deed was to do that very 
thing, and the Court will therefore presume an intent to 
defeat and delay the creditors. At the time the deed was 
made the defendant Roliert H. Kearney l>eing indebted 
to an amount lietwcen $1,500 and $2,000 denuded himself 
of practically all his property. According to his own 
statement he only had his household furniture, which was 
of little value, and one fifteenth share in a horse kept for 
breeding pur|x>scs and which was not all paid fur and was 
really of no value to his creditors. All he had was the 
ho|ic that the crop would turn out in the fall to Ire sufficient 
to pay his creditors, but that crop failed. He himself 
received no consideration for the conveyance.

It is true that he said that he and his wife were to 
have a home and living on the place during their lives. 
This agreement was, however, not in writing and even if 
it was in such a condition that it could lie enforced it is 
not in my opinion a consideration sufficient to support 
the deed against the plaintiff. A man indebted cannot 
convey his property simply for the purpose of supporting 
himself and his wife if need lie and thus defeat his creditors.

The circumstances of this case are simply that in 1907 
the defendant Frederick A. Kearney then being about

ion.
Kearney 

McLeod. J.

(1) 27 Ch. Div. 52».
(2) 2# Ch. Div. 319.
(3) 1 Ch. D. 636.

(4) (1904) P. 362.
(5) 31 S. C. R. 91.
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1911. twenty-two years of age desired to go away and work for 
himself hut Robert H. Kearney did not wish him to go, 

KhMxitv an(| jn ()r(it,r jo make some arrangement for him, agreed 
u, i-tou. j to jIUy a|)(| (|j(| |)Uy the farm called in this suit the Hamilton 

farm which adjoined his own farm and it was conveyed 
to Frederick A. Five hundred dollars was paid on it and 
the balance remained on mortgage. To that no objection 
can lie taken. In 1909 his son James being then about 
twenty-two years old and wishing to be married, pressed 
to have some provision made for him and then it was 
arranged between Robert H. Kearney and his son Frederick 
A. that Frederick A. should convey the Hamilton place 
to James (the equity of redemption in that place being 
according to the price paid for it worth alxiut $.'>00), and 
that Rol>ert H. Kearney should convey the homestead 
to his son Frederick A. (The equity of redemption in 
this place being according to the value put U|x>n it worth 
about *,2,000), Frederick A. on his part agreeing to convey 
one-half of this homestead to his brother Roy who was 
then alxiut fifteen years of age, on the conditions I have 
already stated.

The farming utensils Were divided between Frederick 
A. and James, so that when this conveyance was made 
Robert H. Kearney was left without anything to pay the 
plaintiff and other creditors he at that time owed, save 
and except his hope that the crop would turn out sufficient 
to pay his debts. His son Frederick A. certainly knew 
that he owed some debts, although he says that he did not 
know that he owed the plaintiffs, but the very fact that 
he and his father agreeil that the crop of that year should 
go towards paying the debts of the father shows that he 
knew his father had debts anti he also knew that the convey­
ance matle to him took all the property that his father had.

The defendants relied strongly on In re Johnson, (1). 
but that case differs very materially from the present case,

(1) 20 Ch. D. 380.



IV.] SEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY REPORTS. 425

In that case Fry J. before whom the case was tried, says 
that it is clear that the consideration for the deed of the 
12th of June, 1878, was in part meritorious and in part 
valuable.

The facts were that one Judith Johnson, a widow 
conveyed the property she had to her daughters, Alice 
and Amy, and they covenanted that they would “pay all 
the just debts incurred by the said Judith Johnson up to 
the date of the said indenture in connection with the 
working anti management of the farm,” which was the 
property conveyed and also would maintain the said 
Judith Johnson during her life. There was one debt for 
which Judith Johnson was liable but which was not incurred 
by the said Judith Johnson in connection with the working 
and management of the farm and that creditor brought 
an action to set aside the deed on the ground that it was 
void under the Statute of Elizabeth, but Fry, J. held that 
he could not succeed because the deed was in part, at all 
events, made for a valuable consideration, which consider­
ation was the covenant that the daughters should pay the 
debts of Judith Johnson.

In this case I think there was no valuable consideration 
there undoubtedly was the desire on the part of Robert H. 
Kearney to provide for his sons, but as was said by Lord 
Hatherley L. J. in Freeman vs. Pope (1) p. 540; "Persons 
“must be just before they are generous and debts must 
“be paid before gifts can be made.”

I do not think there was any legal obligation on the 
part of Robert H. Kearney to make a conveyance of his 
property to his sons. No doubt it would lie reasonable 
for him to make provision to settle his sons in life if he 
could do so without prejudice to his creditors but he had 
no right to do it so as necessarily to interfere with their 
claims. See in re Maddever (2) at p. 531.

11)11.

Kearney 

McLeod. J.

(1) L. R. 5 Ch. 538. (2) 27 Ch. D. 523.
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Kearney 

McLeod. J.

I cannot think that what has been put forward by 
the defence, that the sons worked at home, was any con­
sideration for this deed and therefore I think it is voluntary. 
The father Robert H. Kearney would naturally support 
his sons during their minority if need be and would be 
entitled to their services during that time. Roy Kearney 
who was only fifteen years old when the deed to him was 
given gave no consideration whatever for the one-half of 
the homestead that has been transferred to him. In my 
opinion the deed of Robert H. Kearney to Frederick A. 
Kearney must lie set aside and also the deed of Frederick 
A. Kearney to Roy Kearney.

Frederick A. Kearney after the transfer to him gave 
a mortgage on the property for $2,(100, retiring the mortgage 
of $2,300 that was on it at the time the deed was made to 
him. As the mortgagee is not a party to this suit he would 
not be affected by this decision. The order will therefore 
be that the deed from Robert H. Kearney to Frederick 
A. Kearney and the deed from Frederick A. Kearney to 
Roy Kearney be set aside as against the plaintiff. The 
mortgage will not be affected by this order. The defendants 
will pay the costs of this suit.
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proposition for settlement unless certain 
other dealings between the parties were 
adjusted at the same time. Held, that 
the plaintiff was entitled to a decree for 

! specific performance. Held, also, that 
I as tin evidence failed to establish the 
j plaintiff's contention as to the agreement 

tor sale and the unpaid balance; and 
that .i- i in' defendant had acted wrong­
fully in attempting to make tin settle- 

! ment of this matter contingent upon the 
! settlement of other dealings between 

the parties which are distinctly foreign, 
there should be no order as to costs. 
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AGREEMENT — Specific Performance — 
Conduct of Parties—Costs.] Plaintiff 
purchased leasehold property from defend­
ant for $340.50, and has paid $300 on 
account. Plaintiff alleged that property 
was sold free of all unpaid rent and taxes, 
and refused to pay balance of purchase 
money unless defendant contributed 
towards unpaid rent which was due at 
the time of the sale. Defendant alleged 
that no such agreement as to unpaid rent 
and taxes was made, and was willing to 
execute conveyance on payment of the 
true balance, but refused to entertain any

427

2.----- Time the Essence of the Contract
— Laches.] In November, 1902, the 
plaintiff and the defendant F. with a 
number of others formed a syndicate 
for the purpose of acquiring options and 
purchasing land with a view to sale. 
The transaction was a large one, involving 
the purchase >>f some 200,000 
land in the Northwest Territories, and 
before the land was finally disposed of 
the syndi:atc was compelled to pay to 
i In1 owners the sum of $60,000. The 
agreement between the plaintiff and F. 
was verbal, and at the time it was made 
the plaintiff paid the sum of $200. On 
the 30th of March, 1903, the defendant 
F. wrote to the plaintiff to hold himself 
in readiness to raise $2,000, "to hold 
your corner of the deal," and that if 
they had to call upon him it would lie 
at short notice. The plaintiff took no 
notice of this letter and made no prepar­
ation for securing the money. On the 
14th of April, 1903, F. telegraphed the 
plaintiff as follows:—"Three thousand 
dollars absolutely necessary to hold 
your interest in the land deal. Will 1 
draw? Wire." To this the plaintiff 
sent no reply. In 1903 the plaintiff 
learned that the speculation had been 
successful and that large profits had 
been made, but it was not until 1907 
that this suit was brought. Held, that 
in view of the special nature of the trans­
action, the plaintiff's refusal to contribute
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Agreement—Continued, 
his share of the money required to com­
plete the purchase, and his refusal to 
answer or take any notice of both letter 
and telegram, justified the defendants 
in acting on the assumption and belief, 
that he had entirely abandoned the 
contract and his interest in the purchase, 
and that he did not intend being any 
longer bound by it. Held, also, that 
the plaintiff's delay in commencing a 
suit until long after he knew that a large 
>rofit had I wen made by a re-sale of the 
and, was, in the absence of any satis­
factory’ explanation, evidence that his 
failure to pay the money, and his refusal 
to answer eft hi i I hr letti r "i- telegram, 
were in fact intended at the time as an 
abandonment of all interest in the trans­
action. PvrssLF.x r. Fowler and Pope, 
ktal................................................ 122

3. —— Collateral Declarations — Speci­
fic Performance — Accounting.| On Sep­
tember 7th. 1907, a written agreement was 
entered into between the plaintiff I>. I). 
and the defeduntsC. McM and L. Mc.M., 
for the sale of certain lands, the title to 
which was vested in the defendants, for 
the sum of two hundred dollars ($200). 
At the same time there was a verbal 
understanding between the parties to 
the agreement and S. I). the mother of 
the plaintiff, that the agreement was only 
to be used to raise money to pay the 
creditors of the plaintiff and S. I)., and 
Was not to be used for any purpose until 
the assent of K. C. I >., the father of the 
plaintiff, had been obtained. The agree­
ment was never used for the purpose of 
paying the creditors and the assent of 
K. V. I). to it was never obtained. Held, 
that the agreem ent was valid, although 
the assent of the plaintiff's father was 
never obtained, and that the verbal 
agreement not to use was only a collateral 
agreement, and did not affect the validity 
of th° agreement itself. Ilehl also, that 
the defendants are liable to account to 
the plaintiff for the moneys received by 
them on the sale of the property, subject 
to the trust that such moneys lie held 
for the benefit of the creditors of the 
plaintiff and his mother. DONALD r.
McManus, et al................................890
----- Memorandum of.......................... 21®

See Frauds, Statute of.
----- Voluntary Settlement of Land in

Favour of Son — 13 Eliz. c. 5 —

Agreement—Continued.
Pre-existing Debts — Evidence of 
Intention to Delay Creditors — 
Agreement by Son to Support 
and Maintain Grantor, and Work 
I1' iformed by Son on Land, .i'
Consideration............................ 415
See Fraudulent Conveyance 2.

ANSWER -Exceptions to—Avoiding 
1 'ix o'. Information 16]
See Interrogatories, 3.

-----Exceptions to—Irrelevancy.........42
See Inti rrogatorii b, i .

----- Insufficiency of— Exceptions . . . 101
See Interrogatories, 2.

APPROPRIATION OF PAYMENT BY 
CREDITOR............................. 153
See Mortgage, 2.

ASSIGNMENT FOR BENEFIT OF 
CREDITORS — Trade Mark - 
Good Will of Business — Specific
Performance.............................. 343
See Trade Mark.

ASSIGNMENT IN NATURE OF TRUST
"

See Mining Rights.

BEQUEST — In Nature of Specific
• Legacy........................................ 48

See Insurance, 1.

BILL - Filed by Director for an Account­
ing — Demurrer — Rights of Par­
ties............................................. 327
See Company, 2.

----- Form of........................................... 58
See Company, 1.

BONA FIDES
See Fraudulent Conveyance, 1.

CHARITABLE INTENTK >N . . .310
See Will, 7.

CLASS — Determination of. . SO
See Will, 1.

------Gift to................................................ V2
See Will, 2.

CLASSES— Insurance Policies..........408
See Insurance, 2.
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COMPANY — Exhibition Association — 
Incorporation —- Objects — Property — 
Original Capital Stock — Sale of Stock — 
Discretion of Directors — Confirmation by 
Company — Form of Bill.] At a meeting 
of the Directors of an Exhibition Associa- j 
lion, a large number of shares of the 
original capital stock of the Company 1 
were alloted to the Secretary of the Com- | 
pany at par, he having subscribed for 
them; and immediately afterwards he 
disposed of a number of these shares at ; 
par to the Directors themselves individu­
ally, in varying amounts. It was estab­
lished in evidence that the transaction 
was for the purpose of retaining control 
of the Company, in order that it might 
be carried on for the purposes for which 
it was organized. It was also established 
that the plaintiff had previously purchased 
a large number of shares, for many of 
which he had paid a premium, field, 
that this allotment of shares by the 
Directors was not illegal, as the trans­
action was bona fide, and not ultra vires 1 
«.I the ( oi*ioration itself; that tlu- Direc­
tors were acting within their powers 
when they exei ised their discretion, 
and in the interest of the whole body of 
shareholders sold shares at par which 
might have brou [ht a premium. Held, 
th.it as no fraud had l>cen shown, and 
relief was sought only for the Company, 
the bill should have been filed in the 
name of the Company itself. Harris 
et al v, Sumner, et a)............................. 58

2.----- Bill Piled by Director for an Ac­
counting — Demurrer — Eights of Parties.
A director of a company cannot file a 
bill for an accounting against the company 
and his co-directors, unless special circum­
stances are shown. The rejiort of a 
Royal Commission, whose duties were 
inquisitorial and not judicial, finding 
that a sum of money received by the 
directors is unaccounted for; and the 
fact that the complaining director was 
the Attorney-General of the Province, 
and as such an ex officio director of the 
company by the Act of lncor|>oration, ! 
are not such special circumstances as . 
would support a bill for such an account­
ing. Pvr.sLKY v. The New Brunswick 
Coal and Railway Company,*/ al. 327

COLLATERAL DECLARATIONS r S|k-
cific Performance —Accounting 390 
See Agreement, 3.

CONDUCT OF PARTIES — Specific Per­
formance — Costs........................ 1
See Agreement, 1.

CONFIDENTIAL RELATIONSHIP 12
See Deed.

CONSIDERATION - V aluable — Bona 
F ides Fraud Stat. 13 Ell*., 
cap 5
See Fraudulent Conveyance, 1.

CONSTRUCTION OF WILL
See Will.

CONTRACT — Improvident................. 12
See Deed.

----- Improvident...................................168
See Fraud.

----- Time the Essence of — Laches —
Verbal Agreement......................122
See Agreement, 2.

CONVENIENCE OF PARTIES — Demur
nr Multifariousness 66
See Demurrer.

COSTS - Disclaimei.............................72
See Mortgage, 1.

----- Each Party Having Succeeded in
Part — Injunction.................... 353
See Easement.

----- Specific Performance — Conduct of
ties i

See Agreement, 1.
----- Will —Construction — Fund for

Maintenance and Education —
Time for Pavment.....................202
See Will, 6.

----- Will — Construction — Gift to
Class — Time for Distribution — 
Income - - Provision for Mainten­
ance — Costs as Between Solicitor
and Client................................... 92
See Will, 2.

CREDITOR — Appropriation of Pay­
ments......................................... 153
See Mortgage, 2.

CREDITORS -Evidence of Intention 
to Delay 116
See Fraudulent Conveyance, 2.

DAMAGE — Probability of — Injunction 
— Lease — Quia Timet Action —
Legitimate Business................... 104
See Lease.
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DAMAGES—Infringement of Patent — 
Injunction— Patent Act, R. S. C. 
1906 cap. 69 871

See Patent.
-----Land — Documentary Title — Title

by Possession — Occupancy — In­
junction ................ ....................372
See Trespass.

DECLARATION AS TO RIGHTS OF 
PARTIES — Injunction — Abso­
lute Assignment in Nature of
Trust...................................... 286
See Mining Rights.

DECLARATION OF TRUST 237
.hi, 6.

DEED — Mortgage - Deed — Confiden­
tial Relationship—Undue Influence — 
Pressure— Misrepresentation— Improvi­
dent Contract — Voluntary Clift — Insanity 
of Grantor.J William Davidson died in 
1890, leaving real estate consisting of 
his Homestead and lot “A," all of which 
he left absolutely to his wife Helen David­
son, and appointed her and the Defendant 
William Ferguson executors. In 1898 
lames Davidson, -<m <>t William and 
Helen Davidson, being indebted to the I 
Defendants William Ferguson and Philip 
Arsenault, became insolvent and assigned 
to Philip Arsenault. Nearly all the 
creditors, including William Ferguson 
and Philip Arsenault, agreed to com- ! 
trotnise at ten cents on the dollar, but [ 
antes Davisdon made a secret agreement ! 

with William Ferguson and Philip Arse- j 
nault that they should be paid in full. I 
By arrangement between James Davidson, 
William Ferguson and Philip Arsenault, 
William Ferguson for James Davidson 
purchased the assets from Philip Arsenault ! 
as assignee for $1,000.00, and for the 
securing William Ferguson the balance 
advanced and balance of his old debt j 
against James Davidson, il tien Davidson 
in 18W, being then about seventy-six 
years of age, without any independent j 
advice, executed to William Ferguson | 
a mortgage ol lot “A" tor 8822.90. 
William Ferguson gave James Davidson I 
a Power of Attorney to deal with these 
assets, who in the name of William j 
Ferguson sold and converted them into : 
money to an amount greater than the | 
mortgage. In December, 1899, James j 
Davidson arranged that his mother I

Deed—Continued.
should sell to Philip Arsenault the said 
lot “A" for $o(H), $200 of it to go on 
Philip Arsenault's old account against 
James Davidson, and $400 by notes 
made by Philip Arsenault in favour of 
William Ferguson, and which t h<- latter 
took on his account against James David­
son. Both the mortgage and deed were 
written by James Davidson, and Helen 
Davidson had no independent advice 
and had become of feeble intellect. In 
March, 1900, Helen Davidson made a 
will leaving all her property to her son 
James and his family. William Ferguson 
drew this will, is named in it an executor, 
and had full knowledge of its contents.

I In December, 1902, James Davidson 
being indebted to William Ferguson to 
the amount of 81,260.97, Helen Davidson, 
at the request of William Ferguson and 
antes Davidson, gave a mortgage of the 
ontestead to William Ferguson for 

$1,250.97 to secure that amount, which 
was shown by the evidence to l»e the 
total sum due from James Davidson to 
William Ferguson at that time. Helen 
Davidson lived practically all the time 
with James Davidson, and he had great 
influence over her, which fact was well- 
known to both William Ferguson and 
Philip Arsenault. Held, that the first 
mortgage to Ferguson, made in March, 
1899, was discharged and must lx- set 
aside, as the amount which it had been 
given to secure had been paid in full. 
Held, that the conveyance to Arsenault, 
made in December, 1899, must be set 
aside, as obtained through undue influence 
and pressure on the part of James David­
son, and solely for his benefit; and on 
the ground of the mental weakness of 
the grantor, and that she had no indepen­
dent advice; that Arsenault, as he knew 
the relation which James Davidson 
occupied with regard to the grantor, 
and all the circumstances in connection 
with the transaction, stood in no better 
position than James Davidson would 
stand, and was bound by, and responsible 
for, any acts committed by Davidson, 
or omitted to lx* done by him. Held, 
that the second mortgage to Ferguson, 
made in December, 1902, must be set 
aside, as obtained through undue influence 
and pressure on the part of James David­
son and William Ferguson, and solely 
for their own benefit ; that Ferguson 
had the same knowledge of all the facts 
as Arsenault, and was Itound in the same
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Deed—Continued.
way by the acts and omissions of James 
Davidson ; that the grantor had no 
independent advice, and was so deranged 
mentally as to Ik* incapable of transacting 
business. McGaffigan, et al v. Fer­
guson, et al.................................................12

DEMURRER — Multifariousness — Con­
venience of Parties.] G. died in 1902 , 
leaving a will by which his property was 
bequeathed to his eight children, with 
a small annuity to his wife. This suit 
is brought to compel the cancellation of 
a mortgage given by the Plaintiff to Ci., 
and the reconveyance to the Plaintiff of 
a certain life insurance policy and other ' 
property, which were held by <i. to secure , 
certain monies advanced by (1. to the 
Plaintiff; and also to compel the con­
veyance of two lots of land which the : 
Plaintiff claims he purchased from (1. ! 
under an agreement that (1. was to give . 
him the deed for them whenever he j 
demanded it. Held, overruling the 
demurrer, that ii was by no means certain 
that the Defendants were not all necessary 
or proper parties, in regard to all the j 
causes of action set out in the bill, or j 
that they did not all have a common 
interest in them; but if that were not 
so, i here are no spe< dal circumstam i - 
in this case which render it either difficult j 
or impossible to deal fully and properly 
with all the causes of action, without ; 
causing inconvenience to anyone, and ^ 
therefore any discretion which this Court 
has, should lie exercised in favour of j 
continuing the suit in its present form. ! 
( i klMINGS ; < iIBSON, .7 a!

DISCRETION OF TRUSTEES 86
See Will, 1.

DISTRIBUTION OF FUND — For Heirs
..................................................................... 86

See Will, 1.
----- Gift to Class — Time for Distribu­

tion .................................................92
See Will, 2.

DISTRIBUTIONS, STATUTE OF —
Partition of Real Estate — Next of 
Kin — Statute of Distributions, Con. 
Slat. (1908), Chaf>. lfil.l | died in­
testate, leaving him surviving heirs, 
consisting of an uncle anil the representa­
tives of two deceased uncles and three 
deceased aunts on his father's side; and 
of the representatives of a deceased uncle 
and aunt on his mother’s side. Held, 
that the heirs on the maternal side rank 
equally with the heirs on the paternal 
side, when they stand in the same degree 
ol relationship, and that t h«- partition 
of the real estate must Ik* made on this 
basis. The case "i I >• >b I >i M. Witoo ; 
DkForrest, 23 N. B. R. 209, followed 
•I- t<> distribution <>! real estate. Cabtbb
». Lowhbison and others 10
------Heirs at Law — Statutory Next of

Kin —-General Scheme of Will. 252 
See Will, 8.

DISTRIBUTION — Time for.. 92
See Will, 2.

------Time for.............................................139
See Will, 3.

DOCUMENTARY TITLE 372
See Trespass.

------Bill Filed by Director for an Account­
ing Rights of Parties 327
See Company, 2.

DESCENT — Partition of Real Estate — 
Next "I Kin in
See Distributions, Statute of.

DIRECTORS — Bill Filed by a Director 
for an Accounting — Demurrer —
Rights of Parties......................... 327
See Company, 2.

------Discretion —Original Capital Stock
— Sale of Stock—Confirmation
by Company.................................. 58
See Company, 1.

DISCLAIMER 72
See Mortgage, 1.

DOWER - Bar — Adultery — 13 Edw.. 
/., c. 34.) A wife voluntarily separated 
from her husband after having lived 
with him for three years. Nine years 
latei di. married again, knowing that 
her first husband had married, and 
believing that he had obtained a divorce 
from her and that she was at liberty to 
marry. Subsequently she learned that 

I her second marriage was illegal, and 
I she immediately left her second husband.
! Held, that under the Statute 13 Edw. I., 

c. 34, the dower right of the wife in the 
estate <>i her first husband was not barred 

j by her subsequent cohabitation with 
another, as she acted bona fide, believing,

1 on reasonable grounds, that she was 
legally entitled to marry again. Phillips 

I v. Phillips, et al.......... ........................ 115
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EASEMENT — Party Wall — Right to 
Support — Easement —User — Lost (Irani 
— Injunction — Costs.} The plaintiff 
McG. and the defendants the W. F. 
Vo. are the owners of adjoining lots which 
originally comprised one lot. On each 
lot is a g which entirely covers its
whole area. The wall about which this 
dispute has arisen is used as the northern 
wall of the plaintiff's building and the 
southern wall of the defendants.' It is 
clear however from the evidence that it 
stands entirely on the plaintiff's l«>i. In 
1877 the buddings on these two lots 
were destroyed by fire, the foundations 
however I wing left standing, and when 
the buildings were rebuilt, immediately 
after the tire, these old foundations were 
used, the walls were rebuilt on them, 
and the then owner of the defendants' 
lot used the wall in question as a support 
for the joists of the building he constructed. 
The original lot was first divided in 1 KM 
when the part now owned by the plaintiff 
was conveyed to one T. IV who continued 
to own it down to the time of his death 
in 1875. T. I*, died intestate leaving 
him surviving a widow and five daughters. 
In 181)0 this piece of pro|H*rty became 
vested in one of these daughters by a 
conveyance from all of the other heirs 
■ •I I I’, to lnr. lu I s'.'! i shi and In r 
husband conveyed it to one E. F. J., 
who was acting for the plaintiff and later 
on in the same year conveyed it to him. 
The eldest daughter of T. I*, became of 
age in 1870 and the youngest in 1887. 
One of the daughters married Indore she 
reached her majority. Held, that while 
the wall in question is entirely the property 
of the plaintiff and is not a party wall, 
the defendants have an easement for 
the sup|>ort of the joists of their building 
in the wall as constructed after the fire 
in 1877, it having been openly and unin­
terruptedly used for that purpose for a 
|ieriod of more than twenty years; that 
a lost grant must be presumed to which 
this user would In- referred. Semble, 
the plaintiff when lie purchased the 
building in 18W had at least constructive 
notice of this easement. Held, also, 
that as the youngest daughter of T. I*, 
lieeame of age in 1887, over twenty-two 
years Indore this action was commenced, 
tlie grant might have I teen made at any 
time during the two years succeeding 
her attaining her majority; and further 
that coverture does not bar the pre- 
eumption of the making tin- grant.

The defendants recently constructed an 
elevator in their building, and for that 
purpose let beams or joists into the wall 
in question and used it for the support 
of the elevator. Mandatory injunction 
granted for the removal of these beams 
..r joists. \<> < in either party, 
each having succeeded in part. Mc- 
Gaffic.an v. The Willett Fruit Com­
pany, et cl . .368

EDUCATION — Fund for .202
See Will, 0.

ELECTION 48
See Insurance, 1.

EVIDENCE — Parol — General......Inten­

tion of Testator............................102
St \\ ii L, t.

EXCEPTIONS TO ANSWER 42
See Interrogatories, 1.

------Avoiding Giving Information .. 151
See Interrogatories, 3.

------Insufficiency of Answer...................101
See Interrogatories, 2.

EXCEPTIONS TO REFEREES RE 
PORT
See Mortgage, 3.

EXECUTORS AND TRUSTEES — Con­
veyance by................................... 210
See Frauds, Statute of.

EXHIBITION ASSOCIATION -Incor­
poration <>bj<> i~ Property 
( Iriginal Stock — Sale of Stock — 
I )iscretion of I )irectors — Con­
firmation by Company — Form 
• •f Hill 58
See Company, I.

FIDUCIARY RELATIONSHIP 108
• I l

FOOT NOTE TO INTERROGATOR 
BS I-'
See Interrogatories, 1.

FORESHORE I .ease from City of 
Saint John Riparian Rights 
Rights of Lessees— Damaging 
Erections— Injunction. 184,201 
See Riparian Rights.

44
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FRAUDULENT CONVEYANCE — Fraud
— Slat. 13 liliz. Cap. 5— Valuable Con­
sideration — Puna F ides.\ On February 
10th, 1908, the plaintiff I). commenced 
an action at law against the defendant 
M., a verdict was given for I). and judg­
ment was signed for $704.58 on June 5th, 
1906, whicn judgment -t ill remains 
unsatisfied. On May 20th, 1908, M. 
conveyed certain i< estate which he 
owned in Charlotte County to his son 
A. M. for the consideration of $9(X), 
t.iking in part payment a mortgage for 
$500, accompanied l>> .i promissory 
note for a like amount. A. M. performed 
work for his father M. and on May 20th, 
1008, the latter was indebted to him 
in the sum of $400, which with the mort­
gage for $500 made up the sum of $WX) 
the consideration for which M's property 
was conveyed to A. M. M. was not 
insolvent at the time he made the con­
veyance to his son A. M. The only 
creditors he had besides his son were the 
plaintiff, and his solicitor to whom he 
owed a small amount for professional 
services rendered in connection with 
D's. suit against him. Held, that the 
conveyance would not Ik* set aside and 
the bill must be dismissed, as the evidence 
showed that the salt was made bona fids 
for a valuable consideration with the 
intent i-> pass the pi >peit\. and in -in h 
a case it was immaterial whether or not 
there was an intention to defeat or defraud 
a creditor. Dyer v. McGuire, rial.. .203

2.----- Voluntary Settlement of Land in
Favor of Son 13 Eli» «. I'r, 
existing Debts — Evidente of Intention to 
Delay Creditors — Agreement by Son to 
Support and maintain Cran tor, and Work 
Performed by Son on Land, as consideration. 
A. and his wife and three sons F., J., and 
K. lived on A’s homestead farm. A. 
lu-l|K-tI K. buy an adjoining farm. Both 
farms were worked In A. and the sons. 
Two years later, A., wishing to provide 
for his other sons, made an agreement 
with K., in pursuance of which, F. con­
veyed his farm to J. for a nominal mone­
tary - onskk ration, and X for a llkr 
consideration conveyed the homestead 
to F. who had agreed to convey half 
thereof to K., and did so. There was a 
verbal understanding that F. should 
sup|Mirt A. and wife on the homestead. 
By this conveyance A. practically denuded 
himself of afl his property except the 
crop then in the ground, the proceeds

Fraudulent Conveyance—Continued, 
from which F. agreed should go to pay 
A’s debts. The crop failed. No express 
intention was shown to defeat, hinder 

i or delay creditors. In a suit brought 
by a creditor of A. to set aside the deeds 
from A. to F., and F. to R. as void under 
Stat. 13 Kliz., c. 5. Held, that the deeds 
were voluntary and without valuable 
consideration, in whole or in part, and 
as their effect was to defeat, hinder and 
delay creditors, they were void. Even 
if the Agreement to support was in such 
a condition that it could Ik* enforced, it 
was not a consideration sufficient to 
support the deed against the plaintiff; 
nor was the fact that the sons worked 
at home a consideration. In re Johnson 
20 Ch. D. 389, distinguished. Jack v. 
Kearney.................................................. 415
FRAUD Lease — Improvident Contract 
— Misrepresentation — Fraud — Fiduci­
ary Relationship.) R. was the owner of 
certain premises situated in Saint John, 
which she leased to E. and M. by a 
w tit ten Indenture of Lease made February 
4th, 1908. The defendant M. offered 
to draw the lease for her, and did so, 
and it was executed by all the parties 
at the same time, in the presence of the 
father of the defendant E. The lease 
was read over to R. by M. on two separate 
occasions, and was given to R. to read 
for herself. R. is a middle-aged woman 
of property. She has been accustomed 
to transact all her own business, anti 
manage her own property without assis­
tance from anyone, and it was not con­
tended that she was not fully capable 
of making an agreement of this nature. 
Held, that the lease would not lie set 
aside, as there was no fraud or misrepre­
sentation; that the defendant M. did 
not stand in any fiduciary relationship 
to R. by reason of his having drawn the 
lease, and the rule as to indc|>endent 

j advice in such cases was not applicable 
here. The lease contained the following 
provision for renewal:—“For a further 
term of five years or more and containing 
and subject to precisely the same cove­
nants, provisions and agreements as 
are herein contained." The defendants 
consenting the words “or more” in the 
renewal clause were expunged. Robinson 
v. Estahrooks and McAlary . 168
----- Stat. 13 Eliz. Cap. 5 — Valuable

Consideration — Bona F ides. . .203 
See Fraudulent Conveyance, 1.
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FRAUDS. STATUTE OF — Specific Per­
formance — Memorandum of Agreement — 
statute of Frauds Construction of Will — 
Title — Con. Slat. ( 1908) Chap. 10Ü. Sec. 
24 — Conveyance by Executors and Trus­
tees.) Ci. b. F. died in 1899, and by his 
will left the greater part of his property 
to his executors and trustees upon various 
trusts. The testator's widow is still 
living, and the surviving executors and 
trustees are the plaintiffs, (». C. K. and 
\V. T. H. F. two of the testator's children. 
In December, 1907, negotiations were 
entered into by the defendant J. and 
\\ i ll F.. at ring foi and with tin- 
consent of his co-trustee and mother, 
for the sale and purchase of the Linden 
Hall property, which with other real 
estate hat I lieen devised by the testator 
to his executors. An agreement was 
made, and a memorandum containing 
its terms was drawn up by 1. and signed 
1»> him and W. I III There was <ink 
one copy of this memorandum which 
was retained by J., and later destroyed 
by him when he determined not to go 
on with the purchase. This memorandum 
as stated by the plaintiff W. T. II. F. 
was as follows:—

"December 13th, 1907.
"Johnston to purchase from Fenety 

estate projx-rty on Brun*wick Street, 
7l) x 1HÔ, 25 feet to lie clear on up|x*r 
side, 15 feet on lower side; estate to give 
an unencumbered title; Johnston to 
hand the estate 25 shares of Toronto 
Street Railway and 10 shares Fredericton 
('.as Stock — all furniture, including that 
In-longing to Mrs. Rolx-rts, to lx- removed 
from the premises. St<xk not to lx* 
transferred before January 2nd, 1908."

"L. W. Johnston,
Wm T. II Fenety."

It contained the name of the vendor 
and purchaser, the property to lx- sold 
and the price to lx- paid. Held, that 
there was a valid agreement for purchase 
and sale; that the memorandum was 
amply sufficient to satisfy the Statute 
of Frauds, and was capable of Ix-ing 
enforced. The will contained the follow­
ing provision,—" I give, devise and 
beoueath all my other property Inith 
real and personal whatsoever and where- 
wx’ver situate of which I may lx- seized 
or possessed or otherwise entitled, to 
my executors and trustees herein named, 
upon the trusts following, etc." The

Frauds, Statute of — Continued, 
clause in the will which referred to the 
Linden Hall property was,—"Upon trust 
that my trustees will hold my residence 
known as Linden Hall and the grounds 
connected therewith (but not to include 
the property purchased by me and known 
as the ( irammar School property) during 
the will and pleasure of my wife, and 
there she may live as long as she desires, 
free from rent, she paying one-half of 
the taxes, insurance, water-rates and 
such like — also she paying in full the 
running expenses in keeping up thi 
establishment, during her cx'cupancy, 
it lx*ing my intention that she may live 
in her present home so long as she may 
wish. If, however, the above property 
lx* leased or sold during my wife's lifetime 
with her consent, then in such a case I 
desire, if leased, the rent derivable there­
from shall lx* used as rent for a house* for 
her to live in and such house is to lx* as 
good as one of my present houses situate 
on College Road, Sunbury Street, Frederic­
ton and if after paying such rent with the 
money received front the rent of the 
said Linden Hall property, there remains 
a balance from time to time, this balance 
shall lx* added to the principal sum 
already set aside for my wife's mainten­
ance, the income in the meantime Ix-ing 
paid to my said wife. Should however 
the said property lx? sold during my 
wife's lifetime, with her consent, the 
purchase money shall lx* used as follows:— 
so much of it shall lx* invested as will 
yield enough interest to pay rent for as 

ihxI a house as one of my College Road 
ouses, and in such a house my wife may 

live, such interest Ix-ing used to pay tlu­
rent therefor, and the balance of the 
said purchase money shall lx* divided 
equally among my children then living." 
Held, that while no express |lower of side 
was contained in the will, there was an 
implied power in the executors and 
in. tees i" aell the Linden Hall proptrt>. 
to Ik- drawn from the provisions con­
tained in the will itself, and to enable 
them to carry out the trusts declared 
in the will; and that a conveyance 
executed by the surviving trustees and 
executors, in whom the title was vested, 
and the widow of the testator, gave a 
good title to the property in question, 
and that it was not necessary that the 
Ix-neffciaries under the will, other than 
the widow, should join in the conveyance. 
Mi mortals of *nt -m i< <ord against9
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Frauds, Statute of — Continued, 
some of the cestui que trusts are not a ; 
bar to the trustees giving a good title 
to the property, as they have no interest 
in the real estate involved, which would 
Ik* liable under an execution. Courts 
of first instance in deciding questions of 
title are bound to decide according to 
their own view, whether they have doubts 
or not, leaving it to Ik* decided by a 
Court of Appeal. Fpnety, et al r.J oh No­
rton 216

FUND FOR HEIRS 86
See Will, 1.

FUND FOR MAINTENANCE AND EDU 
CATION i iim foi Payment 262 
See Will, 0.

Injunction— Continued.
----- Infringement of Patent — Damages

— Patent Act R. S. C. (19U6)
Cap. 69......................................... 271
See Patent.

------Land — Documentary Title — Title
by Possession—Occupancy—Dam­
ages ................................................372
See Trespass.

----- Lease from City of Saint John—Fore­
shore or Water Lots —Riparian 
Rights—Rights of Lessees— Dam­
aging Erections....................184,201
See Riparian Rights.

------Lease — Quia Timet Action — Sup­
porting Affidavits — Probability of 
Damage — Legitimate Business 104 
See Lease.

GIFT INTER VIVOS 237
See Will, f>.

GIFT TO CLASS 92
See Will, 2.

------Party Wall — Right to Support —
1 ser — Lost ( irant — Costs . 353 
See Easement.

INSANITY OF GRANTOR 12
See Deed.

GIFT - Voluntary 12
See Deed.

GOOD WILL OF BUSINESS — Assign­
ment for Benefit of Creditors.................343

See Trade Mark.

HEIRS AT LAW - Statute of Distribu­
tions— Statutory Next of Kin—
( ieneral Scheme of Will............  2Ô2
See Will, 8.

INCOME 92
See Will, 2.

INCORPORATION 58
»r Connut, 1.

INFRINGEMENT OF PATENT . .271
S* Pats NT.

INJUNCTION - Trespass — Legal ami
Equitable Remedies Supreme Court in 
Equity Act, Con. Slat. ( 1903) Chap. 112, 
Sec. 34.1 In an ordinary case of trespass 
where thereis an adequate legal remedy in 
the nature of damages, an injunction will 
only be granted by a Court of Equity when 
s|K*cial circumstances are shown. (fOO- 
AKD VS. C«OD A RD....................................... 208

----  Declaration as to Rights of Par­
ties — Absolute Assignment in 
Vit un of liii't 286
See Mining Rights.

INSUFFICIENCY OF ANSWER -Excep­
tions 101
See Interrogatories. 2.

INSURANCE — Life Insurance - Will — 
Life Insurance Act, f> Ed. VII. (1905), 
Chap. 4 — Re-apportionment — Ejection— 
Request in nature of Specific Legacy.J B. 
died in 1907, having made a will in 1905, 
by which he left, among other legacies, 
one for $1,100 to his wife, the defendant 
in this suit. B. had insured his life 
some years previous to 1905 for $1,500, 
the policy wing made payable to his 
wife, In his will B. created a fund for 
the payment of the several legacies, and 
included as part of this fund the policy 
for $1.500 above mentioned. Held, that 
this provision in the will did not operate 
as a reapportionment of the insurance 
money as regards this policy for $1,500, 
under the New Brunswick Life Insurance 
Act, 5 Ed. VII, Chap. 4, Sec. 13; and 
that the proceeds of the same are payable 
to the defendant as sole lieneficiary 
thereunder. Held, that the widow was 
not bound to make an election, and that 
she was entitled to Ik* paid the legacy 
for $1,100. Held, that in case the fund 
created by the will is insufficient, then 
the specific legatees are entitled to rank 
foi any un|>aid balance upon the general 
estate. Boyne v. Boyne.........................48
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Insurance — Continued.
2.-----Special Case — Construction of

Insurance Policies — Different Classes in 
Policies.| On July 3rd, 1911, Christ 
Church Cathedral, Fredericton, was 
partially destroyed by fire, and a chime 
of bells in the tower was wholly destroyed. 
The building was insured for $55,000 in 
ten different companies, and the schedule 
of- insurance in all of the policies was the 
same, l>eing as follows:—(1) On the 
stn.u* building. Roof covered with tin 
s. ingles including the tower, spire and 
chancel thereof, as well as choir room 
and vault, and all monuments and 
memorial tablets in said building, situate 
on the south side of Church Street in the 
City of hredericton, occupied as a place 
of public worship, and known as Christ 
Church Cathedral:—Amount, $42,000; 
rate, SO per cent.; premium, $330. (2) 
On pipe organ and appurtenances lielong- 
ing thereto including choir music, com­
munion table, puplit, font, lectern, desks, 
h\\> and seating chairs, carpets, stoves, 
umaces and their attachments, steam 

heating apparatus, including piping, 
clocks, printed books, plate and plated 
" are, vestments and all church furnishings, 
furniture and fixtures, fuel, lighting 
equipment including acetylene plant and 
all piping used in connection therewith 
while contained in said building:—Amount 
$10,000; rate 1 percent.; premium, SHXh 
(«V bn stained glass and all other 
windows in said building: — Amount, 
$3,000; rate, 1 per cent.; premium, $30. 
lotal amount $')‘>,000: premium, $466. 
Held, all parties agreeing that the lulls 
were intended to be insured under the 
policies, that the "chime of U4ls" fell 
within class i'Ji under the description 
"all church furnishings, furniture and 
fixtures." The Bishop of Fredericton 
: . I HE I'SION Asst RANCH COMPANY,

ms
INTENTION Charitable 316

See Will, 7.
INTENTION OF TESTATOR - Parol

Evidence.................................... 162
See Will, 4.

INTEREST — Mortgagee in Possession — 
Accounting — Rents .... 196 
See Mortgage, 3.

----- Rate — Redemption — Tender —
( <>nd it ion Attached to Tender — 
Disclaimer — Costs .72
See Mortgage, I.

INTERROGATORIES — Foot-note to In­
terrogatories — Practice — Exceptions to 
Ansuer — Irrelevancy.] The plaintiffs 
omitted to add any foot-note to their 
interrogatories as provided by Sec. 44 
of the Supreme Court in Equity Act, 
Con. Stat. (1903), Chap. 112. On a 
motion to set aside an order setting 
exceptions to the answer down for hearing: 
Held, that by a proper construction of the 
section, such an omission was equivalent 
to a requirement that all the defendants 
should answer all the interrogatories. 
Where defendants, in answering inter­
rogatories filed as part of the bill, neglect 
to state their l>ehcf, or, when required 
to set out a document at length, neglect 
to do so without assigning a sufficient 
reason, the answer is insufficient, and 
exceptions on that ground will be allowed. 
If, however, the interrogatories relate 
to matters which are altogether irrelevant, 
the exceptions will l>e overruled. Golden 
and Wife r. Mc(ii very and Others 42

2. ----- Practice— Insufficiency of A ns-
U'er — Exceptions.] A defendant w ho has 
acted entirely through his solicitor in 
any matter, and has himself no personal 
knowledge, must state in his answer, 
when required to do so, the knowledge 
that he has of the matters he is inter­
rogated upon, basing his answer upon 
the information given him by his solicitor. 
Where there are a number of different 
and. distinct questions included in one 
sect ion of the interrogatories, and the 
answer to that section is sufficient ns to 
one or more of these questions an excep­
tion to that whole answer must lx? over­
ruled. The exception is too wide. The 
case of Hi'rpee, et al r. The American 
Bobbin Company, N. B. Eq. Cas. 4X4 
followed. Fbxkty, et alv. Johnston.. 101

3. ----- Exceptions to . I nsipr.] Ans­
wers to interrogatories must Im* made 
substantially and fully, and not with a 
view to avoid dving information, but 
they need not U* in strict or technical 
language. The rule in Reade v. Wood- 
roofk, 24 Beav. 421, followed. Pick p.
Edwards et al..................................... 151

IRRELEVANCY JJ
x' ' Interrogatories, 1.

JURISDICTION OF CHANCERY AND 
PROBATE COURTS Concur­
rent— Con. Stat. (1903) Cap.
11X ............................................... 339
See Probate Cot rt.
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LACHES — Time the Essence of the 
Contract — Verbal Agreement. 122 j 
See Agreement, 2.

LEASE — Injunction—Lease—Quia Timet 
Action — Supporting Affidavils —Proba­
bility of Damage — Legitimate Business.
The defendant L. holds certain premises 
under a lease granted by the plaintiff N. 
to one W. and assigned by W. to L. The 
lease contains express covenants, but 
nothing in reference to its assignment, 
or to the use of the premises, with the 
exception of the word “office” used in 
the description, which is as follows: 
“All that certain office situate on the 
round floor of her brick building on the 
..i-t side ' 'i Main Strei t in t in said I onn 

of Woodstock, and the office in the said 
building fronting on the South side of 
Regent Street in the said Town, also the 
lower part of the shed in the rear of the 
said office, etc." W. is an attorney and 
occupied the premises as an office. L. 
is a retail meat and fish dealer, and 
proposes to carry on this business in the 
premises. Held, that there was no 
implied covenant in the lease, restricting 
the lessee to the use of the premises as an 
office, as it was not necessary to carry 
out any obvious intention of the parties; 
and that the word “office” in the lease 
was used merely as a means of identifying 
the premises included in the demise. 
Held, that as no actual damage had Ix-en 
shown, the action was in the nature of a 
quia timet action; and that as the defen­
dant was carrying on a legitimate busi­
ness, and there was no probability of any 
immediate or irreparable damage to the 
plaintiff arising, the application for an 
injunction must be dismissed. Ne vers 
r. Lillby, el al.......................................... 104

------City of Saint John — Foreshore
or Water Lots— Rights of Lessees 
— Damaging Erections— Injunc­
tion ........................................184,201
See Riparian Rîights.

Improvident Contract —Misre­
presentation — Fraud — Fiduciary 
Relationship I0e
See Frai D.

LEGACY - Charitable Intention. 310 
See Will, 7.

------Specific.....................
See Insi rance, 1.

LEGATEE - Power of Appointment.. 130
See Will, 3.

LIFE INSURANCE . .48
See Insurance, 1.

LOST GRANT
See Easement.

MAINTENANCE — Provision for . . . .02 
See Will, 2.

------Fund for........................................ 262
See Will, 0.

MINING RIGHTS — Injunction — Dec­
laration as to rights of Parties — Absolute 
Assignment in Mature of Trust.] The 
plaintiff S. and the defendant R. were 
associated in matters connected with 
mining in New Brunswick, for some 
time prior to the transaction over which 
this suit has arisen, Inith in promoting 
and developing coal mines, and their 
transactions had been for the benefit of 
both. S. was in a |>ositi< a in which he 
could interest capitalists in New York 
and Boston, and R. was a practical man 
and sjient the greater part of his time 
superintending the mining and develop­
ment work at the mines, and in obtaining 
concessions and licenses from the Gov- 
ernment at Fredericton. Their first trans­
action was in reference to the Crawford 
Mine (so called). In June, 1908, R. 
sold this property to the Canadian Coal 
Company, a different Company from tin- 
plain tiff in this suit. R. owned this 
property and S. found the purchasers, 
and was paid a percentage of the proceeds 
for his services. S. also held a numlier 
of bonds of the Company In-longing to 
R., as part of the purchase price, and 
which he was to dispose of for Re*. lx-nefit. 
On September 12th, 1908, R. executed 
an absolute assignment of certain appli­
cations for license to work to the plaintiff, 
the Canadian Coal Lands, Limited. On 
the same day he was paid the sum of one 
thousand dollars by S. Previous to this 
date, R. had received money from S. 
to cover ex|x-nses in connection with 
procuring the licenses mentioned alxive. 
The Canadian Coal Lands, Limited, was 
not an active organization but what is 
called a "holding Companv." It had 
only five memliers, each holding one 
share, and on January 4th, 1910, after 
this dispute had arisen it assigned its

. .48
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Mining Rights — Continued, 
interest in these areas to S. Held, that | 
the assignment to the plaintiff Company 
by R; was made for the sole pur|X)se of J 
enabling S. to sell the mining rights for * 
the joint Ixmefit of himself and R., and 
that it was not an absolute side to the 
plaintiff Company. Shaw, et al v. 
Robinson, et al.................................... 286

MISREPRESENTATION 12
See Deed.

MISREPRESENTATION I6X
See Frai d.

MORTGAGE - Redemption — Rate of 
interest — Tender — Condition attached to 
Tender — Disclaimer — Costs.] In a 
mortgage of real estate, the proviso for 
,a> nient was i hat the principal should 
>e paid in five equal annual instalments, 

with interest semi-annually at eight per 
eent.; and five promissory notes with 
interest at that rate were "given. Held, 
that in a suit for redemption, when there 
was no s|H*eial agreement for interest on 
overdue payments, tin mortgagor adopt- 
ing a certain rate higher than the statu­
tory one and making payments under 
it, was ImuiikI by that rate so far as pay­
ments actually made were concerned, 1 
but was not IhMind as to unmade or future i 
payments, and only the statutory rate I 
could lie enforced. Held, that a demand ! 
for a discharge of the mortgage and release ! 
of the debt, accompanying a tender by ! 
the mortgagor, made the tender a con- j 
ditional one. Held, that when the 
mortgagee ham|>ered and oppressed the 
mortgagor,' and obstructed his suit in 
every |>ossible way, the mortgagee, while 
entitled to the general costs of suit, j 
would lose the costs of his own unnecessary 
pleadings, and would be compelled to 
pay the costs of any such pleadings by 
the mortgagor as were occasioned by ! 
hi- procedure. If there had Ixen a 
sufficient and unconditional tender by j 
the mortgagor before suit, the mortgagee 
would have liven liable for the costs of 
•he suit. Held, that a defendant who 
answered, and later on filed a disclaimer, 
would lose his costs, even if successful . 
in having the bill dismissed as against 
him. McKenziev. McLeod,rial....... 72

2. — Conveyance to Secure Advances —
Maritale — Payments — A ppro priât ion by 
( reditor — Accounting — Redemption — »

Mortgagee — Continued.
Sale.] One W. (J. conveyed certain 
real estate to the defendant C. in 1891 
This conveyance was absolute on its 
face, but was really by way of mortgage 
to secure a certain sum of money in which 
W. y. was indebted to (*". for goods 
supplied from C’a store. W. O. was 
also indebted to the plaintiff N., and 
the latter obtained judgment against 
him for the sum of $289.50, a memorial of 
which was filed December 3rd, 1890. 
After the conveyance from W. Q. to C. 
had been made, the latter continued to 
supply goods to W. Q., and W. Q. worked 
for him and made cash payments to him, 
which amounts were credited by C. 
against his account. W. Q. died in 1902 
intestate, leaving a widow and several 
children. In 1903 C. conveyed the 
premises to XV. Q’s. son, A. Q., who, at 
the same time, gave C. a mortgage on 
them. In 1905 C. sold the premises 
under a power of sale contained in the 
mortgage to one A. S., who immediately 
reconveved them to C. This suit was 
originally to set aside the conveyance 
from \\’. y. to C. on the ground of fraud, 
but the bill was amended, and it was by 
agreement treated as a redemption suit, 
the sole question of fact being what* was 
the amount necessary to lx* paid (’. in 
order to redeem the property. Held, 
that where a mortgagor is seeking to 
discharge himself from liability by pay­
ment, the onus of proof is ti|xm him. 
Held, that where a conveyance, absolute 
on its face, but subject to certain verbal 
agreements as to reconveyance, is taken 
by a creditor to secure advances, instead 
of the ordinary form of mortgage in which 
the terms of agreement would have been 
set out, the onus of prixif, in case any 
dispute arises, is on the creditor to show 
the exact sum for which the conveyance 
is to stand as security. Held, that where 
there were several debts, in the absence 
of any appropriation by the debtor at 
the time of payment, the creditor had 
the right to appropriate the payment to 
any of the debts lie chose, and this right 
could Ik* exercised at any time, and need 
not lx* shown by any specific act or declar­
ation, but might lx* inferred from facts 
and circumstances. Held, that the par­
ties wishing a sale, there will lx* an order 
for sale in case the plaintiff fails to redeem 
instead of the bill standing dismissed 
with costs, as is usual. Nixon v. Cvrrey, 
c/o/.......................................................153
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Mortgagee - Corn inued.
3.----- Mortgagee in Possession —Excep­

tions to Referee's Report — Accounting —- 
Interest — Rents.] A mortgagee in 
possession is not as a rule entitled to 
commission for collecting rents. There 
must be evidence to support such a 
charge. Before a mortgagee in posses­
sion can l>e made liable for rents which 
he has failed to collect there must be 
evidence to show that it has been due 
to his default in some way. Earle v. 
Harrison, el al........................................ 196
------Deed — Confidential Relationship—

I ndue Influence — Pressure — 
Misrepresentation — Improvident 
Contract — Voluntary Gift — In­
sanity of Grantor............................12
See Deed.

------ Multifariousness — Convenience of
Parties............................................. 55
See Demurrer.

NEXT OF KIN - Descent — Partition
of Real Estate................................ 10
See Distributions, Statute of.

------Heirs at Law — Statute of Distribu­
tions—General Scheme of Will.252 
See Will, 8.

OBJECTS OF INCORPORATION 58
See Company, 1.

OCCUPANCY ............................. 372
See Trespass.

PAROL EVIDENCE—Will— Con­
struction — General Intention of
Testator. .......................................162
See Will, 4.

PARTIES — Convenience — Multifari­
ousness.............................................55
See Demurrer.

------Rights — Bill Filed by a Director
for an Accounting — Demurrer. 327 
Sm < OMPANY, L\

PARTITION OF REAL ESTATE
Descent Next of Kin 10
See Distributions, Statute of.

PARTY WALL Right t«, N,,.,,..,,
Easement — Cser — Lost Grant —
Injunction — Costs..................... 353
See Easement.

PATENT — Infringement of Patent — In­
junction — Damages — Patent Act, R. S. 
C. (1906) Chap. 69.) The plaintiff L. 
obtained two Canadian patents for a 
certain log-hauling machine. The first 
was applied for April 17th, 1901, and 
was granted July 16th, 1901. The
second was applied for May 22nd, 1907, 
and was granted Novemlier 19th, 1907. 
L. also obtained a patent in the United 
States for the same device, which was 
applied i<>r November 22nd, 1906. and 
granted in May, 1907. Four of the 
machines were manufactured in the 
United States in accordance with the 
specifications of the 1907 Canadian patent, 
and were sold there in the years 1905 
and 1906 with the knowledge and consent 
of L. On the hearing all rights under 
the Canadian patent of 1901 were formally 
abandoned by ,L. Held, that the Canad­
ian patent dated November 19th, 1907, 
is void on the ground of non-compliance 
with the provisions of the Patent Act, 
as th. invention so patented was in public 
use and on sale with the consent of the 
inventor thereof for more than one year 
previous to the application for the said 
patent in Canada. R. S. C., Chap. 69, 
Sec. 7 The words "m Canada” in 
section seven of the Patent Act have 
reference to the application for the patent, 
and not to the sale of the machine to be 
patented. Smith v. Goldie, 7 Ont. 
App. 628 followed. In the Canadian 
patent of 1907 small rollers were sub­
stituted for roller chains, as specified in 
the 1901 patent, to perform a certain 
function in connection with the operation 
of the machine. These rollers were 
afterwards found to lie impracticable, 
and in all the machin— manufactured 
both by L. or his agents, and by the 
defendants, with the exception of the 
four machines mentioned above, the 
roller chains were used as specified in 
the patent of 1901. Three of the machines 
were manufactured in Canada by Lls. 
agents in 1908, and two were sold in 
Canada in that year. Three of the 
machines were also manufactured in 
the United States by L. in the years 1906 
and 1907, and were sold by him in Canada 
during those years. All of these machines 
were fitted with the roller chains according 
to the specifications for the patent of 
1901, and not with the small rollers as 
provided for in the patent of 1907. Held, 
also, that the Canadian patent dated 
November 19th, 1907, i- void on the
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Parent — Continued.
ground of non-compliance with the 
provisions of the Patent Act, as the i 
construction or manufacture of the j 
invention so patented had not bean 
commenced or carried on in Canada ! 
within two years from the date of the ! 
said patent. R. S. C. Chap. 60, Sec. 38. ; 
Lombardv. The Di sbar Company. . .271

PAYMENTS - Appropriation by Credi­
tor — Accounting....................... 153 I
See Mortgage, 2.

POSSESSION — Title by .. 372 
See Trespass.

POWER TO SELL REAL ESTATE - .
Implied i:;1.'
See Will, 3.

PRACTICE — Concurrent Jurisdiction of 
Chancery and Probate Courts — 
Con. Stat. (1003) Cap. 118 330
See Probate Court.

Foot-note to Interrogatories — Ex­
ception to Answer— Irrelevancy.42 
See Interrogatories, 1.

I 1 ■>
See Company, 1.

-----  Injunction — Supporting Affida­
vits^ ...   KM

— Insufficiency of Answer — Excep­
t'd

See Interrogatories, 2.

PRE EXISTING DEBTS 415
Fraudulent Conveyance, 2.

PRESSURE 12
See Deed.

PROBATE COURT - Practice — Con­
current Jurisdiction of Chancery and Pro­
hate Courts — Con. Slat. ( 1903) Chap. 118.) 
In matters where the Chancery and Pro­
bate < ourts have concurrent jurisdiction, 
the Chancery Court will not act, when 
the question involved can Ik* more con­
vient ly and inexpensively disposed of 
in the Probate Court, unless some s|H*cial 
reason Ik* shown win the Probate Court 
should not act. Kennedy, Adminis­
trator v. Slater, Administrator. .. .339

PROPERTY OF CORPORATION .58
See Company, 1.

QUIA TIMET ACTION KM
See Lease.

REAL ESTATE — Implied Power to
Sell..............................................139
See Will, 3.

----- Partition — Descent — Next of
Kill Id
See Distributions, Statute of.

RE APPORTIONMENT 48
See In-i i< w< e, i

REDEMPTION 72
See Mortgage. 1.

REDEMPTION 153
See Mortgage . l\

REFEREE - Exceptions to Report . . 196 
See Mortgage, 3.

REMEDIES — Legal and Equitable — 
Trepsass — Con. Stat. (1903) c. 
I ! 2, - 34 
See Ini unction.

RENTS — Mortgagee in Possession — 
Exceptions to Referee’s Report —
Accounting — Interest.............. 196
See Mortgage, 3.

RESIDUARY CLAUSE 237
;m, 6

RESIDUARY ESTATE 139
v t Win. 3

RIGHTS OF PARTIES — Bill filed by
a Director for an Accounting —
Demurrer...................................327
See Company, 2.

RIGHT TO SUPPORT - Party Wall — 
Cser — Lost (Irani — i
— Costs.....................................353
See Easement.

RIPARIAN RIGHTS -Lease from City of 
Saint John — Foreshore or Water Lots — 
Rights of Lessees —Damaging Erections — 
Injunction 1 The plaintiff S. is the lessee 
from the City of Saint John of two water 
lots (so-called) situated between high and 
low water mark in the harbor of Saint John, 
on which a wharf or wharves and buildings 
have, been erected, which have been used 
at different times for various pur|>oses. 
One* of their advantages consists of access

1356
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Riparian Rights — Continued, 
by the water# of the harbor of Saint 
John, there being ten feet of water on 
the southern side of the plaintiff's wharf 
at high tide. The southern side is the 
only part of the plaintiff's wharf to which I 
he has direct access by the waters of the 
harbor, his lot or lots, as originally leased, 
being shut off on the other three sides. 
The lease, under renewals of which S. 
is tenant, was granted by the City of 
Saint John some fifty years ago, Doth 
lots l>eing included in the one lease at 
that time. The defendant K. is the 
lessee from the City of Saint John of 
the water lot lying immediately south j 
of S's. lots. It is I founded on the north ' 
by S's. southerly line, and extends along 
the entire southern side of S's. lot. K's. 
lease was granted a few months ago, 
being dated March 10th, 1909, and is j 
precisely similar in terms to S's. leases, 
except as to rent reserved. K. is pro­
ceeding to build a wharf covering his , 
entire lot, which when finished, will 
completely close up all direct access by 
water from the harbor to S'». lots. By 
the Charter of the City of Saint John, 
confirmed by an Act of the Legislature, 
the title to these water lots was vested 
in the City, and in addition to this the 
City was made the conservator of the 
Water of the harbor, and has sole power 
over it. In the Charter is the following 
saving clause:—"So always as such piers 
or wharves so to lie erected or streets 
so to be laid out, do not extend to the 
taking away of any person's right or 
property, without his, her or their consent, 
or fiy some known laws of the said 
Province of New Brunswick or by the 
law of the land." Held, that the right 
of direct access by water from the harbor 
appertained to the plaintiff's lots and 
could not lx- taken away, and that the 
plaintiff was entitled to an injunction 
restraining the defendants from interfering 
with this right. Skely r. Kerr, et ni 
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STOCK — < Iriginal Capital St<xk — 
Sale of Stock - Discretion of 
Directors — Confirmation by Com­
pany — Exhibition Association . .58 
See Company, 1.
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TESTAMENTARY GIFT 237
See Win, 5.

TITLE — Con. Stat. (1903) Cap. 160, 
See. 24 — Conveyance by Execu­
tor» and Trustees........................ 216
See Frauds, Statute of.

TITLE BY POSSESSION .372
S - I ki—r v-

TRADE MARK Specific Performance — 
General Assignment Trade Mark — 
Good Will of Business.] In March, 1894, 
the firm of G.S. «le F. & S., consisting of 
ih« defendant, H. W. deF., and his 
brother C. \V. deF., registered a trade 
mark for a certain blend of tea known 
as " Vnion Blend," which was prepared 
umler a formula made by the defendant. 
In May, 1901, C. W. deF. assigned his 
interest in the trade mark to the defendant 
and shortly after seems to have • .‘tired 
from the business. In May, 1908, the 
business was put into a joint stock com- 
>any in which the defendant was by 
ar the largest stock holder, he paying 

for his stock by assigning to the company 
all his interest in the business, which he 
valued at $50,000. This assignment, 
dated June 29th, 1908, after particularly 
setting out the real estate and chattels 
|H‘rsonal, contained the following, “and 
all personal property of whatsoever 
nature and description owned by the 
slid II. W. deF. in connection with the 
business of the sait! II. \V. deF. together 
with the good-will of the business of the 
said H. W. deF." There was also a 
covenant in the assignment that the 
defendant would execute and deliver all 
papers necessary to give a |H*rfert title 
to the property. The trade mark itself 
was not specifically mentioned in the 
assignment. The defendant was elected 
president of this company and for two 

«■ars this trade mark was used and the 
nisi ness carried on, chiefly under his 

management. In May, 1910, the com­
pany, being insolvent, assigned to the 
plaintiff under Chap. 141, Con. Stat. 
of N. It. (1903). On investigation the 
plaintiff fourni that there was no specific 
assignment of the trade mark to the 
company which could Ik* useil for registry 
umler the Trade Mark Act. Held, that 
the words used in the assignment are 
amply comprehensive to pass the trade 
mark, and that the defendant is Ixiund
!•> < *et ni' a ipei ill- assignhmM of it t<>

Trade Mark — Continued, 
the plaintiff as assignee of the company. 
Tilley, Assignee of deforest r. de- 
Forest, et al............................................ 343

TRESPASS — Land—Documentary Title— 
Title by Possession — Occupancy — In­
junction — Damages.] In 1/65 a certain 
block of land, a portion of which is the 
land in question in this suit, was granted 
by the Crown to J. S., R. S. and J. VV., 
ami from that date a documentary title 
can be traced to the present time vesting 
this land in the plaintiff company. In 
1855, the then owner of the land and the 
predecessor in title of the plaintiff com­
pany, gave a lease of a portion of it, 
and from that time to the present the 
different owners and predecessors in 
title of the plaintiff company have given 
leases to various persons and collected 
the rents. The plaintiff company during 
its ownership has also given leases and 
collected rents. In 1872, the defendant 
S. and his father went on the property 
and drove some stakes on the boumlarivs 
of the land in dispute, cut wood and 
made some excavations, either searching 
for magnesia or for some other reason. 
From this date down to the present, the 
defendant has been more or less on the 
land, digging holes and making excava­
tions. He did not live on the land but 
went on it and performed these acts 
whenever he was able. During all this 
time the land not occupied by buildings 
was under lease to other persons for 
pasturage purposes, though the defendant 
recently drove off their animals on numer­
ous occasions. The defendant's father 
died in 1891, but neither he nor the 
defendant ever collected any rent from 
the tenants on the land in dispute, while 
the plaintiff company and its predecessors 
in title have collected rents during the 
whole time of their ownership. In 
Septemlwr, 1900, through his solicitor, 
the defendant wrote to the various tenants 
claiming unages for trespass and threat­
ening suit,rbut nothing further was ever 
done; and in Octolier, 1909, he gave a 
deed of a portion of this land to one 
M. M. \\ lhhi, that tin- defendant 
has no title by possession as his possession 
was not open, notorious and exclusive: 
as the plaintiff company aijd its prede­
cessors in title exercised their rights and 
occupancy during the whole of the defend­
ant's alleged possession. Decree that 
the plaintiff company is the owner in
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Trespass — Continued, 
fee simple of the trai t of land in dispute, 
and for an injunction restraining the 
defendants front interfering with or 
dis|H)sing of or using or dealing with its 
land in any way, and further, that the 
defendants give the plaintiff company 
possession of the lands and premises.
11„ Det 1 to M M. W. will be d< l red 
void and set aside. TURNBULL REAL
Estate Company r. Segee, et al.......... d72

----- Injunction — Legal and Equitable
Remedies — Con. Slat. (19021).
Cap. 112, S. 31 ....................... 208
See Injunction.

TRUST Absolute Assignment Declar­
ation as to Rights of Parties —
Injunction................................. 280
See Mining Rights.

-----Administration of.......................... 1219
See Will, 3.

----- Declaration — (lift inter vivos -
Testamentary Gift ..................237
See Will, 5.

TRUSTEES — Discretion 80
'see W n i., l.

TRUSTEES AND EXECUTORS — Con­
veyance by................................ 21G
See Frauds, Statute of.

UNDUE INFLUENCE 12
See Deed.

USKR
See Easement.

VALUABLE CONSIDERATION 203
S« I IM D1 1 EN1 t own xn« B, I

VOLUNTARY GIFT 12
See Deed.

VOLUNTARY SETTLEMEN1 — 13 Eli/.
c. 5 — Pre-existing Debts — 
Evidence of Intention to Delay 
Creditors — Agreement by Son 
to SupjMirt and Maintain Grantor 
and Work Performed by Son on
I .anils as Consideration............ 415
See Fraudulent Conveyance, 2.

WATER LOTS 184,201
Sm Riparian RjgBTS.

WILL - Construction — Fund for Heirs — 
Time for Distribution —Determination of 
Class — Discretion of Trustees.J L. 
died in 1899, having made a will in 1898, 
by which 111' bit all his |ir<>|>ert y to two 
trustees, to hold in trust for the benefit 
of the infant children of two nephews. 
The trustees were to use the income, 
according to their discretion, for the 
support, maintenance and education of 
these children, until each reached the 
age of twenty-one years. The words in 
the will arc,—“and on each child attain­
ing the age of twenty-five years, to pay 
to such child what they consider w ould be 
his or her share in my estate, dividing 
the same equally between such children 
living, and the children of any deceased 
child when such payment shall lx* made, 
such payment to be per stirpes, and not 
per capita, etc." In 1904, one of the 
children died without issue, and in 1906 
another child was l»orn to one of the 
nephews. The oldest child has now 
reached the age of twenty-five years. 
Held, that the child who hail reached the 
age of twenty-five years was entitled to 
be paid her share of the corpus of the 
estate, which share was t<> be ascert lined 
by dividing the corpus equally among 
the children then in esse, they being the 
only ones entitled to rank, as the class 
was then d« termined. Held, that the 
child born after the death of the testator, 
but before the time for payment to the 
oldest child, was entitled to rank equally 
with the other children as the class was 
not determined until then. Held, that 
as the testator had given the trustees 
full discretion, to use the income as they 
might see fit, for the purjxises mentioned 
in the will, the Court would not, in the 
absence of fraud or wrong-doing, interfere 
or direct them in this respect. Earle, 
Trustee, etc., of Lawton v. Lawton, 
ct al Mi

2.----- Will — Construction — Cift to
Class — Time for Distribution — Income — 
Provision for Maintenance — Costs.I 
Held, that the oldest child, having reached 
the age of twenty-five years, was entitled 
to be paid lui share -■! tlu- ..t/n, .>i 1 In 
estate, and took an absolute vested 
interest. Held, that the remainder of 
the capital was not to be set apart now, 
but held in trust until another child 
reached the age of twenty-five years, 
when another division must be made. 
Held, that the oldest child was not now
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Will — Continued.
entitled to any share of the accumulated 
mi ome. I li.it '.m only be <li\ided \\hen 
all possible claims upon it have ceased. 
It was ordered that the costs in this 
matter as between solicitor and client, 
be paid out "I the corpus <>1 the estate. 
Earle, Trustee, etc., ok Lawton v. 
Lawton, et al............................................ 92

3.------Construction — Administration of
Trusts — Legatee's Power of Appointment 
— Time for Distribution — Implied Power 
to Sell Real Estate — Interest in Residuary 
Estate.] R. died in 1876, leaving practic­
ally all his property upon trust for the 
benefit of his widow and children. In 
his will, in order to make an equal distri­
bution of a large portion of his estate 
among his five daughters, he grouped 
together certain properties, in part real 
estate and in part personal, in five separate 
schedules. The property in schedule 
(A) was devised to the testator's daughter 
M. A. A. who died in 1902, leaving a will 
by which, in exercise of the power of 
appointment in her father's will, she 
devised one-third of her estate to her 
husband who survived her. The clause 
in the will relating to the final distribution 
of the scheduled property was as follows:— 
"And hi mi trust on tL«- death <>f either 
of my said daughters to convey one-third 
of the said lands, tenements, heredita­
ments and premises apjiortioned to her 
in such schedule, to such |>crson or (arsons 
upon the trusts and for the ends, intents 
and pur|x>ses or in such manner as my 
said daughter may by any writing under 
her hand, attested by two or more wit­
nesses, or by her last will and testament 
direct and appoint, and as to the remaining 
two-thirds, to hold the same for the 
child or children, or such of them of my 
said daughter so dying, u|>on the trusts 
and in the proportion, and for the intents 
and purposes my said daughter may by 
her last will and testament direct and 
ap|M>int and in default of such direction 
and ap|x)intmcnt then and in such case 
the said two-thirds and one-third shall 
lie held by said executors and trustees 
m trust foi MM h child or chüdrt II .mil 
Ik* divided equally between them and 
their heirs, share and share alike, on the 
youngest child living attaining the age 
of twenty-one years and in the meantime 
and untd such child shall attain such 
age, the rents, issues and profits thereof 
-lull be applied l»> my said executed

Will —Continued.
toward the support, maintenance and 
education of such child or children, and 
in the event of my daughter dying, 
leaving no issue her surviving, then and 
in such case I will and direct that the 
said two-thirds and one- third before 
mentioned (if no disposition of the same 
shall be made by my said duaghter) 
shall be equally divided by my said 
executors and trustees between her 
sisters and brother and their resjiectivc 
heirs in equal profxirtions per stirpes and 
not per capita. Held, that the trustees, 
in order to make a distribution, had 
power to sell and dis|>ose of the scheduled 
property apfiortioned to the deceased 
daughter, such power being implied in 
the will in order to carry out the trusts, 
though no express power was given. 
Held also, that, the deceased daughter 
haying died without issue, the unap­
pointed two-thirds of her scheduled 
property should Ik* equally divided now- 
bet ween the surviving daughters and 
the heirs of the deceased son. The 
residuary clause in the will was:—"The 
rest, residue and remainder of my said 
estate, both real and |>ersonal and'what­
soever and wheresoever situate, I give, 
devise and bequeath the same to my 
said executors and trustees, upon the 
trusts and for the intents and purposes 
following, that is to say: Upon trust 
after [laying my brother Duncan Robert­
son or his heirs, to whom 1 give and.. 
bequeath the same, the legacy or sum 
of four thousand dollars, Dominion 
currency to sell and dispose of the same 
as and when they shall in their discretion 
see fit and consider to be most for the 
benefit and advantage of my said estate, 
and shall apportion the same or the 
proceeds of such jiarts or portions as 
shall Ih* sold from time to time, equally 
to and among my said children, share 
and share alike, and shall hold the same 
for my said children and their heirs, 
share and share alike, subject to any 
advances or sums made or to be made 
by me, as aforesaid upon the same trusts, 
with regard to my said daughters as 
are hereinbefore declared with respect 
to the said estate in the said schedules 
mentioned." Held, that the deceased 
daughter had a disposing power over 
one-third of her share of the residuary 
estate; and that the remaining two- 
thirds was divisible as was directed in 
regard to the scheduled property. Smith
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et al, Trustees, Robertson v. Robert­
son et al................................................ 139

4.----- Construction — Parol Evidence
— General Intention of Testator.] The 
following provision was contained in the 
will of Miss F. “that the sum of twenty 
dollars per annum he paid annually to 
Madeline Fisher, daughter of < Frederick 
Fisher, formerly of Fredericton, now 
deceased, as long as she lives and remains 
single." M. F. had been married, but 
before the date of the will, had been 
divorced a vinculo, which fact was well 
known to the testatrix. Held, that 
M. F. was entitled to the legacy. The 
following clause was contained in the 
will of Mrs. F.:—“I release and direct 
my executors to cancel, without collecting 
the money, the mortgage to me from 
John Doherty." Mrs. F. held no mort­
gage from J. I)., and she had never had 
any dealings with anyone of the name 
of J. D., but she did hold one from W. D. 
Held, that parol evidence was admissible j 
to correct such a mistake. The codicil j 
to Mrs. F's. will contained the following 
provision :—‘“'All the residue of my 
estate given to the City of Fredericton 
l>\ the '.iid will, 1 give and bequeath to 
T. Carleton Allen and J. Albert C.regory 
lwth of the said city, l>arristcrs-at-law, 
in trust for the purpose of founding an 
institution to tie called the J. J. Fraser 
Fanaline Place for a home for old ladies, 
and for that purpose to execute a deed 
of settlement, containing such provisions 
ami regulations and appointing such 
trustees, including themselves if they 
see fit, as they shall consider expedient, 
at which Home I direct that the said j 
Sarah F. Bliss shall have a comfortable , 
living for her life." The fund created 
by this provision is not at present sufficient 
for the purpose for whk h h was intended. 
Held, that the general intention of the 
testatrix thaï S. F. B. should have a 
comfortable living at the Home for the 
remainder <>f her life, should not be 
defeated by reason of the funds being 
at present inadequate for the mainten­
ance of the Home as intended, and that 
.m allowance from the annual income 
of the fund would be made to S. F. B. 
in lieu of the support and living intended 
for her at the Home. Morrison v. Bishop 
d i asm an ion, et ai ......... 102

5.-----Residuary Clause — Construction
— Gift inter vivos — Declaration of Trust —

Will —Continued.
Testamentary Gift — Wills Act.] J. A. C. 
the testator died April 15th, 1907. In 
his will, which was dated March 13th, 
1900, tl ere was the following residuary 
clause:—“all the rest and residue of my 
estate, real and personal excepting only 
such personal property as may be found 
in my private cash box, or in my box 
in the vaults of the Bank of New Bruns­
wick, St. John, and which 1 had already 
given to my daughter Hannah Gertrude, 
to meet the immediate personal necessities 
of herself and her sister Jean, I give in 
trust to my executors, etc." On or 
before April 11th, 1905, the testator 
gave to J. S. C., one of the executors 
afterwards named in his will, an envelope 
which J. s. C. believed to contain >< « ui 
ities, and which the testator at that 
time stated he had given to his daughter 
II. G. C., and requested J. S. C. to take 

"the envelope and deposit it in a vault 
box in the Bank of New Brunswick. 
J. S. C. leased a vault box as directed, 
in thf names <»t J. A. < . and H. G. C . 
either to have access, and gave both 
tin ke>- "i the l">\ t" J. K. C. After 
J. A. C's. death a number of securities 
were found in the private cash box, and 
in the vault box an envelope containing 
securities was found, addressed “ Rev'd. 
John A. Clark, Hannah Gertrude Clark," 
and also a numlier of loose securities. 
Held, that only those securities which 
had been actually assigned, and to which 
she had the legal title, and which was 
therefore ear-marked for her, were the 
property of H. G. C. as given to her by 
the testator during his lifetime. Held, 
also, that in respect to the other securities 
there was no |>erfected gift inter vivos 
as no delivery had been shown; that 
there was no valid declaration of trust 

■V the testator in favor «>» H. G. ( ; 
that there was no valid testamentary 
gift to H. G. C.; and that therefore the 
other securities were a part of the testa­
tor's residuary estate. Where the only 
evidence of a gift of a promissory note 
is its endorsement to the alleged donee 
without delivery, the title does not pass. 
Money dejmsited by one, in a savings 
account, in his own name and another’s, 
payable to the survivor, as a rule becomes 
the property of the survivor absolutely. 
In re I'ail Daley, 37 N. B. R. 483 
distinguished. Clark v. ('lark, et al, 
Executors...........................................237
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6.----- Construction — Fund for Main­

tenance and Education — Time for Pay­
ment — Costs.] B. Cm. F. the testator 
died October 1st, 1895, leaving him 
surviving a widow and one child, a son, 
the present plaintiff. The will contains 
the following provision:—"And I hereby 
will and bequeath all my estate, real 
and personal (of which I may die possessed) 
to my laid executors and trustees for the 
following purposes — that they shall, 
in the first place convert all property 
into cash within one year from the date 
of my death, and after the payment of 
niy just debts shall invest the remainder 
in safe interest paying investments and 
out of such investments 1 direct that 
the sum of one thousand pounds (£1,000) 
or the equivalent thereof be set apart 
and used by my said executors and 
trustees for the purpose of educating 
and giving a profession to my son Gordon 
Winslow Taylor providing he has not 
already Ifeen educated and received a 
profession." The will also provides that 
the plaintiff is not to receive his share 
of the residue of the estate until he reaches 
the .igv of twent) five years. "1 • \v I. 
became twenty-one years of age Sep­
tember 2nd, 1909. Held, that as the 
plaintiff has reached the age of twenty- 
one years he is now entitled to have 
paid over to him the £ 1,000 fund with 
accumulations and interest, or to have 
transferred to him the securities in which 
this fund is invested. Trustees who 
refuse to pay over a legacy when they 
hav« no reasonable doubt but that it 
should lie paid, will not be allowed any 
costs in an action to conq>el its payment. 
Jutere, in such a case are not trustees 
personally liable for the costs of the pro­
ceedings? Taylor v. McLeod, et al, 
Trustees of Taylor............................262

7.—— Construction of Will — Legacy— 
Cluiritablc Intention.] Catherine Murdoch 
died October 26th, 1909, leaving a will 
dated November 27th, 1905. The
following legacy is found in the will:— 
"I give and liequcath the sum of one 
thousand dollars to l>c paid by my said 
executor to the Aged and Infirm Ministers' 
Fund in connection with Saint Stephen's 
Presbyterian Church in the City of Saint 
John. ’ The defendant, the Board of

Will —Continued.
Trustees of the Presbyterian Church in 
Canada, Eastern Section, is a corporation 
created for the pur|K>se of taking in trust 
any property which may be conveyed 
or bequeathed or intended for the use 
of the said Church or any scheme or 
trust, not incorporated, in connection 
therewith. The Presbyterian Church in 
Canada maintains a fund which is not 
incorporated, known as the Aged and 
Infirm Ministers' Fund, in connection 
with the Presbyterian Church in Canada, 
and in this fund the ministers of Saint 
Stephen's Church arc entitled to partici­
pate. There is no separate fund in con-. 
ncction with Saint Stephen's Church. 
Ilehl, that tin- beguest does not fail for 
uncertainty, as the intention of the 
testator is easily ascertained; and that 
it should be paid to the defendant, the 
Board of Trustees of the Presbyterian 
Church in Canada, Eastern Section, for 
the Aged and Infirm Ministers’ Fund 
in connection with the Presbyterian 
Church in Canada. Jones Executor of 
Catherine Murdoch v. Saint Stephen's 
Church, et al........................................316

8.------- Construction — Heirs at Law
Statute of Distributions — Statutory Next 
of Kin — General Scheme of Will.] R. 
died in 1876 leaving a will by which he 
devised practically all his pro|K-rty to 
trustees, upon trust for the benefit of his 
children and their heirs. I >. D. R., a 
son of the testator, died after his father, 
leaving him surviving a widow and five 
children. Held, that the word "heirs" 
in the will should Ik* construed in its 
-m. i legal .iml technical sense, and was 
intended to mean the heirs at law and 
not the statutory next of kin; and that 
the widow of the deceased son was not 
entitled to any part of the testator's 
property, under in- will. Smith, <t .</, 
Trustees, etc., of Robertson p. Roiikr
son, et al............................................... 252
----- Life Insurance — Life Insurance

Act, 5 Ed. VII (1905) Cap. 4 
Re-apportionment — Election 

— Bequest in nature of S|K*cifie 
Legal y is

See Insurance, 1.
-------- I oust ruction............................. 216

•S>f Frauds, Statute of.
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